Do not read this like a book. Use the “search/find” function to jump around. 
The reason??? Listed below are about 180 Bowling DNA 6 males born before 1800 that had known families.
For most of us we would only have 5 or 6 ancestors below. (That being the number of generations from our DNA Group 6’s immigarant Simon Fh629 to those born before 1800) 
So get to your ancestors and forget about everyone else.
If you don’t know your ancestor’s “Family Head” number use the “Spouse” index and/or “Place” index. Look for a wife in the “Spouse” index. Look for a known event (e.g. birth, marriage, death) in the “Place” index.   
All 180 individuals start the same way. Here is a typical entry:
+++++++++++++++++++++++++

Alexander Fh020 (6K) 746a

-----------------

Alexander is his first name. The surname is not shown but it would be one of the many varients of the surname Bowling. 
Fh020 is his “Family Head” number. (very important) In other places it might say Alexander #20 or #020 meaning Alexander Fh020.
Next it shows he is in Family String “K” in our DNA Group 6. 
Next it states his father was Fh746 (sometimes “UK”—Unknown). Don’t concern yourselve with the a,b,c----x. At first that was the birth order. That was too hard to maintain so now I just use “x”. 
If you wanted to jump to his father’s entry, “search/find” Fh746. You will probably get several or many “hits” (I just got 43 hits) but keep going until you see his entry beginning with:
+++++++++++++++++++++++++ 
You can also use that (++++++++++++++) to skip to the end of your person and see the next person. But be careful. While basically in order by first name that is not always true. So don’t find the first William and think you can just continue to jump down through the Williams and find your William.           
Once you get to your ancestors you will see that all the “sources” are cited. See the “Sources” file for the (xxxx)s.
To get to the files (i.e. the Spouse, Place and Sources files) you will have to go to the BFA site as follows:

 
“The Bolling, Bowling, Bolen Family in America before 1800” by Todd Bolen-- https://www.bolling.net/blank
 

The book starts now. But also see at the very end on how many of the Family Strings tie together.

Let’s begin,
+++++++++++++++++++++++++

James Fh002 (6T) 424x

-----------------

James 1773-1849 (Rin=54471)/?Rhoda ---------
Father was John #424 Below looks like siblings, not children 

Daniel b1770-80-dc1847/(Rin=54473)/m1801 Jane Wilchin(Millican)-- (bc1789-d>1850)--See Family #1595 




or

Daniel born 1784/6-d>1850/m        Elizabeth -------- (bc1789-d>1850)—perhaps Family #1595


Robert Thomas 1782-1851(Rin=29649, FAG=91480951)/m1812 Mary "Polly" Nelson 1788-1848—See Family #550

Henry b1784, --

Wiloughby/Willaba/Willaby 1785-1849 (Rin=54280, FAG=32739422) /m<1800  ?Elizabeth Foster (?) d1846—See 



Family #930 A descendant kit B216325 tested into DNA 6


Mark 1789-1818 (FAG = 54861263)

Thomas Colton 1793/98-1864 (Rin=46252,FAG=29259017)/Lydia "Liddie" Sheffield (1797-1879)—See  Family #733


A descendant kit 13529 tested into DNA 6

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

Fh007 (6) 240x
-----------------

-----/----- ------ This could be Joseph #450 (53942) or John #392 (Rin=51086)—Their father was George #240


*
Children of Joseph #450 (s)--Son, (d)--Daughter 

**
Children of John #392

*(f)
Fh450
A
Joseph d1753/m1738 Pelletaire or Letitia Crafford or Peltiah Graffort b1718


*(s)
Fh090
A
Benjamin bc1704-1767/m1725 Mary Latham


*(s)
Fh590
A
Samuel/m1731 1/w Elizabeth Oxford 





Samuel (Rin=44275)/m<1734 2/w Mary -----


*(s)
Fh680
A
Thomas b<1709/m1729 Rachel Colclough 


*(s)
Fh746
K
William 1717-1756/m<1748 Elizabeth Colclough 1723-d>1757






or



Fh740
M
William b<1706/m1726 Elizabeth Kidwell


*(d)
450d
M
Bethridge/m1728 Daniel Hammit  


*(d)
450e
M
Honor/m1726 Joseph Dunham/Dunman


** A
Fh160 
M18
David b<1721/m1741 Jane Pilcher


A
Fh183
M
Edmund/Edmond/m1744 Mary Sudduth or Suddeth


A


Their father was John Fh392


Fh630
M
Simon b<1702-d1735 His father was Robert Fh516




1/w m1722 Anne Newton (Husband was Simon Fh630)




2/w m1728 Elizabeth Newport (Husband was Simon Fh630)




3/w Martha -----  d1735(Husband was Simon Fh630)


Fh750
M
William (Rin=45995) /m<1725 Eleanor ----- His father was Robert Fh516


Fh760
M
William/m1726 Sarah Kirk—His Father UK 



UK
M
Mary (Rin=54598)/m1737 William Eaton



The above could be siblings, first cousins.  However, they were probably in the same generation and in the same area. They were all married between 1722 and 1744 in the St. Paul's Parish, Stafford/King George Counties, Virginia.

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

Abijah Fh008 (6N2) 1563x

-----------------

Abijah 1790-1858 (Rin=40640)/mc1819 Frances Fanny Guy (1795-1879)—His father was Charles #1563 (Rin=50310)


James William 1820->1880



Robert H. b1822 


*a 
Thomas bc1824->1850


* 
Elizabeth "Betty" M. bc1825->1858/mc1846 James L. Heflin



Lewis b1828/m         Elizabeth Heflin (b1835)


*a 
John "Jack" bc1829->1896/mc1856 Mildred Heflin


*a 
William "Alexander" 1832-1906/m1859 1/w Frances L. Baker,2/w m1890 Louisa Lucy Butler


*a 
James A. b>1833-1913/m1856 Harriet L. Patton (b1834)

*a 
Frances bc1841


* 
Children per Source #1061.


a
In 1850 Census of Stafford County, VA, along with mother and father. 

Birth, Parents, Lineage

Abijah Bowling was born about 1795 in Stafford County, Virginia. (1061) Abijah Bowling age 60 was in the 1850 Census, page 20, #332, Stafford County, Virginia, occupation farmer. Wife Fanny is listed as 55 years.  (1061) 

Marriage and Children

Abijah Bowling married about 1819 Frances/Fanny Guy in Stafford County, Virginia, by Leach, a Baptist.  See their family group sheet for their children. (1061) Abija Bowlen married 1819 Fannie -----.  She was alive 1878 in Fauquier County, Virginia. She died 1879 in Stafford County, Virginia. (934)(935) She died 17 Aug 1879 in either Stafford or Fauquier County, Virginia. (1061)

War of 1812 Military Service

Abija Bowlen was in the War of 1812 Virginia Bounty Land and Pension file. (934)(935) 
Abija Bowlen served in John C. Edrington's and Varton S. Stones's Company of the Virginia Militia in the War of 1812.  His pension 
was WC-15566. (935) 
Abijah Bowling served in the War of 1812, 6th Reg't. Virginia Militia, others in that Reg't were 

Nelson Bolen (perhaps Fh4665) 

Pleasant, 

William, 

Isaac, 

James Boling(Fh282,1563b,6N2),

George Bowling (851a). (966) 
Abija Bowling (Fh008, 1563a, 6N2) was on Muster Roll #750, War of 1812, (1459) along with 

James Bowling (Fh282,1563b,6N2) (1459), 

Charles Bowling (1459) 

George Bowling (851a). (1459) 
Capt. John C. Edrington, Light infantry. Stafford County, Company.


July 16-24 1813


Jan 6-Apr 13, 1814 (6th Virgina Regiment—Lt. Col. Daniel Coleman)


Jul 22-Aug 18, 1814 (In Stafford Co.) (1946)

Abijah Bowling served in the War of 1812, 45th Virginia Militia, Edrington's Company, name "Bowlen". (1061) 

War of 1812, Stafford County, Virginia, Muster Roll of Capt. John C. Edrington.


George Bowling 
(851a)


Abijah Bowling 
(Fh008,1563a,6N2)-- His father was Charles #1563 (Rin=50310)


James Bowling 
(Fh282,1563b,6N2)-- His father was Charles #1563 (Rin=50310)


(1943)
James Bowling (Fh282,1563a,6N2), Abijah Bowling (Fh008,6M), and George Bowling (UK) are mentioned as being in the War of 1812, Stafford County, Virginia, Muster Roll of Capt. John C. Edrington. (1943) 

Movement

Abijah Bowling was in the 1850 Census, page 20, #332, Stafford County, Virginia, occupation farmer, age 60.  Wife Fanny is listed as 55 years.  (1061) 

Abijah Bowling, "United States Census, 1850"

Name:
Abijah Bowling

Event Type:
Census

Event Date:
1850

Event Place:
Stafford county, part of, Stafford, Virginia, United States

Gender:
Male

Age:
60

Birthplace:
Virginia

Birth Year (Estimated):
1790

 
Household



Gender
Age
Birthplace


Abijah Bowling (Fh008, 1563a 6M)
M
60
Virginia


Frances Bowling



F
55
Virginia


Thomas Bowling (008a)



M
26
Virginia


John Bowling (008d)
 


M
21
Virginia


Alexander Bowling (008e)



M
18
Virginia


James Bowling (008f)



M
15
Virginia


Frances Bowling (008g)



F
8
Virginia

Death

Abija Bowlen died 1858 in Stafford County, Virginia. (934)(935) Abijah Bowling died Mar 1858 in Stafford County, Virginia. (1061) In "Stafford County Virginia, Veterans & Cementers", compiled by Joseph Musselman, 1994---

    "Bowling, William Alexander (008d) , January 1832---December 24, 1906

            Wife:  (1) Frances L. Baker 1859

                      (2)  Louisa Butler 1890

     Served:  Civil War.  Interred Baker Burial Ground--located on U.S. Marine Corps base opposite the old Ruby Post Office on Garrisonville Rd. (rt. #610). Joe Thompson, a Stafford native & Bowling descendant says numerous family graves there. I'm thinking maybe an original family plantation. Land records indicate an inheritance of 3000 acres in 1699 in Stafford. (1748)


+++++++++++++++++++++++++

Fh009 (6K) Same as William Fh746—See him
-----------------
+++++++++++++++++++++++++

Alexander Fh020 (6K) 746a
-----------------

Alexander bc1746-1791 (29064), will 1791(will not completed)/m1770 Martha "Patsy" Williams (b1749, she remarried 1792 Isaac Zane)--His father was William #746



Robert d1792-killed by Indians


baW* 
Elizabeth "Betsy" bc1771-d>1840 /m1792 Zadock McNew


baW* 
Mary "Polly" b1773-d>1810/1/h m1794 Samuel Forrester 2/h m1807 Simpson Ritchey or Ritchie


baW* 
John 1775-1856/m1797 Elizabeth Woodhead--See Family Group #393




Descendant Kit 134440 (James R. Boling) tested into DNA 6




Researcher Mark Boling (2181) is a descendant




Researcher Dee Doyle (660) is a descendant




Researcher Judy Chadderdon (1623) is a descendant




Researcher Harriet Lee (1598) is a descendant




Researcher Marty Acks (2187) is a descendant




Reaearcher Marsha Spates (0) is a descendant


b  W  
Jarrett 1778-1868/m1807 Mary "Polly" J. Rust--See Family Group #323




Researcher Diane Dreier Deputy (448) is a descendant




Researcher Ann Kirkman (1496) is a descendant




Researcher Carol Bartlett (1518) is a descendant




Researcher Aletha Collins (823) is a descendant




Researcher Linda Collins Dunham (0) is a descendant




Researcher David Love (0) is a descendant




The late Researcher Norman Bolin (7) was a descendant


b  W* 
William 1782-d>1850/m1804 Elizabeth Rust--See Family Group #880




Researcher Linda Berge (1748,Rin=61261) is a descendant


baW* 
Rachel bc1785-1869/m1805 Maj. Henry Ewing (1765/70-1839)



Researcher Patricia Benedict (1224) is a descendant

 


Researcher Stevan Moon (1027) is a descendant


b  W  
Jane 1790-1832/m1807 Phillip Hall (b1788)

W 
Named in their father's 1791 will in Mercer Co., Ky


*
Children named in a court record 1811 in Livingston Co., Ky. The youngest child, Jane, would have 



turned 21 years old about 1810 and hence possibly the final settlement of the estate.

 
a
Signed off as heirs (4 parts of 7, 136 ½ acres of 240 acres) of Alexander on land in Mercer Co, Ky on 22 Aug 1808. 

Jane would have been age 19. Mercer County, KY, Deed Book 7, page 160.


b 
Children per Source #1027 and #2129
Birth, Parents, Lineage

Alexander Bolin was born about 1746. (198)(653)  I believe Alexander Bowling's father was William (Fh746) and his grandfather was Sims Bowlin (See Simon Fh629) who had land 1673 in Stafford County, Virginia. Alexander Bowling had brothers Sims (746i), John Bowling (746f) and possibly others. (7) Alexander Bowling had brothers John Bowling and Sim Bowling in 1748. Their mother was Elizabeth (Colclough XE "Colclough:Elizabeth" ) Bowling who was alive in 1748 having been named in the Stafford County, Virginia, will of her mother. (352) Alexander Bowling was the son of ----- and Elizabeth (Colclough) Bowling. (1159) Alexander Bowling (Fh020) was the son of William Bowling (Fh746) who died about 1756 as his will was probated 26 April 1756, and Elizabeth Colclough XE "Colclough:Elizabeth"  who died about 1757, as her will was probated 16 March 1757 Fairfax County, Virginia, of Stafford County, Virginia. (1224) 
From Place Index
Kentucky, Virginia--from December 31, 1776 to November 1, 1780


6K
Alexander 
(Fh020,746d) l1780--later Jefferson

6K
Garrett,Gerrard      (Fh2299,746f) l1780--later Jefferson-present day Mason, KY


6K
Henry                    (Fh2499,746g) l1780,m1784,r1785--later Jefferson

6K
Robert                      (Fh558,746j) r1780s,r1791--later Jefferson


Walter (Fh7385) b1775--later Jefferson

6K
William                   (Fh860,746m) l1780--later Jefferson
Jefferson,KY-created 1780 from original Kentucky County, Virginia (early towns Louisville and Bardstown)


6K
Alexander                 (Fh020,746d) l1780-Could be in Hardin County today



Baldwin                      (UK,?746x) wp1792 (Source 473)


6K
George                     (Fh237,746e) r1787,t1789-Part that was Shelby Co. later


6K
Garrett,Gerrard        (Fh2299,746f)  l1780-Could be in Hardin Co. later-present day Mason, KY 


6K
Henry                      (Fh2499,746g) l1780,m1784 (Sarah Bonam),r1785,r1786-1790


6K
Robert              (Fh558,746j) r1780s,r1791 (in 1823/1824 heirs payed taxes on land on Cross Creek, Jefferson, Ky) 


6K
William                     (Fh860,746m) l1780-Part that was Shelby Co. later

Marriage

A. Bowling (Alexander?) married Martha or Patsy Williamsxe "Williams:Martha Patsey" 1770 in Washington County, Pennsylvania. (814)  Alexander Bowling's wife was Martha Patsey Williams XE "Williams:Martha Patsey"  of Maryland. (7) Alexander Bolin's wife was Martha "Patsy" Williams.  (198)(653) Alexander Bowling married 1770 in Washington County, Pennsylvania, Martha "Patsy" Williams, born 20 June 1749 of Maryland. IGI states her parents are Benjamine and Sarah Williams of South River Parish, Anne Arundel County, Maryland, but "Anne Arundel County Church records of 17 and 18 Centuries" says same parents, but birth year 1743, All Hallow' Parish. (1224)
Children

a.
Get rid of anything duplicate here:

Robert Bowling 020a who was killed by the Indians in 1792 and Sims Bowling (Fh627,746b,746i) in a Mercer County, Kentucky, 1790 court action were to help make road repairs. Others on the list were Samuel Taylorxe "Taylor:Samuel", Hugh McGaryxe "McGary:Hugh", John, Samuel, George and James McAfeexe "McAfee:John"

xe "McAfee:Samuel"

xe "McAfee:George"

xe "McAfee:James", Negro Georgexe "Negro:George", John Johnstonxe "Johnston:John", Henry Thompsonxe "Thompson:Henry" and many others. (449) Negro George belonged to Alexander Boling Fh020 in 1790. (7) One thing to note here is that Robert Bowling is on both the September and October 1790 list.  It was customary to work 30 days in a year. With each able bodied male in a county subject to call from a list kept by the court. So I question if there were two Robert Bowling there in 1790 i.e. Robert having worked the road in September should not have been required to work again in October. (7) Private Robert Bowling was killed in the battle with the Indians on November 6, 1792.  He is buried in the Fort St. Clair cemetery, west of Eaton, Washington Township, Preble County, Ohio. Others killed were Job Hale, Kentucky Militia, Matthew English, Joseph Clinton, Isaac Jett, and John Williams. (573)(574) EATON, Nov. 7. -- With ceremonies fully in keeping with the occasion, the first annual historical St. Clair Day was observed here Monday afternoon and evening by the Preble County Historical Society and citizens of the county. The day marked the anniversary of an important battle between whites and Indians at Ft. St. Clair, one mile west and slightly to the south of Eaton. The date was November 6, 1792. The commemorative ceremonies included unveiling and dedication of a monument at Ft. St. Clair in the afternoon, followed by a program of exercises in the assembly hall in the court house. C. B. Galbreath of Columbus, secretary of the State Archaeological and Historical Society, gave the dedicatory address at the unveiling of the monument. He also gave an address later at the meeting in the court house. In dedicating the monument he paid a touching tribute to the heroes who fell in battle at the historic old fort. He said they had waited 130 years for the tribute that was being paid them today. He declared it most fitting that the monument dedicated to their memory should be erected by a veteran of the Civil War -- Major W. H. Ortt. The monument was unveiled by little Miss Marion McPherson of Eldorado, daughter of H. R. McPherson, president of the County Historical Society. A flag salute of 21 rounds from a cannon was fired. Prayer was offered by the Rev. Charles F. Irwin, Eaton Presbyterian Church, an overseas chaplain and chaplain of the American Legion post of the county. The monument dedicated at the old fort stands fully eight feet in height and weighs eight and one-half tons. It is a native Preble county boulder and was procured from the farm of Clarence Dalrymple, two and one-half miles north of Eaton. A tablet in the face of the monument bears this inscription: "Erected by William H. Ortt in October, 1922. Sacred to the memory of the soldiers who fought and died in the battle with the Indians at Ft. St. Clair, Nov. 6, 1792." The tablet is of bronze, 21 by 16 inches, and is the handiwork of Dr. C. M. Wilcox of New Paris. The flag staff also was erected by Major Ortt. A concrete base has been installed at the fort to receive a cannon and balls he will contribute. Graves of six warriors who fell in the Indian battle have been placed in proper condition and marked with headstones. The stones bear these names: Lieut. Job Hale, Kentucky militia, Fort St. Clair killed in battle with Indians, November 6, 1792; Orderly-Sergeant Matthew English, Private John Williams, Private Isaac Jett, Private Joseph Clinton, Private Robert Bolling. The Indian hordes in the battle were led by Little Turtle, while Capt. John Adair led the opposition. The fort took its name from Gen. Arthur St. Clair, then governor of the Northwest Territory. The ceremonies observed upon the 130th anniversary of the Ft. St. Clair battle were conceived by the county historical society, formed a little more than a year ago. It is the hope of the society to reclaim the site of the old fort. A plan of procedure looking to this end is being worked out. The attendance and manifest enjoyment in the celebration of this day evidenced the fact that nothing so stimulates interest in local history as the participation of the public schools. Preble County is fortunate in having in its court house at Eaton an ample audience room communicating with the office of the Superintendent of Schools. This room was filled to its capacity by an attentive audience that remained throughout the rendition of the program. The occasion brought visitors from outside of the county. Among them was Mrs. E. G. Clerke, daughter of Dr. C. M. Wilcox. She came from Cincinnati and acted as cannoneer in firing the salute preceding the dedicatory ceremonies at the monument. The excellent work inaugurated by the celebration of St. Clair Day at Eaton has had its sequel in provision by the General Assembly for the purchase of the St. Clair site and its improvement as detailed in the following items included in the appropriation bill passed by the General Assembly.

http://publications.ohiohistory.org/ohstemplate.cfm?action=detail&Page=0032513.html&StartPage=506&EndPage=529&volume=32&newtitle=Volume%2032%20Page%20506

 "Administration is granted on the estate of Robert Bowling, des'd, to “mother Bowling” (crossed out on the document) replaced by Isaac Zane and Martha Zane, his wife, and they entered into bond of 100 pounds with Zadock McNew, Theodorus Davis and Levi Compton as their sureties. Robert McAfee, Peter Casey, John Waggoner and Stephen Ashby, or any three of them, to make appraisal of the personal property of the decedent." (449) The above mentioned Zadock McNew was the husband of Elizabeth Bowling (020b). (7) Martha Bowling-Zane (widow of Alexander Bowling Fh020) and Issac Zane were administrators of the estate of Robert Bowling in January 1793. After this there appears to be another Robert Bowling (Fh557,6A) living at the point where Hardin, Meade, and Breckinridge counties meet. (7)

a.
Robert Bowling (9FML-LKH) was the son of Alexander Bowling and Martha "Patsy" (Williams) Bowling. Robert Bowling 
died 1792-killed by Indians. Private Robert Bowling was killed in the battle with the Indians on November 6, 1792. He is 
buried in the Fort St. Clair cemetery, west of Eaton, Washington Township, Preble County, Ohio. (Find A Grave Memorial 
#8642273) Others killed were Job Hale XE "Hale:Job" , Kentucky Militia, Matthew English XE "English:Matthew" , Joseph Clinton XE "Clinton:Joseph" , IsaacJett XE "Jett:Isaac" , and John Williams XE "Williams:John" . 
(573)(574) "Administration is granted on the estate of Robert Bowling, des'd, to “mother Bowling” (crossed out on the 
document) replaced by Isaac Zane XE "Zane:Isaac"  and Martha Zane XE "Zane:Martha" , his wife, and they entered into bond of 100 pounds with Zadock McNew, 
Theodorus Davis XE "Davis:Theodorus"  and Levi Compton XE "Compton:Levi"  as their sureties. Robert McAfee XE "McAfee:Robert" , Peter Casey XE "Casey:Peter" , John Waggoner XE "Waggoner:John"  and Stephen Ashby XE "Ashby:Stephen" , or 
any three of them, to make appraisal of the January 24, 1794 in personal property of the decedent." (449)

b. 
Elizabeth Boling (KJ4M-SHW) was born about 1771. (1442) Elizabeth Bowling was born 1771 (1155) Elizabeth 
Bouland 
(sic), orphan of Alexander, dec’d, January 24, 1792, Guardian: John Thomas, Bondsmen: Daniel Threlkeld XE "Threlkeld:Daniel"  and James 
Fleming Mitche XE "Mitche:James Fleming" . (1751) Elizabeth Bowling, married 1792, Mercer County, Kentucky,  Zadock McNew XE "McNew:Zadock" . Bondsman was John 
Thomas XE "Thomas:John" . (855) Elizabeth Bowling married Mercer County, Kentucky, Zadock McNew, John Lewis Surety. (1155) Elizabeth 
Boling married 24 Jun 1792 Mercer County, Kentucky, Zadock McNew. (1442) Elizabeth “Betsy” McNew was in Livingston 
County, Kentucky, in 1807. (1496) The family lived earlier in Fulton & Ripley Counties, Indiana. (1155) They also lived in 
Vandenburgh County, Indiana. (533) Zadock McNew died 1834 in Schuyler County, Illinois. (1155) Elizabeth, a widow, 
lived with her family of seven children in Schuyler County, Illinois per 1840 census. (1155) 

c.
Mary Bolin (9M86-GGB) was born 1773 in Maryland (sic, probably Frontier?). Mary Bolin married 1st December 30, 
1794, in  Hardin County (sic, another source has Mercer County), Kentucky, Samuel Forrester XE "Forrester:Samuel" , Surety, Richard Foley XE "Foley:Richard" , 
consent by mother (Martha), witnessed by Zadock McNew and John Bowling. Consent for Samuel Forrester by Nathaniel 
Forrester for his son. (1155) Samuel Forrester, husband of Mary "Polly" Bowlin, of Mercer County, Kentucky, sells land May 
1796 in Green County, Kentucky, land he got from John Boling. (1224) Daughter, Polly Bolin, married 1794 Samuel 
Forrester in Mercer County, Kentucky. The bride's mother was Martha Zane. Testimony by John Bowlin and Zadock McNew. 
(855) Mary “Polly” Boling was born about 1773. She married 30 Dec 1794 Samuel Forrester [her mother Martha Zane swore 
that Polly was 21] [Forrester translates to Baumgartner, per Charlene Ebeling 10/22/2005]. (1442) Mary born 1778 , married 
30 December 1794, Samuel Forester. (7) Alexander Bolling's executors were sued by Samuel Forresterxe "Forrester:Samuel" 1796 in Mercer 
County, Kentucky. Samuel Forrester was the son-in-law of Alexander Bowling. (524)(526) The next doesn’t seem right. Mary 
Bolin Forester died in Ripley County, Indiana. (LDS Pedigree Resource File CD 55, Disc 468483) Mary Bolin married  2nd in 
Livingston County, Kentucky, Simpson Ritchey XE "Ritchey:Simpson" , son of James Ritchey and Elizabeth Simpson. Simpson and Mary moved to 
Indiana October 14, 1812 and eventually settled in Vandenburgh County, Indiana, where they both died. (1155) Mary “Polly” 
was in Livingston County, Kentucky, in 1807. (1496) Mary’s brother William Bowling (Fh880,020f) on August 22, 1811, in 
Livingston County, Kentucky, court records, was empowered by the other heirs to dispose of properties belonging to their late 
father, Alexander Bowling, in:
Shelby, Henry and Mercer Counties, Kentucky.


240 Acres in Mercer near the Salt River


100 Acres in Shelby near Clear Creek


300 Acres in Henry to Joseph DuPuty XE "DuPuty:Joseph" 

Those signing the document, among other siblings, were xe "McNew:Zadock"Simpson Ritcheyxe "Ritchey:Simpson" and his wife, the former Polly Bowling. 
(1155) 
Mary Bowling was born in Maryland (sic) and she married Simpson Ritchie born in North Carolina XE "Ritchey:Simpson" 

xe "Ritchey:Simpson". They were from 
Livingston County, Kentucky. This from a write-up in 1882 about their son, William Ritchie born 1810. (788) Mary Bowling 
married Simpson Ritchey in Livingston County, Kentucky. Mary Bowling, a native of Maryland was the daughter of 
Alexander and Patsie (Williams) Bowling, he a native of Scotland and she of Wales. They emigrated to America a short time 
previous to the revolution and settled on the frontier of Maryland, where their daughter Mary was born. Later this family came 
to Kentucky. (448)(1531) The country of Scotland may be correct, but more likely applied to Alexander's father, or an even 
earlier ancestor. (448) Daughter Mary Bowling married Simpson Ritchiexe "Ritchie:Simpson". Mary Bowling was "from Maryland".  (532)(533) 
Mary Bowling, born in Maryland (sic), and husband Simpson Ritchie, born North Carolina, had a son William Ritchie born 3 
July 1810 in Livingston County, Kentucky. Later they went to Vandenburgh County, Indiana. (788)(533) Mary “Polly” 
married second 19 Dec 1807 Simpson Ritchey, he was born in North Carolina, the son of James Ritchey. Their daughter 
Elizabeth Simpson Ritchey (article on Ritchey said her mother Mary Bowling was born in Maryland). (1442) 
d.
John Boling (See Fh393 KL6V-21G), married 1797 Elizabeth Woodhead XE "Woodhead:Elizabeth"  in Mercer County, Kentucky. Bondsman was 
Henry Sage XE "Sage:Henry"  and testimony was Jesse and William Mosby XE "Mosby:William" 

 XE "Mosby:Jesse" . (855) John Bolin born 1775 married August 10, 1798 Elizabeth 
Wood. (1155) (See his write-up for more) John Boling Fh393,020c) was born about 1775. He married 10 Aug 1797 Mercer 
County, Kentucky, Elizabeth Woodhead or Wood. XE "Wood:Elizabeth"  (1442)

e.
Garrard/Jarrett Bowling (See Fh323, Rin=53936, LZV9-9DX), was born August 12, 1778 in Ohio County, Virginia (448) 
He married 1807 Mary Rust. Has a family of fourteen children. Jarrett "Gerrard" Bowlin/Bolin (Fh323) died 1868 Patoka 
Township, DuBois County, Indiana. (1155) 


f.
William Bowling, third son, (See Fh880, Rin=53946, LBCH-WFQ) was born December 15, 1782, in Pennsylvania. (448) 
William Bolin (Fh880,020f) married 1804 Elizabeth Rust XE "Rust:Elizabeth" . Eight identified children. (1155) 
g.
Rachel Bowling. (KPHK-JWB) About 1785, Alexander and Patsy became the parents of another little daughter, Rachel 
Bowling. She did not live until the 1850 Census, so her exact age and place of birth were not found. But in 1840, her 
approximate age within five years was listed. (448) On December 19, 1803, in the Hardin County, Kentucky, court 
“Rachel 
Bowling and Jane Bowling, orphans of Alexander Bowling, dec’d, being admitted by the court, chose James Crutcher 
as their guardian. Whereupon the said James Crutcher XE "Crutcher:James"  with Benjamin Helm XE "Helm:Benjamin"  and John W. Holt XE "Holt:John W." , his securities, entered into and 
acknowledged their bond in the sum of  $1000.” (1862) On September 23, 1805, in the Hardin County, Kentucky, court “The 
persons appointed to settle the accounts of James Crutcher as guardian of Rachel Boeling and Jane Bolin, orphans of 
Alexander Bowling, dec’d, was returned to court and recorded. (1862) Rachel Bolin married November 15, 1805 Henry 
Ewing XE "Ewing:Henry" . (1155) Rachel Bowlin had a marriage license issued January 7, 1806, to marry Henry Ewin, in Hardin County, 
Kentucky. Surety was Robert Bleakley XE "Bleakley:Robert" . James Crutcher XE "Crutcher:James"  in a note to Ewin dated November 15, 1805, at Frankfort stated he had 
no objections to the match; however, no relationship to either party is shown (Guardian above). The wedding was January 7, 
1806, performed by B. Ogden. Marriage Book A, pages 4 and 22. (1681) Henry Ewin married Rachel Bolin January 9, 1806 
or Henry Ewing married Rachel Holding (sic) January 7, 1806. (1684) Rachel Bolin married Henry Ewing on January 9, 
1806 in Hardin County, Kentucky. (2009) Rachel Boling was born about 1785. She married Henry Ewing 7 Jan 1806, of 
Hardin County, Kentucky in 1809. (1442)ber, Book/Page, Index Type, Kind, Remarks, Recorded Date, Date Married, e 
h.
Jane Bowling (LCZX-2RT) The youngest child of Alexander and Martha was a daughter, Jane Bowling, who was born 
about 1790 in Mercer County, Kentucky. (448) Jane Bolin was born 1789. (1155) On December 19, 1803, in the Hardin 
County, Kentucky, court “Jane Bowling and Rachel Bowling, orphans of Alexander Bowling, dec’d, being admitted by the 
court, chose James Crutcher as their guardian. Whereupon the said James Crutcher XE "Crutcher:James"  with Benjamin Helm XE "Helm:Benjamin"  and John W. Holt XE "Holt:John W." , his 
securities, entered into and acknowledged their bond in the sum of  $1000.” (1862) Jane Bolin married March 10, 1807 in 
Hardin County, Kentucky, Phillip Hall XE "Hall:Philip" . (1155) Jane Bowlin had a marriage license issued March 5, 1807, to marry Philip Hall, 
in Hardin County, Kentucky. Marriage was March 10, 1807. Surety was John Howell XE "Howell:John" . J. Baird performed the ceremony. 
Marriage Book A, pages 5 and 25. (1681) Jane Bowling married Phillip Hall, March 10, 1807, in Hardin County, Kentucky. 
(1684) Jane Bowlin married Philip Hall on March 5, 1807 in Hardin County, Kentucky. (2009) Jane Bolin was born about 
1790. (1442) She married 10 Mar 1807, Philip Hall. (1442)(1864) Garrard Bowling (Fh323, 020e) about 1797 brought lot 
#34, which was 1 of the 51 lots in Elizabethtown, Hardin County, Kentucky, when the town was regularly established, by the 
July term of court, 1797. The first meeting of the board of trustees of Elizabethtown was held October 4, 1797 at James 
Crutcher’s house. James Crutcher XE "Crutcher:James" , (TB, note that James Crutcher was named guardian in 1803 of Rachel Bowling and Jane 
Bowling, daughters of deceased father Alexander Bowling (Fh020)), brought 7 of the 51 lots and Benjamin Helm XE "Helm:Benjamin" , (TB, 
security in the guardianship), brought 5 of the 51 lots. (1861) Mercer County, Kentucky Circuit Court Records Box B-22 
Bill filed March 1807  Bolin Heirs vs. McFathridge. Henry Ewing & Rachel, his wife, late Rachel Bolin. Gerrard, William, 
Jane Bolin (Kids state that they are the legal heirs of Alexander Bowlin. (1496)  (Jarrett?) (1496)

Movement
Virginia

Alexander Bolling (Fh020,746a,6K) was involved in a 1768 law suit in Fairfax County, Virginia. The plaintiff was Josias Miles, XE "Miles:Josias"  represented by Benjamin Seaastian. A John Bolling became security for the delivery of the Negro attached or pay the Debt. (1608) Alexander Bowling was originally from Fairfax County, Virginia, moving to Washington County, Pennsylvania. (7)

Pennsylvania

“Pontiac’s War, shortly after 1761, fueled the decision by the English Parliament to issue the Proclamation of 1763 restricting colonial expansion past the Appalachian Divide.” (1844) The Bowling boys paid no attention to this restriction. (7) Alexander Bowling lived near Henry Bowling (746d) in Canton Township, Washington County, Pennsylvania. (7) Alexander Bowling on November 1, 1767 sold Abraham Teagardenxe "Teagarden:Abraham", tract between the mouth of Muddy Creek XE "Creek:Muddy"  and Enoch's run on the Monongahela River (west side) XE "Run:Enoch's" .  Signed as Alexander Bowling and witnesses by Samuel Simpsonxe "Simpson:Samuel", Hugh Sidwellxe "Sidwell:Hugh", W Exe "E. JP:W." J.P.  Deed was recorded April 26, 1783, Washington County, Pennsylvania, Deed Book A, Page 197. (636)(2036, page 22)  In a court case of Robert Bleakley vs. John Nevill it states “17 May 1769 #3239, for 300 acres on the east side of Monongahela on Al’r Bolen’s run joining Rich Hill on the South and Alexander Bolen’s on the West. (1984) On February 23, 1784, Alexander Bowling sold another part of his original tract of land in Washington County to Abraham Teagarden. Described as being on the east side of the Monongahela River at the mouth of Muddy Creek and Enoch's Run. (448) Alexander Bowling gave a deposition in a court case 1783, Washington County, Pennsylvania, that in 1770 he saw Henry Taylorxe "Taylor:Henry" at the Monongahela River on his way out to Chartiers Creek XE "Creek:Chartiers" . Isaac Williams XE "Williams:Isaac"  and John Williams XE "Williams:John"  gave similar depositions. (436, page146) Alexander Bowling's wife Martha "Patsy" Williams may have been a daughter of one of these Williams families. A Jerrett Williams XE "Williams:Jerrett"  owned 340 acres south of Buffalo Creek. (448)  Alexander Boling is shown on a land patent map of Canton Township, Washington County, Pennsylvania, and Jefferson Township, Fayette County, Pennsylvania.  Henry Bowling (Fh2499,746d) and Sims Bowling (746i) are also shown in Washington County and John Bowling (746f) is shown in Fayette County. (243) Alexander Bowling and William Bowling (Fh860,746j) lived in Rosstraven Township, Bedford County, Pennsylvania. William Boling was a single freeman 1772, Rostraver Township, Bedford County, Pennsylvania (Westmoreland County in 1773).  Some surnames on the list were Johnsonxe "Johnson", Linnxe "Linn", McConnellxe "McConnell", Van Swearingenxe "Swearingen:Van", Wellsxe "Wells", Youngxe "Young" and Ritcheyxe "Ritchey". (646) Alexander Bowling and William Bolling were taxed 1773, Rosstraver Township, Bedford County, Pennsylvania. Alexander taxed .6 and William 15.0. (273) 1773 taxes of Roostover township, Westmoreland PA has Alexander but also William listed as inmate. Inmate means someone not able to keep himself, usually aged, so probably the father and unlikely to be any later William found. (7) In 1772, and until Westmoreland County was established in 1773, Bedford County encompassed all of southwestern Pennsylvania.  All of present Fayette County -- east of a straight line from the mouth of Redstone to the mouth of Jacob's Creek -- consisted of two townships, Springhill and Tyrone. Here, the division line was Redstone Creek, from its mouth to where it was crossed by Burd's Road, and from Burd's Road to Gist's, then Braddock's Road to the Great Crossing. That part of Fayette County, northwest of Redstone to the mouth of Jacob's Creek, was a part of Rostraver Township. The counties of Greene and Washington, west of Fayette, were evidently included in Springhill. (1014) Alexander and William Bowling (Fh860,746j,6K) were on the 1773 inhabitants list of Westmoreland County, Pennsylvania.  (421)(1014) Alexander Bowling, Robert Meekxe "Meek:Robert" and William Beashers/Bashersxe "Beashers:William" in July 1773 were ordered to appear before the Court of Quarterly Sessions in Westmoreland County, Pennsylvania. Apparently they jointly sold Joseph Quillenxe "Quillen:Joseph" as a servant to Andrew Gutchellxe "Gutchell:Andrew" and Joseph Quillen and he was not doing his duty as a servant.  (676)(1838) By 1783, Robert Meek was living next door to Alexander Bowling in Canton Township, Washington County, Pennsylvania. (448) Jacob Shilling XE "Shilling:Jacob" , assee vic, vs. William Boling and Alexander Boling. Proceedings: Summons Debt L40, Civil Court Docket, Westmoreland Co., Pennsylvania, Jan 1774. (1676)  


Bowling, Alexander  
1775, Canton


Brownlee, James 

1774, Canton


Brownlee, John 

1774, Canton


Dement, Jess 

1774, Canton


Dye, Enoch 

1776, Canton


Hall, John 

1775, Canton


Johnston, William 

1773, Canton


Leet, Isaac 

1776, Canton


Leman, John 

1773, Canton


Martin, Henry 

1774, Canton


Nuttle, Elijah 

1774, Canton


Pumphrey, Zachariah
1774, Canton


Sparr, John 

1774, Canton


Yates, Richard 

1772, Canton

(1501) A plat map of the area in 1775 shows Alexander Bowling owned a track of land in Canton township, near Buffalo Creek. A Jerrett Williams, perhaps related to Alexander's wife, owned 340 acres south of Buffalo Creek XE "Creek:Buffalo" . (448) Alexander Bowling had a Virginia Land Grant on the Chartiers watercourse in Ohio County, Virginia.  The grant showed that he settled on the land in 1775.  (300)  Alexander Bowling is mentioned in Virginia Court Records in Southwestern Pennsylvania, records of the District of West Augusta and Ohio and Yohogania Counties, Virginia, 1775-1780.  (608)(2072) -----Bowlin signed an agreement to encourage the destruction of wolves in 1777 in Somerset County, (Bedford County at the time) Pennsylvania. (781)  Alexander Bowling was a plaintiff against William Postonxe "Poston:William", August 27, 1777, in a civil action in Ohio County, Virginia (now Washington County, Pennsylvania).  Listed as "In Case, Pluries Copias".  On October 1777 the case came again and "Upon testimony of Isaac Leetxe "Leet:Isaac" & debt being less than 50 pounds, suit dismissed".  (436, page 215)(546)(608)(2072, Vol. 2)  Alexander Bowling was a plaintiff against Francis Morrisonxe "Morrison:Francis", August 27, 1777, in a civil action in Ohio County, Virginia (now Washington County, Pennsylvania).  Listed as "In Case, Pluries Copias".  On October, 1777 in the same case "Francis Morrison and friend James Scottxe "Scott:James" appeared in court. Case Continued".  On May 27, 1778 the case was continued again.  (546)(608)(2072, Vol. 2) Alexander Bowling was on the 1778 tithables list of Ohio County, Virginia (now Washington County, Pennsylvania).  Listed as one person. (644) Alexander Bowling and William Bowling (probably Fh860,746j) signed a "call" for Rev. Joseph Smithxe "Smith:Joseph", 21 June 1779, to be pastor of the Cross Creek XE "Creek:Cross"  and Upper Buffalo Presbyterian Church, Washington County, Pennsylvania. About 50 other surnames signed the document. (992) Alexander Bowling on November 20, 1779, had land on Shirtee Creek XE "Creek:Shirtee" , Yohogania County, Virginia. Neighbors were Reuben Rutherford XE "Rutherford:Reuben"  and Dorsey Pentecost XE "Pentecost:Dorsey" . (1786) About 1780 Alexander Moling (sic) and William Boling (Fh860, 746j), along with many other familiar names, sign a petition for a new state to be called Westsylvania. (1172) Alexander Bowling, 1778-1780, was constable Yohogania County, Virginia and shown in two court cases against William Poston and Frances Morrison. (1224) On August 1780 the Ohio County, Virginia, "Ordered that Alexander Bowling (Fh020) do act as Constable for the ensuing year in the room of Harry Martinxe "Martin:Harry".  (546)(608)(2072, Vol. 3) Alexander Bowling, 1780, Constables, Ohio County, Virginia, Order Book 1, page 79. (2019) Alexander Bowling (Fh020) of Ohio County, Virginia on March 16, 1780 sold for 24 pounds to Thomas Graffortxe "Graffort:Thomas" "tract on Shirtees Creek", signed A.  Bowling witnessed by John Hallxe "Hall:John" and Gerard Bowling.  Deed was recorded April 26, 1783, Washington County, Pennsylvania, D Deed Book A, Page 87.  (635)(2036, page 11) Washington County, Pennsylvania records for deed transfers list the sale by Alexander Bowling in 1780 to Thomas Graffort XE "Graffort:Thomas" . Joseph Bowling (Fh450) married a Craffort, Graffort. Gerrard was chain carrier with Craffort, Graffot. That name keeps coming up. (7) Alexander Boling, Strabane Township, Washington County, Pennsylvania was a slave (one) owner in 1782.  (272)(436,page 258) Alexander Bowling, et al vs.  Edward Cookxe "Cook:Edward", court case #31, Washington County, Pennsylvania, July, 1782.  The prior from the "Adsectum" but actual case read "Edward Cook vs.  Alexander Bowling & James Fultonxe "Fulton:James" -Narr and note Caps Dt.  L120 C.C.B.B. as Alex Bowling, Henry Bolin of Hopewell Township special bail in L240 Cogn 2th of July 1782 Car me Thomas Scottxe "Scott:Thomas", Judgement.  Debt Paid Oct 1782 Sheriff for fees Nov 20th, 1782. All fees paid each officer". (643) Alexander Bowling was on the 1783 tax list of Hopewell Township, Washington County, Pennsylvania with 200 acres, 2 horses, 3 cows. Value 86. (7) 

Revolutionary Military Service

1781-1783
Alexander Boland/Bolin was on the November 8, 1779, list of Military men aged 16 to 50, District 3, company of Rezin Virginxe "Virgin:Rezin". (644) Henry Bowling (Fh2499,746x) along with Alexander (Fh020,746x), William (Fh860,746j), George (Fh237,746b), Simms (Fh627,746i), and James Bowlin (Fh279,? 746e) were in Washington County, Pennsylvania, during the Revolution. Note that duty after November 1783 is not considered Revolutionary War service. (7) Henry Bolin (Fh2499,746x), 1781-83, private Washington County Pennsylvania Militia, inactive duty, 4th Battalion, 8th Company, 4th class. (448) Henry Bolin of Washington County, Pennsylvania, served as Militia Private 8th Company, 4th Bn (1781-1783). (1550) 

See http://www.digitalarchives.state.pa.us/archive.asp?view=ArchiveItems&ArchiveID=13&FID=434278&LID=434377

Military Service

Alexander Bolin was a private from Pennsylvania during the Revolutionary War. (198)(653) Alexander Bolin, April 4, 1782, was with Capt. Swearingen's Company, Washington County, Militia. (448) Alexander Bolin (Bowlin) was in the 3rd Battalion, Capt. Andrew Swearingenxe "Swearingen:Andrew"'s Company, Washington County, Pennsylvania, 12 April 1782. William Boland (Bowlin) (Fh860,746j) was in the same Company on 15 April 1782. George Bowling (746b) was in Capt. Andrew Swearingen' Company from 10 March 1781 to 5 November 1781 in the Frontiers of Washington County, Pennsylvania, again in 1782, and again in 1785 this time in Westmoreland County, Pennsylvania. (477) I found a little more on Capt. Andrew Swearingen, the commanding officer of Alexander Bowlin and George Bowling of Washington County, Pennsylvania. "Captain Andrew Swearingen and his company of Rangers on the Frontiers of Washington County were paid (by certificates 3275-3303 inclusive) for their services performed between 10 March 1781 and 5 Nov. 1781 by order and direction of the Commandant of the Western Department, Capt. Swearingen was individually paid (certificate 3275) $395 (L118.10.0) for 7 months 27 days service, the full period. c. g. Grand Account, Account cclxxi. Ledger C, pp. 124-126, B 545." (1155) I have copies of William Bowling (746j,Fh860), Alexander Bowling (746a,Fh020), George Bowling (746b), James Bowling (746e), and Simms Bowling (746i,Fh627) Revolutionary cards from Pennsylvania and they were in Captain Andrew Swearingen's company Washington County, Pennsylvania, 3rd Battalion 4th Company Militia. They are like 4” x 6” cards in size. They are from Harrisburg, Pennsylvania, but on the Pennsylvania State Archives web page. Each card states "record proves active duty." Ordered to Rendezvous, Jul 14, 1782. Returned to 2nd class, 19 Jul, 1782. (1518)(1550) Alexander Bowlen was in the 3rd Battalion Capt. Charles Bilderbeckxe "Bilderbeck:Charles"'s Company of the Washington County, Pennsylvania militia 14 July 1782. Other surnames in the Company were Ritchiexe "Ritchie" (see below), Clarkxe "Clark", McCoyxe "McCoy", Hutchisonxe "Hutchison", McGinnesxe "McGinnes" and McNewxe "McNew". (494) The Pennsylvania Archives, Vol. II, give the names of Alexander Bolin/Bouling and George Bolin/Boulding as soldiers in the American Revolution. (1530) Alexander Bolin/Bouling or George Bolin/Boulding had two sons who came to Kentucky and both enlisted in the War of 1812, from Kentucky. (1530)  

1784-1786

Alexander Bowling vs Hannah Crawford XE "Crawford:Hannah"  and John Stephenson, executors of William Crawford XE "Crawford:William"  dec'd, and John Minter, administrator of Valentine Crawford XE "Crawford:Valentine"  dec'd. Summons Debt: L600. April 1786: Judgment by consent to be adjusted by Colonel Edward Cook and Colonel John Stinson. Civil Court Docket, Westmoreland Co., Pennsylvania, Term Jan 1784. (1677) Col. William Crawford headed the historical 1782 “Sandusky Expedition”. See any history book for more details. Note following that William Crawford wife’s name was Hannah and his father was a Valentine. John Stephenson was also related. (7)
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Husband's Name William CRAWFORD (AFN:144C-C8R) 

Born:

2 Sep 1722
Place: Orange Co., Va.

Died:

11 Jan 1782
Place: Tymochtee Cr., Wyandotte Co., Ohio

Buried:



Place: Burned At Stake, By Indians, During Rev., War

Married:
Abt 1745
Place: Virginia

[image: image1.png]



Father: William Valentine CRAWFORD (AFN:144C-C2J) 

Mother: Honora GRIMES (AFN:50VQ-NB) , 

Wife's Name Hanah VANCE (AFN:144B-MG8) , Pedigree 

Born:

Abt. 1736
Place: <Virginia>

Married:
Abt 1745
Place: Virginia

On July 7, 1787, a land record describes Alexander Bolin as "late of Washington County, Pennsylvania, formerly of Westmoreland County, and now of the county of Washington, State of Virginia." A land warrant describes Alexander Bowling selling land to Van Swearingen XE "Swearingen:Van" ,... 175 acres, plantation and land on the Monongahela River, county and state of Pennsylvania, formerly the property of John Wisman and, Alexander McClane,... Signed Alexander Bowling. Witnesses: Thomas Scott, John Riddle. A plat map shows a tract of land called "Naples" adjacent to the Monongahela River in Washington County, Pennsylvania. Land patented October 5, 1787, and issued to Alexander Boland. The map is too faded to copy. (448) Alexander Boling had a Warrantees of Land in Washington County, Pennsylvania, 395.154 acres surveyed 5 April 1788. (1036) A Pennsylvania land patent dated April 11, 1788, was issued to Alexander Boling. It was located on Chartiers Creek, and called "Calder". Described as follows:...by lands of James Cunningham...to Francis Cunningham...to John Ralston...John Spaid....Zachariah Pumphrey...Samuel Hanna...John Allison. This tract contained 395 acres and 150 perches of land. Shown on plat map as being in Washington county, Pennsylvania. The tract was near Henry Bowling's (Fh2499) tract named "Bowling Green" in Canton Township, Washington County, Pennsylvania. (448) Alexander Boling had a land survey 1787 and Patent 1788, of 395+ acres called "Calder" in Canton township, Washington County, Pennyslvania. (2152, page 39) Alexander Bowling's primary residence before Kentucky would seem to have been "Colder" in what is now Washington County, Pennsylvania. "Colder was near Henry Bowling's (Fh2499, 746d) "Bowling Green" in Canton Township, Washington County, Pennsylvania. (1224) I have a copy of the deed from the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania to Alexander Boling  (Fh020) (Washington Co., PA. Grantee Book 259 Page 370-371) for the land called "Colder", he got the land 19th April 1788, and sold it to Andrew Swearingen XE "Swearingen:Andrew"  in 1789.  It wasn't recorded until 05 Sept. 1901. (1443) A land transaction in the records of Washington County, Pennsylvania states that on November 1, 1789, Alexander Bowling (in the margin), or Bolling (on the deed) "of Mercer County, State of Virginia" (now Kentucky), sold to Andrew Swearingen, Esquire, of Washington County, State of Pennsylvania, for 400 pounds current money of Pennsylvania, all tract or parcel of land on Chariters Creek.  A patent was originally issued to said Alexander Boling, April 11, 1788, called "Calder", 395 acres and 150 perches, "strict measure" of land. Received November 1, 1789, of Andrew Swearingen 400 pounds. Signed Alexander Bowling. (448)

Kentucky

It appears that by November of 1789 Alexander Bowling had sold all of his Pennsylvania holdings and moved Westward into Mercer County, Virginia (now Kentucky) (448) The Alexander Bowling family moved from Washington County, Pennsylvania to what is now Ohio County, West Virginia, and from there to Mercer County, Kentucky. Alexander Bowling, along with William (Fh860,746j), Garrett (746c), Robert (746h) and Henry Bowling (Fh2499, 746d), came to Kentucky in the 1780s, where he made land entries which were recorded in Jefferson County, Kentucky. (7)

Early Kentucky Land

Date, #, Acres, Warrant, Zone, Assignee, Watercourse

Bolin, Garet, 

1780.05.29, 57, 1000, 
PW, 7, , Licking

Boling, Garrett, 

1780.06.24, 45, 1200, 
T, 8, , Yellow Cr. 

Bolling, Garrett, 

1780.06.24, 48, 1000, 
T, 10, , Yellow Cr. & Sinking Fk.

Bolling, Henry, 

1780.06.24, 46, 1000, 
T, 8, , Yellow Cr. Of Green River

Bolling, William, 

1780.07.06, 13, 400, 
T, 8, , Yellow Cr. Of Green River

Bowling, Alexander, 
1780.06.26, 36, 400, 
T, 8, Edward Dulin, Nolin River

Bowling, Alexander, 
1780.06.26, 37, 200, 
T, 8, , Nolin River

PW
Preemption Warrant 

T
Treasury Warrant, selling for 1 pound, 12 shillings 

Zones 

7
Area drained by the Licking River, , , , 

8
Area north of the Green River and south of the Salt and Ohio Rivers includes the Beech and Rolling forks of the Salt River

10
Wilderness Road area, e.g. drained by the lower Kentucky River and branches of the Cumberland

Source 1198

See full land records. 

Nolin Creek 
Bowling, Alexander
6/24/1780
200
Page A151

Nolin Creek 
Bowling, Alexander
6/24/1780
400
Page A151

This source is listed by Watercourse. Thus you know others there. For Nolin Creek there are too many to list here, except here are ones also on page A151:


William Brown

Page A151


Rawleigh Martin

Page A151


Robert Todd

Page A151

(This Robert Todd might be of interest because of the Lincoln connection. )

(1866)

(1) By 1798 Yellow Creek was named Rough Creek.

Yellow Creek (1)
Bolling, Garrett
6/24/1780
1200
Page A147

Yellow Creek (1)
Bolling, Henry
6/24/1780
1000
Page A147

Yellow Creek (1)
Bolling, William
7/6/1780

400
Page A160

This source is listed by Watercourse. Thus you know others there. For Yellow Creek (1) XE "Creek:Yellow" :


Charles Dabney XE "Dabney:Charles" 

Page A147


John Dulin (AFN:SB9K-ZR)
(Note that possible brother Edward Dulin (AFN:SB9K-WF) was assignee of 400 acres of Alexander Bowling land) XE "Dulin:John" 

Robert Goode XE "Goode:Robert" 

John Thornton XE "Thornton:John" 

Page A147
(Note that John Thornton had 500 acres next to Garrard Bowling’s 1200 acres on Rough Creek and Hall’s Creek in present day Ohio County, Kentucky) 


George Watkins XE "Watkins:George" 

George Williams XE "Williams:George" 

Isaac Winston XE "Winston:Isaac" 

Peter Wise XE "Wise:Peter"  (See 230g,6A) (1866)

Alexander Bowling had two land deeds both dated June 26, 1780 on Nolins or Nollin's Creek XE "Creek:Nolins" , Jefferson County, Kentucky.  One deed was for 200 Acres and the other 400 Acres and both in Book A, page 151 of Jefferson County (sic, see below), Kentucky. (13) (The land was 600 acres and later was in Hardin County, Kentucky. Perhaps Larue County, today.) (1860)

Nolin's Creek , Hardin County 

Fort Phillips (aka Philip Phillips' Fort on Nolin Creek), 1.25 mi from Hodgenville; LaRue County 

"Most of the Kentucky County entries were published by Willard Rouse Jillson in "Kentucky Land Entries", 1925, (Source #13 or #17) where they are incorrectly listed as Jefferson County entries. These Kentucky County entries can be distinguished from Jefferson county entries only by the dates." Kentucky, Virginia--from December 31, 1776 to November 1, 1780, Jefferson-created 1780 from original Kentucky County, Virginia (early towns Louisville and Beardstown) (1198, page 106)

Alexander Bolling in 1786 was executor of Henry Bolling's (Fh2499, 746d) will in Mercer County, Kentucky. (7) Alexander Bowling (Fh020) was executor of Henrys' (746d) will in what is now Madison (sic) County, Kentucky. (1443) A. Boling (Alexander?) and Will Bolling (probably William Fh860,746j) were on the list of "Insolvents for the years 1787 and 1789, Mercer County, Kentucky". (1365) Alexander Bowling of Mercer County, Virginia (sic; now Kentucky) sold land in Washington County, Pennsylvania, by letter of attorney David Bradfordxe "Bradford:David" for Alexander Boling, 395 acres, 150 perches on Chartiers Creek, November 1, 1789.  Price was 400 pounds.  Land was patent April 11, 1788 and called "Calder" (or "Colder").  The land was located by that of James Cunninghamxe "Cunningham:James", Francis Cunninghamxe "Cunningham:Francis", John Ralstonexe "Ralstone:John", John Spaidxe "Spaid:John", Zackariah Pumpherxe "Pumpher:Zachariah", Samuel Hannahxe "Hannah:Samuel" and John Allisonxe "Allison:John".  (626) Alexander Bowling of Mercer County, Virginia, (this would be in Kentucky today) sold land to David Bradfordxe "Bradford:David" of Washington County, Pennsylvania, Deed Book D, page 407, 1789 land in Washington County, Pennsylvania.  (649) Alexander Bowling of Mercer County, Virginia, sold land to Andrew Swearingenxe "Swearingen:Andrew" (note above that Alexander Bowling served in the military with Andrew Swearingen) of Washington County, Pennsylvania, Deed Book D, page 414, 1789 land on Chartiers Creek, in Washington County, Pennsylvania. (649) I have a copy of the deed from the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania to Alexander Boling (Fh020) (Washington Co., PA. Grantee Book 259 Page 370-371) for the land called "Colder" , he got the land 19th April 1788, and sold it to Andrew Swearingen in 1789. It wasn't recorded until 05 September 1901. (1443) 
Son Bill (William) Bowling (Fh880) in 1791 (about age 9) was in school, "This school stood on the point of the ride on the west side of the River (Salt) about two hundred yards from my fathers (father of writer of account, Robert B. McAfee, born 1784, about age 7) saw mill." (This would be near McAfee, Kentucky about 4 miles northwest of Harrodsburg, Mercer County, Kentucky. This account of the boys in school should be read by any descendant of William Bowling). (1376) 

Death and Estate

Mercer County Wills Index, 1787-1954

Surname
First Name
Year
Book
Page
Type
View

Bowling
Alexander
1791
1
57
Inventory/Appraisal 

Bowling
Henry
1787
1
4
Inventory/Appraisal 

Alexander Bolin died about August 17, 1791.  (653) Alexander Bolin died before August 17, 1791.  (198) 
(TB—Alexander Bowling may have been killed by Indians, but he lived long enough to start a will, as follows, from the testimony of Negro George) “He (Negro George) further states that he came to Kentucky and faithfully served the time and when the decedent lay on his death bed, he made mention while his will was writing that he wished to set your orator free, but that Martha Zane, who has since intermarried with Isaac Zane, but was the decedent’s wife at the time of his death, interposed and attempted to dissuade him from setting your orator free. While the conversation was passing, the said Bowling expired without making provision for the emancipation of your orator.” (525)(TB—the original I saw at the Harrodsburg (KY) Historical Society Library)  

Alexander Bowling died before 26 July 1791, possibly killed by Indians, on his homestead in Kentucky. (1224) 

"Jarrett (probably Fh323,020e) had a brother, Bill (probably Fh880,020f), who lived nearby ... alone. His log cabin stood in the middle of a patch of growing corn which was a good protection for him against the Indians who were on watch to shoot him. They knew he had it in for them after his father's murder." (1700)

Mercer County, Kentucky: Marriages (1786-1800) & Wills (1786-1801), 
http://search.ancestry.com/cgi-bin/sse.dll?gskw=bolen&ti=0&prox=1&submit=search&db=merckymarrells&gss=angs


Name: Henry Bowling (Fh2499, 746d)
Jan. 1, 1787 Appraisers: Thos. Threlkeld, Robert McAfee, John Threlkeld
 

Name: Alexander Bowling (Fh020,746a) 
Aug. 12, 1791 Appraisers:  Robert McAfee, James McAfee, and Peter Casey

Name: James Bolin  (Fh280)
Spouse: Anne Ellicock 
Marriage Date: 29 Oct 1794


Alexander Bowling died 1791. Inventory was taken 1791 in Mercer County, Kentucky, Book 1, page 57, Harrodsburg Courthouse, Mercer County, Kentucky. (14)(438) Will Book 1, page 57, Alexander Bowling (Fh020) Inventory, Aug. 12, 1791, Appraisers: Robert McAfee XE "McAfee:Robert"  - James McAfee XE "McAfee:James"  - Peter Casey. XE "Casey:Peter"  Property Appraised includes: Negro man, George XE "Negro:George"  - Negro women, Hanny -child, Ned - girl , Sarah -horse- mare - filly - cow - pided cow - calves -    pigs -  plough iorns -pott & hooks - grubbing saddle - spinning wheel - etc….Amount 338 pounds - 22 shillings (1074) Alexander Bowling inventory was recorded August 12, 1791 at Harrodsburg, Mercer County, Kentucky. Appraisal was done by Robert McAfeexe "McAfee:Robert", James McAfeexe "McAfee:James", and Peter Caseyxe "Casey:Peter". (437) Alexander Bowling's inventory was recorded August 12, 1791. The estate was valued at 338 pounds and 12. There were farm animals, household goods and 4 slaves. Negro Georgexe "George:Negro" was valued at 70 pounds and Negro Girl Sarahxe "Sarah:Negro"

 XE "Negro:Sarah"  was valued at 60 pounds. Negro Girl Sarah may be the same person as in the inventory of the estate of Henry Bowling (Fh2499,746d). Also in the estate was a "Negro Chito" which probably means young child. (521) A 9 May 1793 newspaper item “Hugh Megary, (sic, Hugh McGary) Mercer County, regarding a slave named George that he bought from Alexander Roland (sic, Alexander Bowling). (1339) Negro George XE "Negro:George"  sued the estate of Alexander Bowling 1796 Mercer County, Kentucky. Negro Georgexe "George:Negro" came to Kentucky from Pennsylvania with Alexander Bowling on condition that he be freed to go back to Pennsylvania after awhile if he lived a certain way. The estate administrators said that he had taken up with a new woman and hence wasn't entitled to be freed. Furthermore the woman he left in Pennsylvania had also moved to Kentucky. (524)(525) 
We know from the response filed by Martha (Bowling) Zanexe "Zane:Martha", widow of Alexander, to the suit by Negro George XE "Negro:George" , that Negro George XE "Negro:George"  had a mistress, by whom he had a child or children and of course any child by Negro Georgexe "George:Negro" would have been at law the property of Alexander and/or his estate. (7) The males listed in the Alexander's will were William, John, and Garrard or Jarrett Bolin or Bowling. (10) After Alexander Bowlin's death, his widow, Martha Bowling, married Isaac Zane in 1792xe "Zane:Isaac". Bondsman was Zadock McNew. Daughter, Elizabeth Bowling, married 1792 Zadock McNew. (855) Martha Zane (widow of Alex Alexander Bowling) and Issac Zane were administrators of the estate of Robert Bowling (746h or 020a) in January 1793. (449) Daughter Polly Bolin married 1794 Samuel Forresterxe "Forrester:Samuel" in Mercer County, Kentucky. The bride’s mother, Martha Zane, said that Polly was 21. John Bowling and Zadock McNewxe "McNew:Zadock" signed. (855) Daughter, Polly Bolin, married 1794 Samuel Forrester in Mercer County, Kentucky. Brides's mother was Martha Zane. Testimony by John Bowlin and Zadock McNeww. (855)  Alexander Bolling's executors were sued by Samuel Forresterxe "Forrester:Samuel" 1796 in Mercer County, Kentucky. Samuel Forrester was the son-in-law of Alexander Bowling.  (524)(526) John Bowling, Elizabeth Boling, Mary Boling and Rachel Ewing, being heirs of Alexander Bowling (Fh020) sell their 4 parts of 7 parts (57.1%) of land (136 1/2 acres of 240 acres(56.9%)) near Salt River XE "River:Salt"  (it describes the land in full but generally adjoins the lands of Robert McAfee XE "McAfee:Robert" , deceased, on the west) in Mercer County, Kentucky, 1808. They sell to Andrew McFatridge. (1407) William Bowling (Fh880,020f) on August 22, 1811, in Livingston County, Kentucky, court records, was empowered by the other heirs to dispose of properties belonging to their late father, Alexander Bowling, in Shelby, Henry and Mercer Counties, Kentucky. 


240 Acres in Mercer near the Salt River


100 Acres in Shelby near Clear Creek


300 Acres in Henry to Joseph DuPuty XE "DuPuty:Joseph" 
Those signing the document were Zadock McNewxe "McNew:Zadock" and his wife, the former Elizabeth Bowling; John Bowling; Simpson Ritcheyxe "Ritchey:Simpson" and his wife, the former Polly Bowling; and Henry Ewinxe "Ewing:Henry" and his wife, the former Rachel Bowling. (7)(1155) John Bowling (Fh393,020c), along with his sisters, Elizabeth McNew, Polly Ritchey and Rachel Ewing, heirs of Alexander Bowling (Fh020), deceased, appointed their brother William Bowling (Fh880,020f) of Hardin County, Kentucky, their attorney, to convey 300 acres in Shelby or Henry County, Kentucky to Joseph DuPuty XE "DuPuty:Joseph"  and 100 acres in Shelby County, Kentucky to William Roberts XE "Roberts:William" , Livingston County, Kentucky, Deed Book B, page 337, dated 27 July 1811 and recorded the same day. (1353) The Mercer County property was on Salt River XE "River:Salt"  four miles from Harrodsburg. Alexander Bowling's land in Mercer County adjoined land owned by Robert McAfeexe "McAfee:Robert" and the McAfee brothers were among the first to survey land in Kentucky. (1155) McAfee's Upper Station, on Town Fork of the Salt River XE "River:Salt"  is about 1 mile west of Harrodsburg. McAfee's Lower Station, on Town Fork of the Salt River XE "River:Salt"  is about 6 or 7 miles northwest of Harrodsburg. (1261)(1876) The Shelby County, Kentucky, property was 100 acres on the waters of Clear Creek XE "Creek:Clear" . The quit claim deed for $1 was to William Roberts XE "Roberts:William"  and was written 7 September 1811 in Shelby County. It was recorded and filed April 19, 1813. The property is described and ends with “include the boundaries specified in a deed from Squire Boone XE "Boone:Squire" , to Robert Bolling recorded in Jefferson Court” on waters of Brasher’s creek. (1155) Could this be a brother “without issue”. A Robert dies 1793 in Mercer County, Kentucky, son died 1792. (7) 
Guardianship bonds of Mercer County, Kentucky, produced only one Bowland, Elizabeth daughter of Alexander, deceased. It seems he had only one minor child (sic, no had others) in 1792, unless she was under 21 and about to marry. (7) Garrard Bowling (860x?)about 1797 brought lot #34, which was 1 of the 51 lots in Elizabethtown, Hardin County, Kentucky, when the town was regularly established, by the July term of court, 1797. The first meeting of the board of trustees of Elizabethtown was held October 4, 1797 at James Crutcher’s house. James Crutcher XE "Crutcher:James" , (TB, note that James Crutcher was named guardian in 1803 of Rachel Bowling and Jane Bowling, daughters of deceased father Alexander Bowling (Fh020)), brought 7 of the 51 lots and Benjamin Helm XE "Helm:Benjamin" , (TB, security in the guardianship), brought 5 of the 51 lots. (1861) Guardianship bond in 1803 in Hardin County, Kentucky, were for Rachel and Jane, daughters of Alexander, deceased. (1862)
+++++++++++++++++++++++++

Alexander Fh022 (6) UK
-----------------

Alexander (LBYS-8G7, Rin=60772) b1699

Robert (Rin=62435) /1/w m1741 Sussannah -----, 2/w m1758 Mary Marshall

Alexander Bowling had a son:

a.
Robert Bowling (022a) who married 1741 first Susannah ----- and married second Mary Marshall, 1758, King George 
County, Virginia. (227) Robert Bowling was the son of Alexander. Robert Bowling married first Sussannah ----- and second 
1758 Mary Marshall, King George County, Virginia. (227)

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

Alexander Fh023 (6M21), 235b
Or

Alexander Fh023 (6N2), 770x 
-----------------

Alexander 1797-1871 (Rin=50797&44292)/m 1824 Harriet Barrett 1801-1876 (He FAG=147906339--His father was George #235 (Rin=50768)
 

Charles T. 1825-1899/m1851 Martha Jane Williamson



Jane Ann 1829-1858/ Promphretm1851 John T. Williamson



John S.



Champ Connor 1831-1893/m1854 Sarah Jane Promphet

James Thomas 1834-1848



Mary Elizabeth 1836-1925



Emaline Samantha 1838-1838



Amanda 1839->1917/m1859 William Harris

Alexander Washington 1842-1860
OR      OR
Fh023,770d 
Alexander Bowland was born circa 1788. Alexander Bowland's parents were William (Fh770,N2) and Elizabeth (McCormick) Bowland. (11) Alexander Bowland (Fh023,770d) was born 1788 in Pennsylvania. (33) 
Alexander Bowland's brothers were 
William, 
Robert, 
Hugh, and 
John Bowland and sisters were 
Catherine, 
Sarah and 
Mary. (12) This looks like the family below.
William 1758-d>1833 Fh770 (Rin=50363) m<1779 Elizabeth Wiggins McCormick--His father was John #397

r1779-1793(Birth of Many Children_--part that is Milford Twp., Juniata, PA today--Later to Fairfield, OH 



Catharine (Katty)(770a) bc1779, m1807 (John Harris)



William (770b) bc1783--part that is Milford Twp., Juniata, PA today



Robert (Fh556,770c, Rin=44281) bc1783, m1810 (Eleanor or Elizabeth Hardy),d1815  



Alexander (Fh023,770d) bc1785, m1815 (Sameley Ratliff)



Sarah (770e) bc1791--part that is Milford Twp., Juniata, PA today



Mary (770f) bc1793--part that is Milford Twp., Juniata, PA today



Hugh (Fh2535,770d—See Alexander above) m1816 (Sarah Michel or Mickel)

Alexander Bowland was born 1788 in Pennsylvania, probably the son of William (Fh770) and Elizabeth (McCormick) Bolland. (621)(11)

Marriage and Children

Alexander Bowland's wife Tamsy -----was born in 1810 and died 1855 in Seneca County, Ohio. (650) Alexander Bowland married Tamzy - ---- and they had a daughter Elinore Bowland who was born January 24, 1821. (621)(11) Alexander Bowland's daughter Elinor was born January 15, 1821 and died April 8, 1915 in Sandusky County, Ohio.  (650) Eleanor Bolen (1821-1915) married 1842 David Pence in Seneca, Ohio. (11) Alexander Bowland, a native of Kentucky, of Irish origin, married Susan Tamsy. (1222) See Family Group for their children. Son Samuel N. Bowland married 1845 Annie Wagner in Seneca County, Indiana (sic, this s/b Ohio). (1222)

Movement

Alexander Boland paid taxes 1819 in Perry County, Ohio. (7) Alexander lived in Perry County, Ohio, where he purchased land in Seneca County, Ohio, in 1830. (11) Alexander Bowland was a farmer. (33) Alexander Bowland removed to Perry County Ohio, and thence to Seneca County, Ohio, about 1830. (1222) 

Death

Alexander Bowland died January 1860 of Lung Fever. (651) Alexander Bowland died 1855-60 in Seneca County, Ohio. (11) Alexander Bowland died 1860 in Seneca County, Ohio. (33) Alexander Bowland was on the 1860 Mortality List of Seneca County, Ohio. Alexander Bowland was a farmer, age 72, born Pennsylvania, from Seneca Township. (651)

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

Alexander Fh024 (6K) 4655d
-----------------

Alexander 1785-1844 (Rin=54020)/m1821 Elizabeth Boyd Mercer--His father was Matthew #4655


* 
Anna Margaretta 1825-1861


* 
Alexander Boyd Mercer 1826-1916/Mary Elizabeth Colmery (1831-1908)


* 
Robert Calvin b1830


* 
Elizabeth Crusen 1832-1901


* 
Maria Mercer 1833-1861


* 
Julia Amanda 1837-1905


* 
Children per source #9

Alexander Bowland (1785-1844) Fh024, 4655d, 6K Rin=54020, Findagrave 99999999 KFR2-KQK (2184)
   Birth, Parents, Lineage

   

Alexander Bowland was the son of Matthew Bowland (Fh4655) of "South Hill" Washington County, Pennsylvania. Alexander was named in his father's 1824 will. (436)  Alexander Bowland was an executor in his brother James Bowland's (Fh291) 1813 will probated in Jefferson County, Ohio. (514)  Alexander Bowland was named executor of his brother James Bowland (Fh291) along with other executors: Robert Bowland and Martha Bowland.  The will was dated May 1, 1812, West Boston, Washington County, Pennsylvania and probated June 30, 1812. (615)  Alexander Bowland was named executor of his father Matthew Bowland September 15, 1824 will Chartiers Township, Washington County, Pennsylvania. Alexander Bowland had brothers Robert (Fh559), Matthew and James (Fh291) and sisters Sarah Neil and Agnes McGill. (622)  Alexander Bowland was the son of Matthew Bowland (Fh4655) and the brother of Robert Bowland (Fh559). Alexander Bowland died 1844 in Iberia, Ohio (now Morrow County).  He left a widow age 50.  I think that Alexander Bowland's wife was a sister of Robert Bowland's (Fh559) second wife, Ann Mercer. (862)  Alexander Bowland was born 25 June 1785, married Elizabeth Boyd Mercer, they had 6 children (see family group listing for names), and Alexander died 27 August 1844.  (940)  Alexander Bowland is listed in Vol 8, page 367 (1862) wills of Washington County, Pennsylvania. (1021) 1830 Federal Census, Chartiers Township, Washington County, Pennsylvania, page 246. Alexander Bolen, males 0,0,0,0,0,2,0,0,0,0,0,0,0 (i.e. 2 males 30 but under 40 i.e. born prior to 1800), females  0,1,0,0,1,1,0,0,0,0,0,0,0 ( i.e. 3 females, 1 30 but under 40, 1 20 but under 30, 1 5 but under 10.) (1489) Alexander Bowland married Elizabeth B. Mercer in Washington County, Pennsylvania. This per newspaper clippings, 1821, page 330 or 30. (1583)

$24.80    Twelve months after date I promise to pay Robert Bowland and Matha Maholm (late Martha Bowland) executors of the Estate of James Bowland, deceased, on order Twenty-four dollars Eighty cents with interest being the dividend due the aforesaid executor from the Estate of Thomas Bowland, deceased, Witness my hand and seal this 25th day of Jan 1821.

 

Alex Bowland

 

Test

John Hunter

 

Comment:

 

Robert (Fh559), James (Fh291), Thomas (4655f), and Alexander (Fh024) were brothers, the sons of Matthew Bowland Fh4655 6K. See following on more about each of them.

 

Robert Bowland (1774-1857) Fh559, 4655b 6K, Rin=54015, Findagrave 155923779, Mansfield City Cem., Richland, Ohio LDQL-ZKR.

 

Martha Collins Bowland Maholm (1787-1851) Rin=54019, Findagrave 6927236, Cross Creek Cemetery, Washington County, PA., K14M-D9K. She married Maholm 4 April 1820.

 

James Bowland (1782-1812) Fh291, 4655d, 6K, Rin-54018, Findagrave 6927209, Cross Creek Cemetery, Washington County, PA. LDQL-ZBK.

 

Thomas Bowland (1787-1820) 4655f, 6K Rin=46559, Findagrave 99999999, MSLW-68W.

 

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

Alexander Fh026 (6K) 627c
-----------------

Alexander 1786 PA-dc1856 (Rin=53941)/m        Elizabeth ----- 1796-d>1856—His father was Sims #627


Absolom 1814-1890/mc1853 Anna Hartsock (1817-1904)

 b
Cecilia d>1856


 b
Mary d>1856/m1828/31 John G. Edrington


 b
Richard b>1815<1825-d>1856/m1844 Mary N. Abbott


Male b>1815<1825-d<1856 


 b
Jane G. d>1856/m1841 William Lowden


 b
Sims B. 1827-1917/m     Elizabeth C. ------- d1891
 


a
Alexander b1829-d<1856

ab
James b1831-d>1856


a
Susan b1835-d<1856

a
Ann b1841-d<1856

*
Alexander is age 40-50 in the 1830 Census of Oldham County, KY. 




Alexander is age 50-60 in the 1840 Census of Oldham County, KY.

a
Alexander is age 64 in the 1850 Census of Trimble County, KY, page 390. 



b
Mentioned in his will writen 1856 
Birth, Parents, Lineage

Alexander Bowland was born about 1786 in Pennsylvania per his entry in the 1850 U.S. Census of Trimble County, Kentucky. Yet several of their children in the 1880 Census say both parents were born in Virginia. See below. (7) Alexander Bowling was the son of Sims (Fh627) (1224)

Marriage and Children

The 1850 U.S. Census of Trimble County, Kentucky, has Alexander’s wife as Elizabeth age 54.
Children:

a
Absolem 1814-1890/mc1853 Anna Hartsock XE "Hartsock:Anna"  (1817-1904). They are in the 1880 Census of Graham, Jefferson County, 
Indiana. His father and mother were both born in Virginia per the Census. They are both buried at the Lick Branch 
Cemetery, Jefferson County, Indiana. Their birth years and death years are on their tombstones. (Not on Findagrave.com but 
see Find A Grave Memorial# 96752677 (7) Not mentioned in Alexander’s will written 1856, so 
perhaps he was not 
Alexander’s son. (1414) 

Household Record,  1880 United States Census

 Absolem BOLEN

Self
M
Male
65   KY  Farmer 

VA ,  VA 


 Ann BOLEN

Wife
M
Female
63   IN   Keeping House
KY ,  IN 


 Nettie BOLEN

Dau
S
Female
26   IN    

KY ,  IN 


 Williard BOLEN

Son
S
Male
23   IN   Farm Laborer
KY ,  IN 


 William BOLEN

Son
S
Male
21   IN   Farm Laborer
KY ,  IN 


 Calvin BOLEN

Son
S
Male
20   IN    

KY ,  IN 


 Eddie EARHEART
GSon
S
Male
14   IN   


IN ,  IN 


 Alonzo HALL

GSon
S
Male
  9   IN    

IN ,  IN 


Census Place, Graham, Jefferson, Indiana

b
Cecilia d>1856. Mentioned in father Alexander’s will written 1856. (1414) 
c
Mary d>1856/m1828/31 John G. Edrington. XE "Edrington.:John G."  Alexander Bowling had a daughter Mary who married 1828 (another source 

has 25 Aug 1831) Oldham County, Kentucky, John G. Edrington. (7) Mentioned in father Alexander’s will written 

1856. (1414)
d
Richard b>1815<1825-d>1856/m1844 Mary N. Abbott. Mentioned in father Alexander’s will written 1856. (1414)
e
Male b>1815<1825. In the 1830 Census. Not mentioned in father Alexander’s will written 1856. (1414) 

f
Jane G. d>1856/m1841 William Lowden XE "Lowden:William" . Mentioned in father Alexander’s will written 1856. (1414)
g
Sims B. 1827-1917/m     Elizabeth C. ------- d1891. They are both buried at the Springdale Cemetery, Jefferson 
County, 
Indiana. (not in Findagrave.com, but see Find A Grave Memorial# 95622670) (7) Mentioned in father 
Alexander’s will 
written 1856. (1414) They are in the 1880 Census for Madison, Jefferson County, IN, as follows: 
 


Household Record,  1880 United States Census 


 Simeon BOLIN

Self
M  Male

51 ,  KY ,  Gas Fitter
VA ,  VA 


 Elizabeth BOLIN

Wife
M  Female
46 ,  KY ,  Keeping House
KY ,  KY 


 Mary BOLIN

Dau
S  Female
26 ,  IN ,   

KY ,  KY 


 Elizabeth BOLIN

Dau
S  Female
22 ,  IN ,   

KY ,  KY 


 George BOLIN

Son
S  Male

20 ,  IN ,  Clerk

KY ,  KY 


 James BOLIN

Son
S  Male

18 ,  IN ,  Clerk

KY ,  KY 


 Luella BOLIN

Dau
S  Female
12 ,  IN ,  

KY ,  KY 


Census Place, Madison, Jefferson, Indiana

h
Alexander b1829-d>1850. Not mentioned in father Alexander’s will written 1856. (1414)
i
James b1831-d>1856. Mentioned in father Alexander’s will written 1856. (1414)
j
Susan b1835-d>1850. Not mentioned in father Alexander’s will written 1856. (1414)
k
Ann b1841-d>1850. Not mentioned in father Alexander’s will written 1856. (1414)

Movement

Alexander Bowling of Shelby County, Kentucky, in 1810 bought two slaves in South Carolina.  p. 54: #3089. Jul. 28, 1810 Richard Hall (Greenville Dist SC) to Alexander Bowling (Shelby County, Kentucky); (Alexander Fh020 was dead by then,6K) for $500 sold 2 young Negroes; a girl Affey about 12 years old [second Negro not described]. (signed) Richard Hall; (witness) Loving Ross & Joel E. Grace; wit. oath Aug. 6, 1810 by Joel E. Grace before Geo W. Earle, CGD & JQ; recorded Aug. 6, 1810; Greenville County, South Carolina, Book H p. 376. (1615d) Alexander Boling was on the tax list of Gallatin County, Kentucky, in 1823. Not on any list before or after. (1800) Simms Bowling (Fh627), 1824, Gallatin County, Kentucky, appoints son Alexander Bowling power of attorney to sell land in Washington County (probably Pennsylvania) on Thompson Creek XE "Creek:Thompson"  "accrued to me from Henry". (1224) I have the power-of-atty. right in front of me.  It does say:"...... I Sims Boling of the County of Gallatin and State of Ky.,........do constitute & appoint my son Alexander Boling my true and lawful attorney for me & in my name to make sale of or dispose of in any way he may think proper all these parcel or tract of land in Washington County, Pennsylvania on the waters of Thompsons Creek which was _____ ( I can't make out the word.) by Henry Bowling to execute a title bond or bonds from the conveyance of the same........." (1443) I’m not sure of Kentucky law but in Ohio assets with no issue go a third to wife, and two thirds to siblings. If Simms inherited land from Henry it was because Henry had no children. (7) Alexander Bowling was appointed constable 1827 in Oldham County, Kentucky (Oldham,KY-created 1824 from Henry, Shelby, Jefferson). (1343)(1560) 
Alexander Bowling is in the 1830 Census of Oldham County, Kentucky, page 289. (http://ftp.rootsweb.com/pub/usgenweb/ky/oldham/census/1830/ind1830.txt)

1830 Census Record - Oldham County, Kentucky
Males


Females
2
A          age under 5

K          age under 5

1
B
  5 to 10
1
L
  5 to 10

1
C
10 to 15

M
10 to 15

1
D
15 to 20
1
N
15 to 20


E
20 to 30

O
20 to 30


F
30 to 40
1
P
30 to 40

1
G
40 to 50
1
Q
40 to 50


H
50 to 60
1
R
50 to 60


I
60 to 70

S
60 to 70


J
 over 70

T
 over 70

Pge = Page number          Rl = Census Roll number

Rl Pge Family name   First name  ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRST 

40 289Bowling        Alexander   2111  1    1 1 111

for males the 2 is under 5, for the females the first 1 is 5-10. Oldest male is “G” 40-50

(http://ftp.rootsweb.com/pub/usgenweb/ky/oldham/census/1830/cen1830.txt)

Perhaps the older females are Alexander’s mother and mother-in-law.

Alexander Bowling is in the 1840 Census of Oldham County, Kentucky.

121 156Bowling        Alexander    11 1  1  11 1  1

121 156Egington       John G       1   1    1   1  
Alexander Bowling’s daughter on same page

(http://ftp.rootsweb.com/pub/usgenweb/ky/oldham/census/1840/cen1840.txt)

Alexander Bowland was listed in the 1850 U.S. Census of Trimble County, Kentucky, (Trimble,KY-created 1837 from Henry, Oldham, Gallatin) age 64 (i.e. born 1786) born Pennsylvania.  Also in the household were: Elizabeth age 54, Alexander age 21, James age 19, Susan age 15 and Ann age 9. (7) Bowling, Alexander. (Jefferson County, Indiana, Book A-70) Will Written Aug. 1856. Probated Dec. 1856. “To my wife, Elizabeth, all property. My daughter Cecilia $50; my children, Mary Lodging [Edging ?, typed over.]; Richard Bowling; Jane G. Lowden; Sims Bowling; James Bowling and Cecilia Bowling, each one equal share. Also land in Trimble County, Kentucky. My wife to be executor.” Sims is a popular given name in the Family String “K”, DNA Group 6. (1414) (http://www.myindianahome.net/gen/jeff/records/wills/willsb.html) There is a 1856 will of a William Bowling with a wife Elizabeth, with land in Trimble County, Kentucky, but the children look different.
+++++++++++++++++++++++++

Ambrose Fh029 (6A) 397f
-----------------

Ambrose Green 1781-1865 (Rin=45025, FAG=14801952)/m1809 Margaret M. James (1789-1871)— His Father was John #397 


Son 1 b1811-1815—1820 Census has 2 males under 10, 1830 Census 1 15-19



Son 2 b1816-1820—1820 Census has 2 males under 10, 1830 Census 1 10-14


  a
Martha Jane 1813-1861/m1842 Clark Gregg 1814-1873


*a
Mary Ann 1816 VA-d1889/m1833 1/h John Gregg, m1841 2/h Thomas H. Gregg, m1848 3/h John Condon 

*a
Samuel Green 1820 OH-1888/m1841 1/w Margaret McDonald, 2/w Lydia Elbright Mahaffey



Descendant Kit 591993 tested in to DNA 6


*a
George Davenport 1825 IN-1903/m1851 Samantha Shaw

*a
Clarissa Amanda b1828-IN-1872/m1849 George W. Townsend

*a
William M. 1831 IN-1863/m1853 Sarah Ann Sutton

*a
James 1835 IN-1864/m1856 Eliza Jane Kelly

*
Children per Source #1932

a
http://www.migrations.org/individual.php3?record=35944

b
1820 Census of Franklin Twp. Clermont County, Ohio, Males 200010, Females 10010. 




(HeritageQuest.com)
Birth, Parents, Lineage

Ambrose Green Bowling was born June 1, 1781, in Virginia, county unknown. Ambrose Green Bowling had a brother Jeremiah (Fh326) and a sister Margaret who was born March 1769 in King George County, Virginia. Margaret married first a ----- Lewis and second George Davenport.

Marriage and Children

Ambrose G. Bowling married July 29, 1808 Margaret James in Alexandria, Fairfax County, Virginia. Ambrose Bowling and Margaret James were married by Rev Isaac Robbins, Trinity Methodist Minister, Alexandria (Arlington) County Virginia. (7)(1614) Ambrose Bowling married Margart James, July 29, 1809. They had six children, all of whom came to Rock Island County, Illinois, later. (1932)
They had at least 7 children. 

a.
Martha Jane Bowling b VA(abt 1814-bef 1865)married Clark Gregg. Martha J. who was born 1813, married 1842 Clark 
Gregg, and died 1861. (360)
b.
Mary Ann Bowling b VA(1816-aft 1871) Married John Gregg and John Condon. Mary Ann was born 1816 in Virginia. 
(1932) 

c.
Samuel Bowling b OH(1820-1888) Married Margaret McDonald , 2nd Lydia Elbright Mahaffey. Samuel was born 
1820 in 
Clermont County, Ohio. (1932)


Household Record,  1880 United States Census 

 
Samuel BOWLING
Self  M
Male
59 ,  OH ,  Farmer

VA ,  VA 

 
Lidia BOWLING

 M
Female
54 ,  OH ,  Keeping House
PA ,  PA 

 
I. G. BOWLING

Son  S
Male
21 ,  IL ,  Works On Farm
OH ,  IN 

 
Clark D. BOWLING
Son  S
Male
18 ,  IL ,  Works On Farm
OH ,  OH 

 
Lizzie BOWLING

Dau  S
Female
16 ,  IL ,  At Home

OH ,  OH 

 
Nellie BOWLING

Dau  S
Female
13 ,  IL ,  At Home

OH ,  OH 

 
Lucy BOWLING

Dau  S
Female
  9 ,  IL ,  

OH ,  OH 


Census Place, Weller, Henry, Illinois

d.
George D. Bowling b IN (1825- aft 1871) Married Samantha Shaw 

e.
Clarissia A. Bowling b IN(1828 - aft 1871) Married George Townsend 

f.
William M. Bowling - b IN(1831-1863) Sarah Ann Sutton. 

g.
James Bowling b IN(1835-1864) - Married Elizabeth Jane Kelly 

The rest of the children were born in Indiana. (1932)

Household Record,  1880 United States Census 

 George D. BOWLING
Self
M
Male
55 ,  IN ,  Farmer

VA ,  VA 

 Samantha BOWLING
Wife
M
Female
48 ,  OH ,  Keeping House
NY ,  PA 

Census Place, Lincoln, Washington, Kansas

Military Service

Ambrose Bowling served in the War of 1812; fought in the Battle of White House. (1932) Ambrose Green Bowling (Fh029,397e,6A) fought in the Washington DC militia during the War of 1812. (1979) Ambrose G. Bowlin served in Minor's, Lewis' and Hipkins' Company of the DC Militia in the War of 1812.  His pension was WO-62784.  His wife's name was Margaret. (935) Ambrose Green Bowling enlisted during the War of 1812 as substitute for Lewis Hipkins at Alexandria, DC. (1932)

Bowling, Ambrose Green, 1782-1865
DC
Rock Island, IL
James, Margaret McDonald
29 Jul 1809, Alexandria, VA (2158)

Movement

After the War, they moved first to Ohio, then to Indiana, and finally, in 1843, settled in Rock Island County, Illinois. (1932) Ambrose G. Boling was in the 1820 Census of Franklin Twp. Clermont County, Ohio, Males 200010, Females 10010. (HeritageQuest.com) This is probably his 1830 Census record. Franklin, Indiana:



Ambrose G. (Fh029) r1830(Census) (1932)

Ambrose BOWLING, 1780-1865, King George County, VA
 (http://www.migrations.org/surname.php3?migname1=JAMES)

Ambrose Bowling had at least two siblings, Margaret Bowling and Jeremiah Bowling. (see other entries) Ambrose Bowling and Margaret James were married in Alexandria Virginia July 29, 1809. He fought in the war of 1812. 
In 1843 the family moved to Rock Island County, IL. Ambrose purchased land from his sister and brother in law, Margaret and Col. George Davenport. In 1851 Ambrose received 40 acres by Warrant #20727.


to Clermont County, OH in abt 1818
to Franklin County, IN in abt 1824
to Rock Island County, IL in abt 1843
(Researcher:   Janet Fraser)

Death
Ambrose Green Bowling died May 7, 1865, in Rock Island County, Illinois. He was buried at the Chapel Grove Cemetery, Rock Island, Illinois. (Findagrave 14801952) 
+++++++++++++++++++++++++

Bailey Fh080 (6A) 320h
-----------------

Bailey W. 1796-1842 (Rin=20136) /m1816 Frances "Fanny" Higgenbotham (d1855or d>1880)--His father was Jarrett #320 


a
Jane "Jennie"bc1818-d<1888/m1841 David Turley


a
James "Harvey" b1820/m1876 Elizabeth Combs Pendleton


ab
William H. 1823-d>1850/m     ------- Brooks 

ab
David Young 1820-1894/m1861 Rebecca Spence (1829-1894)



Descendant kit 95951 tested into DNA 6


ab
Mary "Polly" H. 1826-d>1880/m      ------ Turley

ab
Elizabeth "Betty" "Betsy" 1830-d<1870/m1856 Jesse Jeptha Fallen (b1829)

a
Eleanor R. "Ellen" b1832/m1856 John F. Anderson (b1837)

a
Children per Sources #7 and #196.


b
Chidlren per Source #1908 (Laura Venerable)

Birth, Parents, Lineage

Bailey or Balam W. Bowling was born about 1796 in Tazewell County, Virginia, the son of Jarrett Bowling and Elearnor "Ellen" Garrison (Fh320). (7)  Bailey (Balam) Bowling was the son of Jarret and Winifred (Garrison) Bowling. (223) Baily W. (Balaam) Bowling was born about 1796 in Virginia, the son of Jarret and Eleanor (Garrison) Bowling. (196)

Marriage and Children

Baily W. (Balaam) Bowling married 1816 Tazewell County, Virginia, Frances "Fannie" Higgenbotham (1796-1855) the daughter of Moses and Elizabeth "Betty" Higgenbotham. (196) Balam Boling in 1815 married Frances Higgenbotham in Tazewell County, Virginia. (82) Bailey (Balam) Bowling married Frances "Fanny" Higginbotham, 1816. (223) Bailey or Balam W. Bowling married Frances "Fanny" Higgenbotham in 1816. (7) Balam Boling married February 15, 1816 Fanny Higginbotham, in Tazewell County, Virginia. (2004, page 59) Balaam Bowling married Francis Higginbotham 2/16/ 1816 Tazewell County, Virginia. (1414).

They had children: 

a.
Jane. (7)(196) 

b.
James Harvey. (7) James "Harvey". (196)

c.
William H. (7)(196) 

d.
Daniel. (7) 
e.
David Young. (196) 

f.
Mary. (7) Polly H. (196)

g.
Elizabeth. (7) Elizabeth "Betty".(196)

h.
Eleanor. (7) Ellen/Eleanor R. (196) 

Movement

Bailey Bolan was in the 1820 Census, page 242a, of Tazewell County, Virginia.  Also on that Census were Garret (Fh320) and William (Fh890) Bolan both on page 242a and Benjamin Bowlan on page 241a. (348)

Death

Bailey or Balam W. Bowling died in 1842. (7) Baily W. Bowling died either 1838 or 1842. (196) There is a chance that his wife Fannie was this widow in 1880:

Household Record,  1880 United States Census 

 Fannie BOWLING
Self
W
Female
76 ,  VA ,  Keeping House
VA ,  VA 

 Mary H. BOWLING
Dau
S
Female
43 ,  VA


VA ,  VA 

 Mary J. ASBERRY
GDau
S
Female
18 ,  VA


VA ,  VA 

Census Place, Maiden Spring, Tazewell, Virginia

See Bailey Bowling (Fh081) below for a earlier Bailey.
+++++++++++++++++++++++++

Bailey Fh081 (6A) Father William Bowlen bc1750
-----------------

Birth, Parents, Lineage

Bailey Bolling (Rin=58452, DNA 6 Kit 894165) was born before 1776 based on William Bolling (probably Bailey’s father) made oath that Bailey Bolling was 21 years of age, i.e. b<1776. (7)(128)(30)  Bailey Bolling was born in Amherst County, Virginia, about 1775.
Bailey married Jean Carpenter in Amherst and on the marriage certificate it listed William as his father. I figure the father William was born around 1750. (1854)  
1854.
Informant Janice Newcomb, janice.m.newcomb@us.army.mil (2006)  Descendant of Bailey (Fh081) b<1775 Amherst, VA 

Amherst,VA-


Bailey (Fh081, f was Wm bc1750) bc1775,m1797 (Jean Carpenter),t1800,r1810(Census)--later 1820 




Census in Giles, TN—A descendant Jimmy Bolin kit 894165 tested into DNA 6
William Blackwater BOWLEN (of Russell VA) is the 5th great-grandfather of Jimmy Lee Kit 894165 DNA 6 BOLIN.

                             Lines of Descent from 

                   William Blackwater BOWLEN b.1750

Bailey Kit 894165 Fh081 DNA 6 BOWLEN-99999999 b.1774

William Kit 894165 DNA 6 BOWLIN b.1805

Granville Kit 894165 DNA 6 BOLIN-31273261 b.1827

John Lafayette Kit 894165 DNA 6 BOLIN-5669062 b.1852

Arvey Icie Kit 894165 DNA 6 BOLIN b.1898

John C. Kit 894165 DNA 6 BOLIN b.1925

Jimmy Lee Kit 894165 DNA 6 BOLIN b.1958
From the Place Index
Russell, VA
6A
Jarrett (Fh320,100a) r1785,t1787-t1799--part that was Washington Co. earlier-part that was Tazewell, Virginia later

6A

William (Fh890,320d) b1789—part that was Tazewell County, Virginia later

6A
Enoch (100b) t1799—part that was Tazewell County, Virginia later

6A
Joseph (100e) t1799—part that was Tazewell County, Virginia later

6A
William (Fh844,100f) r1785,t1787-t1811—part that was Washington Co. earlier—to Missouri by 1815

6A

Solomon (844a) bc1795 

6A

Nancy (844b) b1796

6A

Mary Ann (844c) b1799

6A

Samuel (844d) bc1800

6A

John (844e) b1805

6A

Sarah (844f) b1806

6A

Lydia (844g) b1808

6A
David (100g) t1799—part that was Tazewell County, Virginia in 1799.
Washington,VA-created 1776-77 from Fincastle and Montgomery


6A
William (Fh844,100c) r1785,l1794---part that was Russell Co. later and Tazewell Co. even later
Fincastle-created 1772 from Boteourt (Fincastle discontinued 1777)


M11
William R. (395e) b1742 Kit 146169

Marriage and Children

Bailey Bolling married 1797 in Amherst County, Virginia, Jean Carpenter. (7)
Based on 1820 Census of Giles,TN.

Bailey (Fh081,b<1775) r1820(Census)--from Amberst VA



James (b1794-b1804) r1820 (Census)



Thomas r1820(Census??)




Granville (grandson of Bailey) b1827-d1903 FAG=31273261 See Kit 894165 DNA 6 He Rin=65445


Yellie/Yelly Rin=58223 (b1801 VA, wife Lucey E. Saunders d1856 Stone, MO)r1825-49,r1839,r1850—to Stone 




Co. MO FAG=132993263




Elizabeth Ann (dau. of Yelly above) b1829--later m1846 Joseph Peter Davidson FAG=29751871




Robert James (son of Yelly above)  b1831 FAG=50414415




William Henry (son of Yelly above, yes Rin=58226) r1839 (think b1839)

Amherst,VA-created 1761 from Albemarle


6
Bailey (Fh081, f was Wm bc1750) bc1775,m1797 (Jean Carpenter),t1800,r1810(Census)--later 1820 




Census in Giles, TN—A descendant Jimmy Bolin kit 894165 tested into DNA 6
Albemarle,VA—Parts later Amherst

Only likely father William there:


M4
William (Fh775) b1757,r1789--Head of Family String M4

M7
Edward (Fh203,376a) r1787,r1796-later Clarke GA


M7
James Sr. (Fh260,376b) m1777 (Litty Gillespie),r1780,r1794,t1800,l1804,r1810,r1832,d1836

M7 376.
 John 1714-1758/m      1/w Elizabeth Bragg--His father was Edmund #186


*bc
Edmund/Edward 1745-1833--See Family Group #203


*bc
Mary b<1757-- stayed in St. Mary's MD where she married at least twice.



2/w m1757 Susanah Lee--she later married a Maddox and then John Cartwright



    c
James 1749/52-1836/m1777 Letitia "Letty" Moore Gillespie--See Family Group #260


*
Children per Source #1455


b
Children named in father's 1758 probated will along with wife Susanna.


c
Children per Source #1508

Marriage

Bailey married Jean Carpenter in Amherst and on the marriage certificate it listed William as his father. I figure the father William was born around 1750. (1854) Bailey Bolling married Jean Carpenter in 1797 in Amherst County, Virginia. (7)
Amherst County, Virginia, 1800 taxes. (M7 territory) Virginia, Tax List for Lexington Parish/District - 1800, Peter P. Thornton - Commissioner,

Column One – White males over the age of twenty-one

Column Two – Horses owned,

Column Three – Slaves over the age of sixteen,

Column Four – Slaves between the age of twelve and sixteen. 

Bolling, Bailey (Fh081) 1-1-0-0  (i.e b<1779)

Bolling, James (probably Fh260,M7) 1-2-0-0
Bowling, John (UK) 1-3-1-0
Bailey may have had brothers James and John.









Bailey Bowling was in the 1810 Census of Amherst County, Virginia. (349) 
Bailey Bolling was listed on the 1820 Census of Giles County, Tennessee, on page 18, with:





Likely

1 male over 45, (i.e. b<1775)
Bailey


2 males 16-18, (i.e. b1802-1804)
Yellie/Yelly (b1801 VA) & George Washington b1803
2 males 10-16, (i.e. b1804-1810)
William b1805—Descendant is DNA kit 894165 & UK male

1 male under 10, (i.e. b1810-1820)


1 female over 45, (i.e. b<1775) 
Wife Jean Carpenter bc1773

1 female 10-16 (i.e. b1804-1810) 

2 females under 10. (i.e. b1810-1820) 

Also on page 18 was the household of James Bolling age 16-26 (i.e. b1794-1804). (1545)












+++++++++++++++++++++++++

Baldwin UK (6K)
-----------------

Baldwin Bolling's estate was administered 1792 in Jefferson County, Kentucky. The administrator was Philip Buckner XE "Buckner:Philip"  and bond by William Johnston XE "Johnston:William" . (473) Baldwin Bolling died prior to January 3, 1792, in Jefferson County, Kentucky. The Jefferson County court on that day appointed Philip Buckner XE "Buckner:Philip"  as administrator of the estate of Baldwin Bolling and gave William Johnston security. (434) The same William Johnston appears in records pertaining to other Bowlings. (7) Henry Bolling (Fh2499,746d,6K) married Widow Bonamxe "Bonam:Sarah" (Sarah in register) in Jefferson County, Virginia (now Kentucky). Bond was July 7, 1784, bondsman was Samuel Wellsxe "Wells:Samuel", witnessed by Will Johnstonxe "Johnston:Will". Samuel Wells married Mary Spearxe "Spear:Mary" December 30, 1781 and Will Johnston married Betsey Winnxe "Winn:Betsey", November 11, 1784. (461)(668) "Henry Bolling (Fh2499,746d,6K), of Jefferson County, Kentucky, is bound to William Johnstonxe "Johnston:William" in the penal sum of 400 pounds, September 8, 1785. Conditioned, upon Bolling making conveyance to William Johnston of 240 acres on the Ohio River in Ohio County, Virginia (now West Virginia). The land on McMeacham (sic) Branch, bounded on the north by Thomas Westxe "West:Thomas", on the south by McMeacham, on east by William Greathousexe "Greathouse:William", and on west by land formerly owned by Jacob Walkerxe "Walker:Jacob" and which Henry Bolling purchased of William Westxe "West:William", and the land where Benjamin Johnstonxe "Johnston:Benjamin" now lives. Johnston to have immediate possession. Thomas M. Winnxe "Winn:Thomas M." and Benjamin Sebastianxe "Sebastian:Benjamin", witnesses. Recorded September 5, 1786 (recorded after Henry’s death)". Minute Book 1, page 61, Jefferson County, Kentucky. (473)(666)(1197d) George Bowling (746b,6K) was on a 1789 tax list in the District of Coleman Danielxe "Daniel:Coleman", Jefferson County , Kentucky with 1 white male over 21 years of age (himself) and 1 horse and cattle. No males 16-21. Doesn’t show females or young males, if any. A James Dunbarxe "Dunbar:James", Samuel Wells, William Johnstonxe "Johnston:William", Benjamin Sebastian, William Lynn/Linnxe "Lynn/Linn:William" and many others were also on the 1789 tax list of Jefferson County, Kentucky. (1818)(454)(895) 
1789 Tax list of Jefferson County, KY:

Buckner, Nicholas, 

Buckner, Philip,

Bowling, George,

Johnston, Benjamin Jr.,

Johnston, Benjamin,

Johnston, Ga. Jones,

Johnston, Thomas,

Johnston, William

Many others

(http://www.rootsweb.com/~kyjeffer/census/taxlist1789.html) 

Family Group Record, FamilySearch™ Ancestral File v4.19


Husband's Name: Philip BUCKNER (AFN:G3DB-9T)


Born: 13 Jan 1753, Place: Louisa, Virginia


Died: 15 Mar  1819, Place:  


Married: 27 Oct 1789, Place: Kentucky


Wife's Name: Elizabeth WATSON (AFN:TPLR-0B) 
 


Born: Abt. 1755, Place: Of, Hart, Kentucky


Died: 1 Mar 1828, Place: Glenlily, Hart, Kentucky


Married: 27 Oct 1789, Place: Kentucky

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

Benjamin UK (6T) UK

-----------------

Benjamin Bowlin, along with William Bowlin Sr. (Fh753, 6T) and William Bowlin Jr. (753g, 6T), become residents of Morgan Township, Owen County, Indiana, as early as the year 1825. All were from Montgomery County, North Carolina. This from the “History of Owen County, Indiana”.(1155) 
From the Place Index
Montgomery,NC-created 1779 from Anson


6T
Benjamin (UK) r      --later Owen Co., IN
From the Place Index
Owen,IN-created 1819 from Daviess, Sullivan

6T    William Sr. (Fh753,424h) r1825,r1830(Census),l1836,w1844—from Montgomery Co., NC earlier

6T   

Benager or Bennage or Berryage or Benajah  (753b,bc1801/5, NC) r1830 (Census), r1837,r1839,nw1844,r1850

6T

Charles (753e,bc1802) r1832,l1837,r1843, nw1844,d1882—from NC

6T

Harbard (753b) nw1844,dc1845

6T


Noah (Heir of Harbard Fh753b) r1845,r1853

6T


Pleasant (Heir of Harbard Fh753b) r1845

6T

Shubal (753h) m1832(Sally Cummings),l1835, nw1844,r1845-from Montgomery, NC earlier (He Rin=54245)

6T

William Jr. (753g,,b1814 NC) r1825,m1839 (Zelpha Randall),nw1844,r1860,d?—from Montgomery, NC earlier


William (UK, b1815, NC, wife Chincy) r1850


William (UK, b1815,NC) m1836 (Anna Mears), r1850


William (UK) m1839 (Mary Doyle)

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

Benjamin Fh090 (6A) 450a
-----------------

Benjamin c1704-1767 (Rin=18570)/m1725 Mary Lathram 1701-1735 --His father was probably 

Joseph 

#450,240x (Rin=53942) or 

Simon 

#632,742x (54190) or 

William Bowling 
#742 (Rin=13921)--See Fh007 for possible siblings




Descendant kits 1918, kit 78240, kit 84056, tested into DNA 6



Descendant kits 95951, kit 116187, kit 490162 tested into DNA 6




Descendant kit 96824 tested into DNA 6-

An exact 25/25 match to kits 1286(M18) and 2282(K)


a.
Jean bc1725-d<1774/ m Feb 1744/5 John Asbury/Asberry (b1720)

b.
Elizabeth 1731-1776/m1756 Robert Mays (bc1731-d1808)-he married 2/w 1780. I am a descendant of 



Elizabeth Bolling who married 1756 Robert Mays, Overwharton Parish, Stafford County, Virginia. 



Some have her as 90b, but no birth record. If she was born c1739/42 (?, 1731) then her mother 




could not be Mary Latham who died in 1735. She might be an Elizabeth found born to several 




families (590b or 760c) per St. Paul church records or the sister of Edward/Edmond (Fh183). 




(1734)(947) 

c.
Benjamin 1732-1790 (Rin=18518)/m1756/61 Winifred "Winnie" Garrison--See Family Group #100




Descendant kit 95951, kit 490162 tested into DNA 6




Descendant kits 3906, kit 7674, kit 78240, Kit 84056 tested into DNA 6



Descendant kit 116187 tested into DNA 6




Descendant kit 96824 tested in to DNA 6, 
An exact match to kits 1286 and 2282


d.
John 1734-d<1802 (Rin=18572)--See Family Group #397-- Son John. Some think it was John b1734-



d>1810/m Jane Asbury or Asberry--See Family Group #432—There is little evidence that Fh432 



was the son John. Two Descendants of  his possible son Joshua Fh459 tested into DNA Group 3.

Birth, Parents, Lineage

Miss Slaughter (TB--probable wife of Joseph (Fh450,6A) had a son Benjamin (Fh090,6A). Since Slaughter land records are found in Stafford County, Virginia, there is a possibility this son Benjamin may be the Benjamin who married Mary Latham, 1725. William Burns of Phoeniz, Ariz., also thought this Benjamin was not the son of Major John Bolling (Fh380). (51)(957) Benjamin Bowling was born about 1700-07 in Stafford County, Virginia. (51) A descendant kit 1918 tested into DNA 6. Benjamin Bowling, Sr. (Fh090,6A) was born 1696 in Stafford County, Virginia. Benjamin Bowling's father was Robert Bowling. (1604) One possible Robert Bowling that could be the father of Benjamin Bowling (Fh090,6A) is in Stafford County index as: Robert (UK) r1722(age 50,i.e. born 1672),d1730/31. Robert Bowling of Stafford County, Virginia made a deposition in 1722 in which he stated that he was then 50 years old. (He names George Bowling (Fh240), Prince Williams County, died 1736; sons William (Fh743) (who voted in the 1744 Fairfax Co elections, and died before 1754, wife Penelope; they had son William, perhaps John) Robert Joseph, d1753. (176) Robert Bowling died 1730/31 in Stafford or King George Counties, Virginia. (46) Benjamin Bowling of Stafford County, Virginia, in time and place seems to be the only Benjamin who could have been the son of our forebear Joseph Bowling (Fh450).  (51)(957) Benjamin (Fh140) was the son of John Bowling (Fh432), son of Benjamin (Fh090), son of  Joseph, son of George, son of William, etc. (1445) When grandfather mentioned the connection between Benjamin (Fh090), Joseph (Fh450) and George (Fh240) he thought for a moment and said there was a Samuel (Fh590) there too. In the St. Paul's Parish of that period we find a Samuel (Fh590) who married Elizabeth Oxford and had several children. One child was named Benjamin. (51) Benjamin Bowling (Fh090,6A) was born about 1704, the son of Simon (Fh632,742x) and Jean (Wade) Bowling. Both parents were born about 1680. (1605) 
Lines of Descent from: 


Simon Fh629 BOWLING-


45539 b.1620       


William Fh742 BOWLING-


65495 b.1652


George Fh240 BOWLING-


62389 b.1670


Joseph Fh450 BOWLING-


53942 b.1688


Benjamin Fh090 BOWLING-

18570 b.1704



son


John Fh397 6N2 BOWLING-

18572 b.1734



grandson


George W. Bowling Fh235 M21 BOWLING-
50768 b.1763

Benjamin Bowling was born about 1700 in Stafford County, Virginia. Benjamin Bowling, I believe, was the son of 
Robert Bowling 

(Fh516)
(911) or 
Joseph Bowling 

(Fh450)
(911) or 
Simon/Sims Bowling
(Fh632)
(911) or 
Samuel Bowling 


(911) 
Those in Stafford County, Virginia, before 1700 are listed below. 

Stafford, VA-created 1664 from Westmoreland

Simon (Fh629, (Rin=45539) l1673,r1694



Alexander (629a? or maybe a brother of Simon Fh629) Mentioned in 1689 will but not an heir, l<1689


Simon (Fh633,629c)—probably a son of Simons but not with mother Kinge 

a
William (Fh742,629b) nw1689
a
John (629c) nw1689
a
Robert (Fh516,629d) nw1689,r1701/02,r1722(age 50,i.e. b1672),d1730/31

a 
Sons per Source #7 & #1748 Mentioned in the 1689 will of Robert Kinge, probably their grandfather.

6A
Benjamin (Fh090,450x) b1696,m1725 (Mary Latham)--m @ St. Paul's,r1732-34,d1767

Will Abstracts of Stafford County, Virginia, 1689-1693, Deeds, Wills, Inventories etc. from 29 April 1689 - 8 February 1692/3, Deed Book D - Part II. This Book is not among the records in the Stafford County Court House. (1748)

From the 1689 Will of Robert Kinge:  



Alexander Boyninge's (sic) land along with William Bowlinge, John Bowlinge, Robert Bowlinge are mentioned in the 1689 will of Robert Kinge, recorded 1690 Stafford County, Virginia. 

"Fifthly I give to (faded) William Bowlinge, and John Bowlinge, and Robert Bowlinge a Tract of lande lyeinge att ye head of (faded) Creeke running with lande I bought of Thomas Revett and Edward Humston the said lande to be equally divided between ye before menconed Bowlinges and is three thousand acres belonginge to me and ye whole Tract of lande is Twelve thousand acres and it extendeth it selfe from ye Branch of Potomack Runne to ye branches of Ocquia Creeke, Henry Merest and Anthony Buckner have ye remiainge part of ye said Tract of Lande"... 

"Eightly I give to my Loveinge Wife Mary Kinge a tract of land wch I bought of Alexander Boyninge it being Two hundred and forty acres lyeinge upon Hunting Creeke. (1678)(1748).

Possible siblings of Benjamin Bowlings: 
Samuel Bowling (Fh590), married 1731 Elizabeth Oxford 
Thomas Bowling (Fh680) married 1729 Rachel Colclough 
Bethridge Bowling (450d) married 1728 Daniel Hammit (St. Paul's) 
Honor Bowling (450e) married 1726 Joseph Dunman (911)

I believe that Benjamin Bowling (Fh090, 6A) who was born about 1704, was the son of  Joseph Bowling (Fh450,6A) and his wife Mary. (1731) 

Lineage according to Source #1731:


Thomas, Fh665, had son


William, Fh741, had son



(Not correct per Source #1919)


William, Fh742, A, had son


George, Fh240, A, had son


Joseph, Fh450, A, had son


Benjamin, Fh090, A, had son



Maybe wrong here


John, Fh432, A, had son


Joshua, Fh459, A, had son


Edmund, 459b, A (1731)

Lineage according to Source #1732 (Henry Rogge) and #1733 (Kelly Langston):


Thomas, Fh665, had son


William, Fh741, had son



(Not correct per Source #1919)


William, Fh742, A, had son


George, Fh240, A, had son


Joseph, Fh450, A, had son


Benjamin, Fh090, A, had son


Benjamin, Fh100, A, had son


Jarrett, Fh320, A, had son



Lindsay, 320j, A (1732)(1733) 


Marriage and Children

Benjamin Bowling married Mary Latham, July 27, 1725 in St. Paul's Parish, Stafford County, Virginia. (911) Benjamin Bowling (Fh090) married Mary Lathram. (15)(46) Benjamin Bowling married Mary Latham in 1725. (51)(30)(46)(223)(863)(959) Benjamin Bowlin married 1725 Mary Lathrum in King George County, Virginia. (1238)  Benjamin Bowling's wife Mary Latham was born 1701 and died December 5, 1735. (1604) Benjamin and Mary were married July 27, 1725 in St. Paul's Parrish in Stafford County, Virginia. They had a son Benjamin Bowling, Jr. (Fh100). (1604) The marriage was in Stafford County, Virginia.  (30)(46)(223)(863) Benjamin Bowling married Mary Latham, July 27, 1725 per the register of St. Paul's Church, Stafford County, Virginia. (1302) The marriage was in King George County, Virginia. (sic, in 1725 the church was in Stafford County. Later because of a boundary change in was in King George County)  (51)  
They had children:

a.  
Jean Bowling married John Asbury February 25,1745 in Overwharton Parish, Stafford County, Virginia. (1715) This is 
particularly interesting because their son George Asbury died in Tazewell County, Virginia before 1819. That is Family String 
"A" territory. (1553). Jean Bowling was born before 1728 and died January 23, 1816 (sic). She married John Asbury. (2111) 
"Nov. 29, 1816. I Hannah DAWSON of Allen County State of Kentucky...appoint William ASBURY Junior of Nicholas 
County & State aforesaid my true and lawful attorney.....to settle the estate of Jane ASBURY deceased late of the County of 
Harrison and State of Virginia all sums of money that may be due me from said Estate...Signed: Hannah DAWSON (mark) pg 
90." Jane Bowling Asbury inherited a huge sum of money and land and it stayed in probate for close to 50 years after her 
death. (7) Jean (Bowling) Asbury may have died at the birth of her son William Bolling Asbury, as to a record found Nov.7 
1774 Where William Garrison and Robert Mays and John Davis were named as bondsmen for William Bolling Asbury ,son 
of John Asbury. I assumed when one parent died they had to have a guardian for small children, in case the other parent also 
died. Another record in Tazewell mentions John Asbury's wife Kiziah and unless my Jean Bowling's name was Kiziah Jean, 
John Asbury had remarried. John Asbury died between 1805-1806 in Tazewell County. Many of their descendants still live in 
that county. (Wanda O’Neal)

b. 
Benjamin (Fh100, Rin=188518, LY9K-7Y1) born 1732 in Stafford County, Virginia (15)(46)(51)(959)  Benjamin (Fh100) 
born 1732 who married Winniford Garrison or Garson. (51)(7) Benjamin Bowling (Fh100) was born September 18, 
1732 the son of Benjamin and Mary (Latham)  Bowling (Fh090,6A) per the register of St. Paul's Parish church, Stafford 
County, Virginia. (1302)(2111)(1604)

c. 
John born 1732 (sic). (15)(46)  John was born 1734. (51)(223)(957) John Bowling (Fh397,090c,6A) was born November 
10, 1734. (2111) John born 1734 thought to have married Jane Asbury. (51)(1731)  Little seems to be known of the younger 
son John. (51) Some think this is John Fh432, but John Fh432 descendant’s tested into DNA Group #3. More likely he might 
have been John Fh397.

d. 
Elizabeth Bolling, "said to be a daughter of Benjamin Bolling", married 1756 Robert in Stafford County, Virginia. He married 
second 1780 suggesting that Elizabeth had died by then. (1238) I am a descendant of Elizabeth Bolling who married 1756 
Robert Mays, Overwharton Parish, Stafford County, Virginia. Some have her as 90d, but no birth record. If she was born 
c1739/42 (?, most have her born 1731) then her mother could not be Mary Latham who died in 1735. She might be an 
Elizabeth found born to several families per St. Paul church records or the sister of Edward/Edmond (Fh183). (1734)(947) It 
seems odd no children between 1725 and 1732. (51) Jean would have been born in that time frame. (1553) James O.  
Bowling (source #51) about 1960 said "I asked grandpa if his father Benjamin (459a) was next in line to the Benjamin 
(Fh090) in Virginia. He said no, that there were two between them.  Joshus "Josh" (Fh459) and as my memory serves me 
Alexander "Alex" (sic). It is likely the Virginia Benjamin born 1700-7 had two families." (957) Benjamin Bowling (Fh090) 
was born 1704 in Stafford County, Virginia, died about 1767, married on 27 Jul 1725 in Saint Paul’s Parish, Stafford County, 
Virginia to Mary Latham was born about 1705 in Stafford County, VA, died 5 Dec 1735. (1485) 

Death

Benjamin Bowling died 1767 in Stafford County, Virginia. (911) Mary Bowling (probably the wife of Benjamin Fh090,A), died December 5, 1735, per the register of the St. Paul's Parish in Stafford County, Virginia. (1302) Mary (Latham) Bowling died 1735 in Stafford County, Virginia. (51)(223)(863) Mary (Lathram) Bowling died at Stafford County, Virginia. (959)

Proven as false
A Melba Young of Virginia (c<1960), in her several years of Virginia research, reportedly came upon information that young Edward Bolling (Fh201,1R), son of Col. Robert Bolling (Fh480,1R) and Anne Stith, married a Miss Slaughter and had son Benjamin (Fh090,6A). Since Slaughter land records are found in Stafford County, Virginia, there is a possibility this son Benjamin may be the Benjamin who married Mary Latham, 1725 and also could be the Benjamin of Ky., Tenn., and Wise County, Virginia. William Burns of Phoeniz, Ariz., also thought the Benjamin of those states probably was not the son of Major John Bolling (Fh380).  (51)(957)

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

Benjamin Fh100 (6A) 090a
-----------------

Benjamin 1732-d>1790 (Rin=18518)/m1761 Winifred "Winnie" Garrison (b1735)--His father was Benjamin #090 (Rin=18570)



Descendant kit 95951, kit 490162 tested into DNA 6




Descendant kits 3906, kit 7674, kit 78240, Kit 84056 tested into DNA 6



Descendant kit 116187 tested into DNA 6




A Descendant Kit 96824 tested in to DNA 6, 

An exact match to kits 1286 and 2282


  b
David b1761 VA-d>1850 (Census)

abc
Jarrett 1762-1856 (Rin=44527)/m1782 1/w Eleanor "Ellen" Garrison 2/w Goodwin--See Family 





Group#320




Descendant kits 3906, 7674, kit 78240, kit 84056 tested into DNA 6



Descendant kit 95951 tested into DNA 6




Descendant kit 116187 tested into DNA 6




A Descendant kit 96824 tested in to DNA 6, An exact match to kits 1286 and 2282


  bc
Enoch b<1774-d>1799

    c
Francis b<1774-d>1795/m<1802 Janell -----


    c
George  b<1774-d>1795

  bc
Joseph b<1774-d>1799 


  b d
William b1762/1770-d>1799 (Rin=46073)/m1805 Sarah “Sally” Fugate bc1760-1770—See
 Family Fh844 

                    d
Mary b1773/m<1801 William George b1771


a
Son per source #1026


b
The Russell County, Virginia, 1799 Tax Lists has them together. They could be siblings.


c
Signed a petition 1795 to form Tazewell County, Virginia. They could be siblings.


d
Brother and sister per Source #1816

Birth, Parents, Lineage

Benjamin Bowling was born 1732 the son of Benjamin and Mary (Lathram) Bowling. (Fh090,A) (223)(863)(959)  Benjamin Bowling was born 1732 in Stafford County, Virginia.  Benjamin Bowling's father was Benjamin Bowling (Fh090,A) and his mother was Mary Lathram.  Benjamin Bowling Jr.  probably had a brother John Bowling (Fh432,090b,A), born 1734. (15)(46) Benjamin Bowling Jr. (Fh100,6A) was born September 18, 1732 in Stafford County, Virginia, the son of Benjamin Bowling Sr. and Mary Latham (Fh090,6A). (1604)  Benjamin Bowling (Fh100) was born 18 September 1732 in Saint Paul’s Parish, Stafford County, Virginia. (1485) Benjamin Bowling (Fh100,A) was born Sept. 18, 1732 the son of Benjamin and Mary (Latham)  Bowling (Fh090,A) per the register of St. Paul's Parish church, Stafford County, Virginia. (1302)

Lineage according to Source #1732 (Henry Rogge):


Thomas, Fh665, had son


William, Fh741, had son



(Not correct per Source #1919)


William, Fh742, A, had son


George, Fh240, A, had son


Joseph, Fh450, A, had son


Benjamin, Fh090, A, had son


Benjamin, Fh100, A, had son


Jarrett, Fh320, A, had son



Lindsay, 320j, A (1732) 

Marriage 

Benjamin Bowling married in 1761 at Stafford County, Virginia to Winifred “Winnie” Garrison was born about 1738 in Stafford County, Virginia. (1485) Benjamin Bowling, Jr. married Winifred Garrison, they were first cousins.  (1604)  Benjamin Bowling married Winifred Garrison. (15)(46) Benjamin Bowling married 1756 Winifred Garrison. (863) Benjamin Bowling married Winifred Garrison and lived in Stafford County, Virginia in the early 1700s. (156)  
Children

a.
David b1761 VA-d>1850 (Census). David Bolling is on the 1799 tax list of Russell County, Virginia. (1491) 1850 Census, 
Tazewell County, Virginia, taken on 7 Aug 1850 , Page 252A, Family #510. Listed as David Bowling, age 89 (i.e. bc1761), 
born in Virginia, farmer, head of household. Female Isabella age 53 and Female Eleanor age 9. (1414)
b.
Jarrett 1762-1856 (Rin=44527)/m1782 1/w Eleanor "Ellen" Garrison 2/w Goodwin. Jarrett Bowling (Fh320), born 

1762 and died 1856 in Tazewell, Virginia. (15)(46)(156)(223)(1604)- Enoch was in the Tazewell County, 


Virginia Militia along with Jarrett Boland (100b,Fh320). (7) -See Family Group#320

c.
Enoch b<1774-d>1799. Enoch was in the Tazewell County, Virginia Militia along with Jarrett Boland (100b,Fh320).  

d.
Francis b<1774-d>1795. Francis married before 1802 Janell -----. (?) Francis was still in Tazewell County, Virginia in 
1802 apparently with a wife Janell -----. (7) Enoch Boland along with Francis (100d), Jared (100b,Fh320), George 
(100e), 
and Joseph (100f) Boland signed a petition 1795 to form Tazewell County, Virginia. Tazewell was created 1799 from Russel 
and Wythe Counties. (7)
e.
George  b<1774-d>1795. Enoch Boland (100c) along with Francis (100d), Jared (100b,Fh320), George (100e), and 
Joseph (100g) Boland signed a petition 1795 to form Tazewell County, Virginia. Tazewell was created 1799 from Russel 
and Wythe Counties. (7)
f.
Joseph b<1774-d>1799. Enoch Boland along with Francis (100d), Jared (100b,Fh320), George (100e), and Joseph 
(100g) 
Boland signed a petition 1795 to form Tazewell County, Virginia. Tazewell was created 1799 from Russel and Wythe 
Counties. (7)  

g.
William b1762/1770-d>1799 (Rin=46073)/m1805 Sarah “Sally” Fugate bc1760-1770 William Bolin 


(Fh844,100g)(1816). William Bolin who married Sarah Fugit, daughter of John and Sarah Fugit. (1816) —


See Family Fh844 

h.
Mary b1773/m<1801 William George b1771. Mary Bolin was born April 10, 1773 in Virginia. (1816) Mary 

Bolin married William George, Jr., born Feb 2, 1771 in Virginia. William George apparently had a brother Benjamin 
George, who married Martha Fugit, the sister of Sarah Fugit above. My information indicates both Benjamin George 
and William George and their families left Tazewell Virginia about 1809 and settled in Franklin County, Indiana. (1816) The 
settlement of John Fugate's estate shows: This indenture made this 21 day of November in the year of our 
Lord 1833. ... 
William Bolin intermarried with Sarah Fugit, Benjamin George intermarried with Martha Fugit ... William Bolin of Cape 
Girardeau County State of Missouri, Benjamin George of Franklin County State of Indiana, ... 
(1803)(1804)

Movement

1783-86—Stafford County, Virginia 
Bowling, Samuel – 

5 in Household

Bowling, Thomas  

4, 1, 1

(Fh667,6M17)

Bowling, James 

10, 2

Bowlen, Benjamin 

4, 1

(Fh100,090a,6A)


Benjamin Bowlen is listed as head of household (4 people) 1785 in Stafford County, Virginia.  (43) Benjamin Bowlin 
was on the 1787 tax list of Stafford County, Virginia.  (551) 

1799 Russell County, Virginia, Tax Lists:

A,100a,Fh320
Bolling Jarrett

1


2

A,100b

Bolling Enoch

1


1

A,100e

Bolling Joseph

1


2

A,100f                
Bolling Wm

1


2

A,100g

Bolling David

1


0

They are not in Russell County in 1800 as Tazewell County was formed then. (382)
Death
Benjamin Bowling (Fh100) died after 1790 in Stafford County, Virginia. (1485)

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

Benjamin Fh120 (6S) 902b
-----------------

Benjamin 1754->1820(Rin=44516)/m1775 Sarah T. "Sally" or "Tabitha" Hancock (1759-1806)-- His father was William #902 (Rin=44567). A descendant kits 22608 & 76895 tested into DNA 6--Probably related to: Fh4614 Lawrence 1770-1839

ac ef 
Benjamin 1776-1839(Rin=44722)/Prudence Jane Callicoat (1780-1860)--See Family Group 
#125
Descendant kits 1288, 2113, 87065 tested into DNA 6--kits 1569,1918 (A), 2013 (S), 2319 (M19), 
2388 M17, and 3019 (Z) tested 12/12.



Virginia

    
acdef 
Lardicie or Dicie Dicey bc1790/m1810 Martin Cagle and/or m1826 William Cagle


acdef
Isaac Andrew 1790-1850(Rin=47291)/Mary Coltrane (1791-1839)--See Family Group #254


acd  f
John B. 1780-1855(Rin=44776)/Lucille Randolph--See Family Group #407
Descendant kits kit 2656, 2662, kit 2940, kit 4725, 10477, kit 22608 & 23617 tested into DNA 6

      d f  
Mark 1796 NC-d>1850 (Rin=46118)/m       Anne Graves--See Family #4633

      d f 
Mitchell b1790 NC (Rin=46238)--See Family #4658
A Descendant kit 76632 tested in to DNA Group 6
    
acdef 
Sarah "Sallie" bc1778-1839/Benjamin Franklin Page (d1839)

     d  f
Talitha bc1785 NC/m      Samuel Graves--moved to Indiana


   cd ef
William b1801-d>1835/Sallie Burchfield--To Ky, then Ind. or m1834 Dolly Hensen/Polly Henson


     d  f 
Rhoda b1801-Never married or married William Garrett

    
ac  ef 
Elizabeth "Betsy"/m1837 Solomon Latham----Moved to Clay,IN in 1858
    
ac    f
Susan/m1825Aaron Robinson--See also 131b


    c 
Isham (?) bc1784



Probably not chidren



Rachel 1775-1850/m<1800 Pete Cagle (1775-1841)

      d f 
Gardner bc1788 N.C.-Never married, lived in NC


a
Children per sources #874 and #253, 6 sons, 4 daughters, 7 known to author, perhaps William & Isham 



also, no proof.


b


c
Children per source 914


d
Children per source 1068


e
"On all lists" per Source 432


f
Children per Source 249

Birth, Parents, Lineage

Benjamin Bolling was born 1754 in Albemarle County, Virginia. (32)(53)(700) A descendant kit 22608 tested into DNA 6. Benjamin Bolling was born 1754 in Albemarle County, Virginia, that part that in 1761 became Amherst County, Virginia. (249) Benjamin Bolling was born about the year 1750 in eastern Virginia. (1068) Benjamin Bolling was born 1754 in eastern Virginia. (1068) Benjamin Bolling was born 1746. (362) Benjamin Bolling was born 1746 in Virginia. (229) Benjamin Bowling (age 20) a resident of Spotsylvania County, Virginia, a shoemaker, who was born in Prince William County, Virginia, signed as a noncommissioned officer or private at the Albemarle Courthouse about 1781.  (343)(1553)

Marriage

Benjamin Bolling Jr. married Sarah "Sally" Tabitha Hancock. (32)(53)(700)  Benjamin Bolling married Sally Talitha Hancock about the year 1772.  Tradition says she was born in Pennsylvania, but the marriage took place in Virginia (probably in Brunswick County as a Benjamin Hancock was living there). (1068) Benjamin Bowling married Sallie T.  Hancock.  (7) Benjamin Bolling married Sallie Hancock. (362) Benjamin married about 1776 Sally Tabitha Hancock. (320) Benjamin Bolling married about 1775 Sarah Hancock in Spottsylvania County, Virginia. (249) Benjamin Bolling (Fh120, 6S) married Sarah Hancock, who according to "everyone", was from Pittsylvania County, Virginia or maybe Pennsylvania. Now Pittsylvania County sounds more logical. (249)

Children

The name of all these children the writer had not been able to obtain.  The following have been identified: 

and ? It is thought by researchers that Benjamin and Sallie (Hancock) Bowling had two other sons, namely: William and Isham. No proof.  (253) Benjamin Bowling and wife, Sarah "Sallie" Hancock, had ten children, six sons and four daughters--this information came from old letters from his descendants. (253)(791)(147) 
They had children:

a.  
Rachel Bowling born 1775 in North Carolina. Rachel Bowling married before 1800, Peter Cagle (1775 - 1842). Rachel 
Bowling died before 1850 in Cherokee County, Georgia. (1068)
b.  
Benjamin born 1776, Spotsylvania County, Virginia, (32)(53)  They had a son Benjamin born 1776 in North Carolina. 
(7)  Benjamin born 1776 in Virginia who married Prudence Callicoat (Fh125), (320)  Benjamin born 1776. (253) Is 
there a 
strong connection between Benjamin Fh120 to a son Benjamin Fh125? One interesting item I found in the deed records in 
Randolph County, North Carolina, was a reference to "Benjamin Boling Jr" being a chain carrier on the property of Benjamin 
Page, son-in-law of  Benjamin Fh120.  "Benjamin Boling Jr" Fh125 would have been a young man at this time and the date 
was before the move to Russell County Kentucky. Further Benjamin Boling Jr  Fh125 later named a son Benjamin PAGE 
Boling. (1554)
c.  
Dicie, (32)(53)  Dicey who married Martin Cagle, (320) Dicey who married Mr. Cagle. (253) North Carolina State Archives, 
Raleigh, NC, North Carolina Marriage Bonds, 1741-1868, Groom: William Cagle

Bride: Dicey Boling

Bond Date: 05 Feb 1826

Level Info: North Carolina Marriage Bonds, 1741-1868

County:   Randolph

Bondsman: George Cagle

Witness:   Thos Hancock .
d.
Gardener, (32) Gardener Bolling was born in North Carolina to Benjamin and Sarah "Sally" (Hancock) Bolling. (53) Gardner 
unmarried, (320) 

e.  
Isaac, (32)(53) Isaac Bolling who was born 1790 in Randolph County, North Carolina, and who married Mary Coltrane. 
(229) Isaac who married Coltrane (Fh254), (320) Isaac who married Mary Coltrane. (253) 

f.  
John born about 1780, Virginia, (32)(53)  John who married Lucille Randolph (Fh407), (320) John. (253), 

g.  
Mitchell, (32)(53)(1068) Mitchell to Kentucky, (320) 

h.
Sallie, (32)(53) Sarah "Sally" who married Benjamin F.  Page, (320) Sallie who married Benjamin Page. (253) 

i.  
Talithe, (32)(53) Talitha who married Sam Graves,  (320) 

j.
Mark born 1796, North Carolina and (32)(53) Mark to Indiana, (320) 

k.
William born 1801 in Virginia. (32) William Bolling was born 1801 in Virginia.  He was the son of Benjamin and Sarah 
"Sally" (Hancock) Bolling. (53) William to Kentucky, (320) 

l.
Betsy, (320) Betsey. (253)  

m.
Susan who married Aaron Robinson (320) Susan Boling who married Aaron Robinson. (253).  

n.
Rhoda unmarried. (320) 

The children were born in Virginia and North Carolina.  (32)(53) I found the data on Benjamin Bolling, the item of 20 May 1762 on William Byrd of Charles City County, Virginia, to Benjamin Bolling (UK) of Halifax County, Virginia, especially interesting. This is the first item I've seen of a Benjamin residing in Halifax County. Since Halifax County was formed 1752 from Lunenburg County, this puts us in the area of Christopher Bowling (Fh1566,5N) & Thomas Bouldin (Fh678,2I). Since Billie's (source #249) material contains the item: 1761: Sept Joshua Eason Entry 700 ac on both sides of Benjamin Bowling's Creek, Waters of New Hope begin at John King's corner, signed with a mark (Billie's note that this land is to the left of the Benjamin Bolling property, per Markham's Map.), would indicate that the Benjamin of Halifax in 1762 was someone other than Benjamin b. 1734 (Fh110,3U3). This leads us to Benjamin Bowling (Fh090,6A) born 1700 married to Mary Latham who had a son Benjamin born 1732 (Fh100,6A)- the Stafford Co., VA group. If not of this group you might very well be right in thinking there was another Benjamin, perhaps Fh120, 6S. (1155) I also received your latest packet and it was very interesting to me to see that a Benjamin Bolling (Unknown) was in Halifax County, Virginia. (Deeds page 180, Feb 18, 1777). There are some triggers here for me. Benjamin Bolling (Fh120, 6S) married Sarah Hancock, who according to "everyone", was from Pittsylvania County, Virginia or maybe Pennsylvania. Now Pittsylvania County sounds more logical. The south side of Dan River is very near to Granville County, I think, where there was/is a "nest" of Bollings. (249) Benjamin Bolling served the cause of independence as a soldier in the Revolution. For his service he was given a land grant in Randolph County, North Carolina, and lived there for many years.  He was a farmer and a minister of the Baptist Church. His wife was Sallie Hancock, also a native of Virginia. (229) About 1772 Benjamin Bolling  married Sallie T. "Tabitha" Hancock (1754-1819). They had children: Sallie, Talitha, Dicie, Rhoda, John (Fh407), Mark, Isaac who had six daughters and six sons and many descendants, William, Mitchell, and Gardner.  By the year 1784, they had moved to Randolph County, North Carolina, and bought land. Benjamin Bolling acquired land (400 acres), erected a house and spent the rest of his life in Randolph County, North Carolina. Just south of Benjamin Bolling were the Cagles who were in the northern part of Moore County, North Carolina. (1068)

Military

During my recent trip to the Richmond, Virginia, Archives. REV WAR. Benj Bowling pvt 20  5' 6 1/2 " tall, dark hair, brown eyes, fair, shoemaker, Spotsylvania, VA  b. VA Prince Wm (I saw this record which is very fragile and the first name looked like Tom to me, but the archivist assured me it is Benj).  He also said this record is an anomaly. They rarely had that much info about enlisted men. (1553) Benjamin Bowling (age 20) a resident of Spotsylvania County, Virginia, a shoemaker, who was born in Prince William County, Virginia, signed as a noncommissioned officer or private at the Albemarle Courthouse about 1781. (343) Williamsburg, Virginia, Wednesday, March 27, 1776. To "Benjamin Bolen, 20 s. for 2 musquets taken from the enemy and delivered for the use of the public. (2149)


Movement

Benjamin Bolling had land grants #333 and #278, 1867 (?), Randolph County, North Carolina, 100 acres described as King's Creek Little River Waters, original entry James Ervin.  Ervin to Benjamin Bolling including improvements of William Tucker.  Ervin to Bolling May 1780. (942) Benjamin Bolling acquired 400 acres of land in Randolph County, North Carolina in 1784 and spent the rest of his life there.  (173) Benjamin Bolling was on the 1785 tax list (list of John Knight) of Randolph County, North Carolina with 0 acres and 1 white poll.  (942) Benjamin Bollen (Fh120), October 15, 1787, to Joseph Farmer for 100 pds, 150 acres on 2nd Creek adjacent Mary Thompson and crossing Waynetts Branch.  Signed: Benjamin Bolling. Witness: John Stanfield. Randolph County, North Carolina, Deed Abstracts Books 1-5. (249)(1569) A land entry in Randolph County, North Carolina, on 15 Oc235t. 1787: Benjamin Bollen (Fh120,6S) to Joseph Farmer for 100 pds. 1550a on Second Creek adj. Mary Thompson and crossing Waynetts Branch. Signed: Benjamin Bolling; wit: John Stanfield, Will. Caswell. (1553) From the Historical Register of Virginians in the Revolutionary War. Richard Bean, Infantry, of Amherst County, Virginia. Richard Bean lived in the house between William Bowling (Fh913,6S) and Benjamin Bowling (Fh120,6S) on the 1790 Randolph County, North Carolina census and there are land records of sale in Randolph County to Richard Bean from John Bolling, heir to deceased William in 1784. (1553)  On the Randolph County, North Carolina, 1790 Federal Census, I have the following Bowlings; you can see by the line numbers those folks who were probably neighbors, depending on the route the census taker took of course.

Legend: 
# free white males, 16 and upwards
# free white males, less than 16
# free white females (including head of households)
# of all other free persons, except Indians

584 
Bowling Benjamin 
(Fh120,6S)
1    3   5    -
586 
Bowling William 

(Fh913,6S)
2    2   5    -

So we can see that as of 1790,  Benjamin had 3 males less than 16 and 5 females of any age. William had 2 males in his household 16 and over, 2 less than 16 and he had 5 females of any age. To me this looks more like younger relatives of Jesse than his father because of the ages of the children, unless there is a young mother involved. (1414) Benjamin Bolan was in Randolph County, North Carolina in 1800 in household 301 with 11101-11001-00.  Another entry has 10010-00100-00. (9)  Benjamin Bolin was on Capt.  Hoover's district 1820 tax list of Randolph County, North Carolina as one white poll. (942)
Death

Benjamin Bolling died at his home in Randolph County, North Carolina in 1840. (229) Benjamin Bolling is buried near his home in Randolph County, North Carolina. (791) I located a very old primitive cemetery in a wooded area close to Kings Creek and within a mile of the Benjamin Boling (Fh120) spring/home-site. This is probably a very important cemetery. (1554)(1815)
Proven untrue items
Benjamin Bolling (Fh120,6S) parent's were Benjamin Bolling Sr.  (Fh110,3U3) and Mary Phelps or Pelps. (32)(53)(700) Benjamin Bowling (Fh120,6S)(1754-1819) was the son of Benjamin and Patty (Phelps) Bowling (Fh110,3U3). (320) Others with the same general information. (45)(249)(914)(117)(432)(874) (But descendants of Benjamin Fh110 (DNA Group 3) and Benjamin Fh120 (DNA Group 6) have different DNA.) Benjamin Bolling/Bowling (Fh120) died about 1819 in Clay County, Kentucky. (32)(53)(249)(424) (Not true, he was never there)

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

Benjamin Fh125 (6S) 120a
-----------------

Benjamin 1776-1839(Rin=44722)/mc1797 Prudence Jane Callicoat (1780/8-1860)--His father was Benjamin #120 (Rin=44516)--Related to William Fh913 per DNA Group #6



Descendant kits 1288, 2013, 87065 tested into DNA 6. kits 1569, 1918, 2319,2388, and 3019 tested 12/12.

a   d 
Isham b1800 Va.-d>1850/m1824 1/w Lydia Wilson, 2/w m1848 Julia Ann Hughes


a   d 
Elizabeth "Betsy" bc1803/m1819 Tolbert Hall(?), m1823 William Belk


a   d 
Sarah Mobile "Sallie"b1805 /m1827 Benjamin Carman


a cd 
John Crittendon 1819-1879/m1840 Elizabeth Ann Forrest (1824-dc1891)

a 
Dicie Dicey Dicy Ann bc1815/m1835 James Webb


abcd 
Lucinda "Lou" b1820 KY-d>1870-<1875 IL/m late in life her brother-in-law Benjamin Carmen, m 2/h Wil Dower


a  cd 
Henry Jackson 1821-1915/1/w mc1846 Rachel Bernard, 2/w m1891 Etta M. Breeding


abcd 
Benjamin Page 1824 KY-1885/m1856 Mirinda A. Hattabaugh (1836-1885)




Descendant kit 87065 tested into DNA 6

a   d 
Mary "Polly" 1827-1865/m     Henry Law and/or m1830 William Wade


a 
Tabitha bc1830-dc1870/m1836 Jefferson Beard


a
Children per sources #253, #914, and #1595


b
Children in mother's household in 1850 Census of Russell County, KY, page 219.

c
Mentioned in their father's 1839 will.


d
Children per sourc #1554.
Birth, Parents, Lineage

Benjamin Bolling was born 1776, Spotsylvania County, Virginia.(32)(53) Descendant kits 1288 and 2013 tested into DNA 6.  Benjamin Bowling was born 1776 in North Carolina the son of Benjamin (Fh120) and Sallie T. (Hancock) Bowling. (7) Benjamin Bowling was born 1776, also, spelled his name, Bolin. (253) Benjamin Bolin was the son of Benjamin and Sarah Sallie Hancock. (913)(914)  Benjamin Bowling/Bolling was born 1776 in Spotsylvania, Virginia. (424) Is there a strong connection between Benjamin Fh120 to a son Benjamin Fh125? One interesting item I found in the deed records in Randolph County, North Carolina, was a reference to "Benjamin Boling Jr." being a chain carrier on the property of Benjamin Page, son-in-law of  Benjamin Fh120.  "Benjamin Boling Jr." Fh125 would have been a young man at this time and the date was before the move to Russell County, Kentucky. Further Benjamin Boling Jr.  Fh125 later named a son Benjamin PAGE Boling. (1554)
DNA

In the Fall of 2001, Y-chromosome DNA testing was done on several male Bowling descendants of William Boling (Fh913) and Benjamin Bolin (Fh125). They matched exactly using the 12 loci test done by Family Tree DNA of Houston, Texas. This proves that these men shared a common Bowling ancestor. (1553) 
Marriage

Benjamin Bolling married Prudence Callicoat. (53) Benjamin Bowling married Prudence Callicoat, the daughter of Harrison Callicoat. (253) Benjamin Bowling  married Prudence Callicoat.  (94) Benjamin Bolin had a wife Prudence Callicoat.  (286) Benjamin Bolin was the husband of Prudence Callicoat.  (913)(914) Prudence Callicoat was the daughter of Harrison Callicoat whose family had immigrated to Kentucky, as had the Bolins, from Randolph County, North Carolina, near the border of Virginia. (913)(914) Prudence Callicott was born, about 1780, per headstone. Her parents were William Harrison Callicott & (Mary?, Elizabeth?, Prudence?). Prudence Callicott  married, about 1797 Benjamin Bowling (Fh125,S) Prudence (Callicott) Bowling died , 20 Jan 1860 in Russell County, Kentucky. (1595) Her father Harrison Callicoat died 1824 in the home of Benjamin Bowling, Adair County, Kentucky. (1595)

Children

They had children: 

a. 
Their oldest son was Isham born in Virginia 1801 (94) Isham born about 1800 (7) Isham born 1800-1 in Virginia who 
married first 1824 Lydia Wilson and married second Julia -----. (253) Isham Bollin married 1824 Lydia Wilson in Adair 
County, Kentucky. (7) 

b. 
John C. (94) John C. born about 1819, (7) John C. 1819-1879 who married Elizabeth Ann Forrest (253) 

(He Findagrave #82727934) 

c. 
Benjamin Page (94) “Page” (7) Benjamin Page 1825-1868 (sic) who married Miranda -----, (253) Son Benjamin Page Boling 
was born 12/24/1824, died 12/13/1885 per his head-stone, which is compatible with census records for Russell County, 
Kentucky. His wife's name was Mirinda/Miranda Hattabaugh. (1554) Their (Benjamin and Prudence) two youngest sons were 
Page Bolin and Henry Jackson Bolin. (286)  

d. 
Henry Jackson (94) The youngest son and eighth child of Benjamin and Prudence (Callicoat) Bowling was General 
Henry 
Jackson Bolin who was married first to Rachel Bernard and married second to Etta Bruding. Henry had a sister Lucinda who 
late in life married her brother-in-law Benjamin Carmen. (253) Henry Jackson 1822-1915 who 
married first Rachel Bernard 
and married second Etta Breeding (253) Their (Benjamin and Prudence) two youngest sons were Henry Jackson (286) and 
Page Bolin. (286) Henry Jackson Bolin (1821-1915) was buried in Russell County, Kentucky. (1343) A picture of the Henry 
Jackson head-stone shows b.1821-d.1915 (1554) 

e. 
Sarah Mobile (94) Sarah "Sallie" who married Benjamin Carman who later married Sarah's sister (253) 

f. 
Dicie (94) Dicey who married Jim Webb (253) 

g. 
Betsey (94) Betsey who married 1823 William Belk (253) 

h. 
Lucinda. (94)  Lucinda late in life married her brother-in-law Benjamin Carmen. (253)  

i. 
Loucinda who late in life married her brother-in- law Benjamin Carman (253) Loucinda. (286) 

j. 
Mary "Polly" who married Henry Law.  (7)  Mary "Polly" Bolling, daughter of Benjamin and Prudence (Callicoat) Bolling 
married Henry Law of Russell County, Kentucky. (239)  Mary "Polly" who married Henry Law (253) 

k. 
Talitha who married a Mr.  Beard.  (253)

There were possibly other children. (7) Benjamin's four sons were on the Union side: Capt. Isham, Capt.  John C., Lt.  Benjamin Page and Henry Jackson, in the 3rd Kentucky infantry.  (286)
Movement

This was recorded in the Randolph County, North Carolina, Genealogy Journal.  It shows there was a relationship between the Boling men. Capias (29 Oct. 1796) against Cornelius Lathem and John Graves, on oath of Benjamin Bolan (Fh125,6S) that they assaulted and beat him at the house of Gabriel Hardin 27 Aug 1796. Witnesses -- Robert Bolan (Fh549,913b,6S), Larkin Bolan (Fh4612,913c,6S), William Bolan (913a,6S), Tempy Hardin, Vachel Hancock. (1553) Benjamin and his wife, with their young son Isham, together with Harrison Callicoat and his family, left Randolph County, North Carolina, for Kentucky, about 1806 (253). They came from Randolph County, North Carolina to Kentucky in the early 1800's.  They bought land in Adair County, Kentucky which later was Russell County, Kentucky. (94) Benjamin Bolen et. al. is not in the 1810 Adair County, Kentucky Census, tax list or index. (2044) Land Patent no. 16123, vacant land, 1815, 200 acres lying and being in the County of Adair on the Sand Lick Fork of Roaring Lily Creek adjoining William Whitlock (see below), recorded Frankfort, Kentucky, June 17, 1828. In 1819 William Whitlock (see above) sells Benjamin Bowlin 100 acres on the waters of East Fork of Roaring Lily Creek.  The above tract of land has remained in the Bolin family to the present day (1960) and is now owned by Dr.  Benjamin J.  Bolin.  (253) Benjamin Bolen had a Kentucky land grant 1835 in Russell County, Kentucky. (17)  Benjamin Bolen was had a land warrant in 1835 in Russell County, Kentucky.  (?) In 1859, a year before her death, Prudence had to sell all her furniture, one cow and calf, twenty hogs, and 350 acres of land on Roaring Lily Creek to pay the $150 her husband had left in debts. Benjamin Bolin died 1839, age 63. (286) Benjamin Bolin died May 27, 1839, age 63 years. (913)(914)
Death

Benjamin Bowling died 27 May 1839, in Russell County, Kentucky. Russell County from Adair in 1825. (1595) Benjamin Bowling died 1839, age 63 in Russell County, Kentucky.  Benjamin Bowling  was buried at the Bolling Cemetery there. (Find A Grave Memorial # 82728058) (7) Benjamin Bolling died 1839 in Russell County, Kentucky. (53) Benjamin Bowling died 1837. (94) Benjamin and Prudence Bolin (She Find a grave #82728247) and many descendants are buried on the plantation in the John C. Bowling cemetery. (286) Prudence J.  Bolin died January 20, 1860, age 72 years.  (913)(914)  Prudence died 1860, age 78. (286) Both are buried Bolin Family cemetery in Russell County, Kentucky. (913)(914) Located on the former "John C. Bolin plantation farm" on Bernard Ridge, the burial ground was reached by going up "half-acre road".  Although no longer habitable, the "old John C. Bolin home" still stood nearby; it was once a small log home later made into two stories with a back ell. (913)(914) Prudence Bowling died 1860. (94)  Both are buried on their land in Russell County, Kentucky. (94) The will of Benjamin is on page 30 of this source. (914) The will of Benjamin is on page 93 of this source. (1388)(1557)(805)(2025, page 189) Benjamin's (Fh125) family is the one I am trying to nail down. As you know that family has it’s roots in Jamestown, Russell County, Kentucky. I have found a confirmed living male member of that family that spells his name Bolin, same as Benjamin’s tombstone and the same as the other tombstones found on the family farm in Kentucky. I am going to try to convince this person to be tested or his brother if he is still living. I believe this would confirm or dismiss some family links. (1554)
+++++++++++++++++++++++++

Benjamin Fh132 (6S) 407b
-----------------

Benjamin F.1796-1853 (Rin=44928)/m1821 1/w Clarissa Hobbs (bc1800-dc1835)--His father was John #407

*
Male (maybe Benjamin) b1820-1825


*
Male b1825-1830 (probably Elijah b1826/1827 in 1850 Census)

*
Male b1830-1835


*
Female (maybe Malilda) b1820-1825


*
Female b1825-1830



*
2/w m1837 Matilda Logan


*a
Benjamin F. 1840-<1916/m      ------- --------

*a
Anna “Eliza” 1843-d<1916

*a
James Allen 1845-1915/m1870 Mary T. Weir (1851-1925)

*a
Zachariah J.  1847-d<1916/m       ------- -------

*a
Sarah Jane T. 1849-d<1916

*
Children per source #1284


a
Children mentioned in his 1853 will
Birth, Parents, Lineage

Benjamin F. Bolling was born 1796 to John and Lucille (Randolph) Bolling (Fh407). He married first 1821 Clarissa Hobbs who died about 1835. He married second Matilda Logan. See Family group for their children. Benjamin Bolling's will, of which I have a copy, was probated 12 April 1853. (1284) Benjamin Boling (Fh132) first m. Clarissa Hobbs 2 Oct 1821 (Randolph Co NC Marriage Bonds) and (2) married Matilda Logan in Nov. 1837; so we know Clarissa died prior to Nov 1837 and after last child born...between 1830-1835.

1840 Census in Wash. Co IN, after marrying Matilda just over 2 yrs earlier... shows

Benjamin, Jr. Boling  Monroe, Washington, IN  1840  page 174
Males:       1=5-10          1830-1835    names unknown.
                 2=10-15        1825-1830   names unknown
                 1=15-20        1820-1825   name unknown
                 1=40-50        1790-1800   Benjamin
Females:    1=15-20        1820-1925   name unknown
                 1=20-30        1810-1830   Matilda (Logan)

1850 Census Washington Co IN, Monroe Twp, 
2 Nov
197-200
Benjamine Bowling    
54   Farmer  400  
NC             b.1796
Matilda           "             
37                           KY             b.1813
Benjamin F.  "              
10                           IN               b. 1840
Anna  E.         "                
7                             "
James A         "               
5                             "
Zachary T      "                
3                             "
Sarah T.         "          
11/12                      "                 b. Dec 1849
Elijah Bowling             
23     Farmer           IN              b. 1826/1827
William Logan             
22     Farmer           IN              b.1828

 

WILL: Abstracts of Wills of Washington Co, IN 1808-1902, (Davis), will Book A, page 409, dated 10 Feb 1853, probated 12 Apr 1853.
Benjamin Boling, Sr. of Washington Twp., Washington Co, IN, Will Record A/409 dated 10 Feb 1853 & Probated 12 April 1853; wife Matilda; sons Benjamin F., James, Zachariah; Daughters Eliza & Sarah Jane Boling. Executrix: wife Matilda. Witnesses: Alexander Hinkle; David Gordan.

 

In Benj Sr's son, James Allen Boling's obit, (Salem Indiana Democrat 1916) it states James is 2nd son of Benjamin F. Boling of Virginia and Matilda Logan Boling.  It states that he was of lineal descent from Pocahontas and John Randolph.  James Allen's obit also states he has 2 bros, 2 sis, and 5 half brothers and 1 half-sister.  This means either his father was married before.  There is a Randolph Co NC marriage bond #000110626, for Benjamin Boling and Clarissa Hobbs 2 Oct 1821.  I believe the 5 half-bros & 1 half-sis would have been from the marriage to Clarissa.  Clarissa was a sister to the Sarah Hobbs who married Jesse Boling. It is possible that one of the half-bros was Elijah, b. abt 1827, who was listed with the household in 1850 Washington Co IN;  the 2 brothers were Benjamin F, Jr ( b 1840) & Zachary (b.1847) & the 2 sisters were: Anna Eliza (1843) and Sarah Jane (1849)

 

In 1860, the above children named in the will for Benj., were living with another family:

1860 Census Monroe Twp, Washington Co IN, Anna E. was 17 and listed as:
#1459 p. 378
Logan, 
Garrett W. 50 farmer  KY
              
Nancy        
41    
KY   (Garrett & Nancy Botts md 24 Oct 1837)
              
Warrick      
21    
IN  farm laborer
              
Sarah        
17     
IN
              
Frank        
14     
IN
             
John A.        
6     
IN
Boling, 
Anna E.  

17     
IN
             
James     

15     
IN
             
Zachry        
13     
IN
             
Sarah J.     
11     
IN
(Note: on 1850 census, Garrett was "Garriott H." age 39; Nancy was 22.
Warrick was Charles W., Frank was Francis A.  Another child was Virginia A, 9.

RE:  James Allen Boling, s/o Benj. Sr & Matilda Logan (who's obit is above)

He married Mary T. Weir 27 Oct 1870 in Wash. Co, IN.

 
Obit in Salem Democrat 1916, states: He (father, James A. Boling (132h) was united in marriage to Mary T. Weir, Oct 27, 1870.  (1785)

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

Benjamin Fh135 (6M18) 647a
-----------------

Benjamin 1766-1838 (Rin=32824) /m<1789 Elizabeth Lester (c1765-<1860)—His father was Spencer #647 
Head of String M18
A descendant kit 1286 (Clyde Bowlin) tested into DNA 6. It is a 25/25 and 36/37 match with Kit 2282 (Todd Bolen)

*a
James 1789-d>1838 (Rin-51107)/perhaps m1814 Nancy Maupin

*a
Enoch 1791-1851(Rin=51108)/m1811 1/w Sarah Morris 


*a
Daniel 1801-1888 (1ZFX-3XJ)/mc1821 1/w Elizabeth "Lucy" Shumate,2/w 1835 Lucinda March




A descendant kit 1286 tested into DNA 6

*a
Delphia 1802-1876/m1821 Nathan Rogers—She FAG=14818520. Their daughter Martha Rogers (1843-1908) married 1862 a John Bolen 6K (1840-1919). This John FAG=18828275 A descendant kit 91987 tested into DNA 6


*a
Margaret bc1805/(?)m William Riley (bc1809-d>1880) 


Elijah bc1805/m1826 Lucy Tracy bc1807

*a
Haden bc1806-d>1850/1/w 1826 Cynthia Tracy, 2/w 1837 Sophia Tracy


*a
Nelson/m1829 Polly McWilliams, m Bourbon or Clark, Ky


*a
Benjamin c1815-1881/1/w m1835 Anesteria Howard 2/w m1842 Susan Smith (d>1880) 


*a
Elizabeth “Betsey or Patsy” d<1838/m1829 John Carver


*
Father died Nov 5, 1838 in Madison Co., Ky, and his 27 Aug 1838 Will references these names.


a
Children per Source #358 (Informant Marjorie W. Moore)
Birth, Parents, Lineage

Benjamin Bowling (Rin=32824) was born in Virginia about 1760. (865) Benjamin Bowling was probably born 1765 or after per 1810 Censes see below. (7) Benjamin Bowling was born in Virginia in 1765. (1155) Family tradition was that the family had Indian blood. (358) I have long thought that Benjamin Bowling probably came from the Northern Neck. The Bridwells XE "Bridwell" , an allied family, moved to Madison County, Kentucky, at about the same time. I have studied the Benjamin (Fh100,6A), born 1732, Stafford County, Virginia, and his son, Jarett Bowling  (Fh230, 100a, 6A) (b. 1762), who went to Tazewell County, and have read the St. Mark's Parish Records but can't find this Benjamin. He would be of the same generation as Jarret. I also have Sparacio's court records and many other bits of miscellaneous information but have found no record of our Benjamin as far as I can tell. (358)

Lines of Descent from: 


Simon Fh629 BOWLING-

45539 b.1620


William Fh742 BOWLING-

65495 b.1652


George Fh240 BOWLING-

62389 b.1670


John Fh392 6M17 6S BOWLING-
51086 b.1700


David Fh160 6M18 BOWLING-
61269 b.1721


Spencer Fh647 6M18 BOWLING-
58594 b.1744


Benjamin Fh135 6M18 BOWLIN-
32824 b.1765

Marriage and Children

Benjamin Bowling (Fh135) married Elizabeth -----.  Wife Elizabeth ----- was born about 1765 in Virginia or Georgia. Benjamin Bowling and his wife Elizabeth were both born in Virginia as were all of their children. (865) Elizabeth’s birth surname was Lester. (LDS FS/FT LZJ3-QJF (in 2016)(2177) Something else on the Lester family—A John Bolin was a bondsman on 13 Jun 1825 for James M. Lester, guardian of Carter Lester and William Lester in Gallatin, Kentucky, United States. (2169) 
Benjamin and Elizabeth had children: 

a.
James. (358) This is not the James who married Nancy Maupin XE "Maupin:Nancy"  on May 24, 1814 in Madison County, Kentucky. That was James 440a. (358)

b.
Daniel Bowling 135b, 6M18 (1801-1888). XE "March:Lucinda"  (358) (AFN:1ZFX-3XJ) Daniel's first wife was Lucy Shumate XE "Shumate:Lucy" . (358) Daniel (1801-1888) married May 16, 1835 Lucinda March XE "March:Lucinda" . (358) Daniel died 1888 in Sandyville, Warren County, Iowa.? (865) Daniel doesn't seem to appear on any 1879 tax list of Warren County, Iowa. (?, should it be Warren County, KY?) Dorinda "Bowlin" (the widow of my g-g-g grandfather Jesse Boling (407e,6S)) was married 1871 to Alfred Townsend in the home of Benjamin Bowlin, son of Daniel (135b,6M18), in Andrew County, Missouri suggesting a family connection. (1785, Informant Linda McNiel) 
c.
Enoch (358) Enoch might have married Martha Hays XE "Hays:Martha"  December 8, 1825 in Caldwell County, Kentucky, and been in the 1840 Census. (1155) I cannot adequately trace Enoch, but relatives have said he was in Bates County, Missouri in later years. (358)

d.
Delphia married 1821 Nathan Rogers XE "Rogers:Nathan" . (358) Son Haden and daughter Delphia both moved to Indiana. (865) 
Daughter Delphia Bolen was born 22 Feb 1802 in Scotland (sic, nothing supports this). Delphia Bolen was 
supposed to come over to this country when she was 16 years old and she had a brother or sister come over with her. She married 21 June 1821 Nathan Rogers in Kentucky. The 1830 Census of Madison County, Kentucky has a Nathan Rogers and a Bivian or Biven Boling living nearby. They moved to Franklin County, Indiana in 1833, to Hopewell 3 miles N/W of Franklin. Delphia Bolen died 6 Feb 1876 near Enterprize and Mt. Erie, both in Wayne County, Illinois. She was buried in the Brown Cemetery, Wayne County, Illinois. (Find a grave #14818520)(1375) 

1840 Indiana Census Index for Johnson County, Indiana, Rogers, Nathan #283 (http://www.rootsweb.com/~injohnso/census/1840.txt) Delphia and Nathan Rogers were in Ninevah Township, Johnson County, Indiana, in 1850. By 1860, Delphia was there but not Nathan. Several of her children, maybe all of them, moved to Wayne County, Illinois, where she died. (358) Delphia Bolen and her husband Nathan Rogers had a daughter Martha A. Rogers who married a John Bolen (1843-1908) who’s parents are unknown (his father might have been Haden (135f) but probably not because he did not have a son John age 7 in the 1850 Census, see below). Martha and John could have been 1st  Cousins. Their possible parents were on the same page in the 1840 
Census of Johnson County, Indiana as follows: 


1840 Census of Johnson County, Indiana:




Rogers, Nathan

283




Bowling, Haden

283 (7)  
e.
Margaret born about 1805 in Virginia married William Riley XE "Riley:William" . (358) Margaret did not marry William Riley or anyone, but she had two children, Elzy or Eely and Nancy. (358)

f.
Haden. (358) Son Haden and daughter Delphia both moved to Indiana. (865) Son Haden might have been in Johnson County, Indiana, in the 1840 Census and Tipton County, Indiana in the 1850 Census. (1155) Haden was a male and married first October 13, 1826 Cynthia Tracy XE "Tracy:Cynthia"  and second Sophia Tracy XE "Tracy:Sophia"  in Madison County, Kentucky. He and Sophia were in the 1850 and 1860 Census records of Tipton County, Indiana. (358) In the 1850 Census they did not  have a son John age 7 (7). 
g.
Nelson. (358) Son Nelson's whereabouts after Madison County, Kentucky is unknown to me. (865) According to my records, Nelson Bowlin married October 22, 1829, Clark County, Kentucky, Polly McWilliams XE "McWilliams:Polly" . After that I know nothing. (358) A Nelson Bolen died August 5, 1899 in Harrison County, Illinois, Probate Court, File Box 240, but this Nelson would be over 100 years old. 

h.
Benjamin (c1815-1881) married 1842 Susan. (358) Benjamin's (Fh135) wife Elizabeth was living with her son Benjamin Jr. in the 1850 census and was 85 years old. Benjamin Jr. died in 1881. (865) Benjamin Jr. was in the 1880 Census of Foxtown, Madison County, Kentucky, age 66 (i.e. bc1814) born in Virginia. Mother and Father were also born in Virginia. Wife Susan age 56 and nephew Andrew Smith XE "Smith:Andrew"  age 16 and niece Susan Jeffries XE "Jeffries:Susan"  age 15 in the household. Near neighbors in the Census was William Riley, age 71, and in his household was a non-related Nammie Bowling age 14. Benjamin (c1815-1881) married first 1835 Anesteria Howard XE "Howard:Anesteria"  and married second 1842 Susan Smith XE "Smith:Susan" . (358) 

Benjamin Bowling was in the 1880 Census of Madison County, Kentucky.



Household Record,  1880 United States Census 

 

Benjamin BOWLING
Self
M   Male

66  VA   Farmer

VA ,  VA 

 

Susan BOWLING

Wife
M   Female
56  KY   Keeping House
VA ,  VA 

 

Andrew SMITH

Nephew
S   Male

16  KY   Laborer

KY ,  KY 

 

Susan JEFFRIES

Niece
S   Female
15  KY


KY ,  KY 



Census Place, Foxtown, Madison, Kentucky

i.
Betsy married November 2, 1829 John Carver in Madison County, Kentucky XE "Carver:John" . (358)Their children appeared to be 
married in Madison County, Kentucky. (358)   

Movement

1781

Those that Signed a 1781 petition to move the Stafford County, Virginia, courthouse.


Spencer Bowling 
(Fh647,160c,6C)  


Thomas 

(Fh667,6M17) 


Charles 

(Fh1563, 397b, 6N2) 


William Bowling
(6N2)

Garrard Boling 
(UK) 


(1758) 

1785 Stafford County, VA, Tax list
Benjamin Bowling 
(4 people) (?) 

m. 1761 Elizabeth Garrison 
Benjamin Bowling 
(4 people)(Fh090, 450x) 
m. 1725 Mary Latham  (she Rin=18571)
James Bowling 

(10 people) 

m. 1750 Mary Overall 

Samuel Bowling 

(5 people) 

m. 1731 Elizabeth Oxford 

Thomas Bowling 

(4 people) m. 

1729 Rachel Colclough 

1810

Benjamin Bowling (Fh135,6M18) was listed in the 1810 Census of Falmouth, Stafford County, Virginia with:


1 male 26-45 himself b1765-1784 (early in that period based on children births)


2 males 10-16 (maybe James, Enoch)


3 males under 10 (maybe Daniel, Elijah, Haden)—6 males, 5 young males total


1 female 26-45 (wife b1765-1784)


1 female 10-15 (b1795-1800)


1 female under 10 (b1800-1810) (Delphia or Margaret) (349)

Also nearby in the 1810 Census of Falmouth, Stafford County, Virginia  were:

Benjamin Bowling (Fh135,6M18)—Head of Family String M18
William 

(Fh770,397a 6N2) 


Spencer 

(Fh647,001a), Spencer b1744--This could be Fh647

John 

(Fh397 b1765-1784, 090c, 6A) John 1734-d<1802--See Family Group #397

Charles Bowling 
(Fh1563, 397b, 6N2). (7)  6N2 1563. Charles 1764-1849/m1791 Sarah McKenney (1774-1850)--His 
father was John #397--Some have his father as John Fh367, but that is not so. 

William Bowling was in the 1810 Census of Stafford County, Virginia with:

1 male over 45, i.e. b<1765—This William was born 1758.

3 males 16-26, i.e. b1784-1794 

2 males 10-16, i.e. b1794-1800

1 female over 45, i.e. b<1765 

1 female 10-16, i.e. b1784-1800.  

A Charles Boulling (Fh1563,6N2,397b) was on the same page of that Census.  Several pages away were Spencer (Fh647,001a), Benjamin (UK, maybe Fh135, 6M18) and John Bowling (UK). (7)  William Bowling (and a second William Bowling) was in the 1820 Census of Stafford County, Virginia. (348)

The family migrated to Madison County, Kentucky, sometime after 1815 as son Benjamin was born in Virginia. (358) Land records show that Benjamin Bowling first brought land in Madison County, Kentucky in 1817, two years after the birth of his youngest son Benjamin. (865) Our Benjamin Bowling (Fh135) and his wife Elizabeth (born about 1765, Virginia) and family moved to Madison County, Kentucky in 1815/1816 from somewhere in Virginia. (358)

Death

The will of Benjamin Bowling was written 1838 and probated 1838 in Madison County, Kentucky. (358) Benjamin Bowling had a will 1838, Book G, page 80, Madison County, Kentucky. (670)(1155) Besides his children he mentions his grandson Wickliffe Carver XE "Carver:Wickliffe"  and granddaughter Avlener Bowling, in his will. (1155) Benjamin Bowling died in Madison County, Kentucky about 1838. (865)

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

Benjamin Fh140 (6A) 432c

-----------------

Benjamin 1765-1838 (Rin=51012, 9M8K-CRQ )/m1789 Mrs. Elizabeth (O'Neal) Burgess (b1769-    )--His father was John #432 (Rin=44674)


James 1790-1853 (Rin=46326)/m1817 Margaret Jones b1793--See Family Group #283



Judith bc1792/Thomas Thompson



Rebecca A. bc1794/m1815 Jacob White



Sarah "Sally" bc1798 KY-1840/m1818 Andrew Roberts



Lucinda b1799/m1818 Joseph Lorton



Sabina 1802/m1822 Charles Cole



Mary 1803-1855/m1822 William Cole d1844
From the Place Index

Bond,IL-created 1817 from Madison

6A
Benjamin (Fh140,432x)(Rin=51012) r1818

6A

James (Fh283,140a) r1817-1819—later to Sangamon, IL

6A


Elizabeth W. (283a) b1818

6A

Lucinda (140d) m1818 (Joseph Lorton)

6A

Mary "Polly" (140g) m1822 (William Cole)

6A

Sabina (140f) m1822 (Charles Cole)

6A

Sally (140e) m1818 (Andrew Roberts)

Birth, Parents, Lineage

Benjamin Bowling (Fh140) was the son of John Bowling (Fh432), son of Benjamin (Fh090), son of  Joseph, son of George, son of William, etc. (1445) Benjamin Fh090,6A had a son John. Some think it was Fh432, John b1734-d>1810/Jane Asbury or Asberry. There is little evidence that Fh432 was the son John. Two Descendants of his possible son Joshua Fh459 tested into DNA Group 3.
Marriage and Children

Mr. Bolling married Elizabeth O'Neill about 1791 in Alexandria, Virginia. (979) Benjamin Bowling had as his wife Mrs. Elizabeth (O'Neal) Burgess of Dublin, Ireland. (49) Elizabeth O 'Neal was married prior to William Burgess (558) 
They had children: 

a. 
James born 1790 in Fauquier County, Virginia. (49) Son James Bowling, at age 9, moved to Tennessee and in 1808 
moved to 
Logan County, Kentucky. (184) James Bowling (Fh283) was the only son of Benjamin and Elizabeth (O'Neal) Bowling. 
(558) My original information about Benjamin (Fh140), James (Fh283) and all of Benjamin’s daughters came from a copy of 
pertinent pages written by a descendant of James, offhand I think a granddaughter. (1445)        

b. 
Judith (Mrs. Thomas Thompson) . (49)     

c. 
Rebecca (Mrs. Jacob White) . (49)     

d. 
Lucinda (Mrs. Joseph Larton). (49) Lucinda married Joseph Lorton, not Larton, 1818 in Bond County, Illinois. (23)     

e. 
Sally (Mrs. Andrew Roberts). (49) Sally married Andrew Roberts 1818 in Bond County, Illinois. (23) My family sources 
gave Sally Bowling's (140e) name as Sally Bolan, of Kentucky. Sally and Andrew Roberts were living in the Quincy area of 
Adams County, Illinois at time of their death. Exact dates unknown.  Andrew Roberts died intestate. Among the estate papers 
were bills (apparently outstanding) for 2 caskets, for his wife and a son, dated 1840. His heirs, as indicated in deed records, 
were Levi, Lucinda, Louisa, and Susan Lee.  Susan died and her share of the estate went to her brother and sisters. A bill for 
Andrew's coffin was dated 29 Jul 1844.  His estate was closed 10 Nov 1847.  Balance $188.48 1/2.  The sale of his goods 
brought $408.97 1/2. (1445)    

f. 
Sabina (Mrs. Charles Cole). (49) Sabina born 1802 in Mercer County, Kentucky. (7)    

g. 
Mary (Mrs. William Cole). (49) Mary born 1803 in Mercer County, Kentucky. (7)  Mary Bolin married William Cole both 
natives of Kentucky. In 1844 they lived in Keokuk County, Iowa. In 1845 widow Mary comes to Greene County, Illinois and 
later moves to Jersey County, Illinois where she dies in 1855.  (883)  
Movement

Benjamin Bowling was on the personal tax list of Fauquier County, Virginia, in 1787 but the tax was charged to John Bowling. (551)  Benjamin Bowling in 1790 resided in Fauquier County, Virginia. (31) Benjamin Bowling in 1790 resided in Fauquier County, Virginia, went to Anderson County, Tennessee, by 1802. (23) Benjamin Bowling is on the 1790 and 1791 Fauquier County, Virginia tax list. (23)  Benjamin Bowling is on the 1790 Fauquier County, Virginia tax list very close to Edmond (Fh185,432a,6A), Joshua (Fh459,432b,A) and John (Fh432,A) Bowling. (23)  Ben Boling (Fh140,432c) was on the Fauquier County, Virginia, 1799 Personal Property Tax List B, page13. (1414)(1654) A Deed of Gift from Andrew Kauffman to Mary Kauffman was duly proven by the oath of Benjamin Bolin, before the Court of Common Pleas, 1799 in Greene County, Tennessee. (2100) Benjamin Bolin (Fh140), Edmund Bolin (Fh185) and Josus Bolin (Fh459) are on the 1798 tax list of Greene County, Tennessee, all on Lick Creek. (1301) Edmond (Fh185), Joshua (Fh459,432b) and Benjamin Bowling are all in Greene County, Tennessee, in the early 1800's. Benjamin goes to Kentucky. (23) In 1808 moved to Logan County, Kentucky. (184) Benjamin is the one I believe is in Brechinridge County, Kentucky in 1810 (part which becomes Union County shortly after 1810.  Benjamin Bowling is in Bond County, Illinois by 1818. (23) 

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

Benjamin Fh145 (6A) 320g
-----------------

Benjamin J. 1792-1870 (Rin=44647)/m1810 Nancy Lockhart (b1792) or m1813 Nancy McFarland bc1792--His father was Jarrett #320 


ab
Louisa or Elizabeth 1810->1870/m1841 1/h Shadrack Combs, 2/h m1855 George Chappell




and/or


    c
Lavisa 1810/m     George Chappell


    c
Elizabeth b1829/m     Shadrack Combs (1824-1861)

abc
Benjamin J. b1813


abc
Henry H. 1813->1880-dc1905/m1835 Elender/Ellen/Eleanor G. Blankenship (bc1808-d>1880)--A 





Descendant kit 96825 tested into DNA 6   

abc
Ellen "Eleanor" b1818-d>1880/mc1836 John Henry Lockhart


  b
Bailey or Baley bc1826-1850-60/m1846 Elizabeth Day


  b
Susannah/m1849 Gi Gullett


abcd
William Arthur 1832 VA/KY->1880-dc1910/m1856 Elizabeth S. Morgan bc1837 

abc
Sally b1833 VA/m1855 Daniel Goring/Goin

a
Children per Source #911


b
Children per Source #196


c
Children per GEDCOM sent in by Kit 95951 DNA 6

d
Child in 1850 Census of Morgan County, Kentucky, page 113, household of Benjamin.


Birth, Parents, Lineage

Benjamin Bowling was born 1794 in Tazewell County, Virginia, the son of Jarrett Bowling and Elearnor "Ellen" Garrison (Fh320). (7) Benjamin Bowling was the son of Jarret and Winifred (Garrison) Bowling. (223) Benjamin Bowling was born 1792/3 in Southwest Virginia the son of Jarrett and Eleanor (Garrison) Bowling. (196)

Marriage and Children

Benjamin Bolling married 1813 Nancy McFarlan in Washington County, Virginia. (7)(379) Benjamin Boling married 1813 Nancy McFarland in Washington County, Virginia. (935) Benjamin Bowling married Nancy Lockhart about 1810-1814. (7)  Benjamin Bowling married ----- Lockhart. (223)  Benjamin Bowling married about 1810 Nancy Lockhart. (196)  
They had children: 

a. 
Ellen. (196) 

b. 
Henry H. (196) Son Henry Bowling married Eleanor Blankenship. (404) Henry Bowling is in the 1880 Census of Morgan 
County, Kentucky:

Household Record,  1880 United States Census 

 
  Henry BOWLING
Self
M
Male
74   VA   Farmer

VA ,  VA 

 
  Ellen BOWLING

Wife
M
Female
72   VA   Keeping House
VA ,  VA 

 
  Charles BOWLING
Son
S
Male
23   KY   Farmer

VA ,  VA 

 
  Perry D. BOWLING
Son
M
Male
17   KY   Farmer

VA ,  VA 

 
  Martha BOWLING
DauL
M
Female
14   KY   At Home

KY ,  KY 


Census Place, E.D. 88, Elk Fork, Morgan, Kentucky

c. 
Louisa/Elizabeth. (196) Daughter Elizabeth born about 1825 married first 1841 Shadrack Combs in Tazewell County, 
Virginia. In 1850 they were in Morgan County, Kentucky.  In 1870 she apparently is back in Tazewell County, Virginia.  She 
had George Chappell as spouse at one time.  (1023)

d. 
Sally. (196) 

e. 
Benjamin J. Jr. (196) 

f. 
Bailey. (196) 

g. 
Susannah. (196)

h. 
William. (196) Benjamin and Nancy Bowling's son William was 17 years old in the 1850 census of Morgan County, 
Kentucky. (1672) People have written that William A. Bolling was the son of Benjamin and Nancy Lockhart Bolling of 
Tazewell County, Virginia and Morgan County, Kentucky. Through my research I found Benjamin and Nancy's son William 
Bolling's middle was Garrison, he was born 1833 in Tazewell County, Virginia. This William, in my opinion did marry 
Elizabeth Morgan in Morgan County, Kentucky. In the 1880 Morgan County, Kentucky census you can find this William and 
Elizabeth there. (1672) The LDS has the 1880 census on-line. 1880 Morgan Census, Kentucky, William is listed as William A. 
Bowling. Note the middle initial. (7)


Military Service

Benjamin Boling served in Thomas H. Clark's Company of the Virginia Militia in the War of 1812.  His pension number was WC-3768.  (935) Benjamin Boling was in the War of 1812 Virginia Bounty Land and Pension file. (934)(935)
Husband



Husband
State of Wife
Wife’s Name
Marriage

Boling, Benjamin, c1794-1870
VA
Tazewell, VA
McFarland, Nancy
24 Feb 1813 Washington, VA (2158)

Movement

Tazewell County, Virginia 1815-1820

Benjamin Bowlin was on the 1815 tax list of Tazewell County, Virginia, with 1 male over 16 and 3 cattle, and 1 mill.  Also on the same tax list were Jarred Bowlen and William Bowlen. (1123) Benjamin Bowlan was in the 1820 Census, page 241a, of Tazewell County, Virginia. Also in the Census were Garret (Fh320), William (Fh890) and Bailey (Fh080) Bolan all on page 242a. (348) 
Morgan County, Kentucky 1850 1860
Benjamin and Nancy Bowling are in the 1850 census of Morgan County, Kentucky. (1672) Benjamin Boling is on the 1860 Census of Morgan County, Kentucky, as age 68, born Virginia.  His wife is Nancy age 72. (1155) They lived for a time in Morgan County, Kentucky. (935) 
From Place Index
Morgan,KY-created 1823 from Floyd, Bath


6A
Benjamin (Fh145,320e) r>1812,r1850(Census,age 56 VA),r1860--returned to Tazewell, VA and died


6A

Elizabeth (145c) r1850


6A

Henry H. (145c,bc1806) r1850, r1880 (Census, with wife Ellen bc1808),d1905


6A

Sarah (probably 145e) r1850


6A

Baley (145f) m1846 (Elizabeth Day), r1850


6A

Susannah (145g) m1849 (Eli Eulett or Gullett)


6A

William (145h)b1833, r1880
Tazewell County, Virginia 1870
Benjamin and Nancy are in the 1870 census of Tazewell County, Virginia. (1672)

Death

Benjamin Bowling died 1870 in Tazewell County, Virginia. (196) Benjamin Boling died 1870 in Tazewell County, Virginia. (934)(935) Benjamin's widow Nancy was alive 1871 in Tazewell County, Virginia. (935)

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

Benjamin Fh149 (6B) 418b
-----------------

Benjamin R. bc1775 (Rin=54102)/m1798 Patience W. Daniel (bc1778)—His father was John #418


Param Asa (Rin=29681) (1800-1862)



Lafayette (Rin=54098) b1803/m       Susan Pierce Hopkins (1809-1881)

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

Charles Fh1563 (6N2) 397b
-----------------

Charles 1764-1849(Rin=50310)/m1791 Sarah McKenney (1774-1850)--His father was John #397 (Rin=18572) Some have his father as John Fh367, but that is not so. 


A descendant kit 4891 tested into DNA 6


Head of String N2


James S. b1792(Rin=26814)/m      Elizabeth Batley (d1854) —See Family Group #282
Abijah c1794-1858/mc1819 Frances Fanny Guy (bc1790-1879)—See Family Group #008



Elizabeth Harison 1794-1860/m 1820 William E. English (bc1799-1876)


Ann Weeks 1797-1831/ ----- Taylor



Alexander Weden 1801-1881/m1826 Elizabeth Canavan (1804-d>1880)



A descendant kit 35587 tested into DNA 6


William Staunton 1805-1855/m1834 Sarah Dulin (1809-1865)




A descendant kit 4891 tested into DNA 6



John 1806-1860/m1827 Martha Matilda Harrison (1804-1890)




A descendant kit 21137 tested into DNA 6 


Mary Emeline “Emily” 1807-1875/m1833 Emanual Phifer—Their son in 1880 Census had 





ancestor of kit 21137 tested into DNA 6, in his household.     


Susan Angelina b1810/m1836 Elijah Fennell (?)



Jane Frances b1813/m1836 William H. Douglas


a
1820 Census of Stafford County, VA. Charles Bowling with males 220101 and females 11201

Charles Bowling 
(Fh1563, 397b, 6N2) was on Muster Roll #750, War of 1812, along with 

Abija Bowling 
(Fh008, 1563a, 6N2, Virginia Militia). 

James Bowling 
(Fh282,1563b, 6N2) , 

George Bowling (851a) 


(1459) 

Charles Bowling 
(Fh1563, 397b, 6N2). (7)  

Charles 1764-1849/m1791 Sarah McKenney (1774-1850)--His father was John #397

William Bowling was in the 1810 Census of Stafford County, Virginia with:

1 male over 45, i.e. b<1765—This William was born 1758.

3 males 16-26, i.e. b1784-1794 

2 males 10-16, i.e. b1794-1800

1 female over 45, i.e. b<1765 

1 female 10-16, i.e. b1784-1800.  

A Charles Boulling (Fh1563,6N2,397b) was on the same page of that Census.  Several pages away were Spencer (Fh647,001a), Benjamin (UK, maybe Fh135, 6M18) and John Bowling (UK). (7)  William Bowling (and a second William Bowling) was in the 1820 Census of Stafford County, Virginia. (348)

The family migrated to Madison County, Kentucky, sometime after 1815 as son Benjamin was born in Virginia. (358) Land records show that Benjamin Bowling first brought land in Madison County, Kentucky in 1817, two years after the birth of his youngest son Benjamin. (865) Our Benjamin Bowling (Fh135) and his wife Elizabeth (born about 1765, Virginia) and family moved to Madison County, Kentucky in 1815/1816 from somewhere in Virginia. (358)

Birth, Parents, Lineage

Charles Bowling was born April 13, 1763 in Westmoreland County (part that is now King George County), Virginia. (91)(658)(912) A descendant kit 4891 tested into DNA 6. The DAR has Charles born April 13, 1763. (1414) Charles Bolling was born 1763. (198) Charles Bolen was born 1765. (8)(701) It remains to be seen who Charles 1763-1849 (Fh1563,397b) and his brother William (1758-??) (397a) are the sons of. They say in their pension applications that they were born in Westmoreland County, Virginia, then moved to Stafford County, Virginia. Both lived with their father [in Stafford Co.] during the Revolution. Charles was in Orange County, Virginia, for about 3 years around 1791 when he married Sarah McKenney there, but they moved back to Stafford County. William stayed in Stafford County. Both were in Stafford County when they moved to Fairfield County, Ohio sometime before 1833. Perhaps a study of the records we have of Stafford County will answer the question of their lineage. It may involve the Thornberrys, since one of them served in the Revolution as a substitute for Samuel Thornberry. (1442) Charles Bowling had an older brother William born 1758. They lived with their father during the Revolutionary War. (91)(658) 
Events of William (Fh770, 397a) and his brother Charles (Fh1563, 397c) in Stafford County, Virginia follows: 

From the Place Index

Stafford, Virginia


6N2
Charles (Fh1563,397c) r1781*,t1787,r1801,r1802,r1810(Census),r1818,r1820(Census)




* signed a 1781 petition to move the Stafford County, Virginia, courthouse (Rin=50310)


6N2

James (Fh282,1563a) b1792, r1814,r1820(Census)--removed to Fairfield Co. Ohio (Rin=26814)


6N2


Franklin (282a) b1814--removed to Fairfield Co. Ohio


6N2

Alexander W. (1563d) b1802—Kit 35587 into DNA Group 6



6N2
William (Fh770,397a) r1781*, r1810(Census),r1820(Census)

 


*signed a 1781 petition to move the Stafford County, Virginia, courthouse (Rin=50363)

We don't have any concrete proof that Charles (Fh1563, 397b) was a son of "my John (Fh367) and Ursula of Orange." Researchers prior to me have thought so, because he was in Orange County, Virginia and nobody knew who else he could have been a son of. It looked like from what was seen by researchers of Orange County, Virginia that Charles (Fh1563,397b) was the son of John and Ursula (Fh367), but now it looks like he is not, and he and his brother William are of a different line and went to Fairfield County, Ohio, while William (Fh774,367a) son of John and Ursula married Phoebe Hawkins and went somewhere else, maybe first to Louisa Co. and then I don't know where. (1442) A descendant, Lelia Foster, stated that "some woman, said that Charles Bowling's father had been married three times and fathered 17 children." (2124)  

Marriage and Children

There was a marriage bond of Charles Bowling to marry Sarah McKenney in 1791. Bondsman was William Thomas. (818) Charles Bowling married 1791 Sarah McKenney in Orange County, Virginia. (563)(269)(1213) Bondsman was William Thomas and the minister was Nathaniel Sanders. (563)(269) Charles married Sarah McKenney, Orange County, Virginia. Charles Bowling married Sarah McKenney, daughter of William, on 10 Oct 1791 [from Fisher's "Marriage Records of City of Frericksburg?, Orange, Spotsylvania & Stafford Counties, Virginia"] (1414) On Oct 10, 1791 in Orange County, Virginia he was issued a license to marry Sarah McKinney. This ceremony was performed Oct 13, 1791. She was the daughter of William McKinney. They were from St. Thomas Parish, Orange County, Virginia (See Marriage Register Book 1, page 28). (279) Charles Bowling married Sarah McKenney on 10 Oct 1791 in Orange County, Virginia.  I have received the DAR records for Charles Bowling and the records show all of his children. 
Two of his sons served in the War of 1812 Military Service

Abijah Bowling (Fh008,1563a,6N2) served in the War of 1812, 45th Virginia Militia, Edrington's Company, name "Bowlen". (1061) Abijah Bowling (Fh008,1563a,6N2) served in the War of 1812, 6th Reg't. Virginia Militia, others in that Reg't were 


Nelson Bolen (perhaps Fh4665) 


Pleasant, 


William, 


Isaac, 


James Boling(Fh282,1563b,6N2),


George Bowling (851a). (966) 

Abija Bowling (Fh008, 1563a, 6N2) was on Muster Roll #750, War of 1812, (1459) along with 


James Bowling (Fh282,1563b,6N2) (1459), 


Charles Bowling (1459) 


George Bowling (851a). (1459) 

War of 1812, Stafford County, Virginia, Muster Roll of Capt. John C. Edrington.


George Bowling 
(851a)


Abijah Bowling 
(Fh008,1563a,6N2)-- His father was Charles #1563 (Rin=50310)


James Bowling 
(Fh282,1563b,6N2)-- His father was Charles #1563 (Rin=50310)


(1943)

Their children were: 

a.
James born 1792. (Fh282,1563b,6N2) (912)  

b.
Elizabeth Harrison born 1794. (912) My 4th Great Grandmother was Elizabeth Bowling (b. 20 Sep 1794 Stafford –
d. 1860 
Stafford) who married 1820, in Stafford,VA to William E. English  (b. abt 1799 Stafford, VA – d.15 March 1876 Stafford 
Co.VA) (2157)(Informant 2013 Noreen Koehler, Noreen-koehler@mchsi.com)
c.
Ann Weeks born 1797 who married -----Taylor. (912) 

d.
Alexander Weber born 1802 (sic). (912) A descendant kit 35587 tested into DNA 6. Alexander W. Bowling was 
born 30 
August 1801 Stafford County, Virginia. In 1830 I may have him in New Baltimore, Fauqueir County, 
Virginia. (1912) It 
appears that Alexander Bolen had a contemporary named "Lewis Bolen" in Front Royal. The 
history notes that, "Alex Bolen (1563d) and Lewis Bolen (Fh4621,3971b) were among the buyers at the Nov. 17, 
1831 sale of Thomas Jacob's effects…." (2164) In 1850 Front Royal, Warren County, Virginia where he was listed 
as a machinist. In 1860 it looks like he may have been in Gebo Township Henry County, Missouri but was listed as 
a farmer.  In 1870 I found him in Riverheads, Augusta County, Virginia and listed again as a machinist. In 1880 
Alexander W. Bowling is living with Andrew Bowling his son and my Great grandfather in Middle River,  Augusta 
County, Virginia. Alexander W. Bowling died 17 October 1881 Augusta County, Virginia. Buried there at the 
Thornrose Cemetery. (1912) (Rin=26817, FT=L3FW-VZT, FAG=38348440)

Alexander W. Bowling is in the 1880 Census of Augusta County, Virginia, with wife Elizabeth.:

Household:
 Name , Relation, Marital Status, Gender, Age, Birthplace, Occupation, Father's Birthplace, Mother's Birthplace

Andrew BOWLING
Self  
M   
Male   
34  
VA
Miller 

VA
VA 

L. F. BOWLING

Wife   
M   
Female 
32   
WV
Keeps House
WV
WV 

Thomas C. BOWLING
Son   
S   
Male 
4   
VA 


VA
WV 

Jessie M. BOWLING
Dau   
S   
Female 
3   
VA 


VA
WV 

Joseph E. BOWLING
Son   
S   
Male 
1   
VA 


VA
WV 

 BOWLING

Son   
S   
Male
1M   
VA 


VA
WV 

Gertrude E. BOWLING
Sister   
S   
Female 
36 
VA  Without Occupation
VA
VA 

Alex W. BOWLING
Father 
M   
Male 
78 
VA  Retired Machinist
VA
VA 

Elizabeth BOWLING
Mother 
M   
Female 
76 
VA  Without Occupation
VA
VA 

Source Information: Census Place, Middle River, Augusta, Virginia

I did find a letter written to my cousin, Ed Bolen (descended from Fielden) from another cousin, Catherine, who said, "Did you know that Lewis Bolen (Fh4621,3971b) had a brother named Alexander W. Bowling (1563d, 6A)?  Alexander Bowling lived in Front Royal around the same time Lewis Bolen had his acreage in Harmony Hollow". She had a paper written by the anonymous author of a 5-page family history which is based on various records, and it appears that Lewis Bolen had a contemporary named "Alex Bolen" in Front Royal. The history notes that, "Alex Bolen (1563d) and Lewis Bolen (Fh4621,3971b) were among the buyers at the Nov. 17, 1831 sale of Thomas Jacob's effects…." (2164) 

e.
William Stanton born 1805 who married Sarah Dulin. (912) A descendant's kit 4891 tested in to 
DNA 6.

f.
Mary Emily born 1807. (912) 

g.
Susan Angelina born 1810. (912) 

h.
Jane Frances born 1813. (912)

Military Record

Charles Bolling was a private from Virginia in the Revolutionary War. Charles Bolling received a pension. (198) Charles Bowling along with his brother William Bowling were Revolutionary War Veterans and both drew pensions in Ohio for service in Virginia. (912) William says his brother Charles lived with their father during Rev War. (1414) Charles Bowling (Fh1563,397b,6N2) Pension #S16041, entered War 1781 as substitute for Samuel Thornberry who had been drafted in Fauquier County, Virginia, served, discharged. May "of same year" drafted in Stafford County, Virginia, served, discharged; drafted in Stafford County, Virginia, discharged; into service again at Bowling Green, dismissed. Lived Bedford? Co until came to Ohio about 3 years ago. In chasing down Samuel Thornberry, I found that his connection to the Bowlings is as follows:Elizabeth Bolling (UK) born about 1729 of Stafford & Fauquier Virginia married John Thornberry, marriage 14 Dec 1749, St. Paul's Parish, Stafford County, Virginia They had a son Samuel Thornberry b 13 Jan 1755, died bef 22 Mar 1828 (lived in VA and Bullitt County, Kentucky); Samuel Thornberry married Mary Wigginton. (1414) During my recent trip to the Richmond, Virginia, Archives. Charles Bowling (Fh1563,397b, 6N2) born King George County, Virginia, drafted Stafford, Virginia. In 1830 moved to Ohio. (1553)

Movement
1781
1781 CENSUS—Stafford County, Virginia

Bolling, Thomas, (Fh667,286x,6M17)

William Sr., 

William, (183c,6M) 

Thomas, 

James,

Charles, (Fh1563,397b,6N2)
1781

Those that Signed a 1781 petition to move the Stafford County, Virginia, courthouse.

Spencer Bowling 
(Fh647,160c,
6C) along with 

Garrard Boling 
(Fh320?

6C), 

Thomas 

(Fh667, 286x
6M17), 

Charles 

(Fh1563, 397b, 
6N2), 

William Bowling
(
397x
6N2)  


(1758) 

For a time Charles Bowling resided in Stafford County, Virginia and for three years in Orange County, Virginia.  Charles Bowling moved to Ohio about 1803 (?). (91)(658) Charles Bolling is on the 1787 tax list of Stafford County, Virginia. (551) Charles Bolling is listed on the 1787 Personal Property Tax List of Stafford County, Virginia. He is a white male over 21. He had one horse. Thomas Bolling (Fh667,6M17) and James Bolling (UK) were taxed there the same day. (1586) 
1787
1787 – Property Tax Rolls--Stafford County, Virginia
Bolling, Charles

0
0
0
1
0
(Fh1563,397b,6N2)

Bolling, James

2
0
0
2
6
(Fh279,278a)

Bolling, Mary

0
3
2
0
0

Bolling, Robert Estate
0
10
2
4
4
(maybe 630c,6M)

Bolling, Simon

0
0
0
0
0
(Fh631,6M)

Bolling, Thomas

1
0
0
1
2
(Fh667,6M17)

Bolling, William, Sr.
0
0
0
1
2

Bolling, William

0
0
0
0
0
(183c,6M)

1793
Charles Bowling was listed separately in the tax list of 1793. (818) 
1810
Charles Boulling was in the 1810 Census of Stafford County, Virginia with 1 male over 45, 2 males 16-26, 2 males under 10, 1 female 26-45, 1 female 16-26, 1 female 10-16 and 2 females under 10.  On the same page of the Census was a William Bowling (6N2).  Several pages away were Spencer (Fh647,001a),, Benjamin (Fh135, 6M18) and John Bowling (UK,b1765-1784 perhaps 090c, 6A). (7) Charles Bowling was in the 1810 Census of Stafford County, Virginia. (349)  
1818
Charles Bowling was living in Stafford County, Virginia, with is wife Sarah in 1818. (818) 
1820
Charles Bowling was in the 1820 Census of Stafford County, Virginia.  (348) 1820 Census of Stafford County, VA. Charles Bowling with males 220101 and females 11201. (Ancestry.com) Charles Bowling along with his brother William Bowling (397a) and their families moved to Fairfield County, Ohio in the 1830's. (912)  
1833
Charles Bowling was alive in 1833, age 69,  in Fairfied County, Ohio, when he applied for a Revolutionary War pension S.16041. (91)(658) Charles Bowling (Fh1563,397b,6N2) Pension #S16041, in 1833 resident of Fairfield County, Ohio, aged ca69 b. 13 April 1763 in Westmoreland County, Virginia. (1414) 
1840
Charles Bolen is on page 171 of a 1840 list of Revolutionary Pensioners, in Bloom Township, Fairfield County, Ohio, age 75, i.e. born 1765.  (8)(701) 

Death

Charles Bolling died 1849. (198) The DAR has Charles died August 8, 1849. (1414) 

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

Daniel Fh1584 (6M17) 667c
-----------------

Daniel "Samuel" James 1800-1879 (Rin=14260)/m1825 Elizabeth Scott bc1805-1865--His father was Thomas #667


A Descendant kit 2388 tested into DNA 6  kits 1569, 1288, 1918, 2013, and 3019 were 12/12

*a  c
William J. 1825/7-1909/m1848 Martha Julia Biggs (1826-1879)

  a
Edward Thomas F. 1828-1899/m      ------   -------

*a
Sarah Elizabeth 1830/1/h m1847 Isaac F. Biggs, 2/h m1862 James H. Goldsmith


    b
Thomas bc1828



*abc
Daniel Scott 1833-1915/m1858 Elizabeth Ann Lamb (1836-1910) Daniel Scott (1584e) m1858 (Elizabeth 




Ann Lamb),r1860(Census Harrison, Indiana)

*abc
Lewis Washington 1835-1912/m1863 Mildred Elizabeth Cooper (1846-1922)

*
Alexander bc1836 Frederickburg, Spotsylvania, VA

*
Children per source #1152


a
Children per Source #1155

```
b
In Father's household 1850 Census, Harrison County, Indiana (1155)


c
In 1860 Census, Harrison County, Indiana (1155)


Birth, Parents, Lineage

Daniel James Bowling was born March 1799 the son of Thomas and Sarah (Ford) Bowling (Fh667,6M17). (321) Daniel James Bowling was born 23 March 1799 the son of Thomas and Sarah (Ford) Bowling. (1152) 
Marriage
Daniel James Bowling married Elizabeth Scott. (321)  Daniel James Bowling married 1825 Elizabeth Scott in Spotslvania County, Virginia. (1152) See his family group sheet for children. (1152) 
Movement

1850

Samuel (sic) Boling, age 50, born Virginia, was in the 1850 Census of Harrison County, Indiana, family 786-786. Besides his wife Elizabeth, age 50, there is Thomas age 22 born Virginia, Daniel C. age 18 born Virginia, and Lewis W. age 16 born Virginia. (7) Daniel Samuel Boling, age 50, born Virginia, was in the 1850 Census of Harrison County, Indiana. Besides his wife Elizabeth, age 50, see the family group for the children in the household. (1155) 
From the Place Index
Harrison,IN-created 1808 from Knox, Clark


6M17
Sarah (wife of Thomas Fh667) r1849,r1850,d1859


6M17

Daniel James/Samuel (Fh1584,667c) r1850,r1860,d1879--from VA 1827-30


6M17


William J. (1584a) m1848 (Martha Biggs),r1860,r1880


6M17  


Daniel Scott (1584d) m1858 (Elizabeth Ann Lamb),r1860(Census) 


6M17


Edward (1584b) b1830


6M17


Lewis W. (1584e) r1860


6M17

Frances (667g) r1830-1856


6M17

Louisa (667e) d1874


6M17

Ruth (667h) m1831 (Robert Ervin)


6M17

Thomas J. (667i) r1830,m1834 (Elizabeth Evans),r1850,r1860,d1879


6M17
Elijah W. (358b) r1880 (Census Age 60, brother Henry below),d1898


6M17
Henry N. or M. (358a) m1844 (Doshay or Docia Tuell), r1850,r1880 (Census,brother 




Elijah above), d1892

1860

Daniel Bolen is in the 1860 Census of Indiana, age 65 (i.e. born 1795), born Ireland. (?) 
Death
Daniel James Bowling died 18 October 1879 in Elizabeth, Harrison County, Indiana. (1152) Son William is in the 1880 Census of Elizabeth, Harrison, Indiana, age 54 born in Virginia. His mother and father were born in Virginia. (7)
+++++++++++++++++++++++++

Daniel Fh1595 (6T) 002a
-----------------

Daniel 1775-w1845,wp1847(Rin=54473, LKVG-ZJS, FAG=199709412)/m1801 Jane Millican (bc1775-d>1822-<1825)—His father 



was perhaps James #002 6T 



but not Benjamin Fh135 6M13. 



His father was not William Fh880,020f because they are about the same age. William 





Fh880,020f's son was Daniel Fh1596.

*a
Mary "Polly" Elizabeth 1803-1854 (LQ52-WJQ,FAG=84005151)/m1823 Benjamin Franklin Forman 




(1795-1874)  

               *           
Unknown male b<1810 in KY


*a
Ann 1808-d>1845/m<1845 Robert Snider


*
Nancy 1811-<1845/m1829 Christopher Sinclair


*a
Lucinda b1814-d>1845/m1831 1/h Alexander Sinclair, m1836 2/h  Henry F. Howard 


*a
James Lewis 1817-1911(LVNZ-TPX,FAG=120831674) m1840 Elizabeth Sanford Goe        


*a
John C. bc1820-d>1870/m1840 Sarah “Hannah” Hines (bc1821-d>1860) 


*
Children per Source #1444 and #2188 and implied in the 1817 Census

a
1845 will of Daniel mentions “my 2 sons (James & John Bowling) and my 3 daughters (Polly Forman, Lucinda 



Howard, Ann Snider)”



2/w m1825 Margaret Rivers



Male b>1825b<1830—probably died before 1845


3/w m???? Widow Mrs. Sarah Sinclair Bowling (1804-d>1850)—See Daniel Fh1596 for her children 


*abc
William Henry 1830-1902/mc1853 Cinderella Jamison (bc1831-1913) He FAG=65347105


  a
James bc1832-d<1845


*abc
Daniel bc1833/4-d>1850


*abc
Alexander bc1835/6-d>1850


*abc
Benjamin Forman bc1837/8-d>1860/m1860 Sarah A. Snider


*abc
Matthew Cruthers  1840/1-1922/m1863 Martha Neely 1843-1920  


* bc
Margaret Jane 1842-d>1850


*
Children per Source #1444


a
Children per Souce #2155


b
1845 will of Daniel mentions “my wife Sarah and her 5 sons with me (Wm. H., Daniel, 




Alexander, Benjamin Forman, & Matthew C Bowling)” and “my dau. Margaret Bowling”


c
1850 census of 73rd District, Ralls County, MO (8/19/1850): Sarah Bowling (Widow of Daniel 




Fh1596, 880b), age 46, with children William, 20; Daniel, 16; Alexander, 14; Benjamin, 12; 




Matthew, 9; and Margaret, 6. (919)



Birth, Parents, Lineage

Daniel Bowling (Fh1595) was born about 1785 in Virginia or Kentucky. (2155) Daniel Bowling was possibly born in Virginia. (1444) Daniel Bowling was born 1770 in Virginia. (Ancestry.com) From 1830 Ralls County, Missouri Census, Daniel is listed as 50-60 years of age, so born 1770 to 1780. (1444) If that census is correct, then he couldn't be the child of William (Fh880,020f) born 1782. (1444) I have recorded the possibility that the parents of our Daniel (Fh1595) might have been John Bowling (Fh440,3U3) born about 1753, married about 1774, died 1813, Madison County, Kentucky and Elizabeth Boone (see 425f, Family J), no information, our reputed Boone connection. Unfortunately, this information received from my mother was not sourced at all, or at least in a fashion that I can understand yet. (1498) Daniel Bowlan (Fh1595) was born 1786. Daniel Bowlan had a brothers Robert Bowlan (Fh550, 6T) who was born 1782 and Henry Bowlan (2c, 6T) born 1784. Their father may have been Archibald (Abel) (830b). Daniel Bowlan is listed as Daniel Bowlan, age 64, born Virginia, in the 1850 Census of Fayette County, Alabama. Wife Elizabeth, age 61, born Virginia. There are younger males in the household.  (946)

The following is from (2155)
http://www.angelfire.com/md3/ourgen/bowling.html
The Bowling Family of Ralls County Missouri

Daniel Bowling died between 10 July 1845 and 07 August 1847 in Ralls Co., Missouri. (2155) 
Daniel Bowling was married (1) to Unknown. 
Daniel Bowling was married 30 October 1825 in Ralls Co., Missouri to (2) Margaret Rivers. 
Daniel Bowling and Mrs. Daniel Bowling. Their Children:
a. 
Ann Bowling. She married a Mr. Snyder
b. 
Mary "Polly" Bowling , born 15 April 1803 in Kentucky. She died 08 Cotober 1854 in Shelby Co., Missouri. She was buried 
10 October 1854 in Hilton Cemetery (now abandoned) in Shelby Township. She was married in 1823 to Benjamin Franklin 
Foreman born 18 March 1795 in Shenandoah Co., Virginia. He died February 1874 in Shelby Co., Missouri and was also 
buried in the Hilton Cemetery.
c. 
Lucinda Bowling, born about 1814 in Kentucky. She married (1) Alexander Sinclair, 02 July 1831 in Pike Co., Misssouri. 
She married (2) Henry F. Howard, 11 March 1836 in Ralls Co., Missouri.
d. 
John C. Bowling, born about 1820 in Ralls Co., Missouri. He married Hannah Hines 07 August 1840 in Ralls Co., Missouri.

Daniel Bowling and Margaret Rivers
Their Children:
No known children

Daniel Bowling (probably Daniel Fh1596) and Sarah St. Clair/Sinclair
Daniel Bowling (This might be Daniel Fh1596, not Daniel Fh1595) was married 10 October 1828 in Pike Co., Missouri to (3) Sarah Sinclair born about 1804 in Pennsylvania. She died after 1870 in Missouri.

Their Children:
a. 
William H. Bowling, born March 1830 in Ralls Co., Missouri. He died between 1900 and 1910 in Ralls Co., Missouri. He 
married Cindorella about 1853 in Ralls Co., Missouri. She died 29 October 1913 in Clay, Ralls Co., Missouri.
b. 
James Bowling, born about 1832 in Ralls Co., Missouri.
c. 
Daniel Bowling Jr. born about 1833 in Ralls Co., Missouri.
d. 
Alexander Bowling, born about 1835 in Ralls Co.., Missosuri
e. 
Benjamin Bowling, born about 1837 in Ralls Co., Missouri. He married Sarah Ann Snider on 04 December 1860 in Ralls Co., 
Missouri.
f. 
Matthew Cruthers Bowling born 10 January 1840 in Ralls Co., Missouri. He died 17 May 1922 in Grand River, Livingston 
Co., Missouri. He was buried 18 May 1922 in Hale Cemetery, Hale City, Carroll Co., Missouri. He was married 10 October 
1863 in Ralls Co., Missouri to Martha Neely born 28 January 1843 in Green, Harrison Co., Ohio. She died 1 January 1920 
in Torrington, Goshen Co., Wyoming and was buried 4 February 1920 in Torrington Cemetery.
g. 
Margaret Jane Bowling, born about 1842 in Ralls Co., Missouri.

Marriages and Children

Daniel Bowling (Fh1595) was married (1) to Unknown. (2155) Daniel Bowling married unknown and had five known children all named in his will. See family group for their children. (1444) My mother also had held to the possibility that Daniel's (Fh1595) first wife was a Jane Wilckin (b. abt 1775, m. 20 Jul 1801, d. bet 1822-1826). (1498)   

1/w m1801 Jane Wilckin (bc1775-d>1822-d<1825)
a
Ann d>1845/m<1845 -----  Snider/Snyder

b
Mary "Polly" "Elizabeth" 1803-1854/m1823 Benjamin Franklin Forman (1795-1874) She FAG=84005151  


Mary Elizabeth "Lizzie" Bowling Forman

Birth: , Apr. 15, 1803 Kentucky, USA


Death: , Oct. 8, 1854, Shelby County, Missouri, USA

[image: image2.png]




Wife of Benjamin Franklin Forman, married in 1823 in Missouri. Daughter of Daniel and Sarah (sic) Bowling. 


Burial: Hilton Cemetery, Leonard, Shelby County, Missouri, USA


Find A Grave Memorial# 84005151

c.
Lucinda Bowling born 1814 in Kentucky. Lucinda Bowling married first 1831, Alexander Sinclair and married second 
1836 Henry F. Howard in Ralls County, Missouri. (1435) Lucinda died after 1845. Lucinda and her second husband, Henry 
F. Howard, did leave Ralls County, Missouri to go to Platte County, Missouri which is where Delaney (Fh163) moved, also. If 
I remember correctly, they left the area to go to Dade County, Missouri about the time of Delaney's death.  It may just all be 
coincidence. The family story has been passed through generations of the link to the "red" line of Pocahontas. It is told 
that Lucinda Bowling Sinclair Howard was very proud of that fact. She also told of being a "cousin" of Daniel Boone 
and told 
of walking with family behind his coffin on the way to the cemetery. The other story of Mrs. Woodrow Wilson 
(President) writing to her to ask for her old "Bowling" table would seem to lend some more credence to the story; as Mrs. 
Wilson thought she was a descendant of Pocahontas. (1444) Lucinda Bowling, born about 1814 in Kentucky. Lucinda 
Bowling married (1) Alexander Sinclair, July 2, 1831 in Pike County, Missouri. Lucinda Bowling married (2) Henry F. 
Howard, March 11, 1836 in 
Ralls County, Missouri. (2155)
d.
John C. bc1820-d>1860/m1840 Sarah “Hannah” Hines (bc1821-d>1860). My lineage goes back from Sarah Jane Bowling, 
born 1842 Ralls County, Missouri, who married Charles Markus Hedden of Newark, New Jersey. She was the daughter of 
John Bowling (1595d) born 1820 married to Sarah "Hannah" Hines in Ralls County, Missouri. I'm fairly sure up to that point. 
(919) John C. Bowling, born about 1820 in Ralls County, Missouri. John C. Bowling married Hannah Hines August 7, 1840 
in Ralls County, Missouri. (2155) 1850 census . John Bowling (1595d), age 30, with wife Hannah, age 26 and children Sarah 
J. 8, Nancy E. 6, and Emily, 5. (919)
e.
James Lewis Bowling, born 18 Jun 1817 in St. Charles County, Missouri. Son James Lewis Bowling  married Elizabeth 
Sanford Goe. She was born 11 Jul 1819 in Shelbyville, Kentucky. (1582) James, the son of Daniel Bowling and Jane 
Millican. 
Daniel’s James married to Elizabeth Sanford Goe. I know that he is the correct James 
because one of the 
Sinclair 
orphans 
is living with him and Elizabeth in 1850. Furthermore, his death certificate affirms that he is the son of Daniel 
Bowling 
and ‘Milligan.’ His obituary also affirms these relationships. (2188) 
2/w m1825 Margaret Rivers

Male b>1825b<1830—probably died before 1845



1817 Census Enumeration, St. Charles County, Missouri


Femme Osage Township Index

                 
            Male                                           Female                   


Last          First     45+        18-45
-18
14+
-14


Bollin
Daniel
 
1
2
2
3
 4 Daughters  (2188) 
 
 
 
 

The Table

The ‘over stand table’ was handed down from my great-grandmother Lucinda Bolling Howard (1595c, 6T, Rin=54184). I have it. When I was a child we could still see scratched on the inside back section of the drawler, ‘MADE BY EDWARD ( OR EDWIN OR EDMOND)  BOWLIN 1714’. (1498) A table has been passed down through generations of this family. "scratched on the inside back section of the drawer, 'Made by Edward (Edwin or Edmond) Bowling, 1714'." (1435) Stories have been passed down generation to generation about a relationship to Pocahontas. It is told that Mrs. Woodrow Wilson (Descendant of Archibald 60a, her Husband President of U.S.) wrote to Lucinda Bowling Sinclair Howard's daughter, Nancy Elizabeth, to ask for an old Bowling family table. This table still remains in the family today. (1444)

Movement

1817 Census Enumeration, St. Charles County, Missouri

Femme Osage Township Index

                             Male                                           Female                   

Last          First     45+        18-45
-18
14+
-14

Bollin
Daniel
 
1
2
2
3
 
 
 
 
 

Bonum
Moses
 
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Boone
Daniel
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Boone
Daniel M.
 
1
6
1


Boone
John
 
1
1
1
1
 
 
 
 
 

Boone
Nathan
 
1
4
4
2

http://www.usgennet.org/usa/mo/county/callaway/Census/1817StCharles/FmOsageIndex.html
 
 
 
 

1830
1830 Ralls, Missouri
Bowling, Daniel

Ralls 365

Spencer

1 male under 50, (Daniel born after 1780)

1 female under 30 (wife b>1800)

1 female under 20, (Probably Polly or Ann)

2 males under 10, (John bc1820, James bc1822)

1 male under 5, b1825-1830 (UK male 1595d—probably died before 1845)

From 1830 Ralls County, Missouri Census, Daniel is listed as 50-60 years of age. One female is listed at 15-20; this would be Lucinda. Two males are listed at 10-15; these would be James and John C.  Another male is listed in the household as under 5. I do not know who that child was. (1444) 
1840
1840 Census—Ralls Missouri
Bowlin, Daniel

Ralls 262

NO TWP

1 male 60-70, b1770-1780 (Daniel Fh1595) 

1 female 30-40, b1800-1810 (wife Sarah)

1 male10-15, b1825-1830 (William)

1 male 5-10, b1830-1835 (Daniel)

2 males under 5, b1835-1840 (Alexander and Benjamin) (1748)
Death of Daniel Fh1595 and Fh1596

Daniel Bowling died 1847 in Ralls County, Missouri. (Ancestry.com) The will of Daniel Bowling, Ralls County, Missouri, was probably written 1845 and probated 1847, “to my 2 sons James & John Bowling, my 3 daus Polly Forman, Lucinda Howard, Ann Snider, my 2 grandch Daniel and Mary Jane Cinclair, my wife Sarah Bowling, her 5 sons Wm. H., Daniel, Alexander, Benjamin Forman, & Matthew C Bowling, and my dau Margaret Bowling, wit Wm. Forman, Chapel Carstarphan.” (1446) The will of Daniel Bowling lists sons James, William H., Forman B., Daniel, Alexander, Matthew C.B., and John and Benjamin. Lists daughters Polly Forman, Lucinda Howard, Ann Snyder and Margaret Jane. Will written July 10, 1845 and probated August 7, 1847, Ralls County, Missouri. (1452) I have a copy of the hand-written will of Daniel Bowling. The copy states, as it relates to the children with Sarah, "the property at her death (wife Sarah Bowling ) shall be equally divided between my five sons, William H. Bowling, Daniel Bowling, Alexander Bowling, Benjan Forman Bowling, and Matthew C. Bowling and my daughter Margaret J Bowling."  It later states that if Sarah Bowling should marry during her widowhood, that all the property then remaining in her possession shall be equally divided "between her and her children to me, William H. Bowling, Daniel Bowling, Alexander Bowling, Benjamin Bowling, and Matthew C. Bowling and my daughter Margaret Jane Bowling." (1444) From "Ralls County, MO Will Book B January 27, 1835 to February 6, 1872" by Kathleen Wilham, page 22.

BOWLING, Daniel - will to my two sons James and John Bowling, my three daughters Polly Forman, Lucinda Howard, Ann Snider, my two grandchildren Daniel and Mary Jane Cinclair, my wife Sarah Bowling, her five sons William H., Daniel, Alexander, Benjamin Forman, and Matthew C. Bowling, and my daughter Margaret Bowling, witness William Forman, Chapel Carstarphan. Written 1845/Recorded 1847. Do you suppose Daniel's wife was married before since he refers to "her five sons"? (919)
Daniel Bowling died about 1845. (1444)

Daniel Fh1595 and Daniel Fh1596 based on the 1845 Will. If so Fh1595 is not the son of William #880

This could be the younger Fh1596 Daniel b1804-1810 i.e. Fh1596

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

Daniel Fh1596 (6K) 880a
-----------------

Daniel b1804-1810-d<1850 (Rin=39740)/m1828 Sarah Sinclair (1804-d>1850)--His father was William #880


*abc
William Henry 1830-1902/mc1853 Cinderella Jamison (bc1831-1913) He FAG=65347105


  a
James bc1832-d<1845

*abc
Daniel bc1833/4-d>1850


*abc
Alexander bc1835/6-d>1850


*abc
Benjamin Forman bc1837/8-d>1860/m1860 Sarah A. Snider


*abc
Matthew Cruthers  1840/1-1922/m1863 Martha Neely 1843-1920  


* bc
Margaret Jane 1842-d>1850


*
Children per Source #1444


a
Children per Souce #2155


b
1845 will of Daniel mentions “my wife Sarah and her 5 sons with me? (Wm. H., Daniel, Alexander, Benjamin 


Forman, & Matthew C Bowling)” and “my dau. Margaret Bowling”


c
1850 census of 73rd District, Ralls County, MO (8/19/1850): Sarah Bowling (Widow of Daniel Fh1596, 880b), age 


46, with children William, 20; Daniel, 16; Alexander, 14; Benjamin, 12; Matthew, 9; and Margaret, 6. (919)

Daniel Bolin married 1st Margaret Rivers XE "Rivers:Margaret" , 2nd Sarah St. Clair XE "St. Clair:Sarah" . (1155) Daniel Bowlin married first Oct 30, 1825 Margaret Rivers and married October 30, 1828 Sarah St. Clair. (7) Daniel was probably the male 0-9 in the 1810 Census. 
A Daniel Bolen bought 80 acres 4/1/1839 in Monroe County, Missouri, as below.


N½NE 
22/ 
54-N 
12-W 
No 
5th PM 
MO 
Monroe 


Daniel Bowling married a second time, this time to Sarah St. Clair on October 30, 1828 in Pike County, Missouri.  Sarah was born about 1804 in Pennsylvania. Six children were named. See Fh1596 for their children. (1444) 

Daniel Bowling married 1828 Sarah St. Clair (1804-d>1850). 
Daniel Bowling born 1775 (sic, no that would be Fh1595) married 1828 in Missouri, Sarah Sinclair. (2074, Vol. 6)
They had children:

a.
William H. bc1830-d>1860/m>1850 Cinderella ----- (bc1831-d>1860) They are in the 1880 Census of Ralls County, 
Missouri. William H. Bowling, born March 1830 in Ralls County, Missouri. William H. Bowling died between 1900 and 1910 
in Ralls County, Missouri. William H. Bowling married Cindorella (sic) about 1853 in Ralls County, Missouri. She died 
October 
29, 1913 in Clay, Ralls County, Missouri. (2155)
b.
James Bowling, born about 1832 in Ralls County, Missouri. (2155)

c.
Daniel bc1834-d>1850. Daniel Bowling Jr. born about 1833 in Ralls County, Missouri. (2155)

d.
Alexander bc1836-d>1850. Alexander Bowling, born about 1835 in Ralls County, Missouri. (2155)
e.
Benjamin Forman bc1838-d>1850. Benjamin Bowling, born about 1837 in Ralls County, Missouri. Benjamin Bowling 
married Sarah Ann Snider on December 4, 1860 in Ralls County, Missouri. (2155)
f.
Matthew Cruthers 1840-1922/m>1850 Martha Neely 1843-1919. Matthew Cruthers Bowling born January 10, 1840 
in Ralls County, Missouri. Matthew Cruthers Bowling died May 17, 1922 in Grand River, Livingston County, Missouri. 
Matthew 
Cruthers Bowling was buried May 18, 1922 in Hale (Hale City, Carroll County, Missouri. Matthew Cruthers 
Bowling 
was married October 10. 1863 in Ralls County, Missouri to Martha Neely born January 28, 1843 in Green, Harrison 
County, Ohio. She died January 1, 1920 in Torrington, Goshen County, Wyoming and was buried  February 4, 1920 in 
Torrington Cemetery. (2155) (Findagrave=48932555)
g.
Margaret Jane bc1844-d>1850. Margaret Jane Bowling, born about 1842 in Ralls County, Missouri. (2155) 

I am not certain that the Daniel (Fh1596, 880i) who married Margaret Rivers is the same man. Sarah can't be the mother of Daniel's first set of children, as Lucinda was born 1814; James was born about 1820; and John C. was born about 1822. I have not found any dates on either Polly or Ann. I just found them listed in Daniel's will. (1444) 
Movement

It is thought that Daniel Bowling was possibly born in Virginia then moved to Kentucky and then on to Missouri. (1444) Daniel Bowling (perhaps Fh1595) went into Missouri with Daniel Boone. (1582) Something is wrong about the 1830 census if Daniel doesn't have his wife, Sarah. I guess that it must be another Daniel. But, if it is the wrong Daniel, who is it? And where was my Daniel? I go back to find that both Daniel married Sarah St. Clair on 30 Oct. 1828, and Lucinda Bowling married Alexander Sinclair (Maybe St. Clair) on 3 July 1831 both in Pike County, Missouri. Lucinda then married Henry F. Howard on 11 March 1836 in New London, Ralls County, Missouri. (1444) That is about all that I know of Daniel Bowling (Fh1595). I have received information from another researcher who suggested reading a book by a lady named Goldena. I understand that the book has long been out of print. The gentleman told me of a paragraph about the old Salt River Baptist Church located 2 miles west of Spalding, Missouri. The church stood on the farm of Daniel Bowling. He was the custodian and one of its first members. I have also been told that there are a few unidentified gravestones found around this old church on the old Bowling farm. (1444)

1828

There is a land record for Daniel Bowling of Ralls County, Missouri for 80 acres at the office in Palmyra, Missouri, dated 12 Feb. 1828. 


E½NE 
28/ 
56-N 
6-W 
No 
5th PM 
MO 
Ralls 

http://www.glorecords.blm.gov/PatentSearch/Results.asp?QryId=36499.34
1839

A Daniel Bolen bought 80 acres 4/1/1839 in Monroe County, MO, as below.


N½NE 
22/ 
54-N 
12-W 
No 
5th PM 
MO 
Monroe 


1850
And then in the 1850 census of 73rd District, Ralls County, MO (8/19/1850): (919)

Sarah Bowling (Widow of Daniel Fh1596, 880b), age 46, with children 

William, 20 bc1830; 

Daniel, 16 bc1834; 

Alexander, 14; 

Benjamin, 12; 

Matthew, 9; and 

Margaret, 6. (919)
 

Death of Daniel Fh1595 and Fh1596
Daniel Bowling died 1847 in Ralls County, Missouri. (Ancestry.com) The will of Daniel Bowling, Ralls County, Missouri, was probably written 1845 and probated 1847, “to my 2 sons James & John Bowling, my 3 daus Polly Forman, Lucinda Howard, Ann Snider, my 2 grandch Daniel and Mary Jane Cinclair, my wife Sarah Bowling, her 5 sons Wm. H., Daniel, Alexander, Benjamin Forman, & Matthew C Bowling, and my dau Margaret Bowling, wit Wm. Forman, Chapel Carstarphan.” (1446) The will of Daniel Bowling lists sons James, William H., Forman B., Daniel, Alexander, Matthew C.B., and John and Benjamin. Lists daughters Polly Forman, Lucinda Howard, Ann Snyder and Margaret Jane. Will written July 10, 1845 and probated August 7, 1847, Ralls County, Missouri. (1452) I have a copy of the hand-written will of Daniel Bowling. The copy states, as it relates to the children with Sarah, "the property at her death (wife Sarah Bowling ) shall be equally divided between my five sons, William H. Bowling, Daniel Bowling, Alexander Bowling, Benjan Forman Bowling, and Matthew C. Bowling and my daughter Margaret J Bowling."  It later states that if Sarah Bowling should marry during her widowhood, that all the property then remaining in her possession shall be equally divided "between her and her children to me, William H. Bowling, Daniel Bowling, Alexander Bowling, Benjamin Bowling, and Matthew C. Bowling and my daughter Margaret Jane Bowling." (1444) From "Ralls County, MO Will Book B January 27, 1835 to February 6, 1872" by Kathleen Wilham, page 22.

BOWLING, Daniel - will to my two sons James and John Bowling, my three daughters Polly Forman, Lucinda Howard, Ann Snider, my two grandchildren Daniel and Mary Jane Cinclair, my wife Sarah Bowling, her five sons William H., Daniel, Alexander, Benjamin Forman, and Matthew C. Bowling, and my daughter Margaret Bowling, witness William Forman, Chapel Carstarphan. Written 1845/Recorded 1847. Do you suppose Daniel's wife was married before since he refers to "her five sons"? (919)
Daniel Bowling died about 1845. (1444)

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

David Fh160 (6M1) 402b
-----------------

David b<1721 (Rin=61269) KHQL-95Y/m1741 Jane Pilcher--His father was John #402  


William b1737 (Rin=58631)


a
Jesse 1742-1794 (Rin=45488)/Sarah "Sally" Butler-- See Family Group #340


a
Spencer 1744-d>1810 Census (Rin=58594)—See Family Group #647


a
Children per Source #680 (Informant Mildred H. Musselman) also Source #1061 
Birth, Parents, Lineage

David Bowling (Fh160,6M18)(Rin=61269) was born before 1721 and married Jane Pilsher born before 1725. His parents were John Bowling and Mary Browne (Fh402). (2111) David Bowling married Jane Pilcher in 1741 in Stafford County, Virginia. (30) David and Jane Bowling had a son Jesse (Fh340) born 1742 in Stafford County, Virginia. (46)(492)
Probably not David Fh160,402a--Below would be an older David

Those called to do road work had to be at least 18 years old, so the following would have been born before 1704. (7) David Bolen (not Fh160 the son of John Fh402), John Bolen (probably Fh402,6C), and William Bolen in 1722, in Spotsylvania County, Virginia, were to do road work on the road from Germana along the ridge to the mountain Run so a Cross the said run between Coll: Caterss and Mr Skreens Quarter, Jacob Wall, Overseer. Several persons, including the three above, did not appear and help him as overseer, appointed by the Court, to clear the said road. The Court after examining the said persons, ordered that each be fined for absenting themselves. William Bolen for three days, John Bolen for five days, and David Bolen for five days. They to pay for each days absence and contempt as the Law directs with Coats as the Law directs. (1641) David Bolen, John Bolen, and William Bolen were in the Spotsylvania County, Virginia, Court Order Book 1722-1724, page 13, County Reel #26 of the Virginia State Library. (2052) 
Six years later, Patriack Bolding was a tithable, with 10 others, "on the South Side of the River", 1728, Spotsylvania County, Virginia, to help Daniel Brown, overseer, clear the road from "Wallers bridge to Mattapany church". (1641)(1636) David Bowling received monies from King George County, Virginia, 1723 for one wolves head, assigned to William Thornton. (1644)  David Bowling witnessed a 1726 deed of David Brown, grantor to his son Original Brown, grantee, in Westmoreland County, Virginia. On the same day William Bowling witnessed a gift deed between David Brown and his son Original Brown. Both deeds were recorded the same day. (1632) The above David Brown of Westmoreland County, Virginia, had a daughter Mary (Brown) Bowling (See Fh402). (1633) Mary Bowling may have had a son Original Bowling who married Margaret French 1752 in Stafford or King George Counties, Virginia.  This in the St. Paul's parish register. (46) Mary Bowling and her brother Original Brown were named in their father's, David Brown, 1727 will proved 1730 in Westmoreland County, Virginia. (678)(1633)
Marriage
From the Place Index

King George,VA-created 1720-21 from Richmond, Westmoreland

In 1777 the revision of the county lines threw St. Paul’s Parish into King George Parish where it has remained since that date.


6C
John (Fh402, had wife Judith at death) r1722,r1723,r1725,d1730,wi1731


6C

David (Fh160,402a) m1741 (Jane Pilsher)--m @ St. Paul's,r1742(Rin=61269)


6C

Jesse (Fh340,160a) b1742 or bc1745-50,r1772,r1782,t1782,r1784,r1787 (Rin=45488)


6C

William (Fh788,340x) b1772,m1794 (Sarah Spillman) (Rin=46489)—to KY shortly afterward


6C




James Butler b1795 FAG=78731543


6C



Jesse (Fh351,340x) b1784


6C

Original (402b) m1752 (Margaret French)

From the Place Index
Spotsylvania, VA-created 1720-21 from Essex and King & Queen


6C
David (Fh160,402x) b<1721,probably relative John Fh402 and William) r1722 (road work so b<1704)


6C
John (Fh402, probably relative David and William) r1722 (road work so b<1704)


6C
William (UK, probably relative David and John Fh402) r1722 (road work so b<1704) 


6C
David (Fh160,402x) b<1721,probably relative John Fh402 and William) r1722 (road work so b<1704)


6C

Jesse (Fh340, Rin=45488, 160a) r1778,l1789,r1791,w1792,w1793,d1793--prior from King George, VA


6C

Sarah (widow of Jesse Fh340,160a) r1798


6C


Joel (Fh3535,340a) nw1793 (under age 21),r1797,r1798


6C


William (Fh788,340b) nw1793,r1794—later to Kentucky


6C


Jesse (Fh351,340c) nw1793,r1798,m1802 (Elizabeth Harrow),r1804—later to Rockingham, VA


6C



James (351a) b1804



6C


James S. (340d) nw1793,m1801 (Elizabeth “Betsy” Newton)


6C


Mary (340e) nw1793,d1829,w1829

Movement

On the same day in 1726 David Bowling (probably Fh160,6M1) witnessed a deed of David Brown, grantor to his son Original Brown, grantee. William Bowling witnessed a 1726 gift deed between David Brown and his son Original Brown, in Westmoreland County, Virginia. Both deeds were recorded the same day. (1632) The above David Brown of Westmoreland County, Virginia, had a daughter Mary Bowling. (wife of John Fh402, 6M1) (1633) Mary Bowling and her brother Original Brown were named in their father's, David Brown, 1727 will proved 1730 in Westmoreland County, Virginia. (678)(1633)  Mary Bowling may have had a son Original Bowling who married Margaret French 1752 in Stafford or King George Counties, Virginia. This is in the St. Paul's parish register. (46)
+++++++++++++++++++++++++

David Fh1625 (6T) 424a
-----------------

David bc1747-dc1805 (Rin=54571)/----- ----- --His father was John #424 

a
Sarah "Sally" bc1767-1845/m1783 John Reed (bc1764-1839) —See 424h

a
No longer considered his daughter (1450) (Mike Moffitt)
David Bowlen/Bolen had a daughter Sarah/Sally Bowlen/Bolen (c1767-1845) who married John Reed (bc1764-1839) July 31, 1783 probably in Randolph County, North Carolina. Apparently her father David Bowlen lived nearby or was at the ceremony because the record of her marriage was written by David Bowlen the "next day after said marriage". Sarah/Sally (Bowlen) Reed died in Bedford County, Tennessee, 1845. (179)(1372) 
Yes, I have changed my thoughts that David Bolen (Fh1625) was the father of my Sarah Bolen. The information that David Bolen was the father came from a compilation of abstracts of Revolutionary War pension applications from Bedford County, Tennessee ("Soldiers of the Revolution in Bedford County, Tennessee" Compiled by Helen C. & Timothy R. Marsh, Shelbyville, Tennessee; Southern Historical Press, Inc.; 1989). The person who prepared the summary of the application in the book states that "Sarah (sometimes called Sally) Bolen was the daughter of David Bolen who died about 1805."  However, if you look at the accompanying sworn statements of John Reed and his wife Sarah Bolen, neither said that David Bolen was Sarah's father.  She stated on September 20, 1845 that, "the said record of her marriage was written by the said David Bowlen the next day after said marriage took place and that the same was returned and kept by her in her possession till she delivered the same to a Lawyer in morder (prob. order) to get a pension for her ..." It sounds to me like David Bolen was the minister who performed the marriage ceremony, and not Sarah's father as has been reported.  I believe ministers or justices were the individuals in those days who wrote up the marriage and returned them for recording.  I do believe David was probably a relative -- he may have been her brother or a close cousin, but I don't believe he was her father.  Also, the dates I have for a David Bowlen in this area of North Carolina (from land deeds and tax lists) would appear to put him in an age category similar to Sarah's, perhaps born around 1760- 1765. Finally, I have speculated that John Bolen/Bolling (Fh424) who was a lay preacher with the Fork of the Little River Church in 1759 may instead be the father of my Sarah.  His age (probably born 1725-1735) appears about right and he owned land on the Little River near the boundary of Randolph and Montgomery Counties, North Carolina. This would put him in the same area that David Bowlen owned his land around 1790.  Perhaps David is also a child of John (and therefore, a brother to my Sarah). (1450) My Sarah is the daughter of John Bolling (Fh424,6T), not David (Fh1625,6T). David is her brother and performed her marriage ceremony. Some people misinterpreted Sarah's deposition given for John Reed's Rev. War pension application. In it she said David had "returned" the marriage certificate in 1783 and those researchers thought that meant he was her father. He was her brother and the minister who had signed the certificate and was returning it to the couple. (1450)

Daughter Sarah Bolen/Bowlen was born around 1765, probably in North Carolina or Virginia and who may have some sort of Owen County, Indiana connection.  Sarah was married to my ancestor John Reed/Read/Reade on July 31, 1783 probably in Randolph County, North Carolina. John Reed/Read/Reade was the son of William Reade, Sr. who was married to a Sarah (surname unknown) and who owned land on the Deep River from at least about 1763 to 1785. Sarah (Bolen) Reed's father may have been a David Bolen/Bowlen who, according to John Reed's 1832 Bedford County, Tennessee Revolutionary War Pension claim, died about 1805, I assume in Randolph County, North Carolina. Unfortunately, I don't have anything else on this David.  I have seen a couple of North Carolina land transaction entries which indicate that there was a David Bolling and a William Bolling who owned land on the "Little River of Pee Dee" (probably Montgomery Co., NC?) around 1790. Their land was adjacent to a John Latham, Christian Luther, and John Steed. This may be the same David Bolling connected to my Sarah. Recently, another Bolling surname researcher sent me a message mentioning that a William Boling b. ca. 1770 in NC -- Randolph or Montgomery Co.-- had moved to Owen County, Indiana about 1830.  I thought there might be a chance that this is the same William that owned land next to David Bolling on the Little River. John and Sarah Bolen Reed (1625a) moved from Randolph County, North Carolina to Washington County, Virginia around 1795, were in Rutherford County, Tennessee by 1820 and then in Bedford County, Tennessee by 1822. Both Sarah and John died there. (1450) Yes, I have changed my thoughts that David Bolen (Fh1615) was the father of my Sarah Bolen. The information that David Bolen was the father came from a compilation of abstracts of Revolutionary War pension applications from Bedford County, Tennessee ("Soldiers of the Revolution in Bedford County, Tennessee" Compiled by Helen C. & Timothy R. Marsh, Shelbyville, Tennessee; Southern Historical Press, Inc.; 1989).  The person who prepared the summary of the application in the book states that "Sarah (sometimes called Sally) Bolen was the daughter of David Bolen who died about 1805."  However, if you look at the accompanying sworn statements of John Reed and his wife Sarah Bolen, neither said that David Bolen was Sarah's father.  She stated on September 20, 1845 that, "the said record of her marriage was written by the said David Bowlen the next day after said marriage took place and that the same was returned and kept by her in her possession till she delivered the same to a Lawyer in morder (prob. order) to get a pension for her ..." It sounds to me like David Bolen was the minister who performed the marriage ceremony, and not Sarah's father as has been reported. I believe ministers or justices were the individuals in those days who wrote up the marriage and returned them for recording. I do believe David was probably a relative -- he may have been her brother or a close cousin, but I don't believe he was her father.  Also, the dates I have for a David Bowlen in this area of North Carolina (from land deeds and tax lists) would appear to put him in an age category similar to Sarah's, perhaps born around 1760- 1765. Finally, I have speculated that John Bolen/Bolling (Fh424) who was a lay preacher with the Fork of the Little River Church in 1759 may instead be the father of my Sarah.  His age (probably born 1725-1735) appears about right and he owned land on the Little River near the boundary of Randolph and  Montgomery Counties, North Carolina. This would put him in the same area that David Bowlen owned his land around 1790. Perhaps David is also a child of John (and therefore, a brother to my Sarah). Furthermore, the Little River Church was a member of the Sandy Creek Association and I have found that a number of my North Carolina ancestors and allied families (Moffitt, Teague, Robbins, Spinks, Williamson) were members of the "New Light" Baptist churches which were members of the Association started by Shubal Stearns around 1758. Also, I've found that one of the other founding members of the Fork of the Little River Church in 1759 with John Bollin was William Searcy, who owned the land adjacent to my Reeds on the Deep River. ("History of North Carolina Baptists" by George Washington Paschal, Vol. I, 1930.)  I have requested a copy from NARA of all of the documents in the pension application files of  John Reed and Sarah Bolen and I'm hoping the information may shed more light on this whole relationship. The files may contain the marriage record/certificate of John and Sarah or some other reference to this David. (1450) John Latherm, July 19, 1790, to Christian Luther for 125 pds. 150 acres on Little River adjacent John Steed, William Bolling (Fh913,6S) and David Bolling (Fh1625,6T).  Randolph County, North Carolina, Deed Abstracts Books 1-5. Signed John Lathram; Witness: William Crawford, J. Harper. (249)(1569). 19 July 1790 John Latham to Christian Luther for 125 pds. 150 a. on Little River, adj John Steed, William Bolling (Fh913,902b, 6S)  and David Bolling (Fh1625, 6T). Signed John Lathram Wit. William Crawford, J Harper. (2175) Deed of Trust Christian Luther to William Cox, both of Randolph Co. for 45 pds. 150 a. on Little River of Pee Dee adj. John Steed, William Boling (Fh913,902b, 6S)  and David Bolings (Fh1625, 6T) claim. Signed Christian Luther. (2175)

David Boling was in a 1787 Census of Montgomery County, North Carolina with 1-1-5-0-0. Male age 21-60, Male other, 5 females. Two John Bolings and a William Boling were also listed in the Census on same or adjacent pages. (7) David Bolling is on the 1787 Census of Montgomery County, North Carolina with 2 males and 5 females. (942)

Death

David Bowlen/Bolen died 1805. (179)(1372)

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

Dudley Fh175 (6Z) 386d
-----------------

Dudley A. 1792 VA (Rin=48832)(FAG=114005887)/m1828 Elizabeth Deboreau--His father was John #386



Malissa Clementine 1829-1909



George Ellsburg b1831


Nancy C. b1833 



Mary Ann "Polly"1835-1922



John B.D. 1836-1836



James A. 1838-1862



William Thomas b1841



Alfred Cargal b1843



Caleb Jasper 1845-1922/m       Marrah Amanda Williams



Zachariah T. b1848



Elizabeth J. b1853


Malissa thru Caleb were born in South Carolina. Zachariah and Eliazabeth were born in North Carolina.

Birth, Parents, Lineage

Dudley A. Bolin born 1792, Virginia, married 1828 Elizabeth Deboreau. (2074, Vol. 6) Dudley A. Bolen's sister Dorcas Bolin was born 8 Jun 1798, possibly in Burke County, North Carolina. She married James Fisher in the area known as the "Dark Corners", in what is now South Carolina. She had a brother D.A. Bolen who was a witness to her marriage and he (Dudley A.) and an Elizabeth Bolen are buried in the Lakeside Cemetery at LakeToxaway, Transylvania, North Carolina, the cemetery where Dorcas and James Fisher are buried. (She Findagrave = 31476680) I believe the D.A. Bolin was called Dudley. (Received 1/11/2000 from SAM4952@aol.com) My Bowling ggg-grandmother, Darcus Levisa Bowling Fisher, was married in Spartanburg District in about 1815. She had a brother named Dudley A. Bowling who lived in Spartanburg District, also. We cannot find out who their parents are. They later moved into the present day county of Transylvania in North Carolina. There was a John Boling in 1810 Spartanburg census, but I do not find him in 1820. I did find a Nancy Boling, however, and some younger ones. Darcus Bowling stated that she was born in Burke County, North Carolina (about 1798). Her first daughters name was Nancy and Dudley's second daughters name was Nancy. This appears to be the regular naming pattern of naming the first daughter after the mother's mother and the second daughter after a father's mother. I have not checked in Spartanburg after Dudley's family and Darcus' family moved. Darcus had moved to Greenville County between the 1820 and 1830. (Patricia Cantrell, Columbus, GA)

Marriage

Dudley A. Bolin born 1792, Virginia, married 1828 Elizabeth Deboreau. (2074, Vol. 6)

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

Edward UK (6Z)
-----------------

Edward Bolen land in Spartanburgh, South Carolina, Book K,  pg 324 - 325 Jan. 11, 1806 James Hickey (Spartanburgh) to Thomas Vaughn (same); for $180 sold 140 ac; where James Hickey lives; border: formerly Edward Bolens land; sold by Christopher Grenduff to James Hickey; grant to Thomas Smith. Witness Christopher Johnson and Thomas Johnson. Signed James Hickey. Wit. oath Apr. 8, 1806 Christopher Johnson to A Casey. Rec: May 10, 1806. Dower renounced Elizabeth Hickey to William Lancaster Jan. 30, 1806. (1713) 
From the Place Index
Spartanburg,SC-created 1785 from District 96


6Z
John (Fh386 b1756 Rin=65497, L84V-7PG) r1790(Census),l1795,r1796,r1805,r1810(Census),(died 1817 before 



the 1820 (Census)


6Z
Nancy (nee Spencer, widow of John Fh386) r1820 (Census)


6Z

Samuel (Fh624, 386b) b1775 (now),l1809,r1810,l1817—





Many Descendant kits have tested into DNA Group 6





Descendant Kit 35942 tested into DNA Group 6


6Z

Isaiah (Fh2544,386c) r1820-1860,d1868—





Descendant kit 3019 tested into DNA Group 6


6Z


William (2544a,bc1814) r1820-1860,r1880 (Census, wife Eliza)


6Z


John Henry Franklin (2544c) b1820,m1845 (Lucinda Hogan),r1846-To Walker Co

 




Georgia by 1850


6Z

Dudley A. (Fh175,386d, had sister Darcus) r1830 (Dudley 4651a,6Z would have been only age 7)


6Z

Martin (Fh4651,386e, b1794, son of John in 1810 Census) l1821-





Descendant kit 16668 in DNA 6

6Z

Darcus (386f, had brother Dudley) mc1815 (James Fisher)

Other Unknowns (UK) in that county:


Andrew (UK) l1795


Archibald (perhaps son of John Fh386 6Z,UK) r1820(Cesus,age26-44, i.e. b1776-1794),l1829


Edward (UK) l<1806

Nathan (UK) l1805


Rosanna (UK) r1830


Thomas (UK) r1820


William (UK) r1806,r1808

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

Edmund Fh183 (6M) 402b
-----------------

Edmund bc1719-d>July 2,1757 (Rin=54618) /m1744 Mary Sudduth 1810—His father was John #402(Rin=46529), less likely Simon #632(Rin=54190) or Joseph #450 (Rin=53942). See Fh007 for possible siblings.



John 1746-pd<1757 (Rin=61669)—See Family Group #434



Nancy 1749-pd<1757



William 1752-d>1787, (Rin=61664)—See Family Group #766


Elizabeth b1757/m1777 Robert Clift

I am a descendant of Elizabeth Bolling who married 1756 Robert Mays, Overwharton Parish, Stafford County, Virginia. Some have her as 90d, but no birth record. If she was born c1739/42 then her mother could not be Mary Latham who died in 1735. She might be an Elizabeth found born to several families (590b or 760c) per St. Paul church records or the sister of Edward/Edmond (Fh183). (1734)(947)

6M 
Fh183
Edward Boling married 1744 Mary Suddeth in Stafford County, Virginia. (30)  

6A  
Fh183  
Edmund Bolling married 1744 Mary Sudduth, Overwarthon Parish, Stafford County, Virginia.  Edmund's 
siblings 
may have been:

a.
Jean who married 1745 John Asberry, 

b.
Johannah who married 1750 William Fuell, 

c.
Elizabeth who married 1756 Robert Mays; 



all marriages also being in Overwharton Parish, Stafford County, Virginia. (7)(567) 
Marriage and Children

Overwharton Parrish Register 1720-1760 (1975)
Pg 11  
Boling, Edward 
(Fh183,6M) married May 4, 1744 Mary Suddeth
Pg 14 
Bolling, John 
(Fh434, 6M) Son of Edmund and Mary born 14 Sep 1746

Pg 16 
Boling, Nancy Dau of Edmund and Ann, born 26 Apr 1749

Pg 20 
Boling, Wm 
(Fh766) Son of Edmund and Mary Mar 8, 1752

Pg 25
Bolling, Elizabeth m Dec 27, 1756 Robert Mays (Source 1975)

Edmund Bolling married 1744 Mary Sudduth, Overwarthon Parish, Stafford County, Virginia. In the parish register is also the births of the children of Edmund: 

a.
John born 12 Oct 1746. (7)(567)(2111) (Rin=61668) See Family Group #434

b.
Nancy born 1749. (7)(567)  

c.
William born March 8,1752. (7)(567) Born March 8, 1751/51 (old style). (2111) (Rin=61664)—See Family Group #766
d.
Elizabeth born 1757. (7)(567) Daughter Elizaeth Bowling who was born October 30, 1757. (2111) I am a descendant of 
Elizabeth Bolling who married 1756 Robert Mays, Overwharton Parish, Stafford County, Virginia. Some have her as 90d, but 
no birth record. If she was born c1739/42 then her mother could not be Mary Latham who died in 1735. She might be an 
Elizabeth found born to several families per St. Paul church records or the sister of Edward/Edmond (Fh183). (1734)(947) 
Stafford County, Virginia was originally divided into two parishes. Overwharton Parish covered the northern half of the 
county. Chotank Parish (later known as St. Paul's) covered the southern part of the county and fell in 1777 into King George 
County, Virginia. (267) Notes for Mary Ann (Sudduth) Bolling, Stafford County, Virginia, Will Book, page 329: This day 
(year 1757) came Mary Bolling and Jane Thompson and made oath before me on the holy Evangelists of Almighty God that 
in the 12th day of this instant they heard Thomas Smith as he lay sick on his bed express these words. That his desire was the 
Mary Bolling should have the bed and bed cloaths that she lay on and a sow and piggs and that the rest of his estate after 
paying his debts he give to William Bolling (183c) son of Mary Bolling and that Lawrence Sudduth should take care of his 
estate till the said child came of age. Certified under my hand this 22nd of June 1757. Signed John Peyton. At a court held for 
Stafford County, Virginia 12 July 1757 this nuncupative will of Thomas Smith was presented, admitted to record and the said 
Mary Bolling in open court relinquished the legacies left to her by the said will. Administration is granted Lawrence Suddath 
having entered into bond with John Bell and William Mills his securities. page 330: In obedience order worshipfull court 
Stafford County, Virginia, dated 12 July 1757 appointing us the subscribers to value the estate of Mr. Thomas Smith dec'd. 
being first sworn have valued .. items listed and valued.. total L31:1:10. James Doneal, Thomas Hay, James Doneal Jr. At a 
court held for Stafford County, Virginia, 9 Aug 1757 inventory admitted to record. (911) George Washington on July 2, 
1757, from the  Fort Loudoun (Western Frontier), writes to Col. Henry Fitzhugh (1723-1783) of Stafford County, Virginia, 
that he, Washington, has received nine draftees. Six were accepted but three were discharged as “unfit for Service.” One of 
those was Edmond Bowling (Fh183), “rendered unfit for service by an old hurt in his Hip.” (1918) Edmund Bowlin (sic) was 
mentioned in the Stafford County, Virginia, Deed Book Liber P, 1755-1764, page 265, County Reel #1 at the Virginia State 
Library. (2054) Edmund Bowling (sic) was mentioned in the Stafford County, Virginia, Deed Book Liber P, 1755-1764, page 
262, County Reel #1 at the Virginia State Library. (2054) 

Things that are probably wrong

Edmund Bolling served not only during the colonial wars under Washington but also performed military service under Col. Thomas Marshall during the early years of the Revolution. (739) (TB—Those were two different Edmunds. The Edmund that served during the colonial wars (year 1757) was Fh183. The Edmund that served during the Revolution (1777-1778) was Fh185 who was born about 1760 and thus not in the Colonial Wars.)

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

Edmond Fh185 (6A) 432x
-----------------

Edmond 1760-1834 (Rin=46180)/m1817 Mary "Polly" Bryant (b1799 TN)--His father was John #432 (Rin=44674)

*ab
John Cannon bc1819-w1856/m1839 1/w Mary Pettit,m     2/w Nancy -----


*a
James Cannon bc1820


*ab
Joshua 1822-d>1840-<1850

*ab
Edmund/Edmond 1824-1904/m1845 Margaret Laucher or Laughner


*ab
Valentine King (son) bc1828-w1908/m 1/w Tabitha ------,2/w m1865 Eliz. McMillan   


*ab
William Cannon 1831-1904/mc1852 Melissa -----


*
Six sons per source #051


a
Children and wife mentioned in 17 Sept 1834 Will per source #1155


b
Children on chart of "HUB Oct 1984" given to me by source #7

Birth, Parents, Lineage
Edmond Boling was born about 1760.  (91)(658)  Edmund Bowling was born 1760. (51)(957)  Edmund Bolling was born about 1750.  (739) Edmund (Edmond) Bowling was the son of John Bowling (Fh432).  Edmund Bowling had a younger brother Joshua Bowling (Fh459). (51)

Marriage and Children

Edmund Bowling on 16 March 1817 at age 57 married 18 year old Mary "Polly" Bryant the daughter of John Bryant (Bryan).  (51)(957) Burgner's "Greene County, Tennessee Marriages 1783-1868" , page 43 has following marriages 15 March 1817  Edmund Boling to Polly Bryant  Surety: John Bryant     H. D. Hale, J.P. (179) They had six sons.  See the family group list for their names.  Three sons had Cannon as a middlename.  It is thought the name Cannon might be a phonetical spelling of the name Kennon and be from the maternal family. (51)(957) An Edmond Bowling (1824-1904), probably a son, married Margaret Laucher in 1845 in Greene County, Tennessee. (985)
Military

Edmond Boling enlisted in the Revolutionary War at Stafford County, Virginia.  (91)(658)(1073) Edmund Boling, Bollen, Bolling, Bowlin, Bowling was a private in the 3rd Virginia Regiment, Continental Line.  (385)(121)(122) Personal ID:  VA14017, Edmund Bowling, Rank:  Private, Rank Type:  Rank and file

State: Virginia, Regiment:  3rd Virginia, Division:  3rd Division, Brigade:  3rd Virginia Brigade, Company: Mercer's, Monthly Status Data December 1777: January 1778: February 1778: Discharge

March 1778: Discharge (1414) When 15 years old had joined the third Virginia Regiment, served two years. Was in the battle of Brandywine, Germantown and Pascataway. Discharged Valley Forge 1778. (51)(957) Edmond Boling applied for a pension S39206, 1829 in Greene County, Tennessee, age 69.  The petition said Edmond Boling had a wife and five small children, the oldest only 11 years old. Brother Joshua Boling, age 57, a resident of Greene County, Tennessee, attested to his age.  (91)(658)(1073) Edmund Boling's pension application #S39206 - 29 Jan 1829 Greene County, Tennessee, aged 69 (b. ca1760) .(entered service in Stafford County, Virginia) (179) Likely a sister Ann who married -----Callahan, in 1829, at 74 years old, Ann Callahan witnessed, along with Joshua Bowling (Fh459), the application for Revolution war pension of Edmund Bowling (Fh185). (51) Edmund's brother Joshua, aged 57 in 1829, (b. ca1772) attested to Edmund's service. (179)(1624) Edmund Boling (Bowlin, Bowling) received a pension in Tennessee.  (385) Edmond or Edmon Boling (Fh185,432b,6A), S39206, Virginia Line, applied 1829, in Greene County, Tennessee. aged 69. Soldier enlisted in Stafford County, Virginia, in 1829 soldier had a wife and 5 small children, in 1829 soldier's brother Joshua Boling (Fh459,432d,6A) was aged 57 and a resident of Greene County, Tennessee. (1593) During my recent trip to the Richmond, Virginia, Archives. Edmond Boling (Fh185,432b,A,6) - entered military service from Stafford County, Virginia.  Applied 29 Jan 1829 Greene County, Tennessee, Brother Joshua Boling (Fh459,432d,A,6). (1553) Edmond Boling Revolutionary Pension #S39206. (2088)

Movement

1779

Edmond Bowling signed a 1779 petition in Stafford County, Virginia. (1758) 
1787

Edmund Boling was on the tax list of Fauquier County, Virginia, in 1787.  (551) 
1790-1795

Edmund Bowling was on the 1790-1795 tax list of Fauquier County, Virginia. (23) As far as I can tell the Edmund Bowling that was in Fauquier County, Virginia, went to Green County, Tennessee along with Joshua Bowling about 1793.  They both appear to have come earlier from Stafford County, Virginia. (23) About 1786-7 (sic) Edmund and his younger brother Joshua migrated to Greene County, 
Tennessee. 
From the Place index

Greene,TN—



Jeremiah (UK) t1812


6A
Edmond (Fh185,432c) t1812,d1834 (FAG=99999999)


6A

John Cannon (185a) bc1819


6A

James Cannon (185b) bc1820


6A

Joshua (185c) b1822


6A

Edmund Jr. (185d) b1824


6A

Valentine (185e) b1828


6A

William Cannon (185f) b1831  

1798

In 1798 Edmund purchased 100 acres of land on Lick Creek in Greene County, Tennessee. The state had been created in 1796. (51)(957) "Greene County, Tennessee Guardian & Orphan Court Record 1783-1870 & 1830 Tax List" (Did not note author) has Bouling (did not note all spellings): Joshua Sr., Joshua, Jr.; William; Edmund, Edmund, Sr. (179) Edmund Bolin (Fh185), Benjamin Bolin (Fh140), and Josus Bolin (Fh459) are on the 1798 tax list of Greene County, Tennessee, all on Lick Creek. Edmund had 100 acres. (1301) Edmund Bolling was one of the leaders in the westward migration arriving in Green County, Tennessee. (739) Edmond Boling resided in Green County, Tennessee since about 1799.  (91)(658)  Edmond Bowling, along with Jeremiah Bowling, was on the 1812 tax list of Green County, Tennessee.  (222)
Death

Edmund Bolling died in Green County, Tennessee, in the 1830's.  (739) Edmund Bowling died 27 Oct 1834 in Greene County, Tennessee leaving his wife Mary "Polly" with six small sons.  Polly remarried 25 July 1839 to William Newall. (51)(957) Edmund Boling's will (BR-1, p. 124 will Greene County, Tennessee, dated 17 Sept 1834 -not proved) I, Edmund Boling, Sr. of County of Greene & State of Tennessee... resign body to dust & soul to God... burial expenses be paid...just debts paid...wife Polley Boling have plantation where on we now live all my stock and moveable estate at her disposal to raise and school my children until my son William C. Boling shall attain age of 21 years at which time my executors to divide the remainder of my estate equally between my six sons: John Boling, James Boling, Joshua Boling, Edmund Boling, Valentine King Boling, William Cannon Boling, my wife have equal share if living.... my beloved wife Polley Boling, Executrix, and Nicholass Dunagin, Executor. attest: Joseph Davis, John Wood, johnbryan (sic) signed Edmund (x) Boling (179)(1624)

Will of Edmund Boling Fh185,A,6
Greene Co TN 17 Sep 1834 (not proved)
BR-1, p. 124 Greene Co TN
State of Tennessee Green County


In the name of god amen - I Edmund Boling Snr of County of green and State of Tennessee being of sound mind & memory Blessed be god & calling to mind the Certainty of Death and the uncertainty of life and being desirous to distribute my worley substance amongst my heirs on this 17 day of September1834, I make this my Last will and testament in manner and form following, first I resign my body to the dust and my soule to god that gave it me. 2that my Burial Expenses be paid. thirdly that all my just debts be punctually paid out of my Estate & fourthly my will is that my wife Polley Boling have my plantation where on we now live with all my stock and moveable Estate at her own disposal to raise and school my Children on untill my sun William C. Boling shall attain to the age of twenty one years at which time my will is that my Executors to divid the remainder of myEstate Equally between my six suns to wit John Boling, James Boling,  Joshua Boling, Edmund Boling, Valentine King Boling, William Cannon Boling, my wife to have her Equal share if Living  Revoking all other wills or instruments of all kinds made by me before this date signd seald & deliverdin the presents of us who were presnt this 17 day of September 1834                            his mark    Edmund (x) Boling (seal)
I also appoint my beloved wife Polley Boling & Nicholas Dunagin my Executrix and my Executor of this my last will and Testament-- not proved (in a different handwriting below the signature) attest Joseph Davis
John Wood
John Bryan (sic)

NOTES: Burgner's Greene County, Tennessee Marriages 1783-1868 p. 43 has15 March 1817 Edmund Bowling to Polly Bryant Sur.  John Bryant      H. D. Hale (J.P.)


This is the will of Rev. War pensioner Edmond Boling #S39206 filed 29 Jan1829 -East TN, Green Co, aged 69, enlisted 3rd VA Reg. Cont. estab. in Stafford Co VA... having wife and five small children, oldest only 11. Lived Green Co TN about 30 yrs. Schedule of property given 18 Mar 1818.. old age and bodily infirmity...unable to work to maintain self and family 29 Jan 1829 Greene Co TN brother Joshua Boling aged 57 made oath as to service of Edmund Boling, his brother
        Joshua (x) Boling

Things that are probably wrong

Edmund Bolling served not only during the colonial wars under Washington but also performed military service under Col. Thomas Marshall during the early years of the Revolution. (739) (TB—Those were two different Edmands. The Edmund that served during the colonial wars (1757) was Fh183. The Edmund that served during the Revolution (1777-1778) was Fh185 who was born about 1760 and thus not in the Colonial Wars.)

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

Eli Fh225 (6Y) 303x
-----------------

Eli Fh225 6Y Boleyn-(1795-1870) (Rin=50659,FS/FT=K4G4-5VK, FAG=121822032)- Head of String Y His father was James Fh303

A descendant kit 46808 tested into DNA 6. It is a 25/25 match with Kit 4833(Z), Kit 16668(Z), Kit 35942(Z) and Kit 



2388(M17).

*a   d
James E. 1814-1857/m1833 Mary Green,m<1849 Mary Richmond

  a   d
Mary 1816

*a   d
Nancy 1816-1893


*a   d
Margaret 1818-1838/m1835 George W. Fitch d1847

*abc
Deborah 1824-1895/m1839/40 1/h George W. Fitch d1847, m1862 2/h William O. Hagerman

*abc
Samuel B. 1827-1903/m1847 1/w Margaret Ann Rice d1852, m1853 2/w Sarah J. Brown, m1895 





3/w Ada Scoby—He Find A Grave Memorial 25495393

*abc
Thomas 1832-1913/m1851 1/w Mary Ann Brown,m1902 2/w Elizabeth Strangeland



A descendant kit 46808 tested into DNA 6

*abc
James (David?)1835-1918/1/w m<1874 Malisa Scoby 2/w mc1874 Sarah Jane Scobey

                   c
Jane bc1837

                   c
Eli bc1837


*
Children per source #801 (Douglas Boleyn)

a
Children per source #1916 (LDS AF)

b
Per the 1880 Census, all were born in Ohio, and both parents were born in Virginia, except 



Deborah states that mother was born in Pennsylvania.

c
In the 1850 Census of Mercer County, PA, Eli Bolen bc1792 OH (sic, not likely Ohio).



d
1830 Census of St. Clair Township, Columbiana County, Ohio, with 5 white under 20 and 2 white 20-29. 




(7)(Ancestry.com)
Birth, Parents, Lineage

Eli Boleyn/Bolen was born about 1790. (646) Eli Boleyn was born in Virginia. Four of his children in the 1880 Census said he was born in Virginia. See below. (7) Eli Boleyn was born in the 1790's somewhere in SW Pennsylvania perhaps the "neck" of what is now West XE "West"  Virginia, then Virginia. (801) 
A descendant kit 46808 tested into DNA 6, it is a 25/25 match with Kit 4833 Z and kit 35942 Z

Kit 4833's descendant is Joseph Fh457, 386a, 6Z


Kit 35942's descendant is Samuel Fh624, 386b, 6Z 

I don't have any strong evidence that he came through Pennsylvania in his younger years. He and his family did have a 10-14 year stint there between c1840 and 1854 when he was in Mercer County, Pennsylvania. His wife Jane Brisbine was born in Westmoreland County, Pennsylvania, which is the only evidence he may have come through Pennsylvania in his younger days (c1800-1810). (801) Eli Boleyn was born 1793 in Virginia, and his wife, Jane Brisbine, was born in Westmoreland County, Pennsylvania, in 1790, their marriage taking place in Ohio, in 1812. (1841) Perhaps a sibling Elizabeth married 1810 James Coburn, Columbiana, Ohio. In Eli Boleyn's War of 1812 record, it states that he was a "substitute for James Coburn". I keep wondering if Elizabeth Bolin was Eli's sister, and that Eli was substituting for his brother-in-law, James Coburn. A theory at this point. I think I've located an Elizabeth (Coburn) death record in Columbiana County, Ohio in the 1870's - but just gives a date of death, no details. (801) Elijah Bowling was on Muster Roll #301, War of 1812, along with James Bowling, and Charles Bowling. (1459) They could be brothers. (801) In the 1820 census of Columbiana County, Ohio, there was a James, a Charles, and my Eli. They could be brothers. (801)

I believe that Eli (Fh225) Boleyn/family may have been in PA perhaps from early 1790’s (after Eli was born) up until 1810 or so, maybe longer. In all Eli’s census records, he declares he was born in Virginia, so if I can take Eli at his word, that puts his birth family still in VA in 1790. His wife, Jane Brisbine, was born in Hempstead Twp, Westmoreland County, Pennsylvania around 1790, and either migrated to Columbiana County OH by 1810 or so, then married Eli there, or else they married somewhere in PA. I have never found a marriage record for them in either PA or OH, although one source says they were married in 1812 in Trumbull Co OH (no proof). What is clear is that Eli was in Columbiana County OH by 1812, based on War of 1812 muster records. (801)

Eli 1793-1869 (Rin=50659)(FS/FT=K4G4-5VK) (AFN:1C8L-B11)/m1812 OH Jane Brisbine (1790-1859)--His father was James Fh303

—One source, #1916, has his father as Aaron #7.5. (See below why this is wrong)

Source #801 thinks his father was James Fh303 Boleyn- is the 4th great-grandfather of Douglas Robert K Boleyn-Kit 46808 6Y. (James relationship is speculation based on proximity to Eli in the 1820 census in Columbiana County, Ohio.)

6Y   Elijah Eli (Fh225,303e) r1812, t1827,t1828, r1830 (Census)—A descendant’s kit 46808 tested into DNA Group 6
6Y 
James (225a) b1814,m1833 (Mary Green) I have further info. on James’ family and descendants. (801)

6Y     
Mary (225b) b1816 

6Y    
Nancy (225c) b1816

6Y    
Margaret (225d)  b1818,m1835 (George W. Fitch)—he later marries Deborah 225e in Trumbull Co, OH

Reasons why Eli (Fh225) was not Aaron’s (Fh7.5) son (801, Doug Boleyn)

I’m still convinced (in year 2017) that we are not related to the Aaron Boylans (Fh7.5). Here are some historical items from my Boylan research for your information – and unless I can find some kind of reliable evidence of the connection, I’ll stay by my conclusion:

1. Our Boleyns were originally “tied” to these Boylans in an LDS Family Group Sheet issued by LDS member Joan Y. Leavitt back in the 1970’s or so. I was skeptical, so I checked out the original references she listed on the LDS application files. I obtained copies of each of the references and pored over them. There was no connection at all. These were records/histories of the Boylan family, but no connection to our Boleyns. 

2. I obtained copies of the Aaron Boylan (Sarah McDade) widow’s pension application, in which (I assume) all of Aaron’s and Sarah’s children were listed. All those you show were listed except Eli. 

3. In the list of children, an Andrew was born in 1793, which was the same year the Joan Leavitt had for an “estimated” Eli birth year. Even for large families back then, I felt that Eli being born in 1792 or 3 was not reasonable. 

4. I obtained a copy of the Boylan family history written in the 1920’s/1930’s written by a Burt Boylan. There were extensive family genealogies in this book from the Aarons on down, but no reference at all to an Eli Boleyn/Boylan name anywhere. 

5. I met with a Boylan family genealogist back in the 1990’s in Mercer County PA. (I’m trying to remember her name…in my notes somewhere). She and I pored over both of our records for a couple hours, and while we found Eli’s family and Aaron Boylan Jr’s family in the same (Mercer County PA) county in 1850, there were no family connections we could see. 

6. I looked up a Boylan on Family Tree DNA a few years ago and connected with him to see his Y DNA profile. We were mismatched by at least two markers on the Y12 test, and if I recall correctly, the profile was off significantly for the Y25 test. 

7. I continue to look for Boylans popping up in Trees of my Family Finder or Ancestry DNA family trees, and haven’t seen any yet. That being said, there are quite a few Bollings, Bolens, Bolings and Bolins.

Bottom line is I just haven’t been able to find any record of the connection, especially from original records written back in the early 1800’s. I’d be curious to see what Dorothy McAlister’s (source #1916) evidence might be.

Making things mushy here is again, Eli Boleyn and Aaron Boylan Jr were found in the same places a time or two. Secondly, until I checked out items above, I had written a little booklet that I gave to some family members in Iowa back in the late 1970’s. That booklet, unfortunately, has had legs over the last couple of decades, and I think I might have been the source of people still tying Boleyn’s to Boylans in some of their family trees. Wherever I see them on Ancestry I try to write them a note to correct this. A couple have done so. (801)

Marriage and Children

Eli Boleyn/Bolen married 1812 Jane Brisbine, Trumbull County, Ohio. (646) Eli Boleyn/Bolen married 1812 Jane Brisbine. (801)  
They had children:

a.
James. (801) 

b.
Mary. (801) 

c.
Nancy. (801) 

d.
Margaret. (801) A daughter of Eli and Jane Brisbine Boleyn was Deborah Boleyn who married Geoge Fitch. George 
Fitch was twice married, his wives being sisters. His first wife was Margaret Boleyn. (1841)

e.
Deborah. (801) A daughter of Eli and Jane Brisbine Boleyn was Deborah Boleyn who married Geoge Fitch. George 
Fitch was twice married, his wives being sisters. His first wife was Margaret Boleyn. (1841)


Household:

 
Wm. O. HAGERMAN
Self   M   Male
49   NY   Farmer

PA   --- 

 
Deborah B. HAGERMAN
Wife  M   Female
55   OH   Keeping House   
VA   PA 

 
Filo F. HAGERMAN
Son   S    Male
16   IA   At Home

NY   OH 

 
Elmer V. FITCH 

GSon S   Male
14   IA   At Home

OH   MI 

 
Alice A. FITCH

GDau S   Female
12   IA   At Home

OH   MI 

 
Census Place, Illyria, Fayette, Iowa

f.
Samuel B. (801) Samuel Bolen is on the 1850 Census of Sandy Lake Township, Mercer County, Pennsylvania, #257. 
(???)  Sam L. Boleyn in the 1880 Census (below). Born Ohio. Parents born in Virginia.


Household Record,  1880 United States Census 

 
Sam L. BOLEYN

Self  M   Male
53   OH ,  Farmer

VA ,  VA 

 
Sarah BOLEYN

Wife M   Female
48   PA ,  Keeping House
PA ,  PA 

 
Harvey J BOLEYN
Son  S   Male
23   IA ,  At Home

OH ,  PA 

 
Mary E BOLEYN

Dau  S   Female
20   IA ,  At Home

OH ,  PA 

 
Margaret A. BOLEYN
Dau  S   Female
15   IA ,  At Home

OH ,  PA 

 
Manda E. BOLEYN
Dau  S   Female
  3   IA ,  At Home

OH ,  PA 

 
Frank BOLEYN

Son  S   Male
  1   IA ,  At Home

OH ,  PA 


Census Place, Illyria, Fayette, Iowa

g.
Thomas. (801) A descendant of son Thomas, kit 46808, tested into DNA 6. 


Household Record,  1880 United States Census 

 
Thomas BOLEYN
Self   M   Male
50   OH   Farmer

VA   VA 

 
Mary A. BOLEYN
Wife  M   Female
50   PA ,  Keeping House
MD   PA 

 
Sarah BOLEYN
Dau   S   Female
21   IA  Works At Home
OH   PA 

 
Samuel BOLEYN
Son   S   Male
19   IA   At Home

OH   PA 

 
John BOLEYN
Son   S   Male
17   IA   At Home

OH   PA 

 
Adam BOLEYN
Son   S   Male
13   IA   At Home

OH   PA 

 
William H. WING
GSon S   Male
  7   IA 


NY   IA 

 
Mary WING
GDau S   Female 
  2   IA 


NY   IA 


Census Place, Pleasant Valley, Fayette, Iowa

h.
David. (801) Sometimes recorded as James for some reason.

Household Record
 1880 United States Census 


David BOLEYN 
 Self 
 M 
 Male 
 W 
 45 
 OH 
 Laborer 
 
VA 
 VA 


Sarah A. BOLEYN 
 Wife 
 M 
 Female 
 W 
 28 
 IN 
 Keeping House 
 KY 
 KY 


Source Information: Census Place Pleasant Valley, Fayette, Iowa

At least three of these children married in Trumbull County, Ohio, and at least one of the children married in Columbiana County, Ohio. (801) Seven children were born unto Eli and Jane Brisbine Boleyn, two of whom are now living, Thomas and David. Thomas came from Pennsylvania to Iowa by boat, in 1852, and the following year settled in Illyria, Fayette County, Iowa. Others of the family followed four years later, so that all were residents of Iowa in 1856, except James and Nancy. The mother died in Illyria Township, Fayette County, Iowa in February, 1858, and her husband followed her twelve years later. (1841) Son Benjamin is listed 1878 in Fayette County, Iowa, as BOLYEN, Samuel, farmer, Section 16; P. O. Wadena. (7)

Military Service

Eli Bowlin had War of 1812 military service with a regiment from Columbiana County, Ohio. (801) Elijah Bowling was on Muster Roll #301, War of 1812, along with James Bowling, and Charles Bowling. (1459) Eli Boleyn was a soldier in the second war with England, and was assigned to duty on the frontier of Ohio, where all his toes were frozen off, and he was discharged. (1841) Eli Boleyn, served in the war of 1812, in which service he lost all his toes by freezing. Years later Eli Boleyn organized and drilled a company at Elgin, Iowa, for the Civil war and shed tears when denied a commission by the governor, by reason of his advanced years. (1841) “The Boleyn family is of English origin, and was founded in America (Virginia) soon after the Cromwellian insurrection. In fact the founder of the family in this country, Col. Robert “Bolling,” (sic) was one of Cromwell’s exiled officers. They have been an intensely loyal race, and have borne arms in defense of American institutions throughout all the early wars with Indians and the mother country. The maternal grandfather (Eli Boleyn) of the subject was a soldier in the Indian wars, and also in the war of 1812, losing all his toes by freezing during his service in the latter. And though disabled for life, and very poor, he strenuously refused to apply for a pension, and went to his grave feeling that no man who is able to provide for himself should ever become a pensioner on the government. He was a cooper by occupation, and was thus enabled to provide a scanty living.” (1841)

Movement

1820

In the 1820 census of Columbiana County, Ohio, there was a James (Fh303), a Charles (303f), and my Eli (Fh225,303e). (801) 
1830

Eli Bolen was in the 1830 Census of St. Clair Township, Columbiana County, Ohio, with 5 white under 20 and 2 white 20-29. (7)(Ancestry.com) 
From the Place Index

Columbiana,OH-created 1803 from Jefferson, Washington


6Y
James (Fh303) r1820(Census, Age 45+,i.e. b<1775)


6Y

Clara (303b) m1809 (Alexander McKean)


6Y

Elizabeth (303c) m1810 (James Coburn)


6Y

James (Fh284,303d) r1812,m1813 (Sophia Pearce)


6Y

Elijah Eli (Fh225,303e) r1812,r1820 (Census) t1827,t1828, r1830 (Census)—A descendant’s kit 46808





 tested into DNA Group 6—See his family below

6Y

Charles (303f) r1812, r1820 (Census)


6Y

Margaret (303g) m1816 (George Kern)


6Y

Nancy (303h) m1817 (Joseph Green)


6Y

Sarah (303i) m1823 (Robert Black)


6Y
Elijah Eli (Fh225,303e) r1812, t1827,t1828, r1830 (Census)-A descendant’s kit 46808 tested into DNA Group 6

6Y

James (225a) b1814,m1833 (Mary Green)


6Y

Mary (225b) b1816 


6Y

Nancy (225c) b1816


6Y

Margaret (225d)  b1818,m1835 (George W. Fitch)—he later marries Deborah 225e in Trumbull Co, OH



Philip (UK) t1830



Joseph (UK) t1827,t1828,t1830



Rachael (UK) r1820 (Census, 1 white under 16, 2 whites over 25, Bolan)



Thomas (UK) m1837 (Salina Pearce), earlier a Sophia Pearce married James Fh284, 303b, see above. 



William (UK) t1830,r1830(Census, 6 whites under 20, 2 whites 20-49) 

1850

Eli Bolen was on the 1850 Census of Mercer County, Pennsylvania, he was born 1792 in Ohio. (2089) Eli Boleyn was in the 1850 Census of Sandy Lake Township, Mercer County, Pennsylvania. Mercer County, Pennsylvania is next to Trumbull County, Ohio, the county where they were married. 
From the Place Index

Mercer,PA-created 1800 from Allegheny



Aaron Boylan (Fh7.5, b1749) d1824 (Rin=52328 FAG=54197559)



Sarah (wife of Aaron Fh7.5) d1865


Formally 6Y, now not DNA 6---Aaron is not DNA 6. Descendant kits 915297 and 930704 are not DNA 6


6Y
Eli (Fh225,303a) r1850(Census, bc1792,VA),rc1840-c1854,—To Fayette IA—A descendant’s kit 





46808 (Doug Boleyn tested into DNA  Group 6


6Y

Samuel B. (225f) m1847 (Margaret Rice)


6Y

Thomas (225g) m1851 (Mary Ann Brown)

1850 and 1860

In both census, 1850 and 1860, he lists his birth state as Virginia. His wife Jane was from the Brisbines of Westmoreland County, Pennsylvania. Eli Boleyn was in the 1860 Census of  Illyria or Pleasant Valley Township, Fayette County, Iowa. (801)
From the Place Index

Fayette,IA-created 1837 from Clayton


6Y
Eli (Fh225,303a) r1860(Census),d1869—came from Mercer PA


6Y

David (225h) r1880 (Census)


6Y

Deborah (225e) r1880 (Census)


6Y

Samuel (225f) r1880 (Census bc1827)


6Y

Thomas (225g) r1880 (Census),d1913-- A descendant of Thomas, kit 46808, tested into DNA 6.

Death

Eli Boleyn died in 1869 in Fayette County, Iowa. (801) Eli Boleyn died in Fayette County, Iowa in 1869. He was a sterling character whom everybody respected. (1841)

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

Elijah Fh2281 (6B) 418x
-----------------

Elijah 1774-1814 (Rin=50702, LHNW-T8Z)/m1792 Ailcey Barracks (d>1811)—His father was John #418

a
Nancy b1792-1814


a
Elizabeth Mildred b1803/m1826 Elijah Allen Wright


a
John Presley 1804-1888/m       1/w Alice Alvis/Alvice m1846 Elizabeth Duncan



A Descendant Kit 163538 tested into DNA 6


a
Russel b1808/m      Elizabeth ----- (b1815 PA)


a
William B. 1811-1888/m1836 Nancy Ann Elizabeth Hackworth (1820-1900)


a
Per Source #2116

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

Elijah Fh2282 (6M21) 235x
-----------------

Elijah 1784-1869 (Rin=47788)/m       Atchsah ------- (1789 MD-1861)--His father was George #235 (Rin=50768) FAG=43098482


*
Male b1805-1810



*
Thorton b: 1815 in Ohio d: 1880 in Holmes Co., Ohio


*
1820 Census of Lake Twp., Wayne County, Ohio.(1 male <10, 1 male 10-15, 1 male and 1 female 26-44)
Birth, Parents, Lineage

Elijah Boling was born June 24, 1784 in Culpepper County, Virginia. A note says "Eli was born 24 June 1774 (sic, probably 1784) in Culpeper County, Virginia. (1086) 
Movement

1815, 1819, 1820, 1823
Elijah Bollin was in Lake Township, Wayne County, Ohio, in 1815, 1819, 1823. (7) Elijah Bolen was in the 1820 U.S. Census of Lake Township, Wayne County, Ohio with males 110010 and female 00010.  Others in the county in that census were: James Bolan (Fh2841,235d,6M21), George Bolen (Fh236,235e,6M21) and John Bolen (Fh373,235b,6M21). (317)(HeritageQuest.com)  That part of Wayne County became Holmes County, Ohio, in 1824. James Bolen (Fh2841,235d,M21) was in the 1820 U.S. Census of Franklin, Wayne County, Ohio, with males 2 - - 2 - -, Females 2 - 1 - -.  Also in that county at that time were: Elijah Bolen (Fh2282,235a,6M21), George Bolen (Fh236,235e,6M21), and John Bolen (Fh373,235b,6M21). (317)
From the Place Index

Wayne,OH-created 1808 from Columbiana


6M21
Elijah (Fh2282,235a) r1815,r1819,r1820(Census),r1823-Part that in 1824 became Holmes Co.


6M21
George (Fh236,235e) r1819,r1820(Census),r1823,t1825,r1826,r1830(Census),r1831--then to Seneca, OH


6M21

Elizabeth (236e) b1831



6M21

Enoch (236d) b1826


6M21
James (Fh2841,235d) r1820(Census age 18-26),r1823,r1830(Census),r1833


6M21

Allan (2841a) b1833


6M21
John (Fh373,235b)r1815,r1819, r1820(Census),r1823-Part that in 1824 became Holmes Co.


John (UK) bc1809, later m1833 Margaret Hindman
1825

Elijah Bolin was a tax payer 1825 in Holmes County, Ohio. (298) 
From the Place Index

Holmes,OH-created 1824 from Coshocton, Wayne, Tuscarawas


6M21
Elijah (Fh2282,235a) t1825,r1850(Census,age 66,VA),r1860-part that earlier was Wayne Co.


6M21
John (Fh373,235b) r1850(Census, age 62 VA)-part that earlier was Wayne Co.


6M21

Fleisher/Fletcher (373a,bc1811) m1833(Jane Steel),r1850(Census, age 39 OH)


6M21

Sarah (373a) m1828 (James Shearer),r1860


6M21

Thornton (373b,bc1815) m1839,r1849,r1850 (Census, age 35, OH),m1855,r1880 (Census wife 





Elizabeth)


6M21

John (373c,bc1823) r1850(Census, age 27 OH)


6M21

Titus (373d, bc1826) r1850(Census, age 24, OH)


6M21

William (373e,bc1828) r1850,d1856



George W. (UK) b1825
1850

Elijah Boling was in the 1850 Census of Washington Township, Holmes County, Ohio. He was age 66 or born about 1784.  His birthplace was Virginia.  His wife was Atchsah age 58 born in Maryland. There was a Mary Harpster age 20 born PA in the household. John Boling (235b,Fh373,M21), age 62 was in the same Holmes County, Ohio, 1850, Census but was in Hardy township. (1086) 
1860

John born 1788 and Elijah were definitely brothers. Elijah and his wife were listed as members of the household of Sarah Shearer, Sarah was John's oldest child, in the census of 1860. In a court case Sept 11, 1882 (sic, do they mean 1862), Elijah Boling vs Sarah Shearer et al, regarding farming shares, etc she refers to him as Uncle Elijah. (1086). 
Death

Elijah Boling died February 27, 1869 at 85 years of old age. Elijah Boling died in the home of Sarah Boling Shearer (373a), the oldest daughter of John and Dorcas Boling (Fh373). I conclude that Elijah and John Boling were brothers. (1086) 

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

Elliot Fh2284 (6M1) 730x
-----------------

Elliot b1799-d>1856 (Rin=51303)/1/w m1820 Jenny Mercer—His father was Thomas #730 (Rin=51271) 


*
Lucinda Jane b1820/m1872 George Sims (1832-1906) 


*
James b1826/m1851 Eliza Jane Johnson b1834 


*
Ira D. b1828

*
Christopher 1831-1904/1/w m1853 Charlotte Ray 

            


2/w m      Mary Jane Wheatley (1839-1904)

*
Moses b1832




 


*
Elliot Samuel Batin 1835-1906/m      Mary Elizabeth Bolin (1850-1918) 

 

2/w m1836 Jane Leffler


*
Elander b1838 


*
Marion b1840 


*
Elizabeth b1842 


*
Mc Donald 1844-1926/m1867 Lucy Fleming Austin b. 1844

*
Elliot b1844
 


*
Louiseiana Bolin b1848

*
William Lancaster b1852


*
Martha J. b1856

*
Children per Source #1741 (Elsie Bolin )

a
Ellet Bolin was in the Perry County, Indiana, in 1820 males 000100, females 00100. 





(HeritageQuest.com)


b
Elsie has Alexander Bolin (730h) and Elliot Bolin (Fh 2284 730d) as sons of Thomas Fh730. I strongly 



believe that they are the same person either Elliot Alexander or Alexander Elliot. Sometimes he went by 



Elliot and sometimes he went by Alexander. I can send you information as why I believe this if you want 



it. (2175)

Birth, Parents, Lineage

Elliot Bolin was born 1799, the son of Thomas Bolin (Fh730,268a,6M1). (1741)  Elliot Bolin married 24 February 1820, Jenny Mercer. 
They had children: 

a.
Lucinda Jane Bolin b. 1820 m. 18   Jan.1872 George Sims b. 1Jan.1832 d. 28June1906 

b.
James Bolin b. 1826 m. 5Nov.1851 Eliza Jane Johnson b. 1834 

c.
Arad Bolin b. 1828 

d.
Chirstopher Bolin b. 1831 d. 28 May 1904 m. 07 July1853 Charlolette Ray and  m. Mary Jane Wheatley b. 05 July1839 d. 
15May 1904 

e.
Elander Bolin b. 1838 

f.
Marion Bolin b. 1840 

g.
Elizabeth Bolin b. 1842 

Elliot  Samuel Batin  Bolin b. 25 Oct 1835 d. 23 May1906 m. 10 Nov. Mary Elizabeth Bolin b. 20 Sept.1850 d. 14 Sept. 1918 

Mc Donald Bolin b. 1844 d. July23,1926 m. 30 Mar.1867 Lucy Fleming Austin b. 1844 Louiseiana Bolin b. 1848 (1741) 

In 1810 the Bolins were in Hardin County, Kentucky.  Hardin County adjoins Nelson County. (7)  Ellet Bolin in about 1815 with William and Thomas Bolin left Kentucky for Perry County, Indiana. Ellet Bolin married 1820 Jenny Mercer in Perry County, Indiana. (1212) Ellet Bolin was in the Perry County, Indiana, in 1820 males 000100, females 00100. (HeritageQuest.com) Elliot Bowling is in the 1840 Census of Perry County, Indiana, as age 30-40. Five (5) minor males, and one (1) minor female, and one (1) female age 20-30. (on-line at Ancestry.com) 
+++++++++++++++++++++++++

Benjamin Fh2285 (6X) 634c
-----------------

Benjamin Elliott c1755-1844 (Rin=50943, G4F7-SFD)/        Emily       (bc1760-d<1845)—His father was Simon #643


He appoints James (Fh287) and William M. Boling (Probably Willaim Martin) as his executors, so probably his sons--Head of String X---blands into 6A 

Descendant kit 2800 & 86477 tested into DNA 6

Descendants kit 6590 & 267717 tested into DNA 6



James b1789d>1844-Executor of father’s will--See Family #287  

*a
Martin 1794-d>1844-Executor of father’s will


Martha


*a
Thomas Jackson 1801-d>1850 (Rin-50944)/m      Mary Elmira McDonald (1802-d>1850)




Descendants kit 6590 & 267717 tested into DNA 6

*a
Benjamin 1805-1876/m     Martha Powell (1811-1887)




Descendants kit 2800 & 86477 tested into DNA 6
  
  a
Amelia "Milly" b1810/m1826 Ellis Shelton (b1805 SC)

  
  a
Rachel b1807/m      William Shelton Jr. (b1803 SC)


*a
Jeremiah 1812-1889/mc1832 Nancy Elmira Batson (1820-1905)    



Elizaberth b1815



Female 5



Female 6 


*
Named in father's will who died 1844 in Greenville, S.C.


a
Sons per source #1421. There were possibly twin daughters (Rachel and Amelia), too. (1421)

Birth, Parents, Lineage

Elliott Boling/Bolling/Bowling was born about 1765. (845) Elliot Bolling was born about 1775 (sic, he was 16 or older in 1790, see below). (1246) Elliot Boling, (Fh2285) was born in either North Carolina or Virginia and was in the Greenville County area of South Carolina by 1800, that is the first year he was listed in a South Carolina census (sic, see 1790 Census below). (1421) Elliott Boling probably was from Virginia. Family history has been passed down that these Bolings are descendants of Pocahontas (sic, no). (1421)(2114) Our Bollings came from Virginia to Greenville, South Carolina. (1246)(2114)

Lines of Descent from 


Simon Fh629 BOWLING-


45539 b.1620


Simon Fh633 BOLEY-


57107 b.1654


Simon Fh634 6B BOLEY-


62018 b.1720


Benjamin Elliot Fh2285 6X BOLING-

50943 b.1775

Marriage and Children

Elliott married ----- -----. (845) Benjamin Elliott Boling married Nancy Emily Ayers (bc1760-d1845 both in Greenville SC). (LDS Pedigree File) Another relative working on the family states that Elliot's full name was Benjamin Elliot Boling and that his wife's name was Emily. (1421) Elliot Boling’s 1844 will lists plainly his sons Thomas, Martin, Benjamin and Jeremiah. (1421) 
Children:

a.
Thomas. (1421) I show Benjamin Elliot Bolling (1755-1844) as the Father of Thomas Jackson Bowling (b1801). 

(2156) Thomas Bowlin (Rin=50944) was born in Alexandria, Virginia. He enlisted 1814 in the U.S. Army at Salem, 
Roanoke County, Virginia. He listed his occupation as farmer. He was discharged 1815 at Sacketts Harbor, NewYork. 
(588) Descendants kit 6590 & 267717 tested into DNA 6
b.
Martin. Martin Boling’s father was Eliott Boling (Fh2285) per this will, Greenville County, SC Probate Office: Roll 7,  Apt. 9, 
File 670, 1844, WILL OF ELIOTT BOLING (Fh2285) STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA, GREENVILLE DISTRICT. In the 
name of God, Amen, I, Eliott Boling, etc. etc. First, I give and bequeath to Thomas Boling, Martin Boling, Benjamin Boling 
and Jeremiah Boling, etc. etc.. (1421) My Martin (Fh4651) is not the Martin of Greenville South Carolina nor of Orangeburg. 
(1793)  Martin’s brother Benjamin (2285d) has a descendant Kit 2800 that tested into DNA 6.
c.
Benjamin. Son Benjamin has a descendant kit 2800 who tested into DNA 6. (1421) Son Benjamin was born in 1805. (1421) 
Benjamin Boling (2285c 6X (1805-1876)) and two brothers left their native state of Virginia about 1818, two settling in 
Upper Greenville County, South Carolina, while the other went to Georgia. The Bolings originated in Roanoke County, 
Virginia. (2114) 
d.
Jeremiah. Son Jeremiah was in the 1880 Census of Greenville County, South Carolina:



Jeremiah BOWLING
Self
M
Male
67   SC ,  Farmer   

NC ,  NC 



Nancy E. BOWLING
Wife
M
Female
56   SC ,  Keeps House
SC ,  SC 



William A. BOWLING
Son
S
Male
28   SC ,  Works On Farm 
SC ,  SC 



Joicy L. BOWLING
Dau
S
Female
20   SC


SC ,  SC 



Robert H. BOWLING
Son
S
Male
18   SC


SC ,  SC 



Source Information: Census Place, Chick Springs, Greenville, South Carolina

e.
Milly, daugher, born about 1810/12 in Greenville, SC, who married Ellis Shelton. (1246)

f.
possibly twin daughters (Rachel and Amelia) (1421)

g.
possibly twin daughters (Rachel and Amelia) (1421)

Movement

By the 1790s Elliott Boling was in Greenville County, South Carolina. (1421) Elliot Bowlin was in Greenville County, South Carolina, in 1790 in household 068 with 01 00 01 00 00 (a male 16 or older, a female).(9) Books D-E (1795 - 1798) Greenville County, South Carolina,  Sept. 11, 1797 John Champion (Greenville Co) to Benjamin Henslee (same); for L50 sold 100 ac on both sides of Sanders Br of Reedy R; border: Langston and Solomon West; part of 331 ac granted by Gov. Benjamin Guerard to James McElroy who sold to Ezekiah Collins who sold to John Champion. (signed) John Champion's mark "+"; witness Thos Edwards & Ellet Boling; wit. oath by  E "Bolling" before D Godlett; Oct. 2, 1797 dower renounced by Eady Champion before Thomas Edwards, Greenville Co JP, (signed) "CEdee" Champion & Thomas Edwards; rec. Jan. 17, 1798;  Book D page 477. (1615)  Ellet Boling bought land, Books D-E (1795 - 1798) Greenville County, South Carolina, Dec. 26, 1799 John Champeon (Washington Dist, SC) to  Ellet Boling (same); for $170 sold 88 ac on Ready R; border: N and S forks of Reedy R; part of a grant (no date) by Gov. Benjamin Guerard to Alexander Ray. (signed) John Champeon's mark (blank); witness Jno Crawford & Thomas Harrison; wit. oath by T Harrison before Willey S Brown; rec. Apr. 19, 1800; Book E page 485. (1615) 

SC Index 1810 Census Greenville Dist SC
Name:

Page:
Boling, E.
114
(Elliott)
Boling, Joh
112
(John Fh416,418e 5N)
Boling, O.
115
(Obediah Fh4667,418d 5N)
Bolling, Tully
106
(Tully Fh738, 610g, 7)
Elic (sic) Boling was in the 1820 Census of Greenville County, South Carolina. (535) This is all the information I have on Elliot, except that his family was close to and intermarried with (in South Carolina) the Bomars and Powells who were from Halifax County Virginia and also moved to Spartanburg/Greenville Counties, South Carolina, in the late 1700s. (1421)

Death

Elliott died Greenville County, South Carolina in 1844. Elliott's will named sons: Thomas, Benjamin and Jeremiah. (sic missed Martin) (845) Elliot Boling had a will filed in Greenville, South Carolina in the period 1840-1853. Vol. 2, Section C, page 97. Also there and in this period was the will of Tully Boling (Fh738,610g,7). (24) Elliott Boling had a will 1840-1853, Vol 2, Section C, Page 97, Greenville County, South Carolina. (308) Elliott Boling died in 1844 in Greenville County, South Carolina and his will mentions sons Thomas, Martin, Benjamin, and Jeremiah. There were possibly twin daughters (Rachel and Amelia), too, but the will does not give names. (1421) Elliot Boling died in 1844 and his will lists plainly his sons Thomas, Martin, Benjamin, and Jeremiah. He appoints James and William Boling as his executors, so perhaps they are his brothers. (1421) 

Greenville County, SC Probate Office:  Roll 7, Apt. 9, File 670, 1844

WILL OF ELIOTT BOLING (Fh2285)

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA, GREENVILLE DISTRICT

            In the name of God, Amen, I, Eliott Boling of the State and District aforesaid being very imperfect in body but of perfect mind & memory. Thanks be given unto God calling unto mind the mortality of my body and knowing that it is appointed for all men once to die, do make and ordain this my last will and testament.  That is to say principally & first of all I give & commend my soul to the hand of Almighty God that gave it & my body I recommend to the earth to be buried in decent Christian burial at the discretion of my executors nothing doubting but at the general Resurrection I shall receive the same again by the mighty power of God, & as touching such worldly state wherewith it hath pleased God to bless me with in this life, I give, devise, & dispose of the same in the following manner & form.

            First, I give and bequeath to Thomas Boling, Martin Boling, Benjamin Boling and Jeremiah Boling the track of land whereon I now live after the death of my wife to be equally divided among them. If I should depart before my wife I desire that she should keep all the remainder of my property during her life time, and after paying all my debts the remainder of my property to be equally divided between all my children. I appoint James Boling & William M. Boling Executors to my last will and testament where of I have hereunto set my hand in presence of us, this 31st day of August eighteen hundred & thirty nine.

Wit.:     L. Newby

            James B. Bridges                                              Elliott (X) Boling

            Mathew (X) Carter

Probated the 7th day of October 1844

Recorded in Will Book C, pages 151-152

Apt. 9, File No. 670

The following people were listed as buyers at the estate sale on October 8, 1845.

W. H. Bates

Thomas B. Springfield

Wm. Shelton
Sarah Burns

Stephen Powell
Hamilton Batson
James Johnson

James Boling
Jeremiah Bolding
Thomas Springfield, Jr.

Thomas Chiles

Levi Langston

Martin Rainey

Thos. Duncan

Jos. Duncan

Benjamin Bolin
Thos. Rae

Elisha Burn

Zion Green

Ezekiel Burn

O. P. Philips

Benjamin Bridges
Farmiliar names
Elliott’s wife nee Nancy Emily Ayers died September 29,1845, Greenville, South Carolina. (845)(LDS Pedigree File)

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

Gerrard Fh2299 (6K) 746f
-----------------

Gerrard 1756-1803 (Rin=40094)—His father was William #746


We know of no wife or children of Gerrards. But when his brother Alexander (Fh020) died (in 1791) and Alexander’s widow married shortly thereafter (in 1792), Gerrard may have cared for Alexander’s daughters, Rachel and Jane Bowling. Garrard Bowling may have died in 1803, Elizabethtown, Hardin County, Kentucky, when “On December 19, 1803, in the Hardin County, Kentucky, court “Rachel Bowling and Jane Bowling, orphans of Alexander Bowling, dec’d, being admitted by the court, chose James Crutcher as their guardian. Whereupon the said James Crutcher XE "Crutcher:James"  with Benjamin Helm XE "Helm:Benjamin"  and John W. Holt XE "Holt:John W." , his securities, entered into and acknowledged their bond in the sum of  $1000.” (1862) 

See next entry with a different given names spelling.
Birth, Parents, Lineage

Garrard Bowling was born 1750 in Fairfax County, Virginia XE "Virginia:Fairfax" . (Ancestrty.com) Garrard Bowling was the son of William Bowling (Fh746) and Elizabeth Colclough. (1518) Gerrard Bowling and Henry Bowling (Fh2499,746d) of Fairfax County, Virginia in 1774 settled on land along Cross Creek XE "Creek:Cross"  in what is now Washington County, Pennsylvania XE "Pennsylvania:Washington" . (7) “Pontiac’s War, shortly after 1761, fueled the decision by the English Parliament to issue the Proclamation of 1763 restricting colonial expansion past the Appalachian Divide.” (1844) The Bowling boys paid no attention to this restriction. (7) On April 13, 1779 there was a land transfer of some land on Cross Creek from Jacob Bonhamxe "Bonham:Jacob" to James Watsonxe "Watson:James". The land was described as being bordered to the east by James Clarkxe "Clark:James", to the south by Gererd Bowling (746c,Fh2299) and to the north by Robert McCreadyxe "McCready:Robert". (632) "Gerard Bowling presented a Certificate from the Commonwealth for adjusting Claims & settling titles to the lands in the Counties Yohogania, Monongohia & Ohio for four hundred Acres Land in this County on the North Side Cross Creek to include his settlement made in the Year 1775. Which Entry I have certified & is".  Recorded as item 180 on February 21, 1780.  Item 179 on the same date was the entry of Henry Bowling on Cross Creek. (638) Gerard Bowling witnessed a March 16, 1780 land deed of grantor Alexander Bowling (Fh020). (635) Henry Bowling (746d) and Alexander Bowling (746a,Fh020) moved to what is now Ohio County, West XE "West"  Virginia XE "Virginia:Ohio" . Garrett Bowling and Henry Bowling (746d) both owned land in Ohio County, Virginia. Ohio County, Virginia adjoins Washington County, Pennsylvania. Garrett Bowling sold his land in Ohio County, Virginia to George Rustxe "Rust:George" who was the father-in-law of Jarrett/Gerrard Bowling (020e,Fh323).

1786 Hopewell Township, Washington County, Pennsylvania

Garret Bowling is on the 1786 tax list of Hopewell Township, Washington, Pennsylvania. (1905)

Early Kentucky Land

	
	
	Date
	#
	Acres
	Warrant
	Zone
	Assignee
	Watercourse

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	


Bolin
Garet
1780.05.29
57
1000
PW
7

Licking

Boling
Garrett
1780.06.24
45
1200
T
8

Yellow Cr. (1) 

Bolling
Garrett
1780.06.24
48
1000
T
10??

Yellow Cr. (1) & Sinking Fk.

Bolling
Henry
1780.06.24
46
1000
T
8

Yellow Cr. (1) Of Green River

Bolling
William
1780.07.06
13
400
T
8

Yellow Cr. (1) Of Green River

Bowling
Alexander
1780.06.26
36
400
T
8
Edward Dulin XE "Dulin:Edward" 
Nolin

Bowling
Alexander
1780.06.26
37
200
T
8

Nolin

PW
Preemption Warrant







T
Treasury Warrant, selling for 1 pound, 12 shillings



Zones









7
Area drained by the Licking River—enters Ohio River on boarder of Campbell and Kention Counties



8
Area north of the Green River and south of the Salt and Ohio Rivers includes the Beech and Rolling forks of the Salt 
River

10
Wilderness Road area, e.g. drained by the lower Kentucky River and branches of the Cumberland

Source 1198








(1) By 1798 Yellow Creek was named Rough Creek.

See full land records. 

Yellow Creek (1)
Bolling, Garrett
6/24/1780
1200
Page A147

Yellow Creek (1)
Bolling, Henry
6/24/1780
1000
Page A147

Yellow Creek (1)
Bolling, William
7/6/1780

400
Page A160

(1) By 1798 Yellow Creek was named Rough Creek.

This source is listed by Watercourse. Thus you know others there. For Yellow Creek (1) XE "Creek:Yellow" :


Charles Dabney XE "Dabney:Charles" 

Page A147


John Dulin (AFN:SB9K-ZR)(Note that possible brother Edward Dulin (AFN:SB9K-WF) was assignee of 400 acres of 


Alexander Bowling land) XE "Dulin:John" 

Robert Goode XE "Goode:Robert" 

John Thornton XE "Thornton:John" 

Page A147
(Note that John Thornton had 500 acres next to Garrard Bowling’s 1200 


acres on Rough Creek and Hall’s Creek in present  day Ohio County, Kentucky) 


George Watkins XE "Watkins:George" 
George Williams XE "Williams:George" 
Isaac Winston XE "Winston:Isaac" 
Peter Wise XE "Wise:Peter"  (See 230g,6A)

(1866)

Green River 
Bolling, Garrett

6/24/1780
1000
Page A147

This source is listed by Watercourse. Thus you know others there. For Green River XE "River:Green"  there are too many to list here. There are no others on Page A147.

(1866)

Licking N. Fk 
Bolling, Garrett

5/29/1780
1000
Page A108

This source is listed by Watercourse. Thus you know others there. For Licking N. Fk XE "River:North Fork Licking"  there are too many to list here. There are no others on Page A108. But here is someone famous who later had land dealings with the Bolens:

Licking N. Fk 
Kenton, Simon XE "Kenton:Simon" 

5/22/1780
1000
Page A82

Licking N. Fk 
Kenton, Simon

6/20/1780
2200
Page A138

(1866)

Patenting of Land #1

May 29, 1780 Kentucky (Va) Land Preemption Warrant #345

April 27, 1791 Survey #3167 for Warrant #345

May 19, 1799 Land Patent/Grant #409 for Survey #3167 for Warrant #345

Garrett Bolen received a certificate (Warrant) for 1,000 acres of land in present day Mason County, Kentucky XE "Kentucky:Mason" . The warrant said in 1776 that he made improvements on the land that year. The land "lying on the east side of the upper road leading to Cabbin Creek XE "Creek:Cabbin"  on the Lick Fork of Licking Creek. "Cabbin Creek is in Mason and Lewis Counties today. (1336) "Garret Bolen by John Jonesxe "Jones:John" this day claimed a preemption of 1000 Acres of Land at the State (Virginia) price in the district of Kentucky on Account of marking and improving the same in the year 1776 lying on the east side of the Upper road leading to Cabbin Creek on the Lick fork of Licking Creek to include his improvement satisfactory proof being made to the Court they are of Opinion that the said Bolen has a right to a preemption of 1000 Acres of Land to include the above Location and that a Certificate issue accordingly". (775) Garot Bolin’s  Preemption Warrant was issued February 11, 1780. See the originial at this source. (1787) Cabbin Creek today is in Mason and Lewis Counties, Kentucky XE "Kentucky:Lewis" . (1890, "The Register of KY Historical Society, 1921, Vol 19  lists locations and water courses") Cabin Creek is in the present day county of Lewis and a small portion of Cabin Creek flows through Mason County where it empties into the Ohio River XE "River:Ohio" . The Cabin Creek War road (perhaps then called the Upper Road) led from the mouth of Cabin Creek (about 4 miles east of Maysville, Mason County, Kentucky), up to the ridges of present day Mason and Fleming Counties where it went on finally to the Blue Grass region. I, Dr. W. Talley, published an article in the 1960s in the Register of the Kentucky Historical Society about this old war road on Cabin Creek. (Dr. W. Talley, E-mail 1997, cxwt@musica.mcgill.ca) Garet Bollin had land entry Jefferson County (sic, would be Kentucky County, Virginia), Kentucky May 29, 1780, 1,000 acres, Book A, Page 108 on watercourse North Fk Licking. (13) Barrett (sic, probaby Garrett) Bolin, May 29, 1780, enter a preemption warrant of 1,000 acres on the N. Fork of Licking R. about 13 miles east of the Blue Licks and 2 miles east of the Buffalo Rd. from the blue licks to Cabbin Creek. (1379) Garet Bolin had a Kentucky County, Virginia, land grant 29 May 1780, on the Licking for 1000 acres. (1198) The mouth of the Licking River in Kentucky is in the center, west of West Liberty, in present day Morgan County, Kentucky. Minute map 732. (1548) Garrett Bolin in 1799 was granted 1,000 acres in Mason County, Kentucky. Survey #3167 was dated 1791. Mason County, Kentucky was formed in 1788. (98) Garrett Bolen, May 19, 1799, 1,000 acres in Mason County Kentucky, at forks of Johnson Fork, Licking and Lee Creek. (1379) Kentucky Land Patent/Grant #409, 19 May 1799, recorded March 5, 1800, assignee George Bolen, land in Mason County, Kentucky, between the water of Johnston’s fork of Licking and Lee’s Creek, Survey #3167, dated 27 April 1791, Preemption Warrant #345, May 29, 1780, to Garrett Bolen and his heirs forever. (1891)     

Patenting of Land #2

June 24, 1780 Kentucky Land Treasury Warrant #

September 11, 1798 Survey #4994 for Warrant #

 June 18, 1801 Hardin County (Ohio County now) 1,200 acres, Patent/Grant #3185

Garrett Bowling, along with Alexander (746a,Fh020), William (746j,Fh860), Robert (746h), and Henry Bowling (746d,Fh2499) came to Kentucky in the 1780s and made land entries which were recorded in Jefferson County, Kentucky. (7) Garrett Bolling had two land entries June 24, 1780. (13)(1198) One entry for 1,200 acres on Yellow Creek XE "Creek:Yellow" ; Book A, page 147. (13)  Henry Bolling (746d) and William Bolling (Fh860,746j) had land entries on Yellow Creek XE "Creek:Yellow"  at the same time. (13) "Most of the Kentucky County entries were published by Willard Rouse Jillson in "Kentucky Land Entries", 1925, (Source #13 or #17) where they are incorrectly listed as Jefferson County entries. These Kentucky County entries can be distinguished from Jefferson county entries only by the dates." Kentucky, Virginia--from December 31, 1776 to November 1, 1780, Jefferson-created 1780 from original Kentucky County, Virginia (early towns Louisville and Beardstown) (1198, page 106) Garratt Bowling in 1801 was granted 1,200 acres in Hardin County, Kentucky.  Survey #4994 was dated 1798. (98) The land is described in part as “west end of John Thornton XE "Thornton:John" ’s 500 acres crossing Hall’s Creek XE "Hall:Creek" 

 XE "Creek:Hall's" and crossing Rough Creek. (7) Jared/Jarret Bowling had a land transaction 1809 in Ohio County, Kentucky. (see next)(1109) 14 January 1809, Garrett Boling of Hardin County to George Rust of Hardin County for sum of 60 pounds conveys 1,200 acres on Rough Creek XE "Creek:Rough"  patented to Garrett Boling 18 June 1801. West end of John Thompson’s XE "Thompson:John"  500 acre entry. Recorded Hardin County 14 January 1809. Recorded Ohio County 7 September 1809. (1880) See also Jarret 020e,Fh323 a younger generation probably.

Patenting of Land #3

June 24, 1780 Kentucky Land Treasury Warrant #

September 11, 1798 Survey #4987 for Warrant #

 June 18, 1801 Hardin County (Ohio County now) 1,000 acres, Patent/Grant #3185

Garrett Bowling, along with Alexander (Fh020), William (Fh860,746j), Robert (746h), and Henry Bowling (746d) came to Kentucky in the 1780s and made land entries which were recorded in Jefferson County, Kentucky. (7) Garrett Bolling had two land entries June 24, 1780. (13)(1198)  One for 1,000 acres on Green River XE "River:Green"  (passes through Green and Hart, etc. counties today). (13)  Garrett Bolling had a 24 June 1780 Kentucky County, Virginia, (now Kentucky) land entry for 1000 acres on Yellow Creek XE "Creek:Yellow"  and Sinking Fork XE "Fork:Sinking" . (1198) Sinking Fork Kentucky is in the center, Northwest of Hopkinsville, in present day Christian County, Kentucky XE "Kentucky:Christian" . It is on minute map 565. (1548)  “Green River XE "River:Green"  is allowed to be the best watered part of Kentucky.  Below a creek, called Sinking Creek (shown on his (Filson’s) early map as Sinking Creek but today is probably called the Big Pitman in Green County) , on the Green River XE "River:Green" , within fifty miles of Ohio, towards Salt River, a great territory begins, called the Green River XE "River:Green"  Barrens”. (1196) Garrett Boling and heirs in 1801 were granted 1,000 acres in Hardin County, Kentucky.  Survey #4987 was dated 1798. (98) Heirs of Barrett (sic, Garrett) Bolling, 18 June 1801, 1,000 acres in Hardin County, Kentucky on Rough Dr. (1379)

1797 Elizabethtown Lot #34

Garrard Bowling (Fh2299,746c,6K) about 1797 brought lot #34, which was 1 of the 51 lots in Elizabethtown, Hardin County, Kentucky XE "Kentucky:Hardin" , when the town was regularly established, by the July term of court, 1797. The first meeting of the board of trustees of Elizabethtown was held October 4, 1797 at James Crutcher’s house. James Crutcher XE "Crutcher:James" , (TB, note that James Crutcher was named guardian in 1803 of Rachel Bowling and Jane Bowling, daughters of desceased father Alexander Bowling (Fh020)), brought 7 of the 51 lots and Benjamin Helm XE "Helm:Benjamin" , (TB, security in the guardianship), brought 5 of the 51 lots. (1861) On December 19, 1803, in the Hardin County, Kentucky, court “Rachel Bowling and Jane Bowling, orphans of Alexander Bowling, dec’d, being admitted by the court, chose James Crutcher as their guardian. Whereupon the said James Crutcher XE "Crutcher:James"  with Benjamin Helm XE "Helm:Benjamin"  and John W. Holt XE "Holt:John W." , his securities, entered into and acknowledged their bond in the sum of  $1000.” (1662) On September 23, 1805, in the Hardin County, Kentucky, court “The persons appointed to settle the accounts of James Crutcher as guardian of Rachel Boeling and Jane Bolin, orphans of Alexander Bowling, dec’d, was returned to court and recorded. (1862)

Death

Garrard Bowling may have died in 1803, Elizabethtown, Hardin County, Kentucky, when “On December 19, 1803, in the Hardin County, Kentucky, court “Rachel Bowling and Jane Bowling, orphans of Alexander Bowling, dec’d, being admitted by the court, chose James Crutcher as their guardian. Whereupon the said James Crutcher XE "Crutcher:James"  with Benjamin Helm XE "Helm:Benjamin"  and John W. Holt XE "Holt:John W." , his securities, entered into and acknowledged their bond in the sum of  $1000.” (1862) 

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

Gerrard Fh230 (6M19) 4501x
-----------------

Gerrard 1730-1780 (Rin=44917)/m<1752 Martha Moxley--His father was Joseph #4501 (Rin=44604)

*acd
Gerrard Jr. 1753-d>1781d<1785—had land at Redstone at his death 

* c
Joseph bc1755-d1779


*a  d
Simon 1757-w1785,wp1786/Peggy -----, died without issue-she m1791 2/h Samuel Shrevel

*abd
Robert 1761-1809 (Rin=7814)/m Mary "Polly" Smith--See Family Group #557


*ab
Anne d1820-d>1778/m1764 Peter Wise (He d>1798)


*ab
Louisiana "Locian" d>1825/m<1779 Richard Ratcliffe (1750?-1825)

*a
Jean-female b1765-d>1779-d<1798


      d
Janie d<1785


*abd
Samuel 1766-w1789,d1798,wp1800 (Rin=45506)/mc1785 Mariam Plummer-- See Family Group 




#620


*
Children per source #134


a
Mentioned in father’s 1779 will. 


b
Peter Wise, Richard Ratcliffe, Samuel Bowling and Robert Bowling finally agreed to the 




settlement of the above 1779 will in 1798.


c
A 1760 document mentions sons Gerrard and Joseph, Source #1223

d
Mentioned as siblings in Simon’s 1785 will in Fairfax, VA. He did have some KY land mentioned. 


(1792)
Birth, Parents, Lineage

Gerrard Bowling was born 1730 in Fairfax County, Virginia. (57) Gerrard Bowling was the son of Joseph Bowling (Fh450). (57)(51)

Lineage according to Source #363 (Frederick A. Virkus, Vol. 7 (1942) page 182):

William Bowling, Fh742, patented 1887 (sic probably 887) acres in Abingdon Parish, Gloucester 

Co. VA,1668, had son


George, Fh240, d 1736 of Prince William County, Virginia, had son


Joseph, Fh450, dc1753 of Fairfax County, Virginia who married Pellataire ------ had son


Gerrard, Fh230 (1730-1780) mc1752 Martha Moxley , had son


Samuel, Fh620 d1798 mc1785 Mariam Plummer or Mary Ann, had son


Robert, Fh560 (1792-1845) m1816 Jane Christie Neal, lived Monroe County, Mo. had son

Samuel 560a (1817-1892) m1852 Nancy Jane Brooks (1832-1930) farmer near Paris, Mo.(363) 

Lineage according to Source #57 (Informant Mrs. Bryan Griggs):


William, Fh742, A, (887 acres in Gloucester Co. VA, 1668), had son


George, Fh240, A, had son


Joseph, Fh450, A, had son


Gerard Fh230, A, had son


Samuel Fh620, A, had son


Robert, Fh560, A, had daughter



Sarah 560g, m James M. Smith (57) 

Marriage and Children

Gerard Bowling (1730-1780) married about 1752 Martha Moxley, daughter of William Moxley.  (7)(357)  Prior to 1752 Gerrard Bowling married Martha Maxley. (57) Gerrard Bowling married Martha Moxley. (51) Other related surnames include John O'Daniel born 1735 in Fairfax County, Virginia, who married Elizabeth Moxley. (1078) (See below for the children listed in Gerrard's will)

Movement

Gerd Bolen (probably Fh230), along with Jo (sic) Bolen (perhaps his father Joseph Fh450) and Wm Bolen had tithables 1749 in Fairfax County, Virginia. (1398) Gerrard Bolen (probably Fh230) had one tithable, along with John Bolen with 2 tithables (perhaps 743c) and William Bolen (maybe Fh743) with 2 tithables and 1 Negro 1749 in Fairfax County, Virginia. (1454) Bolen, Jo, had 2 tithables and Bolen, Gerd, had 1 tithable, 1749 List of Tithables in Fairfax County, Virginia. (1512) 

Fairfax County, Virginia, Tithables, 1749

Bolen, John
2


(743c or 746c)

Bolen, Gerard
1


(Fh230,450f)

Bolen, William
2
1 (slave)

(Fh746,450h, 1717-1756)
Other surnames Alexander, Ball, Combs, Carter, Colclough (Robert), Fitzhugh, Fairfax, Garret, Grafford (Thomas), Grimes (Nic), Hatcher, King, Kidwell (Wm), Moxley, Mason, Newton, Nelson, Neal, Rust, Summers, Simms, West, Well, Washington among many others. (1944, Page 172)

Total whites 1,122.

From the Board of Trustees, Town of Alexandria, Virginia, Septemer 1749, paid Gerard Boling 12 pounds. (1614) Gerrard Bowling (Fh230,6A) and Thomas Crafford were the appointed Chain Carriers in the surveying and laying out of the town of Alexandria in July 1749. Years later, in April 1766, they were asked to re-certify a survey of lot 69, that they performed with John West Jr, who was surveyor of Fairfax at the time, 1749. (1614) Gerrard Bowling received the most notice, due to his political activity in Fairfax County, Virginia.  (51)  Gerard Boling was the executor of the Fairfax County, Virginia, 1752 will of William Moxley, father of Martha (Moxley) Boling. William Moxley named his wife Jane and legate Martha Boling in his will.  (133)(466) Gerrard Bowling was the surety in the estate of Joseph Bowling (Fh450), 18 May 1753, Fairfax County, Virginia. (542) Gerard (his X) Boling took a 1754 inventory in the estate of Ezekeil Griffin in Fairfax County, Virginia. (466) 20 May 1755, page 298, Garrard Boling (Fh230,450f,b1730,6A) is appointed surveyor of the road in the room of Benjamin Sebastian Gent. (1832) Gerrard Bolling was the surety in the estate of William Bolling (Fh743?), 20 April 1756, Fairfax County, Virginia. (542) 20 April 1756 - William Bolling (743a).Administration by Elizabeth Bolling (UK).  $500 pounds.  Sureties Gerrard Bolling (Fh230,450f), & Edmond Butlor, Fairfax County, Virginia. (1576)(1527) Gerrard Boling was the surety in the estate of Elizabeth Boling, 16 March 1757, Fairfax County, Virginia.  (542) 16 March 1757 - Elizabeth Bolling (UK). Administration by  John Boling (UK).   $200 pounds.  Surety: Gerrard Boling (Fh230,450f), Fairfax County, Virginia. (1576)(1527) Garrard Bowling was a tenant beginning in about 1760 on lands of Simon Pearson in Fairfax County, Virginia. (1186) In a deed recorded October 21, 1760, Fairfax County, Virginia, Gerrard Bowlin buys negro slaves from Anne Brooke. Witnesses were John West, Jr., Thomas Triplett, Robert Sanford, and William Triplett. (467) Gerrard Bowlin (sic) was in the Fairfax County, Virginia, Deed Book D-1 1755-1761, page 781, County Reel #3 at the Virginia State Library. (2054) Gerrard/Jarrett Bowling (sic) was in the Fairfax County, Virginia, Deed Book D-1 1755-1761, page 792, County Reel #3 at the Virginia State Library. (2054) 18 June 1762, page 746, Grand Jury against Gerrard Boling (Fh230,450f,b1730,6A) Surveyor of a Road On Presentment The Defendant having been duly summoned & failing to appear it is considered that the said Defendant be fined fifteen shillings and that he pay costs &c (1832) 22 September 1762, page 788, Licence is granted to George Parrott to keep an Ordinary who with Gerrard Bolling (Fh230,450f,b1730,6A) his Security entered into Bond. (1832) 150 acres of land in Fairfax County, Virginia, is described in an 18 March 1767 indenture between Jarret Bowling and Silvester Adams as "being now in the tenure and occupation of the said Jarret Bowling and his assigns by virtue of a Lease of Indenture bearing date the 18th day of November 1760 between Simon Pearson in Fairfax County, Gentleman, of the one part and the said Jarret Bowling of the other part during the natural lives of Jarret Bowling and his two sons named Joseph Bowling and Jarret Bowling and for the longest liver of them. Jarret Bowling paying the yearly rent or sum of five hundred and thirty pounds of Tobacco according to the Law and quitrents at the dwelling plantation of Simon Pearson. Jarret (sic) Bowling (sic) signed with an "X" yet below "At Court contd & held 18th March 1767 Gerrard Bolling acknowledged this Lease…which is ordered to be recorded." (1223) Gerrard Bolling is mentioned in a 1767 Deposition of Francis Ballenger in Fairfax County, Virginia. The case was John Carlyle vs Charles Alexander. (1587)  Gerrard Bowling (Fh230, 6A) was a witness or party to many deeds from 1758 to 1767 in Fairfax County, Virginia. Surnames mentioned in those deeds were Adams, Graffort, Brooke, Pearson, Hurst, Jackson, Middleton, Moxley, Rose, Alexander, and Hunter. (7) Gerrard Bowling and Thomas Crafford were Chain carriers in 1766. They were ordered, along with John West, Jr., late surveyor of this County (Fairfax) and who laid off the town of Alexandria originially, to affix the boundaries of Lot 69 adjorining to the Public lands. (1614) In a court case, 1768, in Fairfax County, Virginia, Carlyle Dalton and Co. vs. Gerrard Bowling, William Shaw and Thomas Scott. (1608) In a court case, 1768, in Fairfax County, Virginia, Michael Regan vs. Thomas Grafford, Gerrard Bowling, and John Frizell. (1608) In a court case, 1769, in Fairfax County, Virginia, George Mason vs. John Moxley. Gerrard Bowling and William Gardner posted bond for defendant. (1608) In a court case, 1769, in Fairfax County, Virginia, John and James Wilson and sons vs. Gerrard Bowling. (1608) In a court case, 1769, in Fairfax County, Virginia, John Cannon vs. William Gladdin. Gerrard Bowling posted bond for defendant. (1608) In a court case, 1770, in Fairfax County, Virginia, Henry Ellison, Executor of Sarah Hicks, Deceased vs. Thomas Grafford. Gerrard Bowling posted bond for defendant. (1608) In a court case, 1770, in Fairfax County, Virginia, Gerrard Bowling (Fh230) and Daniel Jennings asked Greenbury Dorsey to render account of the Estate of William Grymes, deceased. (1608) 23 May 1770, page 35, Licence is granted Joseph China to keep an Ordinary at Cameron who with Robert Boggess & Gerrard Bolling (Fh230,450f,b1730,6A) acknowledged a Bond for the same. (1832) 23 October 1771, page 303, Licence is granted Edward Harden to keep an Ordinary at Rock Creek who with Gerrard Bowling (Fh230,450f,b1730,6A) acknowledged a Bond for the same. (1832) Gerrard Bowling (Garrard Bolling), a merchant and planter in Fairfax County, was an inspector of tobacco at one of the public warehouses in Fairfax County. For the appointment of inspectors and location of the warehouses, see “An Act for amending the staple of Tobacco, and preventing frauds in his majesty’s customs” (6 Hening 154–93). (1918) George Washington’s Cash ledger shows him (Washington) owing Gerrard Bowling (Garrard Bolling) of Fairfax County £1.9.3 for inspecting a total of eleven hogsheads of tobacco while prizing three in 1762 and 1763. On the other side of the ledger in his account with Bowling, GW shows that on 16 Mar. 1763 he paid Bowling £1.10 (Ledger A, 153). (1918) Gerrard Bowling is also in the Cash Account of  George Washington, Sept 1760, Mar 1763, Aug 1763, Aug 1764 and Aug 1765. (1918)
1766

Simon Bowling (630a) and Gerrard Bowling (Fh230,4501f, Rin=44917) were witnesses to a sale of farm crops between Isaac Rose and John Alexander 1766 in Book G, pages 85-86, of Fairfax County, Virginia, deeds. (7)(1223) Simon Boling sells to Daniel Jinkins, one gray horse and five head of cattle. Bill of Sale dated 19 Jan 1767 and recorded 21 July, 1767, page 253, Fairfax County, Virginia, Abstracts of deeds. (7)(1223) Bowling, Simon -- 1767, SR 08780, p. 2. muster for March-April 1767 at Virginia, list of men who left or joined. (http://image.lva.virginia.gov/VTLS/CR/08780/0002.tiff )

Fairfax County, Virginia, Poll Sheet 

Document: Col07d212 

Author: George Washington 

Date:
1765-07-16 


[16 July 1765] 


A Copy of the Poll taken at an Election of Burgesses for Fairfax County the 16th of July 1765—and Candidates Names. 


George Washington       John West      
John Posey 


John Bowling


John Bowling 


Gerrard Bowling


Gerrard Bowling (1918)

1782

Martha Bolling is listed as head of household (4 white people) 1782 in Fairfax County, Virginia. 

1782 Virginia Heads of Families—Fairfax County
PG. #
NAME




WHITE
BLACK


16
Bolling, William (Fh747,743b)

9
6


Bolling, Martha (wife of Fh230,6A)

4
15


Bowling, John (Fh433 or Fh399,746c)
8
0 (43)  

Military

Garrett Bolin was in the Fairfax County, Virginia, Militia in the French-Indian War. Garrett Bolin was paid by an Act of Assembly for the State of Virginia, 1756. (7) Garrett Bolin received 5 shillings, March 1756, for a horse in service to fight French and Indians, from Fairfax County, Virginia, William Bowling (Fh747,743b) and Robert Bowling (450g) were each paid 2 pounds, 12 shillings, same time, same county. (1224)  Soldiers appearing in the court minutes of Fairfax County, Virginia, December 15, 1755. Garrard Boling and Thomas Grafford, among several others, were "sent on express". Some appointments were made among them Major John West, Lt. Garrard Alexander, and Lt. Col. George Washington. About 1756 Garret Bolin was paid 0.5.0 for "an express". Thomas Graffort was paid 1.3.4 for "an express". (544) Military List as recorded in Hening’s Statutes at Large, Vol. 7, as published in 1820. Fairfax County men in the French and Indian War 1758-1763. Among many, names I (Todd Bolen) recognize Garrett Bolin, Thomas Graffert, William West, Thomas West, Richard Moxley, Philip Grymes, Nicholas Grymes. (2027, page 32)

Death

Gerard had a 1778 will. (7)(357) Gerrard Bowling had a will dated 29 December 1779. (133)(7)(372)(30) Witnesses were: Charles Alexander, Osburn Talburt, and Levi Talburt. (133) Gerard died in 1780. (57) Gerrard Bowling's will was proved and recorded 21 February 1780 in Fairfax County, Virginia.  (372)(35)(57)(133)(357) The will mentions his wife (unnamed). Anne was his wife in 1779. (30) 
The will mentions sons:

a.  
Gerrard (7)(372)(357)(133)(30) Gerrard was born 1753 in Fairfax County, Virginia. He was named with his father in 
a 1760 debenture.(1223) Mentioned as dead in brother Simon’s 1785 will. (1792)  Gerard Bowling Jr. was born 1753 in 
Fairfax County, Virginia, the son of Gerard and Martha (Moxleyxe "Moxley:Martha") Bowling (Fh230). Gerard Bowling Jr. had the 
administration of his father's estate in 1781. (7)(357)  Gerrard Bowling had land at Redstone. At Gerrard’s death, before 1785, 
the land went to his brother Simon (230c). (1792)

b.  
Joseph (357) Joseph was born 1755 in Fairfax County, Virginia. (7) He was named with his father in a 1760 debenture. 
(1223)

c.  
Simon (7)(372)(357)(133)(30) Simon was born 1757 in Fairfax County, Virginia. (7) He had a 1785 will. (1792) Simon 
Bowling was born 1757. (7) Simon Bowling was the son of Gerard and Martha (Moxley) Bowling (Fh230). (357)  Simon 
Bowling was named in a 1779 will of Gerrard Bowling in Fairfax County, Virginia. (30)  Simon 
Bolling was the 
administrator of the estate of Gerrard Bolling, 21 November 1780 in Fairfax County, Virginia. Sureties were James Hendricks 
and Robert Allison. (542) Simon Bowling in the Fairfax County, Virginia Court, February 1782, received compensation from 
"an act for adjusting claims for property impressed or taken for public service", accordingly for hire of waggon  and horses 17 
days L12-15; for Negro man 5 days returning from Petersburgh (sic) 12s-6; and for waggon and team L110-16-2. Other 
familiar surnames also getting monies were Alexander, O'Daniel, Washington, Ramsey, Massey, West, Ratcliff, Mason, 
Lightfoot. (1588) Simon Bowling is listed as head of household (5 people) 1785 in Fairfax County, Virginia. (43)  Death 
Simon Bowling had a will 1785 probated 1786 in Fairfax County, Virginia.  In it were named mother Martha Bowling, wife 
Peggy and brothers Samuel, Robert, and Gerrard, deceased. Witnesses were: Charles Jones, Osborn Tolburt and Richard 
Ratcliff. (133)(1792) Simon Bowling will was probated in 1786 names wife Peggy -----, apparently died without 
issue. (7) 
Simon Bowling had a will dated 1786 in Fairfax County, Virginia. (35) Simon Bowling had a will dated 1786. (357) Peggy 
Bowling of Fairfax County, Virginia, was mentioned in two deeds, one on August 20, 1790 and 
the second December 1, 
1790. Both deeds were witnessed by Samuel Bowling (Fh620,230d) and Joseph Birch. (1590) A Fairfax county, Virginia, 
deed dated May 7, 1791 states that Peggy Bowling and Samuel Shreve are about to be married. (1590) Peggy Bowling, 
widow of Simon Bowling, married Samuel Shreve. (1264)

d.  
Samuel (under 21)(Fh620) (7)(372)(357)(133)(30)(57) Samuel was born 1759 in Fairfax County, Virginia. (7) 

e.  
Robert (under 21)(Fh557) (7)(372)(357)(133)(30)(704) Robert was born 1761 in Fairfax County, Virginia. (7)


and daughters:

f.  
Jean (7)(372)(357)(133)(30) Jean was born 1765 in Fairfax County, Virginia.

g.  
Ann/Anne Wise wife of Peter Wise (7)(372)(357)(133)(1264) Ann Bolling married Peter Wise. (1077) Peter Wise married 
1764 Ann Bowling (Bolling) of Petersburg (sic), daughter of Gerard Bowling of "Redstone" of the family 
of Bolling of 
"Cobbs" (sic). (537)(538)(539) Ann Bolling, daughter of Gerard Bolling of “Redstone” married 1764 Peter Wise. (1732) The 
findings of Fairfax Harrison, contributor to Tyler's Quarterly Magazine, in his article, 'A Group of Northern Neck Families', 
pages 162-171, (See source #538) and conclusion that Ann 'Nancy' Bowling, daughter of Gerrard Bowling (Fh230), was the 
second wife of John O'Daniel (1718-1799) apparently is without consideration of the available record. The record proves that 
the second wife of John O'Daniel more probably was Ann 'Nancy' McIntosh, the daughter of John McIntosh, whose will 
proved 20 June 1769, helped support the conclusion that Ann McIntosh was indeed the second wife of John O'Daniel. John 
O'Daniel, in his will dated 19 January 1798, devised unto his wife, Nancy O'Daniel, among other bequests, the Negro Grace 
and her two children, Charles and Jack.  John O'Daniel also named Lochlin McIntosh, brother of his wife, Nancy O'Daniel, 
to be one of the Executors of his will. (Will Book G, Page 423, Fairfax County, Virginia). Ann Bowling was married to Peter 
Wise as proven by the will of Gerrard Bowling (Fh230), written 9 December 1779, and was still married to Peter Wise on 17 
January 1798, when settlement of the will of Gerrard Bowling was reached, and therefore Ann could not have been married to 
John O'Daniel as his second wife, Nancy. (1484)(1414) My name is Kenneth Wise. I have visited a gravesite in Keezletown, 
Va. (Rockingham County) near "Peaked Mountain". This is a family plot and on it is buried a John Wise along with his wife 
Hannah and several of their children. He was born around 1760-65. I have much info concerning his descendants. I am one. I 
have not been able to find his parents or the maiden name 
of his wife. (Kenneth Wise e-mail Kwisesr@aol.com 1997)(2020  
Sorry, we were unable to deliver your message to the following address.<Kwisesr@aol.com>:552: 1 Requested mail action 
aborted, mailbox not found)  Ann Bowling (sic, Bowling, not Wise) in the Fairfax County, Virginia Court, February 1782, 
received compensation from "an act for adjusting claims for property impressed or taken for public service", accordingly for 4 
days hire horse for detachment under Marquis De LaFayett 10s. (1588)

h.  
Louisiana wife of Richard Ratliff/ Ratcliffe (7)(372)(357)(133)(30) Locian/Louisiana Bolling married Richard Ratcliffe. 
(1264) Richard Ratcliffe and his wife Locian sold land 1787 to Samuel Hanson per Fairfax County Deed Book R, page 69. 
(1614) Richard Ratcliff (Ratcliffe; d. 1825) was associated with and succeeded his father-in-law Gerrard Bowling in a 
mercantile business in Alexandria. In 1799 he donated four acres of his land in Fairfax County to be used for the site of the 
courthouse that was completed in 1800 and is still in use. Ratcliff at this time was a commissioner of the tax in Fairfax County. 
Ratcliff and his wife Louisiana (Lucian) Bowling Ratcliff eventually had nine children. (1918)

Gerrard Bolling's estate was administered by Simon Bolling, 21 November 1780, in Fairfax County, Virginia. Sureties were given by James Hendricks and Robert Allison. (542) The will of Gerrard Bowling, dated 29 Dec 1779 and probated 21 Feb 1780 is in the Fairfax Will Book D, page 160. (1614) Apparently the will was not settled right away as “On this 17th day of January, MDCCXCVIII (1798), We the Subscribers, Representatives & Legatees of Ger'd Bowling dec'd & those of his Children now deceased, on acc't of whose Estates etc, we had any claim, did meet at the house of Samuel Bowling, & then & there did make an amicable division etc of our claims, which being done to Satisfaction, We do for ourselves our Heirs etc, fully release & exonerate each other from all other Claims & Demands, respecting the premises, except that Samuel Bowling is to pay to Richard Ratcliffe, the sum of Ninety pounds, & Robert Bowling to pay to Peter Wise, the sum of Ninety pounds. Witness our hands the date above.” Peter Wise; R'd Ratcliffe; Sam'l Bowling; Robert Bowling. Signed & acknowledged in the presence of Joseph Bowling  (Deed Book A, No. 2, Page 18, Fairfax County, Virginia) (1414)(1513) 21 Nov. 1780 -  Gerrard Bolling (Fh230,450f),  Administration by Simon Boling (230c)   $60,000 pounds.  Sureties James Hendricks, Robert Allison, Fairfax County, Virginia. (1576)(1527)  
Jared Bolling, 1732, from Will dated 29 December 1778, Fairfax Co., VA. VA. will filed 1781.

Children:

Gerald, Jr. (Jared?)
Joseph
Simon - will filed 1786
Samuel - will filed 1800
Robert
Anne, wife of Peter Wise
Louisiana, d. after 1825, wife of Richard Ratcliffe. She was b. ca 1750
Jean - daughter

Of the sons of Gerrard Bowling (Fh230,6A) it is said by Virginia Historians that by the year 1800 only his son Robert Bowling (Fh557) was still alive and he had moved from Fairfax County, Virginia and went, presumably to Kentucky. (7) Son Robert Bowling (Fh557) with surviving family later moved to the Bowling Preemption in Kentucky, where he reportedly received 1000 acres in Hardin County. Later 1200 acres in Mason County, Kentucky. (51)  
Things that are probably false

Gerard Bowling was of "Redstone" and was of the Bolling family of "Cobbs" (sic, perhaps Redstone but not of the “family of Cobbs”). (537)(538)(539) Family tradition of son Robert Bolling (Fh557) has as his early ancestor as George Bolling born and died Virginia, who married 1752 Patsy Anthratt. (704, sic not true) From Spouse index: Patsy, Anthratt, , 1752, George, I, 2, , , VA, , 

George Bolling was born in Virginia.  In 1752 he married Patsy Anthratt.  George Bolling died in Virginia.  Family tradition has him as ancestor in our family (Robert Fh557). (704, sic not true)
+++++++++++++++++++++++++

Garrard (UK) (6N2) (UK)
-----------------

Those that Signed a 1781 petition to move the Stafford County, Virginia, courthouse.

Spencer Bowling 
(Fh647,160c,
6C) along with 

Garrard Boling 
(Fh320?

6C), 

Thomas 

(Fh667, 286x
6M17), 

Charles 

(Fh1563, 397b, 
6N2), 

William Bowling
(
397x
6N2)  


(1758) 

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

George Fh235 (6M21) 397b
-----------------

George (Rin=50768) 1762-1839/m       ------  ------ —His father was John #397,6N2 (Rin=18572), 

Prior Was Head of String M21—blends into 6N2

ab d 
Elijah 1784-1869 (Rin=47788)/m     Atchsah ------ (1789-1861)--See Family Group #2282
 FAG=43098482


ab d
John 1788-1853 (Rin=47787)/m 1808 Dorcas Hendrickson (1788-1876)--See Family Group 
#373 He FAG=16243937


  b
Edwin


abcd
George 1790-1880 (Rin=33775)/ m1810 Elizabeth Priest/Mary Pierce (Pearce?) (1796-1883)—



See Family Group #236




A descendants kit 514594 (M21) (Robert Alan Bolin) tested into DNA 6




Kit 514594 is a 25/25 match with Kit 4833(Z) and kit 35942(Z) and Douglas Kit 



46808 (Y)
    
    cd
Clara b<1795-d<1830/m1809 Alexander McKean--Same as 303i


abcd
James 1795->1870 (Rin=33863)/m1813 Sophia Pearce (1798-1860)—See Family Group #2841,
not 284,303b

    c
Alexander 1797-1871/m1824 Harriet Barrett (He FAG=147906339 Rin=50797) )—See Family 

Group #023


a
In the 1820 Census of Wayne County, Ohio, in their own households.


b
Children per Source #1906 


c
Children per Source #2112


d
Children per Source #2178
Birth, Parents, Lineage

George Bolin (Prior was Head of String M21) was born about 1750-60 in Culpepper County, Virginia. Who George Bolin married is unknown. They had children as shown above. Four (4) of his boys were in the 1820 Census of Wayne County, Ohio, viz: Elijah, John, George, and James. (7) George W. Bowling, age 77 yr 8 mo 10 da, died 3 December 1839, and is buried in Lithopolis Cemetery, Bloom Township, Fairfield, Ohio. Calculation puts birth on 24 Mar 1762. (yes calculated correctly 912) (Cemetery is there but he is Not in Findagrave.com 7/9/2017, I added him 1/17/2018).

Lines of Descent from: 


Simon Fh629 BOWLING-


45539 b.1620       


William Fh742 BOWLING-


65495 b.1652


George Fh240 BOWLING-


62389 b.1670


Joseph Fh450 BOWLING-


53942 b.1688


Benjamin Fh090 BOWLING-

18570 b.1704


John Fh397 6N2 BOWLING-

18572 b.1734


George W. Bowling Fh235 M21 BOWLING-
50768 b.1763

Movement of those in his family

Movement

1815, 1819, 1820, 1823

Elijah Bollin was in Lake Township, Wayne County, Ohio, in 1815, 1819, 1823. (7) Elijah Bolen was in the 1820 U.S. Census of Lake Township, Wayne County, Ohio with males 110010 and female 00010.  Others in the county in that census were: James Bolan (Fh2841,235d,6M21), George Bolen (Fh236,235e,6M21) and John Bolen (Fh373,235b,6M21). (317)(HeritageQuest.com)  That part of Wayne County became Holmes County, Ohio, in 1824. James Bolen (Fh2841,235d,M21) was in the 1820 U.S. Census of Franklin, Wayne County, Ohio, with males 2 - - 2 - -, Females 2 - 1 - -.  Also in that county at that time were: Elijah Bolen (Fh2282,235a,6M21), George Bolen (Fh236,235e,6M21), and John Bolen (Fh373,235b,6M21). (317)

From the Place Index

Wayne,OH-created 1808 from Columbiana


6M21
Elijah (Fh2282,235a) r1815,r1819,r1820(Census),r1823-Part that in 1824 became Holmes Co.


6M21
John (Fh373,235b)r1815,r1819, r1820(Census),r1823-Part that in 1824 became Holmes Co.


6M21
George (Fh236,235c) r1819,r1820(Census),r1823,t1825,r1826,r1830(Census),r1831--then to Seneca, OH


6M21

Elizabeth (236e) b1831



6M21

Enoch (236d) b1826


6M21
James (Fh2841,235d) r1820(Census age 18-26),r1823,r1830(Census),r1833


6M21

Allan (2841a) b1833


John (UK) bc1809, later m1833 Margaret Hindman

1825

Elijah Bolin was a tax payer 1825 in Holmes County, Ohio. (298) 

From the Place Index

Holmes,OH-created 1824 from Coshocton, Wayne, Tuscarawas


6M21
Elijah (Fh2282,235a) t1825,r1850(Census,age 66,VA),r1860-part that earlier was Wayne Co.


6M21
John (Fh373,235b) r1850(Census, age 62 VA)-part that earlier was Wayne Co.


6M21

Fleisher/Fletcher (373a,bc1811) m1833(Jane Steel),r1850(Census, age 39 OH)


6M21

Sarah (373a) m1828 (James Shearer),r1860


6M21

Thornton (373b,bc1815) m1839,r1850 (Census, age 35, OH),m1855,r1880 (Census wife Elizabeth)


6M21

John (373c,bc1823) r1850(Census, age 27 OH)


6M21

Titus (373d, bc1826) r1850(Census, age 24, OH)


6M21

William (373e,bc1828) r1850,d1856



George W. (UK) b1825

1850

Elijah Boling was in the 1850 Census of Washington Township, Holmes County, Ohio. He was age 66 or born about 1784.  His birthplace was Virginia.  His wife was Atchsah age 58 born in Maryland. There was a Mary Harpster age 20 born PA in the household. John Boling (235b,Fh373,M21), age 62 was in the same Holmes County, Ohio, 1850, Census but was in Hardy township. (1086) 

1860

John born 1788 and Elijah were definitely brothers. Elijah and his wife were listed as members of the household of Sarah Shearer, Sarah was John's oldest child, in the census of 1860. In a court case Sept 11, 1882 (sic, do they mean 1862), Elijah Boling vs Sarah Shearer et al, regarding farming shares, etc she refers to him as Uncle Elijah. (1086). 

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

George Fh236 (6M21) 235c
-----------------

George 1790-1880 (Rin=33775,LKXY-B8S)/m1810 Elizabeth Priest/Mary Pearce (1796-1883)—His father was George #235 (Rin=50768)

abc
Elisha 1815 OH-1905/m1836 1/w Mary Miller (1817-1854), m1854 2/w Elizabeth Ann
 Noftzger (1835- 1924)—A 



descendants kit 514594 tested into DNA 6

abc
Elija 1818 OH-1903/m        Jane (b1819-1881)


  bc
Mary E. b1825 OH/m       George Everhard (b1819)


  bc
Enoch b1826 OH/m1851 Polly Kestler (b1830)


  b
Elizabeth b1831 OH/m      Daniel Wehr (b1830)


  b
James b1835 OH-1887/m1867 Lucinda Tompkins (b1840)


  b
John bc1838 OH-1918/m1865/m1865 Mary Snavely (1840-1934)


a
1820 U.S. Census of Franklin Township, Wayne County, OH (2 males <10, 2 males 26-44 and 1 female 



16-25)

b
Children per Source #2112


c
1830 U.S. Census of Franklin Township, Wayne County, Ohio with 4 whites under 20 and 2 




whites age 20-49.
Birth, Parents, Lineage

George Bolin was born 18 May 1790 to George Bolin (Fh235). George Bolin married Mary Pierce. She died 1880 in Wayne County, Ohio. (1906) I believe George (Fh236) was married only once – to Mary Pearce. The Elizabeth Priest that you refer seems to have been married to a George Robert Bowlin (1788-1850) according to marriage (m1810) records from St. Marks Parish in Culpeper County, Virginia. (2178) George Bowling married 1810 Elizabeth Priest, Culpeper County, Virginia. (571)(1213) Marriage was by Baptist minister Lewis Conner. (571) George Bolen was in Wooster, Wayne County, Ohio, in 1819. (7) George Bolen was in the 1820 U.S. Census of Wayne County, Franklin Township, Ohio with males 200020 and female 00100.  Next door was a James Bolan (Fh2841,235d). Others in that county were Elijah Bolen (Fh2282,235a) and John Bolen (235b,Fh373). (317)(HeritageQuest.com)  James Bolen (M21 Fh2841,235d) was in the 1820 U.S. Census of Franklin, Wayne County, Ohio, with males 2 - - 2 - -, Females 2 - 1 - -.  Also in that county at that time were: Elijah Bolen (6M21 Fh2282, 235a), George Bolen (6M21 Fh236,235e), and John Bolen (6M21 Fh373, 235b). (317)George Bolin was in Franklin Township, Wayne County, Ohio, in 1823. Also there was James Bolin. (7) George Bolen was in the 1830 U.S. Census of Franklin Township, Wayne County, Ohio with 4 whites under 20 and 2 whites age 20-49. (7) 
Movement of those in his family

Movement

1815, 1819, 1820, 1823

Elijah Bollin was in Lake Township, Wayne County, Ohio, in 1815, 1819, 1823. (7) Elijah Bolen was in the 1820 U.S. Census of Lake Township, Wayne County, Ohio with males 110010 and female 00010.  Others in the county in that census were: James Bolan (Fh2841,235d,6M21), George Bolen (Fh236,235e,6M21) and John Bolen (Fh373,235b,6M21). (317)(HeritageQuest.com)  That part of Wayne County became Holmes County, Ohio, in 1824. James Bolen (Fh2841,235d,M21) was in the 1820 U.S. Census of Franklin, Wayne County, Ohio, with males 2 - - 2 - -, Females 2 - 1 - -.  Also in that county at that time were: Elijah Bolen (Fh2282,235a,6M21), George Bolen (Fh236,235e,6M21), and John Bolen (Fh373,235b,6M21). (317)

From the Place Index

Wayne,OH-created 1808 from Columbiana


6M21
Elijah (Fh2282,235a) r1815,r1819,r1820(Census),r1823-Part that in 1824 became Holmes Co.


6M21
John (Fh373,235b)r1815,r1819, r1820(Census),r1823-Part that in 1824 became Holmes Co.


6M21
George (Fh236,235c) r1819,r1820(Census),r1823,t1825,r1826,r1830(Census),r1831--then to Seneca, OH


6M21

Enoch (236d) b1826


6M21

Elizabeth (236e) b1831



6M21
James (Fh2841,235d) r1820(Census age 18-26),r1823,r1830(Census),r1833


6M21

Allan (2841a) b1833


John (UK) bc1809, later m1833 Margaret Hindman

1825

Elijah Bolin was a tax payer 1825 in Holmes County, Ohio. (298) 

From the Place Index

Holmes,OH-created 1824 from Coshocton, Wayne, Tuscarawas


6M21
Elijah (Fh2282,235a) t1825,r1850(Census,age 66,VA),r1860-part that earlier was Wayne Co.


6M21
John (Fh373,235b) r1850(Census, age 62 VA)-part that earlier was Wayne Co.


6M21

Fleisher/Fletcher (373a,bc1811) m1833(Jane Steel),r1850(Census, age 39 OH)


6M21

Sarah (373a) m1828 (James Shearer),r1860


6M21

Thornton (373b,bc1815) m1839,r1850 (Census, age 35, OH),m1855,r1880 (Census wife Elizabeth)


6M21

John (373c,bc1823) r1850(Census, age 27 OH)


6M21

Titus (373d, bc1826) r1850(Census, age 24, OH)


6M21

William (373e,bc1828) r1850,d1856



George W. (UK) b1825

1850

Elijah Boling was in the 1850 Census of Washington Township, Holmes County, Ohio. He was age 66 or born about 1784.  His birthplace was Virginia.  His wife was Atchsah age 58 born in Maryland. There was a Mary Harpster age 20 born PA in the household. John Boling (235b,Fh373,M21), age 62 was in the same Holmes County, Ohio, 1850, Census but was in Hardy township. (1086) 

1860

John born 1788 and Elijah were definitely brothers. Elijah and his wife were listed as members of the household of Sarah Shearer, Sarah was John's oldest child, in the census of 1860. In a court case Sept 11, 1882 (sic, do they mean 1862), Elijah Boling vs Sarah Shearer et al, regarding farming shares, etc she refers to him as Uncle Elijah. (1086).
1880
George Bolin was in the 1880 Census of Thompson, Seneca County, Ohio, age 90, (i.e. bc1790) born in Virginia. Wife, Mary, age 86, born in Pennsylvania. They are in the the household of their son John age. 42. (7) My decendency is thru George Bolin (Fh236), son of George (Fh235). (1909, Yvonne Vares) George Bolin, age 90, is listed in the household of his son John Bolin in the 1880 Census of Thompson Township, Seneca County, Ohio.

(http://www.familysearch.org/Eng/Search/frameset_search.asp?PAGE=census/search_census.asp)

1880 Census of Thompson Township, Seneca County, Ohio.

Household

John BOLIN
Self
M
M
42
OH
Farmer

VA ,  PA (i.e. Father George b VA)
Mary BOLIN
Wife
M
F 
32
PA
Keeping House
PA ,  PA 

Emma J. BOLIN  
Dau
S
F 
13
OH
At Home

OH ,  PA 

Elmyra BOLIN
Dau
S
F
10
OH
At Home

OH ,  PA 

Enoch BOLIN
Son
S
M
7
OH


OH ,  PA 

George BOLIN
Father
M
M
90
VA


VA ,  VA 

Mary BOLIN
Mother
M
F
86
PA


PA ,  PA 

Source Information: Census Place, Thompson, Seneca, Ohio
From the Place Indes
Seneca,OH--created 1820 from Huron


6M21
George (Fh236,235c,bc1790) l1830,r1835,r1838,r1880 (Census),d1880—A descendant’s kit 514594 tested 




into DNA Group 6

6M21
Mary (wife of George Fh236) r1880 (Census),d1883


6M21

James (236f) b1835 


6M21

John (236g) b1838,r1880 (Census),d1918


M2 
Alexander (Fh023,770d) r1830,l1830,d1860



M2
Tamsy (wife of Alexander Fh023) d1855


M2

Samuel (023c) m1845 (Annie Wagner)


M2

Eleanor (023f) m1842 (David Pence)

Mary Bolen born 1797, PA, died 19 April 1883, Thompson, Seneca, Ohio. (7)

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

George Fh237 (6K) 746d
-----------------

George (Rin=53949 MJLT-MXN) b1750-d>1800d<1816/m      Barbara Donaldson (bc1755-1824)—His father was William #746 



Male b1784-1792


This son is probably William Fh861
(Rin=53971)
George Bowling (Rin=53949 MJLT-MXN) was the son of William Fh746. George Bowling (Fh237,746g, 6K) was on the 1789 tax list in the District of Coleman Daniel. Jefferson County, Kentucky. James Dunbar, Samuel Wells, William Johnston and William Lynn/Linn were also on that 1789 tax list. (18)(454)(895)
Birth, Parents, Lineage
From Place Index

Kentucky, Virginia--from December 31, 1776 to November 1, 1780


6K
Alexander 
(Fh020,746d) l1780--later Jefferson


6K
Garrett,Gerrard      (Fh2299,746f) l1780--later Jefferson-present day Mason, KY


6K
Henry                    (Fh2499,746g) l1780,m1784,r1785--later Jefferson


6K
Robert                    (Fh558,746j) r1780s,r1791--later Jefferson



Walter (Fh7385) b1775--later Jefferson


6K
William                   (Fh860,746m) l1780--later Jefferson

Jefferson,KY-created 1780 from original Kentucky County, Virginia (early towns Louisville and Bardstown)


6K
Alexander                 (Fh020,746d) l1780-Could be in Hardin County today



Baldwin                      (UK,?746x) wp1792 (Source 473)


6K
George                     (Fh237,746e) r1787,t1789-Part that was Shelby Co. later


6K
Garrett,Gerrard        (Fh2299,746f)  l1780-Could be in Hardin Co. later-present day Mason, KY 


6K
Henry                      (Fh2499,746g) l1780,m1784 (Sarah Bonam),r1785,r1786-1790


6K
Robert                        (Fh558,746j) r1780s,r1791 (in 1823/1824 heirs payed taxes on land on Cross 





Creek, Jefferson, Ky) 


6K
William                     (Fh860,746m) l1780-Part that was Shelby Co. later

Revolutionary Military Service

1781-1783

Source 517 Washington PA Rangers 1778-1783

517.
“Pennsylvania Archives” 3rd Series, Vol. 23, 



page 201 
(Micheal Bowen),



page 206 
(George 

Fh237, 6K)



page 207 
(couldn't find) 



page 211 
(James Bowling 
Fh279, 6K) 



page 230 
(George 

Fh237, 6K) 



page 311 
(George 

Fh237, 6K)



page 382 
(Thomas Bowland)  

Washington County Frontier Rangers 1778-1783

(PA Archives, Third Series, Vol. XXIII, Pages 198-220)
George
Bowlen
6K
Fh237,746e  

Wm.
Bowlin
6K
Fh860,746j

James
Bowling
6M
Fh279,,278a

Simms
Howling (sic)
6K
Fh627, 746e (517)

Henry Bowling 
(Fh2499,746x) along with 
Alexander 
(Fh020,746x), 
William 

(Fh860,746j), 
George 

(Fh237,746b), 
Simms 

(Fh627,746i), and 
James Bowlin 
(Fh279,746e) 
were in Washington County, Pennsylvania, during the Revolution. Note that duty after November 1783 is not considered Revolutionary War service. (7) Henry Bolin, 1781-83, private Washington County Pennsylvania Militia, inactive duty, 4th Battalion, 8th Company, 4th class. (448) Henry Bolin of Washington County, Pennsylvania, served as Militia Private 8th Company, 4th Bn (1781-1783). (1550) 

See http://www.digitalarchives.state.pa.us/archive.asp?view=ArchiveItems&ArchiveID=13&FID=434278&LID=434377
Reuben Bolin (Fh4686) witnessed the 1824 will of Barbara Boling of Gallatin County, Kentucky. (1155) Reuben (Fh4686) ww1824 (of Barbara Boling wife of George Fh237,746e)

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

George Fh238 (6M17) 286x
-----------------

George b<1775-d>1820 (Rin=49061)/mc1793 Frances Lavender--His father was James #286


a
Female b1794


a
Nancy Ann bc1795-d<1870/1820 Nimrod Sims (1790-1835)

a
Mary "Polly" bc1798-1860/m1815 Mark Anthony (1791-1850)

a
Lucinda bc1800-d1876/m1828 Peter Bowler (1803-1883)

a
Child b1800


a
Fenton bc1805-d>1822/m<1823 William artin (b1801)

a
Carline V. bc1807-d1890/m1835 Robert Bowler (1793-1862)

a
Male bc1812


a
Harriet bc1813-d1878/m     George Washington Lewis (1820-1880)

a
Male bc1814


a
Frances bc1818-1843/m<1836 George W. Sullivan (1810-1889)

a
Children per source #698

George Bowlin (Fh238), from the Spotsylvania County, Virginia General Index of Deeds, Release Deeds and Wills acquired a piece of Richards property described as: "58 mb adj Wm Smith for life said Wm (did they mean George?) & Fanny (wife)"--(Frances Lavender) Also on date March 3 1801 and filed the same date property described as: "60 mbTurkey Run adj Wm Smith--for lives said Thos Bowlin (Fh667,6M17) & Sarah (wife)"  dated March 3 1801, filed September 6 1803. (969) George Bolling was on the 1810 Census of Spotsylvania County, Virginia. (349) George Bolling was in the 1810 Census of Spotslyvania, County, Virginia, with 10 white people and no slaves. (1152)

Census: 1820 Spotsylvania County, Virginia


Page No: 66B, Dec 13, 1820
16. Lawrence Bolling   (Fh4614,286c,6M17) 

0 2 1 1 0 1 | 0 0 1 0 1
19. Sally Bolling (widow of Thomas Fh667,286a,6M17)  
0 1 0 1 0 0 | 1 2 0 1 1


Page No: 71A, Dec 13, 1820
12. George Bolling  (Fh238,286b,6M17)    


2 0 0 1 0 1 | 4 2 3 1 0 |
24. Robert Bowling  (Fh561,286d,6M17) 


0 0 0 0 1 0 | 2 0 0 1 0 | 0 |


Birth, Parents, Lineage

George Bolling was on the 1820 Census of Spotsylvania County, Virginia, with him 45+ (i.e. born <1775) with  males 2 under 10, 1 16-26, and females 4 under 10, 2 10-16 3 16-26 and 1 26-45, on page 71. Also on page 71 was a Robert Bowling (Fh561,M17). A Lawrence Bolling (Fh4614,M17) was in the 1820 Census of Spotsylvania County, Virginia, page 66. Also on  page 66 is Sally Bolling (Widow of Thomas, Fh667,6M17). (1152) 
Marriage and Children

George Bowling married about 1793 Frances Lavender. See their family group for their children. (698) 
Caroline Bowling born about 1807 was the daughter of George and Franceis "Fanny" (Lavender) Bowling. Caroline died Jan 12, 1890 in Orange County, Virginia. (680)

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

George Fh240 (6A) 742x
-----------------

George 1670-1736 (Rin=62389) Jane Christian (b1670),——His father was William #742 (Rin=65495)

He had a brother Simon Fh632 (Rin=54190)
Joseph 1688-1753 (Rin=53942) /m    1/w Mary ----- (b<1738), 2/w m1738 Pelletaire Crafford (1718-1738)— See 
Family Group #450 
Descendants kit 95951, kit 116187, kit 12051 tested into DNA 6

Descendants kit 96824, kit 490162, kit 591993 tested into DNA 6


William 1692-<1754 (Rin=27334)/Penelope Ashley Cooper (bc1695)--See Family Group #743



Robert bc1694-1746 (Rin=27335)/mc1716 Mary ----- (bc1695-d>1746)--See Family Group #535



John 1700-1730 (Rin=27332)/m <1718 Mary “Polly” Browne--See Family Group #392




Descendants kit 406401, kit 2388 (M17), kit 22806 (S) tested into DNA 6

Names in Fairfax County, Virginia
Birth, Parents, Lineage

George Bowling (Fh240,6A) was born 1670 in Gloucester County, Virginia, the son of William (Fh742). (1924) George Bowling (Fh240,6A) was born about 1660 in Gloucester County, Virginia. (1731) George Bowling (Fh240) was born about 1670. (1460)

Line of Descent from: 


Simon 
Fh629 BOWLING-
45539 b. 1620


William 
Fh742 BOWLING-
65495 b.1652


George 
Fh240 BOWLING-
62389 b.1670

Lineage according to Source #1724 (Frederick A. Virkus, Vol. 6, page 127)

Thomas, Fh665, (in the Swan, 1610), had son



(Not correct per Source #1919)


William, Fh742, (887 acres in Gloucester Co. VA, 1668), had son


George, Fh240, had son


William, Fh743, had daughter



Penelope 743a

Lineage according to Source #1731 (Informant Chester Bowling):


Thomas, Fh665, had son


William, Fh741, had son



(Not correct per Source #1919)


William, Fh742, A, had son


George, Fh240, A, had son


Joseph, Fh450, A, had son


Benjamin, Fh090, A, had son


John, Fh432, A, had son


Joshua, Fh459, A, had son



Edmund, 459b, A (1731) 

Lineage according to Source #1732 (Informant Henry Rogge):


Thomas, Fh665, had son


William, Fh741, had son



(Not correct per Source #1919)


William, Fh742, A, had son


George, Fh240, A, had son


Joseph, Fh450, A, had son


Benjamin, Fh090, A, had son


Benjamin, Fh100, A, had son


Jarrett, Fh320, A, had son



Lindsay, 320j, A (1732) 

Lineage according to Source #363 (“First Families of America, The Compendium of American Genealogy” by Frederick A. Virkus, Vol. 7 (1942) page 182:


William Bowling, Fh742, patented 1887 (sic probably 887) acres in Abingdon Parish, Gloucester 



Co. VA,1668, had son


George, Fh240, d 1736 of Prince William County, Virginia, had son


Joseph, Fh450, dc1753 of Fairfax County, Virginia who married Pellataire ------ had son


Gerrard, Fh230 (1730-1780) mc1752 Martha Moxley , had son


Samuel, Fh620 d1798 mc1785 Mariam Plummer or Mary Ann, had son


Robert, Fh560 (1792-1845) m1816 Jane Christie Neal, lived Monroe County, Mo. had son



Samuel 560a (1817-1892) m1852 Nancy Jane Brooks (1832-1930) farmer near Paris, Mo.(363) 

Lineage according to Source #57 (Informant Mrs. Bryan Griggs):


William, Fh742, A, (887 acres in Gloucester Co. VA, 1668), had son


George, Fh240, A, had son


Joseph, Fh450, A, had son


Gerard Fh230, A, had son


Samuel Fh620, A, had son


Robert, Fh560, A, had daughter



Sarah 560g, m James M. Smith (57) 

Lineage according to Source #363 (Virkus, Vol. 7 (1942) pages 182, 189, 473, 480):


William, Fh742, (887 acres in Gloucester Co. VA, 1668), had son


George, Fh240, had son


Joseph, Fh450, had son


Gerrard, Fh230, had son


Samuel, Fh620, had son


Robert, Fh560, had son



Samuel 560a (363) 

Birth, Parents, Lineage

George Bowling was the son of William (Fh742) and Rachel (Lewis) Bowling. (1460)(1917)(1924) George Bowling was the son of William Bowling/Bowlin (Fh742). (51)(57)(1724) George Bowling (Fh240,6A) was born about 1660 in Gloucester County, Virginia. (1731), the son of  William Bowlin (Fh742,6A) and his wife Elizabeth. (1731) When James O. Bowling, Box 252, Ash Grove, Missouri 65604, (Source #51, he died in 1993) asked his grandfather of the connection between Benjamin (Fh090,6A), Joseph (Fh450) and George (Fh240), the grandfather said there was a Samuel (Fh590) there too. (51) Our forebear, George Bowling, son of William II and great grandson of Thomas followed the tenets of the reformer John Wesley. George seems to have spent his life as a Methodist clergyman and farmer in Prince George County (sic, probably Prince William County), Virginia. The name Wesley was used in early generations. (51) The most logical family outline on the Stafford County, Virginia, Bowling's being related to Thomas Bowling "of the Swan" is the outline by Kelly S. Langston who e mail address is:kslang@wilmington.net This outline can be found using: http:worldconnect.rootsweb.com. (1155) Also the web site http://freepages.genealogy.rootsweb.com/~marcusboyd/ has the lineage back to “Thomas of the Swan”. (1917) Also the web site http://freepages.genealogy.rootsweb.com/~eschbach/d_2e.htm has the lineage back to “Thomas of the Swan”. (1924)

Marriage and Children

George Bowling married Jane -----. (1460)(1731) George Bowling had three children.  One son was Joseph Bowling (Fh450). (57) George Bowling (Fh240) of Prince Williams County, Virginia, was the father of Joseph Bowling (Fh450) of Stafford and Fairfax County, Virginia.  George Bowling also evidently had sons John (Fh392) and William (Fh743) of Prince William County, Virginia, and possibly other children. (7) George Bowling was credited with three sons, possibly more.  One son Joseph (Fh450) was a minister. (51) George and Jane Bowling (Fh240) had son Benjamin Bowling (Fh090) born 1704 Stafford County, Virginia, and died 1767 Stafford County, Virginia. (1155) George Bowling (Fh240) seems to be of Prince Williams County, Virginia, while George Bolling (Fh241) seems to be of Prince George County, Virginia. George Bowling (Fh240) died 1736. George Bolling (Fh241) seems to have been imported in 1725 and was younger. (7)

George Bowling apparently left three sons, viz (357): 

a.
William (Fh743) who died about 1754. (357) William Bowling (Fh743) who died about 1754 in Fairfax County, Virginia. 
(1724) 

b.
Robert (Fh535) who died 1746. (357)

c.
Joseph (Fh450) who died 1753. (357) Joseph (Fh450) born about 1688. (1924)

d.
John (Fh392) 

Marriage and Children

George (Fh240) Bowling married Jane -----. (1460)

George (Fh240) Bowling apparently left at least three sons, viz (357): 

a.
William (Fh743) who died about 1754. (357) William Bowling (Fh743) who died about 1754 in Fairfax County, 


Virginia. (1724) 

b.
Robert (Fh535) who died 1746. (357)

c.
Joseph (Fh450) who died 1753. (357) 

d.
John (Fh392) 

Movement

In Prince William County, Virginia, Book E, page 251, on 15 May 1741, Miss (sic) Bolan was granted 330 acres.  Surveyed by William West XE "West:William" .  Land adjacent to John Keen, Capt.  Elzey, Francis's Mill Br. and Carter's line.  (426) George Bowling was a Methodist preacher.  His son Joseph (Fh450) was also a preacher. (51)(957)

Death

George Bowling (Fh240,6A) died 1736 Prince William County, Virginia. (1731) George Bolling had an inventory dated 1736 in Prince William County, Virginia.  A William Bolling (probably Fh743) signed the inventory. (35)(602) George Bowling died 1736. (51) George Bolling died 1736 in Prince William County, Virginia.  (51)(57)(7)(357)(957) George Bolling in 1736 had an inventory in Price William County, Virginia. (886) George Bowling died 1736. (1460) Grant Book E, page 311, Christopher Pritchard of Prince William County, Virginia, was granted 216 acres there the land adjacent to Col. Carter, line of Connyer's, Mrs. Mary Bolan, James Rice deceased.  Survey by William West XE "West:William"  on Goose Creek 27 August 1741. (426) Sources on  George Bolling [Source: Will Book C, 1734-1744 [Reel 18], page 7980. Adm. Bond, Rec. 21 Apr 1736, p 90. Inv & Appr. Rec. 16 June 1736; p. 128. Acct. rec. 22 Aug 1737. [Part of index to Prince William County Wills and Administrations (1734-1744) (1778-1800); Place: Prince William Co. VA (Collection: Virginia Wills and Administrations) (1414) I have completed my survey of our early records and located the three documents you mentioned (see above), plus one other: An entry in our Order Book: 1759-60: page 143: "At a Court Continued and held for Prince William County the 29th of  July 1760:  Allan Macrae, gent[leman] Acknowledged a Lease for Lives [sic] to Willliam Boulding, and the said William acknowledged the same as farr [sic] as concerned him and it was thereupon admitted to record." I made a copy for you because the administrator for the estate of George Bolling was William Bolling/Bowling/Boulding. Scott Parham, PhD, FSA (Scot.) Volunteer Reference Assistant. (1494) 21 April 1736 - Bond of William Bolling and Samuel King unto Denis McCarty, Gent. Justice. For 50 pounds. William Bolling administrator of George Bolling deceased. Signed: William Bolling, Samuel King. Witnessed by Catesby Cocke. 21 April 1736. Ack. and Or. [Source: Prince William Co., VA Will Book "C" `1734-1744, Dorman, pp. 79-80]. (1414)(602) 1736 - George Bolling, Inventory and Apraisement/Book C., pg. 90, Prince William Co., VA Wills (Part 2), 1734-1925. (1414) 
16-JUNE-1736

Inventory and appraisement of estate of George Bolling (Fh240,742a, Rin=62389) DECD. Appraisers sworn before Richard Osborn. Total valuation 3.6.7 pounds

William Bolling (probably son Fh743,240c) signed the inventory.
Thos. Pearson

John Strawn

Hugh Rigby

SOURCE: Prince William County, Virginia, Will Book C, p. 90, 1734-1744 by John Dorman.

6A
George (Fh240,742a, Rin=62389) d1736,wp1736,wi1736—part that in 1742 became Fairfax
+++++++++++++++++++++++++

George Fh457 (6Z) 386x
-----------------

George Bolling (?, no see Joseph Fh457)  ) had a daughter Elizabeth Bolling who married 1816 Thomas Muse, in Pittsylvania County, Virginia. (386) 
Elizabeth "Betsey" (Rin=48198, 6Z 457a) m1816 (Thomas Muse) 
Joseph Bowling consented 1816 to the marriage of his daughter Elizabeth Bowlin to Thomas Muse in Pittsylvania County, Virginia. Bondsman was George Bolling. (7)
From the Place Index 

Pittsylvania,VA-created 1766-7 from Halifax


6Z
Joseph (Fh457,386a,b1770) r1816-1822-- Descendant Kit 4833 tested into DNA Group 6

6Z

Elizabeth "Betsey" (457a) m1816 (Thomas Muse)


6Z

Sarah "Sally" (457b) m1822 (John Cook)


6Z

Nancy (457c) m1822 (Thomas Cook)


6Z

Margaret (457d) r1880 (Census, bc1812)
+++++++++++++++++++++++++

Henry Fh2499 (6K) 746g
-----------------

Henry bc1756-d1786(Rin=53950,9KD7-23F)/----- ----- —His father was William Fh746


Henry 1782/4-1864/m1809 Margaret McCrary (1786-1855)—See Family #250




A descendant kit 2282 tested into DNA 6 


m1784 Mrs. Sarah (-----) Bonham (she later m1791 James Dunbar)


female/m       ------- White (Probably William White)
or



Nancy M. Dunbar/m 
Heath
Henry Bowling was the son of William Bowling (Fh746) and Elizabeth Colclough. (1518)  
Sarah Bolin was the widow of Henry Bowling. She married James Dunbar, 14 July 1791 in Nelson County, Kentucky. (7)

Birth, Parents, Lineage

Henry Bolen was born after 1748 the son of William and Elizabeth (Colclough) Bowling (Fh746) of Fairfax County, Virginia. Reason for birth year--Children named in their grandmother Rachael Colclough's 1748 will. Source #1594. John, Alexander and Sims were mentioned but not Henry and the other children, probably born later.
Line of Descent from: 


Simon 
Fh629 BOWLING-
45539 b. 1620


William 
Fh742 BOWLING-
65495 b.1652


George 
Fh240 BOWLING-
62389 b.1670


Joseph 
Fh450 BOWLING-
53942 b.1688


William 
Fh746 6K BOWLING-
39828 b.1717


Henry 
Fh2499 6K BOWLING-
53950 b.1756
From Place Index

Kentucky, Virginia--from December 31, 1776 to November 1, 1780


6K
Alexander 
(Fh020,746d) l1780--later Jefferson


6K
Garrett,Gerrard      (Fh2299,746f) l1780--later Jefferson-present day Mason, KY


6K
Henry                    (Fh2499,746g) l1780,m1784,r1785--later Jefferson


6K
Robert                      (Fh558,746j) r1780s,r1791--later Jefferson



Walter (Fh7385) b1775--later Jefferson


6K
William                   (Fh860,746m) l1780--later Jefferson

Jefferson,KY-created 1780 from original Kentucky County, Virginia (early towns Louisville and Bardstown)


6K
Alexander                 (Fh020,746d) l1780-Could be in Hardin County today



Baldwin                      (UK,?746x) wp1792 (Source 473)


6K
George                     (Fh237,746e) r1787,t1789-Part that was Shelby Co. later


6K
Garrett,Gerrard        (Fh2299,746f)  l1780-Could be in Hardin Co. later-present day Mason, KY 


6K
Henry                      (Fh2499,746g) l1780,m1784 (Sarah Bonam),r1785,r1786-1790


6K
Robert              (Fh558,746j) r1780s,r1791 (in 1823/1824 heirs payed taxes on land on Cross Creek, Jefferson, Ky) 


6K
William                     (Fh860,746m) l1780-Part that was Shelby Co. later

Henry Chronology


Prior to July 8, 1773 Bought land in Westmoreland County, PA. (part that in 1781 became Washington County, PA. Bought of Sampson Beaver.

July 8, 1773 Sold above land to John Tennell. Henry did not have a wife at the time he sold land in 1773 else she would have had to sign too if that was the custom of the area. (7)

1774 In Dunmore's War. In Capt. Henry Hogehland's Company.

1774 Settled on the waters of Cross Creek, Yohogania County, VA. 400 acres. His brother Gerard settled here a year later. Now Jefferson Twp. since 1853, Washington County, PA. Prior Cross Creek Twp. formed in 1789, and Hopewell Twp. as original.

1777-1778 Davis Wilson sued Henry over debts.

1779 Fined according to law. Where? It is unclear exactly where.

June 24, 1780 Got 1,000 acres on Yellow Creek of Green River in VA (now KY). Locate. Garrett also got land that day. Same place.

1781-1783 Washington County, PA. Militia.

June 9, 1782 Sarah Bonham's possible husband Jacob Bonham, was killed with William Crawford at Sandusky (OH) massacre. 450 men recruited out of PA area. Was Henry one of those there?

July 1782 PA. Lawsuit brother Alexander Bowling, Edward Cook and James Fulton mentioned. James Fulton see #2084, page 411. Canoed on the Ohio River that month (July 1782) near Wheeling.

Feb 15, 1783 PA Sold land (fully describe) to Absolam Wells. Recorded May 30, 1783.

Sept 1783 Henry Bowling vs. Thomas Robertson, September 1783, Case #16, page 111 in Washington County, Pennsylvania as "capias Case C.C.B.B. Robert Grunlee tent L40 Cogn 30" Sept 1783 Con T. Scott 3L paid. Cont. Dec rule to declare. March term 1784 Plea Payment. Sept. non-solvit and issue. Rule for Trial. Cont July Cont same rule Sept Cont. S.R. Dec 1784. Judgement nisi Cafil 3 months Ext fi fa to Sept 1785". (643)

Apr 10, 1784 Jefferson County, Kentucky (then Virginia), 10 April 1784, West vs. Bolling, Jury trial. Jury is named and included Jonathan Clark, Daniel Brodhead, Robert George, Joseph Phelps, William Orr, Michael Hogg, John Jackson, James Ellio, Ralph Matson, James Stuart, James Harrod and Nathanel Braiden. Verdict for the Plaintiff and Judgment. (1197b)(1820)

May 7, 1784 Jefferson County, Kentucky (then Virginia), 7 May 1784, West vs. Bolling, Jury trial. Jury is Peter Muhenburg, George Rogers Clark, Richard Anderson, Charles Dabney, James Knox, John Lewis, George Walls, John North, Elias Savyham, Nathanel Welch, Jacob Vanmatre and Thomas Whitledge. Verdict for the Plaintiff and Judgment. (1197b)(1820)

June 1784 Washington County, PA. Henry sued William Price.

July 6, 1784 Henry Bowling, William Rowan, Samuel Wells and James Stephenson were appointed to do an appraisal of personal property of Thomas Talbot deceased, minute book of Jefferson County, Virginia, now Kentucky, July 6, 1784. (473)(666)(1197b)

July 7, 1784 KY Henry married Widow Sarah Bonham. Her possible husband Jacob Bonham was (bond) killed June 9, 1782 with William Crawford at Sandusky (OH) massacre.

Dec 25, 1784 KY Henry (Fh250) was born. His mother probably wasn't Sarah (-------)(Bonham) Bolen.

March 1785 Henry Bowling had a Yohogania County, Virginia land grant on 8 March 1785, 287 acres on McMahans Run. William West had 113 acres on the same day and same watercourse. (note that sum of two parcels equals 400 acres and it was said that Henry Bolling purchased his land from William West) Only two other grants were on McMahans Run and they were also on 8 March 1785. Jacobs Walker 300 acres and Thomas West 370 acres. All these McMahans Run grants were not in present day Washington County, Pennsylvania but in present day Brooke County, Cross Creek Township, West Virginia,-- Ohio County, Virginia, prior. Author Raymond M. Bell located the lands as not being in Washington County, Pennsylvania, as proven by land records at the State Library in Richmond, Virginia. (460)(642)( http://198.17.62.51/cgi- bin/drawer/disk19/CC150/0357/B0166?74)

1785 Henry Bowling vs. Alex Nailor Mar term 1785, Case #17, page 199 in Washington County, Pennsylvania as "Fees L2-15-8 Stops those fees out of bonds sued for at the suit of WR. See App. Docket of June 1785". (643)

1785 Henry Bowling was on the 1785 tax list of Hopewell Township, Washington County, Pennsylvania. He was listed as married. (648)

1786 Henry Bowling is not on the 1786 tax list of Hopewell Township, Washington County, Pennsylvania. (1905)

Before Aug 3, 1786 Henry Bolen was killed by the Indians on his farm in Virginia (now KY)

July 14, 1791 Mrs. Sarah Bolin, widow of Henry Bolin, married July 14, 1791, James Dunbar in Nelson County, Kentucky. Bond July 8, 1791 signed by John Muir. Marriage was by Benjamin Lynn from Minister Return. James Dunbar was probably a teacher because prior to 1791 an estate paid him for schooling children. (523) There is a Lynnview (named after the Lynn/Linn family), Kentucky, just east of the airport in Louisville, Jefferson County, Kentucky. (7)

+++++++
In a message dated 04/30/2017 6:51:19 P.M. Eastern Daylight Time, mboling58@gmail.com writes:

Henry Bowling Fh2499 apparently failed to appear in court from 1777-78 a total of 7 times and a judgement was entered against him at the last hearing.

Yes. My (TB) Henry Fh2499 had debt problems. He was however, I think, land rich at times. He and his older brother your Alexander Fh020 had each about 400 acres of Virginia land grants in what was later Pennsylvania. Pennsylvania honored the Virginia grants but my Henry had Negro George, etc. as slaves which PA did not allow. Henry moved a bit west and bought land on the Ohio River, in then Virginia (now West Virginia). My Henry Fh2499 also got a 1,000 acre land grant in then Virginia (now Kentucky) Other Bowling brothers also got Virginia land grants. Remember they were from Fairfax VA and were neighbors of the Washington Family, including George Washington, who came over the mountains to the frontier with "teamsters"--probably some or all of the Bowling boys. They were rewarded. Read the "The Frontiersmen" by Allan W. Eckert. While none of the Bowlings are mentioned you will see other connections. John Greathouse was a neighbor in PA. (You may not want to know the details of what happened) My Henry served with George Rogers Clark at Ft. Pitt and later George Rogers Clark served on the jury that convicted my Henry--so much for friendship. So my Henry had land in three places many, many miles apart. I am not surprised that he miss some court dates. Henry Fh2499 was murdered by the Indians in 1786 in present day Kentucky. Even after his death some cases continued back at other locations.

So much for my Henry Fh2499. Your Alexander may also may have been murdered by the Indians in 1791.
+++++++++++++++++++++++++

Henry Fh250 (6K) 2499x
-----------------

Henry 1782-1864(Rin=48727,K2F1-3DX)/m1809 Margaret McCrary (1786-1855)—His father was Henry #2499

A descendant kit 2282 tested into DNA 6 


Nelson 1810-d>1861/m1841/1/w Sarah Ann Tubbs, 2/w Drusilla (Atkinson)(Grimes) Summers



Martha "Patty" 1811-d<1858/m1841 Joel Stover



Sarah "Sally" 1813-1864/m1837 William Fout



Jarrett "Jane" 1814-1893/m1835 George Hobble



Alexander 1815-1901/1/w m1837 Lydia Fout, 2/w m1861 Mary Pugh, 3/w Mrs. Anna E. Sharp




A descendant kit 2282 tested into DNA 6 


Henry 1817-c1864/1/w m1840 Anna Thompson, 2/w m 1858 Matilda Douglas



John 1819-d>1880/m1845 Elizabeth Pemberton (bc1827-d>1880)


Margaret 1821-1882/m1840 James Thompson



Mary "Polly" 1823-d>1860/Joseph Austin



Joseph b1826

Birth, Parents, Lineage

Henry Bolen was born 1782 or 1784 in Virginia, now Kentucky.
Line of Descent from: 


Simon 
Fh629 BOWLING-
45539 b. 1620


William 
Fh742 BOWLING-
65495 b.1652


George 
Fh240 BOWLING-
62389 b.1670


Joseph 
Fh450 BOWLING-
53942 b.1688


William 
Fh746 6K BOWLING-
39828 b.1717


Henry 
Fh2499 6K BOWLING-
53950 b.1756

   
Henry 
Fh250 6K BOLEN-
48727 b.1782

Marriage and Children

Henry Bowler (sic) married 1809 Margaret McCrary in Ross County, Ohio. They had children: 
a.
Nelson, 
b.
Martha "Patty", 
c.
Sarah "Sally", 
d.
Jarrett or Janett "Jane", 
e.
Alexander, 
f.
Henry, 
g.
John, 
h.
Margaret, 
i.
Mary "Polly", and 
j.
Joseph.  
Death

Henry Bolen Sr. died 1864 in Logan County, Ohio. () Henry Bowdle was on the 1809 tax list of Union Township, Ross County, Ohio.  (867) Henry Bowler married January 19, 1809, Margaret McCrary, Ross County, Ohio, Book 1, Page 27. (1243) (This is the author's ancestor, we have a big folder of information on him) (1562)(1563) A descendant kit 2282 tested into DNA 6

FamilySearch™ Pedigree Resource File

Henry Bolen     [image: image3.png]



Sex: , M, 

Birth:  25 Dec 1785, KY, 

Census: 1850, Perry Twp, Logan, OH, 

Death: 17 Jul 1864, Union, OH 

Burial: Logan, OH 

Marriage(s)

Spouse: , Margaret McCrary     

Marriage: 19 Jan 1809, Ross, OH, 

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

Henry Fh253 (6A) 320x
-----------------

Henry 1785-1818 (Rin=44666) /m1809 Mary Ann Higgenbotham (1792-1822)--His father was Jarrett #320


A Descendant Kit 96824 tested in to DNA 6, an exact 25/25 match to kits 1286 (M18) and 2282(K)

*a
Charles Spence 1810 Va,d>1870-<1900/m1832 Irene S. Atkins b1818



A Descendant Kit 96824 tested in to DNA 6, an exact 25/25 match to kits 1286 (M18) 





and 2282 (K)

  a
William Axley b>1811/m<1847 1/w Martha ------, m1847 2/w Melinda ------ (1825-1888)

*a
Robert H. b1812 Va-d1871 AL/m1829 Nancy -----


*a
Bailey 1815-1880/m1839 1/w Elizabeth Higginbothan (his 1st cousin), m1873 2/w Martha Litle

*a
Eleanor/Ellender “Ellen” b1816 AL/m<1835 James A. Miller


*
Children per sources #959 and #911


a
Children per source #1908
Henry Bowling was born 1785 in Washington County, Virginia, (part that was Tazewell County now) the son of Jarret and Eleanor (Garrison) Bowling. (30)(196) Henry Bowling was born 1784 in Tazewell County, Virginia the son of Janett (1762-1856) and Elenor (Garrison) Bowling. (1271)  Henry Bowling (Fh253,6A) was born 1785 the son of Jarret Wesley Bowling and Eleanor Garrison (Fh320,6A). (1604) Henry Bowling was born 1786 in Virginia, the son of Jarrett Bowling. (959)(2171) Henry Bowling was born 1785 in Tazewell County, Virginia, the son of Jarret Bowling and Eleanor "Ellen" Garrison. (7) Henry Bowling was the son of Jarret and Winifred (Garrison) Bowling. (223)

Marriage

Henry Bowling married in 1809, Mary Higgenbotham in Tazewell County, Virginia.  They had children: Charles born Virginia who married Irena S. Atkins, Robert born 1812 who married Nancy -----, Bailey, and Eleanor born 1816 Huntsville, Alabama, who married James A. Miller. (7) Henry Bolin married December 19, 1809 Mary Higginbotham, in Tazewell County, Virginia. (2004, page 53) Henry Bowling married December 19, 1809 Mary Ann Higginbotham. They had a son Bailey Bowling (253c) born 1815 and died 1880-1900. Son Bailey Bowling (253c) married Elizabeth Higginbotham in 1839, they were first cousins. (1604) Henry Bowling married 1809 Tazewell County, Virginia, Mary Ann Higgenbotham the daughter of Robert Higgenbotham. (196) Mary Higginbotham, the wife of Henry Bowling/Bolling (Fh253) is frequently listed (Roster of Revolutionary Soldiers and Patriots in Alabama by AL DAR (ca 1970s) & The Heritage of Madison Co AL (ca 1999) are 2 examples) as daughter of Robert Higginbotham, Revolutionary soldier who enlisted from Tazewell, Washington County, Virginia, and died in Madison County, AL about 1825 (apparently intestate). Jones and Gandrud's Alabama Records, Vol. 100, has abstracted from Madison Co  AL Chancery Court Record K a case, original bill 14 March 1823, that might be of interest to those from this Higginbotham/Bolling line. The following information is found:

Henry Bolling died abbout 11 Oct 1818 without a will.
Henry & Mary Ann Bolling had 4 children: Charles, Robert, Bailey, and Eleanor.
Feb 1822 Mary Ann (Higginbotham)Bolling married Chaney Brown.
About August 1822 Mary Ann Bolling Brown died.
Mary Ann's FATHER was William W. Higginbotham
Henry Bolling's GRANDFATHER was William GARRISON (his mother's side). (179)
Henry Bolen married 1809 in Tazewell County, Virginia, Mary Higginbotham. (30) Henry Bowling's wife was Mary Higginbotham. They had a son Charles Spence Bolling who was born 1810 and he married Irena S. Atkins and they lived in Madison County, Alabama. Henry Bowling and his wife died leaving Charles Spence Bowling orphaned. (1271) Henry Bowling married Mary Higginbotham, 1816.  (223)

Movement

Henry Bolen was on the 1810 tax list of Tazewell County, Virginia, right next to William Bolen (his brother William Fh890,320d,6A).  (380) 
Death

Henry Bowling died 1818 in Huntsville, Alabama.  (7)(959) Henry Bowling died October 11, 1818 in Madison County, Alabama. (1604) Henry Bowling died at the young age of thirty-two leaving behind four children, Charles Spence Bolling, Robert Bolling, Bailey Bolling, and Eleanor Bolling and his widow, Mary Ann (Higginbotham) Boling. (959) Henry Bowling died in 1818 in Huntsville, Alabama. (1271) William W. Higginbotham, 7 Aug. 1826, produced a certificate showing that Edmund Higginbotham, infant son of Robert Higginbotham, dec'd, over 14, chose him as guardian; applied for guardianship of William Higginbotham, Joseph Higginbotham, and Robert Higginbotham infant sons of Charles Higginbotham, dec'd, under 14, and also guardianship of Robert Bolling, Bailey Bolling, El[ender] Bolling , infant children of Henry Bolling, dec'd, under 14, with David, Moses, and John Higginbotham his sureties. Moses Higginbotham produced certificate showing that Charles Bolling, infant son of Henry Bolling dec'd., over 14, chose him as guardian.  John and James Higginbotham, sureties. Heirs of Mary [Higginbotham] Bolling dec.'d, daughter of the said Robert Higginbotham dec'.d to wit:  Charles, Robert, Bailey and Elinor Bolling, all infants under 21."  A petition to sell land, filed 14 Feb. 1835...Nancy Higginbotham, the administratrix states Robert Higginbotham departed this life on...1825 and that letters of  administration were granted her 15 Nov. 1825.  Lists his heirs, and includes:  Mary Bolling dec.'d who was wife of Henry Bolling, both of whom have departed this life leaving four children and heirs vis. Charles Bolling of Madison Co. Ala., Robert and Bailey Bolling, and Ellender, wife of James Miller, formerly Ellender Bolling of Jackson County, Alabama, all of age except Bailey Bolling and Ellender Miller." (1527)(1532) 

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

Hugh Fh2535 (6N2) 770d
-----------------

Hugh b1794 (Rin=44291)m1816 Sarah Mickel—His father was William #770

James M. b1824 
Birth, Parents, Lineage

Hugh Bowland was a son of William and Elizabeth (McCormick) Bowland (Fh770). His parents were born in 1750 and 1757 respectively. Hugh had brothers William, Robert (Fh556), Alexander (Fh023) and John Bowland. (12) Hugh Bowland was born (1794) in a log cabin about a mile from the town of Reading (now New Reading, Reading Twp., Perry County, Ohio) on land bought by his father, Robert (sic) Bowland, from the United States government. (1381) At the age of eightteen years Hugh Boland went as a substitute for his uncle, James McCormick, to serve as an American soldier in the War of 1812. Hugh Bowland Sr. was the father of James M. Bowland, born 1824 in Madison County, Ohio. Hugh Bowland and his family removed from Perry County, Ohio to Sandusky County, Ohio in 1835. (1381) Hugh Bowland/Bowler (sic) married June 13, 1816, Fairfield County, Ohio, Sarah Mickel, Book B, page 114. (1243) Son Lewis Bolen was born in Perry County, Ohio, in 1830, and came with his family to Sandusky county, Ohio at the age of four years. In 1851 he married Sarah Smith. A family of eleven ch ildren blessed this union, viz: William, Mary, John W., Harry A., Emma, Jesse, Lewis, Russell, Clarence, Fannie, and Albert. William, Jesse, and Lewis are dead. (http://www.heritagepursuit.com/Sandusky/SanduskyWashington.htm)

Perry,OH-created 1818 from Washington, Fairfield, Muskingum


6N2
William (Fh770) r1794 (Fairfield, OH then)(birth of son Hugh)



William (UK) r????--could be 770b


6N2

Alexander (Fh023,770d) r1819,r1830-removed to Seneca c1830


6N2

Hugh (Fh2535,770e) b1794 (Fairfield OH then)-removed to Sandusky County, Ohio in 1835


6N2


Lewis (2535c) b1830-removed to Sandusky County, Ohio in 1835

    6N2
William (556a, he the son of Robert Fh556,770x) d1888 (FAG=29991553)

Fairfield,OH-created 1800 from Ross, Washington


6N2
William (Fh770, b1758 Rin=44279) r1794,t1806,d1812(LDS) (FAG=99999999)—


6N2

Katty (770a) m1807 (John Harris)


6N2

Robert (Fh556,770c Rin=44281) m1810 (Eleanor or Elizabeth Hardy),d1815(FAG=99999999)


6N2

Hugh (Fh2535,770d) m1816 (Sarah Michel or Mickel)


6N2

Alexander (Fh023,770e) m1815 (Sameley Ratliff)

    6N2


David (023e) m1836 (Margaret Houston)

Madison,OH—created 1810 from Franklin


6N2
Hugh (Fh2535,770e) r1824 (Birth of son)—later to Perry County, OH


6N2

James M. (2535a) b1824—later to Perry County, OH


6N2
Alexander (Fh023,770x) r1836 (Birth of dau) FAG=147906339

    6N2

Mary Elizabet (023f) b1836

Sandusky,OH—created 1820  Huron


6N2
Elinor (023f) d1915



Ellen (UK) m1850 (John Smith)


6N2
Hugh (Fh2535,770x, Rin=44279 ) r1835,d1849 (FAG=79641473)-Came from Perry County, Ohio in


6N2

Lewis Walker Bolen (2535c,Rin=44303, FAG=92037298) r1835 (Age 4)-Came from Perry 




County, Ohio in 1835



Lewis (UK bc1780) r1850 (Census Age 70, household of Israel Smith)
+++++++++++++++++++++++++

Isaac Fh254 (6S) 120e
-----------------

Isaac Andrew 1790-1850(Rin=47291)/1/w Mary Coltrane (1791-1839)--His father was Benjamin #120 (Rin=44516)


Sarah b1809


a
Hannah 1810-1847/m      Jubal Henley


 b
Benjamin 1812-1904/m      Caroline Mitchell (bc1826-d>1880)

ab
David L. 1814-1880—Kit 99999999 (Descendant Dennis Michael Bolynn) was 36/37 with me (TB)

a
Tilitha 1816-1904/m      Abner Dean


ab
Page 1818-1906/m1838 Mary A. Padget


a
Peninah or Nina or Ninay b1821/James Chesterfield or Chester O'Neal


a
Louisa b1823/m       Thomas Cook


a
Martha 1826-1902/m       Jesse Morris


ab
William B. 1827-1862/m<1850 Rebecca Morris (d>1880)

ab
John 1829-1864


ab
Daniel b1831/m        Betty Estes


a
Sally (?)



2/w m1842 Mrs. Nancy Coffelt



Ann bc1844


a
Children per materials from Source #874.


b
Sons per source #253, perhaps others, total of 12 children.

Birth, Parents, Lineage

Isaac Bolling was the son Benjamin and Sarah "Sally" (Hancock) Bolling (Fh120,6S). (53) Isaac Bolling was born 1790 in Randolph County, North Carolina the son of Benjamin and Sallie (Hancock) Bolling. (229) Issac Bolling was the son of Benjamin and Sallie T. "Tabitha" (Hancock) Bolling (Fh120). (173) Isaac Bowling was the son of Benjamin and Sally Tabitha (Hancock) Bowling (Fh120). (320) Isaac Bowling was the son of Benjamin and Sarah "Sallie" (Hancock) Bowling. (253) Isaac Bolen was born about 1787. (443) Isaac Bolen was of Edenton, Chowan County, North Carolina. (443) 

Marriage and Children

Isaac Bolling married Mary Coltrane. (53) Isaac Bowling married Mary, daughter of David Coltrane. (253) Isaac Bolen married Mary Coltrane (1791-1839). (822) Isaac Bolen married Mary Coltrane (1791- 1839) of Grayson County, Virginia, the daughter of David and Hannah (Thornburg) Coltrane. (443) Isaac and Mary Bolen had children all born in Edenton, Chowan, North Carolina (443) Isaac Bolling married Mary Coltrane (1790-1839). (229) Isaac Bowling married Mary Coltrane the daughter of David Coltrane. (320) Isaac Bolling went to Virginia and married Mary Coltrane. Isaac Bolling remained in Virginia and reared a family of six daughters and six sons. (173) Isaac Bowling lived in Virginia. 
Isaac had children:

a.
Sarah born 1809. (443)

b.
Hannah. (320) Hannah 1810-1847 who married Jubal Henley. (443)

c.
Benjamin (253) Benjamin 1812-1904 who married Caroline Mitchell. (443) Benjamin is in the 1880 Census:


Household:

Benjamin BOLEN 

Self
M
Male
66
VA
Farmer

NC ,  NC 


Caroline BOLEN

Wife
M
Female
54
VA
Keeping House
VA ,  VA 


Source Information: Census Place, Pipers Gap, Carroll, Virginia

d.
David. (320)(253) David 1814-1880. (443)

e.
Tilitha. (320) Talitha 1816-1904 who married Abner Dean. (443) 

f.
Page. (320)(253) Page Bowling who married Mary A. Padgett. (405) Page Bolen (1818-1906) married Mary E. Paget, April 
1, 1838 in Stokes County, North Carolina. (822) Page 1818-1906 who married Mary Padget. (443)

g.
Nina. (320) Ninay born 1821 who married Chester O'Neal. (443) Peninah Bolen married James Chesterfield O'Neal. 
(1575)

h.
Louisa. (320) Louisa born 1823 who married Thomas Cook. (443)

i.
Martha. (320) Martha (1826-1902) who married Jesse Morris. (443)

j.
William. (320)(253) William 1827-1863 who married Rebecca Morris. (443) William B. Bolen born 1827 in Randolph 
County, North Carolina. William spelled his name Bolen as did his son David Winton Bolen. (229) Son William B. Bolen 
always spelled his name Bolen. William B. Bolen married Rebecca Morris. They lived in Carroll 
County, Virginia. (362) Son 
William B. Bolen married sometime before 1850 Rebecca Morris. (362)(2047)

k.
John. (320)(253) John 1829-1864. (443)

l.
Daniel. (320)(253) Daniel born 1831 who married Betty Estes. (443) 

m.
Sally. (320) 

Movement

For four years Isaac Bolling lived in Carroll County, Virginia but otherwise his life was devoted to farming in Randolph County, North Carolina. (229) Isaac and Mary (Coltrane) Bowling remained in Virginia, until six children were born, returned to North Carolina and stayed there until six more were born, went back to Caroll County, Virginia. (253) Isaac Bowling later went to Clay County, Indiana, where he died. (253)
Second Marriage

Isaac Bolin married Nancy Coffelt, Nov 15, 1842, per Owen County, Indiana, records. (7) Isaac Bolin was in the 1850 Census of Owen County, Indiana, age 64, born in North Carolina. His wife is Nancy (Coffelt) age 53. (1155) 

Military

Isaac Boling was in the War of 1812.  He settled and died in Owen County, Indiana. (1155)

Death

Isaac Bolling died while visiting the State of Indiana in 1850. (229)
+++++++++++++++++++++++++

Isaiah Fh2544 (6Z) 386x
-----------------

Isaiah 1784 VA-1868 SC (Rin=60897)/m      Mary -----  (1796-dc1865)—His father was John #386


Descendant kits 3019, 158510 and B11379 tested into DNA 6

a
William Blair 1814 SC-1890/m<1846  Eliza Reagan (bc1833-d>1880)

a
Lawson c1814 SC->1871<1880/m1841 Elizabeth Turner--A Descendant is Kit #158510, 
DNA 6


a
Nathaniel b<1817—alive in 1838 on a legal document—to Greene, AR

a
John Henry Franklin 1820 SC-1862 AR (Rin=48793)/m1844 Lucinda Hogan (1820-1890)--Descendant 



is Kit #3019 and kit B11379 DNA 6


a
Charlotte 1838 SC-d>1871/m      L.D. Westmoreland


a
Nancy 1821 SC-1903/m1843 Calvin C. Lancaster (1820-1909)—She FAG=18553390

a
Male b1825-1830


a
Elizabeth c1827 SC-1885/m      Soloman Ballard d>1868


a
Caldwell B. d>1868



Rosa/m       ----- Reagan

a
Children per Source #1599 
I believe John Bowlins parents to be:
Isaiah BOWLIN (1784 VA-1868 Spartanburg SC)
& Mary () (c1796 SC) census
These are Isaiah & Mary's known children & there were others.
1. Elizabeth BOWLING BALLARD (1827 SC)
2. Wm Blair BOWLING (1813 SC)
3. Lawson BOWLING (1815 SC)
4. Nancy BOWLING (1838 SC)
5. John BOWLING (1818 SC-1862 AR) (MINE)
6. Charlotte BOWLING (1838 SC)
7. Eliza Elvira BOWLING REAGAN (1835 SC)
Later: My 2x grandfather (John H. Bowlin) had a brother, Nathaniel Bowling(g) who went to Greene Co. AR with John H. Bowlin.  They were both in the 5th Missouri State Guard..(Confederates)


Contact: Wanda Bowlin Davis - Kerrville TX -wbdavis@ktc.com

Birth, Parents, Lineage

Isaiah Bolin was born about 1784 in Virginia. (1599) I think Isaiah's father was a John. (1599) A descendant kit 3019 tested into DNA 6. A Descendant is Kit #158510, DNA 6 
Marriage and Children

I believe Isaiah Bolin married a Mary born 1796 in South Carolina.  They had a son William Blair Bolin born 1818. (1599) Son William Bowling was in the 1880 Census of Spartanburg, South Carolina:

Household Record,  1880 United States Census 

William BOWLING
Self
M
Male
66
SC
Farmer


SC ,  SC 

Eliza BOWLING

Wife
M
Female
47
SC
Keeping House

SC ,  SC 

James M. BOWLING
Son
S
Male
28
SC
Working On Farm

SC ,  SC 

Thomas C. BOWLING
GSon
S
Male
3
SC



SC ,  SC 

Census Place, Campobello, Spartanburg, South Carolina

I have always felt that my ancestor John Henry Franklin Bowlin (1820-1862) was a son of Isaiah Bowlin(g).  John Henry Franklin Bowlin fits in most of Isaiah’s censuses, but I never could pin this down.  I have Isaiah’s probate but of course it was after John Henry Franklin Bowlin's death and long after John Henry Franklin Bowlin moved from South Carolina, so John Henry Franklin Bowlin is not mentioned in it. Then I have never been able to place Isaiah Bowlin with any other Bowlin family. (1599) Another reason that I linked my John Henry Franklin Bowlin (born 1820 Spartanburg Co. SC – died 1862 Pea Ridge AR)  to be the son of Isaiah Bowling is that in the 1840 census of  Spartanburg County South Carolina, Lucinda Hogan’s father, James Hogan is living near Isaiah Bowling. (1599)

Movement

Isaiah Bolin resided in Spartansburg County, South Carolina, in Censuses 1820-1860. (1199)

1820 Census Spartanburg Co. SC – Page 273 – Line 25 – Isaiah BOWLEN


1 male age 26-45     
(1775-1794)

Isaiah Bowling


1 male age 45-over   
(born before 1775)

(UK, perhaps his father)  


1 male age 0-10      
(1810-1820) 

(William)               


1 male age 0-10      
(1810-1820) 

(Lawson)               


1 falemale age 16-26      
(1794-1804)   

Mary (wife)

 

In 1820 Census Isaiah Bowling (Fh2544,6Z) was enumerated seven households after Nancy Bowlen (probably John Bowling’s widow and Isaiah's mother), with neighbors, Samuel Hunt and Henry and Nathan Pruatt/Pruett. (1599)

1830 Census Spartanburg Co. SC – Pg 236 – Line 26  - Isaiah Bowling


2 m 0-5      
(1825-1830) 
(Caldwell plus another)


1 m 5-10     
(1820-1825)  
(John)


1 m 10-15   
(1815-1820) 
(Lawson)


1 m 15-20   
(1810-1815) 
(William)


1 m 40-50   
(1780-1790)   
Isaiah BOWLING


1 f 0-5         
(1825-1830) 
(Maybe Elizabeth)


1 f 5-10        
(1820-1825) 
(Maybe Nancy)


1 f 10-15      
(1815-1820) 
(Maybe Charlotte)


1 f 30-40      
(1790-1800)  
Mary unknown

 

1840 Census Spartanburg Co. SC – Pg 139 – Line 24 – Isaiah Bolling


1  m 0-5     
(1835-1840)


2  m 5-10   
(1830-1835)


1 m  15-20  
(1820-1825)


2 m  20-30  
(1810-1820)


1 m  50-60  
(1780-1790)  
Isaiah Bolling 

 
1 f  10-15   
(1825-1830)


2 f   15-20  
(1820-1825) 
“ABSTRACTS of SPARTANBURG Co. SC DEEDS 1848-1852 – Book AA

pg 3-4 1 Dec 1846 Mortgage. Soloman BALLARD of Spartanburg District, for $150.00 paid by Isaiah BOWLING of Spartanburg Dist, sold (listed) livestock, fodder, cart.   If Soloman BALLARD pays Isaiah BOWLING $150.00 on or before 25 Dec 1850 sale is null & void.  Witness: James CALDWELL;  Soloman (x) BALLARD.  Witness Oath 6 May 1848.  Signed John BOWLING to James CALDWELL Mag SD.  Registered examined certified 7 May 1848.  Original delivered to N.M. BOWLING (Nathaniel) 12 Aug 1838. (1599)


1 f   40-50  (1790-1800) Mary (wife)

1850 census of Spartanburg Co. SC – Isaiah & Mary not located

1860 Census Spartanburg County, South Carolina.– Dwelling 953


Isaiah Bowling    

76 (c1784) VA


Mary Bowling             
64 (c1796) SC

 
Rosa REAGAN        
  6 (c1854) SC. (1599) 
Death

Isaiah Bowling – Probate – File #2643 – Formerly Box 43 – Package 46

(Names in Isaiah’s Probate)

  DAVIS, John Bankston – Admn Jul 1868

  ALVERSON, B.F.

  BALLARD, SOLOMAN (son-in-law)

  BALLARD, W.D.

  BALLARD, Randolph

  BISHOP, Levi

  BOWLING, Lawson (son)

  BOWLING, William (son)

  BOWLING, C.B. (Caldwell) (son)

  CLARK, Benjamin

  FRENCH, L.F.

  GOSNELL, Rebecca

  HAMMETT, J.L.

  HAMPTON, Mary

  HARRIS, W.D.

  KING, H.F.

  LANCASTER, C.C. (Calvin) (son-in-law husband of daughter Nancy BOWLING)

  LAND, Sarah

  LIPSCOMB, W.S.

  MORGAN, W.A.

  O’SHIELDS, Hugh

  REAGAN, M.A.

  VERNON, Mary

  WESTMORELAND, Charlotte (BOWLING) daughter (1599)

 

Petition for funds to pay debts:  Lawson BOWLING;  William BOWLING;   Elizabeth BALLARD;

    Charlotte WESTMORELAND;   Rosa REAGAN – Sep 1871 to show cause at court house.

    Signed on back by Lawson BOWLING, etc.

Final settlement recorded in Book F – Pg 607 – Nov 13, 1871

 Lawson BOWLING;   S. McCARTER;   C. WESTMORELAND;   C.C. LANCASTER

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

James Fh259 (6M1) 730x
-----------------

James 1788-1860 (Rin=51267)/m1814 1/w Ester Voyles--His Father was Thomas #730 (Rin=51271)

  a
Mary Elizabeth b1814/m1846 Thomas Boyd b1825

*a
Sebrem/Sedren Jesse 1817->1880/1/w m    Mary Jane Toop Maret 




2/w m1849 Nancy Davidson Cavender 



3/w m         Matilda Jane Merritt b1837



2/w m1820 Rebecca Kinder (1802-1862)

*a
Andrew Jackson 1820-1898/m1839 Matilda Reed (1824-1908)

*a
Willis 1824-1892/m1846 Nancy Boyd (1825-1893)


  a
John Nore 1826-d<1917/m1846 Nancy Jane Turner b1825

*
James b1827/mc1847 Elizabeth -----


*a
Nancy 1833-1903/m1853 James William Persinger (1822-d>1870<1880)

*a
William 1835-1914/m1858 Sarah Jane Northerer (1831-1896)

*a
Henry Curtis b1842/m       Polly Ann Sims (1857-1899)

*a
Anderson 1844-1923/1/w m1866 Polly Reed (1844-1927),2/w Mary E. Boyd (?)


*a
Thompson 1845-1860

*
Children per Source #1155


a
Children per Source #1741

Birth, Parents, Lineage

James Bolin was born Hardin County, Kentucky, about 1788 the son of Thomas and Nancy Bolin (Fh730). (444)(445)(446)(447) James Bolin (Fh259) was born in1788 in Washington County (sic), Kentucky. His father was Thomas Bolin (Fh730) and Nancy Bolin. (1741) 
First Marriage

James Bolin married 22 August 1814 Ester Voyles, a widow. I don’t know her name before Voyles. She died in Hardin County, Kentucky. They had children: (1741) There were two James Bolins in Hardin County, Kentucky at the same time; one James Bolin (Fh259) married Ester Voyles, the other James Bolin (Fh280) married Hester Voyles. The James Bolin (Fh280) that married Hester Voyles moved to Washington County, Indiana (sic, think this should be KY). (1741)

a 
Daughter Mary Elizabeth Bolin born 1814 in Hardin County, Kentucky. 

b 
Son Sedren Jesse Bolin born in Aug1817 Washington County, Kentucky. 

c
Willis Bolin born 22 May1819 in Washington County, Kentucky. Died 18 Mar.1892 in Perry County, Indiana. He was buried 
in the Bolin Cemetery.(1741) (Find a grave #50933253)
Second Marriage

James Bolin married 1820 Rebecca Kinder in Perry County, Indiana. (1212) In 1820 in Perry County, Indiana, James Bolin married Rebecca Kinder. They had children all born in Perry County, Indiana: 

a.
Jackson born 1822 who married 1839 Matilda Reed, 

b.
Willis born 1824 who married 1846 Nancy Boyd,


1880 Household:
 
Willis BOLIN
M
Male
54
KY
Farmer 

 
Nancy BOLIN
M
Female
50
IN
Keeping House 

 
Alfred BOLIN
S
Male
22
IN
Works On Farm 

 
Hiram W. BOLIN
S
Male
19
IN
Works On Farm 

 
Anderson BOLIN
S
Male
17
IN
Works On Farm 

 
Charles BOLIN
S
Male
14
IN
Works On Farm 

 
John W. BOLIN
S
Male
9
IN
Works On Farm 

 
Eddie BOLIN
S
Male
5
IN
Works On Farm 


Source Information: Census Place, Troy, Perry, Indiana

c.
John born 1826 who married 1846 Nancy Jane Turner, 

d.
James born 1827 who married Elizabeth -----, 

e.
Nancy born 1832, 

f.
William born 1836 who married 1858 Sarah Jane Northerer, 

g.
Anderson born 1842, 


1880 Household:

Anderson BOLIN
Self
M
Male
38
IN
Farmer

SC , KY 


Polly BOLIN
Wife
M
Female
37
IN
Keeps House
PA , KY 


Mena A. REED
Other
S
Female
3
IN


IN , IN 


Sarah REED
Other
W
Female
74
KY


NC , NC 


Crawford REED
Other
W
Male
53 
IN
Laborer

PA , KY 


Source Information:Census Place, Troy, Perry, Indiana

h.
Thompson born 1845. (444)(445)(446)(447) 
Wife # 2 Rebacca Kinder married 09 November 1820 in Perry County, Indiana. She was born 1802 in Perry County, Indiana 
and died 10 June 1862 in Perry County, Indiana. Buried in Bolin Cemetery. (Find a grave = 5107317) 


Children 
a.
Andrew Jackson Bolin 1820. He is in the 1880 Census of Perry County, Indiana:


1880 Household:
 
A. J. BOLIN
Self
M
Male
60 ,  IN ,  Farmer

KY ,  KY 

 
Matilda BOLIN
Wife
M
Female
56 ,  IN ,  Keeping House
IN ,  IN 

 
Elius BOLIN
Son
S
Male
20 ,  IN ,  Works On Farm
IN ,  IN 

 
Abraham BOLIN
Son
S
Male
14 ,  IN ,  Works On Farm
IN ,  IN 


Source Information: Census Place, Troy, Perry, Indiana

b.
John Nore Born 1825,

c.
Nancy Bolin born1833 , 

d.
Henry Curtis Bolin1842,

e.
Anderson Bolin 1844 

f.
Thompson Bolin 1845 

g.
William Bolin 1835 (1741)

James Bowling is in the 1840 Census of Perry County, Indiana, as age 40-50. Three (3) minor males, and three (3) minor females, and one (1) female age 30-40. (on-line at Ancestry.com) James Bolin is in the 1850 Census of Deer Creek Twp., Perry County, Indiana, as age 62, born Kentucky. (1155) James Bolin is in the 1860 Census of Troy Twp., Perry County, Indiana, as age 69, born South Carolina (sic). (1155)  James Bolin died in Perry County, Indiana and buried in the Bolin Cemetery. (1741) (Find a grave = 5107312)

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

James Fh268 (6M1) 669x
-----------------

James bc1730 (Rin=51344,G4JG-Q4X)/m     ----- ----- --His father was Thomas #669 (Rin=57934,LY87-KC7)



Descendant Kit 25816 tested into DNA 6




Descendant Kit 520118 tested into DNA 6


a
James b1760/m1782 Christina Moore--- James Bolling Jr. married 1782, Granville County, North 



Carolina, Christianna Moore. (1003)

a
Thomas 1766-1851 (Rin=51271)/mc1787 Nancy Anne White (1767-1852)--See Family Group #730


a
Children per Source #824

James Boling is on the Granville County, North Carolina, Tax List of Jonathan White 1749, A List of Tithables for the Year 1749, includes: James Boling 1. (1549) James Bowling was on the 1750 tax roll of Granville County, North Carolina. (7) James, William, and John Bolling were listed 1754 in the muster of Capt. Andrew Hamption’s company, Granville County, North Carolina. (1003) North Carolina Militia, 1754, on the Muster Roll of Col. William Eaton, Pvt. James Bolling (Fh268,6M1), Pvt. William Bolling (Fh864), Pvt. Benjamin Bolling (Fh109,U3) and Pvt. John Bolling (UK or 864a) were listed. (249)(536) James Bolling was on the 1755 tax list of Granville County, North Carolina. (693) James Bowling may have had a brother Benjamin. James Bowling served with Benjamin in the militia of Granville County, North Carolina, in the French Indian War.  Also they both bought land 1755 in Orange County, North Carolina. (7)(77)(85) James Bolding is on the Granville County, North Carolina, List of Ezekial Hampton 1761, Ezekial Hampton, Constable his List 1761. (1549) James Bolen, Bolin, Bolling was on the 1762 tax roll of Granville County, North Carolina. A John Bowling was on the same tax list.  Also a Bolin Adcock and/or a Bowlin Adcock were on the same tax list. (7) See family group for children. (824) William Bowling's (Fh864,3M12) parents may have been James and Sarah Bolling as a James Boling was listed in Granville County, North Carolina on the tax list of Jonathan White in 1749. Hazael and I believe that this James Boling was married to a Sarah "ancient woman" who had a son named William Bolling who "sold" her cow [court records] -- this Sarah later married a Robert Donnavan(t) of Granville [court records show her son was named William Bowling and that her name was Sarah Dunnavant]. Quite likely James Boling was born before 1728 and as of now, we haven't a clue as to who this James Boling is. (1414) Records of Executive Council 1755-1775. Deed certification 1763 Nov. 26, 1766 Sept. 9. Grantee to James Bowling (Fh268, 6 M1) 202 acres 15th June 1763 lying upon Flate, Enoe and Little Rivers  ( I'm not sure what county this is Elsie Bolin sent it to me I took it as being in Orange Co.) This is why  she had James listed as Thomas' father and the fact that he had a son named James, but I can't find a James in Wilkes Co. NC when Thomas said that he enlisted in 1781 or 1782 or anytime before or after that. (2175) James Bowland (Fh268, 6 M1) 300 acres deeded 200 acres entered and surveyed 3 horses, 9 cattle in Hillsborough District of Orange, Co NC tax list 1780-1781. This location at the Flatt-Eno and Little Rivers in Orange County NC. (2175) James Bowling (6M1 Fh268,669x) is in a Mar 24, 1754 (Oath) Will of Nathaniel Jones, Westmoreland County, Virginia. The following names appeared: William Bowling, Sr., William Bowling, James Bowling. (1414) In the Name of God Amen I Nathaniel Jones of the County of Westmoreland Item I make ? appoint my beloved wife Sarah Howson Jones and my son Calvert John executors and executor of this my last will and testament. In witness of all and every the above recited ?? I have herinto ? my hand and seal this 20th day of January 1753. His Mark, Nathaniel N. Jones Signed Sealed and published in presence of Thomas Clifton, William Bonlinson (his mark), Benjamin Thomas, James Rowlin(?), William B(?) his mark. Westmoreland Sct: At a court held for the said county the 26th day of March 1754 This last will and testament of Nathl Jones died ?? into Court by Calvert Jones one of the Ecrs therein named who made oath of the sums and being duly proved by the Oath of William Bolling Sen, James Boling and William Bolling, Justice Three of the witnesses thereto subscribed is admitted to record, and upon the ? of the said Exor and his performing what the law in such cases require certificate is granted him for obtaining a probate thereof in due form. Test: George Lee, C.C.W. Recorded the 20th day of April 1754. (1414) Thomas Bolin (Fh730) born January 12, 1766 Orange County, North Carolina, mentions an uncle John Jones. (1155) Thomas Bolin, 32126, North Carolina Line, Application 14 Nov 1832 Perry County, Indiana, aged 66, lived in Wilkes County, North Carolina at enlistment, soldier was born Orange (now Caswell) County, North Carolina, on 12 Jan 1766, soldier mentioned an uncle John Jones. (1155) Since then I've found a few items that might be of interest: 

Nathaniel Jones Will - Westmoreland County, Virginia.

 

Item, I give and bequeath to my son John Jones that ... and parcel of land whereon he now lives and John Franklin formerly lived .....

 

In witness of all and every the above recited .. I have hereinto .. my hand and seal this 20th day of January 1753. 

 

His mark, Nathaniel Jones Signed Sealed and published in presence of Thomas Clifton, William Bonlinson (Bolling?) Sr., Benjamin Thomas, James Rowlin (Bowlin?), William B(?) his mark.

 

Westmoreland Sct: At a court held for the said county the 26th day of March 1754 This last will and testament of Nathl Jones died .. into Court by Calvert Jones one of the Ecrs therein named who made oath of the sums and being duly proved by the Oath of William Bolling Sr. (UK), James Boling (UK) and William Bolling (UK) ... three of the witnesses thereto subscribed is admitted to record, and upon the .. of the said Exor and his performing what the law in such cases require certificate is granted him for obtaining a probate thereof in due form Test: George Lee, C. C. W.

Recorded the 20th day of April 1754 (1155)

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

James Fh278 (6M1) 516c
-----------------

James bc1710-dc1780(Rin=54690)/m1730 Abagail McFee (bc1710-dc1775) —

His father was maybe Robert Fh516 (Rin=46246) or less likely

Joseph Fh450 (Rin=53942) No, or less likely 

Sims Fh632 (Rin=54190) No, who had land in Stafford Co. Va. in 1694/5
Probably had a brother William 1717-1756 Fh746 (Rin=39828) No, James’ father was not Fh450 
a
James Thomas bc1730-dc1790/m1750/51 Mary Overall (b1730)--See Family Group #279


a
John 1732-dc1800 (Might be John Fh447 but probably too old)-No known issue 

a
Known children per Source #1497, perhaps 10 more.

Birth, Parents, Lineage

James Bowling (Rin=54690, FT=LDQF-RF4) was born before 1703 in St. Paul's Parish, Stafford County, Virginia. (2111) James Bowling came from England in an early day, he married a Scotch lady. (832) James Boling was born about 1710 in England. (1497)

Lines of Descent from: 


Simon Fh629 BOWLING-


45539 b.1620     


Robert Fh516 6M19 BOWLING-

46246 b.1668


James Fh278 6K BOWLING-

54690 b.1700


son

James Thomas Fh279 6K BOWLING Sr-
22331 b.1730

Lines of Descent from 


Simon Fh629 BOWLING-


LDQF-K4Z b.1620


Robert Fh516 BOWLING-


LDQ6-Q8Z b.1668  


James Fh278 BOWLING-


LDQF-RF4 b.1700


son                    


James Thomas Fh279 BOWLING Sr-

MQ8B-MSG b.1730  

Marriage

James Boling married about 1730 in Virginia, Abagail McFee (sic, could this be McAfee) born 1710-1712 in England and died about 1775 in Virginia, the Wheeling area. Both came from England as youngsters on the same boat, thought to have been in their teens when they arrived here. 

They had 2 known children and thought to have had more than that but unproven. There could have been as many as 12 children. Those two known children were:

1. James Thomas Boling (Fh279) (bc1730-dc1790) who married Mary Overall (bc1745-dc1795) and 

2. John Bolin (1732-dc1800). (1497) 
King George County (VA) Orders 1723-1725; p. 142 King George County Court 6th of December 1723


To Robert King, Jno. Williams & James Bowling (faded) of ye Prison Bounds 60. (2111) 
"Capt. William Brent died 17 Aug 1742 at Acquia." (Overwharton Parish Register…) (1735) 16 Sep 1746 "In one volume of the Stafford records is included accounts with the estate of Captain William Brent, deceased, beginning Sept. 16, 1746. Included in these is a list of rents belonging to the estate [It is uncertain whether the figures refer to acres of land or to rent in pounds of tobacco.] (Not all shown here) 

James Bollon [Boling?] 630, 

George Brent 680, 

Mr. Charles Brent, 2100, 

Mason Combs, 315, 

John Mercer, Gent., 3000, 

Daniel Meatz 630, 

Alexander Nelson 630, 

Mr. Massey 400, 

 (Genealogies of Virginia Families, From the Virginia Magazine of History and Biography, submission of W. B. Chilton, Washington, D. C., Vol.2, GPC, Baltimore, 1981, pp. 326-7). (1735) "Mason Combs paid yearly rent to the Estate of Capt. William Brent in 1746, 1747, 1748, 1749, 1750." (Stafford Co, VA Will Abstracts of 1748-1767.)(1735) 
James Boling died about 1780 Virginia, the Wheeling (now West Virginia) area. (1497)

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

James Fh279 (6M1) 278a
-----------------

James Thomas (FT: MQ8B-MSG, Rin=22331) bc1730-dc1790/m1750/51 Mary Overall (FT: L78X-CT4) --Father was James #278 (Rin=54690)
John 1755-1817(Rin=48792)/2/w m1790 Nancy Spencer—See Family Group #386 yes- 

Probably not Family Group #447
 

James 1773-1832 w 29 Jul 1832 in Mercer County, KY, with heir Judath/Juda Bolling

He (FT: 9M86-GTQ), She (Rin=45229, FT: 9M86-G5W)  



William



Others have the children of John/James Fh447 as children here (not correct).

Birth, Parents, Lineage

James Thomas Boling (FT=MQ8B-MSG) was born about 1730 the son of James and Abagail (McFee or McAfee XE "McAfee:Abagail" ) XE "McFee:Abagail"  Boling (Fh278). (1497) James Thomas Bowling was born about 1730 near Wheeling, West Virginia (then Virginia) (sic, not likely that far west in 1730, probably his son James Jr. 279b b1773). (832) James Thomas Boling's father might be James Bowlin who landed in King & Queen County Virginia, in 1695 and/or a James Bowling who got land in New Kent County, Virginia, in 1695. (665, Informant Mrs. Marjorie Perrin, probably not the later, just a guess)

Lines of Descent from: 


Simon Fh629 BOWLING-


45539 b.1620     


Robert Fh516 6M19 BOWLING-

46246 b.1668


James Fh278 6K BOWLING-

54690 b.1700


James Thomas Fh279 6K BOWLING Sr-
22331 b.1730


son

John Fh386 BOWLING-


65497 b.1756


grandson

James Fh303 6Y BOLEYN-


50274 b.1775

Lines of Descent from 


Simon Fh629 BOWLING-


LDQF-K4Z b.1620


Robert Fh516 BOWLING-


LDQ6-Q8Z b.1668  


James Fh278 BOWLING-


LDQF-RF4 b.1700                    


James Thomas Fh279 BOWLING Sr-

MQ8B-MSG b.1730


son  


John Fh386 BOWLING-


L84V-7PG b.1756


grandson  


James Fh303 BOLEYN-


LD38-LHQ b.1775  










Marriages and Children

James Thomas Boling married Mary Overall (1731-dc1795) (1497) James Bowling married Mary Overallxe "Overall:Mary" Feb 11, 1750/51 in St. Paul’s Parish, Stafford County, Virginia. (46)(61)(1957) James Thomas Boling married Mary Overall (FT=L78X-CT4). (1497) 
Her father and mother were:

John Overall XE "Overall:John"  (AFN:107Z-84X), born about 1701 in Virginia, married Oct. 8, 1722 Mary Elliott XE "Elliott:Mary"  (AFN:107Z-GH8), born about 1703 in Virginia. John Overall died in about 1742 in Prince William County, Virginia. 

James Bowling and his wife Mary were involved in a case at the court October 3, 1761, Prince William County, Virginia. The case being Joseph Powell XE "Powell:Joseph"  and his wife Mary (sic, probably Sarah); James Bowling and his wife Mary; and Behethalem Overall, Complainants vs. Nathaniel Overall and John Dagg, defendants. (1642)

This court case mentions some of Mary Overall Bowling’s siblings who were as follows:

1. Sarah Overall, born Feb. 7, 1724 in Virginia married Joseph Powell.
2. William Overall, born about 1727.
3. Mary Overall, born March 19, 1730/31, m1750/51 James Bowling (Fh279,278a)
4. Beheethalam Overall (FT=L78J-8F30, born about 1733 in Virginia married >1761 Cunningham James.
5. John Overall, Jr., 1735-1821/m     Marie Christine Froman and or Frances Whitledge 

(http://genforum.genealogy.com/cgi-bin/pageload.cgi?Bowling::overall::7.html)

Ancestry of Barack Obama http://www.wargs.com/political/obama.html has 5. above as one of Barack ancestors. 

James Thomas Boling and Mary Overall had three sons:

a.
John 279a (865) 

b.
James 279b (FT=9M86-GTQ) (865) James Bowling (Fh279) was the father of two sons. We only have the name of one son, James Bowling (279b), born 1773 near Wheeling, Ohio County, Virginia (now West Virginia). (832)(817) James Boling and Mary Overall may have had a son James Thomas Boling Jr. born 1773 in Wheeling West Virginia (then Virginia). See my family group record for other possible children. (1074) James Bowling (Fh279) had a son James Thomas Bowling. (832) James Thomas Boling and Mary Overall had one (1) child I know of and that was James Thomas Boling Jr (1773-1838), our family said there were more children, but didn't know their names. (1497) I have a copy of a James Bolling Will dated 29 Jul 1822 in Mercer County, Kentucky, produced in Court 1832. The only heir was a daughter Judah Bolling. I don't know how we could find out how many other children James Sr. had. A Judy Boling (Juda AFN: 5796-HSX) married Jesse H. Luster (AFN: 5796-J91) 2 Apr 1832 in Mercer County, KY. (1074) There was a will written 1822 by a James Bolling. He names his daughter Judath Bolling as James Bolling Rin=54698 wrote a will in Mercer County, Kentucky in 1822. In the name of God Amen. I, James Bolling (279b) Mercer County and State of Kentucky do make ordain and declare this be my last will and testament revoking all others to my daughter Judath Bolling Rin=45229. I give and bequeath and it is my will and desire that she shall have my personal property to wit, one mare and colt, three feather beds and furniture, five head of hogs and all my household furniture. On witness whereof I do hereunto set my hand and seal this 29th of July 1822. Signed Sealed and delivered James Bolling in the presence of:



John C. Goode



John X Bolling



Coonrad Frankling (probably Conrad Franklin, husband of Sarah Bolling)


Mercer County,  August Court 1832

    
The following last will and testament of James Bolling deceased was this day produced into court and proved by the oaths John C. Goode and John Bolling two subscribing witnesses thereto and ordered to be recorded. Attn: Thomas Allin  C. C. (1155) heir. A witness is John Bolling (His mark). The will was recorded 1832 in Mercer County, Kentucky. (1155) 

c.
William 279c. (865)
Movement-Virginia

28-JULY-1752

Ruth Ridley vs. Joseph Davis in dower.

This day came the afore said Joseph by George Johnson his attorney and the said Ruth did not prosecute her bill aforesaid. Therefore it is considered that the said Ruth take nothing of her bill, and that the said Joseph go thereof without day and recover against the said Ruth two shillings and also his costs by him in this behalf expended and the said Joseph have thereof execution etc.

Absent Thomas Harrison Gen., Joseph Sowell and Sarah his wife, James Boling (Fh279 Rin=22331) and Mary his wife and Behathalem Overall an infant by William Whitledge her Guardian. In chancery against Nathaniel Overall and John Dagg.

The deft. On their motion have time til the next court to answer the bill of complaint.

SOURCE: Prince William County, Virginia, Order Book Abstract, p. 32, 1752-1753 by Ruth and Sam Sparacio. (2174)

Prince William,VA-created 1730-31 from King George and Stafford


6K
James (Fh279,278a Rin=22331) r1752,r1761--m1750 (Mary Overall) in Stafford

Military

James Thomas Bowling served with Virginia Colonial troops in Revolution. (832)

Movement-Pennsylvania

“Pontiac’s War, shortly after 1761, fueled the decision by the English Parliament to issue the Proclamation of 1763 restricting colonial expansion past the Appalachian Divide.” (1844) The Bowling boys paid no attention to this restriction. (7) James Bowling was a Ranger 1781-1782 in Washington County, Pennsylvania. All Pennsylvania counties which bordered Indian county maintained companies of Rangers whose sole employment was in the defense of frontier settlements. (516)(517) 
Revolutionary Military Service

1781-1783
Source 517 Washington PA Rangers 1778-1783

Washington County Frontier Rangers 1778-1783

(PA Archives, Third Series, Vol. XXIII, Pages 198-220)
George
Bowlen
 
6K   

Fh237,746e  

Wm.
Bowlin
 
6K

Fh860,746j

James
Bowling
 
6M

Fh279,278a

Simms
Howling (sic)

6K        

Fh627,746x

Henry Bowling (Fh2499,746x) along with 
Alexander           (Fh020,746x), 
William               (Fh860,746j), 
George                (Fh237,746b), 
Simms                (Fh627,746i), and 
James Bowlin      (Fh279,278x, or perhaps 746x) 
were in Washington County, Pennsylvania, during the Revolution. Note that duty after November 1783 is not considered Revolutionary War service. (7) Henry Bolin, 1781-83, private Washington County Pennsylvania Militia, inactive duty, 4th Battalion, 8th Company, 4th class. (448) Henry Bolin of Washington County, Pennsylvania, served as Militia Private 8th Company, 4th Bn (1781-1783). (1550) 

See http://www.digitalarchives.state.pa.us/archive.asp?view=ArchiveItems&ArchiveID=13&FID=434278&LID=434377

James Bowling (Fh279) along with Alexander (746a,Fh020), George (746b), Henry (746d), Simms (746i), and William (746j,Fh860) were in Washington County, Pennsylvania during the Revolution. (7) I have copies of William Bowling (746j,Fh860), Alexander Bowling (746a,Fh020), George Bowling (746b), James Bowling (746e), and Simms Bowling (746i,Fh627) Revolutionary cards from Pennsylvania and they were in Captain Andrew Swearingen's XE "Swearingen:Andrew"  company Washington County, Pennsylvania, 3rd Battalion 4th Company Militia. They are like 4” x 6” cards in size. They are from Harrisburg, Pennsylvania, but on the Pennsylvania State Archives web page. Each card states "record proves active duty." (1518) James Bowling served with Washington County Militia. Certificate 12522 issued 9 Nov. 1784. (1550) James Bowling was a private during the Revolutionary War from Washington County, Pennsylvania. He received depreciated pay of the Washington County, Pennsylvania Militia. (140)(495)  Pvt. James Bowling was in Capt. Cottonxe "Cotton:Capt."’s Company, Washington County, Pennsylvania, Militia 1782-1785. (483)(2094)

Movement-Kentucky

James Thomas Bowling moved to Kentucky between 1785 and 1800. (832) James Boling moved to Kentucky between 1785 and 1800. (665) James Bollng moved to Mercer (Washington County, Kentucky in the early 1790’s). (78) James Bowling Jr. and James S Sr. Bowling were on the 1799 tax list of Mercer County, Kentucky. (837) 

The 1800 tax list of Mercer County, Kentucky, had a James Boling Sr. (Fh279) and a James Jr. (perhaps Fh280). Also a John Bowlin and William Boling. (7)

Death

James Thomas Boling died about 1790 (1497) 

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

James Fh282 (6N2) 1563a
-----------------

James S. bc1792-1850 (Rin=26814)/m      Elizabeth Batley (d1854)—His father was Charles #1563 (Rin=50310)


a
Franklin 1814,VA-1876/m1848 Sarah Jane Binns (bc1824-1907)


a
Loretta 1819,VA-1840


a
Ezra Howard 1821,VA-1900


a
Thomas b1825, Fairfield County, Ohio




a
Horace 1826-1890




a
Lucy Ann b1828




a
Thornton “Thorn” 1829-1864




a
Leah Elizabeth 1831-1856




a
Henry William b1833


a
Fielding 1836-1900




a
11 child


a
Children per Source #1529
War of 1812 Military Service

Abijah Bowling served in the War of 1812, 6th Reg't. Virginia Militia, others in that Reg't were 


Nelson Bolen (perhaps Fh4665) 


Pleasant, 


William, 


Isaac, 


James Boling(Fh282,1563b,6N2),


George Bowling (851a). (966) 

Abija Bowling (Fh008, 1563a, 6N2) was on Muster Roll #750, War of 1812, (1459) along with 


James Bowling (Fh282,1563b,6N2) (1459), 


Charles Bowling (1459) 


George Bowling (851a). (1459) 

Capt. John C. Edrington, Light infantry. Stafford County, Company.


July 16-24 1813


Jan 6-Apr 13, 1814 (6th Virgina Regiment—Lt. Col. Daniel Coleman)


Jul 22-Aug 18, 1814 (In Stafford Co.) (1946)

War of 1812, Stafford County, Virginia, Muster Roll of Capt. John C. Edrington.


George Bowling 
(851a)


Abijah Bowling 
(Fh008,1563a,6N2)-- His father was Charles #1563 (Rin=50310)


James Bowling 
(Fh282,1563b,6N2)-- His father was Charles #1563 (Rin=50310)


(1943)

James Bowling (Fh282,1563a,6N2), Abijah Bowling (Fh008,6M), and George Bowling (UK) are mentioned as being in the War of 1812, Stafford County, Virginia, Muster Roll of Capt. John C. Edrington. (1943) 

James Bowling was in the 1820 Census of Stafford County, Virginia. (348)

James Bowling of Stafford County, Virginia, was a soldier in the War of 1812. 
James Bowling married to Elizabeth Batley of Virginia. They later moved to Fairfield  County, Ohio, where they stayed until they died. They had 3 children in Virginia--the oldest child Franklin (my husband's great-great-great grandfather: born 1800 by one count, 1814 by another) and 8 more after they moved to  Ohio.  See the family group for children. Son Franklin married Sarah J. Binns. Franklin moved to Iowa in 1841. (1529)
Place Index

Fairfield,OH-created 1800 from Ross, Washington


6N2
James (Fh282,1563a) r and d--came from Stafford Co., VA


6N2

Franklin (282a) came as child from Stafford Co., VA, r<1841,-removed 1841 to IA

James Bowling (Fh282,1563a,6N2), Abijah Bowling (Fh008,6M), and George Bowling (UK) are mentioned as being in the War of 1812, Stafford County, Virginia, Muster Roll of Capt. John C. Edrington. (1943) 
Son Ezra Howard Bowling said his father and mother were born in Virginia.

Individual Record,  1880 United States Census

 

	 
	Ezra H. BOWLING
	Household

	 
	 
	Male
	 

	
	

	 
	Other Information:

	 
	 
	Birth Year
	<1821> 

	 
	 
	Birthplace
	VA 

	 
	 
	Age
	59 

	 
	 
	Occupation
	Farmer 

	 
	 
	Marital Status
	M <Married> 

	 
	 
	Race
	W <White> 

	 
	 
	Head of Household
	Ezra H. BOWLING

	 
	 
	Relation
	Self 

	 
	 
	Father's Birthplace
	VA 

	 
	 
	Mother's Birthplace
	VA 

	
	

	 
	Source Information:

	 
	 
	Census Place
	Lincoln, Smith, Kansas 

	 
	 
	Family History Library Film
	1254397

	 
	 
	NA Film Number
	T9-0397

	 
	 
	Page Number
	452A   


+++++++++++++++++++++++++

James Fh283 (6M18) 140x
-----------------

James 1790-1853 (Rin=46326)/m1817 Margaret Jones (1793-1846)--His father was Benjamin #140 (Rin=51012)

ab
Elizabeth "Betsy" Wren b1818/m1843 James M. Logan


ab
Elvira Perkins b1820/m1844 Daniel Barr


ab
John P. Whilin b1822/m1846 Maria Lorton


ab
Julia Ann Franklin 1823/4-1867/m1845 Abraham E. Nickols


ab
Jane Angeline b1826/m1854 John Cassity or Cassidy


  b
Mittieleena Ann Malietas/m      Joseph Stafford (b1826)


ab
Armiza Town Rogers b1830/m1853 John S. Highmore


a
Children per Source #184


b
Children per Source #99999



c
1820 Census of Fork Prairie, Madison,IL James (Fh283,140a) (males 000010, females 30110)

Place Index

Logan County,KY-created 1792 from Lincoln

6A
Benjamin (Fh140,432c) r1808

6A

James (Fh283,140a) r1808,m1813,m1817 (Margaret Jones)—To Bond, IL

From the Place Index
Bond,IL-created 1817 from Madison

6A
Benjamin (Fh140,432x)(Rin=51012) r1818

6A

James (Fh283,140a) r1817-1819—later to Sangamon, IL

6A


Elizabeth W. (283a) b1818

6A

Lucinda (140d) m1818 (Joseph Lorton)

6A

Mary "Polly" (140g) m1822 (William Cole)

6A

Sabina (140f) m1822 (Charles Cole)

6A

Sally (140e) m1818 (Andrew Roberts)

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

James Fh284 (6Y) 303b

Of Columbiana County, Ohio
-----------------

James 1795 VA-d1860 IN (Rin=50769) /m1813 Sophia Pierce/Pearce (1798 PA-1860)—His father was James #303 6Y  



James b1828



Levi b1829 PA/m       Mary Doudt






Sophia b1831/m1852 Robert Harris






Eliza b1832






Allan 1833-1900/m1855 Anna Gordon (1837-1900)



Thompton b1838






Washington b1839
The Place Index for Columbiana, Ohio—

Columbiana,OH-created 1803 from Jefferson, Washington


6Y
James (Fh303) r1820(Census, Age 45+,i.e. b<1775)


6Y

Clara (303b) m1809 (Alexander McKean)


6Y

Elizabeth (303c) m1810 (James Coburn)


6Y

James (Fh284,303d) r1812,m1813 (Sophia Pearce)

6Y

Elijah Eli (Fh225,303e) r1812, t1827,t1828, r1830 (Census)—A descendant’s kit 46808





 tested into DNA Group 6—See his family below

6Y

Charles (303f) r1812, r1820 (Census)


6Y

Margaret (303g) m1816 (George Kern)


6Y

Nancy (303h) m1817 (Joseph Green)


6Y

Sarah (303i) m1823 (Robert Black)

Birth, Parents, Lineage

James Boland was the son of James Bowland. Our subject, James Boland, married 16 April 1813 in St. Clair Twp., Columbiana County, Ohio, Sophia Pearce. (801) 
Military

James Bowling was on Muster Roll #301, War of 1812, along with Charles Bowling (303f,6Y), and Elijah Bowling (Fh225,303a,6Y). (1459) James Bowling was on Muster Roll #301, War of 1812, along with Charles Bowling, and Elijah Bowling (Fh225,6Y).(1459) Eli Bowlin (Fh225,6Y) had War of 1812 military service with a regiment from Columbiana County, Ohio. (801) 




















+++++++++++++++++++++++++

James Fh2841 (6M21) 235d
Of Wayne County, Ohio

-----------------

James  1795-1860 (Rin=33863)—His father was George #235 6M21 


John bc 1814/m1833 Margaret Hindman m 1833 in Wayne, Ohio)



Mary 1818-1865/m1838 George Washington Locke 1816-1897)



Child 3 b1810-1820



Child 4 b1810-1820



Edwin Bolin b1820/m      Eliza b1818 in Germany


Child 6 b1810-1820



Child 7 b1810-1820



Child 8 b1810-1820



A later child could be Allan 1833-1900/m1855 Anna Gordon (1837-1900)



See other “later children”

a
1820 Census of Franklin Township, Wayne County, Ohio, Males 200100 and Females 20100. 




(HeritageQuest.com) (2 males and 2 females under 10, 1 male and 1 female 16-25)

b
1830 U.S. Census of Franklin Township, Wayne County, Ohio with 8 whites under 20 and 2 




whites age 20-49.
From Place Index
Wayne,OH-created 1808 from Columbiana


6M21
Allan (2841a) b1833


6M21
Elijah (Fh2282, 235a) r1815,r1819,r1820(Census),r1823-Part that in 1824 became Holmes Co.


6M21
George (Fh236,235e) r1819,r1820(Census),r1823,t1825,r1826,r1830(Census),r1831--then to Seneca, OH


6M21

Elizabeth (236e) b1831



6M21

Enoch (236d) b1826


6M21
James (Fh2841,235d) r1820(Census age 18-26),r1823,r1830(Census),r1833


6M21
John (Fh373, 235b)r1815,r1819, r1820(Census),r1823-Part that in 1824 became Holmes Co.


John (UK) bc1809, later m1833 Margaret Hindman  

Holmes,OH-created 1824 from Coshocton, Wayne, Tuscarawas


6M21
Elijah (235a) t1825,r1850(Census,age 66,VA),r1860-part that earlier was Wayne Co.


6M21
John (Fh373,235b) r1850(Census, age 62 VA)-part that earlier was Wayne Co.


6M21

Fleisher/Fletcher (373a,bc1811) m1833(Jane Steel),r1850(Census, age 39 OH)


6M21

Sarah (373a) m1828 (James Shearer),r1860


6M21

Thornton (373b,bc1815) m1839,r1849,r1850 (Census, age 35, OH),m1855,r1880 (Census wife 





Elizabeth)


6M21

John (373c,bc1823) r1850(Census, age 27 OH)


6M21

Titus (373d, bc1826) r1850(Census, age 24, OH)


6M21

William (373e,bc1828) r1850,d1856



George W. (UK) b1825



Elijah (UK) r1882

Birth, Parents, Lineage












James Bolin was born 1795 in Virginia. James Bolin was the son of George Bolin (Fh235,6M21) and spouse unknown. James Bolin had 7 children  with Sophia Pierce (sic), one, Allan Bolin born 1833 in Wayne County, Ohio, who eventually came to the South Bend area, died 1900 in Layfette, Indiana in state soldiers home. (1906) 
Movement of those in his family

1820

James Bolen was in the 1820 Census of Franklin Township, Wayne County, Ohio, Males 200100 and Females 20100. (HeritageQuest.com) James Bolin was in Franklin Township, Wayne County, Ohio, in 1823. Also there was George Bolin. (7) James Bolen was on the 1830 U.S. Census of Franklin Township, Wayne County, Ohio with 8 whites under 20 and 2 whites age 20-49. (7) James Bolen (Fh2841,235d,6M21) was in the 1820 U.S. Census of Franklin, Wayne County, Ohio, with males 2 - - 2 - -, Females 2 - 1 - -.  Also in that county at that time were: Elijah Bolen (Fh2282,235a,6M21), George Bolen (Fh236,235c,6M), and John Bolen (Fh373,235b,6M21). (317)

Movement

1815, 1819, 1820, 1823

Elijah Bollin was in Lake Township, Wayne County, Ohio, in 1815, 1819, 1823. (7) Elijah Bolen was in the 1820 U.S. Census of Lake Township, Wayne County, Ohio with males 110010 and female 00010.  Others in the county in that census were: James Bolan (Fh2841,235d,6M21), George Bolen (Fh236,235e,6M21) and John Bolen (Fh373,235b,6M21). (317)(HeritageQuest.com)  That part of Wayne County became Holmes County, Ohio, in 1824. James Bolen (Fh2841,235d,M21) was in the 1820 U.S. Census of Franklin, Wayne County, Ohio, with males 2 - - 2 - -, Females 2 - 1 - -.  Also in that county at that time were: Elijah Bolen (Fh2282,235a,6M21), George Bolen (Fh236,235e,6M21), and John Bolen (Fh373,235b,6M21). (317)

1825

Elijah Bolin was a tax payer 1825 in Holmes County, Ohio. (298) 

1850

Elijah Boling was in the 1850 Census of Washington Township, Holmes County, Ohio. He was age 66 or born about 1784.  His birthplace was Virginia.  His wife was Atchsah age 58 born in Maryland. There was a Mary Harpster age 20 born PA in the household. John Boling (235b,Fh373,M21), age 62 was in the same Holmes County, Ohio, 1850, Census but was in Hardy township. (1086) 

Death

James Bolin died 1860 in South Bend, St. Joseph County, Indiana. (317)
+++++++++++++++++++++++++

James Butler Fh285 (6C) 788x
-----------------

James Butler 1795-1878(Rin=46491,FAG=78731543)/m1819 Sophronia McLean Ewing (1800-1868)--His father was William #788(Rin=46489)

a
Robert Chatham 1820-1886/m1845 Lucy Croghan Temple (1824-1900)


a
William Ewing 1821-1878/Elizabeth Jane Winston (1834-1892)


a
James M. b1822d>1886/Lucy C. Snadon—no children


a
Henry Gilson 1828-1874/m1849 Sarah "Sallie" L. Snadon (1832-1917)



Samuel 1829-1883


a
Children per source #1704 and #291


Two boys under 10 in 1820 Census

James Butler Bowling of Clarksville, Tennessee, married Sophronia Ewing of Logan County, Kentucky in 1819. He was a doctor. (16) 
Birth, Parents, Lineage

James Butler Bowling was born 1795 in Westmoreland County, Virginia. His father, William Bowling (Fh788), was a farmer and moved to Lexington, Fayette County, Kentucky, in 1805. James Bowling graduated from Medical College. He practiced in Lexington and Hopkinsville, Kentucky, Clarksville Tennessee. He returned to Kentucky in 1822 and settled in the southern part of Logan County, Kentucky. He is a lineal descendant of Pocahontas (sic). Dr. Bowling married Sophronia M. Ewing, daughter of General Robert E. Ewing. He lived beyond age 81. At that time three of his children were living including Robert Chatham Bowling, who was born 1820 in Clarksville County, Tennessee. (116) James B. Bowlin was in the 1820 Census of Montgomery County, Tennessee, page 1 with 1 male 16-26, 2 males under 10, and 2 females 16-26. (7) Dr. James B. Bolen resided 1843 in Logan County, Kentucky. (2145) 
From the Place Index

King George,VA-created 1720-21 from Richmond, Westmoreland

In 1777 the revision of the county lines threw St. Paul’s Parish into King George Parish where it has remained since that date.


6C
John (Fh402, had wife Judith at death) r1722,r1723,r1725,d1730,wi1731


6C

David (Fh160,402a) m1741 (Jane Pilsher)--m @ St. Paul's,r1742(Rin=61269)


6C

Jesse (Fh340,160a) b1742 or bc1745-50,r1772,r1782,t1782,r1784,r1787 (Rin=45488)


6C

William (Fh788,340x) b1772,m1794 (Sarah Spillman) (Rin=46489)—to KY shortly afterward


6C




James Butler b1795 (Fh285 FAG=78731543)

6C



Jesse (Fh351,340x) b1784


6C

Original (402b) m1752 (Margaret French)

Marriage and Children

Dr. James B. Bowling, an eminent physician and surgeon, of Adairville, Kentucky, married 1819, Sophronia Ewing. 
They had children: 
a.
Robert Chatham 1820-1886 who married Lucy C. Temple. (291) Robert Chatham Bowling was born 1820 in Clarksville, 
Tennessee. He married 1845 Lucy Crogham Temple (1824-1900). He died 1886 Russellville, Kentucky. (2069, Vol. 1) 
Robert Chatham Bowling was in the 1880 Census of Logan County, Kentucky:


Household Record,  1880 United States Census 

 

R. C. BOWLING
Self ,  
M ,  Male
60 ,  TN ,  Judge 4th Judicial Dist ,  
VA ,  KY 

 

L. C. BOWLING
Wife ,  
M ,  Female
56 ,  KY ,  Keeping House ,  
VA ,  VA 

 

Ella BOWLING
Dau ,  
S ,  Female
25 ,  KY 



TN ,  KY 

 

Lizzie BOWLING
Dau ,  
S ,  Female
23 ,  KY  


TN ,  KY 

 

Annie BOWLING
Dau ,  
S ,  Female
20 ,  KY   


TN ,  KY 

 

Lula BOWLING
Dau ,  
S ,  Female
18 ,  KY   


TN ,  KY

 
Source Information: Census Place, Russellville, Logan County, Kentucky

Place Index


Logan County,KY-created 1792 from Lincoln



6A
Benjamin (Fh140,432c) r1808



6A

James (Fh283,140a) r1808,m1813,m1817 (Margaret Jones)—To Bond, IL



6C
James Butler (Fh285,788a,b1795) r1828,r1843,d1878-He FAG=78731543


6C

Robert (285a) d1886


6C

Henry (285d) b1828,d1879



6C

William (285b) d1878



6C

Samuel (285e) d1883



6C
Samuel S. (788d) m1828 (Jane Pamela Townsend),d1829

b.
William E.  1821-1878 married Elizabeth Jane Winston, no children, 
c.
James M. born 1822 who married Lucy C. Snadon, no children and 
d.
Henry Gilson 1828-1874 who married Sallie Snadon. (291) Henry Gilson Bowling who was born 1828 in Logan County, 
Kentucky. (814) 










+++++++++++++++++++++++++

James Fh286 (6M17) 392x
-----------------

James 1735-1799 (Rin=49063)/mc1755 ------- ------ (bc1739-1790)—His father was John Fh392 (Rin=27332)  


Was Head of String M17

a
Thomas bc1755-1810(Rin=49064)/m1793 Sarah "Sally" Ford (1755-1859)--See Family Group
 #667

A Descendant kit 2388 (M17) and Kit 406401 (M17) tested into DNA 6.  

Kits 1569, 1288, 1918, 2013, 2388, and 3019 were 12/12

a
Lawrence 1770-1839 (Rin=49083)/mc1792   P.  ------ --See Family Group #4614




Kit 102427 (M17) —He said his father died in 1800.

a
George b<1775-d>1820 (Rin=49061)/mc1793 Frances Lavender--See Family Group #238


a
Robert b1775-1795-d>1820(Rin=49084)/m1810 Sarah Oliver--See Family Group #561

a
John (Rin=50258)/m       Nancy Ann Templeton--See Family Group #385

a
Children per Sources #680 and #969

Birth, Parents, Lineage

James Bowling was born 1735. In a July 5, 1820, Affidavit of Lawrence Bowling (Fh4614,6M17) in the case of Webb vs. Young. "Lawrence Bowling ....(states) my father died 20 years ago ... that it will be twenty years the day before the ensuing Christmas eve."  File #307, Fredericksburg, Virginia Courthouse. Therefore Lawrence's father died on December 23, 1800 (1799?). (969)

Lines of Descent from 


Simon Fh629 BOWLING-

45539 b.1620


William Fh742 BOWLING-

65495 b.1652


George Fh240 BOWLING-

62389 b.1670


John Fh392 6M17 BOWLING-
51086 b.1700

 
James Fh286 6M17 BOWLING-
49063 b.1735

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

James Fh287 (6X) 2285x
-----------------

James bc1789 NC (Rin=59541)-d>1870/m        Letty ------ bc1799-d1878—His father was probably Benjamin Elliott #2285

*
Amy bc1824 NC/m1851 James M. Carney

*
Sarah bc1832 NC



*
James bc1835 NC

*
Hamas bc1835 NC

*
Clarissa bc1837 NC

*
Bluford bc1838 NC

*
Jerry bc1842 NC

*
1850 Census of Union County, Georgia

Birth, Parents, Lineage

James Bowling was born about 1784.(1850 Census below). James (Fh287) and William M. Boling (Probably William Martin) were appointed by Elliott (Fh2285,6X) as his executors (Elliott died 1844 in Greenville, S.C.), so perhaps they are his sons.

Elliott is Head of String X 
James Bowling was in the 1850 Census of Union County, Georgia. (FamilySearch.com) 
name:, James Bowling 

event date:, 1850 

event place:, Union county, Union, Georgia, United States 

gender:, Male 

age:, 61 

marital status:, 

birthplace:, North Carolina 

birth year (estimated):, 1789 

Household, Gender, Age, Birthplace


James Bowling , 
M, 61, North Carolina 


Letty Bowling, 
F, 51, North Carolina 


Amy Bowling, 
F, 26, North Carolina 


Sarah Bowling, 
F, 18, North Carolina 


James Bowling, 
M, 15, North Carolina 


Hamas Bowling, 
M, 15, North Carolina 


Clarissa Bowling, 
F, 13, North Carolina 


Bluford Bowling, 
M, 12, North Carolina 


Jerry Bowling, 
M, 8, , North Carolina  

Susannah D.
Boulden Susannah D. Boulden
James Bowling died after 1870 Bairsville, Union County, Georgia. (?)

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

James Fh288 (6M30) 374x
-----------------

James T. 1781-1852 (Rin=41284)/m 1802 Sarah Connally b1782 FT=D3N8-MP4, Rin=41284, Kits 30936 and 38773 —

His father was John #374

His brother could have been John Fh390—
one source “the sons of John Bouldin and Catherine perhaps Blackwell” 


a
Catherine bc1803/m       James Womble b1795


ab
Elizabeth 1804-1838/m    Thomas Byrd 1803-1862

a
Martha E. bc1807


  b
Susannah D. Boulden b1805

ab
George Connally 1808-1881/m1832 Syrena Collins 1814-1892

a
Frances bc1810/m       David Walker b1787


a
Susan bc1813/m     James M. McMenamy b1810


ab
William J. bc1813/m1837 Sarah Eliza Montgomery b1817

ab
James S. 1815-1885/m         Rebecca -------- 1826-1895

a
Mary bc1818-dc1851/m       Albert Gallatin Bydy bc1817


ab
Edward C. b1821/m1838 Harriett Parks bc1819-Kits 30936 and 38773 tested into DNA 6 

a
Sarah bc18190dc1858/m        James Florence bc1818


ab
Lewis P. b1821/m 1846 Sarah Jane Vincent bc1829

  b
Many more children mostly girls

a
grantpinnix@gmail.com (In 2017)


b
Source 7 (Norman Boling)
Birth, Parents, Lineage

James was born 31 May 1781 in Faquier County, Virginia, the son of John Bouldin and Catherine perhaps Blackwell. James married Sarah Connally 24 Nov 1802. Descendant kits 30936 and 38773 tested in to DNA 6. 
Movement
From the Place Index

Caswell,NC


6M30
James (Fh288,374a) r1805-1823(birth of children) FAG=130761720 Rin=41284—From Fauquier, VA


6M30

George (288d) m1832(Syrena Collins)


6M30

William J. (288g) b1813, m1837 (Sarah Eliza Montgomery)


6M30

James (288i) b1815/m     Rebecca -------


6M30

Edward (288k, father of Aurelius) b1821,m1838 (Harriett Parks),r1840-1852(birth of children)—





Kits 30936 and 38773 tested into DNA 6 Rin=36044


6M30


Aurelius (son of Edward 288k above) b1840,to Calhoun, AL FAG=13034493,





 Rin=32933 


6M30

Louis P. (288m) b1821, m1846 (Sarah J. Vincent)

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

John Fh289 (6B) UK
-----------------

John b<1800-<1850 (Rin=55084)/m1825 Hannah Farmer b1808


Williambc1826 KY



Elizabeth bc 1828 Ky
John M. 1830 KY-1911/m1857 Mary Ransbottom—He FAG=49106964

Descendant Kit 52520 (Mike Bowling) tested into DNA 6.


Jasper 1834 KY-1908 IL



Mary 1842 KY

Birth, Parents, Lineage

John Bowling was born before 1800.
John Bowling married Hanna Farmer in Greenup County, Kentucky on 14 Febuary 1825. They had children as noted above. (Source Mike Bowling)
From the Place Index
Greenup,KY-created 1804 from Mason



Enoch (UK) m1838 (Precilla Leymans)



Garrett (UK) b1879 (typo?)


6B
John (Fh289) m1825 (Hannah Farmer) r1830 (birth of son John)—A Descendant Kit #52520 tested into DNA




 
Group 6


6B

John (289c) b1830—A Descendant Kit #52520 tested into DNA Group 6 



6B
William B. (2281e) m1836 (Nancy Ann Elizabeth Hackworth)--See Descendant kit 163538 in DNA 6

Death
James died about 1849 in Carter County, Kentucky. (7)
From Place Index
Carter,KY-created 1838 from Greenup, Lawrence


3U3
Edmond (323l) r


3U3
James (325h) m1869, d>1880


6B
John (Fh289) dc1849—Descendant Kit 52520
+++++++++++++++++++++++++

James Fh291 (6K) 4655b
-----------------

James 1782-1812 (Rin=54018,FAG=69272709)/m1807 Martha Collins (1787-1847)--His father was Matthew #4655


a*
Robert W. or G. b<1812-d1824-1847


a*
Anne W. 1810-1844/m1832 Robert Lyons

  *
James b<1812-d<1824--See 559b also


*
Named in father's 1812 will. Wife Martha and brother Alexander named in will also.


a
Named in their grandfather Matthew Bowland's will (Fh4655) dated September 1824



James (1782-1812, wife Martha) d1812 (Cross Creek Cemetery) FAG=69272709
Birth, Parents, Lineage

James Bowland was the son of Matthew Bowland (Fh4655) of “South Hill”, Washington County, Pennsylvania. (436)  James Bowland was born about 1782. (559) 
From the Place Index

Washington,PA-created 1781 from Westmoreland

6K
Matthew (Fh4655,746g, 1743-1825, wife Agness) r1781,r1784,t1786,r1790-r1820,d1823 or d1824,w1824

6K


d1825 (Oak Spring Cemetery) He FAG= 77104305

6K

Thomas (4655a) r1809,d1818,wp1820 (Adm. Brother Alexander)

6K

James (Fh291,4655b 1782-1812, wife Martha) l1811,d1812/3 (Cross Creek Cemetery) FAG=69272709
6K

Robert (Fh559,4655c) r1800,m<1801 (Martha Mercer),r1804,r1810(Census)

6K


Martha (wife of Fh559) d1815

6K


James (559a) b1804

6K

Jane (4655d 1792-1862) d1862 (Chartiers Hill Cemetery) FAG=80978744—See brother Alexander 

6K

Alexander (4655e 1794-1862) d1862 (Chartiers Hill Cemetery) FAG=80978743—See sister Jane 

6K

Sallie (4655f 1797-1826) d1862 (Chartiers Hill Cemetery) FAG=80978747—See brother Alexander 

Marriage 

James Bowland married Martha Collins, 1807, in Jefferson County, Ohio. (287)(413) Martha Collins was born 1787 the daughter of David and Ann (Workman) Glasgow Collins. (866) The Steubenville, Ohio, Land Office had a Jefferson County, Ohio land entry (#2487, September 30, 1806) in favor of Ann Collins. Under the entry is “James Bowland of Washington County, Pa., September 25, 1810”.  Presumably James Bowland purchased the land of Ann Collins or it was given or left to him. (515) James Bowland was Ann Collins son-in-law. (866) 
James Bowland bought land in Washington County, Pennsylvania, 1811, Deed Book 1-V, page 305. (7) 
Daughter Ann W.  Bowland (1810-1844) married 1832 Robert Lyons in Harrison County, Ohio. (866)(862) Daughter Anna W.  (Bowland) Lyons is buried in the Cadiz Township, Harrison County, Ohio, cemetery. (866) The 1880 Census record would not be her if she died in 1844. Also brother Robert, died by then and their father not born in Ireand. (7)

Groom's Name: Robert Lyons

Bride's Name: Anne Bowland                     in 1880 census of Cadiz, OH she is 74, b. c. 1806, OH

Marriage Date: 07 Aug 1832                      her brother Robert Bowland is living with them, Ann

Marriage Place: Harrison County, Ohio              and Robert’s father is given as born in Ireland

Indexing Project (Batch) Number: M01096-2     mother born PA, Robert born 1799 in OH

Collection: Ohio Marriages, 1800-1958 (FamilySearch.org  pilot,2010)

Household Record,  1880 United States Census 

 Robert LYONS

Self ,  
M ,  
Male 
76 ,  PA ,  Banker


IRE ,  IRE 

 Ann B. LYONS

Wife ,  
M ,  
Female
74 ,  PA ,  Keeping House

 IRE ,  PA 

 Richard LYONS

Son ,  
S ,  
Male
39 ,  OH ,  Clerk In Bank

PA ,  PA 

 Robert BOWLAND
BroL ,  
S ,  
Male
81 ,  OH ,  Makes This Home
IRE ,  PA 

Source Information: Census Place, District 86, Cadiz, Harrison, Ohio

$24.80    Twelve months after date I promise to pay Robert Bowland and Matha Maholm (late Martha Bowland) executors of the Estate of James Bowland, deceased, on order Twenty-four dollars Eighty cents with interest being the dividend due the aforesaid executor from the Estate of Thomas Bowland, deceased, Witness my hand and seal this 25th day of Jan 1821.

 

Alex Bowland

 

Test

John Hunter

 

Children

Matthew Bowland Fh4655 had sons Robert (Fh559), James (Fh291), Thomas (4655f), and Alexander (Fh024)  . See following on more about each of them.

 

a.
Robert Bowland (1774-1857) Fh559, 4655b, Rin=54015, Findagrave 155923779, Mansfield City Cem., Richland, Ohio 
LDQL-ZKR.




b.
James Bowland (1782-1812) Fh291, 4655d, Rin-54018, Findagrave 6927209, Cross Creek Cemetery, Washington 
County, 
PA. LDQL-ZBK.


c.
Thomas Bowland (1787-1820) 4655f, Rin=46559, Findagrave 99999999, MSLW-68W.


d. 
Alexander Bowland (1785-1844) Fh024, 4655d, Rin=54020, Findagrave 99999999 KFR2-KQK (2184)     

Death and Estate
James Bowland is listed in Will Book 2, page 373-376, 13 June 1812, wills of Washington County, Pennsylvania. (1021)

James (1782-1812, wife Martha) d1812 (Cross Creek Cemetery) FAG=69272709
James Bowland died 1812, aged 30 years, in Washington County, Pennsylvania. He was buried at the Cross Creek Presbyterian Church grave. “His wife was buried in the same grave in 1851.” Two other Bowland’s are buried there: Martha Bowland (probably the first wife of Robert Fh559) died 1815, aged 36 and Milton Bowland died 1824 aged 2. (559)  James Bowland of West Boston, Washington County, Pennsylvania had a will dated May 1, 1812 and probated June 30, 1812.  Executors were Robert Bowland (Fh559), Alexander Bowland (4655b) & Martha Bowland. Witnesses were James Willy & Andrew Stevenson. Beneficiaries were wife Martha, sons Robert G. and James, daughter Ann W. and brother Alexander Bowland. Also mentioned were John Wilkin, David Bruce and Samuel Fulton. The will was probated June 30, 1812. Acct: D-18-1826. (615) James Bowland of “West Boston”, Washington County, Pennsylvania, had a will dated May 1, 1813 (probably 1812), which was probated in Jefferson County, Ohio, August 10, 1813. The will names wife Martha; children Robert, Ann W., and James; and brother Alexander Bowland.  Executors were Robert and Alexander Bowland. (514)  Robert Bowland (Fh559), Alexander Bowland (4655b), and Martha Bowland, in Burgetstown, Pennsylvania, executors of James Bowland, deceased, offer his land in Knox Township, Jefferson County, Ohio, for sale, in a newspaper January 28, 1813. (748) In the 1824 will of James Bowland’s father Matthew Bowland (Fh4655) Matthew mentions his deceased son James and James’ children: Anne W.  Bowland and Robert W.  Bowland.  (622) I assume the “W” in the name Ann W. Bowland was for her grandmother Ann Workman (maiden name). (866) 

Widow Martha (Collins) Bowland married second 1820, John Maholm of Cadiz, Ohio, in Harrison County, Ohio. (866) Martha (Collins) Bowland Maholm died 1847. (866) Martha Collins Bowland Maholm (1787-1851) Rin=54019, Findagrave 6927236, Cross Creek Cemetery, Washington County, PA., K14M-D9K. She married Maholm 4 April 1820.

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

James Fh303 (6Y) 386x
-----------------

James b<1775-d>1820 (Rin=50274, spelled Boleyn,FS/FT=LD38-LHQ) /m        UK- His father was John #386 


John c1781-d1841/m1819 Mrs. Delila (Williams) McConnel--See Family Group #387 


Clara bc1789/m1809 Alexander McKean--Same as 235g?


a
Elizabeth bc1790/m1810 James Coburn


a*
Elijah “Eli” 1793-1869 (FS/FT=K4G4-5VK,FAG=121822032)/m1812 Jane 



Brisbine (1790-1859,FAG=121822040)--See Family Group #225 Head of String Y


A descendant Douglas kit 46808 (Y) tested into DNA 6



Kit 46808 is a 25/25 match with Kit 4833(Z) and kit 35942(Z) and Robert Kit 514594



(M21)

a*
James 1795-1860/m1813 Sophia Pearce--See Family Group #2841

a*
Charles bc1795-d>1820


a
Margaret bc1796/m1816 George Kern


a
Nancy bc1800-d1890/m1817 Joseph B. Green (She FAG=64823913, Boland)

a
Sarah/m1823 Robert Black


a
Children (probable) per Source #801


*
Served together in the War of 1812

Thoughts of Source 801 in 2017.
The Place Index for Columbiana, Ohio—

Columbiana,OH-created 1803 from Jefferson, Washington


6Y
James (Fh303) r1820(Census, Age 45+,i.e. b<1775)


6Y

Clara (303b) m1809 (Alexander McKean)


6Y

Elizabeth (303c) m1810 (James Coburn)


6Y

James (Fh284,303d) r1812,m1813 (Sophia Pearce)

6Y

Elijah Eli (Fh225,303e) r1812, t1827,t1828, r1830 (Census)—A descendant’s kit 46808





 tested into DNA Group 6—See his family below

6Y

Charles (303f) r1812, r1820 (Census)


6Y

Margaret (303g) m1816 (George Kern)


6Y

Nancy (303h) m1817 (Joseph Green)


6Y

Sarah (303i) m1823 (Robert Black)


6Y
Elijah Eli (Fh225,303e) r1812, t1827,t1828, r1830 (Census)—A descendant’s kit 46808 tested

 



into DNA Group 6

6Y

James (225a) b1814,m1833 (Mary Green)


6Y

Mary (225b) b1816 


6Y

Nancy (225c) b1816


6Y

Margaret (225d)  b1818,m1835 (George W. Fitch)—he later marries Deborah 225e in 





Trumbull Co, OH

Birth, Parents, Lineage

James Bolen (Rin=50274) was born before 1775. He was in the 1820 Census (Now the only one I can find is Washington, PA, page 165 but that James Bolen is listed as “Black” as is George Bolen—This could be “Negro George” well known in the Family String K family). James Bolen is the head of Family String Y. It seems that any reference to a James Bolen of that age just completely disappeared after the 1820 census, which has made the research tough. (801)

Based on location and dates, these above may have had been his children. 
Lines of Descent from: 


Simon Fh629 BOWLING-


45539 b.1620     


Robert Fh516 6M19 BOWLING-

46246 b.1668


James Fh278 6K BOWLING-

54690 b.1700


James Thomas Fh279 6K BOWLING Sr-
22331 b.1730


John Fh386 BOWLING-


65497 b.1756


James Fh303 6Y BOLEYN-


50274 b.1775
Lines of Descent from 


Simon Fh629 BOWLING-


LDQF-K4Z b.1620

Robert Fh516 BOWLING-


LDQ6-Q8Z b.1668  


James Fh278 BOWLING-


LDQF-RF4 b.1700                    


James Thomas Fh279 BOWLING Sr-

MQ8B-MSG b.1730  


John Fh386 BOWLING-


L84V-7PG b.1756  


James Fh303 BOLEYN-


LD38-LHQ b.1775  
It is still speculation that these Bolens, who all were recorded to have been married in Columbiana County between 1810 and 1830, are related somehow to Eli. My suspicion is that they are either siblings or cousins (same generation) in that they married in the same decade that Eli is reported to have been married (although we’ve never found a marriage record for him!). I’m trying to make a top-down effort to formulate descendants of these marriages, in case they might show up in a DNA matches list. I’ve not gotten very far on this effort. (801)

 



Clara
m1809
Alexander McKean


Columbiana,OH

303g

Eliabeth
m1810
James Coburn 



Columbiana,OH

303c

Margaret
m1816
George Kern 



Columbiana,OH

303a,Fh225
Eli 
m1812
Jane Brisbine



Trumbull,OH

303b,Fh2841
James
m1812
Sophia Pearce



Columbiana,OH

303d

Nancy
m1817
Joseph Green



Columbiana,OH

303f

Charles






Columbiana,OH



William






Columbiana,OH
303i

Sarah 
m1823 
Robert Black



Columbiana,OH
303h,Fh387
John
m1819
Mrs. Delila (Williams) McConnel

Trumbull,OH

Charles Bowling (303f,6Y) was on Muster Roll #301, War of 1812, along with James Bowling (Fh284,303b,6Y) and Elijah Bowling (Fh225,303a,6Y).(1459) Eli Bowlin (Fh225,6Y) had War of 1812 military service with a regiment from Columbiana County, Ohio. (801)
+++++++++++++++++++++++++
James Fh304 (6C) 340x

-----------------
James Shirlock (or Sherlock) (Rin=46512) was born 1774 in Fauquirer or Augusta County, Virgina. to Jessee Fh340. James died about 1820 in Fayette, Kentucky. (Rin=46512). He married first in 1801, in Spotsylvania, Virginia, to Elizabeth "Betsy" Newton and married in 1812 Fauquier, Virginia in as his second wife Eleanor Rosser.(7)

The following could be an older James

Movement
1785
James Bowlin was on the 1785 census of Fauquier County, Virginia with 6 whites, 1 dwelling, and 2 outhouses. (1547) 
1787

James Boling was on the 1787 census of Fauquier County, Virginia with 1 horse. (551)  
1789-1791

James Bowling was on the 1789-1791 tax list of Fauquier County, Virginia. (23)  
1790

James Bowling in 1790 resided in Fauquier County, Virginia. (31) 
1799

James Boling (Fh304,340x) was on the Fauquier County, Virginia, 1799 Personal Property Tax List B, page 41. (1414)(1654)
From the Place Index
Augusta, VA-created 1738-45 from Orange


6C
Jesse (Fh340,160a) ,r1774,r1776--Part that was Rockingham later (Rin=45488)


6C

James (Fh304,340c) b1774--Part that was Rockingham later (Rin=46512)

6C

Joel (Fh3535,340d) b1776--Part that was Rockingham later (rin=46514)
Fauquier,VA-created 1759 from Prince William


6M30
James (Fh288,374a, (Rin=41284,FAG=130761720) b1781—Descendant kits 30936 & 38773 





tested in to DNA 6—To Caswell, NC


James m1750



James (UK) r1785,r1787,r1789-93,t1790,t1799


6C
James (Fh304,340d) m1812 (2/w Eleanor Rosser)


James E. (Fh276) bc1792

Rockingham,VA-created 1778 from Augusta


6C
Jesse (Fh340,160a) r1776--Augusta then (Rin=45488)


6C

Jesse (340a) r1810,d<1811


6C

Jesse Butler (Fh351,340c) t1805-1824,r1820--later to Greenbrier Co. VA & by 1840 Cincinnati,






Hamilton, OH (Rin=45579)


6C


James (351a) rc1810


6C

Joel (Fh3535,340d) b1776--Augusta then


6T
James (Fh002,424l, 6T) b1773 (Rin=54471)—to Rush, IN
Spotsylvania, VA-created 1720-21 from Essex and King & Queen


6C
David (Fh160,402x) b<1721,probably relative John Fh402 and William) r1722 (road work so b<1704)


6C

Jesse (Fh340, Rin=45488, 160a) r1778,l1789,r1791,w1792,w1793,d1793--prior from King George, VA


6C


James S. (Fh304,340d) nw1793,m1801 (Elizabeth “Betsy” Newton)
Fayette,KY-created 1780 from original Kentucky County, Virginia (early towns Lexington, Leestown and Greenville)


6C
Joel (Fh3535,340a)(Rin=46514) r1806,r1810(Bolen Census age 26-44)


6C

J.L. (Joel, Fh3536,3535a) r1814, m1818 (Margaret Coverdill)


6C
William (Fh788,340b)(Rin=46489)(FAG=157568713) r1805,r1811,r1814-1818,d>1834—prior Spots. VA—




later Mason KY


6C

John S. (Fh384, 788b)(Rin=46495) r1816


6C

Elizabeth Kendall (788c) m1816 (Gabriel Long),d<1834


6C
James (Fh304,340c)(Rin=46512) t1797

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

Jarrett Fh320 (6A) 100x
-----------------

Jarrett Wesley 1762-1856 (Rin=44527)/m1781 1/w Eleanor "Ellen" Garrison 1765-1830--His father was Benjamin #100 (Rin=18518)



Descendant kit 95951, kit 490162 tested into DNA 6




Descendant kits 3906, kit 7674, kit 78240, Kit 84056 tested into DNA 6



Descendant kit 116187 kit 96825 tested into DNA 6




Descendant Kit 96824 tested in to DNA 6, 

An exact match to kits 1286 (M18) and 2282 (K)


abcd
Jane “Janey” 1783-1880/m1803 Rev. David Young (1783-1858)


abcd
Henry 1785-1818(Rin=18809)/m1809 Mary Ann Higgenbotham--See Family Group #253

A Descendant Kit 96824 tested in to DNA 6, 
an exact 25/25 match to kits 1286(M18) and 2282(K)

abcd
Elizabeth 1787-d<1850/m1807 William Kyle Higgenbotham (bc1787-dc1855)

  b  d
Mary "Polly" H.  1788-1855/1/h m1805 James Lockhart,2/h m1828 Christopher M. Gose

abcd
William 1789-1870 (Rin=19434)/m1807 Lavinia Asbury/Asberry & m1858 Elizabeth Rich—

See Family Group #890--Descendant tested Kit 84056 into DNA 6

  b  d
Nancy c1791/92-1842/m1815 Hezekiah Blankenship (1792-<1850)

  bcd
Benjamin J. 1794-1870 (Rin=44647)/mc1810 Nancy Lockhart--See Family Group #145.




A Descendant kit 96825 tested into DNA 6   


  bcd
Bailey W. "Balam" 1796-1842(Rin=20136)/m1816 Frances "Fanny" Higgenbotham--See Family
 Group #080




Descendant kit 95951 tested into DNA 6


abcd
Hiram G. 1802->1890/m1823 Lucinda "Lucy" Goodwin (1800-d>1850)

a  cd
Lindsey/Lynsa 1803-dc1897/m1821 1/w Lovicy Brooks & 2/w m1862 Ruth M. Barnett (1831-





d>1880)



Descendant kit 78240 tested into DNA 6



Descendant kit 116187 tested into DNA 6

  bcd
Rebecca 1810->1840-<1865/m1826 Charles Higgenbotham (bc1800)

  bcd
Jared/Jarrett "Wesley" 1810-1879/m1832 Frances Young —Sometimes confused with 890a


2/w m1839 Mrs. Isabella (Poage) Goodwin b1797

  b  d
Eleanor G. 1841->1900/m1856 John W. Sweeney


a
Children per Source #1026 (W. Edward King)

b
Children per Source #911 (Elke Hall)

c
Children per Source #1907


d
Children per Source #1908 (Laura Venerable)

Birth, Parents, Lineage

Jarret Boling (Fh320,100a,6A) was born 18 Jan 1762 in Stafford County, Virginia. (1593)  Descendant kits 3906 and 7674 tested into DNA 6. Jarret Bolling was born 1762. (199) Jarrett Bowling was born 1762 in Stafford County, Virginia.  Jarrett Bowling's parents were Benjamin Jr. and Winifred "Winnie" (Garrison) Bowling (Fh100). (15)(959) Jarret Wesley Bowling (Fh320,6A) was born January 18, 1762 in Stafford County, Virginia the son of Benjamin Bowling, Jr. and Winifred Garrison (Fh100,6A). (1604) Jarret Bolin was born 1762 in Virginia the son of Benjamin and Winifred (Garrison) Boline. (156) Jarret Bowling was born 1762 the son of Benjamin and Winifred (Garrison) Bowling. (223) Jarret Bowling was born 1762 Stafford County, Virginia the son of Benjamin and Winifred (Garrison) Bowling (Fh100). (196) Jarret Bowling was born 1762 in Stafford County, Virginia to Benjamin and Winifred (Garrison) Bowling. (30) Jarred Boland (Bowling) was born in Stafford County, Virginia. (1269) Jarred Boland (Bowling) parents were given as Benjamin and Winney Boland. (1269) Janett Bowling was born 18 Jan 1762. (1271) Jarret Bowling (Fh320) was born 18 Jan 1762 in Stafford County, Virginia. (1485)

Lineage according to Source #1732 (Henry Rogge):


Thomas, Fh665, had son


William, Fh741, had son



(Not correct per Source #1919)


William, Fh742, A, had son


George, Fh240, A, had son


Joseph, Fh450, A, had son


Benjamin, Fh090, A, had son


Benjamin, Fh100, A, had son


Jarrett, Fh320, A, had son



Lindsay, 320j, A (1732) 

Marriage and Children

Jarrett Bowling married first Eleanor "Ellen" Garrison about 1782. (15) Jared Bowling born 1762 in Virginia Eleanor Garrison. (2074, Vol. 6) Jarret Bowling married Eleanor Garrison. (30) Jarret Bolling married Winnie Gryson. (199) Jarret Bowling  married Eleanor Garrison (1765-1830) in 1782. (223) Jarret Bowling married first 1781-3 Eleanor Garrison the daughter of William and Jane (Bowling ?) Garrison. (196) Eleanor Garrison was born 1765 and died 1830 in Morris Knob, Tazewell County, Virginia. Her parents were William Garrison and Jane Bowling. William Garrison was born 1746 and died 1824 in Madison County, Alabama. Jane Bowling was born 1746 and died 1795 in Tazewell County, Virginia. Jane Bowling’s parents are unknown. (7) Jarret Wesley Bowling married in 1781 Eleanor Garrison in Tazewell County Virginia. (1604)  
After Eleanor's death, Jarret married Isabella Poague Goodwin. (1604) Jarret Bowling (Fh320,100a,A,6)  is my family. I don't know if he had any siblings. A 1787 and 1790 tax list 4 people in the household in Stafford County, Virginia. Jarret Bowling was married in 1781 in Tazewell County, Virginia, so he is not one of those four. (1593) Jarrett Bowling married second 1839 Mrs.  Isabella (Poague) Goodwin the daughter of William Poague. (196) Jarret married first Eleanor Garrison and married second 1839 in Virginia, Isabella Goodwin. (156) Jarret Bowling married Eleanor Garrison. (911) Janett Bowling married Elenor Garrison in 1782 and she died 1830 in Tazewell County, Virginia. (1271) Jarret Bowling married twice, first  in 1781 in Tazewell County, Virginia to Eleanor “Ellen” Garrison who was born 1765 or 1768  in Virginia, died about 1830/1 in Tazewell County, Virginia; and Jarret Bowling  married second Isabella Poage who was born 1797. (1485) 
Jarrett and Eleanor Bowling had the following children:

a.  
Jane born 1783 (30)(7) Janey (1783-1880) who married Rev. David Young, 1802, (223)(873) Jane (196)

b.  
Henry (Fh253) born 1785 (30)(7) Henry who married Mary Higginbotham 1816 (sic) (223)  Henry Bowling (Fh253) 
born 1786 in Virginia.  (15)  Henry (196) Henry born 1785 in Washington County, Virginia (30) They had a son Henry 
Bowling (Fh253,6A). (1604) Henry Bolin married December 19, 1809 Mary Higginbotham, in 
Tazewell
County, Virginia,
 
by David Ward. (2004 and 2033, both page 53) 

c.  
Elizabeth born 1787 (30)(7) Elizabeth who married William K.  Higginbotham, 1806, (223)(873) Elizabeth (196) Elizabeth 
Boling married 1805-1807 William Higginbotham, in Tazewell County, Virginia. (2004, page 56)(2033, page 51)

d.  
William (Fh890, KHT2-P91, Rin=194534) born 1789 (30)(7) William who married Lavinnia Asburg (223)  William married 
first between 1805 & 1807 Lavinia Asberry and married second 1858 Elizabeth Rich. (873) William (196) William Boling 
married 1805-1807 Levina Asberry, in Tazewell County, Virginia. (2004, page 56) 

e.  
Polly Bowling born before 1790, married James Lockhart and probably died in Warren County, Tennessee. Jarrett 
had 
another daughter Polly H. Bowling  born after 1810 and married Christopher Gose on 14 August 1828 in Tazewell County, 
Virginia .  She died 18 April 1855 in Linn County, Missouri. Jarrett Bowling mentioned his daughter Polly H. Bowling in his 
will. (911)

f.  
Jared Wesley (320f) (30)(7)(196)  Jarret Wesley who married first Nancy Vinsant 1829 and second Fannie Young 
1832, 
(223) Jarret married 1832 Fanny Young. (873) Perhaps son Jarrett Boling is in the 1870 Census of Elliott 
County, Kentucky, 
with a wife Nancy, age 56. (1155) Jarrat Boland married Nancy Vinsant 1829 in Tazewell County, Virginia. (2033, page 86) 
Jarret Wesley Bowling married Frances Young on 23 Aug. 1832 in Tazewell 
County, Virginia, They remained in Tazewell, 
Frances died after 1880. (There was another Jarrett Wesley Bowling (890b), born 1808, son of William Bowling and Lavina 
Asbury, who married Nancy Taylor Vansant on 1 Dec. 1829 in Tazewell. They moved to Morgan County, Kentucky, he died 
in 1879 in Elliott County, Kentucky. ) (911) Jared Wesley Bowling was born about 1790 (sic, more likely 1810 below) in 
Tazewell County, Virginia, the son of Jarrett Bowling and Elearnor "Ellen" Garrison.  He married Frances Young in 1832. (7)  
Jared W. Bolen in 1829 married Nancy Taylor VanSant (See Jarrett Bowling 890b in family groups) and in 1832 married 
Francis Young. Both marriages were in Tazewell County, Virginia. (82)  Jarret Wesley Bowling was the son of Jarret and 
Winifred (Garrison) Bowling. He married first 1829 Nancy Vinsant and second 1832 Fannie Young. (223)  Jared Wesley 
Bowling was born 1810 in Tazewell County, Virginia, the son of Jarret and Eleanor (Garrison) Bowling.  He married 
Frances Young 1832 in Tazewell County, Virginia. (196)

g.  
Rebecca (30)(7)(196) Rebecca who married Charles Higginbotham, 1826 (223)(873)

h.  
Benjamin born 1794 (30)(7) Benjamin who married -----Lockhart (223)(873) Benjamin (196)

i.  
Bailey W. (Fh080) born about 1794-1798 (30)(7) Bailey (Balam) who married Fances "Fanny" Higginbotham 
(223)(873) Married in 1816. (873)  Bailey W.  "Balam" (196) Balam Boling married February 15, 1816 Fanny 
Higginbotham, in Tazewell County, Virginia. (2004 and 2033, both page 59)

j.  
Hiram born 1802 (30)(7) Hiram who married Lucy Godwin, 1823, (223) Hiram Bolen married April 25, 1822 Levicie 
Higginbotham, in Tazewell County, Virginia. (2004, page 59)(2033, page 70) Hiram (196) Hiram Bowling is in the 1880 
Census of Maiden Springs, Tazewell County, Virginia, age 80, born in Virginia as were his mother and father. He is in the 
household of his daughter Malinda, who is married to William A. Young. (1687)

 


1880 United States Census 

 
William A. YOUNG
 Self 
 M 
 Male 
 67 
 VA 
 Farmer 
 
VA 
 VA 

 
Malinda YOUNG 
 Wife 
 M 
 Female 
 57 
 VA 
 Keeping House 
VA 
 VA 

 
Selina YOUNG 
 Dau 
 S 
 Female 
 28 
 VA 
  
 
VA 
 VA 

 
Mattie E. YOUNG 
 Dau 
 S 
 Female 
 25 
 VA 
  
 
VA 
 VA 

 
John C. YOUNG 
 Son 
S 
 Male 
 23 
 VA 
 Laborer 
 
VA 
 VA 

 
Erastus B. YOUNG 
 Son 
S 
 Male 
 21 
 VA 
  
 
VA 
 VA 

 
Charles E. YOUNG 
 Son 
S 
 Male 
 15 
 VA 
 Laborer 
 
VA 
 VA 

 
Laura J. YOUNG 
 GDau 
 S 
 Female 
  9 
 VA 
  
 
VA 
 VA 

 
Emma J. YOUNG 
 GDau 
 S 
 Female 
  6 
 VA 
  
 
VA 
 VA 

 
Ella YOUNG 
  GDau 
 S 
 Female 
  6 
 VA 
  
 
VA 
 VA 

 
Hiram BOWLING 
 FatherL  
W 
 Male 
 80 
 VA 
  
 
VA 
 VA 


Source Information: Census Place
Maiden Spring, Tazewell, Virginia

k.  
Lindsay born 1803. (30)(7) Lynsa who married Lovicy Brooks, 1821. (223)  Lindsey married first 1821 Lavicie Brooks and 
married second 1862 Ruth M. Barnett Lindsay/Lynsa. (196) Lindsay born 1803 married Louisa Brooks sometime prior to 
1825. (30) 

Lindsey Bowling is in the 1880 Census of Tazewell County, Virginia:


Household Record 1880 United States Census 


Lindsey BOWLING 
Self 
 M 
 Male
76 
 VA 
 Farmer 
 
VA 
 VA 

 
Ruth BOWLING 
 
Wife 
 M 
 Female
44 
 VA 
 Keeping House 
VA 
 VA 

 
Wilkinson BOWLING 
Son 
 S 
 Male
14 
 VA 
 Laborer 
 
VA 
 VA 

 
Andrew BOWLING 
Son 
 S 
 Male
11 
 VA 
  

VA 
 VA 

 
Vicey BOWLING 
 
Dau 
 S 
 Female
9 
 VA 
  
 
VA 
 VA 


Source Information: Census Place Maiden Spring, Tazewell, Virginia


Children of Lindsay 320j


  bc
Amanda—died young


  bc
Rebecca Eveline b1834/m1854 Robert Whitley Morris (dau of Lindsey 320j Rin=44656)


  bc
Elizabeth b1836/m1859 Norman S. Whitley


  bc
Martha b1840/m1861 ------ ------


  bc
Harvey b1842 OH/m     Virginia Monroe 


b
Chidlren per Source #1908 (Laura Venerable)


c
Children of Lindsay 320j.

l.  
Polly H. (30)(7)(196)

m.  
Nancy (30)(7)(196)

All children were born in Tazewell County, Virginia.  Jarrett Bowling married a 2nd time, this time to Isabella Goodwin in 1839.  They had a daughter Eleanor born 1841. (30)(7)

Military Service

Jarrett Bowling was a Revolutionary soldier. (71)(959)(1073) Jarret Wesley Bowling was a American Revolutionary War soldier. (1604) Jarret Bowling mentioned in his Revolutionary War Pension application that he was born on 18 January 1762 in Stafford County, Virginia. (911)(1073) 1834 State of Virginia, Tazewell, On this 18th day of March 1834 personally appeared before the open court of Tazewell Jarret Bowling (Fh320,100a), aged 72, a resident of the county of Tazewell, in the State of Virginia, duly sworn in, doth on his oath make the following declaration in order to obtain the benefit of the Act of Congress on June 7, 1832. That he entered the service of the United States under the following named officers and served as hereinafter stated viz. While a resident of Stafford Co. in the State of Virginia he was drafted and served a term of 3 months under Cpt. Williams, the names of any of the other officers he cannot now recollect, he entered the first of March 1778 and left again the first of June. In the same year, he states that he was rendevouzed at Fredericksburg and marched from there down to some point on the Potomac where he was stationed until he was discharged by the said Cpt. William, but received no written discharge.
This declarant then returned to his home in Stafford as above stated and was again drafted and served a tour of duty of 3 months under Cpt. Jarvis (or James), he thinks, his first name was John. He cannot at this late
period of time recollect any superior officers names. He went into the service this second tour in the first day of Sept. 1778 and left again the first of December following, he states that he went from the County
of Stafford, where he lived, to a river called Pamunkey in order to intercept some British vessels that were coming up the Potomac. This declarant states that he remained there until he was discharged from the service at the expiration of his term on the first of December 1778 by Cpt. Jarvis. The declarant then returned home again to the County of Stafford, and remained there until the next Spring when he was again drafted and spent another tour of three months under Cpt. Sharp. The names of the other officers he cannot recollect. He went into the service the 10th of April 1779 and left again the 10th of July following, he was marched on this tour to a place called Hunter's Forge and served another tour and he was discharged by Cpt. Sharp. He does not think he received any written discharge, if he did in any aforesaid services he has lost them by this time or accident. This declarant then returned home and remained some time at home, and he thinks in the next year, 1780, he was drafted and served a tour of six months for Cpt. Hardin, who marched him to a place called the Three Springs below Williamsburg and he was then transferred to Cpt. Ballard and was marched from there to Yorktown on Potomac (should be York River) where the British then lay, he cannot recollect any of his officers names except Major Welsh and General Washington. He remained there until the British surrendered and then this declarant was marched to Falmouth with the prisoners and remained there until he was discharged by Major Welsh and obtained a written discharge which has been lost by accident. The declarant thinks, he entered the service on this last tour on the first of June and was discharged on the first of October following. This declarant was in no significant battle nor engagement except at the battle with the British at Yorktown on the York as above stated. This declarant has no documentary evidence that he knows of nor is there any person living by whom he can proof his service known to him. He was born in the County of Stafford in the State of Virginia and raised there and removed to the County of Tazewell, Virginia, where he is now and thence remained. He was born on the 18 day of January 1762, but has no record of his age that he can resort to. He states this is the only claim whatever to a pension or annuity and declares that he is not on the pension roll of any other state or territory whatever. Sworn to and subscribed the day and year aforesaid.

X
Jarret Bowling
his mark

We, James S. Witten and Robert Gillespie, residing in the County of Tazewell and State of Virginia and in the neighborhood of Jarret Bowling who has subscribed and sworn to the above declaration, state that we believe him to be seventy two years of age as he states and that he is reputed and lives in the neighborhood where he resides to have been a soldier of the Revolution and that we concur with that opinion, sworn and subscribed the day and year aforesaid.
James S. Witten Robert Gillespie
And the court does hereby declare in their opinion, after the investigation of the matter and after interrogating the soldier as prescribed by the War Department, he served as he states and the court
further testifies that it appears to them that James S. Witten and Robert Gillespie, who had signed the preceding certificate and under oath prove their statement are entitled to credit and the court further certifies that it appears to them that there is no clergyman conveniently to be had.
I, John Crockett, Clerk of the County of Tazewell do hereby certify that the foregoing contains the original findings of said court in the matter of the application of Jarret Bowling for a pension in testimony whereof
I subscribe my name and affix private seal to office present this 18th day of March 1834.
John Crockett, Clerk
State of Virginia
County of Tazewell (1414) Jarret Boling was born January 18, 1762 in Stafford County, Virginia. Jarret Boling was drafted/enlisted into the Revolutionary War in Stafford County, Virginia.  He applied for a pension S.18324 in 1834, age 72 in Tazewell County, Virginia and again (BLW #26360-160-55) in 1855, age 94 in Tazewell County, Virginia. A Wesley Boling signed as a witness in 1834. (91)(658)(873)(1073) Jarret Boling (Fh320,100a,6A) S18324 BLW#26360-160-55, Virginia line, applied 18 March 1834, "Tazwell" County, Virginia, aged 72. Soldier was born 18 Jan 1762 in Stafford County, Virginia, and he enlisted there. Soldier applied for BLW 4 May 1855 age 94. Wyatt Asberry and Wesley Bowling signed aff'dt. (1593) Jarret Bolling was a private in the Revolutionary War from Virginia. Jarret Bolling received a pension. (199) Jarret Bowling was a soldier in the Revolutionary War and was granted a pension for his services.  At the age of 93 he was also given a free grant of Land, under an act of Congress. (223) Jarret Bowling and wife Eleanor (Garrison) Bowling moved to Tazewell County, Virginia after serving in the Revolutionary War, when he was present when the British surrendered at Yorktown, a few miles from where we live. (911) Janett Bowling fought in the Revolutionary War. (1271) Jarret Bowling served in the Revolutionary War on four occasions, see separate paper. (1485) March 1834 “Jared Bolin presented in Court a declaration for a pension, accompanied with the necessary certificates, which was sworn to and certified as the law required”. (2004, page 234) Jarret Bowling was in the defense of Tazewell County, Virginia, about 1776. (2004, page 412) Jarrett Bowling Revolutionary Pension #S18324. (2088)
Movement

Jarret Bowling was in Tazewell County (present day), Virginia, about 1776. (1311) Jared Bowland (Fh320,100a,6A) and William Bowland (Fh844,100c,6A) signed a petition 1785 to form Russell County from Washington County, Virginia. (1275) Jarrett Boling was on the 1787 census of Russell County, Virginia. (551) Jarrett Bolling paid taxes 1790 in the Upper district of Russell County, Virginia. (1276)  Jared Boland (Fh320,100a,A) along with Francis, Enoch (100b), George and Joseph Boland (100c) signed a petition 1795 to form Tazewell County, Virginia. (7) Isaac Bristow - 20 acres - part Treasury Warrant 1651 dated November 3, 1795 - on both sides of the Cove road - corner to a tract of land Abednego White bought of Jerard Boland - passing a corner of John Donnell - near said Road. Recorded Page 341 - February 7, 1799. (1556) Abednego White - 250 acres - three Treasury Warrants; 100 acres by Warrant 1840 dated March 7, 1796; 100 acres by warrant 1669, dated November 14, 1795 and 50 acres by part of Warrant 2533 dated September 12, 1798 - on both sides of the Maiden Spring Fork of Clinch River - corner to James Daniel - corner to Isaac Moore - corner to Daniel, John Heaney and John Green - corner to John Donnel and Jerard Boland - corner to Boland and Isaac Bristow - south side of the Cove Road - crossing said road and the white oak spring branch. Recorded Page 372 - August 16, 1799 (1556) Abednigo White - 244 acres - part Treasury Warrant 2170 dated April 14, 1797 - on the north side of the Clinch Mountain - at the foot of Clinch Mountain corner to Jerard Boland and near Jonathan Nixon - corner John Bristow - corner to James Bristow - corner to John Drake. Recorded Page 333 - October 30, 1798 (1556) 
The Russell County, Virginia, 1799 Tax Lists has the following. Could these others be Jarrett's siblings?:

100a,Fh320
Bolling Jarrett

1


2

100b

Bolling Enoch

1


1

100e

Bolling Joseph

1


2

100f,Fh844      
Bolling Wm

1


2

100g

Bolling David

1


0

They are not in Russell County in 1800 as Tazewell County was formed then. (382) Jarret Bolen was on the 1810 tax list of Tazewell County, Virginia.  (380) Jarred Bowlen paid taxes in 1815, Tazewell County, Virginia,  two males over 16, 1 slave, 9 horses, 27 cattle, one clock and wooden works. (1123) Benjamin Bowlan was in the 1820 Census, page 242a, of Tazewell County, Virginia.  Also in the Census were Bailey Bolan (Fh80,320h,A) on page 242a and Benjamin Bowlan (Fh145,320g,A) on page 241a.  (348)  Jarrett Bolling was on an 1840 Census of Pensioners for Revolutionary Service, age 72, Tazewell County, Virginia. (8)
Death

Jarret died 1856 in Virginia. (156) Jarrett Bowling died in 1856 in Tazewell County, Virginia. (30)(7) Jarret Bolling died 1856. (199)  Jarrett Bowling died 1856 in Tazewell County, Virginia. (959) Jarrett Bowling died 1856 Tazewell County, Virginia.  (196) Jarret/Jared Bowling died 2 January 1856 in Morris Knob Mountain, Tazewell County, Virginia, 95 yr., 11 mo., 16 days.  (863) Jarret Wesley Bowling died January 2, 1857. (1604) Jarret Bowling died on January 2, 1856 in Tazewell County, Virginia, and an old gentlemen there, a great,great,--son knows the land where he lived and presumably was buried.  I will meet with him next month. (911) Jarred Boland (Bowling) died on 2 January 1856, Knob Mt. of old age, 95 years, 11 months, 16 days. (1269) Jarred Boland (Bowling) was not married at the time of his death. Wesley Boland, a son, reported the death. (1269) Janett Bowling died 2 Jan 1856 in Tazewell County, Virginia. (1271) Jarret Bowling died 2 Jan 1857 in Knob Mountain, Tazewell County, Virginia. (1485) He had three slaves mentioned in his will. (1805) Jarrett David (sic) Bowling (Fh320,100a,6A); born on 18 Jan 1762 in Stafford County, Virginia; died on 2 Jan 1856 on Knob Mountain, Stafford County (sic), Virginia; son of Benjamin and Winifred Elizabeth Garrison Bowling; married first, Eleanor Garrison about 1781 in Tazewell County, Virginia; second, Isabell Poage on 27 Jun 1839 in Tazewell County, Virginia. (1414)(1926)

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

Jarrett Fh323 (6K) 020e
-----------------

Jarrett or Gerrard 1782VA-1868 (Rin=53936)/m1807 Mary J. "Polly" Rust (1791VA-1875)--His father was Alexander #20


bc*
William 1808-1847-8/1/w m1838  ----- ----- 2/w m1846 Malissa Flat (bc1829-d>1850)

bc*
George 1810-d>1880/m1830-34 Mary "Polly" Wood (1812-1879) (He is FAG=49073397)



Researcher David Love (0) is a descendant


ab*d
Alexander 1812KY-1895/m1838 Susannah Wood (1818-1890)




Researcher Diane Dreier Deputy (448) is a descendant




Researcher Ann Kirkman (1496) is a descendant




Researcher Carol Bartlett (1518) is a descendant




The late Researcher Norman Bolin (7) was a descendant


b*  
John b1814/m1842 Margaret Karing


b*
Mary b1816/m1834 Henry Stilwell


b*d 
Robert 1818-d>1850/m1844 Sarah Ann Woods (bc1830-d>1850)--No living descendants


b*
Phoebe 1820-1865/m1842 Charles Horace Williams


b*d
Hannah Adaline 1822-1900/m1859 James Collins 1838-d>1880



Researcher Linda Collins Dunham (0) is a descendant


  *d 
Jarrett b1824IN/m1869 Elizabeth Soalkamp


b*d
Vincent 1826IN-1907-Never married


b*d
Charlotte "Lottie" b1828IN/m1854 John Collins 1830-1906



Researcher Paul Collins, Plainfield, IL  (0) was a descendant


b*d
Lucretia/Louetta b1830IN/m      George Massey--No living descendants


b*
Nancy b1832IN-d>1880/m1850 Thomas Stillwell bc1829-d>1880

b*
Jacob "Jake" b1835/1/w m1863 Nancy Jane Hargrove, 2/w m1866 Mary Harris


    d
Thomas bc1834IN-d>1850


    d
John bc1836IN-d>1850


a
Son per Source #1027


*
Children per Sources #1155 and #1509 (“The Ollie Papers”)

b
Children per Source #1503


c
2 males age 0-9 in 1810 Census per Source #1504.

d
In 1850 Census, Patoka Twp., Dubois, Indiana.  


Birth, Parents, Lineage

From his father’s write up. Intergrate
Garrard/Jarrett Bowling (See Fh323, Rin=53936, LZV9-9DX), was born August 12, 1778 in Ohio County, Virginia. Census and 
cemetery records verified his age and birthplace as Virginia. (448) Jarrett "Gerrard" Bowlin/Bolin (Fh323) was born 1778 and died 1868 Patoka Township, DuBois County, Indiana. He married 1807 Mary Rust. Family of fourteen children: (1155) Jarrard Bowlin had a marriage license issued January 10, 1807, to marry Polly Rust, in Hardin County, Kentucky. Marriage was January 18, 1807. Surety was Peter Bodine. B. Ogden performed the ceremony. Marriage Book 
A, pages 5 and 25. (1681) Jarrard Bowling married Polly Rust, January 18, 1807, in Hardin County, Kentucky. (1684) Jarret (X) Boling (Fh323,020d) was born 12 Aug 1778, in Virginia. He was of Hardin County, Kentucky in 1809. He died in Gentryville, Spencer County, Indiana. He married Mary J. “Polly” Rust. Their son Alexander Bolin (323x) was born 11 Nov 1812  Ohio-VA [Ohio-VA is now Wheeling, W.VA] married Susanna Wood XE "Wood:Susanna"  died Patoka Twp., Dubois, IN. (1442) (See his write-up for more) Some have Jarrett born 1778 Virginia who married  Mary/Polly Rust January 18, 1806 as a son of Alexander (Fh020) but I think this Jarrett is the son of my William (Fh860,746j).  My reason for feeling sure this Jarrett is the same as William's son is because the birth year is the same and my Jarrett did marry Mary/Polly Rust - the date is the same. (1496) The father of Jarrett Bolin (Fh323), whose name was Alexander Bolin (Fh020) or George Bolin (Fh237), was a soldier in the American Revolution. (448)(1530) Garrard/Jarrett Bowling (Fh323), born August 12, 1778 in Ohio County, Virginia, was the next child to be born to the family. Census and cemetery records verified his age and birthplace as Virginia. (448) Mercer County, Kentucky Circuit Court Records Box B-22 Bill filed March 1807  Bolin Heirs vs. McFathridge. Henry Ewing & Rachel, his wife, late Rachel Bolin. Gerrard, William, Jane Bolin (Kids state that they are the legal heirs of Alexander Bowlin. (1496)  Garrard Bowling (Fh323, 020e) about 1797 brought lot #34, which was 1 of the 51 lots in Elizabethtown, Hardin County, Kentucky, when the town was regularly established, by the July term of court, 1797. The first meeting of the board of trustees of Elizabethtown was held October 4, 1797 at James Crutcher’s house. James Crutcher XE "Crutcher:James" , (TB, note that James Crutcher was named guardian in 1803 of Rachel Bowling and Jane Bowling, daughters of deceased father Alexander Bowling (Fh020)), brought 7 of the 51 lots and Benjamin Helm XE "Helm:Benjamin" , (TB, security in the guardianship), brought 5 of the 51 lots. (1861) The family was in the 1820 Census of Warren County, Kentucky. (7) Mercer County, Kentucky Circuit Court Records Box B-22

Bill filed March 1807  Bolin Heirs vs. McFathridge.

Henry Ewing & Rachel, his wife, late Rachel Bolin. Gerrard, William, Jane Bolin (Kids state that they are the legal heirs of Alexander Bowlin. (1496)  (Jarrett?) (1496)

Jarrett/Gerrard/Gerred Bolin was born 1778, Ohio County, Virginia (now West Virginia) the son of Alexander (Fh020) and Martha "Patsey" (Williams) Bolin. (7) Jarret (X) Boling (Fh323,020d) was born 12 Aug 1778, in Virginia. (1442) Jarrett (Fh323,6K) born August 12, 1778 in Virginia. At some point he moved to Kentucky and he married Mary/Polly Rust January 18,1809, fought in the War of 1812. Mary Polly Rust “was the family historian. She recorded births and deaths in Jarrett’s bible. Abraham Lincoln XE "Lincoln:Abraham"  received his early schooling from her.” (1496) The 1850 Census indicates both Gerred and his wife Mary could read and write, which isn't always the case for people in the 1850 Census. (7)  Per his tombstone, Jarret Bolin was born August 12, 1778. (1893) Jarrett Bolin was born about 1786 (sic). (885) The father of Jarrett Bolin, whose name was Alexander Bolin (Fh020) or George Bolin (sic)(746b) or was a soldier in the American Revolution. (448)(1530) Jarrett "Gerrard" Bowlin/Bolin (Fh323) was born 1778. (1155) Some have Jarrett (Fh323) born 1778 Virginia married  Mary/Polly Rust XE "Rust:Mary \"Polly\""  January 18, 1806 as a son of Alexander (Fh020) but I think this Jarrett is the son of my William (Fh860,746j). My reason for feeling sure this Jarrett is the same as William's son is because the birth year is the same and my Jarrett did marry Mary/Polly Rust - the date is the same. (1496) The other source I have referred to is Jarrett Bolin's Bible. It was printed and published in 1829 and is in the Jasper, DuBois County, Indiana Library. This Jarrett born August 12, 1778 in Virginia- his son Alexander born 1811/12 was the father of my GGrandfather, Mountford Mack Bolin. (1496) "Jarrett (probably Fh323,020e) had a brother, Bill (probably Fh880,020d), who lived nearby ... alone. His log cabin stood in the middle of a patch of growing corn which was a good protection for him against the Indians who were on watch to shoot him. They knew he had it in for them after his father's murder." (1700) The Jarrett Bolin Bible gives the birth date for Jarrett Bolin as August 12, 1778 in Virginia, his wife Mary (nee Rust) born November 8, 1790 in Kentucky. Then it lists the children (see Family Group). (1503) The census listing for Gerred Bolin (Fh323,K) on the 1850, Patoka Twp., Dubois County, Indiana, says he was born in 1782. 1850 minus 68 years = 1782. See Family Group for his children in that Census. (Ancestry.com) The census listing for Jarrett (Jerry) (Fh323,K) on the 1860, says he is born in 1783. 1860 minus 77 years = 1783, Same birth year as the 1850 census give or take a few months depending on when the census was taken. I am tending to believe that he was born in 1782 or 1783. Same year as Alexander's (Fh020) son William (who married to Eliz. Rust) Other people have stated he was born in 1778 even the Ollie papers but what was someone else saying it long after the fact. Here we have Jarrett stating when he was born on 2 occasions 10 years apart that he was born in 1783. If we accept the age and birth year as 1783 then what does that do to the ages/relationship of them all. The two girls with the same name and Jarrett and William both being born in 1783 in Alexander's (Fh020,6K) household. (1496) 

Marriage and children

Jarret Boling married Mary J. “Polly” Rust. (1442) She was born November 8, 1790 in Virginia. (LDS IGI) (Per her tombstone, Mary Bolin, wife of Jarret Bolin, was born November 8, 1790. (Findagrave 48788653)(1893) Jarrard Bowlin had a marriage license issued January 10, 1807, to marry Polly Rust, in Hardin County, Kentucky. Marriage was January 18, 1807. Surety was Peter Bodine XE "Bodine:Peter" . B. Ogden XE "Ogden:B."  performed the ceremony. Marriage Book A, pages 5 and 25. (1681)(1864) I found on microfilm the marriage bond of Jarrard Bowlin and Polly Rust, 18 January 1807 in Hardin County, Kentucky. Bond; Jarrard Bowlin & Peter Bodine for fifty pounds. /s/ Jarrard  Bowlin (seal) & Peter Bodine (seal). (448) Jarrett Bolin married 1807 Mary "Polly" Rust in Hardin County, Kentucky. She was the daughter of George Rust XE "Rust:George"  who bought land in Ohio County, Virginia (sic, probably Kentucky) from Garrett Bowling. (7) Jarrard Bowling married 18 January 1807, Polly Rust by B. Ogden. B. Ogden had another marriage that day and that was John Daugherty XE "Daugherty:John"  who married Deborah Haywood XE "Haywood:Deborah" . (1869) Mary J. Rust who married Jarrett "Gerrard" Bowling/Bolin (Fh323,K) was a sister to Elizabeth Rust who married William Bowling/Bolin (Fh880,020f,6K); both are daughters of George Rust (George3, Samuel2, William1) and Hannah LaRue XE "LaRue:Hannah" . One of these Rusts married an Eskridge XE "Eskridge" , who was made guardian of Mary Ball XE "Mary Ball" 

 XE "Ball:Mary"  who was George Washington's XE "Washington:George"  mother. This is Westmoreland County, Virginia. (1414). Jarrard Bowling married Polly Rust on June 18, 1807 in Hardin County, Kentucky. (16)  Jarrard Bowling married Polly Rust on January 18, 1807 in Hardin County, Kentucky. (2009)  Jarrett Bowling (Bolin), son of Alexander Bowling, married 1807 Mary J. Rust, surety bond by George Rust. The newlyweds took up residence near Elizabethtown in the county. By 1809 Garrett (Jarrett) Boling of Hardin County, Kentucky, sold a parcel of land to George Rust, also of the same county. The original patent for this land was granted 18 June 1801 to Garrett Boling of Ohio County, Kentucky. (7) 14 January 1809, Garrett Boling of Hardin County to George Rust of Hardin County for sum of 60 pounds conveys 1,200 acres on rough Creek patented to Garrett Boling 18 June 1801. West end of John Thompson’s 500 acre entry. Recorded Hardin County 14 January 1809. Recorded Ohio County 7 September 1809. (1880) See also Jarret 746x, an older generation. In 1806 Jarrett Bolin married Mary or Polly Rust (1790-1876). Their first eight children were born (1808-1822) in Warren County, Kentucky (sic, no probably Hardin). Their last six children were born (1824-1836) in Gentryville, Spencer County, Indiana. (448) Jarrett "Gerrard" Bowlin/Bolin (Fh323) married 1807 Mary Rust. Family of fourteen children: (1155) Jarrett Bolin married Mary or Polly Rust who was born about 1790. (885) 
Their children: 
a.
William Bolin born 1808 (7)(1155) William Bolin born Feb 10, 1808. (1496) William Bolden (sic) is in the 1840 Census of 
DuBois County, Indiana, page 115. (1855) The author (below) was the granddaughter of Nancy Bolin, whose older brothers 
Bill and George “knew Lincoln quite well. They were not close friends of his, but they were often closely associated with 
him.” (Clara Stillwell, “A Few Lincoln-in-Indiana Stories,” typescript, 3, Lincoln Papers, Lilly Library, Indiana University, 
Bloomington.)  

b.
George Bolin born 1810 and married Mary Wood XE "Wood:Mary" 

 XE "Wood:Mary" . (1155) George born 1810. (7) George Bolin born Feb 17, 1810. 
(1496) 
George Bolden (sic) is in the 1840 Census of DuBois County, Indiana, page 115. (1855) The author (below) was the 
granddaughter of Nancy Bolin, whose older brothers Bill and George “knew Lincoln quite well. They were not close friends 
of his, but they were often closely associated with him.” (Clara Stillwell, “A Few Lincoln-in-Indiana Stories,” typescript, 3, 
Lincoln Papers, Lilly Library, Indiana University, Bloomington.)  

c.
Alexander Bolin was born 1812 (sic) and died 1895 in Indiana. He married Susannah Wood XE "Wood:Susannah" . The family lived in 
Patoka 
Township, Dubois County, Indiana per the 1860 census. (1155) Alexander was born in 1812. (7) Alexander Bolin was born 
1812 in Hardin County, Kentucky who married Susanna Wood. (885) Alexander was born November 14, 1811 in Kentucky 
and died October 30, 1895 Huntingburg, Indiana. (1496) Alexander Bolin (323c) was born 11 November 1812  Ohio 
County, Virginia (sic, father was in KY by then)[Ohio-VA is the area around now Wheeling, W.VA] married Susanna Wood XE "Wood:Susanna" 

 XE "Wood:Susanna"  
died Patoka Township, Dubois County, Indiana. (1442) Per his tombstone, Alexander Bolin was born 14 November 1811 and 
died October 31, 1895. He was buried in the Bruner/Mt. Vernon Cemetery (1894) See Find A Grave Memorial #48652779.
d.
John Bolin born 1814 and married Margaret Karing XE "Karing:Margaret" . (1155) John born 1814. (7) John Bolin born March 7, 1814. (1496) 

e.
Mary Bolin born 1816 and married Henry Stillwell XE "Stillwell:Henry" . (1155) Mary born 1816. (7) Mary Bolin born Nov 13, 1816. (1496) 

f.
Robert Bolin born 1818 and married Sarah Ann Wood. (1155) Robert born 1818. (7) Robert Bolin born March 10, 
1819. 
(1496)

g.
Phoebe Bolin born 1820 and died 1865. Phoebe Bolin married Charles Horace Williams XE "Williams:Charles Horace" . (1155) Phoebe Bolin born 
January 
25, 1820. (1496) Phelia (sic) and her husband Horsace William (sic), with their family, were in the household just prior to the 
household of her parents Gerred and Mary Bolin, Patoka Township, Dubois, Indiana. 
Phelia William was female, age 30, 
born Kentucky. (Ancestry.com) 

h.
Hannah Adaline Bolin was born 1822 and died 1900. She married James Collins XE "Collins:James" . (1155) Hannah Adaline born was 
1822. (7) 
Adaline Bolin was born January 12, 1822. (1496) Hannah Collins was in the 1880 Census of Patoka, Dubois, Indiana, saying 
she was born in Kentucky and her mother and father were born in Virginia. (1496) Per her tombstone, Hannah A. Collins, 
was born January 12, 1822 and died January 23, 1900. She was buried in the Bolin Cemetery, along with 3 other with a 
surname of Collins. (1893)(1894)

i.
Jarrett Bolin born 1824 and married Elizabeth Soalkamp XE "Soalkamp:Elizabeth" . (1155) Jarrett born 1824. (7) Jarrett Bolin Jr. b. March 31, 
1824. (1496)

j.
Vincent Bolin born 1826 and died 1907. Unmarried. Lived Patoka Township, DuBois County, Indiana per 1860 census. 
(1155) Vincent born 1826 (7) Vincent  served in both Mexican and Civil War.  His Gravestone says "Townster Co. F 24 Ind 
Inf - buried in Old Bolin Cemetery, Dubois County, Indiana. (1496) Vincent Bolin b. Mar 31, 1826. (1496) V. Bowlin is in 
the Bolin cemetery. (1894)(Findagrave 48789187)
k.
Charlotte Bolin born 1828 who married John Collins XE "Collins:John" . (1155) Charlotte "Lottie" born 1828 (7) Charlotte Bolin born 
Jan 2, 
1828. (1496) Researcher Paul Collins, Plainfield, IL (1991) is a descendant.
l.
Lucretia Bolin born 1830 and married George Massey XE "Massey:George" . (1155) Lucretia born 1830. (7) Lucretia Bolin  born Feb 21, 
1830. 
(1496) 

m.
Nancy Bolin born 1832 and married 1850 Thomas Stillwell XE "Stillwell:Thomas" . (1155) Nancy born 1832. (7) Nancy Bolin b. May12, 
1832. 
(1496) Nancy Stillwell was age 49, in the 1880 Census of Patoka, Dubois, Indiana, saying she was born in Indiana. The 
author (below) was the granddaughter of Nancy Bolin, whose older brothers Bill and George “knew Lincoln quite well. They 
were not close friends of his, but they were often closely associated with him.” (Clara Stillwell, “A Few Lincoln-in-Indiana 
Stories,” typescript, 3, Lincoln Papers, Lilly Library, Indiana University, Bloomington.) 

n.
Jacob Bolin born 1836 and married 1863 Nancy J. Hargrove XE "Hargrove:Nancy J." . (1155) Jacob "Jake" born 1836. (7) Perhaps George Cook 
Bolen (Bullen) (323b,K) married Nancy Jane Hargrove born 1838 Calloway County, Kentucky. Another source has her 
marrying Jacob "Jake" born 1836. (535)   
 

Children Jarrett (b1824) to Jacob (b1836) were all born in Spencer County, Indiana. (448) 

Military

Jarred Boling (Fh323,020e)  served as a Kentucky soldier (private) in the War of 1812, Muster:March 8, 1813-Depart:Sept 8, 1813, in Capt. Edward Rawling's XE "Rawling:Edward"  Company. Also in the unit was John Boling (Fh393,020d). (99)(1370) Jared (Gerrard) Boling (Bowling) (Fh323,020e) served as a Kentucky soldier (private) in the War of 1812.  XE "Rawling:Edward" Also in the unit was John Boling (Fh393,020d), George Rust and many more. (1861) Jarrett Bolin served in the War of 1812-14, at that time, living in the State of Kentucky, on their Homestead where the City of Bolingreen (sic, no) now stands. (1509) The Jarrett Bolin Bible says that Jarrett Bolin served in the War of 1812. (1503) Jarrett Alexander Bolin was called to New Orleans for military service in 1814, but before he reached his destination the war had ended. He moved with his family from Kentucky to Gentryville, Spencer County, Indiana in the year 1820. (1509)
Movement

The family lived in Hardin County, Kentucky, Spencer County, Indiana and DuBois County, Indiana. (7) Their first eight children were born (1808-1822) in Hardin County, Kentucky. Their last six children were born (1824-1836) in Gentryville, Spencer County, Indiana. (448) This is consistent with tax records. He is not on the tax records of Hardin County until 1804. Then he appears almost every year through 1822. His first name is spelled many different ways: Jarrat, Jarret, Jarret, (7 times with a “J”) Garrard, Garred, Garrett, Garret, and Garrd. (9 times with a “G”). His last name is spelled different ways also: Boulling (1), Bolin (4), Boling (1), Bowling (4), Bowlin (5), Bolen (1). His probable brother William Bowling (Fh880,020f) also starts in 1804 and continues on to 1822 plus a few more years. (1863) William Bolin (Fh880,020f), Jarrel (his X) Bowling (Fh323), Elizabeth Boling, Mary Boling and Rachel Ewing, being heirs of Alexander Bowling (Fh020) sell their 4 parts of 7 parts of land (136 1/2 acres of 240 acres) near Salt River (it describes the land in full but generally adjoins the lands of Robert McAfee XE "McAfee:Robert" , deceased, on the west) in Mercer County, Kentucky, 1808. They sell to Andrew McFatridge XE "McFatridge:Andrew" . (1407)(1876) Jarret/Jared Bowling had a 1809 land transaction in Ohio County, Kentucky. (1109) Jarret Boling was of Hardin County, Kentucky in 1809. (1442) Garrard Bowling was on the 1810 Census of Hardin County, Kentucky, Page 291, line 14. Two males age 0-9, 1 male 16-25, 1 female 16-25. (1155)(1546)(1504)(1861) William Bowling (Fh880,020f,6K) is on page 299, line 16 of the same Census. Abraham Lincoln XE "Lincoln:Abraham" ’s father, Thomas Lincoln XE "Lincoln:Thomas" , was on the same page 299, line 6. (1504) So in 1810 William Bowling lived near the Lincoln's (Abe's father) household and Garrard Bowling was farther away. (7)
Source 1504 Hardin County, Kentucky 1810 Census

http://ftp.rootsweb.com/pub/usgenweb/ky/hardin/census/1810/
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0
0
1
0







1-This would be Abraham Lincoln

Bowlin, Jarrett
1812 tax list of Hardin Co. KY with 1 white male over 21.  No land.

(http://www.rootsweb.com/~kybullit/bcqnb.htm)

Jarrard Bowling bought 2 sheep for $3.62 from the estate of Jonathan Joseph XE "Joseph:Jonathan" . On inventory of sales, October 11, 1814, Hardin County, Kentucky. (692) Jarrett Bowlin was mentioned in the estate settlement of Daniel Waide XE "Waide:Daniel" . Recorded August 14, 1820, Hardin County, Kentucky.  (1683) Jarred Bowlin was on the 1820 Census of Hardin County, Kentucky, page 28. William Bowlin (probably Fh880,020f) was on page 18 and a John Bowlin on page 72 of the same census. A Joseph Bowling was on page 92. (1340) Jarrett Alexander Bolin moved with his family from Kentucky to Gentryville, Spencer County, Indiana in the year 1820 (sic, probably 1823 based on tax records). (1509) The Lincoln Family (Abe's parents) were 1 1/2 miles east of Gentryville, Spencer County, Indiana. (7) Jarred Bolden (sic) is in the 1840 Census of DuBois County, Indiana, page 115. (1855) Gerred Bolin is in the 1850 Census of Patoka Township, DuBois County, Indiana, household 212/192. See the Family Group for the children in that census. He could read and write. (Ancestry.com) 
Death

Jarrett Gerrard Bolin died July 31, 1868 in DuBois County, Indiana. He was buried on the Bolin Family farm. (7) Jarrett "Gerrard" Bowlin/Bolin (Fh323) died 1868 Patoka Township, DuBois County, Indiana. (1155) Jarrett Bolin died July 31, 1868 in Indiana. (1503) Jarret Boling died in Gentryville, Spencer County, Indiana. (1442) Jarrett Bolin died in 1868 and wife Mary died 2 Oct 1876, both died in Gentryville, Spencer County, Indiana, and both were buried on the Bolin Cemetery in DuBois County, Indiana. (448) Per his tombstone, Jarret Bolin born 12 August 1778 and died July 31, 1868. He was buried in the Bolin Cemetery, a small family cemetery located in Patoka Township, on the Cass Township line, in Dubois County, Indiana. Per her tombstone, Mary Bolin, wife of Jarret Bolin, was born 8 November 1790 and died October 2, 1876. She was buried in the Bolin Cemetery (1893)(1894) See Find A Grave Memorial # 48788600.
Things that are probably wrong

Jarrett (Fh323) was the son of William Bolin. William Bolin was born in Pennsylvania and was killed by Indians in Kentucky - place Bowling Green area (sic), Warren County (sic), Kentucky.  I am not sure of the place because the old family history (by Mountford Oliver "Ollie" Griffith) gives conflicting information - in one area it says date and place unknown and another gives the Bowling Green area. It also says that William was killed and then says that his family was killed. (1496)(1509) In the past I thought Jarrett Bolin was born 1778 or 1782 the son of William Bolin and I recorded that in LDS records, but now in the year 2001, I believe Jarrett Bolin's father was Alexander (Fh020). (448)

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

Jeremiah Fh326 (6A) 397x
-----------------

Jeremiah 1785-1854 (Rin=44785)/m1806 Sarah Venable d1854—Father was John #397

*a
James Madison 1807-1865/m1837 Mararet A. Pelter or Petter-- James M. Bowling b1806 married 



Margaret A. Peltner, Frederick County, Virginia. (7)(281)

*ab
Lucinda b1809-d>1850

*a
Sophia Kizziah b1813-d>1820

*a
Julia b1813-d>1820

*a
Jeremiah Jr. 1816-d>1843/m      Eliazbeth ------- (She petitioned for divorce in 1843)

*ab
Barbara Ellen b1820-d>1850/m1849 Eli W. Swann 


*  b
Adelaide b1825-d>1850

*
Children per source #1932


a
1820 Census, of Frederick County, VA with males 110010 and females 31010. 





(HeritageQuest.com)

b
In 1850 Census of Frederick County, VA, in household of mother and father. 

Birth, Parents, Lineage

Jeremiah Bowling was born about 1782 in Virginia, county not known. He had a brother Ambrose Green Bowling (Fh029) and a sister Margaret. (1932) In court records, it is said that Jeremiah was the orphan of John. Jeremiah was born in 1785 and, no, he is not the Jeremiah who was the son of Benjamin (Fh110). (1979) Jeremiah Bowling (Fh326) was born 1785 in King George County, Virginia. He was married to Sarah Venable. They lived in Winchester, Frederick County, Virginia but moved to Rock Island, Rock Island County, Illinois in 1854 where they died soon after. Jeremiah's sister, Margaret, was married to George Davenport. Davenport, Iowa is named for him. (1979) Jeremiah Boling was in the 1801 Bond Book of Frederick County, Virginia. Jeremiah Boling was age 16 years, the orphan son of John Boling, deceased. (1661) Jeremiah Bowlding married 1806  Sarah Venable, Frederick County, Virginia. (7)(281)  Jeremiah Bowlding married 1806 Sarah Venable, Frederick County, Virginia. Bondsman was John Mastin. (564)  Jeremiah Bowling had a son James Madison Bowling who was born 1807, old town of Winchester Virginia, and was a native of Winchester, Frederick County, Virginia. (189)  Jeremiah Boling was in the 1810 U.S. Census of Frederick County, Virginia. (349)  Jeremiah Bolen was in the 1820 Census, page 45, of Frederick County, Virginia with males 1 1 - - 1 - and females 3 1 - 1 - .

1—male under 10

1—male 10 to under 16

0—male between 16 and 18

0—male 16 to under 26

1—male 26 to under 45

0—male 45 and up i.e. b<1775

3—female under 10

1—female 10 to under 16

0—female 16 to under 26

1—female 26 to under 45

0—female 45 and up i.e. b<1775


Also in that Census on page 25 were Lewis Bowlen and Josiah Bolin. (348) Jeremiah Bowling was a mattress maker. (189)  Jeremiah Bowling was a bondsman in 1817. (1134)  Jeremiah Bowling had a daughter Barbara E. Bowling who married 1849, Frederick County, Virginia, Eli W. Swann. (1134) See family group for all seven of his children. They were all born in Winchester, Frederick County, Virginia. In 1854, Jeremiah, his wife Sarah, and their three daughters (one of whom was married) moved to Rock Island County, Illinois, where two daughters and one son had already settled. The seventh child, Jeremiah Jr. is the only one who apparently did not move to Illinois. (1932) Son Jeremiah Jr. married Elizabeth ------- sometime before 1843 as that is when his wife petitioned for divorce, Town of Winchester, Frederick County, Virginia. ("Petition" database at the Virginia State Library, Reel #228, Box 286, Folder 71)

Death

Jeremiah Bowling died 13 November 1854, Rock Island County, Illinois, aged 72? This was ten days after Sarah died and only a few weeks after he had arrived in Rock Island. (1932)  

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

Jesse Fh340 (6M18) 160x
-----------------

Jesse 1742-1793,w1793 (Rin=45488)/m        Sarah "Sally" Butler (w1802)--His father was David #160 (Rin=61269)

*a
Mary c1767-1829/m<1793 Clement Burruss


*a
William T. 1772-1849 (Rin=46489)/m1794 Sarah "Sally" Spillman --See Family Group #788


*a
James Shirlock or Sherlock 1774-dc1820 (Rin=46512)/m1801 1/w Elizabeth "Betsy" Newton m1812 2/w 



Eleanor Rosser --See Family Group #3048

*a
Joel 1776-1811 (Rin=46514)/mc1800 Margaret "Peggy" Clark (b1783)--See Family Group #3535. 


*a
Jesse Butler 1784-1851(Rin=45579)/m<1804 Elizabeth Harrow or Lusk--See Family Group #351.


*
Children in father's 1 November 1793 will, Joel was only minor named (Hence Jesse maybe wasn’t a son) .

a
Children per Sources #227,#321, and #411.

Birth, Parents, Lineage

Jesse Bowling was born 1742 in Stafford County, Virginia, the son of David and Jane (Pilcher) Bowling (Fh160). (46) Jesse Bolling was born 1745-50. (199)(411) I do not believe Jesse Bowling 1742-1793/8 was the son of David and Jane Pilcher. (680) I (680) believe he was a son of a Mary (Fh001) and was born December 25, 1745, St.  Stephen's Parish, Northumberland County, Virginia, and had a brother Spencer born 1747 Northumberland. (680)(377) Jesse Bowlin was born 1745 Northumberland County, Virginia. Jesse Bowlin had a brother Spencer Bowlen (or Bowlin) born 1744 Northumberland County, Virginia. (7)(377)
From the Place Index

King George,VA-created 1720-21 from Richmond, Westmoreland

In 1777 the revision of the county lines threw St. Paul’s Parish into King George Parish where it has remained since that date.


6C
John (Fh402, had wife Judith at death) r1722,r1723,r1725,d1730,wi1731


6C

David (Fh160,402a) m1741 (Jane Pilsher)--m @ St. Paul's,r1742(Rin=61269)


6C

Jesse (Fh340,160a) b1742 or bc1745-50,r1772,r1782,t1782,r1784,r1787 (Rin=45488)


6C

William (Fh788,340x) b1772,m1794 (Sarah Spillman) (Rin=46489)—to KY shortly afterward


6C




James Butler b1795 FAG=78731543


6C



Jesse (Fh351,340x) b1784


6C

Original (402b) m1752 (Margaret French)

Marriage and Children

Jesse Bolling married Sally -----. (199)(411)  Jesse Bowlin(g) married Sarah "Sally" Butler, born 1742-3 (St. Paul's Parish Records), the daughter of James and Sarah Butler. (321) Jesse Bolling and wife Sarah ----- had son William Bolling who was born 1772 in Stafford County, Virginia. (46)(492) 
Some of their children.

c.
James Shirlock Bowlin (Rin=46512) was named in a 1793 will of his father, Jesse Bowlin in Spotsylvania, Berkeley 
County, 
Virginia. (30)  James Shirlock Bowlin the son of James Bowlin married April 2, 1801 Elizabeth “Betsy” Newton in 
Spotsylvania, Virginia. (680)  James S. Bowlin married 1812 Fauquier County, Virginia, Eleanor Rosser the daughter of 
John Rosser. (562)  James S. Bowlin married September 1812, Fauquier County, Virginia, Eleanor Rosser.  This could be his 
second marriage. (321)

See Family Group for other children of Jesse and Sarah (Butler) Bowlin(g). (321)(227)(411)  

Movement

Jesse Bowling purchased 200 acres, 1778, in Washington Parish, Westmoreland County, Virginia.(321) Jesse Bowling purchased 200 acres, 1778, in Washington Parish, Westmoreland County, Virginia. He purchased the land from William Berryman. Jesse Bowling was "of County of King George". A William Bowling, with his mark, witnessed the deed. (1648)  Jesse Bowling, signed, and William Bowling with his mark, witnessed a deed 1778 in King George County, Virginia. (1648)  Jesse Bowling sold this land in 1790. (321) Jesse Bowlin was a witness, along with Robert Massey, William Potes, and Jesse Kirk of a 1779 deed in King George County, Virginia. (1648) Jesse Bowling, 7 March 1782, King George County, Virginia, the court complied with an act for adjusting claims for property impressed or taken for publick (sic) use. Jesse was mentioned 4 times. (1935) Jesse Bowling was on the 1782 tax list of King George County, Kentucky (sic, no doubt meant Virginia).  (18) Jesse Bowling was on the 1782 tax list of King George County, Virginia. Other familiar surnames on the tax list were Bunbury, Alexander and Nelson. (842) Jesse Bowling was on the 1787 census of King George County, Virginia, with 2 slaves, 3 horses, and 9 head of cattle. (551)  Jesse Bowlin was involved in several land transactions 1789 in Spotsylvania County, Virginia. (754) July 23, 1789. Thomas Bartlett of Spts. Co. to Wm. Carter, Jno. Carter and Joseph Brock, Excrs. of John Carter, Gent., Deed. "£80 17s. 10d. due from Edward Bartlett to the Excrs. of the sd. Jno. Carter," etc., and to secure the sd. payment, etc. 900 a. whereon sd. Bartlett now lives (except 300 a.sold to Gerard Blackstone Berryman and Josias Berryman, except also 200 a. sold Jesse BOLIN, etc.), etc. Witnesses, Benjamin Robinson, John Williams,Thomas Crutcher, John Bartlett, Beverley Stubblefield. Feby. 2, 1790. (491) October 14, 1789. Thomas Bartlett and Mary, his wife, of Spts. Co. to Jessey BOWLIN (Fh340,6C) of same county. £115 curr. 200 a. in Berkeley Par., Spts. Co., etc. Benj. Robinson, Thomas Waller, James Ballard, Martin True, John Davenport, John Brock. April 6, 1790. (491) March 4, 1791. Jessee BOWLIN (Fh340,6C) and Sarah, his wife, of Berkeley Par., Spots.Co. to Robert Scott of Par. and Co. afsd. £100. 139 a. in Par. and Co.afsd., etc., etc. Stockley Towles, James McDonald, Michael McDonald, jr.;Linefield Grady, John Pierce. Septr. 6, 1791. (491) December 21, 1792. Chas. x Burrage and Catherine, his wife, of Spots. Co. to Robert Scott of same co. £27 curr. 84 a. in Berkeley Par., Spots. Co., etc., etc. Harry Stubblefield, Archibald McFarland, Jesse BOWLIN (Fh340,6C). July 2, 1793. (491)
Jessey Bowling of Spotsylvania County, Virginia bought 200 acres in Berkely Parish, Spotsylvania County, Virginia, from Thomas Bartlett. (1152) Jessey Bowlin (sic) purchase 200 acres 1789, in Berkeley Parish, Spotsylvania County, Virginia.  He sold 139 acres of this in 1791. (321) Jesse Bowlin and Sarah, his wife, sold 139 acres in Berkely Parish, Spotsylvania County, Virginia to Robert Scott. (1152) 
Military Service

Jesse Bolling performed Patriot Service in the Revolutionary War in Virginia. (199)(411) Jesse Bolling received 100 acres for 3 years of service as a Private Virginia State Line, 12 Jan 1784. (1263) Jesse Bolling had a land warrant #2230.0 for land in Kentucky of 100 acres for being a private in the Virginia Cont. Line for 3 years. The warrant was dated January 12, 1784. (1341)
Death

Jesse Bolling died 1793. (199)(411) Jesse Bowlin had a will dated 1793 in Spotsylvania County, Berkeley Parish, Virginia.  In it were named Jesse (Fh351,6C), Joel (Fh3535,6C), James , Mary, and William Bowlin (Fh788,6C). (30)  The will only refers to Joel as being under 21. (680) Jesse Bowlin had a will dated 1793 in Spotsylvania County, Virginia. (35)(491)(754) Jesse Bowlin's will is recorded in Will Book E, page 1608, of Spotsylvania County, Virginia. (491) BOWLIN, JESSE (Fh340,6C) Parish, Spotsylvania County, Virginia, died November 1, 1793. Witnesses: Henry Pendleton, John Alsop. Executors: Henry Pendleton, Philip Pendleton. Legates: wife Sally; son Joel Bowlin; sons William and Jesse Butler Bowlin; son James Shirlock Bowlin; daughter Mary Burruss. (491) In 1800 Articles of Agreement in Spotsylvania County, Virginia, between Sarah Bowlin and son Joel Bowlin (Fh3535) about her right of Dower to land left Joel by father Jesse Bowlin (Fh340). (321)  

Jesse Bowlin, Will dated 1 Nov. 1793.  Will Book E, 1772-1798.


Source: Virginia County Records, Spotsylvania County, 1721-1800 "Being Transcriptions, from the Original Files at the County Court House, of Wills, Deeds, Adminstrators' and Guardians' Bonds, Marriage Licenses, and Lists of Revolutionary Pensioners" edited by William Armstrong Crozier, F.R.S. "Member of theHistorical Society of Pennsylvania, the Virginia Historical Society, The Topsfield Historical Society, the New York Genealogical and Biographical Society, etc., etc."  Published for The Genealogical Association by Fox, Duffield &Company, New York, MDCCCCV

p. 52:  Bowlin, Jesse, Berkeley Parish, Spotsylvania Co., d. Nov. 1, 1793.  Wit. Henry Pendleton, John Alsop.  Ex. Henry Pendleton, Philip Pendleton.  Leg. wife Sally; son Joel Bowlin; sons William and Jesse Butler Bowlin; son James Shirlock Bowlin; daughter Mary Burruss. (page 1608). [Note: Per her will Mary Burrus's daughter Elizabeth "Betsy" Burruss married Robert Pendleton -- these are probably Jesse Bowlin's grandchildren. -- Ernie Perry]

In the same book, on p. 430 (Deed Book M--1788-1791 I found the following:

July 23, 1789.   Thomas Bartlett of Spts. Co. to Wm. Carter, Jno. Carter and Joseph Briock, Excrs. of John Carter, Gentl, Deed.  "80 pounds 17s. 10d. due from Edward Bartlett to the Excrs. of the sd. Jno. Carter," etc., and to secure the sd. payment, etc. 900 a. whereon sd. Bartlett now lives (except 300 a. sold to Gerard Blackstone Berryman and Josias Berryman, except also 200 a. sold Jesse Bolin, etc.), etc.  Witnesses, Benjamin Robinson, John Williams, Thomas Crutcher, John Bartlett, Beverley Stubblefield.  Feby. 2, 1790

p. 432

Octr. 14, 1789.  Thomas Bartlett and Mary, his wife. of Spts. Co. to Jessey Bowlin of same county.  115 lbs. curr. 200 a. in Berkeley Par., Spts. Co., etc.  Benj. Robinson, Thomas Waller, James Ballard, Martin True, John Davenport, John Brock. April 6, 1790.

March 4, 1791.  Jessee Bowlin and Sarah, his wife, of Berkely Par., Spots. Co. to Robert Scott of Par. and Co. afsd.  100 lbs.  139 a. in Par. and Co. afsd., etc., etc.  Stockly Towles, James McDonald, Michael McDonald, jr.; Linfield Grady, John Pierce.  Septr. 6, 1791. (1414)

Virginia County Records SPOTSYLVANIA COUNTY 1721-1800
DEEDS
DEED BOOK J 1774-1782
page 430 July 23, 1789. Thomas Bartlett of Spts. Co. to Wm. Carter, Jno. Carter and Joseph Brock, Excrs. of John Carter, Gent., Deed. "£80 17s. 10d. due from Edward Bartlett to the Excrs. of the sd. Jno. Carter," etc., and to secure the sd. payment, etc. 900 a. whereon sd. Bartlett now lives (except 300 a. sold to Gerard Blackstone Berryman and Josias Berryman, except also 200 a. sold Jesse Bolin, (Fh340,160a,6C)  etc.), etc. Witnesses, Benjamin Robinson, John Williams, Thomas Crutcher, John Bartlett, Beverley Stubblefield. Feby. 2, 1790.

Virginia County Records SPOTSYLVANIA COUNTY 1721-1800
DEEDS
DEED BOOK J 1774-1782
page 432 Octr. 14, 1789. Thomas Bartlett and Mary, his wife, of Spts. Co. to Jessey Bowlin (Fh340,160a,6C) of same county. £115 curr. 200 a. in Berkeley Par., Spts. Co., etc. Benj. Robinson, Thomas Waller, James Ballard, Martin True, John Davenport, John Brock. April 6, 1790.

Virginia County Records SPOTSYLVANIA COUNTY 1721-1800
DEEDS
DEED BOOK J 1774-1782
page 444 March 4, 1791. Jessee Bowlin (Fh340,160a,6C) and Sarah, his wife, of Berkeley Par., Spots. Co. to Robert Scott of Par. and Co. afsd. £100. 139 a. in Par. and Co. afsd., etc., etc. Stockley Towles, James McDonald, Michael McDonald, jr.; Linefield Grady, John Pierce. Septr. 6, 1791.

Virginia County Records SPOTSYLVANIA COUNTY 1721-1800
DEEDS
DEED BOOK J 1774-1782
page 460 Decr. 21, 1792. Chas. x Burrage and Catherine, his wife, of Spots. Co. to Robert Scott of same co. £27 curr. 84 a. in Berkeley Par., Spots. Co., etc., etc. Harry Stubblefield, Archibald McFarland, Jesse Bowlin. (Fh340,160a,6C) July 2, 1793.
Jesse Bolling payed taxes 1801 in the Virginia Military District of Ohio. (789)(837) Jesse Bolling had a land entry in the Virginia Military District of Ohio. (1281) Jesse Bolling and Joseph Scott had a land survey #993, in the Virginia Military District of Ohio. Later records show this land was on the "flat run" in Clay Township, Highland County, Ohio. (2096) There is a good chance that this Virginia Mititary land was issued to Jesse Bowling, Fh340, 6C, although he may have not come to Ohio. (7) 6C Probably Fh340 Jesse Bowdle was on the 1809 tax list of Union Township, Ross County, Ohio.  (867) Jesse (probably Fh340) t1801,Ross, Ohio--later Highland Co. OH. Jesse (maybe Fh340) t1801 Highland, Ohio--probably Virginia Military District or Ross then but Highland now

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

 Jesse Fh347 (6M1) 730x
-----------------

Jesse Bolin 1792-1873 (Rin 50455)/m1819 Jemima Kennedy—His father was Thomas #730

James Rudolph b1822


Nancy b1823


John Wesley b1831


Lucy Ann b1831


Alfred Frances b1835


Jesse William b1836

Willis Buren b1840


Sarah b1846
+++++++++++++++++++++++++

Jesse Fh351 (6C) 340c
-----------------

Jesse Butler 1784-1850 (Rin=45579)/m1802 Elizabeth Mary Harrow or Mrs. Elizabeth Lusk--His father was Jesse #340 (Rin=45488).



James Butler 1804-1874/m1836 Margaret Colburn or Colbourn



Sarah "Sallie"/m1828 John Winnall



Elizabeth Butler 1808/13-1885/1/h m<1830 Frederick Wartman, 2/h mc1837 Thomas S. Lusk (1802/6-867/70)



Ralph



Richard H. bc1821-d1859



Addison bc1833--possibly a grandson



Thornton



George W.



Robert (?)-of St. Louis, Mo.



Edward (?)-of Cincinnati,Oh

Birth, Parents, Lineage

Jesse Butler Bowlin (Rin=45579) was born 1784 in King George County, Virginia. (227) Jesse Butler Bowling was the son of Jesse (Fh340) and Sarah "Sally" Bowlin(g). (321) Jesse Bowlin had a brother Joel Bowling (340a). (268) The father of James Butler Bowlin was a native of Virginia. The mother of James Butler Bowlin was born in England and came to the U.S. with her parents when she was a child. (327) Jesse Butler Bowlin I believe was not born in 1784 because his father's, Jesse Bowlin, will dated November 1, 1793 only refers to Joel as being under 21 and I don't believe he would have singled out one son as being under age if there were others. Also Jesse Butler Bowlin's age in the 1840 Cincinnati, Ohio census is clearly 60/70 (b1770-1780). His age in the 1850 census (age 65) baffles me. (680) Jesse Bowlin (this would be Jesse Fh351 since his father Jesse Fh340 was dead by then) signed a legal document 1798 in Spotsylvania County, Virginia, along with Joel Bowlin and Sarah Bowlin. Other surnames on the document were Moxley, Horn, Pendleton, Long, Hicks, Fowles, Clark, Duncomb and Beryman. (382)(383) 
From the Place Index

King George,VA-created 1720-21 from Richmond, Westmoreland

In 1777 the revision of the county lines threw St. Paul’s Parish into King George Parish where it has remained since that date.

6C
John (Fh402, had wife Judith at death) r1722,r1723,r1725,d1730,wi1731

6C

David (Fh160,402a) m1741 (Jane Pilsher)--m @ St. Paul's,r1742(Rin=61269)

6C


Jesse (Fh340,160a) b1742 or bc1745-50,r1772,r1782,t1782,r1784,r1787 (Rin=45488)

6C



William (Fh788,340x) b1772,m1794 (Sarah Spillman) (Rin=46489)—to KY shortly afterward

6C




James Butler (Fh285,b1795 FAG=78731543

6C



Jesse (Fh351,340x) b1784
6C

Original (402b) m1752 (Margaret French)

Marriage and Children

Jesse Bowling married Miss Elizabeth Harrow, daughter of the late Gilbert Harrow, December 4, 1802, Fredericksburg, Spotsylvania County, Virginia. (705) Jesse Bowling married E. Harrow, 1802, Fredericksburg, Virginia.(1257) Jesse Butler Bowlin married before 1804 in Virginia, Elizabeth (maiden name ?  born England lived with parents in Alexandria, Virginia). (227) Jesse Butler Bowling 1784-1850 married Elizabeth -----. (320) Jesse Butler Bowling married Elizabeth Harrow. (321) 
They had children: 

a.
James Butler born 1804, Spotsylvania County, Virginia who married ----- Colburn. (227) Jessie B.  Bowlin had a son Judge 
James B. Bowling of St. Louis. (182) Judge James Butler Bowlingin, son of Jesse Bowling, was defeated two times for 
Senator from Virginia before moving to St.  Louis, Missouri. He served three U.S. Presidents. (227) James Butler Bowlin 
(351a) was born 1804 in Fredericksburg, Spotsylvania County, Virginia. James Butler Bowlin married Margaret Colburn. 
James Butler Bowlin died 1874 in St. Louis, Missouri. (327)(328)(329) James Butler. (321) See "Bar & Bench", St. Louis, 
Missouri, on life of Judge James Bowlin. (7)

b.
Sarah "Sally" who married about 1828 Greenbrier County, Virginia, John Winnall. (227) In 1828, one of his daughters, Sallie 
Bowlin, married John Winnall. (182) Sarah "Sallie" (Bowlin) Winnalls, daughter of Jesse B. Bowlin, had a boarder in her 
home by the name of George W. Bowlin in the City Directory 1844 of Cincinnati, Hamilton County, Ohio. I wonder if that 
could be her brother. (321) Sarah who married J.  Winnall. (321)

c.
Richard. (227) James Butler Bowlin (351a) had a younger brother, Richard H. Bowlin, who entered the navy, served 
with credit for eight years or so, then went to San Francisco, edited a paper, and took part in politics. Leaving this field he 
studied for the bar, returned to St. Louis, began practice, and was soon elected to the Legislature, but his health failed, and he 
died in 1859. (328) Richard. (321)

d.
Ralph. He was an attorney in California and St. Louis, Missouri. Died in St. Louis. (227)(321)

e.
Addison born about 1830. (227) Addison. (321)

f.
Elizabeth born 1808 in Virginia who married first James Wartman and second she married about 1837 Thomas S. Lusk. (227) 
Elizabeth Bowlen was born 1813 in Virginia. She married Thomas Lusk (1802-1867).  In 1832 moved from Cincinnati, Ohio 
to Spencer County, Indiana. They resided 1845 in Spencer County, Indiana. They had seven children including T.W. Lusk 
born 1845 in Spencer County, Indiana. Elizabeth died in 1885. (965) Elizabeth (Bowlin) Wartman, daughter of Jesse B.  
Bowlin, had a boarder in her home by the name of Thornton Bowlin in the City Directory 1836-7 of Cincinnati, Hamilton 
County, Ohio. I wonder if that could be her brother. (321) Daughter Elizabeth Bowlin (1808-1885) married first Frederick 
Wartman (not James Wartman) before 1830 and married 
second Thomas Lusk (1806-1870) in 1838 or as late as 1841. (321) 
Elizabeth born 1808. (321)

Movement

Jesse Butler Bowlin was born in Eastern Virginia, moved to Harrisonburgh, Rockingham County, Virginia, thence to Lewisburgh, Greenbrier County, Virginia, thence to Cincinnati, Hamilton County, Ohio, where he died. (1704) Jesse Butler Bowlin appears on the tax list of Rockingham County, Virginia, in 1805. (268) Jesse Bowlin in 1815, Rockingham County, Virginia, was named guardian of Mary Harrow daughter of Gilbert Harrow.  (321) Jesse Bowlin was in the 1810 Census of Rockingham County, Virginia. (349) Jesse Bowlin was in Rockingham County, Virginia, in 1810 in household 130 with 30410-21100-00.  (9) Jesse B. Bolin was in Rockingham County, Virginia, in 1820. (348) Jesse Butler Bowlin(g) was on the tax lists from 1805-1824 Rockingham County, Virginia. (321) Jessie B. Bowlin, a butcher, built a house in Lewisburg, Greenbrier County, Virginia (now West Virginia). (182) Jesse Bowlin moved on to West Virginia about 1825 and by 1840 was in Cincinnati, Ohio. (268)  Jesse B. Bowlin was in Cincinnati, Ohio, as early as 1834 according to the City Directory. (321)
Death
Jesse Butler Bowling died 1850 in Cincinnati, Hamilton County, Ohio. (227)  Jesse B. Bowlin had an estate record, 1850, in Hamilton County, Ohio. (1578) Jesse Butler Bowlin is buried in the Wesleyan Cemetery in Cincinnati, Hamilton County, Ohio. (321)(681) Jesse Bowlin died in Cincinnati, Ohio in 1851 and is buried in the Methodist (Wesleyan) Cemetery. (Find a grave 99999999)(268)

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

Joel Fh3535 (6C) 340a
-----------------

Joel 1776-1811 (Rin=46514)/m<1797 Margaret "Peggy" Clark (b1783)--His father was Jesse #340 (Rin=45488)

a
Joel 1797 (Rin=46516)/m1818 Margaret Coverdall--See Family #3536

a
Male 2 b1800-1810


a
Male 3 b1800-1810


a
Joel Bolen is listed in the 1810 Census of Lexington, Fayette County, Kentucky, with 2 males 




under 10, one male 10-16, one male 26-44, and one female 26-44. (1456)(HeritageQuest.com) 

Birth, Parents, Lineage

Joel Bowlin was named in a 1793 will of his father Jesse Bowlin (Fh340) in Spotsylvania, Berkeley County, Virginia. He was under 21 so born after 1772. (30) Joel Bowlin resided 1797 Spotsylvania, Virginia. (268) Joel Bowlin married Margaret "Peggy" ---. (268) Joel Bowlin signed a legal document 1798 (legal age of 21 so born before 1777) in Spotsylvania County, Virginia, along with Jesse Bowlin and Sarah Bowlin. Other surnames on the document were Moxley, Horn, Pendleton, Long, Hicks, Fowles, Clark, Duncomb and Beryman.  (382)(383) Virginia County Records SPOTSYLVANIA COUNTY 1721-1800


Spotsylvania County, Virginia, DEED BOOK P 1797-1800
page 499 Augt. 31, 1797. George Ball and Thomas Ball and Mildred, his wife, of Spots. Co. to Harry Towles of same co. £342. 347 a. in Spots. Co. adj. lands of Wm. Duvall, Wm. Holloday, Chas. Burrage, Mrs. Boling, (perhaps widow of Jesse, Fh340,6C) Robt. Hoe, Jno. Hegans, Saml. Moxley, and John Davenport, etc., etc. Witnesses, Porteus Towles, Jno. Davenport, Joel Bowlin. (Fh3535,340d,6C) Jany. 2, 1798.

Joel Bowlin and his wife Peggy in 1771 (sic,?) sold a piece of land in Spotsylvania County, Virginia. (1152) In 1800 Articles of Agreement in Spotsylvania County, Virginia, between Sarah Bowlin and son Joel Bowlin (Fh3535) about her right of Dower to land left Joel by father Jesse Bowlin (Fh340). (321)
1810
Joel Bolen is listed in the 1810 Census of Lexington, Fayette County, Kentucky, with 2 males under 10, one male 10-16, one male 26-44, and one female 26-44. (1456)(Ancestry.com) 

Death

Joel Bowlin died prior to 1811 when Peter Irick married Margaret "Peggy" Bowlin, the widow of Joel Bowlin in Rockingham County, Virginia. (268) In the 1820 Census (probably of Rockingham, VA) of Peter Irick, there appears to be a couple of children who are too old to be Peter's but could be Margaret's by Joel Bowlin. Margaret and Peter Irick oldest son was Thomas Alexander Irick, born 1812. (268) Peggy Bowlin, widow of Joel Bowlin, married Peter Irick, 1811, Rockingham County, Virginia.  (7)(283)  

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

Joel Fh3536 (6C) 3535a
-----------------

Joel 1797-1835 (Rin=46516) /1/w Margaret Coverdall--His father was Joel #3535 (Rin=46514)


Jesse S. b 30 Aug 1814-d 3-13-1837 age 22Y 6 M 14 D, Boone Co.,KY 



2/w m1818 Margaret Coverdale--His father was Joel #3535


ab
Elizabeth 1821-1903/m1847 Charles Davenport Lewis


ab
Robert/----- -----, had 7 children


ab
Jane/----- -----


ab
Anne b1825/m      Joseph Wallace


ab
Daniel/m        Nancy A. Matthus


a
Joel Johnson 1830-1911/mc1850 Louisa J. Moore


ab
Sources 95 and 358


a
These are children of Joel Fh353 per Source #2107, but not so.

b
These are children of Joel Fh353 per Source #2108, but not so.
Birth, Parents, Lineage

Joel Bowling was born about 1770. (2107) Joel Bowling married Margaret Coverdill, 1818, in Fayette County, Kentucky. (7)(1881) Joel Bolen is listed in the 1810 Census of Lexington, Fayette County, Kentucky, (21010-00010) i.e. 2 males under 10, one male 10-16, one male 26-44, and one female 26-44. (1456)(HeritageQuest.com) 

Joel married a second time Margaret Cloverdale. They lived for a time in Marion County, Indiana but returned to Kentucky. They had six children: 

a
Elizabeth. (95)(358) Daughter Elizabeth born 1821 in Boone County, Kentucky. Elizabeth married 1847 Charles 
Davenport Lewis in Covington, Campbell County, Kentucky. Elizabeth died November 1903 in Verona, Boone County, 
Kentucky. Burial 1903, Bethel, Boone County, Kentucky. (7)(LDS IGI) Note Father born in VA and mother born in DE, per 
1880 Census below. 


Household Record,  1880 United States Census 


 Charles D. LEWIS
Self
M
Male
55 ,  KY ,  Carpenter
KY ,  KY 


 Elizabeth LEWIS

Wife
M
Female
59 ,  KY ,  House Keeping
VA ,  DE 


 Charles W. LEWIS
Son
S
Male
26 ,  KY ,  Carpenter
KY ,  KY 


 Weden LEWIS

Son
S
Male
21 ,  KY ,  Laborer

KY ,  KY 


 Mattie H. LEWIS

Dau
S
Female
17 ,  KY ,  At Home
KY ,  KY 


 Lulu LEWIS

Dau
S
Femal
15 ,  KY ,  At Home
KY ,  KY 


Source Information: Census Place, Verona, Boone, Kentucky

b
Robert. (95)(358) 

c
Jane. (95)(358) 

d
Ann. (95)(358) 

e
Daniel. (95)(358) 

f
Joel Johnson. (95)(358) Their son Joel Johnson Bowling was born 1830 and he married about 1850 Louisa J. Moore 
in Marion County, Indiana. (7)

The database of the Bolling Family Association has this lineage:


Fh160
David/Jane Pilcher


Fh340
Jesse/Sarah Butler


Fh3535
Joel/Margaret Clark


Fh3536
Joel/Margaret Coverdale--He FT=LDQ3-4Z9
Joel Bowling was born about 1770, and died 1836 in Verona, Boone Co., KY. (2107) 

Joel Bowling 1st married a Margaret Clovendale, by whom he had six children. 

a
Elizabeth Bowling married Charles Lewis and lived in Verona, Boone Co. KY. She was burned to death in her 

home in Verona only a few years ago. 

b
Jane Bowling and 

c
Robert died young. 

d
Ann, who married a Mr. Wallace. 

e
Daniel, who married Nancy A. Matthus, had a daughter, Winnie, who married a Crawford in Grant Co., KY. They 

had children: Joel Johnson Bowling, born 1830, died in 1911, married John Marrs, son of Winifred 


Bowling Marrs, her half cousin. (2108)

Death

Joel Boling died 1835 in Verona, Boone County, Kentucky. (95)(358)

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

John Fh373 (6M21) 235b
-----------------

John 1788-1853 (Rin=47787)/m 1808 Dorcas Hendrickson 1788-1876—his father was George #235 (Rin=50768) John is FAG=16243937

ab
Sarah 1809/m1828 James Shearer 
abc
Fletcher 1811-1874/m1833 Jane Steele (1814-1875)
a
Edith 1812-181x--died young

abc
Margaret 1815-1890/m1840 1/h John Combs, 2/h ----- ----

abc
Thornton b1817-d>1880/1/w m1839 Ursula Longshore/2/w m1855 Elizabeth Vance (1828->1880)
abc
Squire 1819-18xx

abcd
Curtis 1820-182x

a  cd
John 1822-1854/m1844 Rosanna Helms b1823

a  cd
Titus Gordon Vespasian 1826-1893/1/w Mary Frances Long,2/w m1875 Mary Jane Keller McCune (1844-1922)

a  cd
William H. bc1828-1856/m1853 Ann Mariah Corn

a
Probable children per Source #1086

b
John Bolen was in the 1820 U.S. Census for Washington Township, Wayne County, Ohio with 4 males <10, 1 male 26-44, 1 female <10, 1 female 10-5 and 1 female 26-44) (317)(HeritageQuest.com)


c
John Bolen was in the 1830 U.S. Census for Holmes County, Ohio, 7 Whites under 20, 2 whites 
20-49 (those 


marked as probable)

d
John Bolen was in the 1840 U.S. Census for Holmes County, Ohio, 4 Whites under 20, 2 whites 




more than 49 (those marked as probable)

Birth, Parents, Lineage

John Boling was born 1788 in Virginia. The 1850 Census has his birthplace as Virginia. (1086)  John Boling married Dorcas ------ who was born in Maryland per the 1850 Census. (1086)  John Bollin was in Lake Township, Wayne County, Ohio, in 1815, and 1819. (7) John Bolen was in the 1820 U.S. Census for Washington Township, Wayne County, Ohio with males 400010 and female 11010.  Also in that county at that time were: James Bolan, Elijah Bolen (235a) and George Bolen (Fh236,235e). (317)(HeritageQuest.com) John Bollen was in Washington Township, Wayne County, Ohio, in 1823. (7) That part of Wayne County became Holmes County, Ohio, in 1824.  (298) John Boling was in the 1850 census of Holmes County, Ohio.  His wife was Dorcas Hendrickson who was born 1789. (285)  I believe that Dorcas Hendrickson's father was William Hendrickson b1757 and her mother Charlotte Hinkle. (1086) See Family group for possible children. (1086)  John Boling died 26 Jan 1853 (64Y-11M-8D), wife Dorcas died 15 Apr 1876 (87Y-9M-21D) and both were buried at Christy Chapel Cemetery, Monroe Township, Holmes County, Ohio. (1086) John born 1788 and Elijah were definitely brothers. Elijah and his wife were listed as members of the household of Sarah Shearer, Sarah was John's oldest child, in the census of 1860. In a court case Sept 11, 1882 (sic, do they mean 1862), Elijah Boling vs Sarah Shearer et al, regarding farming shares, etc she refers to him as Uncle Elijah. (1086).  James Bolen (M21 Fh2841,235d) was in the 1820 U.S. Census of Franklin, Wayne County, Ohio, with males 2 - - 2 - -, Females 2 - 1 - -.  Also in that county at that time were: Elijah Bolen (6M21 Fh2282, 235a), George Bolen (6M21 Fh236,235e), and John Bolen (6M21 Fh373, 235b). (317) 
Movement of those in his family

Movement

1815, 1819, 1820, 1823

Elijah Bollin was in Lake Township, Wayne County, Ohio, in 1815, 1819, 1823. (7) Elijah Bolen was in the 1820 U.S. Census of Lake Township, Wayne County, Ohio with males 110010 and female 00010.  Others in the county in that census were: James Bolan (Fh2841,235d,6M21), George Bolen (Fh236,235e,6M21) and John Bolen (Fh373,235b,6M21). (317)(HeritageQuest.com)  That part of Wayne County became Holmes County, Ohio, in 1824. James Bolen (Fh2841,235d,M21) was in the 1820 U.S. Census of Franklin, Wayne County, Ohio, with males 2 - - 2 - -, Females 2 - 1 - -.  Also in that county at that time were: Elijah Bolen (Fh2282,235a,6M21), George Bolen (Fh236,235e,6M21), and John Bolen (Fh373,235b,6M21). (317)

From the Place Index

Wayne,OH-created 1808 from Columbiana


6M21
Elijah (Fh2282,235a) r1815,r1819,r1820(Census),r1823-Part that in 1824 became Holmes Co.


6M21
John (Fh373,235b)r1815,r1819, r1820(Census),r1823-Part that in 1824 became Holmes Co.


6M21
George (Fh236,235c) r1819,r1820(Census),r1823,t1825,r1826,r1830(Census),r1831--then to Seneca, OH


6M21

Elizabeth (236e) b1831



6M21

Enoch (236d) b1826


6M21
James (Fh2841,235d) r1820(Census age 18-26),r1823,r1830(Census),r1833


6M21

Allan (2841a) b1833


John (UK) bc1809, later m1833 Margaret Hindman

1825

Elijah Bolin was a tax payer 1825 in Holmes County, Ohio. (298) 

From the Place Index

Holmes,OH-created 1824 from Coshocton, Wayne, Tuscarawas


6M21
Elijah (Fh2282,235a) t1825,r1850(Census,age 66,VA),r1860-part that earlier was Wayne Co.


6M21
John (Fh373,235b) r1850(Census, age 62 VA)-part that earlier was Wayne Co.


6M21

Fleisher/Fletcher (373a,bc1811) m1833(Jane Steel),r1850(Census, age 39 OH)


6M21

Sarah (373a) m1828 (James Shearer),r1860


6M21

Thornton (373b,bc1815) m1839,r1850 (Census, age 35, OH),m1855,r1880 (Census wife Elizabeth)


6M21

John (373c,bc1823) r1850(Census, age 27 OH)


6M21

Titus (373d, bc1826) r1850(Census, age 24, OH)


6M21

William (373e,bc1828) r1850,d1856



George W. (UK) b1825

1850

Elijah Boling was in the 1850 Census of Washington Township, Holmes County, Ohio. He was age 66 or born about 1784.  His birthplace was Virginia.  His wife was Atchsah age 58 born in Maryland. There was a Mary Harpster age 20 born PA in the household. John Boling (235b,Fh373,M21), age 62 was in the same Holmes County, Ohio, 1850, Census but was in Hardy township. (1086) 

1860

John born 1788 and Elijah were definitely brothers. Elijah and his wife were listed as members of the household of Sarah Shearer, Sarah was John's oldest child, in the census of 1860. In a court case Sept 11, 1882 (sic, do they mean 1862), Elijah Boling vs Sarah Shearer et al, regarding farming shares, etc she refers to him as Uncle Elijah. (1086).
+++++++++++++++++++++++++

John Fh374 (6M30) 1563x
-----------------

John b1758-d<1797 (Rin=61167)/m         Catherine Blackwell—Head of Famly String M30—His father was not John #424 (Rin=54573)


James T. 1781-1852 (Rin=41284)/m  Sarah Connally (He is FAG=130761720)—See Family #288
Descendant Kits 30936 and 38773 tested into DNA 6


John 1794-1877 (Rin=60912) /m1817 1/w Frances Connally, m1843 2/w Catherine Garner, m1856 3/w
 Celia McCollum——See Family #390 (He is FAG=52832954)
Descendant Kit 886538 tested into DNA 6

William 1796 (Rin=55018)/m     Mildred Connally—See Family #752




There doesn’t appear to be any text for this person.
From the Place Index
Fauquier,VA-created 1759 from Prince William 

6M30
John (Fh374,bc1758,Rin=61167,the father of James Fh288 and John Fh390 and Thomas Fh752, they, the sons, of 


John Bouldin and Catherine perhaps Blackwell) r1781-1796(at Birth of Children)



His father could be John (Fh424, T, 392a)

6M30

James (Fh288,374a, (Rin=41284,FAG=130761720) b1781—Descendant kits 30936 & 38773 





tested in to DNA 6—To Caswell, NC

6M30

John (Fh390,374b, (Rin=60912,FAG=52832954) brother of James Fh288 6M30) b1794--to 





Caswell Co., NC, Married 1817 Frances Connally—To Caswell, NC


6M30

William (Fh752,374c)(Rin=55018) b1796

Birth, Parents, Lineage

The number 374 must have been used later as a DNA 6M30 HOS person, because it doesn’t match the original 374 below
John dc1797/----- -----



Rachael



Charlotte



Peter Enoch



Lucindia

John Bowling, dec’d, was in the Minute Book of Hamphshire County, Virginia, 10 June 1797, page 420. Ordered that John Primm be appointed guardian of Rachael, Charlotte, Peter Enoch, and Lucinda Bowling, orphans of John Bowling, dec’d. (1218) 
+++++++++++++++++++++++++

John Fh384 (6C) 788b
-----------------

John S. 1798-dc1853 (Rin=46495)/m1820 Jane Hughes (d<1850)--His father was William #788 (Rin=46489)

a
Gabriel bc1821


a
Sarah bc1830


a
Philicia bc1849


a
1850 Census of Mason County, Kentucky
From Place Index
Gallatin,KY-created 1799 from Franklin, Shelby


6C
John S. (Fh384,788b,b1798)(Rin=46495) t1820,r1820(Census),w1853(?, perhaps Mason Co.)—


6C
Felicia               (788e b1806) r>1831


6C
Malinda            (788g b1810) r>1831

Birth, Parents, Lineage

John S. Bowling was born 1798 to William and Sally Bowling (Fh788). (152) John S. Bowling, age 18, (i.e. born about 1798) gave a deposition to a court 1816, in Lexington, Fayette County, Kentucky. (1881)  

A John S. Bolen is on the 1820 Census of New Liberty, Gallatin County, Kentucky with males 000100 and females 00100. (1155)(Ancestry.com)

0—male under 10

0—male 10 to under 16

0—male between 16 and 18

1—male 16 to under 26 (b1794-1804)—This would be John S. Bolen Fh384 

0—male 26 to under 45

0—male 45 and up

0—female under 10

0—female 10 to under 16

1—female 16 to under 26 (b1794-1804) 

0—female 26 to under 45

0—female 45 and up
Others listed are 
Simms Bolin (Fh627), 


William Bolin (Fh781,627a,) and 


John O. Bolin (Fh441,627c). (1155) 

A John S. Bolen is on the 1820 Census of New Liberty, Gallatin County, Kentucky with males 000101 and females 00100. (HeritageQuest.com)

a 
John S. 1798-dc1853/m1820 Jane Hughes (d<1850)--His father was William #788


a
Gabriel bc1821


a
Sarah bc1830


a
Philicia bc1849


a
1850 Census of Mason County, Kentucky


John S. Bowling, about whom next to nothing is known, other than that he was interestingly involved in the beginning of P.T. Barnum's career as a showman. In connection with my research on P.T. Barnum for my doctoral thesis at the University of California, I have become interested in a shadowy figure named John S. Bowling. In 1835, Barnum exhibited an aged slave woman named Joice Heth who claimed she was 161 years old and the former nurse of George Washington; P.T. Barnum toured with her across the North for seven months, until she died. All accounts of this exhibit, Barnum's various autobiographical writings and all subsequent biographies of him list John S. Bowling, of Paris, Bourbon County, Kentucky, as her actual owner. I've searched state and county archives in Kentucky, as well as the Family History Library in Salt Lake City for records of Bowling, and have turned up little, other than that he was married to Jane Hughes in Paris, Bourbon County, Kentucky in 1820. He may also have lived in Cincinnati, Hamilton County, Ohio, for a time, but I've found nothing on him there. (1207) 
Death

John S. Bowling, deceased. Sheriff ordered to take charge of estate—“said Bowling has been dead more than nine months now and no person has administered his estate, per Order Book P, Page 359, December court, 1853. Estate is recorded Will Book Q, page 232, March 11, 1854, M.H. Barnett, deputy sheriff, administrator. This was in Mason County, Kentucky. (1155) Mr. Bolin married Jane Hughes, after he died she then married Mr. Pritchard. (2069, page 428 Register of KY History Society, O-Y Vol.)
From the Place Index
Mason, Ketnucky


6C
William (Fh788,340b Rin=46489) t1796,r1797,d1849


6C
Sarah (nee Spillman, wife of William, Fh788) d1835


6C

John S. (Fh384,788b)(Rin=46495) r1850(Census),w1853


6C


Gabriel (384a) r1850 (Census--age 29)


6C


Sarah (384b) r1850 (Census--age 20)


6C


Philicia (384c) r1850 (Census--age 1)


6C

Edward (788i) d1839

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

John Fh385 (6M17) 286x
-----------------

John (Rin=50258)/m<1816 Nancy Ann Templeton--His father was James #286

a
Henry 1816-1892/m1844 Doria Tuell (1824-1912) 


a
Elijah W. 1818-1898/m      Letitia Ellen Davis (1834-1860) 


a
Children per Source #680

Birth, Parents, Lineage

John Bowling was born in Virginia per son's Henry 1880 Census. John Bowling married Nancy Ann Templeton. John Bowling father was James #286. 
He had sons (680):

a
Henry 1816-1892/m1844 Doria Tuell (1824-1912) 


Household Record,  1880 United States Census 

 
Henry BOWLING

Self ,  
M
Male
64
VA
Farmer

VA ,  VA 

 
Docia BOWLING

Wife ,  
M
Female
56
IN
Keeping House
KY ,  KY 

 
Elizah W. BOWLING
Brother
S
Male
60
VA
Works On Farm
VA ,  VA 

 
Ella TUELL

Niece
S
Female
17
IN
At Home

IN ,  IN 


Source Information: Census Place, Posey, Harrison, Indiana

b
Elijah W. 1818-1898/m      Letitia Ellen Davis (1834-1860) (680)

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

John Fh386 (6Z) 279x
-----------------

John b1756VA-dc1817(Rin=65497 L84V-7PG)/1/w Unknown (Rin=48792) Head of String Z-His father was James #279 (Rin=22331) 



Archibald b<1774-d>1790


a
Joseph 1770-1832 (Rin=48822)/m1796 Rebecca Maddox--See Family #457 




Descendant Kits 4833(Z), 35942(Z), 46808(Y) tested into DNA Group 6

James b<1775-d>1820/m  UK—See Family #303 6Y 

 Descendant Douglas kit 46808 (Y) tested into DNA 6


a
Samuel 1779 VA-1863 GA (Rin=48830)/m1807 Elizabeth Townsend 1783-d<1860--See Family 
#624 

Descendant Kits 1882, 20750, 3018, kit 14345, kit 1590, kit 1591, kit 35942, 38637, 309298 tested into DNA 6


John—could be the John who married in 1790, if him he probably was bc1770

a
Isaiah 1784 VA-1868 (Rin=60897)/m      Mary -----  b1796-dc1865--See Family #2544




Descendant Kit #3019, kit 158510, kit B11379 tested into DNA 6.
2/w m12 Aug 1790 Nancy Caroline Spencer  (in 1820 Census)


a
Reuben Bolin 1791-1843 (Rin=63326) LDS FS/FT 2DXT-4RB/m(CL) Nancy Kent—See Family
#4686
Descendant Kit 220632 tested into DNA 6
 


Reuben’s descendant was Ernest Ezra Kent (Rin=63331) 



Dudley A. b1792 VA-1890 (Rin=48832) m1828 Elizabeth Deboreau--See Family #175 He
 FAG=114005887 
Descendant kit 30936 tested into DNA 6 



(Nathaniel) Martin 1794 VA->1860AL (Rin=48834)/mc1820 Lucinda ----- b1799 in SC--See 




Family #4651




Descendant kits 16668, 38637 tested into DNA 6 
and is a 37/37 match with Kit 4833(Z), Kit 35942(Z) and 25/25 with Kit 46808(Y) and Kit 2388 (M17). 


Darcus Levisa (female) b1798 NC-d1880NC/m1815 James Fisher



Pleasant M. b1800NC-d1855MS (Rin=57271)/m<1826 Margaret Mullens




Descendant Kit 420167(Z) tested into DNA 6


a
1790 U.S. Census of Spartanburg County, Ninety-Six District, South Carolina: Head of String Z 




2 free white males age 16 or over (born before 1774)




4 free white males age under 16 (b1774-1789) (perhaps 4 above)




7 free white females.
From the Place index

Spartanburg,SC-created 1785 from District 96


6Z
John (Fh386 b1756 Rin=65497, L84V-7PG) r1790(Census),l1795,r1796,r1805,r1810(Censs),(died 1817 before 



the 1820 (Census)


6Z
Nancy (nee Spencer, widow of John Fh386) r1820 (Census)


6Z

Samuel (Fh624, 386b) b1775 (now),l1809,r1810,l1817—





Many Descendant kits have tested into DNA Group 6





Descendant Kit 35942 tested into DNA Group 6


6Z

Isaiah (Fh2544,386c) r1820-1860,d1868—





Descendant kit 3019 tested into DNA Group 6


6Z


William (2544a,bc1814) r1820-1860,r1880 (Census, wife Eliza)


6Z


John Henry Franklin (2544c) b1820,m1845 (Lucinda Hogan),r1846-To Walker Co

 




Georgia by 1850


6Z

Dudley A. (Fh175,386d, had sister Darcus) r1830 (Dudley 4651a,6Z would have been only age 7)


6Z

Martin (Fh4651,386e, b1794, son of John in 1810 Census) l1821-





Descendant kit 16668 in DNA 6

6Z

Darcus (386f, had brother Dudley) mc1815 (James Fisher)

Birth, Parents, Lineage

Lines of Descent from: 


Simon Fh629 BOWLING-


45539 b.1620     


Robert Fh516 6M19 BOWLING-

46246 b.1668


James Fh278 6K BOWLING-

54690 b.1700


James Thomas Fh279 6K BOWLING Sr-
22331 b.1730


John Fh386 BOWLING-


65497 b.1756


son

James Fh303 6Y BOLEYN-


50274 b.1775

Lines of Descent from 


Simon Fh629 BOWLING-


LDQF-K4Z b.1620


Robert Fh516 BOWLING-


LDQ6-Q8Z b.1668  


James Fh278 BOWLING-


LDQF-RF4 b.1700                    


James Thomas Fh279 BOWLING Sr-

MQ8B-MSG b.1730  


John Fh386 BOWLING-


L84V-7PG b.1756


son

  


James Fh303 BOLEYN-


LD38-LHQ b.1775  









John Bowland (Rin=48792) was enumerated in the 1790 U.S. Census of Spartanburg County, Ninety-Six District, South Carolina: Head of String Z 



2 free white males age 16 or over (born before 1774)(Head-of-House John and perhaps son Archibald) 


4 free white males age under 16 (b1774-1789) (Joseph, James. Samuel, Isaiah)


7 free white females.

His neighbors included: 
Broderick Mason, 
Thomas Tinsly, 
Travis Reece, 
Benjamin Piper, and 
Thomas Reece. (1599) 
John Bowland was allied to the Piper family. Archibald Bowling was closely associated with the McBee family. Both the Piper and McBee families moved to South Carolina from Faquier County, Virginia. Was Archibald Bowling a son of John Bowling, who was enumerated in the 1790 U.S. Census of Spartanburg County, Ninety-Six District, South Carolina? (1599) Book D, pg 210 - 211   Jul. 14, 1795 Robert Piper (Spartanburgh) to  John Bolin (Spartanburgh); for 20L sterling sold a gray mare and her increase, a white cow and calf and 3 yearlings and their increase, 3 sows and 11 shoats and their increase, 2 beds and furniture, a pot and oven and puter chest, table chairs, knives, forks, water vessels, a plow, how, ax, corn and meat and crop that is growing; Condition: sale void if Robert Piper pays  John Bolin 40 L sterling by Dec. 25, 1797.  Witness John Autry and Deskin Grant. Signed Robert Piper, Wit. oath Jul. 18 1795 John Autry to I Harrison. Rec: Apr. 30, 1796. (1713) John Bolen, Sr. sold land to John Gidding on 30 Jul 1796; the land was on both sides of Old Iron Road and on Ford’s Creek, and adjoined Travice (sic) and Thomas Reece and Boiling Spring Branch. I have also seen this as Bolin Spring Branch. (1599) Book E, pg 85 - 87 Jul 30, 1796  John Bolen, Sr (Spartanburgh) to John Giding (Spartanburgh): for 10L sterling sold 40 ac on both sides of Old Iron Rd and on Ford's Cr; border: land Henry Wells sold to Travice Reece, John Bolin, Thomas Reece, and  Bolin's Spring Br  Witness Francis Mason and John Mason. Signed  John Bolen's mark. Wit. oath Oct. 10, 1796 Francis Mason to I Harrison. Rec: Sept 24, 1797. (1713) Book E,  pg 88 - 90 Jul. 11, 1796 Henry Wells (Spartanburgh) to John Giding (same), for 20L sterling sold 70 ac on Ford's Cr; border John Bolin, Josiah Hatchel, William Tindsley, and land Robert Piper sold to Thomas Reese; "part of ie" Henry Wells sold to Travice Reece and part "taking of" William Tindsley's land. Witness John Mason and Jesse Wells. Signed Henry Wells. Wit. oath Oct. 10 1796 John Mason to I Harrison. Rec: Sept. 24, 1797. (1713) Book K, pg 252 - 253 Nov. 9, 1805 William Wells (Spartanburgh) to Jesse Wells (same); for $155 sold 100 ac on both sides Ford's Cr; border: John Posey, John Bouling, Thomas Price, William Tinsley, Brodrick Mayson, Henry Wells, and Benjamin Peper; part of tract sold by Henry Wells to Travis Reese. Witness: Andrew B. Moore, John Otts, and Jehu Wells. Signed Wm Wells. Wit. oath Feb. 3, 1806 Jehu Wells to Abner Benson. Rec. Feb. 3, 1806. (1713)

+++++The following could be the start of a younger John Bowling, perhaps John Jr.+++It was my conclusion that John and Nancy (sic) Bowling were somewhere in Virginia when Isaiah Bowling (Fh2544,6Z) was born in 1784 and that possibly he was their 1st child. (1599) There is a marriage record that a John married 12 Aug 1790 Nancy Caroline Spencer in Granville County, North Carolina. This could be the 2nd marriage for John Sr or 1st marriage for John Jr. (7) Book K,  pg 151 - 152 Jan. 28, 1805 Edward Barnett (Spartanburgh) to William Wells (Spartanburgh); for $250 sold 100 ac on both sides Ford's Cr; border: John Pouy,  John Bowling, Thomas Reid, William Tinsley, Brodrick Mayson, Henry Wells, and Benjamin Pipor; part of tract sold by Henry Wells to Travice Reece. Witness Noah Wells and John Cantrell. Signed Edward Barnett. Wit. oath Sept. 21, 1805 John Cantrell to Abner Benson. Rec. Sept. 21, 1805. (1713) John Bowling, on 28 Jan 1805 was named as a neighbor by Edward Barnett, and on 09 Nov 1805 John Bouling was named as a neighbor by William Wells. Perhaps the John Bowling in 1805 was a younger John for whom John Bolen was called Senior in the 1796 deed. (1599) After the 1805 references, I did not find any further references in the Deed Books to a John Bowling. (1599) John Bowling and Samuel Bowling first appear in the records of Spartanburg District about 1805-1809. On 06 Jan 1809, Samuel Bowlin bought land from Alexander Roddy on both sides of Beaverdam Creek of South Pacolet River; This land was part of a grant to James Reavs (sic). Samuel also bought land on the north side of Grogan’s Road on the North Pacolet River from James Ridings. John Bowling and Samuel Bowling were enumerated near each other in the 1810 U.S. Census of Spartanburg District, South Carolina. (1599) None of the neighbors and associates of John Bowling (1790 Census) were connected to the John Bowling (1810 Census). (1599)

1810 United States Federal Census

Name:
John Bowling

Home in 1810 (City, County, State):
Spartanburg, South Carolina

Free White Persons - Males - Under 10:

1
(?)
Free White Persons - Males - 10 thru 15:
1
(Martin ?)
Free White Persons - Males - 16 thru 25:
1
(Dudley)
Free White Persons - Males - 45 and over:
1
(John-Head of household)
Free White Persons - Females - Under 10:
1

Free White Persons - Females - 10 thru 15:
2

Free White Persons - Females - 45 and over:
1

Number of Household Members Under 16 :
5

Number of Household Members Over 25 :
2

Number of Household Members:

8

1810 Spartanburg District, South Carolina (ca 06 Aug 1810), page 182A line 08


John Bowling
male age 45+ (born before 1765) John Bowling




female age 45+  (born before 1765) probably wife Nancy




male age 16-26 (1784-1794) (Could be Isaiah Fh2544,DNA6)




male age 10-16 (1794-1800) (Could be Martin Fh4651,DNA6)




female age 10-16   (1794-1800)




female age 10-16   (1794-1800)




male age 0-10 (1800-1810)(Could be Pleasant)



female age  0-10  (1800-1810)

                          Neighbors:  Holcomb,  Ridings

In 1810 Census John Bowling was enumerated next to Ann Holcomb and John Ridings. The last record of John Bowling is as a witness to the 09 Jul 1812 deed from Samuel Fowler to William Jackson for land on Motley (sic) Creek. John signed his name, John Boliam. (1599) The 1820 Census does not have either John Bowling or Samuel Bowling. (1599) In the 1820 Census Ann Holcomb was enumerated 3 households before Nancy Bowlen. (perhaps John’s widow) and John Ridins was in the house before Nancy Bowlen. (1599) In 1820 Census Isaiah Bowling (Fh2544,6Z) was enumerated seven households after Nancy Bowlen (probably John Bowling’s widow and Isaiah's mother), with neighbors, Samuel Hunt and Henry and Nathan Pruatt/Pruett. (1599)

1820 Census Spartanburg District, South Carolina  - page 273 line 19


Nancy Bowlen

female age  45+ (before 1775) Nancy Bowlen





male age 19-26 (1794-1801)





male age 19-26 (1794-1801)





male age 16-18 (1802-1801)





male age 16-18 (1802-1804)

Nancy & Isaiah Bowling lived in the same neighborhood in 1820 as had John & Samuel Bowling in 1810 --- the Beaverdam Creek area on South Pacelot River. Nancy had two neighbors the same as the 1810 neighbors of John Bowling. Although it seems certain that Nancy was the widow of John the 1810 & 1820 censuses do not match well. The evidence also indicates that Isaiah was the son of John & Nancy. In 1810 John had a male born 1784-1794 in his household and in 1820 Isaiah lived in the Beaverdam Creek area near Nancy Bowlen. No will or probate was located for John Bowling. (1599) John Bowling and Samuel Bowling (Fh624,6Z) are found in 1809 in Spartanburg District of South Carolina buying land and appear near each other in the 1810 US and Spartanburg District Census. Both men do not appear in the 1820 Spartanburg District Census. However, a John Bowlen appears in the 1820 Lincoln County, Tennessee, Census along with Willoby (Fh930,6T), Robert (Fh550,6T) and John Bolen (UK). Is it possible that John moved away from his brother Samuel (Fh624,6Z) and South Carolina to Tennessee to be with his other brothers and Father? (1600) Following information from 1820 Lincoln County, Tennessee census
John Bowlen
1
male 36-45 (John Bowlen)
1
female 26-45 (wife)

1
male under (b1810-1820)
1
male under (b1810-1820)
1
female under 10 (b1810-1820)
(1553) Willoby (Fh930,T) and Robert (Fh550,T) were on that same 1820 Lincoln County, Tennessee, Census (1553)
John Bowling and Samuel Bowling (Fh624,6Z)(b1778, VA/NC) may be the Brother of Willoughby (Fh930,T)(1775-1849), Daniel (b1784/6), Henry (b1784) and Robert (Fh550,T). Their Father may have been Archibald (830a). (1600)

6Z 386f

Dorcas Bolin (Female) was born 8 Jun 1798, possibly in Burke County, North Carolina. She married James Fisher in the area known as the "Dark Corners", in what is now South Carolina. She had a brother D.A. Bolen who was a witness to her marriage and he and an Elizabeth Bolen are buried in the Lake Toxaway Baptist Church, North Carolina, cemetery where Dorcas and James Fisher are buried. (She Findagrave = 31476680) I believe the D.A. Bolin was called Dudley. (Received 1/11/2000 from SAM4952@aol.com) My Bowling ggg-grandmother, Darcus Levisa Bowling Fisher, was married in Spartanburg District in about 1815. She had a brother named Dudley A. Bowling who lived in Spartanburg District, also. We cannot find out who their parents are. They later moved into the present day county of Transylvania in North Carolina. There was a John Boling in 1810 Spartanburg census, but I do not find him in 1820 (John Fh386, d1817). I did find a Nancy Boling, however, and some younger ones. Darcus Bowling stated that she was born in Burke County, North Carolina (about 1798). Her first daughters name was Nancy and Dudley's second daughters name was Nancy. This appears to be the regular naming pattern of naming the first daughter after the mother's mother and the second daughter after a father's mother. I have not checked in Spartanburg after Dudley's family and Darcus' family moved. Darcus had moved to Greenville County between the 1820 and 1830.
Patricia Cantrell
Columbus, GA


+++++++++++++++++++++++++

John Fh387 (6Y) 303h
-----------------

John bc1781-d1841 (Rin=50810)/m1819 Mrs. Delila (Williams) McConnel--His father was James #303



a
James b1819



John b1823




Margaret b1827



a
Maria b1831



a
Enoch bc1832-d1893/m1845 Elizabeth Drake (1808->1903)


a
Children per Source #2115

Birth, Parents, Lineage

John Bolen was the son of James Bolen (Fh303). John Bolen married 1819 Mrs. Delila (Williams) McConnel. (7) John Bolin married Delilah Williams about 1817 (sic). (661) John Bolin married January 28, 1819, Trumbull County, Ohio, Delila McConnel, Book 1, page 159. (1243) John Bolen is in the 1820 U.S. Census of Weathersfield Township, Trumbull County, Ohio, with 2 males under 10, but rest of census can't be read. (317)(HeritageQuest.com)(Ancestry.com) John Bolin died 1841, Niles, Wetherfield Township, Trumbull County, Ohio. (661) 
Lines of Descent from 


Simon Fh629 BOWLING-45539 b.1620


Robert Fh516 BOWLING-46246 b.1668  

 
James Fh278 BOWLING-54690 b.1700                      


James Thomas Fh279 BOWLING Sr-22331 b.1730  


John Fh386 BOWLING-65497 b.1756  


James Fh303 Kits 46808 & 825354 6Y BOLEYN-50274 b.1775  

   
John Fh387 BOLIN-50810 b.1781        something wrong
They had children 
a.
Maria
b.
Jim
c.
Enoch. Son Enoch at a time was learning the blacksmith trade in Warren, Ohio. (2115) A son, probably Enoch, married 
September, 1845, Elizabeth Drake (1808->1903). This son died 1893 in Warren, Ohio. (2115) 

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

John Fh388 (6S) 902a
-----------------

John b<1755-d>1800(Rin=46449)/1/w m1773 Millie Ballard--His father was William Fh902, 6S(Rin=44567)


Joel b1770



Delita b1790



2/w m      Mary Sherpard


John 1775-1848 (Rin=49636)/m      Mary Shepard--See Family Group #389

John Bolin along with Mitchell Bolin and William Bolin was on the 1779 tax list of Randolph County, North Carolina. (693) John Boling along with Mitchell and William Boling were on a 1779 tax list (list of Jacob Shepard) of Randolph County, North Carolina.  All three with 0 acres but 1 white poll each.  All three would have to be 21 years old or older to have a white poll so all born by 1758. This John was not the son of John Boling of Montgomery County, North Carolina because there was a John Boling Jr. there. This John Boling was probably the son of William Bolling Sr. (Fh902) of Montgomery County, North Carolina. (942) There are land records of sale in Randolph County, North Carolina to Richard Bean from John Bolling, heir to deceased William (Fh902) in 1784. (1553) Richard Been 200 ac; Randolph County, North Carolina land warrant 3214 (sic warrant #215, not 3214) issued Jun 10, 1780 by William Cole to William Bowling Sr for 200 ac on a branch of Little R called Horspen Cr, begins on S side of the creek, & includes Richard Been's improvement where he lives; (on back of warrant) warrant sold Oct. 1, 1784 by John Bolling, heir of William Bolling deceased, to Richard "Bean" (signed) John Bolling (no witness) 200 ac surveyed Oct 1, 1785 (Quaker style date) by Saml Millikan; Peter King (maybe Rin=49898) & Wm Reader, chain carriers; grant #416 issued Aug. 18, 1787. (1414)(1607) John Bolan was in Randolph County, North Carolina in 1800 in household 298 with 21020-10010-00. (9) John Bolin Sr. and John Bolin Jr. were on the 1815 tax list of Randolph County, North Carolina. (942) (see also Fh407)

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

John Fh389 (6S) 388a
-----------------

John 1775-1848(Rin=49636)/m      Mary Shepard--His father was John #388(Rin46449) 


John b1810/m1836 Ruan Flemming  


Joseph H. 1813-1891/m1846 Elizabeth E. Shipp (bc1825-d>1880)



James Marshall b1815 VA-1868/m1846 Rebecca C. Herrod (1826-1868)--Kit #5343 tested into DNA 6



Matthew Wilson 389c b1818/19 VA/m1842 1/w Susan Yardley—Kit #3284 tested into DNA 6

 

            389c /m1863 2/w Nancy Sanders


Henry Granville 1823-1912/m1853 Martha Parker 


Martha/m1843 William Herrell

Birth, Parents, Lineage

John J. Bowling was born 1775 in Virginia. John Bowling married Mary/Marthy Shepard. John Bowling died 1848 in Rutherford County, Tennessee. I have a letter written by “Aunt Jennie” who is in our family line, and she gives the “Shepard” name as her great grandmother. She says that they were from “Old Virginia near Jameston (sic).” This lady has a book that her grandmother wrote that says that John J. Bowling, 1775 -1848, born in Virginia, and Mary Shepard are the parents of Matthew (1.8c, 6M24). She also said that the “J” was a little hard to read, and it could be a “T”. Son Joseph H. Bowling born 1813 in Virginia and died February 5, 1891 in Rutherford County, Tennessee. Joseph H. Bowling is a brother to Matthew and James. The family is supposed to have come to Rutherford County in the 1830’s. He could be the son of John (388a). (2109)

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

John Fh390 (6M30) 374x
-----------------

John 1794-1877(Rin=60912) LWF6-ZM3/m1817 1/w Frances Connally, m1843 2/w Catherine Garner, m1856 3/w Celia McCollum—His brother was James Fh288 (1781-1852)(Rin=41284)—one source has “the sons of John #374 Bouldin and Catherine, perhaps Blackwell”.


1/w m1817 Frances Connally (1793-1842) (FAG=52832907)




Sarah Jane 1818-1838 (FAG=52832974)


George Thomas 1820-1849/m1840 Susan Leath--He is Kit 886538 (Rin=60913, 2H23-2VT)



Frances Anne 1822-1844 (FAG=52832923)


John F. bc1824-dc1847



James O. 1827-1892 (FAG=62753966)/m1860 Hannah Ann Simpson (1832-1894)



Albert D. 1829-1853 (FAG=52832802)


Susannah Margaret 1831-1856



Caroline M. 1834-1853 (FAG=55484887)


Martin Van Buren bc1839-1862

2/w m1843 Catherine Garner (1802-1852) (FAG=55484859)

3/w m1856 Celia McCollum (1829-1902)


Emma (1857-1941)(FAG=6864882)/m1876 John Carr Hubbard


Joseph (1858-d>1880)


Celia Belle (1861-1949)/m      Aaron Simpson Rumley


John Lee (1865-1938)(FAG=90834642)/m1893 Katherine Faucett 


Thomas L. (1857-1944)


Lucinda David (1868-1948)(FAG=53033527)/m1888 Edwin Lee Hooper)
Birth, Parents, Lineage

John Bouldin (1794-1877) was reportedly (in a pension application from the War of 1812) born in Fauquier County, Virginia. (7)

John Bouldin married 1817 Frances Connally in Caswell, North Carolina. John Bouldin died 1877 in Caswell County, North Carolina. His third wife (the one who applied for pension) was Celia McCollum whom he married in 1856 in Rockingham Co., NC. (7)

Movement
From the Place Index
Caswell,NC


6M30
John (Fh390,374b, b1794 Fauquier Va) m1817 (1/w Frances Connally),r1819-1839(birth of children),m1843




(2/w Catherine Garner),r1857-1868(birth of children),d1877 John is Rin=60912—From Fauquier,




 VA


6M30

George Thomas (390b) b1820,d1849


6M30

John (390d) bc1824


6M30

James (390e) b1827,d1892


6M30

Albert D. (390f) b1829,d1853


6M30 

Martin Van Buren (390i) bc1839

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

John Fh392 (6C) 240b
-----------------

John 1700->1735 (Rin=51086 LDQ3-WCC)/m<1718 Mary “Polly” Browne ? 1691-<1730--His father was George #240


Sometimes confused with John Fh402



David b<1721 (Rin=61269) KHQL-95Y/m1741 Jane Pilcher

Descendants kit 406401(M17), kit 2388 (M17), kit 22806 (S) tested into DNA 6


John 1730-d<1810 (Rin=54573 LD33-XMD)/mc1750 Mary Kenson--This is Fh424, Head of String 6T 


William bc1730-d1756-1784(Rin=44567)/m ?--This is Fh902, Head of String 6S
Descendants kit 22806 (S) tested into DNA 6


James 1735-1799(Rin49063 LDQ7-MZC)/mc1755 ------ --------- —This is  Fh286, Head of String 6M17


Descendants kit 406401(M17), kit 2388 (M17), kit 102427 (M17) tested into DNA 6

Birth, Parents, Lineage

John Bowling was probably the son of George Bowling (Fh240,6A). (7) 
Lines of Descent from 


Simon Fh629 BOWLING-

45539 b.1620


William Fh742 BOWLING-

65495 b.1652


George Fh240 BOWLING-

62389 b.1670


John Fh392 6M17 BOWLING-
51086 b.1700

 
James Fh286 6M17 BOWLING-
49063 b.1735

Movement

                              V------------------Probably not  (Wrong Age)



V



John Bolen      b1721 (Fh424, 392x, T,      Rin=54573),     (may be John Fh392 b1700, Rin=51086)
David Bolen    b1730 (Fh160, 392x, M18, Rin=61269),  

William Bolen b1730 (Fh902, 392x, S,      Rin=44567) 

were in the Spotsylvania County, Virginia, Court Order Book 1722-1724, page 13, County Reel #26 of the Virginia State Library. (2052) Those called to do road work had to be at least 18 years old, so the following would have been born before 1704. (7) John Bolen, David Bolen, and William Bolen in 1722, in Spotsylvania County, Virginia, were to do road work on the road from Germana along the ridge to the mountain Run so a Cross the said run between Coll: Caterss and Mr Skreens Quarter, Jacob Wall, Overseer. Several persons, including the three above, did not appear and help him as overseer, appointed by the Court, to clear the said road. The Court after examining the said persons, ordered that each be fined for absenting themselves. William Bolen for three days, John Bolen for five days, and David Bolen for five days. They to pay for each days absence and contempt as the Law directs with Coats as the Law directs. (1641) A Patriack Bolding was a tithable, with 10 others, "on the South Side of the River", 1728, Spotsylvania County, Virginia, to help Daniel Brown, overseer, clear the road from "Wallers bridge to Mattapany church". (1641)(1636)

The Will of Walter Anderson, King George County, Virginia, Will Book A-1, pages 93-94. In the Name of God Amen. I Walter Anderson of King George County in the Parish of Hanover being very sick and weak of body but of sound and perfect memory and calling to remembrance the uncertainty of this life do make and ordain this to be my last Will & Testament in manner and form following: 
Item: I give to my daughter Ann Anderson all that tract of land containing three hundred ninety & five acres in Prince William County whereon John Bowling now lives to her and her heirs forever. The Quitrents of the said land to be paid out of my Estate until she arrives at the age of twenty one years. Recorded: At a Court held for King George County the 2nd March 1732/s. (390,page 67) 
John Bowling, along with John Right and Thomas Jackman, witnessed the 4 June 1735 will of James Henderson in Prince William County, Virginia. Jeffery Johnson was named executor. Later on 7 June 1735 James Henderson writes a codicel “But after a second thought I considered that my well beloved friend John Bowlin having a great deal of trouble with me in my sickness and for buearing me my will is that he shall have my mare and colt and gun”. Signed James Henderson and witnessed by Thomas Jackman, James Hann and John Walker. (7)(page 134 in Will Book) This might be John’s widow: Mary Bolan had land 1741 Prince William County, Virginia.  (289)(7)(290) 

Virginia Northern Neck Land Grants, 1694-1742. [Vol. I]

p 133
E-251:  Miss Mary Bolan of Prince William County 330 Acres in said County. Surv. by Mr. William West.  Adj.  John Keen, Capt. Elzey, Francis's Mill Br., Carter's line.  15 May 1741.

p136

E-311:  Christopher Pritchard of Pr. Wm. Co. 216 A. in said Co. adj. Col. Carter, line of Connyer's, Mrs Mary Bolan, James Rice dec'd. Surv. by Mr. Wm. West.  On Goose Cr.  27 Aug. 1741. (reference as noted) 1741 Aug 27: Christopher Pritchard of Pr. Wm. Co. Va. had 216 acres of land surveyed by Mr. William West in county adjacent Col . Carter line of Connyer's, Mrs. Mary Bolan, James Rice dec'd on Goose Creek. Refer to "Northern Neck Land Grants" compiled by Gertrude E. Gray, page 136 -E-311. I think Mrs. Mary Bolan was the widow of John Fh392,240b. (1414) 

John Bowling witnessed the 4 June 1735 will of James Henderson in Prince William County, Virginia. Later on 7 June 1735 James Henderson writes a codicel “But after a second thought I considered that my well beloved friend John Bowlin having a great deal of trouble with me in my sickness and for buearing me my will is that he shall have my mare and colt and gun”. Signed James Henderson and witnessed by Thomas Jackman, James Hann and John Walker. (7)(page 134 in Will Book) John Bowling may have had sons John (Perhaps Fh424 6T) and William (Perhaps Fh902 6S) who where in the Prince William County, Virginia Militia during the French Indian War, 1756. (7)(1224) Perhaps sons William Bolling and John Bolling are listed as foot soldiers, Prince William County, Virginia, March, 1756. (1432)(1667) The Henderson will was in 1735. Then 21 years later a John and William Bowling, 1756, are in the militia of Prince William County, Virginia, so adequate time for John Bowling of 1735 records to have sons of military age. (7) On the 1763 tax list of Anson County were John Bolling (Fh424,392c,6T) and William Bolling (Fh902,392d,6S). (942)
+++++++++++++++++++++++++

John Fh393 (6K) 020c
-----------------

John 1772 VA-1856 (Rin=21154)/m1797 Elizabeth Woodhead b1778-d>1860--His father was Alexander #020.




Descendant Kit 134440 tested into DNA 6


    c
Female 1 b1800-1810 Elizabeth b1804—died young

    c
Female 2 b1800-1810


    c
Female 3 b1800-1810


    c
Female 4 b1800-1810


  b
Elizabeth "Bettsy" b1817-d1899/m1835 Abraham "Martin" Riley bc1812-d>1860


  b
Frances b1818-d>1850/m1844 John W. Eades.

ab
John 1819 IN-1877 (FAG=64069046)/m1840 Louisa Tyson (1812-1896)




Descendant Kit 134440 tested into DNA 6


  b
Jane bc1819-d>1850<1860/m1836 Isaac Shelby Riley bc1818-d>1860--brother of Abraham above


ab
William A. 1823 IN-1863/m1843 Ellen Cunningham b1826/9



Researcher Judy Chadderdon is a Descendant


a
Sons near their father in the 1850 Census of Schuyler County, Illinois. A Frances Marcus b1835 




(age 15 in 1850) Female, born  IL--maybe a granddaughter was in their household. (1621)


b
Children per Source #1623 (Judy Chadderdon)

c
Four females under 10 in 1810 Census of Livingston County, Kentucky. 1810 Census of 




Smithland, Livingston County, Kentucky with Males 00010 and Females 40110. (Ancestry.com & 



HeritageQuest.com) 
These two probably belong to John Fh393 (TB—Yes) 


    a
Elizabeth "Bettsy"/m1835 Abraham Martin Riley--See 393c


    a
Jane/m1836 Isaac Shelby Riley--See 393d 


a
Children per Source #1598 (Harriet Lee)

Birth, Parents, Lineage

John Bowling was born about 1775 in Washington County, Pennsylvania the son of Alexander and Martha "Patsy" (Williams) Bolin (Fh020). (7) John Boling (Fh393,020c) was born about 1775. (1442) John Bowling was born about 1775. (1224) The only info I have on John Bowling/Elizabeth Woodhead came from the LDS's Ancestral File. John Bowling born 1775 married 1797 Elizabeth Woodhead born 1785. John Bowling is listed as a child of Alexander Bowling and Martha Patsy Williams. (1496) John Bowling is listed as age 78, i.e. born 1772 in Virginia, per the 1850 Census Brainbridge Township, Schuyler County, Illinois. (1621) Other peoples' documentation shows John Bowling's parents to be Alexander Bowling/Martha Williams; and Alexander's parents to be William Bowling/Elizabeth Colclough. (1623) 

Marriage

John Boling (Fh393,020c) married 10 Aug 1797 Mercer County, Kentucky, Elizabeth Woodhead XE "Woodhead:Elizabeth"  or Wood. (1442) The only info I have on John Bowling/Elizabeth Woodhead came from the LDS's Ancestral File. John Bowling born 1775 married 1797 Elizabeth Woodhead born 1785. (1496) John Bowling married August 10, 1797 Elizabeth Woodhead in Mercer County, Kentucky, by John McGraw. Bondsman Henry Sage XE "Sage:Henry" . Consent for Elizabeth given by David Woodhead. XE "Woodhead.:David"  Witnessess; Jesse and William Moseby XE "Moseby:William" 

 XE "Moseby:Jesse" .  Marriage Book 1, page 66. (448)(1897) John Bowling married 1797 Elizabeth Woodhead in Mercer County, Kentucky. (7) It is not known if John married and had children. (76) John Bolling married 1797 Elizabeth Wood XE "Wood:Elizabeth"  (sic) in Mercer County, Kentucky. (854)  John Boling married 1797 Elizabeth Woodhead in Mercer County, Kentucky. (855) John Bolling married 1797 Elizabeth Wood in Mercer County, Kentucky. (1212) John Bolling married Aug 10, 1797, Elizabeth Wood, bond by McGraw. (2013) John Bowling married Elizabeth Woodhead. (1224) 

The parents of my Elizabeth Bowling (393d) were William Bowling and Elizabeth Rust (Fh880,020f,6K) (TB—No, his brother John Fh393). Abraham Martin Riley XE "Riley:Abraham Martin"  (my great great grandfather married Elizabeth Bowling November 2. 1835.  He also had a brother who married Jane Boling May 15, 1836. I have a record of Isaac Riley XE "Riley:Isaac"  who married Jane Boling in Schuyler County, Illinois. My great grandfathers death notice it said his mother was Eliz Bolden. (1598) 

Migration

John and Elizabeth Boling (Bowling, Bolen, Bowlin, etc.), were early settlers of Schuyler County, Illinois. They had 2 sons and 3 daughters who married in the mid-1830s and early1840s. See Family groups for their names.  They immigrated to Bainbridge, Schuyler County, Illinois, in the late 1820s or early 1830s. They came from Virginia via Indiana. John Boling is listed in 1840 Schuyler County, Illinois, census, Bainbrige History, List of Jurors, Tax Roll, "History of Schuyler and Brown Counties", etc.  John Boling died in Schuyler County, Illinois in 1856. (1623)

See Family Group for possible children.

Military

John Boling was a private 1813 in the Kentucky Militia. (7) John Boling (Fh393,020d)  served as a Kentucky soldier (private) in the War of 1812, March 8, 1813-Sept 8, 1813, in Capt. Edward Rawling's XE "Rawling:Capt. Edward"  Company. Also in the unit was Jarred Boling (Fh323,020e). (99)(1370) John Boling (Fh393,020d) served as a Kentucky soldier (private) in the War of 1812.  XE "Rawling:Edward"  Also in the unit was Jared (Gerrard) Boling (Bowling) (Fh323,020e), George Rust and many more. (1861) John Bolin, private, Capt. Edward Rawling's Company, Infantry, Soldiers from Kentucky in the War of 1812. (1468)
Movement-Kentucky

Mercer County, Kentucky, Deed Book 4, page 420, has John Bowling as grantor and Samuel Forrester XE "Forrester:Samuel"  as grantee, 1796. John Boling is "of Green County, Kentucky". Land is 50 acres lying in Mercer County, Kentucky, on waters of Salt River. This land was part of John's father Alexander Bowling (Fh020) land. Samuel Forrester then assigns all rights to James Van Arsdale XE "Van Arsdale:James" , later in 1796. Recorded in the November court, 1802. (1380)(1408) John Bowling of Green County, Kentucky, 24 July 1798, sells to John Morfort XE "Morfort:John"  100 acres situated in Shelby County, Kentucky, at waters of Brasberry's Creek XE "Creek:Brasberry"  part of a 450 acre tract patented in the name of Squire Boon XE "Boone:Squire"  (sic, Squire Boone). This recorded in Deed Book 3, page 515 of Mercer County, Kentucky. (1397) John Bolin (Fh393,020c,6K) was on the 1799 tax list of Green County, Kentucky. (837) The 1800 tax list of Mercer County, Kentucky has a John Bowlin, James Boling Sr., James Boling Jr. and William Boling. (7) John Boling was on the 1800 Census of Hardin County, Kentucky along with Zadock McNew and Henry Ewin. (1861, page 110)  John Boling, 1 levy, was listed as “Delinquent” 1804 on the tax records of Mercer County, Kentucky. (1365) John Bowling was in Livingston County, Kentucky, in 1807. (1496) John Bowling, son of Alex, was on the 1810 Census of Livingston County, Kentucky, with 1 male 26-45, 4 females to 10, 1 female 16-26, 1 female 26-45.  Living near was an Elizabeth Bowling, 2 males under 10, 1 female under 10, 1 female 10-16 and one female 26-45. Also living near was Henry Ewin XE "Ewin:Henry"  and many Ritchies. (1155)(1997, page 13) 1810 Census of Sm
ithland, Livingston County, Kentucky with Males 00010 and Females 40110. (Ancestry.com & HeritageQuest.com) John Bowling, along with his sisters, Elizabeth McNew XE "McNew:Elizabeth" , Polly Ritchey XE "Ritchey:Polly"  and Rachel Ewing, heirs of Alexander Bowling, deceased, appoint their brother William Bowling (Fh880,020f) of Hardin County, Kentucky, their attorney, to convey 300 acres in Shelby or Henry County, Kentucky to Joseph DuPuty XE "DuPuty:Joseph"  and 100 acres in Shelby County, Kentucky to William Roberts XE "Roberts:William" , Livingston County, Kentucky, Deed Book B, page 337, dated 27 July 1811 and recorded the same day. (1353) John Bowling appeared on an 1811 Livingston County, Kentucky, indenture with Francis Hollingshead XE "Hollingshead:Francis" , Archibald Cannon XE "Cannon:Archibald"  and William Dyer XE "Dyer:William" .  An Elizabeth Dyer XE "Dyer:Elizabeth"  Bowling is on the 1850 Census of Livingston County, Kentucky, born about 1785.  (660) John Bourland (sic) was the son of Alexander Bourland (sic).  John was named in his father's 1811 will filed in Livingston County, Kentucky.  John apparently lived in Livingston County, Kentucky, for his name appears in Deed Book, page 386 in a land transaction dated 2 April 1812.  (76) John Bowlin posted bond, along with William C. Rogers XE "Rogers:William C." , Francis Hollingshead, William Dyer and Archibald Cannon, for Lilburne Lewis XE "Lewis:Lilburne"  and Isham Lewis XE "Lewis:Isham"  who were charged with murder, Livingston County, Kentucky, Deed Book, dated 2 April 1812 and recorded the same day. (1353) John Bowling was in Mercer, Green and Livingston Counties, Kentucky. (1224) There are two John Bowlings, spelled various ways, on the tax list of Hardin County, Kentucky, beginning in 1813 through 1817. Then one is gone and the other continues 1819-1821. (1863)  

Indiana

After the War of 1812 John Bowling went to Vandenburgh County, Indiana, with sisters and their families i.e.  Rachel Ewin, Mary Polly Ritchey, and Elizabeth McNew; then John Bowling, with the McNew, went to Jefferson County, Indiana, after they sold their part of their inheritance. (1224) I was happy to find the four related families showing up in 1820 in Armstrong Twp, Vanderburgh County, Indiana. (448) By 1820, John Bowlin's family was living in Armstrong Township, Vanderburgh County, Indiana with the McNews, Ewing & Richey families, who are listed in the following censuses. (448)

1820 US Census, Indiana, Vanderburgh, Armstrong Twp, Pg 180

Household of John Bowlin;

Free White Males;           1  -10                    1  16-26   1  26-45                   1  Agriculture

Free White Females;      4  -10   2  10-16   1  16-26   1  26-45

1820 US Census, Indiana, Vanderburgh, Armstrong Twp, Pg 180.

Household of Zedok(sic) McNew;

Free White Males;        2  -10      1  10-16                             1  45+                5 Agriculture

Free White Females;    1  -10                        1  16-26 

1820 US Census, Indiana, Vanderburgh, Armstrong Twp, Pg 180

Household of Hinry (sic) Ewing; (William Ewing living next door)

Free White Males;           4  -10                                       1  26-45   1  45+       1  Agriculture

Free White Females;      2  -10   1  10-16   2  16-26   1  26-45

1820 US Census, Indiana, Vanderburgh, Armstrong Twp., Pg 180

Household of Simpson Richey;

Free White Males;         3  -10    2  10-16                       1  26-45                      1 Agriculture

Free White Females;     1  -10                                          1  26-45

It seems likely that John Bowling went to Evansville, Vandenburgh County, Indiana with the McNew, Ewing & Richey families after they sold their part of their inheritance. And very possible that John hopped a boat on the Ohio River, then traveled up the Mississippi river to Illinois. Schuyler County, Illinois which was formed in 1825 from Pike & Adams which both border the river, and Fulton in the interior. (448) According to the 1850 Census, see below, two sons were born 1819 and 1823 in Indiana. (1621)   

Illinois

It has been thought that John Bowling left Vanderburgh County, Indiana and hopped a boat going west on the Ohio river, then traveled north on the Mississippi river to Schuyler County, Illinois, where he later lived. But he was not found there in the 1830 census. Is it possible, he traveled west on the Ohio to the Wabash river bordering Illinois, and instead traveled north to Lawrence County, Illinois before proceeding on to Schuyler County, Illinois by 1835? These people seem close to the right age. They were found in Lawrence County, Illinois in 1830, but were not there in 1840. The older gentleman could have been the wife's father. I didn't find John in Schuyler, County, Illinois in 1830 - so the 1830 Lawrence County, Illinois family might be ok - if Jno. is John. (448)

 (448)

1830 US Census, Illinois, Lawrence, Pg. 258.

Household of Jno Boling;

Free White Males;             1  5-10     1  10-15                                          1  50-60   1 60-70

Free White Females;        1  5-10      1  10-15     2  15-20     1  40-50

I have definitively documented the Schuyler County, Illinois, Bowling family branch. John Bowling (Fh393,020d) and his wife Elizabeth Bowling, immigrated into the county just after its founding (in 1825) which, to my knowledge, had not been documented previously. (1623) The first settlement of Bainbridge Township, Schuyler County, Illinois, began in the same year of the earliest arrival in the county. The pioneers, and first settlers were Thomas McKee, and Willis O'Neal, who located in the township in the fall of 1823. Among other old settlers were Daniel Matheney, Jonathan Reddick, Harvey Phinney, John Jacobs, the McCormicks, John Bowling, John Doughery, James Lawler, Jonathan Patterson, Ebenezer Grist, and Apollos Ward. Prominent among those now living not before mentioned we will name Aaron V. Harris, Solena Dawson, Samuel Tomlinson, Thomas Howell, who came here from his native state, Guilford County, North Carolina, in 1829, John H. Lawler, Jacob Howell and others. (1622) Jonathan Reno and John A. Reeve were among the newcomers in 1825 who settled in Bainbridge Township. In November, 1826, Abraham Lemaster and his son-in-law, Charles Hatfield, moved into the township and purchased Willis O'Neal's improvement. James B. Atwood, William Mitchell, Moses Pettigrew, Archibald Parris, James Edmonston, James, William and John Evans were among those who came in 1827. Rev. Joseph Bell, a Baptist minister, Isaac Briggs, George Butler, Peter DeWitt, Samuel Jackson, Sanford Close, Elisha Hudson, Jerre Jackson and Thomas Howell were all residents of the township prior to 1830. Among other early residents were: Allen Persinger, Daniel Matheny, Jonathan Reddick, Harvey Phinney, John Jacobs, John Bowling, John Dougherty, James Lawler, Jonathan Patteson, Ebenezer Grist and Apollos Ward. (1622) John Boling, was paid for 2 days service per the Schuyler County, Illinois Juror List 1835-1837, and John Bowlin, was paid for 6 days service Schuyler County, Illinois Juror List 1838-1840. (1620) John Bowling's sister Elizabeth Bowling, married Zadock McNew, 24 Jan 1792 in Mercer County, Kentucky.  Zadock McNew, Sr. died in 1834 in Schuyler  County, Illinois. Will dated 1 Mar 1832; Will Proved 28 Feb 1834. (448) John Bowling's sister Elizabeth McNew, a widow, lived with her family of seven children in Schuyler County, Illinois per the 1840 census. John Bowlin is in that same 1840 Census. (1155) 

http://www.rootsweb.com/~ilschuyl/1850SchCoUSCensus/1850cBainbridgeTwp.txt 1850 Census Brainbridge Township, Schuyler County, Illinois.
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21  166
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22  167
171 BOWLING
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M
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23  167
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24  167
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6
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ILL 
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26  167
171 BOWLING
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177 BOWLING
JOHN JR
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M
FARMER
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X  (IN)

 9   173
177 BOWLING
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F



OH 

10  173
177 BOWLING
WILLIAM H
  9
M



ILL
X 

11  173
177 BOWLING
MARGARET
  7
F



ILL 

12  173
177 BOWLING
JOHN

  3
M



ILL 

13  173
177 BOWLING
ELIZA J

  1
F



ILL                                  

(1621) 1850 census, Illinois, Bainbridge twsp., 1N, 1W, page 825, Dwelling 166, has John Bowling, age 78, Va. with wife Elizabeth, age 72, Va.. The question you had on 15 year old, there is a Frances Marcus, surname Marcus, female, age 15, born Illinois, no relationship indicated. (1562)

1850 Census:

Name: John Bowling

Residence: Schuyler, Illinois

Age: 78 years

Estimated birth year: 1772

Birth place: Virginia

Gender: Male

Collection: 1850 United States Census

Sons John and William are still in Schuyler County, Illinois, in the 1860 and 1870 Census, both born in Indiana. (448)

1860 Census, Schuyler County, Illinois

 31  93   93  BOWLIN         JOHN           
45
M
IN 
(bc1815)
 32  93   93  BOWLIN         LOUISA         
45
F
OH 

 33  93   93  BOWLIN         HARRISON
19
M
ILL 

 34  93   93  BOWLIN         MARGARET
17
F
ILL 

 35  93   93  BOWLIN         JOHN

13
M
ILL 

 36  93   93  BOWLIN         JANE

11
F
ILL 

 37  93   93  BOWLIN         ALBERT

5
M
ILL 

 38  93   93  BOWLIN         ANTHONY
5
M
ILL 

 39  93   93  BOWLIN         ELIZABETH
80
F
+
(Probably his mother)
        

In the 1880 Census, Bainbridge, Schuyler County, Illinois, son John's wife, Louisa, widow, age 66 is there. Neither son William or his wife are in the 1780 Census, only one of their sons. (1562)

Death

John Bowling died 1856 in Schuyler County, Illinois and his wife Elizabeth died between 1860-1870 in Schuyler County, Illinois. (1623) December 12, 1856 Estate of John Boling (Fh393,020d), Schuyler County, Illinois. John W Eades XE "Eades:John W." , William Cunningham XE "Cunningham:William" , Administrators. (1730)

Things that are probably wrong

From the LDS'sAncestral File, John Bowling died in Hardin County, Kentucky. (1496) I have no knowledge that John Bowling died in Hardin County, Kentucky. (448) Probably one of these John's:

Hardin County, Kentucky


M16
John (Fh421) t1800,r1820


M16
John (820a) b1805

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

John Fh397 (6N2) 090c
-----------------

John 1734->1810(Rin=18572, LYYQ-YFR)—His father was Benjamin #090 (Rin=18570, L69N-WBQ)
Possible Children based on Location--Family 6N2
Possible Children based on Location--Family 6M21


a
William 1758-d>1833 (Rin=50363) born 1758 in Westmoreland County, Virginia. (91)(658)(912) William 



Bowling, Pension #S16040, in 1833 was a resident of Fairfield County, Ohio, aged 74. Born 13 July 1758 


in Westmoreland County, Virginia. (1414)--See Family Group #770


John 1759-1815 (Rin=64243)(M2ZK-25J)-See Family Group #3971
—He had a son Nathaniel (1779-1870) Fh466 



George W. 1763-1839 (Rin=50768)/m ------- ------- Was 6M21-See Family Group #235




A descendants kit 514594 (M21) tested into DNA 6


a
Charles 1764-1849 (Rin=50310)/m1791 Sarah McKenney (1774-1850)—See Family #1563




Decendants Kits 4891, Kit 21137, Kit 35587 (6N2)


b
Margaret 1769-1847/m     1/h ----- Lewis/m1816 PA 2/h Col. George Davenport. Born March 1769 in King George 


County, Virginia. She married first ----- Lewis, and second George Davenport after 1810 in Iowa. She 



died in Rock Island County, Illinois, August 1847, aged 78 years. She had a brothers Ambrose Green 



and Jeremiah Bowling. 


b
Ambrose Green 1781-1865(Rin=45025)/m1808/9 Margaret James—See Family #029




Descendant Kit 591993(A) tested in to DNA 6


b
Jeremiah 1785-1854(Rin=44785)/m1806 Sarah Venable d1854—See Family #326


a
Siblings per Source #1442


b
Siblings per Source #1932 and #1979

Birth, Parents, Lineage

John Bowling was born 1732 in Stafford or King George Counties, Virginia. John Bowling's parents were Benjamin Sr. and Mary (Latham) Bowling (Fh090). John Bowling had a brother Benjamin Jr. (Fh100). (51)(7) Only brother Benjamin Bowling's birth is recorded in the St. Pauls Parish register, as: Benjamin, son of Benjamin and Mary Bowling, born Sept. 18, 1732. The mother Mary died as recorded in the Parish records: Mary Bowling, wife of Benjamin (Fh090,A), died Dec. 5, 1735 (1302) King George County, Virginia entires 6A John (Fh397,090c) b1732,b1729,b1731,r1757,r1769,r1782,r1785,1787. “27 May 1757 Deed of Lease, Francis Strother sold to Moses Grigsby of Overwharton Parish, Stafford Co. a 379 acre track of land in Brunswick Parish, King George, bounded by the Muddy Creek., Survey of land made 13 May 1754, patent granted to George and John Mott. Sold to Francis Strother. Wit: John Bowling, Francis Swillivant, Gerard Banks, William Rowley.” Proved 4 Aug 1757. (Deed Book No. 4 pages 290 and 292) (1939, pages 31-32) 
Death
John Bowling was dead by 1790 because in a 1790 apprenticeship agreement, his son Jeremiah Bowling (Fh326,397f,6A) is said to be the orphan of John Bowling/Bolen. (1979) Does anyone know if there was a connection between any of the Bowling/Bolling families in King George County, Virginia and the James Madison family? My Jeremiah Bowling (Fh326,397f,6A) and his brother, Ambrose Green Bowling (Fh029,397e,6A) carried the names James and Madison down in their families. James Madison was born, and grew up, in King George County also. Ambrose Green Bowling (Fh029,397e,6A) fought in the Washington DC militia during the War of 1812. (1979) Jeremiah Bowling lived in Winchester, Virginia and James Madison's sister lived just a few miles south. There is a story about a set of china or pieces of china from the White House that was handed down in the family. There are so many small things that point to a connection but I can't find one. I know my Jeremiah Bowling's (Fh326,397f,6A) father's name was John Bowling (Fh397) and John Bowling was dead by 1790 because in a 1790 apprenticeship agreement, his son Jeremiah Bowling (Fh326,397f,6A) is said to be the orphan of John Bowling/Bolen. (1979) Which John Bowling/Bolling/Bolen?  Does the fact that Ambrose's middlename is Green mean anything? Can anyone unravel this mystery? (1979) 6A Fh397,090c John Bowling (Rin=18572) witnessed a deed between Francis Strother and Moses Grigsby, 1757, King George County, Virginia. (7) John Bowling was a taxpayer 1782 in King George County, Virginia. (347) John Bowling was on the 1787 census of King George County, Virginia, with 1 male age 17-20, 2 horses and 3 head of cattle.  (551) 
Lines of Descent from: 


Simon Fh629 BOWLING-


45539 b.1620       


William Fh742 BOWLING-


65495 b.1652


George Fh240 BOWLING-


62389 b.1670


Joseph Fh450 BOWLING-


53942 b.1688


Benjamin Fh090 BOWLING-

18570 b.1704


John Fh397 6N2 BOWLING-

18572 b.1734



son


George W. Bowling Fh235 M21 BOWLING-
50768 b.1763
From the Place Index
King George,VA-created 1720-21 from Richmond, Westmoreland

In 1777 the revision of the county lines threw St. Paul’s Parish into King George Parish where it has remained since that date.


6A
Benjamin (Fh090, 450a, Rin=18570) m1725 (Mary Latham) --m @ St. Paul's (Rin=18570)


6A

John (Fh397,090c) b1732,b1729,b1731,r1757,r1769,t1782,r1785,1787(Census) (Rin=18572)


6N2


Charles (Fh1563,397x) b1763 (Rin=50310)


6A


Margaret (397a) b1769


6A


Ambrose (Fh029,397b) b1780 (Rin=45025)


6A


Jeremiah (Fh326,397c) b1785 (Rin=44785)

VIRGINIA 1787 – PROPERTY TAX ROLLS
Results read as follows:

Persons –  W. males over 16 – Blacks above – Horses 
 Cattle  Carriages

King George
Bowling, John
1
0
0
2
3

John Bowling was on the 1787 census of King George County, Virginia, with 1 male age 17-20, 2 horses and 3 head of cattle.  (551) 





















+++++++++++++++++++++++++

John Fh3971 (6N2) 397x
-----------------

John 1759-1815 (Rin=64243)(M2ZK-25J)/mc1777 Meeky ---- (b1760)-His father was John #397

Nathaniel 1779-1870/m1806 Nancy Scroggins—See Family #466 

James Lewis 1783-1861 (FAG=60969136)/m1808 Tracy Matthew—See Family #4621

Franklin b1785

Nancy bc 1788

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

John Fh398 (6K) 860a
-----------------

John b1770/1780-w1844wp1845 (Rin=54040)/m       -------- --------- --Father was William #860 (Rin=53935) or #861 (Rin=55053)

  c
Male 2 b1785-1794


  c
Male 3 b1800-1810


  c
Male 4 b1800-1810


  bc
Wesley b1784-d>1844--See Family #7385

ab
Male 5 b1810-1820

ab
Clarissa -d>1844


ab
Amanda -d>1844


  b
Female 3


  b
Female 4


a
Other children not named


a
Mention in John's 1844 Will, probated in 1845, in Hardin County, Kentucky

b
1840 Census of Hardin, Kentucky 1 male 60-70, 1 male 20-30, 1 female 10-15 and 3 females 20-



30.


c
1810 Census of Madison County, Kentucky (See below)


Birth, Parents, Lineage

861a John Boling, “not of age”, is mentioned in his father’s William Boling’s (Fh861) 1794 Will, probated 1795, Book 1, page 4, Shelby County, Kentucky. His mother was Margaret in the will.  (670)(1155)(1783)(1782)(1443)(1367)(1332) John Bowling was born 1770-1780 based on the 1840 Census of Hardin County, Kentucky. (See more below on this Census)
1810


John Bowlen was in the 1810 Census of Madison County, Kentucky (HeritageQuest):



Males




2    <10




2    16-25

1 26-44 (John, b1766-1784:1840 Census cuts this to b1770-1780)

Females


1     <10

1 10-15

1      26-44 (no doubt his wife)

Nearby in the 1810 Census of Madison County, Kentucky,  there is a Wesley Bowlen (no doubt his son 398a, age 16-25, a female the same age and one male under 10. (HeritageQuest)

1812

John Bowlin purchased 273 acres on Clear Creek XE "Creek:Clear" , Shelby County, Kentucky, in 1812, from a W. Stafford XE "Stafford:W." . (1178) John Bowling appoints William Boling (could be Fh810,860a), both of Shelby County, Kentucky, "in suit where I am plaintiff and Richard Merriweather XE "Merriweather:Richard"  and Samuel Bryant XE "Bryant:Samuel"  are defendants", 29 June 1813. (1394)

1840
John Bowling was born 1770-1780 based on the 1840 Census of Hardin County, Kentucky, with males 0000100010000 and females 0103000000000. Thus oldest male was age 60-70, i.e. b1770-1780. 1840 Census of Hardin, Kentucky 1 male 60-70, 1 male 20-30, 1 female 10-15 and 3 females 20-30. (Ancestry. com) 
Death

There was a will dated August 24, 1844, for John Bolin, proven December 15, 1845, in Hardin County, Kentucky. Mentions son Wesley, daughters Clarissa and Amanda. Mentions other children but no names. Witnesses John Morris and E.V. Brown. (1683) John Bolling died in Hardin County, Kentucky 1845. (7) John Bolling died before 1845 in Hardin County, Kentucky. (885)  

















+++++++++++++++++++++++++

John Fh400 (6K) 558x
-----------------

John 1756-1846 (Rin=56952)/m1790 Mrs. Ann (Huston) Hoge (Rin=56953) (1763-1848)--His father was Robert #558 

        e
Female b1790


abc  e 
James 1792-d>1820 Census--could also be in the 1850 Census

abcde 
Margaret 1796-1875/m1820 William VanKirk 1797-1862-Had son Nelson m Wash., PA


abc  e 
John 1796-died young per one source—or Could be Fh401

abcde 
Mary Ann 1798-1874/m1815 George Meek 1794-1869--later Belmont Co., OH

abc 
William 1800-1875


abcd 
Jane B, b1803/m1849 John Nelson Prall d1875-no issue


abc 
Matilda 1806-1881-a mute


a
Children per source #007


b
Children per source #403


c
Children per source #1073


d
Mentioned together in Early Marriages of Washington County, PA, Source #1583

e
1800 Census of Somerset Township, Washington County, Pennsylvania with 11010-21010. (9)(Ancestry.com & 


HeritageQuest.com)
Birth, Parents, Lineage

John Bollen was born 1756 in Morris County, New Jersey, the son of John Bolen Sr. (Fh399) (7) John Bollen was born 1756. (199)(8) John Bollen was born 1756 in Morris County, New Jersey and when 5 years old moved with father to Henterdon County, New Jersey. (1073) 
Marriage and Children
John Bollen married Mrs. Ann Hoge. (199) In July 1790 he married Mrs. Ann (Huston) Hoge in South Strabane Township, Washington County, Pennsylvania. (7)(1073) John Bollen married Ann Hustonxe "Huston:Ann". (157) Ann Huston had a son Mordecai Hoge who was aged 63 in 1847 (i.e. bc1784). (1073) Ann Huston was the daughter of William and Hannah (-----) Hustonxe "Huston:William". (7) John Bollen married in Washington County, Pennsylvania, Mrs. Ann (Huston) Hoge the daughter of William Huston. 
John Bollen was a shoemaker by trade. He came from New Jersey to Washington County, Pennsylvania by 1803 or 1790 when he married there. (403) John Boleyn married Ann Houston, in Washington County, Pennsylvania. This event was listed on page 88 of Washington County, Pennsylvania, Will Book #1. (1583) John Bollen married Ann Huston, daughter of William Huston. William Huston was the first white man who settled where Washington now stands. In 1774 Michael Creasap stopped at William Huston's house at Catfish Camp, when on his way from Wheeling to Redstone. William Huston had a will December 7, 1802. John Bollen was a shoemaker and settled in Washington Pennsylvania opposite Joseph Huston's tavern on Main Street. Joseph Huston was a cousin of William Huston. (1716) William Huston had a will December 7, 1802, probabted 1803, Washington County, Pennsylvania. It named daughter Ann, wife of John Boleyn. Will book #1, page 490. (2020)   

They had children:

a.  
James born 1792 (7)(1073) James who died young (403) There is a James in the both the 1820 and 1850 Census of 
Washington County, Pennsylvania, that might be him. (7) James Bollen was born 1792 in Washington County, Pennsylvania, 
the son of John Bollen and Mrs. Ann (Huston) Hoge.  James Bolen was on the 1820 Census of Washington County, 
Pennsylvania.  (7)

b.  
Margaret born 1794 (7)(1073) Mararet married William VanKirkxe "Van Kirk:William" (403) Margaret Bollen 1796-1875 married June 6, 
1820 William VanKirk 1797-1862. Their oldest son was named Nelson. (620) Margaret Bollen married William VanKirk in 
Washington County, Pennsylvania. This per newspaper clippings, 1820, page 24. (1583) Margaret Bolen married William 
VanKirk. ''this per the Newspaper Clippings, 1820, page 24. (1583, paqe 219)  

c.  
John born 1796 (7)(1073) John who died young (403) This could be John Fh401.

d.  
Mary Ann born 1798 (7)(1073) (FAG 57365731) Mary Ann born 1798 in Washington County, Pennsylvania. Mary 
Ann married 1815 George Meekxe "Meek:George". Mary Ann died 1874 in Ohio. (157) Miss Mary Bolen married George Meek both 
of 
Amwell Township, Washington County, Pennsylvania. (1067) George Meek is in the 1840 Census of Richland 
Township, Belmont County, Ohio. (7) Mary who married George Meek and died in Ohio (403) Mary Bolen married 
Geoge Meek in Washington County, Pennsylvania. There was a newspaper record of this in 1815. (1583) May 23, 
1815, 
George Meeks to Mary Bolen (400d) of Amwell Twp. By Rev. Matthew Brown. (1583) Mary Bolen married George Meeks. 
''this per the Newspaper Clippings, 1815, page 10. (1583, paqe 148)  


e.  
William born 1800 (7)(1073) William who died 1875 (403) He was in many censuses but not with wife or children. 
(7) William Bollen was born 1800 in Washington County, Pennsylvania, the son of John Bollen and Mrs.
Ann (Huston) 
Hoge.  (7)

f.  
Jane born 1803 (7)(1073) Jane B. who was born 1803 in Washington County, Pennsylvania who married 1849 John 
Prallxe "Prall:John" who died 1875 at age 96 (403) Jane B. Bollen married John Prall in Washington County, Pennsylvania. This from The 
Washington Observer, 1894, page 223. (1583) 

h.  
Matilda born 1806 (7)(1073) Matilda Bolen was in the 1850 Census of Amwell, Washington County, Pennsylvania, 
page 
378. (7) Matilda, a mute, died in 1881.  

All children were born in Washington County, Pennsylvania.

Military

John Bollen lived at Pennington in Hunterdon County, New Jersey and enlisted there. In December 1789 he moved to Washington County, Pennsylvania. (1073)

John Bollen served in the Revolutionary War from Hunterdon County, New Jersey. (7)(1073)  John Bollen widow's (Ann) pension number was W11173. The pension application had a lot of family data. (7)(1073) John Bollen was a Sgt. in the Revolutionary War from New Jersey. He received a pension. (199)

Movement

John Bollen was on the 1793 tax list of Washington Township, Washington County, Pennsylvania. (648) 
John Bolen was in Washington County, Pennsylvania, in 1798 as trader and 1800 as a shoemaker. (476) 
John Bolen was in the 1800 Census of Washington County, Pennsylvania on page 115. (547) John Bolen was in the 1800 Census of Somerset Township, Washington County, Pennsylvania with 11010-21010-00. (9)(Ancestry.com & HeritageQuest.com) 
William Huston'xe "Huston:William"s estate 1803 Washington County, Pennsylvania, names his daughter Ann wife of John Boleyn (sic).  (619) 
Ann Huston married John Bollen, who was a shoemaker, and settled in Washington, Pennsylvania, on Main Street. They lived there until 1811 and then they moved to Amwell township. (436, page 953) 
John Bolen is in the index for being in the 1810 Census of Washington Township, Washington County, Pennsylvania, but the image is too light to read. (HeritageQuest.com) John Bolen had an advertisement 1811, that he found a stray mare at the fork of the Redstone and Muddy Creek, Amwell Township, Washington County, Pennsylvania. (1066) 
Twice in 1812 there was an advertisement that John Bollen had a letter remaining at the post office in Washington County, Pennsylvania. (1066) 

John Bolen had an advertisement 1813, that he found a stray mare at the fork of the Redstone and Muddy Creek, 6 miles from the town of Washington, Washington County, Pennsylvania. (1066) 
John Bolen had an advertisement 1814, to sell a tavern and 109 acres at the fork of the Brownsville and Morgantown Road, 6 miles from the town of Washington, Washington County, Pennsylvania.  (1066) John Bolen had an advertisement 1814, that he found a mare at the fork of the Brownsville and Muddy Creek Road, Washington County, Pennsylvania. (1066) 
Twice in 1816 John Bolen had an advertisement that he found stray horses at the fork of the Brownsville and Muddy Creek Roads, Amwell Township, Washington County, Pennsylvania. (1066) 
John Bolen was in the 1830 Census of Strabane Township, Washington County, Pennsylvania, page 179. Alexander Bolen (Fh024) was in the same County, but in Chartiers Township. (7)
 John Bollen was on an 1840 list of Revolutionary Pensioners, age 84, South Strabane Township, Washington County, Pennsylvania.  (8) 

Death

John Bollen died 1846. (199) John Bolen died 7 November 1846 in Washington County, Pennsylvania. (7)(1073)

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

John Fh402 (6M1) 516x
-----------------

John b<1700-1730 (Rin=46529 LD33-DHT )/m<1718 Mary Browne 1691-d<1730—--His father was Robert #516 (6M1) 
Sometimes confused with John #392 (6C)--Head of Family String C 

a
Originial bc1718 (Rin=46531)/m1752 Margaret French she b<1729--m St. Paul's parish 



Edmund bc1719-d>July 2,1757 (Rin=54618) /m1744 Mary Sudduth—See Family #183 



a
David b<1721 (Rin=61269)/m1741 Jane Pilcher--See Family #160- M18 String


2/w m<1730 Judith -----


a
Children per Sources #1927 and #2111
2111.
Data on John Fh402 at (http://wc.rootsweb.ancestry.com/cgi-






bin/igm.cgi?op=GET&db=mrmarsha&id=I63034) Also data on all the Northern Neck Bowlings

DNA 6ers.

Early Colonial Settlers of Southern Maryland and Virginia's Northern Neck Counties
https://www.colonial-settlers-md-va.us/getperson.php?personID=I043881&tree=Tree1


Birth, Parents, Lineage

John Bowling was born before 1700. He is the right age to have a brother William born about 1707. (1927)
From the Place Index

King George,VA-created 1720-21 from Richmond, Westmoreland

In 1777 the revision of the county lines threw St. Paul’s Parish into King George Parish where it has remained since that date.


6C
John (Fh402, had wife Judith at death) r1722,r1723,r1725,d1730,wi1731


6C

David (Fh160,402a) m1741 (Jane Pilsher)--m @ St. Paul's,r1742(Rin=61269)


6C

Jesse (Fh340,160a) b1742 or bc1745-50,r1772,r1782,t1782,r1784,r1787 (Rin=45488)


6C

William (Fh788,340x) b1772,m1794 (Sarah Spillman) (Rin=46489)—to KY shortly afterward


6C




James Butler b1795 FAG=78731543


6C



Jesse (Fh351,340x) b1784


6C

Original (402b) m1752 (Margaret French)

Westmoreland,VA-created 1653 from Northumberland


6M1
John (Fh402) mc1721(Mary Browne) Rin=61269


6M1
Mary (wife of John Fh402, her birth surname was Brown) nw1727 (father’s)


6M1
David (Fh160, 402x) r1726 ?-(Rin=61269)


6M1

Jesse (Fh340,160a) l1778-l1790--of King George Co, Va(Rin=45488)


6M1


William (Fh788,340x) r1795-r1810 (Rin=46489) 


6M1



James (Fh285,788a) b1795 (Rin=46491)


6M1



John (Fh384,788b) b1798 (Rin=46495)


6M1



Elizabeth (788c) b1800


6M1



Samuel (788d) b1803


6M1



Felicia (788e) b1806


6M1



William (788f) b1808


6M1



Malinda (788g) b1810

6M1
James (Fh268,669x,bc1730) r1753,r1754,nw1754(of Nathaniel Jones)


6M1
William Sr. (UK) r1753,r1754,nw1754(of Nathaniel Jones),r1755,l1762,wi1762


6M1
William Jr. (UK) r1754,nw1754(of Nathaniel Jones)


6N2
William (397a) b1758


6N2
Charles (Fh1563,397x) b1763
Those that Signed a 1781 petition to move the Stafford County, Virginia, courthouse.

Spencer Bowling 
(Fh647,160c,
6C) along with 

Garrard Boling 
(Fh320?

6C), 

Thomas 

(Fh667, 286x
6M17), 

Charles 

(Fh1563, 397b, 
6N2), 

William Bowling
(
397x
6N2)  


(1758) 


6NK
John (Probably 629x) r1704,r1714



Richard (UK) r1711,1712,r1713



Robert (UK) r1714,r1730



William (UK) r1726

Marriage and Children

John Bowling married Mary Browne, the daughter of David Browne and Elizabeth Smith, she was born between 1675 and 1695 in Westmoreland County, Virginia. John Bowling and Mary Browne had children: David Bowling born before 1721 and Original Bowling born before 1729, who married Margaret French born before 1729 in Richmond County, Virginia. (1927) Mary Bowling may have had a son Original Bowling who married Margaret French 1752 in Stafford or King George Counties, Virginia. This in the St. Paul's parish register. (46) John Bowling married 1st Mary Browne born before 1705 in Westmoreland County, Virginia. Marriage before 1721 in Westmoreland County, Virginia. Children:[image: image4.png]



a.
David Bowling born before 1721 in Westmoreland County, Virginia. (1927) David Bowling (Fh160,6C) was born before 
 
1721 and married Jane Pilsher born before 1725. (2111)
b.
Original Bowling born before 1729 in Westmoreland County, Virginia. (1927) Original Bowling born before 1729 and 
married Margaret French born before 1729. (2111) Original Bowling married Margaret French1752 in Stafford (then), King 
George (now) Counties, Virginia. This in the St. Paul's parish register. (46) Originial Bowling's mother Mary Bowling and 
her brother Original Brown were named in their father's, David Brown, 1727 
will proved 1730 in Westmoreland County, 
Virginia. (678)(1633)

John Bowling married 2nd Judith (Maiden Name Unknown) Bowling. Married before 1730 in King George County, Virginia. (1927)(2111)

Movement

John Bowlling (sic) was in a court case against James Markham, 1722, King George County, Virginia. Dismissed as neither party appeared. (1643) 

King George County Orders 1721-1723, page 54. King George County Court 6th of July 1722- In the acton: brought by James Markham and John Bowlling, neither party appearing is dismist. (1927)(2111) 

At a court case August 3, 1722, King George County, Virginia, Judgment was granted to Samuel Skinker against John Bowlling for 418 pounds of tobacco. (1643)(1927)(2111) 

Late in 1722 John Bowlling, among many others, was allowed 30 pounds tobacco for guarding David Seale in the Prison House. (1643)(1927)(2111)  

===
KING GEORGE COUNTY ORDERS 1723-1725; p.153 King George County Court 7th of December 1723
- I mparlance is granted unto JOHN BOWLING inthe suit brought against him by ESTER LAMPTON. Executrix of the last Will and Testament of WILLIAM LAMPTON deced.
===
KING GEORGE COUNTY ORDERS 1723-1725; p. 163 King George County Court 7th of March 1723/~
- judgment is granted unto HESTER LAMPTON asst. JOHN BOWLING for the sum of Seven hundred and fifty pounds of tobacco due by Bill which is ordered to be paid with one attorneys fee and cost
===
KING GEORGE COUNTY ORDERS 1723-1725; p. 243 King George County Court 6th of April 1725
- The suit brought by WILLIAM THORNTON Gent. agst. ]NO: BOWLING is dismt.

Hester Lampton, Executrix of the last Will and Testament of William Lampton, deceased, aginst John Bowling, in the Court, December 1723, King George County, Virginia. Judgement was granted to Hester Lamption at the court March 7, 1723/4. (1644) 
King George County Orders 1723-1725; page153. King George County Court 7th of December 1723- Imparlance is granted unto John Bowling in the suit brought against him by Ester Lampton. Executrix of the last Will and Testament of William Lampton deced. (1927)(2111) 
King George County Orders 1723-1725; page 163. King George County Court 7th of March 1723/~- judgment is granted unto Hester Lamption asst. John Bowling for the sum of Seven hundred and fifty pounds of tobacco due by Bill which is ordered to be paid with one attorneys fee and cost. (1927)(2111) 
A law suit was brought 1725, King George County, Virginia, by William Thornton against John Bowling was dismissed. (1644) 
King George County Orders 1723-1725; page 243. King George County Court 6th of April 1725- The suit brought by William Thornton Gent. agst. John Bowling is dismt. (1927)(2111)
David Bowling (Fh160,6C) witnessed a 1726 deed of David Brown, grantor to his son Original Brown, grantee, in Westmoreland County, Virginia. On the same day William Bowling witnessed a gift deed between David Brown and his son Original Brown. Both deeds were recorded the same day. (1632)
 On the same day in 1726 David Bowling (probably Fh160,6M1) witnessed a deed of David Brown, grantor to his son Original Brown, grantee. William Bowling witnessed a 1726 gift deed between David Brown and his son Original Brown, in Westmoreland County, Virginia. Both deeds were recorded the same day. (1632) The above David Brown of Westmoreland County, Virginia, had a daughter Mary Bowling. (wife of John Fh402, 6M1) (1633) Mary Bowling and her brother Original Brown were named in their father's, David Brown, 1727 will proved 1730 in Westmoreland County, Virginia. (678)(1633)  Mary Bowling may have had a son Original Bowling who married Margaret French 1752 in Stafford or King George Counties, Virginia. This is in the St. Paul's parish register. (46)
The above David Brown of Westmoreland County, Virginia, had a daughter Mary (Brown) Bowling (See Fh402). (1633) Mary Bowling and her brother Original Brown were named in their father's, David Brown, 1727 will proved 1730 in Westmoreland County, Virginia. (678)(1633)
John Bowling Fh402 was in the Prince George County, Virginia, Patent Book #11, 1719-1724, page 41, County Reel #10 at the Virginia State Library. (2052)  
John Bolen (Fh402), David Bolen (Fh160, 6C), and William Bolen (UK) were in the Spotsylvania County, Virginia, Court Order Book 1722-1724, page 13, County Reel #26 of the Virginia State Library. (2052) John Bolen, David Bolen, and William Bolen in 1722, in Spotsylvania County, Virginia, were to do road work on the road from Germana along the ridge to the mountain Run so a Cross the said run between Coll: Caterss and Mr Skreens Quarter, Jacob Wall, Overseer. Several persons, including the three above, did not appear and help him as overseer, appointed by the Court, to clear the said road. The Court after examining the said persons, ordered that each be fined for absenting themselves. William Bolen for three days, John Bolen for five days, and David Bolen for five days. They to pay for each days absence and contempt as the Law directs with Coats as the Law directs. (1641) A Patriack Bolding was a tithable, with 10 others, "on the South Side of the River", 1728, Spotsylvania County, Virginia, to help Daniel Brown, overseer, clear the road from "Wallers bridge to Mattapany church". (1641)(1636)

Death

John Bowling died September 4, 1730 Hanover Parish, King George County, Virginia. (1927)

Bond

Judith Bowling was the administrator of the estate of John Bowling, deceased, 1730, in King George County, Virginia. Bondsman was John Wise. (390) 4 Sept 1730 - John Bowling (d.i., 1730). COB#1, p. 524: 4 Sept 1730 Administration is granted to Judith Bowling on the estate of her deceased husband, John Bowling. She was ordered to give bond and an inventory and appraisement of his estate was directed. This was returned to Court 2 Oct 1731 and recorded in I#1, p. 147. Also on 4 September 1730, Judith Bowling gave bond as administratrix of John Bowling, deceased, with John Wise her security on the said bond. [BB#1, p. 28b. [Source: King George County Virginia Will Book, A1,  1721-1752]. (1414)(1647) John Bowling [d.(ied) i.(ntestate), 1730. COB #1, [County Order Book #1, p. 524:  4 September 1730 Administration is granted to Judith Bowling on the estate of her deceased Husband, John Bowling. She was ordered to give bond and an inventory and appraisement of his estate was directed.  This was returned to court 2 Oct. 1731, and recorded in I #1, p. 147.  Also, on 4 Sept. 1730 Judith Bowling gave bond as administratrix of John Bowling, deceased, with John Wise her security on the said bond. [BB #1, p. 28.b.][Bond Book #1].(1527)(1580) At a court held 2nd October 1731 inventory presented into court & admitted to record. Bond of Judith Bowling Administratirx of John Bowling deced in the sum of 10 pounds Sterling dated 4th September 1730. Bondsman John Wise. (1927)(2111)

Inventory

John Bowling had an inventory dated 1731 in King George County, Virginia. (35) King George County Will Book No.1, page 20. An inventory & appraisement of the Estate of John Bowling deced . items valued and totalled, t 0.5.6 made by appraisers John Kenyan, Rowld. Thornton, John Higdon. (1927)(2111)

King George County Will Book No.1, 1752-1780, pg 20, An inventory & appraisement of the Estate of JOHN BOWLING deced. items valued and totalled, t 0.5.6 made by appraisers JOHN KENYAN, ROWLD. THORNTON, JOHN HIGDON . At a court held 2nd October 1731 inventory presented into court & admitted to record.
Bond of JUDITH BOWLING Administratirx of JOHN BOWLING deced in the sum of 10 pounds Sterling dated 4th September 1730. Bondsman John Wise.


Probably not John Fh402 (Wrong Location)

John Bolen, David Bolen, and William Bolen were in the Spotsylvania County, Virginia, Court Order Book 1722-1724, page 13, County Reel #26 of the Virginia State Library. (2052) John Bolen, David Bolen, and William Bolen in 1722, in Spotsylvania County, Virginia, were to do road work on the road from Germana along the ridge to the mountain Run so a Cross the said run between Coll: Caterss and Mr Skreens Quarter, Jacob Wall, Overseer. Several persons, including the three above, did not appear and help him as overseer, appointed by the Court, to clear the said road. The Court after examining the said persons, ordered that each be fined for absenting themselves. William Bolen for three days, John Bolen for five days, and David Bolen for five days. They to pay for each days absence and contempt as the Law directs with Coats as the Law directs. (1641) A Patriack Bolding was a tithable, with 10 others, "on the South Side of the River", 1728, Spotsylvania County, Virginia, to help Daniel Brown, overseer, clear the road from "Wallers bridge to Mattapany church". (1641)(1636)

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

John Fh407 (6S) 120g
-----------------

John 1780,VA-d>1852<1855(Rin=44734)/mc1792 Lucille "Lucy" Randolph (bc1780-dc1840/1850)--His father was Benjamin #120(Rin=44516)

  ab
John B. bc1796-1853(Rin=44776)/m1820 Tabitha Dorcas Redding --to Washington Co, Ind—



See Family #408




A descendant kit 2940, kit 4725, kit 10477 tested into DNA 6
ab
Benjamin F.1796-1853 (Rin=44928)/m1821 1/w Clarissa Hobbs dc1835, 2/w m1837 Matilda
Logan--to Washington Co, Ind--See Family #132


  ab
Randolph 1800-1849 (Rin=13079)/m1816 Jane Graves (bc1800-d>1860)--to Washington Co, Ind




A descendant kit 2656, 2662, kit 2940, kit 22608, kit 37561, kit 335506, tested into DNA 6


  ab
Jesse 1802-1860 )Rin=44926)/1/w m1824 Sarah Hobbs 2/w m1839 Dorinda Anderson--to Washington, Ind




A descendant kit 23617, kit 35373, kit 35547 tested into DNA 6

    b
Elizabeth Louisa bNC/John Boling-her distant cousin? Don’t think same as mother of William 



Henry Harrison Boling (411a)

a
Children per Source #1233 (World Family Tree, by Family Tree Maker, Vol. 2 (1997) Entry made by Ann 
Hancy, 24 Highpoint Drive, Gulf Breeze, FL, 32561, annwmshancy@bellsouth.net, (2002) Descendant of 
Robert Fh514, 6M19. 


b
Source #320 (Informant William G. O’Connor)
A different John Fh411 was in the 1850 Census of  Randolph County, North Carolina. Some have mixed the two families.
Possible daughter Louisa was born about 1815, North Carolina, she remained single but had one son William Henry Harrison Boling (FAG=87011956) born 1 Jun 1844. She would be about age 29 at William Henry Harrison's birth. (1785) John Boling's daughter, Louisa (Louiza) had a son as an unwed mother, William Henry Harrison Boling (born1844) (called Harrison). Harrison is the direct male line to my husband--my husband's DNA, as expected, was not a Bowling DNA. (Informant Linda Boling)


Other Census data:


1850 Louisa is age 35


1860 Louisa is age 41


1870 Louisa is age 40    


1880 Louisa is age 56


The William born about 1844. [I believe this is Wm. H. H. b. 1 Jun 1844, son of Louisa & gr-son of John & Martha] (1785)


Digitized image of William's Death Certificate

Handwriting looks like it is spelled "Williom H. Baling"

FamilySearch.org

Name: William H. Baling
Death date: 06 Jun 1925

Death place: Union Township, Randolph, North Carolina

Gender: Male

Race or color: white

Age at death: 81y 3d

Birth date: June 1st 1844

Birth place: Randolph Co., N.C.

Marital status: Widowed

Spouse name: 

Father name: Louis Latham
Father birth place: Randolph Co. N.C.

Mother name: Louize Boling
Mother birth place: Randolph Co., N.C.

Occupation: Farmer

Informant:  Essie Tucker
Address: Seagrove, NC  R#2

Cause of Death: Acute Lobar Pneumonia  (duration) 21 days

Cemetery name: Pleasant Hill

Burial date: 07 Jun 1925

Funeral home: W. L. Stutts, Seagrove NC

Additional relatives: X

Buried in Primitive Hill Baptist Church Cemetery, per Genealogical Journal of the Randolph Co NC Vol XVI, No 4, Fall Issue of 1992.

William H Boling
Birth: 
Jun. 1, 1844

Death: 
Jun. 6, 1925

Find A Grave Memorial# 87011956

Birth, Parents, Lineage

John Bolling was born about 1780 in Virginia. John Bolling's parents were Benjamin Jr. and Sarah "Sally" (Hancock) Bolling (Fh120). (53)(173)(808)(809) Descendant kits 2656, 2662 and 23617 tested into DNA 6. 
John Bolling, son of Benjamin Bolling, was born in North Carolina and some say that he spent his life there, but deed records of Washington County, Indiana indicate that he owned land there. We do know that John and his wife Lucille Randolph had 12 children. Of these children John, Jesse, Benjamin and Randolph settled in Washington County, Indiana. (275) John Bowling was the son of Benjamin (Fh120) and Sally Tabitha (Hancock) Bowling. John Bowling married Lucille Randolph. (320) John Bolling was the son of Benjamin and Sallie (Hancock) Bolling (Fh120,6S). John Bolling married a Miss Randolph (it is believed) and they reared four sons and a daughter all of whom moved to Indiana about 90 to 100 years ago. The sons of John Bolling were named as follows: Randolph, John, Benjamin, and Jessee. They all went from Randoph County, North Carolina to Washington County, Indiana. (791)

They had children: 
a.
John. (Fh408)(320)(791) John B. Boling married Tabitha Redding Dec 1820 North Carolina & at least their last 2 born in North Carolina were Augustus 1820 born North Carolina, Henry W. born 1822 in North Carolina. Next seems to have been Redding in 1831 & he was born in Indiana. I believe they all likely came to Indiana between Jesse's marriage in 1824 & the 1825 Mary Ann child born in Indiana. (1785) 
b.
Benjamin. (Fh132)(320)(791) 
c.
Randolph. Boling. (320)(791) Randolph Boling was born 1800, Randolph County, North Carolina. (1284) Randolph Bowling  was born in North Carolina, married 1817, Jane Graves. (2074, Vol. 2) (424)  The John B. Boling who married Elizabeth Nicholson was not a son of John Boling who married Tabitha Reding (Fh408). My records indicate he was a son of Randolph Boling and Jane Graves. (1284) Randolph Boling  married Jane Graves c1816/1817 in North Carolina and their first 4 children were born in North Carolina, last of that 4 was Seth born April 1821, North Carolina. Next one, Mary Ann, who married Isaac Trueblood, was born Jan 1825 in Indiana. (1785) 6S 407c Randol Bolin was on the 1815 tax list of Randolph County, North Carolina. (942) Randolph (Randol) Bolin was on Capt.  Hoover's district 1820 tax list of Randolph County, North Carolina. (942)

d.
Jesse. (320)(791) John Bowlin had a son Jesse Boling born 1803 in North Carolina, who married 1839 Dorinda Anderson in Washington County, Indiana. (374) Dorinda "Bowlin", the widow of my g-g-g grandfather Jesse Boling (407d,6S) was married 1871 to Alfred Townsend in the home of Benjamin Bowlin, son of Daniel (135b,6M18), in Andrew County, Missouri. (1785) Son Jesse Boling (407e) married Sarah Hobbs in Randolph County, North Carolina, 1824. I believe the Boling bunch migrated to Washington County, Indiana soon after Jesse's marriage. Their son Randolph was born in January 1825 in North Carolina. (1785) Son Jesse was born 1802. (424)
e.
Elizabeth Louisa who married John Bowling her cousin. (320) 
The Sallie Bolling/Bowling who was born 1820, Kentucky, and married Joseph Eversole was the daughter of John and Lucille (Randolph) Bolling/Bowling (Fh407).  
Movement

John Bolan was in Randolph County, North Carolina in 1800 Census in household 298 with 21020-10010-00. (9)

John Bolin Sr. and Jr. were on Capt. Harvey's district 1815 tax list of Randolph County, North Carolina each as one white poll.  John Bolin, Jr. was on 150 acres on Rockey Creek.  John Bolin Jr. also was listed as "for Bill Bolin, 183 acres Uharie".(942)  
A John Bolin was on Capt. Hoover's district 1820 tax list of Randolph County, North Carolina, 130 acres Betty McGee Creek and a John Boling was on Capt. King's district 1820 tax list of Randolph County, North Carolina as one white poll, 100 acres waters Little River.  (942) 
Things that are probably wrong

John Bolling (Fh407,6S) married Lucille Randolph and had children: Sallie, Mattie, Mary Ann, Nancy-never married, Lousia, Bettie who married Solomon Latham, Benjamin (Fh132), Randolph born about 1800 in Randolph County, North Carolina, John, Jesse born 1802 who married first Sarah Hobbs and second Dorinda Anderson, Neal and Westwood. (173)(808) (This is probably combining the children of John Fh407 and John 411)  

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

John Fh408 (6S) 407x
-----------------

John B. bc1796-1853(Rin=44776)/m1820 1/w Dorcas "Tabitha" Redding (bc1800-d<1849)—His father was John #407(Rin=44734)


A descendant kit 2940 tested into DNA 6


A descendant kit 4725 tested into DNA 6


A descendant kit 10477 tested into DNA 6

*a
Henry W. 1822 NC-1866 IL/m1845 Ruth Pauley/Pawley (1824-1854)

  a
Augustus 1828 NC-1895 IN

*a
Redding 1831 IN-1898 OK/m1848 Lucinda PauleyPawley (1836-1903)



A descendant kit 4725 tested into DNA 6

*a
Martha 1832 IN-1905 IN/m1856 William A. McClanahan d1893

*a
Elijah 1836 IN-1881/m1858 Margaret J. (Dalton) Winslow (1837-1862)/2/w m1866 Sarah Jane
Jones (bc1845)


Alvin 1838 IN-1864 IN/m1861 Margaret Gordon (1836-1871)

  a
Sarah b1840 IN

  a
Sela A. b1843 IN


2/w m1850 Eliza Weston bc1808 (could be her children)


Andrew Weston bc1843--called "Uncle Red"?



Jacob b1846--called "Uncle Red"?

*
Children per source #1427. Also had John B. 1820-1869/m1840 Eliza Ann Emorville Nicholson, but two other 
researchers disagree.
a
Children per source #1284. The John B. Boling who married Elizabeth Nicholson was not a son of John Boling who 
married Tabitha Reding (Fh408).  My records indicate he was a son of Randolph Boling and Jane Graves (407d).
Birth, Parents, Lineage

John Boling was born about 1796. (1427) John Boling’s father was John Fh407. (1427)

A descendant  kits kit 2940, kit 4725, kit 10477 tested into DNA 6
1/W and children

John Boling married 1820 Tabitha Reding. (1427) See Family Group for their children. (1427) John B. Boling (Fh408,407b), married Tabitha Redding Dec 1820 North Carolina. (1785) John married Tabitha Reding in NC. Tabitha is not mentioned in any Salem Indiana records I have found. I probably am the one who has stated that Henry is probably a brother of Redding. I did this because in the Bible, Acts, Ch. 9, V 36, it states that Dorcas and Tabitha are the same name. I admit that this is flimsy evidence for genealogy, but it seems logical since John's wife is called Dorcas in all of the Salem Indiana records. (1284) According to my records, here are the progeny of John Boling and Tabitha "Dorcas" Redding (Fh408). (1284): 

a.
Henry Boling Oct. 9, 1822 N.C. (1284) It was Henry W. Bowlin on his marriage license. (2099) Henry was born in North Carolina and he came to Washington County, Indiana, as a child. (2099) His father marrried a second time and there were children of this second marriage. The youngest son of Henry W., an Elisha Bowling of around Dana, Indiana, referred to a half brother of his father (Henry W.) as "Uncle Red". This "Uncle Red" had a daughter named Elthea who married a man named Hiddle. (2099) It is a family tradition that Henry W. was a Methodist preacher and a carpenter by trade. (2099) I have not been able to definitely connect Henry. My principal reason for including Henry as a son was arrived at by events. Redding migrated to Edgar County, Illinois at age 16.  He married Lucinda Paulley in 1848.  Redding and Lucinda purchased land from Henry. Henry's wife was Ruth Pawley (sic). Later, Redding and family migrated to Nodaway County, Missouri. One of Henry and Ruth's children also migrated to Nodaway County. A researcher of Henry Boling collaborated with me in this research. She was a descendant of Henry. Family records referred to an "Uncle Red" who was frequently in Henry and Ruth's home. (1284) 

b.
Augustus Boling 1828 N.C. (1284) 

c.
Redding Boling Jan. 3, 1831 IN (1284) 

d.
Martha Boling May 15, 1832 IN (1284) 

e.
Elijah Boling 1836 IN (1284) John indentured his son, Elijah, to David Platt to learn blacksmithing in 1852. (1284) 

f.
Alvin Boling 1838 IN (1284) 

g
Sarah Boling 1840 IN (1284) 

h
Sela Boling 1843 IN (1284) 

Of their children at least their last 2 born in North Carolina were Augustus 1820 born North Carolina, Henry W. born 1822 in North Carolina.  Next seems to have been Redding born in 1831 & he was born Indiana.   I believe they all likely the group came to Indiana between Jesse's (407d) marriage in 1824 & the 1825 Mary Ann child born in Indiana. (1785)
Tabitha "Dorcas" Redding-Boling died some time after the 1843 birth of Sela. (1284)

2nd/W and child

John later married Eliza Weston on March 10, 1850.  She and two Weston children plus John's children were listed on John's 1850 census. (1284) I have arrived at these possible children primarily by using census listings. (1248)  Besides Henry the other siblings are verifiable. (1284) The John B. Boling who married Elizabeth Nicholson (408c) was not a son of John Boling who married Tabitha Reding (Fh408). My records indicate he was a son of Randolph Boling and Jane Graves (407d). (1284) Randolph Bowling (407d), who was born in North Carolina, married 1817, Jane Graves. (2074, Vol. 2)

Death

John Boling died in 1853. (1427) John probably died around 1854. (1284)  His widow, Eliza, sold land to Hiram Hurst in November of 1855. (1284) 
+++++++++++++++++++++++++

John Fh417 (6)
-----------------

John w1805,pw1805 (Rin=        )/m<1805 Elizabeth ----- --His father was John alive in 1805

*
George b>1789

*
William b>1789

*
John b>1789

*
Named in father's 1805 will. In 1807 William Dubin was named guardian of all three.
Birth, Parents, Lineage

John Bowling had a will November 5, 1805, proved November 23, 1805 in Alexandria City & County, Virginia. The will names his wife Elizabeth and sons George, William and John, and father John Dooling (sic). Administration Elizabeth Bowling, witnesses Matthew Robinson, Hanson Thomas, and Richard Weightman. (678) The sons must have been minors because guardianship for George, William and John Bowling was granted May 13, 1807 to John Dulin, second Hanson Thomas.  (678) 
The Hursey family had gone to the county line between Hopewell Township, Licking County and Hopewell Township, Muskingum County, Ohio, from Fairfax County, Virginia by Dec 1808.  In Virginia the name was Hussey and Henry Hussey, father of the above William Hursey, had paid taxes for a John Bowling in 1788 in Fairfax County, Virginia.  At that time the Hussey family was living just south of Falls Church, Virginia. Later a John Bowling was witness to a Hussey record and I THINK he is the John Bowling who died in or near Alexandria, Virginia in 1805. A Hanson Thomas was co-admin. of Henry Hussey's estate in 1807 and he also was a witness to the Will of the John Bowling who died in 1805.  This same Hanson Thomas appeared in Hopewell Twp., Licking County, Ohio by 1816 when he married a second wife and they also lived near Gratiot. I'm trying to learn if the Hussey/Hurseys were related in any way to the Bolen or Thomas families in that area. (1482) William Hursey married 6 Mar 1828 Sarah Bolen (Rin=63509) in Muskingum County, Ohio. (7)
From the Place Index 
Muskingum,OH-created 1804 from Washington, Fairfield



William (UK) r1816,r1820(Census),w1822,d1822(Sally Bolen named administrator along with Joseph Brown)



Sally (UK, widow of William UK) nw1822,r1822



Sarah (UK widow of William UK) m1828 (William Hursey)



Edward (UK,b1776/1794) r1820(Census,age 26-44,Bolen)



John (UK) t1816


6N2
William (Fh4891,1563e) (Rin=26818) m1834 (Sarah Dulin) d1868



William (UK,b1804 VA,father Wm, mother Frances) d1868
Licking,OH-created 1808 from Fairfield



Charity (UK) r1820



Henry (UK,b1791-1810) r1830(Census age 20-49),r1840(Census age 20-49)



James (UK) r1830


6A
George R. (bc1841,VA) r1870 (age 29),r1880 (age 39)


6A
Mary F. (wife of George R. above) d 2 Feb 1882
+++++++++++++++++++++++++

John Fh418 (6B) 634x
-----------------

John Boley b1746 (Rin=61391,KCKZ-LBQ)/m1774 Hannah Rust (Her 2nd Husband)—His father was Simon #634



Elijah 1774-1814/m      Ailcey Barracks—See family #2281—
Descendant Kit 163538 DNA 6
 

Benjamin bc1775 (Rin=54102)/m      Patience W. Daniel—See family #149
I must have used Fh418 a second time. The 1st Fh418 belongs to DNA Group 5. Leave this stay Fh418 with wife Hannah Rust to avoid making a lot of linkage changes.

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

John Fh424 (6T) 392b
-----------------

John bc1730-d<1810 (Rin=54573)/mc1750 Mary Kenson— His father was John #392 (Rin=51086, 27332)

He probably had a brother William Fh902 6S

Was Head of String T

*a
David bc1750-dc1805 (Rin=54571)—See Family Group #1625


*
Michael bc1755-d>1800


* b
John  bc1755-d>1830(Rin=46141 FAG=19137049)/m       Betsy ?—See Family Group #429



Descendent Kit 58512 tested in to DNA 6


* b
Jesse b1759-d>1803/Mrs. ------ ------


* b
Lucretia bc1761/mc1780 Jesse Hurt--Has son Shubel Hurt


    b
Charles b1764 (Rin=54558)


* b
William bc1770/1780-dc1844(Rin=54565)/m      Elizabeth ----- --See Family Group #753 


*
Other children


  a
Sarah "Sally" bc1767-1845/m1783 John Reed (bc1764-1839)--See 1625a


    b
Shubal b>1772-<1784


    b
Willoughby


    b
Mitchell


    b
James b1773—See Family Group #002



Descesdent Kits 13529 and B216325 tested in to DNA 6

    b
Several daughters


*
Children per Source #1308 (1997) and  (b) the same person Source #1728 (2004) 


a
David and Sarah were probably related, most likely siblings per Source #1450

Birth, Parents, Lineage

John Bolling was born about 1729 in Virginia. He lived in old Anson, now Montgomery County, North Carolina. John Bolling’s wife was Mary ____. John had a brother William Bolling (Fh902,6S).
Lines of Descent from: 

 
Simon Fh629 BOWLING-


45539 b.1620

 
William Fh742 BOWLING-


65495 b.1652

 
George Fh240 BOWLING-


62389 b.1670

 
John Fh392 6A 6M17 6S BOWLING-
51086 b.1700

 
John Fh424 6T BOWLING-


54573 b.1730



son

 
John Fh374 6M30 BOULDIN-

61167 b.1758

Wife and Children
a.
Lucindia my lineage (she married Jesse Hurt). (1728) Lucretia bc1761/mc1780 Jesse Hurt--Has son Shubel Hurt
b.
John had sons named Shubal (named for Shubal Sterns the founder of the Baptist Churches in North Carolina) (1728) 
c.
Willabe (several spellings). (1728) Willoughby. 
d.
Charles perhaps middle name David. (1728) Charles Bowlin (Rin=54558) is listed under "notes due" in "The Earliest Extant 
Deeds 1774-1842" - Montgomery County, North Carolina. (1414)

e.
Mitchell. (1728) Michael Boling/Bolin (Rin=54569) was born before 1755 per Census records, the son of John (Fh424,T) 
(1308) Michael Boling/Bolin was in 1800 Census, Salisbury District, Montgomery County, North Carolina with 2 males (1 
over 45, 1 under 10) and 4 females (1 26-45,1 16-26, 1 10-16, 1 under 10).  (7)(1155) Michael Boling was in the 1800 
Census of Montgomery County, North Carolina on page 484. (1303) "The Earliest Extant Deeds 1774-1842" - Montgomery 
County, North Carolina. Listed under "notes due" includes  Charles Bowlin. (1414) 1815 - Leonard's in the tax list living 
along the Little River in Capt. Harvey's District near Bolins (Mark, John, Jr. Bill, and Mitchel). (1414) 1815 Tax List of 
Randolph County, North Carolina: In Capt. Harvey's District is Mark Bolin, Mitchel Bolin, John Bolin Sr, Charles Bolin....all 
living along Little River as neighbors. http://www.gravesfa.org/gen077.htm (1414)

f.
James. (1728) James b1773—See Family Group #002. Descesdent Kits 13529 and B216325 tested in to DNA 6
g.
William Jr. (Jr. for his brother I think). (1728) William bc1770/1780-dc1844(Rin=54565)/m      Elizabeth ----- --See Family 
Group #753. William Bolling (also Shubel (424g), John Bolin and John Bolin Jr., and Jessee (424c) were listed as having land 
deeds in Montgomery County, North Carolina in the period 1779-95. (179)(1318) Shubal Bolin (Rin=54561) had land grants 
#511 and #521, 1790 in Montgomery County, North Carolina, 25 acres described as East side of Bumpasses Fork, line of 
John Boling Sr. by Ward's path Boling's line. Chainers were John Bolin Sr. and Jesse Bolin. (942) Jesse Boling (424d) to John 
Boling (Fh429,424c)...land joins that of Shubal Boling (424i) on Bumpass Fork of Little River, Montgomery County, North 
Carolina. Dated 1784 but not filed until 1795 I think it said. (1527) Shubal Bolin had land grants #596 and #645, 1791, in 
Montgomery County, North Carolina, 50 acres described as East side of Bumpass Fork including William Bolling's 
improvements. (942) Shubal Bolin had land grants #871 and #884, 1795, in Montgomery County, North Carolina, 100 acres 
described as Northeast side Pee Dee River Rockey Creek  Bumpass Fork of Little River, to William Spencer's line. Chainers 
were William Bolin and Equille Sugg. (942) Shubal Bolen had land grants #816 and #829, 1795, in Montgomery County, 
North Carolina, 100 acres described as Northeast side Pee Dee River path leading from Edmund Nicols to Josph Hottoms (?) 
near a pond. Chainers were John Bolin, Sr. and Jesse Bolin. (942) Shubel Bolin (also John and John Jr., William and Jessee) 
were listed as having land deeds in Montgomery County, North Carolina in the period 1779-95. (179)(1318) Shubal Bolen 
had land grants #861 and #874, 1795, in Montgomery County, North Carolina, 100 acres described as Northeast side Pee Dee 
River head of Jenny Hip's Branch leading from Joseph Nicols to Reason Ricketts. Chainers were John Bolin and Jesse Bolin. 
(942) Suble Bolin was in Meckenburg (sic) County, North Carolina, in 1800 in household 477 with 10100-20100-10. (9) The 
above 1800 Census record was in Salisbury District, Montgomery County, North Carolina. (7)(1155) Suble Bolin and Williba 
Bolin were on the 1800 Census of Montgomery County, North Carolina, all on page 475. On page 468 was a William J. 
Bolin. (1303) Suble Bolin is in the 1800 Census of Montgomery County, North Carolina, age 16 to 26 (i.e. b1772-1784). He 
appears to be married with three small children. 10100 20100. (1088) Shewbel Bowling was on the 1810 census of 
Montgomery County, North Carolina, page 32, 11010 22110. He was age 26 to 45 (i.e. b1765-1784). (942)(1088)

h.
John. (1728) John  bc1755-d>1830(Rin=46141 FAG=19137049)/m       Betsy ?—See Family Group #374 or #429


Descendent Kit 58512 tested in to DNA 6

i. 
Jesse. (1728) Jesse b1759-d>1803/Mrs. ------ ------. Jesse was born 1759 (Rin=54568) the son of John (Fh424,T). (1308) 
Montgomery County, North Carolina, Deeds, Page 109 - 17 September 1784 - Jesse Bollin (424d,6T) to John Bollin, Sen'r 
(Fh424,6T) - 50 pds. - 60 acres - East side of Bumpases Fork of Little River - It being a tract of land granted to the said Jesse 
Bolin by patent dated 17 Nov. 1790 (?). Wit: Benajer X Randall, Signed: Jesse Bolin (1155) Jesse Bolling made a 60 acre land 
entry 1788 in Montgomery County, North Carolina.  (7)(179)(1318) Jesse Bolin had land grants #480 and #490, 1790 in 
Montgomery County, North Carolina, 60 acres described as East side of Bumpasses Fork, Shubal Bolin's line.  Chainers were 
John Bolin Sr. and Shubal Bolin. (942) Jessee Bolin was in Montgomery County, North Carolina, in 1790 in household 165 
with 01 00 02 00 00. (9)  Jesse Bolin had land grants #1543 and #1186, 1799 in Montgomery County, North Carolina, 100 
acres described as William Allen's line corner of his 100 acres survey Branch of Bair Creek.  (942)  Jesse Bolin had land 
grants #1542 and #1185, 1799 in Montgomery County, North Carolina, 100 acres described as near head of Black Rock 
Branch west side of Bumpass Fork of Little River, including improvements of Edward Morris.  (942)  Jesse Bolin had land 
grants #1734 and #1390, 1800 in Montgomery County, North Carolina, 100 acres described as bank of Cart Fork, John 
Poterfield's line.  Chainers were Jesse Bolin and John Sowell.  (942) Jess Bolen is in 1800 Census, Salisbury District, 
Montgomery County, North Carolina with 2 males (1 10-16,1 26-45) and 1 female 16-26.  (7) Jesse Bolin was in 
Mecklenburg (sic) County, North Carolina, in 1800 in household 470 with 01010-00100-00. (9)  This entry was in 
Montgomery County. North Carolina.  3 in household 1 male 26-45, 1 female 16-26, and 1 make 10-16. (1155) Jesse Bolin, 
John Bolin Sr., and John Bolin Jr. were on the 1800 Census of Montgomery County, North Carolina, all on page 468. (1303) 
Montgomery County, North Carolina, Deeds, page 281 - 28 April 1803 - Benager Randle to William Bolin (UK if Sr., 
Fh753,6T, if Jr.) - 6 pds. - 30 acres - on both sides of Bumpasses's Fork of Little River - Being a tract of land granted to the 
said Benager Randle by patent dated ... Nov. (no year given). Witnesses: Jesse Bolin, Noah Randle. Signed: Benager X 
Randle (1155) Jesse Boling (424d) to John Boling (Fh429,424c)...land joins that of Shubal Boling (424i) on Bumpass Fork of 
Little River, Montgomery County, North Carolina. Dated 1784 but not filed until 1795 I think it said. (1527)


They also had other daughters. 
(This is Fh424, 392b) John Bolling was in the Prince William County, Virginia Militia in the French-Indian War.  He was paid by an Act of Assembly for the State of Virginia, 1756. (7)(1667)  John Bolling, along with William Bolling, was a foot soldier from Prince William County, Virginia in 1756. (7)(1667) William Bolling and John Bolling are listed as foot soldiers, Prince William County, Virginia, March, 1756. (1432) John Bolling and William Bolling were each paid, March 1756, 1395 pounds of tobacco, in service to fight French and Indians, from Prince William County, Virginia. (7)(1224)(1667) Their father may have been John Bolling Fh392,240b. (7)(1224) “On August 13, 1755, John Bolling provided an account of the battle in a letter to his son. In passing, he noted that Braddock was “supos’d to have been killed by his own Men”. Bolling’s source of information on this point is uncertain, though the rest of his account is very heavily influenced by Washington (George).” (1843) John Bowlen was a chain carrier 1753, on land in present day Fauquier County, Virginia, but at that time was Prince William County, Virginia. Capt. John Bell of Prince William County, Virginia, a survey date of October 12, 1753-April 7, 1755. A prior claim had been filed by William Smith. 187 acres on Carters Run. Surveyor William Baylis. Chain Carriers: Joseph Nevel Jr. and John Bowlen. (1762) The name of John Bowlen also appears on Virginia records as a chain carrier on a survey made by George Washington. (7) 12 Oct 1753-1755: William SMITH has set up prior claim; 187 acres on Carter's Run, adjacent to William COCKAREL, Colonel William Fairfax, Walter ANDERSON, - Chain Carriers John Bowlen and Joseph Nevel, Junior Surety. Surety William Baylis. (1762, Volume III page 137)
Movement
From the Place Indes
Montgomery,NC-created 1779 from Anson


6T
Benjamin (UK) r      --later Owen Co., IN


6T
William Sr. (UK,b<1750) r1800


6T
John Sr. (Fh424,392b, b<1750)r1800(Census) probably Salisbury District, 


6T

Michael (424b, b<1755) r1800(Cenus)


6T

Jesse (424c) l1784,l1788,l1790,t1790,r1790,l1799,l1800,r1800 (Census),r1803


6T

John Jr.(Fh429,424c)t1782,l1784,r1787,l1790,r1790(Census),t1790,l1791,l1794,l1795,





r1800,l1802,t1815-probably earlier Anson Co.


6T

Shuble or Shubal or Shewbel (424g) r1784,l1790-l1795,r1800(Cesus),1810—later Owen Co., IN


6T

William Jr. (Fh753,424h) r1800(Census),r1810,rc1815,t1815—later Owen Co., IN


6T


William (753g) bc1815


6T

Willougaby/Williba (Fh930 and/or 424i) r1800(Census),r1810

6T
Charles (424a and/or Fh1625) l????--Could be Charles David


6T
David (424a and/or Fh1625) r1787--Could be Charles David

1787

William Boling was in a 1787 Census of Montgomery County, North Carolina with 1-2-2-0-0 (1 male 21-60, 2 males other, 2 females, no slaves). Also in this 1787 Census was two John Bolings and a David Boling on the prior page. (942) 


6T
William Sr. (UK) t1782,r1787,t1790,r1790,(Census),l1797,r1800(Census)—later Owen Co., IN


6T
John Sr. & Jr.(Fh429,424c)t1782,l1784,r1787,l1790,r1790(Census),t1790,l1791,l1794,l1795,




r1800,l1802,t1815-probably earlier Anson Co.


6T
David (424a and/or Fh1625) r1787--Could be Charles David

1790

William Bowling was in the 1790 Census of Montgomery County, Salisbury District, North Carolina. (688) 

1797

William Bolin had land grants #1046 and #1023, 1797 in Montgomery County, North Carolina, 30 acres described as East side Bumpass Fork, William Bolin's line Thomas Sugg's line.  Chainers were William Bolin and Willoughby Bolin.  (942)  

1800

William Bolin Sr. was in Meckleburg (sic) County, North Carolina, in 1800 in household 470 with 01001-00101-00. (9) The above 1800 Census record was in Salisbury District, Montgomery, North Carolina, 4 in household, 1 male over 45, 1 male 10-16, 1 female over 45 and 1 female 16-26. (1155) William J. Bolin was on the 1800 Census of Montgomery County, North Carolina, on page 468. Suble Bolin and Williba Bolin were on page 475. (1303) The “History of Owen County, Indiana”, states that William Bowlin Sr. and William Bowlin Jr. along with Benjamin Bowlin become residents of Morgan Township, Owen County, Indiana, as early as the year 1825.  All were from Montgomery County, North Carolina. (1155)

From the Place Index
Montgomery County, North Carolina

6T
John Sr. (Fh424,b<1750, Rin=54573,392c,Rin=51086) l1757,l1760,l1761,l1763,l1772


6T

David (Fh1625, 424a) r1787--Could be Charles David


6T

Michael (424b,b<1755) r1800(Census)


6T

John Sr. & Jr.(Fh429,424c)t1782,l1784,r1787,l1790,r1790(Census),t1790,l1791,l1794,l1795,






r1800,l1802,t1815-probably earlier Anson Co.


6T

Jessee (424c) l1784,l1788,l1790,t1790,r1790,l1799,l1800,r1800 (Census),r1803


6T

Lucretia (424e) bc1761-Probably later Montgomery Co.


6T

Charles (424a and/or Fh1625) l????--Could be Charles David 


6T

William (Fh753,424h) r1800(Census),r1810,rc1815,t1815—later Owen Co., IN


6T

Shuble or Shubal or Shewbel (424g) r1784,l1790,l1791,l1795,r1800(Cesus),1810 Owen,IN


6T

Willougaby/Williba (Fh930 and/or 424i) r1800(Census),r1810

Others from North Carolina



6S
William (Fh902,Rin=44567,392d,Rin=51086) t1753,r1761,t1763,r1774-later Montgomery Co.,NC


6T
Benjamin (UK) r      --later Owen Co., IN



Ebenezer (perhaps Fh180,4G) m1790 (Abigail Loving)


6T
Harbard (not 753f, spouse Amy Crittendens, son Shubal C. Bolin) r1810,r1830


6T
William (753g) bc1815


6S
Mark (120f) t1815


6S
Mitchel (120g) t1815



Mary (UK) r1810



Walter (UK) r1790 (Census)


6T
William Sr. (UK) t1782,r1787,t1790,r1790,(Census),l1797,r1800(Census)—later Owen Co., IN

All were Baptists formed up the Fork of the Little River Baptist Church on the Little River. Injured in the Revolutionary War. (1728)  John Bowling (Bolin) had land patents, 1757, 1760 and 1772, Anson County, North Carolina. (7) I do know that Morgan Edwards wrote a history of Shubal Stearns (originally of Tolland, CT) way, way back, and that history was also a history of the southern Baptist movement that Sterns fostered. In it Edwards mentions a John Boling or Bowling who was a lay minister of the Forks of the Little River Baptist Church (now in Montgomery County, North Carolina) about 1757, along with Eli Lilly. That argues that some Bowlings were there pretty darn early. (955) John Bowling had grants #462 and #2232 for 200 acres in Anson county, North Carolina, issued 1757, described as N.E. side of Pee Dee River, East side Bumpass fork crossing 2 spring branches, north side large branch called Barnes Mill Creek. (942) John Bolin had grants #1437 and #1446 for 200 acres in Anson county, North Carolina, issued 1760, described as both sides North Fork of Little River of P.D., Pounding Branch crossing the river.  (942)  John Bolling was on the 1763 tax list of Anson County, North Carolina.  (693) John Bowling was on the 1763 tax list of Anson County, North Carolina. Part of Anson County became Montgomery County in 1779. (7) Also on the 1763 tax list of Anson County were Isaac Bolling and William Bolling.  (942) 
A List of Tithables on the Head of Little River,N.C.--1771 
Uriah Akers, 
Wm. Bell, 
Danel Blevins, 
John Boleing (Fh424,6T), 
Griffeth Dickerson, 
Conrnelus Davis, 
Charles English, 
John Evins, 
Frnaces Eston, 
Andrew Ferguson, 
David Garred, 
Phillep Garrid, 
Thomas Griffeth, 
Thomas Goodson, 
Jonathan Grimes, 
Wm. Huff, 
Leonard Huff, 
Joseph Hoff, 
John Hall, 
Charlis Hunget, 
Wm. Hungate, 
Wm. Holley, 
James Idings, 
Charles Likens, 
John McClean, 
Harcules Ogle, 
John Plumly, 
John Price, 
John Patterson, 
Wm. Richardson, 
Christian Richards, 
Thomas Right, 
Joseph Rendfew, 
Thomas Scott, 
Jesper Terry, 
Joseph Willis, not legible. 
List of Tithables in the Upper Settlement of Little River N.C.-- 1772 Uriah Akers, Blackburn Akers, Michel Bracken, John Bowling (Fh424,6T) , William Bell, John Beckett, Joseph Bowling, Griffith Dickinson, Jeremiah Doneley, Griffeth Dickinson Juner, Henry Dewesse, Charlis English, David English, John English, Enose Johnson, Rubin Keeth, Jacob Lewis, Mark Lukeings, Andrew Lukeings, John McClennan, Joshia Morris, Hercules Ogles, John Paterson, John Plumley, William Richardson, Joseph Rentfro, Richard Rannels, Christian Richards, Francis Eason, Samuel Eason, John Evins, Andrew Ferguson, Thomas Goodson, Thomas Griffeth, Phillip Gerret, Jonathan Grimes, Henrey Guffey, Joseph Hough, William Holley, John Hungot, William Hough, William Hungot, John Hale, Joshua Howell, Charles Hungot, David Iding, Seth Johnson, Thomas Scott, John Spurlock, Wm. Spurlock, Ezekiel Sumner, William Terrey, Jesper Terrey, James Tilley, Samuel Underwood, Joseph Willis, Senr., Joseph Willis Jr., Jospeph Willis again, John Chisum, Jos. Crabb, Fras. Daugherty, Two of the Abneys. (1414)(1619) John Bolin and John Bolin Jr. (also Shubel, William and Jessee) were listed as having land deeds in Montgomery County, North Carolina in the period 1779-95. (179)(1318) John Bowling had grants #411 and #2897 for 400 acres in Anson county, North Carolina, issued 1772, described as Bumpass prong of Little River said to be Goolsby lower corner mouth of Barnes Creek, Edmund Nichols line, Bowlings upper line. (942) John Bolling was on the 1782 tax list of Montgomery County, North Carolina.  (693) Montgomery County, North Carolina, Deeds, Page 109 - 17 September 1784 - Jesse Bollin (424d,6T) to John Bollin, Sen'r (Fh424,6T) - 50 pds. - 60 acres - East side of Bumpases Fork of Little River - It being a tract of land granted to the said Jesse Bolin by patent dated 17 Nov. 1790 (?). Wit: Benajer X Randall, Signed: Jesse Bolin (1155) John Boling (two of them) were in a 1787 Census of Montgomery County, North Carolina.  One with 1-2-1-2-2 (1 male age 21-60, 2 males other, 1 female, 2 slaves 12-50 and 2 slaves other) and the other John with 1-2-1-0-0 (1 males age 21-60, 2 males other, 1 female).  Also in that Census was David Boling and William Boling on same or adjacent page.  (7)(942) John Bolin had grants #533 and #543 for 61 acres in Montgomery County, North Carolina, issued 1790, described as Bumpass Fork Little River, his own line. Chainers were John and Jesse Bolin. (942) John Bolin was in Montgomery County, North Carolina, in 1790 on page 165 with 01 04 01 00 00.  (9) John Bowlin was in Montgomery County, North Carolina, in 1790 on page 165 with 02 00 01 00 00.  (9)  John Bolin had grants #894 and #907 for 50 acres in Montgomery County, North Carolina, issued 1795, described as joining Jesse Bolin, Fayetteville Road.  Chainers were Jesse and Shubal Bolin.  (942)  John Bolin had grants #794 and #807 for 100 acres in Montgomery County, North Carolina, issued 1795, described as Northeast side Pee Dee, Bumpass Fork Little River, line of Thomas, John Bolin's line.  Chainers were John Bolin and Johnston Randle. (942) John Bolin, Sr.  had grants #795 and #808 for 100 acres in Montgomery County, North Carolina, issued 1795, described as North side Bumpass Fork, Reuben Holderness line.  Chainers were John Bolin and Shubal Bolin. (942)  John Bolin Sr. was on the 1800 Census of Montgomery County, North Carolina, with two in household.  1 male over 45 and 1 female over 45. (1155) John Bolin Sr. was in Mecklenburg (sic) County, North Carolina, in 1800 in household 470 with 00001-00001-06. (9)  The above 1800 Census record was in Salisbury District, Montgomery County, North Carolina. (1155) John Bolin Sr., John Bolin Jr., and Jesse Bolin were on the 1800 Census of Montgomery County, North Carolina, all on page 468. (1303) See his family group list for possible children. (1308) 
Yes, I have changed my thoughts that David Bolen (Fh1625) was the father of my Sarah Bolen.  The information that David Bolen was the father came from a compilation of abstracts of Revolutionary War pension applications from Bedford County, Tennessee ("Soldiers of the Revolution in Bedford County, Tennessee" Compiled by Helen C. & Timothy R. Marsh, Shelbyville, Tennessee; Southern Historical Press, Inc.; 1989).  The person who prepared the summary of the application in the book states that "Sarah (sometimes called Sally) Bolen was the daughter of David Bolen who died about 1805."  However, if you look at the accompanying sworn statements of John Reed and his wife Sarah Bolen, neither said that David Bolen was Sarah's father.  She stated on September 20, 1845 that, "the said record of her marriage was written by the said David Bowlen the next day after said marriage took place and that the same was returned and kept by her in her possession till she delivered the same to a Lawyer in morder (prob. order) to get a pension for her ..." It sounds to me like David Bolen was the minister who performed the marriage ceremony, and not Sarah's father as has been reported. I believe ministers or justices were the individuals in those days who wrote up the marriage and returned them for recording. I do believe David was probably a relative -- he may have been her brother or a close cousin, but I don't believe he was her father.  Also, the dates I have for a David Bowlen in this area of North Carolina (from land deeds and tax lists) would appear to put him in an age category similar to Sarah's, perhaps born around 1760- 1765. Finally, I have speculated that John Bolen/Bolling (Fh424) who was a lay preacher with the Fork of the Little River Church in 1759 may instead be the father of my Sarah.  His age (probably born 1725-1735) appears about right and he owned land on the Little River near the boundary of Randolph and Montgomery Counties, North Carolina. This would put him in the same area that David Bowlen owned his land around 1790.  Perhaps David is also a child of John (and therefore, a brother to my Sarah). (1450) My Sarah is the daughter of John Bolling (Fh424,6T), not David (Fh1625,6T). David is her brother and performed her marriage ceremony. Some people misinterpreted Sarah's deposition given for John Reed's Rev. War pension application. In it she said David had "returned" the marriage certificate in 1783 and those researchers thought that meant he was her father. He was her brother and the minister who had signed the certificate and was returning it to the couple. (1450)

Furthermore, the Little River Church was a member of the Sandy Creek Association and I have found that a number of my North Carolina ancestors and allied families (Moffitt, Teague, Robbins, Spinks, Williamson) were members of the "New Light" Baptist churches which were members of the Association started by Shubal Stearns around 1758. Also, I've found that one of the other founding members of the Fork of the Little River Church in 1759 with John Bollin was William Searcy, who owned the land adjacent to my Reeds on the Deep River. ("History of North Carolina Baptists" by George Washington Paschal, Vol. I, 1930.)  I have requested a copy from NARA of all of the documents in the pension application files of John Reed and Sarah Bolen and I'm hoping the information may shed more light on this whole relationship. The files may contain the marriage record/certificate of John and Sarah or some other reference to this David. (1450)  John Bolling lived near George Jefferson, Peter and Thomas Randolph, Jesse Hurt, Tyree Robertson, William Green who had a grandson named Bolling Green. (1728)

Military Service

Shubel or Shubal Bolin served in T. F. Anderson's Company of the Georgia Militia in the War of 1812. His pension was SC-16464. Shubel or Shubal Bolin married Elizabeth Smith 1818. (935) 
Husband



Husband
State of Wife
Wife’s Name

Marriage

Bolin, Shubel, d1878

GA
Hall, GA

Smith, Elizabeth
22 Mar 1818 (2158)

Movement
Shubol Bolin was in the 1820 Census of Hall County, Georgia, with males - - - 1 - - and females 1 - 1 - -. 

0—male under 10

0—male 10 to under 16

0—male between 16 and 18

1—male 16 to under 26

0—male 26 to under 45

0—male 45 and up i.e. b<1775

1—female under 10

0—female 10 to under 16

1—female 16 to under 26

0—female 26 to under 45

0—female 45 and up i.e. b<1775


A John Bolen was several entries away. (7) Shuble Boling was on the 1830 Census of Georgia on reel 30, page 98. (1038) A Shubel Boling, is on the: 
1850 Census of Hall County Georgia, 38th Dist, page 417:
Shubel Boling 

65 Farmer (i.e. bc1785, so couldn't have above 1790 land transactions)
E (only initial given)
54
R 


23
E 


16
Right age to be related to the Suble Bolin on the 1800 Montgomery County, North Carolina, census. (1553)
Shubel or Shubal Bolin died 1878 in Hall County, Georgia. (935) Shubel Bolin pension numbers were S.O.  22447 and S.C. 16464.  He married 1818 Elizabeth Smith. They resided 1851 in Hall County, Georgia. Shubel Bolin died 1878 in Hall County, Georgia. (967) A researcher has a Shubal (probably 753c) & William Bolin (probably Fh753) in Owen County, Indiana. (1306) There are two Shubal Bolin, the oldest one is 424h and the younger one is 753h. (1088)

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

John Fh429 (6T) 424c
-----------------

John b1762-d1817 or d>1830(Rin=46141)/wife Betsy ? bc1755-1784—His father was John #424 (Rin=54573)

ab
1 male (age 10-16) bc1784-1790--William b1791 (Rin=45819 has kids why no Fh?) or b 1801 Fh916 (Rin=54276 



probably DNA 3)

ab
2 male (age 10-16) bc1784-1790--Larkin b1784

ab
3 male (age 10-16) bc1784-1790—Robert b1787—probably Fh554 (Rin=51374)

ab
4 male (age 10-16) bc1784-1790--Shedrick b1784

ab
1 male (age 0-10) bc1790-1800—Harrison Bowling born 1790 was the son of John Bowling 




(Fh429,6T) (7) 


a
2 male (age 0-10) bc1790-1800—William—Perhaps Fh916 (Rin=54276)

a
1 female (age 0-10) bc1790-1800 


a
2 female (age 0-10) bc1790-1800 


a
3 female (age 0-10) bc1790-1800 


a
4 female (age 0-10) bc1790-1800 


a
1800 Census of Mongomery County, North Carolina.

b
Possible children per source #1858

c
1820 Census of Hall County, Georgia, with males 200001 and females 10010. (HeritageQuest.com)  

Birth, Parents, Lineage

John Boling Jr. was born after 1756 the son of John Boling and Mary Kenson(?). 
John Boling Jr. became a Baptist Minister at the Forks of the Little River Church in Montgomery County, North Carolina which is still in existence, but a new church was built about 1840 or so. The older church was founded by Shubel Sterns, a Shining Light Baptist Minister at the first church located in the Fork of the Little River. Two of the Bolling family named children Shubel. Was this in honor of this minister? (1308) Jesse Boling (424d) to John Boling (Fh429,424c)...land joins that of Shubal Boling (424i) on Bumpass Fork of Little River, Montgomery County, North Carolina. Dated 1784 but not filed until 1795 I think it said. (1527) John Bolin Sr. (Fh424), John Bolin Jr. (424c), and Jesse Bolin (424d) were on the 1800 Census of Montgomery County, North Carolina, all on page 468. (1303) John Bolin Jr. was in Mecklenburg County, North Carolina, in 1800 in household 470 with 24010-40010-00. (9)  The above 1800 Census record was in Salisbury District, Montgomery County, North Carolina. (1155) John Bolin Jr., John Bolin Sr., and Jesse Bolin were on the 1800 Census of Montgomery County, North Carolina, all on page 468. (1303)

John Boling Jr. had a large family as follows:


John Bolin Jr. (age 26-45) bc1755-1784/wife (age 26-45) bc1755-1784



1 male (age 10-16) bc1784-1790 



2 male (age 10-16) bc1784-1790 



3 male (age 10-16) bc1784-1790 



4 male (age 10-16) bc1784-1790 



1 male (age 0-10) bc1790-1800 



2 male (age 0-10) bc1790-1800



1 female (age 0-10) bc1790-1800 



2 female (age 0-10) bc1790-1800 



3 female (age 0-10) bc1790-1800 



4 female (age 0-10) bc1790-1800 

John Bolen was in the 1820 Census of Hall County, Georgia, with males 200001 and females 10001. A Shubol Bolin was several entries away. (7)(HeritageQuest,com) 

2—male under 10

0—male 10 to under 16

0—male between 16 and 18

0—male 16 to under 26

0—male 26 to under 45

1—male 45 and up i.e. b<1775

1—female under 10

0—female 10 to under 16

0—female 16 to under 26

0—female 26 to under 45

1—female 45 and up i.e. b<1775

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

John Fh432 (6A) 740x
-----------------

John 1734-d>1810 (Rin=44674)/mc1754 Jane Asbury (1735-1829)—(His father some think was Benjamin #090 which probably is not correct. Benjamin's son was John Fh397). Yet this John is probably DNA 6


Ann bc1755-d>1829/----- Callahan (bc1750)


Edmund 1760-1834 (Rin=46180)/m1817 Mary "Polly" Bryant--See Family Group #185



Benjamin  bc1765-d>1820 (Rin=51012)/mc1791 Elizabeth O’Neal (bc1767)--See Family Group #140



Joshua--had a son Benjamin



       Yes

                                      No V

Probaby not the following Joshua Fh459 because of DNA


Joshua  1751-1840/m1791 Nancy Ann Kesterson (bc1764-<1840)-- See Family Group #459


Two Descendants of this Joshua Fh459 tested into DNA Group 3.
Birth, Parents, Lineage

John Bowling. 


Lineage according to Source #1731:


Thomas, Fh665, had son


William, Fh741, had son



(Not correct per Source #1919)


William, Fh742, A, had son


George, Fh240, A, had son


Joseph, Fh450, A, had son


Benjamin, Fh090, A, had son



This link may be wrong His son was probably John Fh397


John, Fh432, had son


Joshua, Fh459, had son



Edmund, 459b, (1731) a descendant Kit 23413 tested in to DNA Group 3

Lineage according to Source #51:


William, Fh742, A, had son


George, Fh240, A, had son


Samuel, had a son


Joseph, Fh450, A, had son


Benjamin, Fh090, A, had son



This link may be wrong His son was probably John Fh397


John, Fh432, had son


Joshua, had son--also had a older brother Edmond Fh185


Benjamin, had a son


#51 grandfather


#51 father


James O. Bowling d1993, Source #51 (51)

Marriage and Children

John Bowling is thought to have married Jane Asburg. (51)(7) John Bowling had sons 
a.
Ann (likely) who married ----- Callahan. In 1829 a 74 year old Ann Callahan witnessed, along with Joshua Bowling 
(Fh459), the application for Revolution war pension of Edmund Bowling (Fh185). (51) 
b.
Edmund Bowling (Fh185) (51) 

c.
Benjamin Bowling (Fh140) was the son of John Bowling (Fh432), son of Benjamin (Fh090,A), son of  Joseph 
(Fh450,A), son of George (Fh240,A), son of William (Fh742,A), etc. (1445)

d.
Joshua Bowling (Fh459). (51)  

Movement

Two John Bowlings were on the 1787 census of Fauquier County, Virginia, one with 1 horse and the second had 3 slaves, 1 horse and 2 heads of cattle. (551) John (Fh432), Edmond (Fh185), Joshua (Fh459) and Benjamin (Fh140) Bowling were on the 1790 tax list of Fauquier County, Virginia. (23) John Bowling was on the 1789-1793 tax list of Fauquier County, Virginia. (23) John Boling (Fh432) was on the Fauquier County, Virginia, 1799 Personal Property Tax List B, page 44. (1414)(1654) John A. Bolling was a witness on an 1800 will of Francis Ash in Fauquier County, Virginia. (132) John Bowling was taxed 1 tithable 1800 in Fauquier County, Virginia. (1754) John Boling was on the 1810 U.S.  Census of Fauquier County, Virginia.  (349)

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

John Fh433 (6K) 746x
-----------------

John Henry bc1756-d1785 (Rin=39835)/m<1780 Ann Huston (Rin=39836) (1763-c1846)--His father was William #746 

ab
Martin b1780—Maybe Family Group #4651 but he is born later i.e. 1794->1860

ab
William “Smith” 1781-1848 (Rin=39835)(FAG=10592610)/Mary Clark (1789-1870)--See Family
 Group #642
A descendant Kit 12051 Tested into DNA Group 6 Rin=48859



A descendant Kit 296494 tested into DNA 6


ab
John Henry 1782/m       Samantha -----    John Henry Bowling was born 1782.  John Henry Bowling Jr. 



married Samantha -----. (1232)


ab
William b1782


ab
Simon b1783


a
Children per source #1232 (World Family Tree, by Family Tree Maker, Vol. 1 (1997)


b
Brothers Martin b1780, William b1782; John 1782, Simon ?; Smith.  Lived in Fairfax Co., 




VA.--Probably 6 children in 1782 as below indicates. 


1782 Virginia Heads of Families—Fairfax County, VA


PG. #
NAME


              WHITE
         BLACK




16
Bolling, William (Fh747,743b)
9

6




Bolling, Martha (wife of Fh230,6A)
4

15




Bowling, John (Fh433,6K)

8

0 (43)

John Henry Bowling married Ann -----. (1232) See their children born c1780-1785 in family group record. (1232)
Kit 12051 Tested into DNA Group 6

Fairfax County, Virginia, Poll Sheet 

Author: George Washington 

Date:
1765-07-16 


[16 July 1765] 


A Copy of the Poll taken at an Election of Burgesses for Fairfax County the 16th of July 1765—and Candidates Names. 

George Washington

John West

John Posey 

John Bowling

John Bowling 

Gerrard Bowling

Gerrard Bowling (Fh230,450f) 

(1918)

A John Bolling became security for the delivery of the Negro attached or pay the Debt in a case involving Alexander Bolling (maybe Fh020,6K) in a 1768 law suit in Fairfax County, Virginia. The plaintiff was Josias Miles XE "Miles:Josias" , represented by Benjamin Seaastian XE "Seaastian:Benjamin" . (1608) John Bolling (Fh433 or Fh434) and Sarah Thompson XE "Thompson:Sarah"  were plaintiffs against Thomas Price XE "Price:Thomas" , March 22, 1769, Fairfax County, Virginia. (1608) A John Boling and Thomas Graffort XE "Graffort:Thomas"  were on a Legislative Petition of Fairfax County, Town of Alexandria, Virginia, 1777. (1710) The Vestry Book of the Christ Church, Fairfax County, Virginia, 1779, showed a payment to John Bowling (Fh433 or Fh434) for two coffins. He must have been a carpenter. A William Bowling (UK) also recieved a payment in 1779. (1612) 

1782 Virginia Heads of Families—Fairfax County
PG. #
NAME




WHITE
BLACK


16
Bolling, William (Fh747,743b)

9
6


Bolling, Martha (wife of Fh230,6A)

4
15


Bowling, John (Fh433)


8
0 (43)

Death

John Henry Bowling died 1785 in Fairfax County, Virginia. (1232)

Ann Bowling is listed as head of household (7 people) 1782 (sic 1787?) and (5 people) 1785 in Fairfax County, Virginia. (43) Ann Bowling was on the 1787 tax list of Fairfax County, Virginia.  (551)

VIRGINIA 1787 – PROPERTY TAX ROLLS
Results read as follows:

Persons
 
White males – W. males over 16 – Blacks above – Horses – Cattle – Carriages



    above 21      under 21                   16

Fairfax County
Bowling, Ann

0
1
1
4
9
(Widow of John Fh433)

Bowling, Jonathan

0
0
0
0
0
(UK)

Bowling, John (land only)
0
0
0
0
0
Fh433, or 746c

Bowling, Samuel

0
6
9
11
12
Fh620,230d

Bowling, William

0
1
3
5
4
Fh747,743b or UK

Bowling, William

0
3
2
12
6
Fh747,743b or UK

Frederick Henry, Manager for Will Bowling

1789 On the road from the white oak at the Widow Tucker’s to the falls Church - the tithables which now are &. of James Daniel, John Dowdall, Hall Harding, James Ball, Wm. Donaldson, Andrew Donaldson, Wm. Piper, Thos. Taylor, Thos. Donaldson, Wm. Carlin, Moses Ball, Charles Little’s Quarter, Wm. Adams, Wm. Bladen, Wm. Merryday, Vincent Taylor, Edward Skidmore, John Thomas, Simon Pearson, John Pearson, Whiting’s Church Quarter, John Adams, John Darne, Robert Powell, John Wren, Thomas Grafford’s place, James Wren’s Quarter, George and Mrs. Minor’s, Ann Bowling (Widow of John Fh433), Wm. Thomas, Moses Harden, Mary Frizzel’s, Joseph Thompson, John Mills, Wm. Crump Junr., Joseph Powell’s plantation, Caleb Bladen, Henry Hussey, Benja. Dulany’s two Quarter’s, Jonathan Ward, Thomas Pearson’s, George Thrift, Charles Charters, James Robertson, Samuel Macatie, as last.

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

John Fh434 (6M) 183x
-----------------

John 1746-dc1834(Rin=61668)/m      Stasha or Anastasia ----- (perhaps Davis)—His father was Edmund #183(Rin=54618)

a
William 1781-d>1850(Rin=55092)/m1817 ?Lucy Pace or m1806 Nephana Hodges—See Family
 #893

a
John 1782-d>1834/m1806 Hanah Jackson

a
Smith 1781-1851/m1824 ?Ann Thomas or Mary Clark  (1789-1850)

a
Margaret d>1834


a
Sarah d>1834


a
Elizabeth d>1834/m1814 Matthew Parrish 


a
Rachel S. 1775-1840/m1810 Edward B. Popejoy (1775-1860)


a
Mary "Polly" bc1792-d>1834/m1812 Philip B. Price


a
Children mention in father's Jan 22, 1834 will, probated Aug 13, 1834, Pittsylvania County, VA.


 

per Source #1244
Birth, Parents, Lineage

John Bolin was born 1746, Overwharon Parish, Stafford County, Virginia.  He was the son of Edmund and Mary (Sudduth) Bolling. (7) 

Marriage
John Bolling married Stasha ------. (1244) A John Bolling (Fh433 or Fh434) became security for the delivery of the Negro attached or pay the Debt in a case involving Alexander Bolling (Fh020,6K) in a 1768 law suit in Fairfax County, Virginia. The plaintiff was Josias Miles, represented by Benjamin Seaastian. (1608) John Bolling (Fh433 or Fh434) and Sarah Thompson were plaintiffs against Thomas Price, March 22, 1769, Fairfax County, Virginia. (1608) 
Children
Apparently John’s children were:

a.
Rachel S. 1785-1840/m1810 Edward B. Popejoy (1775-1860) (1244) John and Stasha Bolling had a daughter Rachel 
Bolling who married Edward Popejoy 1810 in Pittsylvania, Virginia. My information comes from the book "Popejoy, Past 
and Present" by Charles "Jack" Popejoy. (1244) Rachel was born ca 1785 in Virginia, died about 1840 in Bedford County, 
Tennessee (courthouse and all records destroyed in three fires), married Edward B. Popejoy on March 13, 1810 in Pittsylvania 
County, Virginia. Edward Popejoy was born ca 1777 in Fairfax County, Virginia, died after 1860 in Jackson County, Illinois. 
(1244) Edward Popejoy was born 1776 in Fairfax County, Virginia. He married Rachel Bowling. Edward Popejoy lived in 
Bedford County, Tennessee until 1834 when he moved to Illinois. He and his wife are buried at Ava, Jackson County, Illinois. 
(1414) Rachel Bowling Popejoy is FAG=121248468, Birth: 1775, Virginia, USA, Death: 1840, Bedford, Bedford County, 
Tennessee, USA. Burial Unknown.
b.
John bc1786-d>1834*/m1806 Hanah Jackson. (1244) John Bowling (434b) married 1806 Pittsylvania County, Virginia, 
Hannah Jackson. (566)

c.
Margaret d>1834* (1244) This might be her-- Charlotte (Bolin) McDaniel was the daughter of John Bolin. In the Christian 
County, Kentucky deed book, September 1811 is the following information: James McDaniel and his wife Charlotte, of 
Christian County, Kentucky, give power of attorney to James D. Davis of the same county, re estate land as heir to John Bolin, 
deceased who last lived in the state of Virginia, County of Stafford. In the registration of deed she is called Magret. (1290)

d.
Sarah d>1834* (1244)

e.
Mary "Polly" bc1792-d>1834*/m1812 Philip B. Price (1244)

f.
Elizabeth bc1794-d>1834*/m1814 Matthew Parrish (d<  

g.
William bc1797-d>1850(Rin=55092)/m1817 Lucy Pace or m1806 Nephana Hodges. (1244)—See Family #893

h.
Smith bc1804-1851/m1824 Ann Thomas or Mary Clark  (1789-1850). (1244)

* Children mention in father's Jan 22, 1834 will, probated Aug 13, 1834, Pittsylvania County, VA.(1244)

Movement
 A John Boling and Thomas Graffort were on a Legislative Petition of Fairfax County, Town of Alexandria, Virginia, 1777. (1710) The Vestry Book of the Christ Church, Fairfax County, Virginia, 1779, showed a payment to John Bowling (Fh433 or Fh434) for two coffins. John Bowling must have been a carpenter. A William Bowling (UK) also recieved a payment in 1779 for an apprentice fee. (1612) John and Stasha (wife) Bolling were of Fairfax County, Virginia around 1780. (1244) This information comes from the book "Popejoy, Past and Present" by Charles "Jack" Popejoy. Item:  1797 to Cathern Mathews 150 acres for 50 lbs. (English money) from John Bowling and wife Stasha. I don't know how Jack made the conclusion that this particular John and Stasha Bowling were Rachel's parents. (1244) 
Death
"Popejoy, Past and Present" by Charles "Jack" Popejoy, on page 51 lists the will of John Bowling, County, Virginia, of 18 Aug 1834, where it lists Rachel  Popejoy as being one of the heirs. But the author Jack Popejoy doesn't say if the will mentions a wife. I have a copy of both books Jack Popejoy has written on the Popejoy families. (1244) I've found the will abstraction of John Bolling/Bowling. (Fh434,6M) Will written Jan 22, 1834, probated Aug 13, 1834, Pittsylvania County, Virginia. Sons: William (Fh893), John, Smith.  Dau: Margaret, Sarah, Elizabeth Parrish, Rachel Popejoy, Mary Price.  Granddaughter: Mary Price.  Exec: James Riddle, James A. Giles. Wit: James A. Parrish, William L. Shelton, Larkin Wright. (1244)
Another source shows that a Smith Bowling (1781-1851) had these brothers William born 1782; John born 1782, Simon ?; Martin born 1780. Lived in Fairfax County, Virginia. This Smith Bowling married Mary Clark  (1789-1850). This might be my ancestor! (1709) I'm also interested in Smith Bowling.... according to the census, he never left the area (Pittsylvania VA) and I can't find any Thomas' in that vicinity.(1414)
Notice the names Larkin Wright and Elizabeth Parrish, John Bolin's daughter. 

 

Processioner's  Land Description - Pittsylvania County, VA, 1833-1834

Frederick Oberthier & Moses Hubbard 1833/1834
On the waters of  Banister River beginning at a corner post oak bet John Bolin, Sen, and Philip  Price to cor P. O. between Nathan Hutcherson and Philip Price thence to  Banister River thence down Banister River to Allen Chandler's line thence  between Bolin & Chandler to corner (?) oak bet same and James Giles to  cor black gum bet John Bolin, Elizabeth Parrish & Jno Adkins to cor  pointers bet Stephen Price & Jno Bolin on the road in Phil Prices  line. (1414)

(Foregoing description related to John Bolin, Sen.  Present were  Jno Bolin, Sen and John Bolin, Jr.  Done Dec., 9,  1833.)

Beginning at cor pointers between Elizabeth Parrish & Jas  Giles in Wm. A. Lilly's line to cor white O. bet same in Jno Bolin's line to  a cor stone bet Elizabeth Parrish and Lilly to cor R. O. bet Jas Riddle and  Elizabeth Parrish to cor ash on little Bearskin Creek bet same to cor red oak  bet same to cor percimmon on a branch bet same, thence up branch bet same to  Saml Tompkins' line to cor white (oak?) bet Saml Tompkins and Jas Riddle  on Hickeys road. (1414)

(Foregoing description related to James Giles.   Present were James Giles and James Riddle.  Done Dec. 10,  1833.)

Beginning at corner pointers bet John Bolin and Allen Chandler to  cor percimmon bet A. Chandler and Clem. Pigg to stone bet same to cor stone  near Irish road bet same thence to a corner chinqupin tree on Banister  river beginning in Hutcherson's thence up Banister River to cor walnut tree  bet Nathan Hutcherson and Philip Price to cor P. O. bet Ste Price and  Larkin Wright near the Mill road to cor pointers on a branch Stephen Myers  and Larkin Wright thence across Hickeys road to cor bet Stephen Myers,  Stephen Price & Thomas Parrish thence to Banister river. (1414)

(Foregoing  description related to Clement Pigg, Allen Chandler and  Nathan Hutcherson.  People present were Clem. Pigg, Philip Price and  Larkin Wright. Done Dec. 10, 1833.)

Beginning at a cor post oak bet  Williamson W. Price and Stephen Myers to cor R. O. bet Fountain Price and W.  W. Price near a branch to cor pointers bet Jno Adkins and Ste Myers on a  branch to a cor hickory bet Ste Myers and Larkin Wright to cor sourwood bet  same near a branch to cor R. O. Jno Adkins, Larkin Wright and John Bolin on  the Mill road to cor post oak bet Jno Adkins & Elizabeth Parrish to cor  white oak bet same to cor R. O. bet Saml Tompkins and Jno Adkins to cor  Spanish oak bet Jno Adkins & Polly Adkins to cor pointers bet Jno Adkins  and Saml Tompkins in Polly Adkins' line to cor stone bet Jno Adkins and Polly  Adkins, to cor R. O. bet Jno Adkins and Thomas Parrish.(1414)

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

John Fh441 (6K) 627x 
-----------------

John O. b>1775-1831-wp1831 (Rin=53967) /1/w Catherine Daugherty--His father was Sims #627--He had an uncle George Boling (Fh237,746b)


John O. b1791-1794-wp1831/m1818 Nancy Wyatt—See Fh441 (In 1822 in Gallatin County, KY)  


Nancy b1792/m<1822 William Heath (In 1822  in Jessamine County, KY)


Turner b1794-1797-d<1850/m1821 Ann Lingfelter (bc1796-d>1850) —See Family Group #7381

Mariah bc1800-d<1828/m1822 Davis Latty


Richard 1801-1885/m1828 Sarah Brown d>1880—See Family Group  #4689

George W. 1804-1857/m1832 Catherine Minish (1812-1894)-Had son Turner (1843-1906)
Sims b1740-<1748-d>1830 (Rin=39829)/ Ann ?Newton (d>1820-<1830)--His father was William #746


John O. b>1775-wp1831/1/w mc1791 Catherine Daugherty,2/w m1818 Nancy Wyatt—See Family #441

Above John Fh441 father is an earlier John 
Below John Fh441 father is William Fh763 








Birth, Parents, Lineage

John O. Boling (Fh441,627c) was a child of Sims Boling (Fh627). (1443) John O. Bolin was born between 1791 and 1794. (2169)(TB—His 1820 Census does not support that late of date)
Marriage and Children

John O. Boling married Nancy Wyatt XE "Wyatt:Nancy" , 1818 in Henry County, Kentucky. (835)(853)(1013)(1155) Nancy Wyatt was the daughter of John Wyatt XE "Wyatt:John" .  Bondsman was Jesse Wyatt XE "Wyatt:Jesse" . (853)(1013) I think John O. Boling was married before he married Nancy Wyatt. I believe John O. Boling’s (Fh441,627c) sons were:

a.
George W. Boling, who disappeared about 1847, before the 1850 census. George W. Boling did marry Katherine Minish XE "Minish:Katherine" . 
You should read her father's will. Richard Minish XE "Minish:Richard"  dated about 1843. He didn't like George W. Boling and I guess George 
proved him right, as he took a walk. I always heard that we had a G-father that had left and never came back. (1443) George 
W. Boling was on the 1832 tax list of Gallatin County, Kentucky. (1800) I think that my George W. was the son of John O. 
and if you read the census and tax records really carefully there is no John A, as some list him. The hand writing doesn't 
indicate that there two John's O.& A. (1443) George W. Bowling was born 1804 in Carrollton (then called Port William, 
about 15 families lived there in 1811), Gallatin County, Kentucky (area now Carroll County beginning in 1838). George W. 
Bowling lived there all his life and died there in 1857. His widow was still alive in 1883. They had a son Turner J. Bowling. 
(882) They had a son William M. Bowling born about 1840, Carroll County, Kentucky and died 1904. (1443) Catherine 
Minish Bowling is buried there in Carrollton, and I just found out that George W. Bowling, her estranged husband, might be 
buried there also. They (IOOF Cemetery, FAG = 65126738 ) can't prove it they don't know if a body is in the plot or 
not. (1443) There is no proof that George W. lived in Carroll County, Kentucky, after he left the family after his and 
Catherine's last son, Turner, was born in 1847. He doesn't show up on the 1850 census. When I was at the IOOF Cemetery the 
last time, the lady on duty found a record that had a grave site for George W., but they didn't know if a body had been buried 
there or not. There was no stone or record of him ever been buried there. The grave site had been bought at the same time 
Catherine had died in 1894 (FAG = 65124244) by William M. Bowling one of their sons, and my g-grandfather. My 
Grandmother had been raised by her grandmother Catherine.  I've also read the tax list for Carroll Co., KY and George W. 
never showed up on them after he left Catherine. (1443)

b.
Richard Boling was on the 1829 and 1831 tax lists of Gallatin County, Kentucky. (1800) Richard, who went to Rush 
County, Indiana. (1443) 

This may not be him in the 1880 Census as his father was probably not born in Indiana. Also everyone else in Rush 
County, 


Indiana, seems to be in Family Group H:

 
Richard BOWLING
Self ,  
M ,  Male 
80
KY
Farmer

 
Sarah BOWLING

Wife ,  
M ,  Female 
74
IN
Keeps House
OH ,  OH 


Source Information: Census Place, Orange, Rush, Indiana

c.
Turner Bowling (Fh7381). Turner Boling was on the 1822, 1825, 1826, 1828, 1830 and 1832 tax lists of Gallatin 
County, 
Kentucky. (1800) (1443)

d.
Maria Boling. John O. Boling had a daughter Maria Boling who married 1822, Gallatin County, Kentucky, Davis Latty XE "Latty:Davis" . 
(256)(1343) If they weren't his sons then I don't know who's sons they were, and I know they were brothers. I think that these 
children weren't mentioned in Barbara's (Widow of George Bowling, 746b) will, is because she only mentioned the "infant" 
children of John O's....meaning that the others were grown and on their own by then. That's all I can come up with. (1443)

Movement

John O. Boling signed a bond 13 May 1816, Gallatin County, Kentucky, for the estate of George Boling (746b), deceased. (256)(1343)  
John O. Bolin is on the 1820 Census of Port Williams (now Carollton) Gallatin County, Kentucky with males 020210 and females 10201. (7)(HeritageQuest.com)  


0—male under 10


2—male 10 to under 16 (b1804-1810, probably William and Samuel)


0—male between 16 and 18


2—male 16 to under 26 (b1794-1804, probably Turner and/or Richard and/or George)

1—male 26 to under 45 (b1775-1794, probably John O. born early in that period since several males in his household were born 1794-1804 and several born 1804-1810)or they were his siblings, all with a father named William.  

0—male 45 and up


1—female under 10


0—female 10 to under 16


2—female 16 to under 26


0—female 26 to under 45


1—female 45 and up


John O. Bolin is on the 1820 Census of Port Williams (now Carollton) Gallatin County, Kentucky with males 020210 and females 10201. (7)(HeritageQuest.com) Others listed on that Census were Simms Bolin (Fh627), John S. Bolen and William  Bolin. (1155) 
John Bowling is on the 1820 Census of Gallatin County, Kentucky with males 

3 0 0 0 1 0 and females 1 0 0 1 0. (1155 and Ancestry.com)

3—male under 10

0—male 10 to under 16

0—male between 16 and 18

0—male 16 to under 26

1—male 26 to under 45 (b1775-1794)

0—male 45 and up

1—female under 10

0—female 10 to under 16

0—female 16 to under 26

1—female 26 to under 45 (b1775-1794)

0—female 45 and up


John O. Boling was on the 1818, 1819, 1820, 1821, 1823, 1825, 1826, 1828 and 1829 tax lists of Gallatin County, Kentucky. (1800) John had a will dated 26 Oct 1820 mentioning wife Nancy and (un-named) children, will proved 1831 in Gallatin County, Kentucky. (1155) John Bowling had a will 1831, Book C, page 544, Gallatin County, Kentucky. (670) 
John O. Bolin was bondsman on 10 Sep 1821 for the marriage of Mrs. Lucy Bowling, widow of William, to Robert Walker in Jessamine, Kentucky, United States. (2169)

John O. Bolin on 20 Jul 1822 sold land to Dudley Baker of Jessamine County, Kentucky. (2169) John O. Bolin is identified as among "heirs and representatives of William Boling deceased." Deed was written in Gallatin County and then recorded in Jessamine County. (2169) This per Jessamine County, Kentucky, Deed Book G: 262-3, John O. Boling and Nancy, his wife, Richard Boling and Mariah Boling to Dudley Baker; FHL microfilm 76-57-27. (2169)

John Bolin was a bondsman on 13 Jun 1825 for James M. Lester, guardian of Carter Lester and William Lester in Gallatin, Kentucky, United States. (2169)    

John O. Bowling is on the 1830 Census of Gallatin County, Kentucky with males 0 1 0 1 1 1 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 and females 1 1 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0. (Ancestry.com) John O. Bowling's father Simms Bolin (Fh627) is probably the male age 80-90 (i.e. b1740-1750) in the household of John O. Bowling on the 1830 Census of Gallatin Co., Ky. (7) 
John C. Boling (probably John O.) was named executor in the 1824 will of Barbara Boling of Gallatin County, Kentucky, widow of George Bowling (746b)). Reuben Bolin (Fh4686) was a witness to the will. The estate was given to the infant children of John A. (sic) Boling, the nephew of my late husband. The children were: Marriah Boling, William Boling, Samuel Boling, and Eliza Boling. (1155) George Bowling (746b) died in what is now Carroll County, Kentucky, his wife Barbara left a will leaving the estate to her late husband’s nephew’s infant children. (1443) Her Will was written 13 June 1824, probated July term of court 1824, Will Book C, Page 27, Gallatin County, Kentucky. 

John A. Bolin’s wife was Nancy. (1155)—This could be the same person as John O. (Fh441). (1155) 
+++++++++++++++++++++++++

John A. Fh4415 (6K)
-----------------

Probably not the same as Fh441 above.
John A. Bolin’s wife was Nancy. (1155)—This could be the same person as John O. (Fh441). (1155) 

1155.
Informant Harley Tucker Bowling (He died in 2014),
Gallatin,KY-created 1799 from Franklin, Shelby


6K
Simms/Sims/Syms (Fh627,746x) t1818-t1819,t1820(Census),r1820,t1823,t1824,r1824,t1825,t1826


6K

John O. b1794 (Fh441,627c or 763a) r1816,t1819-t1821,r1820 (Census, age 26)-






t1825,r1830,w1820,t1826-t1829,wp1831


6K

Nancy (wife of John O. Fh441, she Rin=56849, nw1820,t1831,m1832 (William Price)


6K

Nancy (widow of John Fh441, she Rin=56851) m1845 (Ira Castle)
Sims b1740-<1748-d>1830 (Rin=39829)/ Ann ?Newton (d>1820-<1830)--His father was William #746


John O. b>1775-wp1831/1/w mc1791 Catherine Daugherty,2/w m1818 Nancy Wyatt—See Family #441

John A. Bolin m1818 Nancy Wyatt


*a
Marriah—“infant” in 1824


*a
William b1804-1810—“infant” in 1824


*a
Samuel b1804-1810—“infant” in 1824


*a
Eliza—“infant” in 1824


*
Mentioned in a will dated 1824 as infants (less than 21 years of age).


a
Barbara Boling mentions her late husband George Boling (Fh237) in her Will written 13 June 1824, probated July 


term of court 1824, Will Book C, Page 27, Gallatin County, Kentucky. John C. Boling was named executor, and 


Reuben Bolin (Fh4686) was a witness. The estate was given to the infant children of John A. Boling (Fh441,627c), 


the nephew of my late husband. The children were: Marriah Boling, William Boling, Samuel Boling, and Eliza 


Boling. (1155)






Wife Nancy and (un-named) children mentioned in 1820 will of John O., proved 1831 in Gallatin County, Kentucky. A Nancy Bowling married 1845 Ira Castle in Gallatin County, Kentucky. A Nancy Bowling married 1832 William Price in Gallatin County, Kentucky.
From the Place Index
Gallatin,KY-created 1799 from Franklin, Shelby


6K
Simms/Sims/Syms (Fh627,746x) t1818-t1819,t1820(Census),r1820,t1823,t1824,r1824,t1825,t1826


6K

Alexander (Fh026,627b) t1823,r1824


6K

Syms Jr, (627d) t1821,t1823,t1825,t1828


6K

Thomas (Fh673,627x) r1830(Census age 40-50),t1830,-See later Carroll County entry


6K

William (Fh781,627a) t1820,r1820(Census,Age 45+)


6K

John O. b1794 (Fh441,627c or 763a) r1816,t1819-t1821,r1820 (Census, age 26)-






t1825,r1830,w1820,t1826-t1829,wp1831


6K

Nancy (wife of John O. Fh441, she Rin=56849, nw1820,t1831,m1832 (William Price)

6K

Nancy (widow of John Fh441, she Rin=56851) m1845 (Ira Castle) 


6K


Maria (441a) m1822 (Davis Latty)


6K


Richard (441c) m1828 (Sarah Brown),t1829,r1830(Census age 30-40),t1831


6K


Turner (Fh7381,441d) m1821 (Ann Lingfelter),t1822-t1832,r1830(Census Age 30-40)


6K


Elizabeth (UK,could be 441h) m1836 (David Jacobs)


6K


George W. (441b,b1804) m1832 (Catherine Minish),t1832--See Carroll County entry


6K
George (Fh237,746b, had wife Barbara & nephew John Bowling) r1805-06,l1809,r1810(Census 45+),t1801-



t1812,l1815,d1816—Part that is Carroll, KY today


6K
Barbara (wife of George Fh237,746e) t1820,t1822,t1823,w1824,d1824,wp1824


6K
Reuben (Fh4686) ww1824 (of Barbara Boling wife of George Fh237,746e)

Children of John A.
a.
Marriah Boling 
b.
William Boling 
c.
Samuel Boling 
d.
Eliza Boling
Infant children of John A. Boling (Fh4415), the nephew of my late husband George Boling (Fh237,746e). (1155)
From the Place Index
Carroll,KY-created 1838 from Gallatin, Henry and Trimble


6K
Amy (maybe widow of Thomas Fh673 below) r1850(Census,age 58 KY)



6K
Ann (widow of Turner Fh7381) r1850(Census,age54)


6K
Barbara (Widow of George Fh237,009b) d>1838


6K
Catharine (bc1813, widow of George 441b) r1880 (Census, with son W.M. Bowling)


6K
Daniel (maybe 673a, bc1813,maybe a sister Paulina) r1880 (Census, wife Susan)


6K
George (Fh237,746b) r1805—part that was Gallatin prior


6K
George W. (441b,b1804) r1840(Census 8 in household, 4 males, 4 females),d1857—part that was 



Gallatin prior



John (b1810-1820,could be 781e or 26e) r1840(Census age  20-30)


3M3
Joel (353v) r1888


6K
Thomas (Fh673 son of Sims Fh627) r1840(Census,age 60-70)—part that was Gallatin prior


6K
Turner (Fh7381,441c) r1840(Census age 40-50) ,d<1850—part that was Gallatin prior


6K
William S. (maybe 673c,1821KY-1903MO) m1849 (1/w Mary F. Irwin or Mary Emory d1851-2)-



-later Knox, MO.


Barbara Boling mentions her late husband George Boling (Fh237,746e) in her Will written 13 June 1824, probated July term of court 1824, Will Book C, Page 27, Gallatin County, Kentucky. John C. Boling was named executor, and Reuben Bolin (Fh4686) was a witness. The estate was given to the infant children of John A. Boling (Fh4415), the nephew of my late husband. The children were: Marriah Boling, William Boling, Samuel Boling, and Eliza Boling. (1155)

John A. Bolin’s wife was Nancy. (1155)—This could be the same person as John O. (Fh441). (1155) 

John A. Boling (probably John O.) was mentioned in a 1824 will. Barbara Boling mentions her late husband George Boling (746b) in her Will written 13 June 1824, probated July term of court 1824, Will Book C, Page 27, Gallatin County, Kentucky. 

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

John Fh4474 (6B) 4670a
-----------------

John J. Boley (Rin=58664) c1764-1830/m1791 Rebecca Rector (1791-1860)—His father was Pressley #4670


Presley (61371) bc1799


Charlotte bc1801


Harriet A, b1803


Sarah Anne b1804


Bluford (Rin=61372) b1806


Pitman (Rin=61373) b1807


John W. (Rin=61374) b1809


Mary Jane b1811

These are probably not additional wives

2/w m1801 Lydia Lawler


3/w m1804 Mary

John Bowling was in the 1810 Census of Campbell County, Virginia. (349)

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

John UK (6) UK

--------------

John Bowling was in the 1810 Census of Falmouth, Stafford County, Virginia with Males 00010 and females 30010. (349)(Ancestry.com)  As:
1810 Census of Falmouth, Stafford County, Virginia with 


1 male 26-45, 


1 female 26-45 and 


3 females under 10.  

Also nearby in the 1810 Census of Falmouth, Stafford County, Virginia were: 


Benjamin Bowling (Fh135,6M18) —Head of Family String M18


William 

(Fh770,6N2) 


Spencer 

(Fh647,001a), Spencer b1744--This could be Fh647


John 

(UK b1765-1784, perhaps 090c, 6A) 

John 

1734-d<1802--See Family Group #397

Charles Bowling (Fh1563, 397b, 6N2). (7)  
Charles                Fh1563            6N2 1764-1849/m1791 Sarah McKenney (1774-1850)--His father was John #397--Some have his father as John Fh367, but that is not so. 

John Bowling was in the 1820 Census of Stafford County, Virginia, with males 300010 and females 12110. 

On the same Census were: 

----- Thomas Bowling with males 300110 and females 01201. (can't read first name)

Charles Bowling with males 220101 and females 11201. (Fh1563,6N2),

William Bowling with males 121001 and females 21101. (6N2),

(348)(Ancestry.com) 

Note Benjamin Fh135,6M18 isn’t on the 1820 Census as he went to Madison County, Kentucky about 1815.(7)

John Boling was in the 1830 Census of Stafford County, Virginia, with males 0021101000000 and females 0010100100000. (Ancestry.com)

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

John UK (6T) UK

---------------

John Bowlin (born b1775-b1794-d>1820) was on the 1820 Census of Lincoln County, Tennessee, page 46, with 1 male 26-45, 2 males under 10, 1 female 26-45, and 1 female under 10. (7)(1088)(1545)

1820 Lincoln County, Tennessee census
John Bowlen
1
male 36-45 (John Bowlen)
1
female 26-45 (wife)

1
male under (b1810-1820)
1
male under (b1810-1820)
1
female under 10 (b1810-1820)
(1553) 

Also on that 1820 Census was Willaby Bowlen (Fh930,6T,Rin=54280,FAG=32739422) and Robert Bowlen (Fh550,6T,Rin=29649, FAG=54861251). (1088) 

Also on that same 1820 Lincoln County, Tennessee, Census was Willoby (Fh930,T) and Robert (Fh550,T)(1553)


John Bowling and Samuel Bowling (Fh624,6Z)(b1778, VA/NC) may be the Brother of Willoughby (Fh930,T)(1775-1849), Daniel (b1784/6), Henry (b1784) and Robert (Fh550,T). Their Father may have been Archibald (830a). (1600) 

From the Place Index
Lincoln,TN-created 1809 from Bedford


6T
John (UK,b1775-1794) r1820(Census) —Bibb Co., AL in 1830


6T
Robert (Fh550 b1782-d1851 Rin=29649, FAG=54861251, or perhaps Fh554) r1820(Census)


6T
Willoughby (Fh930, Rin=54280,FAG=32739422, 002d) r1805,r1820(Census)


2P
Alexander (005b,Fh025) r1810



David (UK, bc1827) r1848



Elijah (Fh223,bc 1794 in NC) r1830,r1850



James (UK, bc1827) r1848



J. Jeremiah (UK) b1818



Thomas Green (223a) m1849 (Luvenia Myers)


6M30
William (Fh752,374c) r1811,d1833 (Rin=55018)

A John Bowling (UK) and Samuel Bowling (Fh624,6Z) are found in 1809 in Spartanburg District of South Carolina buying land and appear near each other in the 1810 US and Spartanburg District Census.  Both men do not appear in the 1820 Spartanburg District Census. 

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

Joseph Fh450 (6A) 240x
-----------------

Joseph 1688-1753 (Rin=53942, KH6N-6C5)/mc1703 Mary “Polly” Slaughter alive 1744—

His father was George #240 (Rin=62389).--See Fh007 for possible siblings. 
Descendants kit 95951, kit 116187, kit 12051 tested into DNA 6

Descendants kit 96824, kit 490162, kit 591993 tested into DNA 6



Descendant Kit 25816 tested into DNA 6




Descendant Kit 520118 tested into DNA 6

Thomas bc1700-d>1769 (Rin=57934)/m     ----- -----Head of String 6M1—See Family #669

His father was Joseph Fh450 or  Robert #516 (More Likely)


Descendant Kit 25816 tested into DNA 6(M1)



Descendant Kit 520118 tested into DNA 6(M1)

a
Benjamin 1704-1767 (Rin=18570)/m1725 Mary Lathran or Latham d1735–See Family #090




Descendant kit 95951, kit 116187 tested into DNA 6




Descendant kit 96824 tested into DNA 6-
An exact 25/25 match to kits 1286(M18) and 2282(K)


a
Honor b1706/m1726/7 Joseph Dunman 


a
Bethridge b1708/m1728 Daniel Hammit


a
Thomas 1710 (Rin=44916)/m1729 Rachel Colclough–See Family #680


a
Samuel 1712/m1731 Elizabeth Oxford–See Family #590



William 1717-1756/m<1748 Elizabeth Colclough 1723-d>1757—See Family Group #746




A descendant kit 2282(K) tested into DNA 6-
An exact 25/25 match to kits 1286(M18) and 96824(A)

a
Children per Source #1485 (Informant Henry Rogge)
Perhaps a Younger Joseph 516d, now Fh4501—See him below 
Maybe two Josephs have been combined. i.e. Fh450 and Fh4501

Birth, Parents, Lineage

Joseph Bowling (Fh450) was born about 1688 in Virginia. (1485) Joseph Bowling was the son of George Bowling (Fh240). (51)(57) Joseph Bowling (Fh450,6A) was born about 1680 was the son of George Bowling (Fh240,6A) (1731) Joseph Bowling (Fh450,6A) was born about 1688 in Gloucester County, Virginia, the son of George Bowling (Fh240,6A) (1924) Joseph Bowling, like his father George, was a minister. (51)

Line of Descent from: 


Simon 
Fh629 BOWLING-
45539 b. 1620


William 
Fh742 BOWLING-
65495 b.1652


George 
Fh240 BOWLING-
62389 b.1670


Joseph 
Fh450 BOWLING-
53942 b.1688

Lineage according to Source #1731 (Informant Chester Bowling):


Thomas, Fh665, had son


William, Fh741, had son



(Not correct per Source #1919)


William, Fh742, A, had son


George, Fh240, A, had son


Joseph, Fh450, A, had son


Benjamin, Fh090, A, had son


John, Fh432, A, had son


Joshua, Fh459, A, had son



Edmund, 459b, A (1731) 

Lineage according to Source #1732 (Informant Henry Rogge):


Thomas, Fh665, had son


William, Fh741, had son



(Not correct per Source #1919)


William, Fh742, A, had son


George, Fh240, A, had son


Joseph, Fh450, A, had son


Benjamin, Fh090, A, had son


Benjamin, Fh100, A, had son


Jarrett, Fh320, A, had son



Lindsay, 320j, A (1732) 

Lineage according to Source #363 (“First Families of America, The Compendium of American Genealogy” by Frederick A. Virkus, Vol. 7 (1942) page 182:

William Bowling, Fh742, patented 1887 (sic probably 887) acres in Abingdon Parish, Gloucester 

Co. VA,1668, had son


George, Fh240, d 1736 of Prince William County, Virginia, had son


Joseph, Fh450, dc1753 of Fairfax County, Virginia who married Pellataire ------ had son


Gerrard, Fh230 (1730-1780) mc1752 Martha Moxley , had son


Samuel, Fh620 d1798 mc1785 Mariam Plummer or Mary Ann, had son


Robert, Fh560 (1792-1845) m1816 Jane Christie Neal, lived Monroe County, Mo. had son

Samuel 560a (1817-1892) m1852 Nancy Jane Brooks (1832-1930) farmer near Paris, Mo.(363) 

Lineage according to Source #57:


William, Fh742, A, (887 acres in Gloucester Co. VA, 1668), had son


George, Fh240, A, had son


Joseph, Fh450, A, had son


Gerard Fh230, A, had son


Samuel Fh620, A, had son


Robert, Fh560, A, had daughter



Sarah 560g, m James M. Smith (57) 

Lineage according to Source #363:


William, Fh742, (887 acres in Gloucester Co. VA, 1668), had son


George, Fh240, had son


Joseph, Fh450, had son


Gerrard, Fh230, had son


Samuel, Fh620, had son


Robert, Fh560, had son

Samuel 560a (363) 

Marriage and Children

Joseph Bowling (Fh450,6A) married Mary -----. (1731)
a.
Benjamin 1704-1767 (Rin=18570)/m1725 Mary Lathran or Latham d1735–See Family #090. Benjamin Bowling (Fh090) of 
Stafford County, Virginia, in time and place seems to be the only Benjamin who could have been a son of our forebear Joseph 
(Fh450). (51)(957) That Joseph Bowling (Fh450) is the father of Benjamin Bowling (Fh090) is an assumption, but an 
assumption that is based on a preponderance of the information. Benjamin Bowling of Stafford County, Virginia, in time and 
place is the only Benjamin who could have been the son of Joseph. When James O. Bowling, Box 252, Ash Grove, Missouri 
65604, (Source #51, he died in 1993) asked his grandfather of the connection between Benjamin (Fh090), Joseph (Fh450) 
and George (Fh240), the grandfather said there was a Samuel (Fh590) there too. In the St Paul's Parish of that period 
we find a Samuel who married Elizabeth Oxford (Fh590). (51)

b.
Honor b1706/m1726/7 Joseph Dunman 

c.
Bethridge b1708/m1728 Daniel Hammit

d.
Thomas 1710 (Rin=44916)/m1729 Rachel Colclough–See Family #680--His father was Joseph Fh450 (Most likely) or Robert 

#516

e.
Samuel 1712/m1731 Elizabeth Oxford–See Family #590--His father was probably Joseph #450 or Robert #516

f.
William 1717-1756/m<1748 Elizabeth Colclough 1723-d>1757—See Family Group #746

g.
Robert Boling, under 21 years of age, was named in a March 31, 1746, will of his cousin Robert Bowling (Fh535) of 
Truro Parish, Fairfax County, Virginia. (133)(357)(466)  Robert Bowling was in the Fairfax County, Virginia, Militia in 
the French-Indian War.  He was paid by an Act of Assembly for the state of Virginia, 1756. (7) Robert Bowling and William 
Bowling were each paid, March 1756, 2 pounds, 12 shillings, in service to fight French and Indians, from Fairfax County, 
Virginia. (1224) Hening’s Statutes Vol. 7, pages 217 and 218 show that William and Robert Bowling of Fairfax County, 
Virginia, were in the militia of 1758. (176)(1667)(1839) During the French and Indian War, the House of Burgesses passed 
an act for the defense of the frontier on September 14, 1758. Soldiers mentioned in the schedule were attached to the act. 
Robert Bowling and William Bowling both of Fairfax County, Virginia, were paid 2.12.0 each. (544) Robert Bowling and 
William Bowling were both Sergeants, Sept 1758, Colonial Militia, Fairfax County, Virginia, (Ancestry.com) 

See family Group sheet for other children. (1485)

Movement

Joseph Bowling is mentioned in the following estate. The estate of Simon Bowling (Fh630,516x) was appraised by order of the Court dated March 10, 1735. Valued at L 16.11.2 by Edward Humston, Thomas Bunbury and William Bunbury. At Court held for Stafford County, Virginia on 13 April 1736 the inventory was admitted to record. On the same day, Robert Bowling (Fh535), Administrator of Simon Bowling exhibited this account. Subtractions: Funeral charges for him (Simon) and his wife. Also nursing his child four months. Others mentioned in the statements were: Nicholas Dunn, Mr. Carter, Joseph King, Peter Lehue, William Bruton, Robert Massey, Joseph Bowling, Richard Foote, Scott, Jones Parker, Rachel Colclufe (could this be Colclough), Matthew Boulling, Henry Washington, Richard Thomas, Philip Alexander, John Buchanan. At Court held for Stafford County, Virginia, 12th April 1737 Account admitted to record. (1610) Joseph Bowling was in Prince George and Prince William Counties, Virginia. (51) Joseph (his X) (Fh450) Boling and Polly/Polley Boling were witnesses, along with Townshend Dade, to a 1744 will of Thomas Simmons in Fairfax County, Virginia.  (133)(466)(1705) Will of “Thomas Simmons, Fairfax County, Virginia, 1 June 1744, proved 15 November 1744. To daughter, Susanna at 18 years or marriage; residue to Sarah Brookshaw. Exx. Sara Brookshaw (Brookshire?, yes, she dies and had an inventory 28 March 1752). Thomas Simmons (his mark) Wit. Tow  ushe   (?, this would be Townsend) Dade, Joseph Boling (his mark,Fh450, 6A), Polly Boling (her mark). (1970, page 67) Joseph (his X) Boling witnessed the 1746 will of Robert Boling (Fh535,240d) of Truro Parish, Fairfax County, Virginia. (466) Jo (sic) Bolen (probably Fh450), along with Gerd Bolen (probably Fh230,4501x) and Wm Bolen (probably Fh743,240x) had tithables 1749 in Fairfax County, Virginia. (1398) Bolen, Jo, had 2 tithables and Bolen, Gerd, had 1 tithable, 1749 List of Tithables in Fairfax County, Virginia. (1512) The Vestry for Truro Parish, Fairfax County, Virginia, 1750, gave Joseph Boling money for keeping a poor child. (389)(1485) Joseph Boling in 1752 did an inventory of the estate of Capt. George Harrison in Fairfax County, Virginia.  (466)

Death

Joseph Bowling (Fh450,6A) died 18 May 1753 in Fairfax County, Virginia. (1731) Joseph Bowling (Fh450) died before 18 May 1753 possibly in Fairfax County, Virginia, occupation minister. (1485) Pelletaire Bowling was administratix of Joseph’s estate, Gerard Bowling probably a son, was administrator of the estate (Fairfax Liber B, fo. 128, 130). (1485)  Joseph Bowling died 1753.  (51)(357)(57)(957)  Joseph Bowling's estate was administered in 1753, Fairfax County, Virginia, by Gerard Bowling (Fh230), probably his son. (357)(57) Joseph Bowling's estate had administratix Pellitare Bowling, 18 May 1753.  Sureties were Robert Mills and Gerrard Bowling. (542) 18 May 1753 - Joseph Bowling (Fh450). Administration by Pellitare Bowling (wife of Joseph Fh4501).  $100 pounds. Sureties Robert Mills, Gerrard Bowling (Fh230,450f,), Fairfax County, Virginia. (1576)(1527) Joseph Boling had an inventory dated May 18, 1756 in Fairfax County, Virginia. (35)(352)(466) His will dated 1756 (sic), Prince William County, was probated in Fairfax County by Garrard. (51) 

Maybe two Josephs have been combined.
+++++++++++++++++++++++++

Joseph Fh4501 (6B) 516x
-----------------

Joseph b<1718-1753 (Rin=44604)/m1738 Pelletaire Grafford (1718-d>1753)-- His father was Robert #516 


ab
Gerrard 1730-1780 (Rin=44917)/mc1752 Martha Moxley--See Family Group #230 


Robert b.1738 (Rin=50591)—See Family Group #514 M19 (Rin=50591)

a
Children per Source #1485 (Informant Henry Rogge)

b
Joseph's died intestate 1753. Pellitare/Pelletaire was administratix. Gerrard was surety.


c
Source #2111 has Joseph who married 1738 Pelatiah Grafford the son of Robert #516. Could we

have two Josephs, i.e. Fh450 and Fh4501? Note that Fh450 wife was alive in 1744.  Joseph Fh4501 m1738 Pelletaire or Letitia  Crafford (Crawford) or Peltiah (Newton) Graffort b1718-d>1753

Birth, Parents, Lineage

Lines of Descent from 


Simon Fh629 BOWLING-

45539 b.1620


Robert Fh516 6M19 BOWLING-
46246 b.1668


Joseph Fh4501 6M19 BOWLING-
44604 b.1717



son


Robert Fh514 6M19 BOWLING-
50591 b.1738

Joseph Bowling (Fh4501, 6A) married possibly three times, (1) to unknown, (2) on 15 Jul 1738 in Saint Paul’s Parish, Stafford County, Virginia to Palathia Grafford who was born about 1718 and (3) in Saint Paul’s Parish, Stafford County, Virginia to Pelletaire Craffort. (1585) 

Joseph Bowling was married to Pelletaire -----. (57) Joseph Bowling married first Pellatarie -----. Joseph Bowling married second -----Crafford. (51)(957)  Joseph Bowling married Pelatiah Crafford 1738 at St. Paul's Parish in Stafford County, Virginia. (46)(168) Joseph Bowling married 1738 Letitia Crafford born 1718 the daughter of Phillip and Letitia (Newton) Crafford. (352)  There is a record of a Pelletaire Graffort who married Joseph Bolling (born abt 1687). There is also a record of Peliatia Newton, daughter of Henry Newton of Essex County, Virginia who married 1712 to Phillip Graffort of Stafford County, Virginia. So the marriage to Joseph Bolling was probably a second marriage for her. (7) The surname Graffort was in this area of Fairfax County, Virginia. A woman, Peltiah Graffort, could be Joseph Bowling’s wife. Researchers should read this source for more details. (1186) Joseph had at least four children. (57)

a. Gerard Bowling (Fh230) who was born 1730 in Fairfax County, Virginia. (57) 

b. 6M19 4501x 
Simon Bowling was on the Jury list 1790-1791 in Burke County, Georgia. (7)(274)

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

Joseph Fh457 (6Z) 386x

-----------------

Joseph 1770-1832(Rin=48822)/m1796 Rebecca Maddox (bc1776)—His father was John #386 (Rin=65497)



Descendant Kit 4833--DNA Group 6Z



Kit 4833 is a 37/37 match with Kit 35942(Z), Kit 16668(Z) and a 25/25 match 



with Kit 46808(Y), and 2388(M17).


  bcd
Elizabeth "Betsey" bc1797/m1816 Thomas Muse or ----- Zimmerman


  bcd
Sarah "Sally" bc1804/m1822 John W. Cook


  bcd
Nancy A. bc1804-1869/m1822 Thomas Cook


ab  d
John William bc1809/m1831 Nancy Miner


  bcd
Margaret V. “Peggy” 1812-1893 or Martha/m1827 Harmon Cook III (d>1880)


abcd
George bc1812


abcd
William H. bc1813/19-d>1870/m     Julia Benson Stiff--Descendant Kit 4833--DNA Group 6Z

abcd
Blair D. 1815-1861/m1833 Margaret "Peggy" Hardy Jeter or Miss Webster


  bcd
Harriet J.bc1816/m1834 William Newman


  bcd
Rebecca bc1820/m     George Zimmerman and/or ------ Muse


  bcd
Mary Jane 1821-1894/m1837 Jesse Newman


abcd
Wesley d>1891/m1832 Elizabeth Cooper


a
5 Boys and 7 Daughters per source #1308 (Kenneth Poole)


b
5 Boys and 7 Daughters per source #1321 (Bev Cavender)


c
Children per Source #1527 (Hazael Taylor, a DNA 5 researcher)


d
Children per Source #1808 (Norma Polanco)

Birth, Parents, Lineage

Joseph Bolling was born about 1770. (270)
From the Place Index 

Pittsylvania,VA-created 1766-7 from Halifax


6Z
Joseph (Fh457,386a,b1770) r1816-1822-- Descendant Kit 4833 tested into DNA Group 6

6Z

Elizabeth "Betsey" (457a) m1816 (Thomas Muse)


6Z

Sarah "Sally" (457b) m1822 (John Cook)


6Z

Nancy (457c) m1822 (Thomas Cook)


6Z

Margaret (457d) r1880 (Census, bc1812)

Marriage

On 12 Mar 1796 when Joseph was 26, he married Rebecca Maddox (Mattox), in Franklin County, Virginia. One source gives marriage as March 1, 1795 in Franklin County, Virginia. (1808) Joseph Bolling married 1795 Rebecca Maddox in Franklin County, Virginia, notice by minister’s returns. (270)(549)(1213)  I have a microfilm copy of a handwritten note signed by Nathan Maddox giving permission to Joseph Bolling to marry his daughter Rebecca Maddox dated "my hand and seal this twelfth day of March 1796. Witnessed by Clerk of Franklin County, Virginia, Court. (1321) I have a microfilm copy of the bond signed by Joseph Bolling for his marriage to Rebecca Maddox dated "the 12th day of March 1796. (1321) From "Marriage Bonds of Franklin County, Virginia 1786 through 1853 as Recorded in the Franklin County, Virginia,  Courthouse” by Beverly Merrit on page 8 is listed: Bolling, Joseph; Maddox, Rebecca 3-12-1796;3-1796. (1321) Rebecca Mattox, daughter of Nathan Mattox, was born about 1776 in Bedford County, Virginia. She married Joseph Bolling March 1795 in Franklin County, Virginia. (1527) 

Something that is probably wrong

Joseph Bolling married 1796 Rebecca Davis (sic) in Franklin County, Virginia. Surety Samuel Davis. (549)(1213) Regarding "Rebecca Davis" with surety of Samuel Davis. I had Beverly Merritt, a researcher for Franklin County, Virginia look for the marriage bond, etc. for Rebecca Davis and Joseph Bolling. She was unable to locate such a marriage bond between those two people. She was able to find the marriage bond for Joseph Bolling and Rebecca Maddox for March 12, 1796 with Jordan Kemp signing as surety. (1808)

Children

Children of Rebecca Mattox and Joseph Bolling are:


a. 
George Bolling. (1527) George Bolling was the bondsman in the 1816 marriage of his sister Elizabeth to Thomas Muse. (7)
b. 
Elizabeth Bolling. She married Zimmerman. (1527) Elizabeth Bolling, daughter of George (sic) Bolling, married 1816, 
Thomas Muse, in Pittsylvania County, Virginia. (386) Joseph Bowling consented 1816 to the marriage of his daughter 
Elizabeth to Thomas Muse in Pittsylvania County, Virginia. Bondsman was George Bolling. (7) 6Z George Bolling (?) had a 
daughter Elizabeth Bolling who married 1816 Thomas Muse, in Pittsylvania County, Virginia. (see Joseph Fh457). (386) 6Z 
Elizabeth "Betsey" (457a) m1816 (Thomas Muse)

c. 
Nancy A. Bolling, born in Franklin County, Virginia. (1527)
d. 
Wesley Bolling, born in Franklin County, Virginia, lived in Bedford City, Va. in 1891: (1527)
e. 
William Bolling. (1527)
f. 
Blair Bolling. He married Miss Webster. (1527)
g. 
Harriett Bolling. She married Newman. (1527)
h. 
Mary Jane Bolling. She married Newman. (1527) This could be her in the 1880 Census:



Household Record,  1880 United States Census 



John H. NEWMAN
Self
M ,  Male
63 ,  VA ,  Farmer ,  
VA ,  VA 

 

Mary Jane NEWMAN
Wife
M ,  Female
59 ,  VA ,  Keeps House ,  
VA ,  VA 



Source Information: Census Place, Opequon, Frederick, Virginia

i. 
Sarah "Sally" Bolling. She married John Cook. (1527) Sarah who married 1822 John W. Cook, Pittsylvania 

County, Virginia. (270) Joseph Bolen consented 1822 to the marriage of his daughter Sarah to John Cook 


in Pittsylvania County, Virginia. (7)
j. 
Margaret Bolling, born 1812 in Franklin County, Virginia; died 1893. (1527) Margaret Cook is in the 1880 

Census, Callands, Pittsylvania, Virginia, born Virginia. Both parents born in Virginia.



Household Record,  1880 United States Census 



Harmon COOK

Self 
M
Male
72   VA   Farmer

VA ,  VA 



Margaret COOK

Wife
M
Female
68   VA   Keeping House
VA ,  VA 



Harriet COOK

Dau
S
Female
35   VA   At Home

VA ,  VA 



Firnando C. COOK
Son
S
Male
26   VA   Farm Laborer
VA ,  VA 



Source Information:Census Place, Callands, Pittsylvania, Virginia

k. 
Rebecca Bolling, born Abt. 1820 in Franklin County, Virginia. (1527)

My notes are that Joseph Bolling had 7 daughters and 6 sons, but I don’t know if that is true. (1321) One researcher has that Joseph and wife Rebecca Maddox has 5 boys and 7 girls.(1308) Three daughters of Joseph Bolling and Rebecca Maddox/Mattox who married Cook brothers are listed in the book "The Tyree Tree with Angle, Byrd, Cook, Dillion and Woody Branches" by Dorothy Chambers Watts. On Page 191 each Bolling girl who married a Cook was "the daughter of Joseph Bolling and Rebecca (Mattox) Bolling. (1321) The children of Joseph Bolling and Rebecca Maddox are also listed on page 24216 of the Gertrude C. Mann genealogical volumes. (1321)

Movement

My cousin (Kit 4833) and Harry Lyon (Kit 35942, Descendant of Jordan 624c, 6Z) match 25/25, match 37/37. Our earliest known ancestor is Joseph Bolling born in Virginia; lived in Bedford County, Virginia and also Franklin County, Virginia. Joseph married Rebecca Maddox, daughter of Nathan Maddox and Prudence Bozmon (Vorsmon), Mar. 6, 1796 in Franklin County, Virginia. We don't have much more information on Joseph other than children's names and their spouses. Joseph owned land in Franklin County, Virginia and most of his children were born there. I don't believe our particular direct line of Bowling's ever left Virginia. (1808) A map done by Gertrude Mann in 1976 on the early settlers in Franklin County, Virginia shows Joseph Bolling, 1791. He had Mattox and Dehaven as neighbors. (1808) Joseph Boling has 1 tithable, one horse, no one aged 12-16, 1800 Tax List of Franklin County, Virginia. (1755) Joseph Bolling was in the 1820 Census of Franklin County, Virginia, on page 135A. (348) 1820 Census lists Joseph as living in Franklin County, Virginia, page 136. (1808) Joseph Bolling had race horses which he took to Georgia, his son Wesley going with him. It is said the race track at Oglethorpe was named for him "Bolling Green". (Letter of John Wesley Mattox, dated 1891 Centerville, Ga. to Wm. McKendree Maddox.) (1527)(1808) I've researched the race tract, Bolling Green, but can find no trace back to Joseph Bolling. The race tract was owned by Ferdinand Phinizy. I found on www.georgiaencyclopedia.org an article on Phinizy Spalding (1930-1994). It said that "Billups Phinizy Spalding was the youngest son of Bolling Phinizy and Daniel Hughes Spalding." So I figured the Bolling family must have fit in there somewhere, but haven't found any connection as of yet. Looking back at my notes it looks as though Billups Phinizy of Athens, GA married Nellie Stovall and they had three daughters, 1) Martha Susan (Mattie Sue) Phinizy, 2) Bolling Phinizy and 3) Anne Barret Phinizy. (1808)

1820 United States Federal Census

Name:
Joseph Bolling

Home in 1820 (City, County, State):
Franklin, Virginia

Enumeration Date:
August 7, 1820

Free White Persons - Males - Under 10:
2
(? Wesley and Blair)

Free White Persons - Males - 10 thru 15:
1
(? William or George)

Free White Persons - Males - 16 thru 25:
1
(? John William)

Free White Persons - Males - 26 thru 44:
1
(?)

Free White Persons - Males - 45 and over:
2
(Head-of-House Joseph and perhaps father or father-in-law, look up) 

Free White Persons - Females - Under 10:
2

Free White Persons - Females - 10 thru 15:
1

Free White Persons - Females - 26 thru 44:
1

Free White Persons - Females - 45 and over:
1

Number of Persons - Engaged in Commerce:
3

Free White Persons - Under 16:

6

Free White Persons - Over 25:

5

Total Free White Persons:

12

Total All Persons - White, Slaves, Colored, Other:
12

Death

The heirs of Joseph Bolling are listed in Deed Book 19, at Page 454, dated March 6, 1832, of the Official Records of Franklin County, Virginia. (1321) Joseph Bolling (Fh457) died in Franklin County, Virginia on 6 March 1832, he was 62. (1808) Joseph Bolling died before 1832. (1527)

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

Fh459
Joshua 1773-d>1840-<1850/m1791 Nancy Ann Kesterson (1770-<1840)—has been moved to DNA 3


-----------------
+++++++++++++++++++++++++

Joseph UK (6K)

-----------------

Joseph Bolen was on the tax list of Hardin County, Kentucky, beginning in 1819 through 1820. (1863)  This is the only entry for a 
Joseph in Hardin County, Kentucky in the Place index:

Hardin, KY
Joseph (UK,b<1775) t1819,t1820,r1820(Census Age 45+) See that Census next:

Joseph Bowling was on the 1820 Census of Little York, Hardin County, Kentucky, page 92, with 

males 2 1 0 0 0 1 and females 1 1 0 1 0.

2—male under 10

1—male 10 to under 16

0—male between 16 and 18

0—male 16 to under 26

0—male 26 to under 45

1—male 45 and up i.e. b<1775  (This would be Joseph)
1—female under 10

1—female 10 to under 16

0—female 16 to under 26

1—female 26 to under 45

(Probably Joseph’s wife)
0—female 45 and up i.e. b<1775
Thus the family would look like this in 1820:

Joseph Bowling b<1775-d>1820/m       Wife bc1784 based on age of husband and birth of 1st child

Male b1804-1810


Female b1804-1810


Male b1810-1820


Male b1810-1820


Female b1810-1820

There were 2 marriages of a Joseph that were about that time and in the right place and DNA.

1. Joseph UK m1796 Fairfax, VA, Nancy Macley 

2. Joseph Fh457 6Z m1795 Rebecca Maddox or Rebecca Davis 

There were 4 marriages in Hardin County, Kentucky, that might produce this family in 1820:

1.
Henry m1806 Rachel, 
he UK

2.
William m1804 

he Fh820 UK DNA but not DNA 6 apparently
3.
William m1804 

he Fh880 This looks like a “hit” see below but not a father Joseph
4.
Jarrard m1807       

he Fh323 (Only one male fits, no females) 
5. 
No Josephs

Fh880 William 1782-d>1850(Rin=53946, LBCH-WFQ)/m1804 Elizabeth Rust 1790-1876--His father was Alexander #020


  *b d
Daniel b1804-1810-1847/m1828 Sarah Sinclair (1804-d>1850)--See Daniel Fh1596


       d
Hannah b1806/m1822 Joseph T. Russell


  *b d
Nancy b1810-<1845/m1829 Christopher B. Sinclair


  *b
John 1820-1842/m1841 Mary B. Helms (bc1822-d>1850)—He is FAG 199709455


  *
James 1821-1890/m<1860 Callie ------ (1823-1901)(He FAG=146048045) 

William Bowlin (probably Fh880,020f,6K) was on page 18 and 
John Bowlin on page 72 
Jarred Bowling (Fh323,020e,6K) was on page 28. (1340) 

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

Larkin Fh4612 (6S) 913x
-----------------

Larkin bc1785-1845(Rin=46550)/m<1806 Suzannah Garner--His father was William #913(Rin=45430)



Descendant Kit 96819 tested into DNA 6  


*a
Shadrick  1806-1872/m1830/1 1/w Patsy Rogers, m1851 2/w Celia Cagle



Descendant Kit 96819 tested into DNA 6  


*
Elizabeth B. 1811->1882/m1839 Josias Gamble 


*a
Pleasant M. b1816 TN, d>1850 Casey, KY/m1838 Esther Davis


*a
Henry C. 1817-d>1880<1890/m1843 Terry Sims


*
Children per Source #1553. Shadrick is #1553 gggrandfather.  


a
In 1850 Census of Blount County, Tennessee per Source #1553
Birth, Parents, Lineage

Larkin was born about 1785 the son of William. (Fh913) (1553) 
Marriage

Larkin (Fh4612) married before 1806 Suzannah Garner, believed to be daughter of Peter Garner who was on the 1790 Census of Moore County, North Carolina as 13200. (1553) This was recorded in the Randolph County, North Carolina, Genealogy Journal.  It shows there was a relationship between the Boling men. Capias (29 Oct. 1796) against Cornelius Lathem and John Graves, on oath of Benjamin Bolan (Fh125,6S) that they assaulted and beat him at the house of Gabriel Hardin 27 Aug 1796. Witnesses -- Robert Bolan (Fh549,913b,6S), Larkin Bolan (Fh4612,913c,6S), William Bolan (913a,6S), Tempy Hardin, Vachel Hancock. (1553) 
Children

They had:

Shadrick 1806-1872, 
Pleasant M. born 1816 in Tennessee, d>1850 Casey, KY, and 
Henry 1817-d>1891. (1553) 
I don't know where they were between the 1800 Randolph/Montgomery County, NC census and 1818 when they are in Blount County, or if, in fact, this William is the father or a brother. There are documents with Robert, Larkin and William together in Blount County, Tennessee in 1818. (1553) From County Court Minutes, Blount County, Tennessee, 4th Monday June 1818. A Deed of conveyance from Geo. Williams to Larkin Boling for 30 acres of Land was duly proven by Hugh Bogle and Jas Upton admitted to record & ordered to be registered. (1553) 
In the 1830 Census of Blount County, Tennessee there is Larkin Borland 00200001  010100101. (1553) On 1830 Blount County census living closely is Betsy Borland (believed to be mother of Larkin and Robert).  Betsy is age 70-80 head of household, so her husband William has died. (1553) 
In 1840 Census of Blount County, Tennessee Larken Bolen 00001001 0001001, with son Henry born 1817 appears to be still in the house. (1553) Larkin died after1840 and before 1850. (1553) 
Sons of Larkin, i.e. Pleasant Boling, Henry Boling, and Shad Bolen were on the 1850 census of Blount County, Tennessee. (1553). 
From the Place Index

Blount,TN-created 1795 from Knox


6S
Larkin (Fh4612,913c) r1818,r1830(Census)

6S

Shadrick (4612a or 429d,6T) m1831 (Patsy Rogers),r1850, m1851 (Celia Cagle)


6S

Pleasant M. (4612b) m1838 (Esther Davis),r1850


6S

Henry C. (4612c) m1843(Terry Sims),r1850- on the 1880 Sevier County, TN census.


6S

Elizabeth (4612d) m<1839(Josias Gamble),r1839


6S
Elizabeth “Betsy” (widow of William Fh913) r1830(Census), r1840(Census)


5
Harrison C. (4657a and/or 429d,6T) r1840,d1842



Mary (UK) m1824 (Joseph C. Martin)


5
Mitchell (could be 4657d) m1858 (Matilda Noonkesser)



Patsy (UK) m1820 (Henry Clampet)



Peggy (UK) m1825 (George Smith)


6S
Polly (UK) m1828 (William Fann)



Rebecah (UK) m1838 (Lot Rogers)


6S
Robert (Fh549,913b) m1828 (Sally Clampet), r1830,r1850 (age 74)



Sally (UK) m1813 (Elisha Spragan)



Sally (UK) m1816 (Elisha Spragan)



Sally (UK) m1825 (Shedrick Rogers)


6T
William  (429a) r1830,d1837/38


6S
William (549b) r1850 (Census, age 20) 

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

Lawrence Fh4614 (6M17) 286x
-----------------

Lawrence 1770-1839 (Rin=49083)/mc1792   P.  ------ --His father was James #286


Descendant Kit 102427 tested into DNA Group 6


a
Female Child bc1794


a
Catherine bc1798-d1878/m1859 Yelvington Shelton

a
Mildred bc1801-d>1817/m1818 Henry McGhee

a
Thornton A. bc1802-d>1854/m1828 Elizabeth Betsy Lewis—See 667e also

a
Richard "Dick" W. c1808-1859/m1832 Eliza Elizabeth Lewis


a
William Silas c1810-1856/mc1833 Elizabeth "Betty" Shelton


a
Children per Soure #969

Birth, Parents, Lineage

Lawrence Bowling and Thomas Bowling (Fh667,6M17), my ancestor, witnessed the suit of John and Lucy Webb against William Young in Fredericksburg City, Virginia, Court on June 6, 1794. (969) July 5, 1820, Affidavit of Lawrence Bowling (Fh4614,6M17) in the case of Webb vs. Young. "Lawrence Bowling ....(states) my father died 20 years ago ... that it will be twenty years the day before the ensuing Christmas eve."  File #307, Fredericksburg, Virginia Courthouse. Therefore Lawrence's father died on December 23, 1800 (1799?). (969)

Marriage and Children

Lawrence Bowling had sons:

a. 
Richard L. "Dick" Bowling born about 1808 who married 1832 Spotsylvania County, Virginia, Elizabeth Lewis 

b. 
William Silas Bowling born about 1810 who married about 1833 Elizabeth "Betty" Shelton. (680)

Movement

In 1793 in Stafford County, Virginia, William Richards leased 50 acres to Lawrence Bowling (Fh4614,6M17). (969) 
January 7, 1809, Deposition of Thomas Bowling (Fh667,6M17) and Lawrence Bowling (Fh4614). Webb vs. Young, Fredericksburg Courthouse File #307, May 27, 1809. "Deposition taken at the Columbian Inn in the town of Fredericksburg on  the 7th day of January 1809." Another man deposed that day was John Mannin. Thos. Goodwin was the official. Also Virginia Historical Magazine volume 23.  According to Mildred Musselman, this suit was first instigated in 1801 and continued through 1820. July 5, 1820, Affidavit of Lawrence Bowling in the case of Webb vs. Young. "Lawrence Bowling ....(states) my father died 20 years ago ... that it will be twenty years the day before the ensuing Christmas eve."  File #307, Fredericksburg, Virginia Courthouse. Therefore Lawrence's father died on December 23, 1800 (1799?).  James Bowling (Lawrence's father?  Thomas' father or uncle?) was last on the tax rolls in 1798. (969) 
Lawrence Bowling was in the 1810 Census of Spotsylvania County, Virginia. (349) Lawrence Bowling was in the 1810 Census of Spotsylvania, County, Virginia, with 8 white people and no slaves. (1152) In the 1810 Spotsylvania County, Virginia, census, Lawrence Bowling (Fh4614) and George Bowling (Fh238,6M17) both lived near Thomas and Sarah Bowling (Fh667,6M17). (969)

Census: 1820 Spotsylvania County, Virginia


Page No: 66B, Dec 13, 1820
16. Lawrence Bolling   (Fh4614,286c,6M17) 

0 2 1 1 0 1 | 0 0 1 0 1
19. Sally Bolling (widow of Thomas Fh667,286a,6M17)  
0 1 0 1 0 0 | 1 2 0 1 1


Page No: 71A, Dec 13, 1820
12. George Bolling  (Fh238,286b,6M17)   

2 0 0 1 0 1 | 4 2 3 1 0 |
24. Robert Bowling  (Fh561,286d,6M17) 

0 0 0 0 1 0 | 2 0 0 1 0 | 0 |


Lawrence Bolling was in the 1820 Census of Spotsylvania County, Virginia, page 66.  Also on that page is Sally Bolling (probably widow of Thomas Bowling, Fh667,6M17) and on page 70a is George Bolling (Fh238). (348) Lawrence Bolling was in the 1820 Census of Spotsylvania County, Virginia, page 66.  Also on that page is Sally Bolling and on page 71 is George Bolling (Fh238) and Robert Bowling (Fh561). (1152) My father, George A. Bowling, saved a fragment of a letter (in my possession) received by his paternal aunt Beatrice Bowling, starting "Dear Cousin" and telling how things were in Fredericksburg, signed Mary Lou. Mildred Musselman (Source #680)  traced this to a Mary Lou Bowling, descendant of Lawrence Bowling (Fh4614). My father told me when I was a child that his father's family was still in touch with relatives left back in Virginia. So the evidence is good, but not incontrovertible that Thomas Bowling (Fh667,6M17) and Lawrence Bowling (Fh4614) were related. (969) Your ancestor Lawrence (Fh4614,6M17) and mine Thomas (Fh667,6M17) (bc1755-1810) are clearly related somehow. Lawrence and Thomas signed a number of documents together in the late 1790s/early 1800s, and had descendants in the 1930s who addressed letters to each other (one in my possession) referring to each other as cousins. So my guess is that Thomas and Lawrence were either brothers or first cousins. According to property and census records, they lived fairly close to each other in Stafford County, Virginia. (969)

Death

Thomas died about 1811 in Virginia. His wife Sarah and several adult children with their families emigrated to southern Indiana in the 1830s. Lawrence and his family stayed in Virginia.  He died between 1830-40 in Spotsylvania County, Virginia. Lawrence had a lot of descendants, some of whom changed the spelling to Bolling, many of whom still live in Virginia. I imagine there were a lot of Confederate vets in there, too. I know my family in Indiana were terribly worried about the cousins in Fredericksburg during the war. Southern Indiana folks in general were very South-oriented, ended up being Copperheads--lived in the North, sympathized with the South. (969)

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

Lewis Fh4621 (6N2) 3971x
-----------------

Lewis 1783-1861 (Rin=56569)/ m1808 Tacey Mathew (1788-1872) He FAG=60969136
His father was John #3971


A descendant kit 5537 did not match any major DNA Group

ab
Henry Fielden 1808-1877/m1834 1/w Elmira P. Thompson (1815-1847)

2/w m1848 Mrs. Frances (Yates) Compton He FAG=60969644

ab
Sandford W. 1810-1870/m      Sarah Jordan


ab
Jesse C. 1812-1893/m     1/w Miss Ferguson,m     2/w Jane White 


ab
Thomas Hunton bc1814-1869/m<1850 Matilda --------

ab
Alfred R. 1816-1904 He FAG=60964269
a
Eliza—probably died young

ab
Harrison T. 1820-1864/m     Rebecca Hanger


ab*
Emily 1822-1882 She FAG=60965868
ab
Lewis 1824-1915/m    Hannah Elizabeth Updike (1835-1900)




A descendant kit 5537 did not match any major DNA Group
ab*
Haywood F. 1826-1902 He FAG=60964495

ab*
Newman M. 1828-1893


ab
Lemuel B. 1830-1856/m      Flora Fristo He FAG=60969223

ab*
Mary C. 1834-1914/m     1/h Edward Moore, m     2/h John Grant     


a
Thirteen children per Source #1810


b
Children per Source #1969

*
In 1850 Census, Warren County, Virginia (2089)

Birth, Parents, Lineage

Lewis Bolen was born 12 Apr 1783 in Fauquier, Virginia, the son of John and Meeky Bolen (Fh3971, 397b) 
Marriage

Lewis Bolen married 10 Apr 1808, Tracy Matthew, in Fauquier County, Virginia. 
Death

Lewis Bolen died 3 Jan 1861 in Harmony Hollow, Warren County, Virginia. He was buried at the Bole,-Beaty Family Graveyard, Front Royal, Warren County, Virginia. (Findagrave 60969136)  I did find a letter written to my cousin, Ed Bolen (descended from Fielden) from another cousin, Catherine, who said, "Did you know that Lewis Bolen (Fh4621,3971b) had a brother (sic) named Alexander W. Bowling (1563d, 6A)?  Alexander Bowling lived in Front Royal around the same time Lewis Bolen had his acreage in Harmony Hollow". She had a paper written by the anonymous author of a 5-page family history which is based on various records, and it appears that Lewis Bolen had a contemporary named "Alex Bolen" in Front Royal. The history notes that, "Alex Bolen (1563d) and Lewis Bolen (Fh4621,3971b) were among the buyers at the Nov. 17, 1831 sale of Thomas Jacob's effects…." (2164) 

+++++++++++++++++++++++++
Lewis Fh4623 (6M) 631x
-----------------

Lewis 1795-1872(Rin=54582)(FAG=72130375)/m1816 Margaret Heflin (1785-1866)--His father was Simon #631


*
Sarah Ann 1821-d>1889/m1841 Alexander Staneart


*a
Emily b1822 PA-1873--unmarried


*a
Louisa 1823 PA-d>1889/John Brock



3 child-died before 1889--probably before 1850 Census


4 child-died before 1889--probably before 1850 Census


5 child-died before 1889--probably before 1850 Census

*a
Lewis Walker 1832 OH->1889/m1851 Elizabeth Ann Payne


*
Children per Source #1214


a
Children in the household 1850 Census, Harrison County, Ohio.
Birth, Parents, Lineage

Lewis Bowling was the son of Simon Bowling (Fh631). (859)(1214) Lewis Bowling was born 1795 in Stafford County, Virginia. (1214) Lewis Bowling was a soldier in the War of 1812. (934) Lewis Bowling was a native of Stafford County, Virginia. (934) 
Marriage & Children

Lewis Bowling married Margaret Helfling. They migrated from Virginia to Harrison County, Ohio. They had six children with three living in 1889. Those living in 1889 where 

Sarah who married ----- Staneart; 

Louisa who married ----- Brock; and 

Lewis W. who was born 1832 in Nottingham Township, Harrison County, Ohio, and married 1851 Elizabeth A. Payne. (859) Lewis 
Bowlin was listed in the Pension file for the War of 1812. (934) Lewis Bowling married 1816 Margaret Helfling (1785-1866). 
(1214) Lewis Boling married 1816 Margaret Heflin in Stafford County, Virginia. He was alive 1871 in Owen County, 
Indiana. (934)

Movement

Stafford, Virginia


6M
Simon (Fh631) b1770,t1787,r1795 (birth of Lewis),r<1812 


6M

Lewis (Fh4623,631x,He (FAG=72130375)) b1795,rc1812,m1816 (Margaret Helfling)—later  Owen, IN

Harrison, Ohio


6M
Lewis (Fh4623,631a,b1794 VA) (Bolen) t>1816,t<1828,r1832,r1850--"native of Stafford Co. VA"-died Owen. IN


6M

Sarah Ann (4623a) m1841 (Alexander Stinard/Staneart)


6M

Lewis Walker (4623f) b1832,m1851 (Elizabeth A. Payne)

Owen, Indiana


6M
Lewis (Fh4623,631a(Simon)) r1871,d1872(Rin=54582,FAG=72130375) born 1795 Stafford, VA


6M

Lewis W. (4623f) m1851(Elizabeth Ann Payne)

Military Service

Lewis Boling served in Barton S. Stones's Company of the Virginia Militia in the War of 1812. His pension was SC-16191. His wife was Margaret Heflin. He lived in Adams County, Illinois and Owen County, Indiana. (935)  Lewis Bowlin served in Claiborne Wigleworth's Company of the Virginia Militia in the War of 1812. His pension was SO-6596. (935) Lewis Bowling served in the War of 1812. (1214)
Husband



Husband
State of Wife
Wife’s Name

Marriage

Last Name
First Name
Service
Residence
Maiden,First

Date & Place

Boling, Lewis, bc1800

VA
Adams, IL
Heflin, Margaret

05 Jan 1816 Stafford, VA (2158)

Lewis Bolen was born 1795 in Stafford County, Virginia.  Lewis Bolen’s wife was Margaret ----- (1785-1866). Lewis Bolen was in the 1850 Census of Harrison County, Ohio, with his wife and two daughters and one son. See Family Group. (2089) 
Death

Lewis Bolen died 1872 in Owen County, Indiana. Both Lewis Bolen and his wife are buried at the Hicks Cemetery, Owen County, Indiana. (1155) Lewis Bowling died 11 July 1872 in Owen County, Indiana. (1214)(Find-a-grave #72130351, Created by: Deloris Verchere) Daughter Emily Bolen died 28 Feb 1873 and is buried at the Hicks Cemetery, Owen County, Indiana. (Find-a-grave #72130762, Created by: Deloris Verchere)    

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

Mark Fh4633 (6S) 120f
-----------------

Mark 1796 NC->1850 (Rin=46118)/m       Anne "Anney" Graves--His father was Benjamin #120 (Rin=44516)

Sarah 1815NC-1895/m1833 Isaac Darting


James W. 1830-1906/m       Harriett -------(b1834 KY)


Talitha b1834/m1851 Robert Griffith

Birth, Parents, Lineage

Mark Bolling was born 1796 in North Carolina. His parents were Benjamin and Sarah "Sally" (Hancock) Bolling (Fh120,6S). (53) Mark Bolling was the son of Benjamin and Sallie T. "Tabitha" (Hancock) Bolling. (173) Mark Bowling was in the 1850 Census as age 54, i.e. born 1796 in North Carolina. (1785) Mark Bolling was the brother of Talitha (120i) who married Samuel Graves, Jr. Mark Bolling was son of Benjamin and Sarah Talitha Hancock Boling. (1785)(2103)

Child

Daughter Sarah Bolin was born in North Carolina on Dec 7, 1815. She moved with her parents to Indiana in 1827. When 18 years old she married Isaac Darting. They had 5 children. We know that Sarah and Isaac were in Clay County, Indiana in 1850. They moved to Iowa in 1855 and Sarah died March 14, 1895. (7)(2104)
Movement

1815

Mark Bolin was on Capt. Harvey's district 1815 tax list of Randolph County, North Carolina as one white poll. (942) 1815 - Leonard's in the tax list living along the Little River in Capt. Harvey's District near Bolins (Mark, John, Jr. Bill, and Mitchel). (1414) 1815 Tax List of Randolph County, North Carolina: In Capt. Harvey's District is Mark Bolin, Mitchel Bolin, John Bolin Sr, Charles Bolin....all living along Little River as neighbors. (1414)(2103) This would be William, Charles, John Jr., John Sr, Mark, Mitchel, and Randall or Randolph. (1785)
1820

 Mark Boling was on King's district 1820 tax list of Randolph County, North Carolina as one white poll, 140 acres waters of the Little River.  (942) 

1821

Mark Bolling acquired land in North Carolina but sold it in 1821 and went to Indiana, probably Clay County. (173)

1822

Samuel Graves, Sr. deeded land to John (262 acres) in 1822 (Clay County, Indiana, Bk. 17, p. 356) which was witnessed by Mark and Anney Bolling. (1785)(2103)
1827

Mark Boling married and sold his lands in North Carolina and moved to Clay County, Indiana. By 1827 he was in a town called Harmony where he was an early Justice of the Peace. (249) About 1827, Mark Bolin settled in Clay County, Indiana, near the present town of Harmony. (1785)(2102)

1840

The 1840 Census of  Clay County, Indiana has:

p.335 #3 
Bolan, Mark 

Van Buren Twp
p.335 #4 
Carman, Benjamin 
Van Buren Twp

p.335 #5 
Dartin, Isaac 

Van Buren Twp
p.335 #8 
Graves, Samuel 

Van Buren Twp

One Benjamin Carman was the spouse of Sarah Boling (125c,6S), daughter of Prudence Callicoat & Benjamin Boling (Fh125,6S). (1785) Samuel Graves is probably the husband of Talitha (120i) who married Samuel Graves, Jr.. (1785)(2103)

1850

1850 Clay County, Indiana, Van Buren Township, Page: 296 Enumerator: E. Bowling
24th July

# 57 - 57

Mark Bowling 
54 m Farmer 1,200 NC 1796

James Bowling 
21 m Laborer Ia.(Indiana) 1829

Talith Bowling 
16 f Ia.(Indiana) 1834

In the 1850 census record, Mark Bowling's family group is living next door to a single woman named Elizabeth Jamison, whose age is consistent between the 1850 and 1860 census reports... and Mark is with 
Elizabeth in 1860. (1785)(on-line at Ancestry.com)

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

Nathaniel Martin Fh4651 (6Z) 386x
-----------------

Nathaniel Martin 1794->1860(Rin=48834)/mc1820 Lucinda ----- b1799 in SC—His father was John #386. 
Probably had brother named Dudley born 1792 VA who married 1828 Elizabeth 
Deboreau, and a sister named Darcus. 
A descendant kit 16668 tested into DNA 6. Kit 16668 is a 37/37 match with 
Kit 4833(Z), , Kit 35942(Z) and 25/25 match with Kit 2388(M17), Kit 46808(Y). 

*
Dudley A. b1823 in GA-d1902/m1847 Elizabeth Ann Sizemore




A descendant kit 16668 tested into DNA 6


Aaron Perry bc1825-d>1870


*
H.        b1832 in GA


*
Lucinda    b1835 in GA


*
Melinda M.    b1838 in AL (GG Grandmother)


*
Saphronia    1840-1924


*
William Marcus  b1844


*
James (twin)  b1847


*
Elizabeth (twin) b1847


*
Elizabeth Betsy 


*
Joe


*
Children per Source #1462 (Nancy Birdwell)
Birth, Parents, Lineage

Martin Bowling was born 1794 in Virginia. (1462) Descendant kit 16668 in DNA 6 Martin Bowling could be a son of John Bowling found in the 1810 Census of Spartanburg, South Carolina. Martin Bowling lived near James G. Reaves survey on Beaverdam Creek, Spartanburg, South Carolina, in 1821. (1599) I looked in South Carolina for my Martin Bowling (Fh4651), I found one possibility as follows: (Abstract) Spartanburg, South Carolina, Deed Book R p. 309-310 Jan. 31, 1821 John Whorton (Spartanburgh) to Samuel Moore (same); for $100 sold (1) 50 ac on E side of Beaverdam Cr of S Pacolate R; part of 200 ac survey for James G. Reaves; border: William Duncan and John Duncan; and (2) 20 on W side of beaverdam Cr; border: Martin Bowlin, and Agga Prewett; adjoins (1) and part of same survey Witness John Grogan and Wiley S Brown. Signed John Whorton's mark Wit. oath Mar. 30, 1821 John Grogan to J Whitten. Rec. Apr. 2, 1821. (Punctuation abstractor's) (1793) Interestingly, in 1809 Samual Bowlin (Fh624,6Z) bought land on both sides Beaverdam Creek of S Pacolate River. In 1811, Samuel Bolane (sic) bought land on North Pacolate River, north side Grogan’s Road.  Both deeds recorded same day: Apr. 7, 1812. Note in deed above that one John Grogan witnessed with Martin Bowling. (1793) One source for Samuel says this is the one who went through Tennessee into Alabama and Georgia. I find the family in Benton/Calhoun Co. AL where my Martin is located, though not at the same time (mid- 1850-70). (1793) Back to Spartanburg, "Widow Bolin's" land is mentioned as bordering Grogan on Beaverdam Creek.” Could this widow be Martin's mother? (1793) Would his father possibly be on the 1820 census or did he die before 1820? (1793) Cannot find Martin on any 1820 census. Could he be in Spartanburg in the household of Nancy, Isaiah or Archabold? Martin's age fits each one. Is this Nancy Bowlen the same as widow Bolin in the above mentioned deed? (1793) My Martin (Fh4651) is not the Martin of Greenville SC nor of Orangeburg. (1793) Book R, pg 309 – 310, Jan. 31, 1821 John Whorton (Spartanburgh) to Samuel Moore (Spartanburgh); for $100 sold (1) 50 ac on E side of Beaverdam Cr of S Pacolate R; part of 200 ac survey for James G. Reaves; border; William Duncan and John Duncan; and (2) 20 on W side of Beaverdam Cr; border: Martin Bowling  and Agga Prewett; adjoins (1) and part of same survey. Witness John Grogan and Wiley S. Brown. Signed John Whorton's mark. Wit. oath Mar. 30, 1821 John Grogan to J Shitten. Rec. Apr. 2, 1821 (1713) Martin Bowling married Loucinda ----- who was born 1799 in South Carolina. See the family group for their children. In 29 Nov 1850 Census, he and his family lived in the 28th District of Benton County, Alabama (changed to Calhoun County in 1856. In 1860, he lived in Kemp Creek Community, Calhoun County, Alabama. (1462) A descendant kit 16668 tested into DNA 6. Martin Boland was born in Virginia and his family moved into South Carolina. We believe that he met and married his wife, Loucinda (sic) there. We believe that Martin migrated to Gwinnet County Georgia before 1827. We know that Martin Bowling was in the 1827 Land Lottery of Georgia and received two draws. Martin was in the military, records cannot be found, as he did receive these draws based on his military record. We wonder if he was a higher ranking officer. Possible brothers may be Joseph and Joshua. The first census Martin is on is the Gwinnett County, Georgia, Census of 1830. Loucinda is with him along with two sons and daughters. He lists two sons in Gwinnett County that would be the same ages as Dudley and Aaron. Since the census doesn't carry the names but a numerical account we are assuming at this time that these are our ancestors. We have not documented that Aaron Perry and Dudley Bowling are Martin's sons but we feel strongly that they are as they are living next door to him in Benton County, Alabama. We do know that Martin was in Kemp's Creek, Benton County, Alabama in 1850. We do know that one draw was for this property. His neighbors in Benton are: A. P. Boland 25 b. 1825 GA (Our GGGrandfather, Aaron Perry Boland/Bowling.) The next is our Martin Boland 56 born 1794 Virginia. To date we have not located Martins place of death nor a will. (1706) 

For Martin the census lists as this:

M. Boland

56  Farmer 
VA

(wife) Loucinda 

50
 
SC


H. Boland 
18

GA


L. Boland 
15

GA


M. M.

12

AL


Saphona

10

AL


W. M.

6

AL


Zune

3

AL   Twin

Eliz

3

AL   Twin
Dudley A. Bowling married Elizabeth Ann Sizemore in 1847 in Benton County Alabama. She is the daughter of William Sizemore and Margaret Smith.

1850 Benton County Census for Dudley lists.......

Dudley Boland

27  Farmer 
GA

(Wife) E.


23

GA

1860 Calhoun County, AL Census...Kemps Creek
Martin Bowling

66  Farmer 
VA

Lucinda


61
 
SC

Molinda M. 

22

AL

William


16

AL

James


12

AL

Elisabeth


12

AL

++++++++++ 

David Terry

33  Farmer
GA

Mohetha (Boland)

27

GA (Martins daughter and Aaron's sister.)

++++++++++

A. P. Boling

48 

GA

Canda (Kindness)

36

GA

++++++++++

William N. Allred  (Brother to Kindness (Allred) Boland/Bowling/Boling

    Sofronia     

30  (Sister to Aaron)

+++++++++

Oral tradition of one line of this family says that we are related to Thomas Jefferson. This oral story has been passed through the generations but never, never, proven. There is Indian ancestry as our Grandmother and my Aunts look much like the features or characteristics of the Indian. Black hair and high cheekbones. Unknown connection to any Indian ancestry. (1706) 
Here's the case for this Spartanburg Co. SC man being my Martin:

     (A) The names of some of Martin's Spartanburg Co. SC neighbors are the same as neighbors in Gwinnett Co. GA where we find Martin on the 1830 census. He apparently went to Georgia by 1822 (judging by pob and dob of children) and is definitely in Gwinnett Co. GA in 1827.

     (B) Martin is in the same location in Spartanburg, SC (Beaverdam Creek on S. Pacolet River) as Samuel Bowling who, I think, is the same Samuel who apparently left there after selling land in 1817, went to Monroe Co. TN and then later to GA and AL Some of Samuel's family moved into the same vicinity as my known Bowlings but not necessarily in the same time frame.

     (This Samuel is, I think, the ancestor of Betty Fryrear whose  DNA testee is in Group 6). This Samuel named a son Martin. Samuel has neighbors in Spartanburg that have same names as neighbors or associates of Martin: John Grogan, James Fisher, Willy Brown, John Cameron for instance. 

     (C) My Martin is too old to be a son of Samuel but Samuel has a neighbor in Spartanburg 1810 census named John Bowling. John apparently dies before the 1820 census. That census shows Nancy Bowlen with 4 males in the household the right age to be Martin. Nancy may be widow of John and mother of my Martin???

     (D) Martin married Lucinda Unknown, who was born in S.C., meaning perhaps that he met and married her in SC, probably Spartanburg Co.

     (E) In 1830 in Spartanburg, SC, there is a Dudley Bowling born about 1800. Are you ready for this? Martin's first son was named Dudley Bowling born 1822 GA. Can this naming pattern be a coincidence? On the 1830 census in Spartanburg County, we have neighbors Willy Brown, a John Cameron and next door to him a James Fisher. Dudley Bowling's sister Darcus married James Fisher.

I have tried but cannot make a case for my Martin Bowling being a close relative of siblings Darcus and Dudley. (1793)

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

Matthew Fh4655 (6K) 746i
-----------------

Matthew 1743-1825 (Rin=53951)/mc1772 Agness ----- --His father was William #746 


cb *
Sarah 1773-1859/m      Reynolds Christy Neil 1774-1842


cba*
Robert 1774-1857/m<1801/9 1/w Martha Mercer 1779-1815, 2/w m1815 Ann J. Mercer 1791/4-



1858 He is Rin=54015, Findagrave 155923779, Mansfield City Cem., Richland, Ohio 

LDQL-ZKR.—See Family Group #559


cb  *
James 1782-1812/m1807 Martha Collins (1787-1851)--See Family Group #291 
He is Rin=54018 & FAG=69272709, She is Rin=54019 & Findagrave 69272736


c
Thomas 1787-1818 4655f, 6K Rin=46559, Findagrave 99999999, MSLW-68W. 


cb *
Agnes b<1790-d>1824/ Hugh McGill


cb *
Matthew 1791-dc1826 (might have married 1799 Hannah Clawson, Hamilton, OH)



Jane b1792


cba*
Alexander 1794-1844 (Rin=54020)/Elizabeth Boyd Mercer (could be sister of Ann J. Mercer, 
above)—See Family Group #024



Sally b1797

2/w Elizabeth ----- (she alive 1825)--

  ba
Ann 1799-1884/m<1831 1/h James W. Allison d1820 or d>1836 2/h Robert Lyons 

She FAG=86141889 --She could be the daughter of James Fh291 above

*
Named in father's 1824 will. Son James was listed as deceased. Ann not shown as daughter.
Matthew’s (Fh4655, 746i) 1824 will names his children and also names a brother Robert and Robert's son Alexander, Robert is probably Fh558, 746h.


a
Named in a March 5, 1832 land deed but Robert is listed as deceased (?).


b
Children per source #940 and #613


c
In 1790 Census Chartiers Township, Washington County, Pennsylvania,



with 2 males over 16, 4 males under 16 and 3 females.   

Birth, Parents, Lineage

Matthew Bowland was born 175? in Virginia. (613) He no doubt was the son of William Fh746. (7)
Marriage and Children

Matthew Bowland in Washington County, Pennsylvania, bought of John Struthersxe "Struthers:John", Jr.  152 acres of land on April 1, 1790, part of "South Hill", and settled upon the farm where he lived and died about 1824. (436) Matthew Bowland bought of John Struthers, Jr., one hundred and fifty-two acres of land on the 1st of April, 1790, part of "South Hill," and settled upon the farm where he lived and died about 1824. 
He left sons, Alexander, Robert, and Matthew; a son James died prior to his decease. 
To Alexander his father left the farm, but to Matthew the use of one-half of it during his life. He died a few years later. The homestead is now in the possession of Samuel Skiles. Robert, son of Matthew, moved to Cadiz, Ohio, and settled there. (2180) Matthew left children (436):

a.
Daughter Sarah became the wife of Reynolds C. Niel. (   ) Reynolds Christy Neill was born in County Antrim, Ireland, in 
1774, where the Reynolds and Neill families were as old as the Pillar Towers. He immigrated to America when a young man, 
and located at Canonsburg, Penn. Soon afterward he married Sarah Bowlen, and engaged in the mercantile business, riding to 
Philadelphia on horseback to order his goods, after which they were hauled over the mountains to Canonsburg. He was 
engaged in the mercantile business for many years. Reynolds C. Neill was the father of four children, namely: Samuel, 
Reynolds Christy, James and Nancy. He purchased a farm in North Strabane township in 1810, one mile south of
 
Canonsburg, which still remains in the name. He died April 14, 1842, his wife June 3, 1859, in the eighty-sixth year of her 
age, and both are interred in Oak Spring cemetery (Canonsburg, Washington, Pennsylvania). Samuel Neill received an 
education at Jefferson College, after which he went West, locating at Shelbyville, Ill. James married and raised a family. He 
died on his farm in Ohio. Nancy died in the thirty- eighth year of her age.


(http://www.chartiers.com/beers-project/articles/neill-1005.html)

b.
Robert (Fh559). Robert (Fh559), son of Matthew, moved to Cadiz, Ohio and settled there. (436) Son Robert (Fh559) 
was born September 19, 1774 and died 1857 in Mansfield, Richland County, Ohio. (613) Robert (Fh559), James (Fh291), 
Thomas (4655f), and Alexander (Fh024) were brothers, the sons of Matthew Bowland Fh4655 6K. Robert Bowland (1774-
1857) Fh559, 4655b 6K, Rin=54015, Findagrave 155923779, Mansfield City Cem., Richland, Ohio LDQL-ZKR.
c.
James (Fh291) died prior to Matthew's decease. James Bowland (1782-1812) Fh291, 4655d, 6K, Rin-54018, 


Findagrave 6927209, Cross Creek Cemetery, Washington County, PA. LDQL-ZBK. Robert (Fh559), James (Fh291), Thomas 
(4655f), and Alexander (Fh024) were brothers, the sons of Matthew Bowland Fh4655 6K. 

d.
Alexander (Fh024). To Alexander his father left the farm, but to Matthew the use of 1/2 of it during his life. Matthew 
died a few years later. (436)  Robert (Fh559), James (Fh291), Thomas (4655f), and Alexander (Fh024) were brothers, the 
sons of Matthew Bowland Fh4655 6K. Alexander Bowland (1785-1844) Fh024, 4655d, 6K Rin=54020, Findagrave 
99999999 KFR2-KQK (2184)   Alexander Bowland (1785-1844) Fh024, 4655d, 6K Rin=54020, Findagrave 99999999 
KFR2-KQK (2184)     

e.
Matthew. To Alexander his father left the farm, but to Matthew the use of 1/2 of it during his life. Matthew died a few years 
later. (436) Matthew Bowland was the son of Matthew Bowland Sr. (Fh4655). He was named in his father's September 15, 
1824 will. (622)(2020)  His father left the farm to older brother Alexander Bowland (Fh024,4655d,6K), but to Matthew the 
use of 1/2 of it during his life. (436)  Matthew had brothers Alexander (Fh024,4655d,6K), Robert (Fh559,4655b,6K) 
and James (Fh291,4655c,6K) and sisters Sarah Neil and Agnes McGill. (622)

f.
Thomas, died 1818, not mentioned in his father’s 1824 will. Probably had no issue, while deceased son James did 
have a 
family. Thomas Bowland was the son of Matthew Bowland Jr. (Fh4655) He died in 1818, apparently not married. His brother 
Alexander handled the estate. $24.80.   Twelve months after date I promise to pay Robert Bowland and Matha Maholm (late 
Martha Bowland) executors of the Estate of James Bowland, deceased, on order Twenty-four dollars Eighty cents with interest 
being the dividend due the aforesaid executor from the Estate of  Thomas Bowland, deceased, Witness my hand and seal 
this 25th day of Jan 1821. Rob Thomas Bowland (1787-1820) 4655f, 6K Rin=46559, Findagrave 99999999, MSLW-68W.


Robert (Fh559), James (Fh291), Thomas (4655f), and Alexander (Fh024) were brothers, the sons of Matthew Bowland 
Fh4655 6K. 

g.
 Martha Collins Bowland Maholm (1787-1851) Rin=54019, Findagrave 6927236, Cross Creek Cemetery, Washington 
County, PA., K14M-D9K. She married Maholm 4 April 1820.

h.
Daughter Agnes married Hugh McGillxe "McGill:Hugh" of Canonsburg; 

i.
Daughter Ann married James Allisonxe "Allison:James", a son of William Allison (436) A deed dated March 5, 1832 had grantor James W. and 
Anne B. Allisonxe "Allison:James W.", formally Bowland (4655h) of Powland, Trumbull County, Ohio grant 1/4 part 
interest in some Washington 
County, Pennsylvania, land to Alexander Bowland (Fh024, 4655b) and Robert Bowland (4655c), deceased. Witness by 
William Colneyxe "Colney:William" and Jane Bowland. This was recorded in Deed Book 2P, page 170, of Washington County, Pennsylvania. 
(627) Ann married James Allison, a son of William Allison; later she became the wife of a Mr. Lyon, of Cadiz, Ohio, who is 
at present a banker in that place. 


Ann Allison is living with her son Thomas Allison in the 1880 Census of Canton, Washington County, Pennsylvania. 
(7) 


Household Record,  1880 United States Census 

 
Thomas ALLISON
Self
M ,  
Male
44
PA ,  Farms ,  
PA ,  PA 

 
Sarah ALLISON

Wife
M ,  
Female
39
PA ,  Keep House
PA ,  PA 

 
Robert ALLISON

Son
S ,  
Male
19
PA ,  Farms
PA ,  PA 

 
William ALLISON

Son
S ,  
Male
16
PA ,   ,  

PA ,  PA 

 
Thomas S. ALLISON
Son 
S ,  
Male
12
PA ,   ,  

PA ,  PA 

 
Eliza ALLISON

Dau
S ,  
Female
9
PA ,   ,  

PA ,  PA 

 
Blanch ALLISON

Dau
S ,  
Female
2
PA ,   ,  

PA ,  PA 

 
ALLISON

Dau
S ,  
Female
4M
PA ,   ,  

PA ,  PA 

 
Ann ALLISON

Mother
W ,  
Female
84
PA ,   , 

PA ,  PA 


Source Information: Census Place, Canton, Washington, Pennsylvania

Movement

“Pontiac’s War, shortly after 1761, fueled the decision by the English Parliament to issue the Proclamation of 1763 restricting colonial expansion past the Appalachian Divide.” (1844) The Bowling boys paid no attention to this restriction. (7) Matthew Bowland was an "early landowner" of Washington County, Pennsylvania. Also mentioned on that page was William Bollan (This could be Fh770). (2152, page 70) 
1781

Mathew Bowland was on the 1781 tax list with 2 horses, 1 cattle, of Cecil Township, Washington County, Pennsylvania. (273) Mathew Bowland was on the 1781 tax list of Cecil Township, Washington County, Pennsylvania. Also in that township in 1781 was Sims Bowland and Robert Boland. (2151) 
1783

Sim Bolam (sic) and William Bowlin (sic) were on the 1783 tax list of Cecil Township, Washington County, Pennsylvania. (616) 
1784

Matthew Bowland was on the 1784 tax list of Cecil Township, Washington County, Pennsylvania. (648) 
1786

Matthew Bowling was on the 1786 tax list of Cecil Township, Washington County, Pennsylvania. (1905) 
1790

Matthew Bowland was on page 254 of the 1790 Census of  Chartiers Township, Washington County, Pennsylvania with 2 males over 16, 4 males under 16 and 3 females. (578)(64)(1431) The next entry was for the family of William Bowland. (Fh860,746j) with 1 males over 16, 3 males under 16 and 2 females. Other near neighbors were Charles Campbell XE "Campbell:Charles" , James Gault XE "Gault:James" , John Hays XE "Hays:John" , John Cannon XE "Cannon:John" , and Thomas Weaver XE "Weaver:Thomas"  all listed as being neighbor of Sims Bowland’s land in 1786 and in 1790 sold to Robert Bowland. (578)(64)(1431) Matthew Bowland in Washington County, Pennsylvania, bought of John Struthersxe "Struthers:John", Jr.  152 acres of land on April 1, 1790, part of "South Hill", and settled upon the farm where he lived and died about 1824. (436) This “South Hill” of John Struthers, Jr. was immediately west of “High Tower” patented to Sims Bowling (Fh627) on June 12, 1786. (641) On April 5, 1790, Sims Bowling sold some of his land to Robert Bowling (Fh558) (630) Mathew Bowland had land holdings in 1790 in Chartiers Township, Washington County, Pennsylvania.  (543) John Struthers took a warrant for a tract of land (Chartiers Twp. PA) which was surveyed to him as "South Hill," and contained three hundred and eighty-two acres. Patent for this land was obtained Nov.13, 1786. Three year later, Jan.13, 1789, he sold one hundred and fifty-three acres of it to the Rev. Matthew Henderson, and on the 1st of April, 1790, he conveyed one hundred and fifty-two acres to Matthew Bowland. The last tract was adjoining Matthew Henderson, Thomas White, and James and Charles Campbell. (2180)
1790-1791 and 1795

Mathew Rowling (sic) was a male over 16 years old on the personal property tax record of 1790-1791 and 1795 of Ohio, Hancock or Brooke County, present day West Virginia. (1065)

1791, 1792, 1793, 1794

Matthew Bowling, along with Robert (746h) and William Bowling (746j,Fh860), are on the 1791,1792,1793 and 1794 tax lists of Chartiers Township, Washington County, Pennsylvania. (455)(648)(656) Matthew Bowling was a township officer, assessor, 1794 in Chartiers Township, Washington County, Pennsylvania. (476)  
1800

Mathew Boland is in the 1800 Census of Washington County, Pennsylvania. On the same page are two entries for Robert Boland and an entry for a William Boland. (547)  
1810

These are the Heads of Household for the 1810 Census Chartiers Twp., Washington County PA.

Bowland, Mathew (Fh4655)
Bowland, Robert (Fh559)

(http://www.rootsweb.ancestry.com/~pawashin/census/1810/chartiers-twp_alpha-names_corrected.html)

Mathew Bowland is on page 572 of the 1810 Census of Chartiers Township, Washington County, Pennsylvania, with 00111  
0001  021. On the same page is Robert Bowland. (499) Matthew Bowland and Robert Bowland (Fh559) both of Chartiers Township, Washington County, Pennsylvania, were executors in the 1812 estate of Joseph Holmesxe "Holmes:Joseph". (615) Laws of Pennsylvania : 28 Mar 1814. 134. An act authorizing administrators to complete the titles to lots and lands. That Mary Hutcheson and Matthew Bowland, administrators of Thomas Hutcheson, late of Washington county, dec., are hereby authorized to convey a deed of conveyance 33 1/4 acres, part of a tract containing 248 acres, 106 perches, as Alexander Huston dec., and possessed by virtue of a parole contract with Matthew Ritchie, dec., to the widow of Alexander Huston, and his children, as they are entitled to by the wills of Alexander and Hugh Huston. That Isabella Ritchie, surviving executrix, of Matthew Ritchie, is hereby authorized to convey by deed of conveyance 66 3/4 acres to the widow of Alexander Huston and the children of Hugh Huston. (http://genforum.genealogy.com/cgi-bin/pageload.cgi?matthew::huston::1536.html)

1820
Matthew Bollen is on page 158 of the 1820 Census of Chartiers Township, Washington County, Pennsylvania, with 000121   00001   0100. (499)

0—male under 10

0—male 10 to under 16

0—male between 16 and 18

1—male 16 to under 26

2—male 26 to under 45

1—male 45 and up i.e. b<1775

0—female under 10

0—female 10 to under 16

0—female 16 to under 26

0—female 26 to under 45

1—female 45 and up i.e. b<1775
Death

Matthew Bowland (6K Fh4655) died about 1824 in Washington County, Pennsylvania. (436)(613) Matthew Bowland had a will dated September 15, 1824, Chartiers Township, Washington County, Pennsylvania. Executors named were John Hutchisonxe "Hutchison:John" and Alexander Bowland (son) and witnesses were Walter Maxwellxe "Maxwell:Walter" and Thomas Robertsonxe "Robertson:Thomas". 
Beneficiaries were: wife Elizabeth, sons 
Alexander, 
Robert and 
Matthew, 
daughters 
Sarah Neil and 
Agnes McGill and 
"brother Robert and son, Alexander" and also 
"children of deceased son James: 
Anne W. Bowland and 
Robert W. Bowland". 
The will was probated February 18, 1825, Washington County, Pennsylvania. (622) A deed dated March 5, 1832 had grantor James W. and Anne B. Allisonxe "Allison:James W.", formally Bowland (4655h) of Powland, Trumbull County, Ohio grant 1/4 part interest in some Washington County, Pennsylvania, land to Alexander Bowland (4655b) and Robert Bowland (4655c), deceased. Witness by William Colneyxe "Colney:William" and Jane Bowland. This was recorded in Deed Book 2P, page 170, of Washington County, Pennsylvania. (627) Matthew Bowland is listed in Will Book #4, page 104-105 of Washington County, Pennsylvania. Will dated 1824, probated 10 Feb 1825. See family sheet as to who was named in the will. (1021)(2020)

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

Mitchell Fh4658 (6S) 120g
-----------------

Mitchell bc1790 (Rin=47291)/m      Nancy ------- --His father was Benjamin #120(Rin=44516)

A Descendant kit 76632 tested in to DNA Group 6



Marion b1834 TN/m1872 Nancy Margaret "Maggie" Ingram--A Descendant kit 76632 tested in to DNA Group 6

Birth, Parents, Lineage

Mitchell Bowling was born about 1790. Mitchell Bowling married to a Nancy unknown. Their son Marion Bolling was born in 1834, in Memphis (Shelby County) Tennessee. Marion Bolling married Nancy Margaret "Maggie" Ingram in 1872 in Fayette, West Virginia. (2091) Descendant Kit 76632 tested into DNA 6. Mitchell Bolling was the son of Benjamin and Sarah "Sally" (Hancock) Bolling. (53)  Mitchell Bolling and Dicey Bolling said they were born in Virginia. (7) Mitchell Bolling was the son of Benjamin and Sallie T. "Tabitha" Bolling (Fh120). (173) Mitchel Bolin was on Capt. Harvey's district 1815 tax list of Randolph County, North Carolina as one white poll on 200 acres Little River. (942) Mitchell Boling went to Kentucky, (320) The Bolling Family file in the genealogy room at Randolph County, North Carolina, says that Mitchell Boling "moved back to Virginia". (1426)

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

Nathaniel Fh466 (6N2) 3971x
-----------------

Nathaniel 1779-1870/ (Rin=18572,FAG=153134679,LVMQ-HBM) mc1805/6 Nancy Q. Scroggins (or Nancy Shackleford 1780-1862)

His father was John Bolen Fh3971 (1759-1815 (b Culperper VA) and mother Meeky ---- b1760)

a
Lydia Ann b1807 (In 1820 Census)

a
Edward 1809-1876 Rin=25340 (In 1820 Census)/1/w m1828 Mary "Polly" Bowen 1812-1865, 



2/w m1866 Lutetia Lillard (    -1895)


a
John Turner b1811 (In 1820 Census)/m1830 1/w Hana Bower(s), 2/w Martha -----


a
Robert b1812 Rappahannock,Va. (In 1820 Census)


a
Daniel 1814-1853 (In 1820 Census)/m1838 Eliza Thompson


a
Children per source #885.

0 Rin=65571 Thomas Vilfroy, Greeley, CO (in 2019) cofunguy@yahoo.com
Nathaniel
466, 6N2 Source (2098)
Autosomal DNA Cousins (Surnames Cranford and Passenger) of Todd Bolen, trace their Bolen ancestor back to Nathaniel.

Birth, Parents, Lineage

Nathaniel Bolen was born 1779. (141)(885)(931)(937)(943) Nathaniel Bolen was born September 20, 1779. (2098) Nathaniel Bolen was born in 1779 in Sperryville, Rappahannoch, Virginia. (?) Their Bible record is available on-line at the web site of the Virginia State Library. (2098)


Marriage and Children

Nathaniel Bolen married Nancy Scroggins. She was born 1780. (141)(155)(885)(937)(943) Nathaniel Bolen (1779-1870) married Nancy Q. Scroggins (1780-1862). (487) Nathaniel Bolen married about 1805/6 Nancy Scrogging (1780-1862).  Her parents are unknown. (931)(937)  
They had children: 

a.
Lydia Ann born 1807. (7)(141) 

b.
Edward born 1809 in Hampshire County, Virginia, who married first Mary "Polly" Bowen and second Lutetia Lillard. (7)(141) Edward Bolen married 1828 Mary Bowen, the daughter of Thomas and Nellie (Smith) Bowen. (487) Edward (1809-1876) was born Hampshire County, Virginia.  He married second 1866 Lutetia Lillard in Rappahannock County, Virginia.  She was the daughter Strother and Betsy Libbard (sic).  (?)They had a son Edward Bolen born 1809 in Hampshire County, Virginia. (931)(937) Son Edward Bolen was born March 16, 1807 in Hamphire County, Virginia (now West Virginia). He married first Mary Bowen (1812-1865). Son Edward Bolen died 8 September 1876 in Rappahanock County, Virginia.  (943) “The Bolens (probably means son Edward and grandson John Henry Bolen) settled in the Blue Ridge mountains around Sperryville in Washington, Virginia. The government ----- their homestead ------they ----Sheyendoah National Park. The John Henry Bolen cemetery is on top of Big ----- mountain—GG. Brown Hollow. It is still maintain by Bolen descendants. (1089)

c.
John Turner born 1811 who married 1830 Hanna Bowers. (7)(141) John Turner was born 1811, he married first 1830 Hana Bowers and 2rd Martha -----.  (885)  

d.
Robert born 1812. (7)(141) Robert was born 1812 in Virginia. (155)

e.
Danie (male) born 1814. (7)(141) Daniel Bolen (466e), born Culpepper Co., Va. and was killed in 1850 in Mo. Daniel Bolen's father was Nathaniel (Fh466) born and died in Culpepper Co., Va. Daniel Bolen (466e) married Eliza Thompson on September 5, 1838 in Marion, Missouri. Daniel Bolen (466e) died on April 25, 1853. Daniel Bolen was born in Virginia. (1584) 

Movement

1794

Nathan Boling was bound to John Belt, millwright, 1794, Fauquier County, Virginia. (1697) 

1800

Nathaniel Bolen turned 21 in 1800, he was "bound out in Culpeper County, Virginia, Court, to Richard Janney, Carder", for an unspecified amount of time. Janney is not to be found in Culpeper County, Virginia, after this. (937)

1810

Nathaniel Boling was in a 1810 Census of Culpeper County, Virginia with 1 male under 10, 1 male 26-45, 1 female under 10 and 1 female 26-45. (7)(349) 

1820

Nathaniel Bowlin was in the 1820 Census of Culpeper County, Virginia. (348)  Nathaniel Bolen had one slave under 14 in the 1820 Census. (943)  
White Males 
under 10—3 (Probably sons John, Robert, and Dan..)
White Males 
10-16—1 (Probably son Edward)
White Males 
26-45—1 (Probably Nathaniel)
White Fermale 
10-16—1 (Probably daughter Lydia Ann)
White Female 
26-45---1 (Probably wife Nancy)
Male Slave under 
14--1  

1830

I can not find Nathaniel Bolen in a 1830 Census of Virginia. 

1840

Nathaniel Bolen was on the 1840 Census of Rappahannock, Virginia.

White Male 60-70—1 (Nathaniel)

White Female 50-60---1 (Probably his wife)

Prior household is of a large Edward Bolen family—(Probably Nathaniel’s son Edward)   

1850

Nathaniel Bolen was on the 1850 Census of Rappahannock, Virginia, born 1780 VA. (2089) 

1860

Nathiel Bolen was on the 1860 Census of Rappahannock, Virginia, born 1791, VA. (2089) 

Military

Tradition states that Nathaniel Bolen was a Drum-major in the War of 1812. (931)(937)  Nathaniel Bolen was a Drum-major in the War of 1812. (1090) 

Death

Nathan Bolen had been a member of the Thornton Gap Church and it was from that organization's record that his date of death is found. Also, copies of the Bolen Family Bible show the same which date is 1 April 1870, Nathaniel Bolen being 91 years of age. (931)(937) Nathaniel Bolen died April 1, 1870, aged 91 years, 6 months and 12 days. (141)(2098) FAG=153134679

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

Nelson Fh4665 (6K) UK
-----------------

Nelson 1788-1871(Rin=51347, LJNR-6LY, FAG=117971706)/m    Mary Coalbank/Colebank b1797-1857

 or m1806 Mary Anne Murry 1788-1851—Nelson may have had brothers William and Bailey (Fh081 Kit 894165 DNA 6) who married 1797 Jean Carpenter. Working with Jimmy Lee Bolin Kit 894165 we were able to get his lineage back to Bailey Fh081, whose father was William bc1755. I didn't assign a Family String to his lineage because I think it may connect to String M7. See the place index for Amherst, VA showing the possible connection.
 A descendant kit 933625 tested into DNA 6 


a  c
Mary Jane b1806-1810


a  c
Bailey 1811 PA-d1887/m<1835 1/w Melinda Franks (1814-<1860)/m<1860 2/w Rebecca ----




A descendant kit 933625 tested into DNA 6


a  c
Eliza J. c1813-1888/m        Abraham Franks (1816-1895)


  b  d
Keziah/Casiah 1814-1901/m1835 Calvin Conner 1811-1885—she FAG=41712914


a  cd
William 1816-1820->1870/mc1840 Mary Polly Duncan

a  c
Allen 1822-<1893/m     1/w Anna Hugh, 2/w Susan McCarty—he FAG=117971701

abc
Elizabeth bc1832


a
Children per Source #403 (J.H. Beers, 1893)

b
Children per Source #612 (Informant Claire Giler)

c
Children per Source #1910 

d
With of near father Nelson, age 70, in the 1860 Census. 
Birth, Parents, Lineage

Nelson Bowlen (Rin=51347, 9V4W-GF2) was born 1788 in Virginia or Pennsylvania. (612) Nelson Bowlen was a farmer  whose parents were natives of Ireland (sic) who came to America in an early day. (403) 

Nelson Boulin  was in the 1820 Dunkard, 
Greene, PA. Census, age male 26-45. (i.e. born 1775-1795)

Nelson Bowlin  was in the 1830 Dunkard, 
Greene, PA. Census, age male 40-49 (i.e. born 1781-1790)
Nelson Bowlen was in the 1840 Dunkard, 
Greene, PA. Census, age male 50-59  (i.e. born 1781-1790)

Nelson Bolen    was in the 1850 Dunkard, 
Greene, PA. Census, age 60 (i.e. born about 1790) born in PA. (612) 

Nelson Boland  was in the 1860 Perry,  
Greene, PA. Census, age 70 (i.e. born about 1790), born in VA. (612) 

Nelson Bolden  was in the 1870 Cumberland, 
Greene, PA. Census, age 82 (i.e. born about 1788), born in VA. (612)

He died in 1871

Marriage and Children

Nelson Bowlen married Mary Coalbank who was born 1797 in Monongalia County, Virginia, now West Virginia. Parts of Monongalia were also in present day Pennsylvania. (472) Peter Colebank's daughter, Mary Colebank, married Nelson Bowman (sic), the son of Irish immigrants. Nelson was a farmer, a member of the Disciple Church, voted the Whig Party and served in the war of 1812. (1910) 

Nelson Bowlen married Mary Coalbank, who bore him six children, namely 

a.
Bailey (403), Bailey born about 1812, PA, probably married Melinda Franks (1814-1860). (1909)

b.
William (1910), William (403), born about 1821.

c.
Allen (1910), Allen who was born 1822 in what is now West Virginia and died before 1893 (403), 

d.
Eliza (1910), Eliza J. married Abraham Franks (1816-1895). (1909) 

e.
Mary Jane (403)(1910)
f.
Elizabeth (403),  

Nelson Bowlen married 28 December 1806, New Geneva, Nicholson Twp., Fayette, Pennsylvania, Mary Anne Murry 1788-1851. (LDS)  She FAG=120665996 (birth there 1733 but no picture). They had children; 

Elizabeth, bc1832 (612,1850 Census, Age 18, i.e. b1832) 

Casiah/Keziah Bowlen who was born 1814 and married 1835 Calvin Connor (sic, probably Conner). (612) Keziah Bolen married Calvin Conner. They had daughter Lydia Ann Conner who married Charles Luther Stewart (1821-1929) (2183) She FAG=41712914)
Several children of Mary Coalbank and Nelson Bowlen were:

 a.
Bailey Bolen - born 1812 or 1813 in Greene County, Pennsylvania. He married Melinda Franks, daughter of Abraham and Margaret Kechler Franks, born in 1815 in Pennsylvania. In the 1850 census Bailey and Melinda lived in German Township, Fayette County, Pennsylvania, where Bailey was a laborer, possibly on his brother-in-law's farm. Their children were Mary Jane, born February 7, 1835, in Fayette County, Pennsylvania; Margaret, born 1837; Eliza, born 1839; Michael, born 1841 and Daugherty, born in 1845. When Melinda died somewhere after 1850, 
Bailey married Rebecca _______, born in 1825 in Pennsylvania. Their children were John M. (1860), and Sarah (Sallie) (1863). In the 1880 federal census, Rebecca and Bailey were living in Cass Township, Monongalia, West Virginia. Rebecca was age 55. Bailey Bolen died in 1887. Daughter Mary Jane Bolen married Jacob Stumbeck, born about 1830 in Germany. Mary Jane died in 1908 in Tama, Iowa and is buried in Sheridan Cemetery, Sheridan, Iowa 
beside her husband Jacob. (FAG=117971705)

b.
Allen Bowlen - born in 1822. He married Anna Hugh (born November 4, 1819). Their children were Hannah Bowlen (1849), Isaac Bowlen, James L. Bowlen (1864- May 27, 1876), Margaret Bowlen, Mary E. Bowlen ( ____-
January 15, 1857), and Sarah Bowlen. Anna Hugh Bowlin died on January 15, 1856 and Allen married Susannah F. McCarty (July 16, 1831 - August 21, 1889). Their children were Minerva Bowlen, Nelson Bowlen, Atthes Keziah Bowlen (1862), Samuel Bowlen (1864- 1952), May Bowlen (1867), Michael Bowlen (1870 - 1951), and William Bowlen (1873-1949). Allen died July 12, 1891 in Kelso, Cowlitz, Washington. Allen Bowlen (deceased), son of Nelson and Mary Bowlen, was born in 1822, in West Virginia, and there learned the tailor's trade, which he followed for several years. He was twice married, first to Anna Hugh and their children were Hannah (wife of Lewis F. McCrory), Sarah (married to Samuel Artis), Isaac, Mary E., Margaret and James, all except Hannah being now deceased. For his second wife Allen Bowlen was married to Susan McCarty, who bore him children as follows: Minerva (deceased), Nelson (deceased), Keziah (deceased), Samuel, May, Michael and William. Mr. Bowlen was formerly a Democrat, and afterward united with the Republican party, and in religion he was a member of the M. E. Church, in which he served as steward and trustee. (FAG=117971705)
From the Place Index
Fayette,PA-created 1783 from Westmoreland



Below is Mel Arendt’s brother-in-law’s ancestor Nelson—He is DNA 6 Bill Bolen Kit 933625 6K


6K
Nelson (Fh4665 (1788-1871)) m1806 (Mary Anne Murry),burried1871(He FAG=117971706) –He is in Greene 




County,  PA in all census 1820 to 1870. A descendant kit 933625 tested into DNA 6


6K

Bailey (4665b, had son Michael) r1842(birth of son)  


6K


Michael F. (son of Bailey, grandson of Nelson Fh4665) b1842

Greene,PA-created 1796 from Washington



Martin (probably Nelson Fh4665) r


6K
Nelson (Fh4665) r1812(son’s birth),r1820(Census),r1830(Census),r1840(Census),r1850(Census),r1860(Census), 

r1870(Census) A descendant kit 933625 tested into DNA 6


6K

Bailey (4665b) b1812

6K

Keziah (4665c) m1835 (Calvin Conner),r1850,r1860,d1901


6K

William (4665d) r1870(Census)


6K

Nancy Eliza Jane (4665e) b1819

Military Service

Nelson Bowlen served in Capt. Everly's Company of the Virginia Militia in the War of 1812. His pension was SO-24831. (935) Nelson Bolen served in the War of 1812, from May to August 1814. He was a private in a Company from Monongalia County, Virginia. (718)(936) Nelson Bolen was a private Monongalia County, Virginia, (now West Virginia) -  Muster Roll of Captain James Hervey's Company from Monongalia and Brooke Counties. In Service at Norfolk in 1814. No other Bolens listed. Lots of other names—none farmiliar. (718)(1769)(2035, page 176)  
Nelson Bolen served in the War of 1812, 6th Reg't Virginia Militia (Lt. Cols Dickenson, Scott, Coleman), others in that Reg't were:


Pleasant Boling (UK) (966) 


William Boling (966) 


Isaac Boling (966) 


James Boling (966) 


George Bowling (966) 


Abijah Bowling (Fh008) (966)  

There was a James McCrary also. (966) Nelson Bolen, War of 1812, 6 Regiment Virginia Militia. Private, Series M-602, Roll 20. (966) Nelson Bolen, War of 1812, 6 Regiment Virginia Militia. Private,  Misc. Roll-Box Roll-Exct  20 602. (1414) Nelson Bowlen was listed in the Pension file for the War of 1812. (934) Nelson Bolen served in the War of 1812 from Monongolia County, Virginia (now West Virginia). Nelson Bowlen declared in a pension application that he served the full period of 60 days in the War of 1812 and had gone from Robinson's Run in Monongolia County, Virginia (where he had enlisted) to Richmond, Virginia. The declaration says that he married Mary Anne Murry at Geneva (New Geneva) on December 25, 1806. New Geneva is in Fayette County, Pennsylvania, just across the Monongahela River from Green County, Pennsylvania. (612) Nelson Bowlen served in the War of 1812. (403) Nelson Bowlen was a Whig and member of the Disciples church. (403)

Movement

1820

Nelson Boulin was in the 1820 Census of Dunkard Township, Green County, Pennsylvania. There was:

1 male 

26-45 (Nelson probably), 
2 males 

under 10 (perhaps Bailey and William), 
1 female 

26-45 (probably Nelson's wife), 
1 female 

under 10 (probably Keziah), and 
2 females 
10-16 (probably daughters Mary Jane and Elizabeth). 

1830

Nelson Bowlin was in the 1830 Dunkard, Greene, PA. Census

1830 United States Federal Census

Name:
Nelson Bowlin

Home in 1830 (City, County, State):
Dunkard, Greene, Pennsylvania

Free White Persons - Males - 15 thru 19:
1 (1811-1815)
(Probably Bailey)

Free White Persons - Males - 10 thru 14:
1 (1816-1820)
(Probably William)

Free White Persons - Males - 5 thru 9:

1 (1821-1825)
(Probably Allen)

Free White Persons - Males - 40 thru 49:
1

(Nelson)
Free White Persons - Females - 20 thru 29:
2 (1801-1810)
(Probably Mary Jane and Unknown)
Free White Persons - Females - 15 thru 19:
1 (1811-1815)
(Probably Eliza J.)
Free White Persons - Females - 5 thru 9:
1 (1821-1825)

Free White Persons - Females - Under 5:
1 (1826-1830) 
Free White Persons - Females - 40 thru 49:
1

(Probably his wife Mary)
Free White Persons - Females - 80 thru 89:
1 (1741-1750)
(Probably Nelson’s or his wife’s mother) 
1840

Nelson Bowlen was in the 1840 Dunkard, Greene, PA. Census, he was the only male, age 50-59. (i.e. born 1781-1790)

1 Female 10-14 (1826-1830)
1 Female 15-19 (1821-1825) 

1 Female same age bracket as male.

1840 United States Federal Census

Name: Nelson Bowlen

Home in 1840 (City, County, State): Dunkard, Greene, Pennsylvania

Free White Persons - Males - 50 thru 59:
1
(Nelson) 

Free White Persons - Females - 10 thru 14:
1
(Maybe Mary Jane or Elizabeth)
Free White Persons - Females - 15 thru 19:
1
(Maybe Mary Jane or Elizabeth)
Free White Persons - Females - 50 thru 59:
1
(Probably wife Mary)

Daughter Casiah/Keziah was married 1835 and probably gone. (Boys Bailey, William, and Allen, ages 28, 19 and 18 respectively were also probably gone) 

1850

 (TB 2016—I found the 1850 Census on Ancestry. Nelson was in the 1850 Census (taken 14 May 1850) of Dunkard Township, Greene County, Pennsylvania at residence #83. He was age 60 (i.e. born about 1790) born in Pennsylvania. No occupation was listed but he had real estate valued at $200. In the household were Mary, age 62 (i.e. born about 1788—so this would be Mary Anne Murry, not Mary Colebank/Coalbank, born 1797) and daughter Elizabeth age 18 (born c1832), both born in Pennsylvania. A male named William Hugins? Age 16 is in the household. He was deaf and dumb. At the next residence #84 was Calvin and Casiah/Keziah Connor (Nelson's daughter). How was the surname spelled? Canner.) Some neighbors were: Sames, McClure, Anderson, Wilson and Stoneking.  
1851

At the Bald Hill M.E. Church Cemetery, Dunkard Township, Greene County, Pennsylvania, in I found Mary A. Bowling wife of N. Bowling, died September 13, 1851, aged 78 years (b1773, sic, age probably wrong based on 1850 Census above). (612)(LDS) 

There is an entry for her in Findagrave.com 120665996—no picture.
1853

On 2 March 1853, Nelson Bolen, of Dunkard Township, Green County, Pennsylvania, Yeoman, was grantor to Oscar Minor of Eaton, Preble County, Ohio, Merchant, 40 acres of land in Starke County, Indiana. The land was sold for $25. The land was located in the NW quarter of the SE quarter of section 13 in township 33, of range 1 west, Starke County, Indiana. "It being the same tract of land granted to said Nelson Boland by the United States on the first day of April, 1852. (1022) 

1857

Mary E. (Coalbank/Colebank) Bowlen, wife of Nelson Bowlen, died 1857, Buried at Mount Moriah Cemetery, Smithfield, Fayette County, Pennsylvania. Findagrave 117971705 (No picture) 

1860

United States Census, 1860 for Nelson Boland

Name:
Nelson Boland

Residence:
Greene, Pennsylvania

Ward:
Perry Township

Age:
70 years

Estimated Birth Year:
1790

Birthplace:
Virginia

Gender:
Male

Nelson Boland was in the 1860 Census of Perry Township, Greene County, Pennsylvania, in the household, residence #378, of Calvin and Keziah Conner (Nelson's daughter). Nelson Boland was age 70 (i.e. born about 1790), a day laborer, born in Virginia, and he could not read or write. A short distance away at residence #372 was Baily Boland, age 49, day laborer, with Rebecca, age 36, and Elizabeth age 1, all born in Pennsylvania.

1870

Nelson Bolden was in the 1870 Census of Cumberland Township, Greene County, Pennsylvania, as age 82 (i.e. born 1788), a tailor, born in Virginia. Nelson Bolden was in the household, residence #234, of William Bolden age 49 born in Virginia, Mary age 44 and Louisa. None of the adults could read or write. 

1871

Nelson Bolen applied for a pension August 23, 1871, age 83 years (i. e. born about 1788), a resident of Cumberland Township, Greene County, Pennsylvania. He applied for a pension but did not receive it, as evidently the final papers were never filed. (apparently he died July, 1871) (612) 

Death

Nelson died in July, 1871. Nelson is buried in the Mount Moriah Baptist Church Cemetery, Smithfield, Fayette County, Pennsylvania. ( ) There is a entry for him in Findagrave.com 117971706. (No Picture) 

Many of the Bowlens of Fayette County, Pennsylvania, were coal miners. A list of them appears on this coal miner's memorial site:

http://patheoldminer.rootsweb.ancestry.com/faykyle1.htm








     FAG
  

Bowlen, Nelson 

(Miner, Kyle Mine, Fayette, PA.)
1886-1971 49795827
Son of Samuel
Bowlen, Mose 

(Miner, Kyle Mine, Fayette, PA.)
1834-1919 140227212
   Or

Bowlen, William Moses
(Miner, Kyle Mine, Fayette, PA.)
1892-1976 49793727
Son of Samuel


Bowlen, Samuel 

(Miner, Kyle Mine, Fayette, PA.)
1864-1952 49795883
Son of Allen
   Or

Bowlen, Samuel 

(Miner, Kyle Mine, Fayette, PA.)
1895-1979

Son of Samuel




Bowlen, Harry 

(Miner, Kyle Mine, Fayette, PA.)
1926-2010 137652251 
Mount Mount Cem.
  Or

Bowlen, Harry 

(Miner, Kyle Mine, Fayette, PA.)
1905-1978



Bowlen, James Enoch 
(Miner, Kyle Mine, Fayette, PA.)


Bowlen, Ralph 

(Miner, Kyle Mine, Fayette, PA.)
1907-1985 1285163310
Birthdates suggests brothers. Liked named individuals seem to be earlier or later generations.  

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

Pressley Fh4670 (6B) 634x
-----------------

Pressley Boley 1748-d<1774(Rin=58665)/mc1764 Hannah Rust (Her 1st Husband)—His father was Simon #634



John J. Boley c1764-1830/m1791 Rebecca Rector--See Family #4474


Presley Mountford Boley (1766-1838, Rin=61386) /m1804 Mary Ann Daniel—See Family #4671
A descenants Kit 457011 tested into DNA 6

1810 Census Charlotte County, Virginia

http://ftp.rootsweb.com/pub/usgenweb/ky/hardin/census/1810/

Head of Household


Males
Males
Males
Males
Males

Fh #
Rin #
Last Name
First Name
0-9
10to15
16-25
26-44
45+ 

4670b
61386
Bouldin

Presley

2
1
0
0
1

4670c
64100
Bouldin

William

0
0
0
0
1

Fh418
61391
Bouldin

John

2
0
1
0
0

(not sure this is right)
+++++++++++++++++++++++++

Presley Fh4671 (6B) 4670x
-----------------

Presley Mountford Boley (Rin=61386) (1766-1838)/m1804 Mary Ann Daniel—His father was Pressey #4670


Harriet A. Rust 1806-1891



John J. (Rin=61379)1809-1903/m1835 Permelia A. Worley



Martha b1814



William (Rin=61389) b 1818/m1839 Louvanta G. Drummond b1818


E.M. (Rin=61390) b1820



E.M. (Rin=64488) b1922

A Deceasendant Kit 457011 tested into DNA 6


Presley Bolling was captured by the Indians March 1789 (sic) on Brashear’s Run, Brooke County, Virginia (now West Virginia) Surrendered by the Wyandot Indians in 1785 (sic). (2084)
+++++++++++++++++++++++++

Reuben Fh4686 (6Z) 386x

-----------------

Birth, Parents, Lineage

Reuben Bolin (Rin=63326, 2DXT-4RB) was born 1791 the son of John Fh386 and Nancy Caroline Spencer. Reuben married Nancy Kent. Reuben died in 1843.   

Descendant Kit 220632 tested into DNA 6
Reuben’s descendant was Ernest Ezra Kent (Rin=63331) 

Lines of Descent from: 


Simon Fh629 BOWLING-


45539 b.1620     


Robert Fh516 6M19 BOWLING-

46246 b.1668


James Fh278 6K BOWLING-

54690 b.1700


James Thomas Fh279 6K BOWLING Sr-
22331 b.1730


John Fh386 6Z BOWLING-


65497 b.1756-dc1817(Rin=65497, LDS FS/FT L84V-7PG)

Reuben 6Z BOLIN-


63326 b.1791-d1843 (Rin=63326, LDS FS/FT 2DXT-4RB)                   


Walton Peterson 6Z KENT-


63324 b.1824  


Milzey Edward 6Z KENT-


63328 b.1870  


George Arthur 6Z KENT-


63330 b.1900  


Ernest Ezra Kit 220632 6Z KENT-

63331 b.1925 (Rin=63331)   

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

Richard Fh4689 (6K)  441 (or 763???)
-----------------

Richard 1800-d>1880 (Rin=57878)/m1828 Sarah Brown d>1880--His father was John #441 (or William #763)


Maria d<1850


ab
Lucy1830-1896/m        James A. Kirkpatrick

  b
Susan 1833d>1850

  bc
John 1835-1924/m1861 Nancy A. Lee (He is FAG=71346765)


  b
Hiram 1840-1908/m      Sarah Jane Reed

a
Richard Bowling was in the 1830 Census of Gallatin County, Kentucky, with males 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 




0 0 0 0 0 and females l 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.



b
1850 Census, Rush, Indiana

c
See John’s write-up at https://www.gengophers.com/book.html#/book/80621?page=515&surname=bowling&exactSurname=true&place=Mercer,%20Kentucky,%20United%20States&date=1750-1850&startDate=1750&endDate=1850

Birth, Parents, Lineage

Richard Bowling was born 1790-1800 based on being age 30-40 on the 1830 Census. or about 1800 in Kentucky based on the 1880 Census. (1155) Richard Bowling was the son of John O. Bowling (Fh441). (256)(1343)  Richard Bolin on 20 Jul 1822 sold land in Jessamine County, Kentucky to Dudley Baker of Jessamine County, Kentucky. Richard Bolin was an heir, with others, of William Bolin, deceased, per Jessamine County, Kentucky, Deed Book G: 262-3, i.e. John O. Boling and Nancy, his wife, Richard Boling and Mariah Boling to Dudley Baker. FHL microfilm 76-57-27. (2169) Richard Bolin married 30 Sep 1828 Gallatin, Kentucky, United States - Sarah Brown. (2169) Richard Bowling married 1828 Sarah Brown in Gallatin County, Kentucky. Richard Bowling was in the 1830 Census of Gallatin County, Kentucky, with males 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 and females l 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0. (1155 and Ancestry.com) 1830 census, Gallatin County, Kentucky, population schedule, , p. 196, Richard Bowling household; digital images, Ancestry.com (http://www.ancestry.com); National Archives microfilm publication M19, roll 36. (2169) Richard Boling was on the 1829 and 1831 tax lists of Gallatin County, Kentucky. (1800) Richard Bolin, with Turner Bolin, sold land December 1830 to Joseph Carrol of Jessamine County, Kentucky, with a deed conveying 300 acres of land in Jessamine County "on the waters of the Kentucky River and Marble Creek being the same patented to William Stafford assignee of Green Clay and by the said Safford (sic) conveyed to Richard Crump administrator of William Bowling deceased. in trust for the heirs of the said William Bowling deceased." Turner Bowling and Richard Bowling were of Gallatin County, Kentucky. This per Jessamine County, Kentucky, Deed Book I: p 407, Turner Bowling and Ann, his wife, and Richard Bowling and Sarah, his wife, to Joseph Carrol; FHL microfilm 76-57-27. (2169) Richard Bowling went to Rush County, Indiana. This may not be him in the 1880 Census as his father was probably not born in Indiana. Also everyone else in Rush County, Indiana, seems to be in Family Group H. (1443) Richard (Fh4689,441c) resided 1832 in Rush County, Indiana and died there in 1885. (7)

Household:
 Richard BOWLING
Self
M
Male
80
KY
Farmer

IN ,  KY 

 Sarah BOWLING

Wife
M
Female
74
IN
Keeps House
OH ,  OH 

Source Information: Census Place, Orange, Rush, Indiana

 

1820

1830 Gallatin, KY
Orange Twp., Rush, IN
Dist 97, Rush, IN
Orange Twp., Rush, IN

Richard m Sally/Sarah Brown 1828


Male b 1791-1800 ae 30-39


Male b 1801-1810 ae 30-39


Male b 1801 ae 49


R. b 1799 ae 61

John





Male b 1831-1835 ae 5-9
John b 1836 ae 14
John b 1835 ae 25

Hiram






Hiram b 1841 ae 9
Hriam b 1840 ae 20

Sally / Sarah Brown dau of John Brown?



Female b 1801-1810 ae 20-29
Female b 1801-1810 ae 30-39
decd?


Mary / Polly







Polly b 1806 ae 54

Lucy




Female b 1826-1830 ae 0-4
Female b 1826-1830 ae 10-14
Lucy b 1830 ae 20


Susan





Female b 1831-1835 ae 5-9
Susan b 1833 ae 17


Female b 1836-1840 ae 0-4 decd?


+++++++++++++++++++++++++

Robert Fh514 (6M19) 4501x
-----------------

Robert b<1750-d<1807 (Rin=50591)/m     Mary Burton (a widow in 1807)—Father Joseph #4501(Rin=44604) Head of String M19

A descendant kit 2319 tested into DNA 6. kits 1569(S), 1288(S), 1918(A), 2013(S), 2388(M17), and 3019(Z) and a lot more were 12/12


William bc1768-c1856 (Rin=50590)/ Cordenia ----- --See Family Group #895




A descendant kit 2319 tested into DNA 6.


Robert bc1790-c1832 (Rin=50429)/Barbara Bassett--See Family Group #515




A descendant kit 4224 tested into DNA 6



Asenath "an Orphan", probably with mother Mary "a widow" in 1807/m1811 William Way
Birth, Parents, Lineage

Lines of Descent from 


Simon Fh629 BOWLING-

45539 b.1620


Robert Fh516 6M19 BOWLING-
46246 b.1668


Joseph Fh4501 6M19 BOWLING-
44604 b.1717


Robert Fh514 6M19 BOWLING-
50591 b.1738

Robert Bowling in 1769 asks for 200 acres 1/2 mile David Manual and states he has been in Georgia for 3 years. Robert Bowling granted 1770, Book I, page 18, 200 acres bounded on all sides by vacant land. In 1774 he is granted 100 acres. (950) A descendant kit 2319 tested into DNA 6.  Robert Bowling granted 1770, Georgia Book I, page 18, 200 acres bounded on all sides by vacant land in St. George Parish, Georgia. (952) 

Wife and Children

Robert Bowling married Mary Burton Bowling and they had at least 2 sons Maj. Robert Bowling and William Bowling. (2154) Robert Bowling had a son William Bowling (Fh895) born about 1768 in Georgia. Robert Bowling had a son Robert Bowling (Fh515,6M19) born about 1790 in Burke County, Georgia. (1233) 

Military

According to the Georgia Roster of the American Revolution, Robert Bowling (Bolling) was in the Colonial service under Brig. General John Twiggs. (1270) 

Brig. General John Twiggs

Googled 4-16-2016

+++++++++++\

Item 1

William Walker was born 17 Dec 1762 in Buckingham County, VA moved to Georgia and served as a Private in the Georgia Militia under Brig. General John Twiggs. William Walker died in Jefferson County, Georgia.

++++++++++

Item 2

In 1798 William Fleming was given a Certificate of Revolutionary Ward Service and a land grant of 187.5 acres in Washington County, Ga. William James Fleming also rendered service in the War of 1812 as a private in Bowling's Detachment, Georgia Militia.

+++++++++

Item 3

McMurphy, Daniel. Member of Georgia General Assembly. Daniel Macmurphy's certificate was signed by Gen. John Twiggs, therefore he served under him.

Georgia's Roster of the Revolution. By L.L. Knight, 1920.

Page 21. Certificate of service in the American Revolution. On file in the office of the Secretary of State in the State Capital.

COPIED FROM TOMBSTONE IN CITY CEMETERY, AUGUSTA, GA.

Macmurphy

Sacred

To the memory of

Captain Daniel Macmurphy

Who died Oct. 27, 1819

Age 82 years

Born in Antrim, Ireland, he came to Georgia in 1756, identified himself with the Colony and served his country during the Revolutionary War as soldier and legislator -

Find A Grave Memorial# 7055594

Movement

Robert Bowling was a Juryman between 1790-1795 in Burke County, Georgia. (7)(274)

Death

Robert Bowling's wife Mary was listed as a widow in 1807, Burke County, Georgia. (7)

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

Robert Fh515 (6M19) 514x
-----------------

Robert bc1790-c1832 (Rin=50429)/m<1823 Barbara Bassett (c1800-c1841)—His father was Robert #514 (Rin=50591)


A descendant kit 4224 tested into DNA 6

a
Robert Leroy F. 1823-1887/m1846 Sarah Mariah Cheseborough (1830-1887)



A descendant kit 4224 tested into DNA 6



A Descendant kit 191160 tested into DNA 6


a
Sarah Bassett 1827-1889/m1844 George W. Woodward (1812-1905)


a
Sidney W b<1832


a
Thomas Berry 1832-1867/m1856 Sivil Slocum Hooks (1835-1911)


a
Simon W.


a
Children per Source #1233.
 

Birth, Parents, Lineage

Robert Bowling was born about 1790 in Burke County, Georgia probably son of Robert Bowling (Fh514). I believe his parents were Robert Bowling and Mary Burton (Fh514,6M19). I have info from the Georgia Land Lottery of 1805 that lists both Maj. Robert Bowling and his mother Mary Bowling as persons entitled to draws. Maj. Robert Bowling was also listed as a fortunate drawer & received land in Baldwin County, Georgia, District 3, Lot No. 272. (2154) A descendant kit 4224 tested into DNA 6

Military

Maj. Robert Bowling (Fh515,6M19) commanded a detachment of troops in the Georgia Militia during the War of 1812. (2154) 

Wife and children

William Bowling married before 1823 Barbara Bassett probably in Washington County, Alabama. Maj. Robert Bowling's wife was Barbara Bassett. Barbara Bassett was a descendant of Thomas Bassett who received a large land grant in the Mississippi-Alabama Territory in the 1700's in what is now Washington County, Alabama. Maj. Bowling was from Burke County, Georgia. (2154) See Family Group for their children. One of their sons was Capt. Robert Leroy Bowling (515a,6M19) (11/6/1823 - 9/22/1887) who married Sarah Maria Cheseborough (5/11/1830 - 3/30/1883) on 7/29/1846 in Washington County, Alabama. (2154) 

Death

Robert Bowling died about 1832 in Washington County, Alabama. (1233) I do know where Robert (Fh515,6M19) is buried and I recently went on an "expedition" to find it in hopes his grave marker would provide some dates. It is located in a remote area of Washington County, Alabama, near a bend in the Tombigbee River. It is located on the old Bassett homestead there in what is now considered Prestwick, Alabama. The area was so overgrown with brush and we didn't get started looking until late in the day so darkness overtook us before we could find the cemetery. (2154) FAG=81545861
+++++++++++++++++++++++++

Robert Fh516 (6M1) 629c
-----------------

Robert 1672-1730(Rin=46246 LDQ6-Q8Z)/1/m<1702 Mary ------ (perhaps Mary Farlon)(Maybe Sarah Kinge)—


Now Head of String 6M1
His father was Simon #629 (Rin=45539) or the son of Alexander Bowlyne (bc 1645) and mother Mary -----. (1308) 



John 1699-1730 (Rin=46529 LD33-DHT)/m      Mary Brown--See Family Fh402





a
Simon b<1702-d1735(Rin=45835)/1/w m1722 Anne (Wilson) Newton—See Family #630




2/w m1728 Elizabeth Newport




3/w Martha -----  d1735


a
William b<1706 (Rin=45995)/m1726 Elizabeth Kidwell (b<1710-d<1733)--See Family #740


ab
Thomas b<1709 (Rin=44916)/m1729 Rachel Colclough d>1748--See Family #680 His 

father was probably Joseph #450 or less likely Robert #516




or


Thomas bc1700-d>1769(Rin=57934 LY87-KC7)/m      Unknown—See Family #669 6M1

a
Robert b<1715-d>1737 (Rin=45945)

a
Joseph b<1718-1753 (Rin=44604 LDQ6-7QY) /m1738 Pelatiah Grafford (b1718-d>1753)--See Family 
 


#4501
  b
Samuel 1712/m1731 Elizabeth Oxford–See Family #590--His father was probably Joseph #450 or 
less likely Robert #516


a
Children and marriages per Source #2111. All children born and married in St. Paul's Parish, 


Stafford County, Virginia. 


b
(Those two in record source 2174)

Birth, Parents, Lineage

Robert Bowling was born about 1672. (176) Robert Bowling of Stafford County, Virginia made a deposition in 1722 in which he stated that he was then 50 years old (i.e. b1672). (176) Robert Bowling (bc1672) deposes that he was born in 1672 and was aged 50 year in Stafford County Ct. 1722, page 168, Vol 1, Tylers (1978) Robert Bowling was born before 1680, the son of Simon Bowling (Fh629). (2111) Robert Bowlyne born about 1672, Fairfax (sic), Virginia, the son of Alexander Bowlyne (bc 1645) and mother Mary -----. (1308) Robert Bowlyne married about 1694, Sarah King, born about 1675. (1308)
Lines of Descent from 


Simon Fh629 BOWLING-

45539 b.1620


Robert Fh516 6M19 BOWLING-
46246 b.1668



son


Joseph Fh4501 6M19 BOWLING-
44604 b.1717
Lines of Descent from: 


Simon Fh629 BOWLING-


45539 b.1620     


Robert Fh516 6M19 BOWLING-

46246 b.1668


son

James Fh278 6K BOWLING-

54690 b.1700

Lines of Descent from 


Simon Fh629 BOWLING-


LDQF-K4Z b.1620


Robert Fh516 BOWLING-


LDQ6-Q8Z b.1668


son  


James Fh278 BOWLING-


LDQF-RF4 b.1700                    

Marriage and Children

Robert Bowling married Mary ------. (2111) From a December 31, 1702 Will of Ann Farlon “unto Mary Bowling, wife of Robert Bowling”. (1931) See Family Group for children. (2111) Robert Bowling of Stafford County, Virginia made a deposition in 1722 in which he stated that he was then 50 years old (i.e. b1672). (176) If we knew more about this Robert Bowlin, who made that 1722 deposition in Stafford County, Virginia, we would know much more about the Stafford County, Virginia, Bowlins. (7) Those in Stafford County, Virginia, before 1700 are listed below. 

Those in Stafford County, Virginia, before 1700 are listed below. 

Stafford, VA-created 1664 from Westmoreland

Simon (Fh629, (Rin=45539) l1673,r1694



Alexander (629a? or maybe a brother of Simon Fh629) Mentioned in 1689 will but not an heir, l<1689


Simon (Fh633,629c)—probably a son of Simons but not with mother Kinge 

a
William (Fh742,629b) nw1689
a
John (629c) nw1689
a
Robert (Fh516,629d) nw1689,r1701/02,r1722(age 50,i.e. b1672),d1730/31

a 
Sons per Source #7 & #1748 Mentioned in the 1689 will of Robert Kinge, probably their grandfather.

6A
Benjamin (Fh090,450x) b1696,m1725 (Mary Latham)--m @ St. Paul's,r1732-34,d1767

Will Abstracts of Stafford County, Virginia, 1689-1693, Deeds, Wills, Inventories etc. from 29 April 1689 - 8 February 1692/3, Deed Book D - Part II. This Book is not among the records in the Stafford County Court House. (1748) From the 1689 Will of Robert Kinge: Alexander Boyninge's (sic) land along with William Bowlinge, John Bowlinge, Robert Bowlinge are mentioned in the 1689 will of Robert Kinge, recorded 1690 Stafford County, Virginia. 

"Fifthly I give to (faded) William Bowlinge, and John Bowlinge, and Robert Bowlinge a Tract of lande lyeinge att ye head of (faded) Creeke running with lande I bought of Thomas Revett and Edward Humston the said lande to be equally divided between ye before menconed Bowlinges and is three thousand acres belonginge to me and ye whole Tract of lande is Twelve thousand acres and it extendeth it selfe from ye Branch of Potomack Runne to ye branches of Ocquia Creeke, Henry Merest and Anthony Buckner have ye remiainge part of ye said Tract of Lande"... 

"Eightly I give to my Loveinge Wife Mary Kinge a tract of land wch I bought of Alexander Boyninge it being Two hundred and forty acres lyeinge upon Hunting Creeke. (1678)(1748).

Will by a Mr. Robert King, dated August 12th, 1690, leaving William Bowlinge & John Bowlinge & Robert Bowling a 12,000 acre tract of land.  Thursday evening, I figured out roughly --the boundaries of the tract.  If you have a good map of Virginia; Start at the Western boundary of Stafford County.  About 1/4 mile east of it, is Tacketts Mill (I traced George Bowling to the roads there in a seperate entry.)  That is about the former Western Boundary.  Then go north to  Rt. 610, which is the Southern Boundary of the Quantico Marine Base, the property boundarys were a little north of it, running along OCQUIA (today Aquia) Creek. The Southern boundary was Potomac Creek. I figure 12,000 acres to be about six square miles.  I have no idea if my computations are correct.  Mathematics is not my strong point. (1748, Informant Linda Berge)

Way earlier there was an 1611 Will of Thomas Brian, Aylesbury, Bucks, England. Mentions "Brothers" Thomas Bowlinge and Henry Bowlinge. (2117)

1689

Robert Bowlinge, John Bowlinge, William Bowlinge, and the land of Alexander Boyninge (sic) are mentioned in the 1689 will of Robert Kinge, recorded 1690 Stafford County, Virginia. "Fifthly I give to (faded) William Bowlinge, and John Bowlinge, and Robert Bowlinge a Tract of lande lyeinge att ye head of (faded) Creeke running with lande I bought of Thomas Revett and Edward Humston the said lande to be equally divided between ye before menconed Bowlinges and is three thousand acres belonginge to me and ye whole Tract of lande is Twelve thousand acres and it extendeth it selfe from ye Branch of Potomack Runne to ye branches of Ocquia Creeke, Henry Merest and Anthony Buckner have ye remiainge part of ye said Tract of Lande". "Eightly I give to my Loveinge Wife Mary Kinge a tract of land wch I bought of Alexander Boyninge it being Two hundred and forty acres lyeinge upon Hunting Creeke. (1678). I found this at the Library of Virginia. Taken from Virginia County Court Records, Deed & Will abstracts of Stafford County, Virginia, 1689-1693, Deeds, Wills, Inventories etc. from 29 April 1689 - 8 February 1692/3, Deed Book D - Part II. This Book is not among the records in the Stafford County Court House. (1748)
1698

Under the date of December 2, 1710, Robert Bowlin’s testimony stated that “About 12 years ago was the full time of this deponent’s being acquainted with Mr. Richard Calvert, he being then in Virginia along with his mother.” (1807) 

1700

There was a April 10, 1700, record in Stafford County, Virginia, Estate of John Newton, mentions wife Mary Newton and also mentions Arthur Spencer, Robert Alexander, Robert Boling and John Reynolds. (1931)(2111) At a court held 10th April 1700 account of estate of John Newton returned .mentions Mary Newton his wife, Capt. Arthur Spencer, Robt. Alexander, Robt. Bolings. Errors excepted John (X) Reynolds. SOURCE: Stafford County, Virginia, Deeds and Wills Abstracts, p. 20, 1699-1709 by Ruth and Sam Sparacio. NOTE: This is the first mention of Robert Bowling (Fh516,629d) in Stafford County. (2174)

10-APRIL-1700

At a court held 10th April 1700 account of estate of John Newton returned mentions Mary Newton his wife, Capt. Arthur Spencer, Robt. Alexander, ROBT. BOLINGS. Errors excepted John (X) Reynolds.

SOURCE: Stafford County, Virginia, Deeds and Wills Abstracts, p. 20, 1699-1709 by Ruth and Sam Sparacio.

NOTE: This is the first mention of Robert Bowling (Fh516,629d) in Stafford County. (2174)

1701-1702

Robert Bowlin in about 1701-1702 Stafford County, Virginia, was in a company of Horse Troops, commanded by Capt. Richard Fassaker and Lt. Dade Massey. Others mentioned, among many, were Lt. Benjamin Colclough, Robert Alexander, John Washington, Samuel Wells, and John Kidwell. (544)

31-DECEMBER-1707

Will of Ann Farlon. (Rin=58558) Dec. 31st 1707.as to my debts abroad there is 650 pounds of tobacco in Joseph Kings hands & eight hundred in the hands of John Martin & 500 in the hands of Hugh Horton I do give & bequeath unto George Nicholson & what other small debts there is abroad I do freely forgive them all.to my servant Garret Burn one years service likewise I do give & bequeath to Garrett Burn one three years service likewise I do give & bequeath Garrett Burns one three year old heifer to be delivered on May Day next being in the year 1708.unto MARY BOWLING THE WIFE OF ROBERT BOWLING (Fh516 Rin=46246) one new gown and petticoat & flock bed and bolster and all manner of cording belonging to it.unto Mary Nicholson the wife of George Nicholson her choice of two cows and calves.unto George Nicholson Jrunr. The son of George Nicholson one sorrel horse with a bald face & 3 barrels of corn.to my servant woman Ann Chambers one petticoat & 1000 pounds of tobacco being her wages and she is left to her liberty to go or stay.

Test. George NicholsonAnn Farlon

Owen (O) ffendalls mark, Garrard Burn

At a court held 11th Febry 1707. This will was presented in court to be the last will & testament of Ann Farlon.and admon with will annexed granted to Mary Shields, Charles Ellis Gentl. & James Hall assumed in court to be her security.will is ordered to be recorded & is recorded.

SOURCE: Stafford County, Virginia, Deed and Will Abstracts, p. 395, 1699-1709 by Ruth and Sam Sparacio. (2174)

NOTE: Robert Bowley's wife's name is Mary. It would appear that Ann Farlon is the mother of Mary.
1707

From a December 31, 1707 Will of Ann Farlon “unto Mary Bowling, wife of Robert Bowling one new gown & petticoat & flock bed & bolster and all manner of cording belonging to it". Other names mentioned: Joseph King, John Martin, Hugh Horton, George Nichollson Sr. and Jr., Garret Burn, Mary Nichollson, Ann Chambers, Mary Shields, Charles Ellis and James Hall. (2111) From a December 31, 1702 (sic, s/b 1707) Will of Ann Farlon “unto Mary Bowling, wife of Robert Bowling”. (1931) Will of Ann Farlon. Dec. 31st 1707.as to my debts abroad there is 650 pounds of tobacco in Joseph Kings hands & eight hundred in the hands of John Martin & 500 in the hands of Hugh Horton I do give & bequeath unto George Nicholson & what other small debts there is abroad I do freely forgive them all.to my servant Garret Burn one years service likewise I do give & bequeath to Garrett Burn one three years service likewise I do give & bequeath Garrett Burns one three year old heifer to be delivered on May Day next being in the year 1708.unto MARY BOWLING THE WIFE OF ROBERT BOWLING one new gown and petticoat & flock bed and bolster and all manner of cording belonging to it.unto Mary Nicholson the wife of George Nicholson her choice of two cows and calves.unto George Nicholson Jrunr. The son of George Nicholson one sorrel horse with a bald face & 3 barrels of corn.to my servant woman Ann Chambers one petticoat & 1000 pounds of tobacco being her wages and she is left to her liberty to go or stay.

Test. George Nicholson Ann Farlon
Owen (O) ffendalls mark, Garrard Burn

At a court held 11th Febry 1707. This will was presented in court to be the last will & testament of Ann Farlon.and admon with will annexed granted to Mary Shields, Charles Ellis Gentl. & James Hall assumed in court to be her security.will is ordered to be recorded & is recorded.

SOURCE: Stafford County, Virginia, Deed and Will Abstracts, p. 395, 1699-1709 by Ruth and Sam Sparacio. (2174)

NOTE: Robert Bowley's wife's name is Mary. It would appear that Ann Farlon is the mother of Mary. (2174)

1714

Robert Bowling, along with Thomas Porter, and Joseph King personally acknowledged a bond from them to John Pratt for performance of covenants to be their act and deed. Westmoreland County, Virginia, Order Book page 234a, March 31, 1714. (1627) Bond of Thomas Porter to John Pratt of Washington Parish, Westmoreland County, Virginia, 1714. For 34,000 pounds of tobacco. Securities, Robert Bowling and Joseph King of Stafford County, Virginia. (1634) Robert Bowling, using his mark, witnessed along with G. Eskridge and Joseph King a deed between Sarah Howson Calvert, Thomas Porter and Ann, his wife, all of Stafford County, Virginia to John Pratt of Westmoreland, land in Westmoreland, 1714, in Westmoreland County, Virginia. (1634) 

1721

King George County, Virginia, Orders 1721-1723, pages 22, 30, 36, 42, 48 and 49. 3rd November 1721-Imparlance is granted to Cornelius Edmunds in the suit brought agst. him by Robert Bowling until next Court. 1st of December 1721- The action brought by Robert Bowling against Cornelius Edmunds is continued. 5th of January 1721/2- The accon: brought by Robert Bowling against Cornelius Edmunds is contd. on the Defendts. request till next Court. 2nd of February 1721/2- In the accon. brought by Robert Bowling against Cornelius Edmons, the Defendt. by George Eskridge his attorny, pleads Not Guilty and the same lyes till next Court for trial. 2nd of March 1721/2- Thomas Short of Esses County being summoned an Evidence for Cornelius Edmonds against Robert Bowling and making oath that he attended one day 0.0. the said suit; And it appearing to the Court that the place of residence is distant from this Courthouse sixteen miles; It is therefore ordered that the said Cornelius Edmonds pay him according to law for the said one days attendance and for his coming sixteen miles and going sixteen miles with cost. 2nd of March 1721/2
- John Gilbert being summoned as an Evidence for Cornelius Edmonds against Robert Bowling and making oath that he has attended three days on the said suit, it is therefore ordered that the said Cornelius Edmonds  pay him for the same according to Law. 2nd of March 1721/2- In the accon: brought by Robert Bowling PIt. against Cornelius Edmonds Defendt. for the sum of Six hundred pounds of tobacco due by Account. the Defendt. appeared and pleaded Not Guilty and by consent both parties put the issue upon the Court for tryal, and upon hearing ye several arguments on both sides between Pit. and Deft., It is considered by the Court and accordingly ordered that the suit be dismist and that the PIt. pay unto the Defendt. one attornys fee with cost. (2111) Fh516,629c Robert Bowlling (sic) was in a court case against Cornelius Edmonds, March 1721/2 King George County, Virginia. Thomas Short of Essex County was summoned for evidence for Cornelius Edmonds. (1643) Robert Bowling was in the King George County, Virginia, Order Book 1721-1734, pages 22 and 30. County Reel #22 at the Virginia State Library. (2052)  
1722

Robert Bowling of Stafford County, Virginia made a deposition in 1722 in which he stated that he was then 50 years old (i.e. b1672). Robert Bowling names George Bowling (maybe Fh240, 6A), Prince Williams County, who died 1736; sons William (Fh743, 240c, 6A), who voted in the 1744 Fairfax Co elections, and died before 1754, wife Penelope; they had son William, perhaps John, Robert Joseph who died 1753 (see 743d). (176)

1730

Robert Bowling witnessed with his mark "RB" the 1730 will of John Hargis, Westmoreland County, Virginia. (1633)
1735-1737 (Robert Fh516,629c died before so likely Robert Fh535,240,6A)

The estate of Simon Bowling (Fh630,516a,6M) was appraised by order of the Court dated March 10, 1735. Valued at L 16.11.2 by Edward Humston, Thomas Bunbury and William Bunbury. At Court held for Stafford County, Virginia on 13 April 1736 the inventory was admitted to record. On the same day, Robert Bowling, Administrator of Simon Bowling exhibited this account. Subtractions: Funeral charges for him (Simon) and his wife. Also nursing his child four months. Others mentioned in the statements were: Nicholas Dunn, Mr. Carter, Joseph King, Peter Lehue, William Bruton, Robert Massey, Joseph Bowling, Richard Foote, Scott, Jones Parker, Rachel Colclufe (could this be Colclough), Matthew Boulling, Henry Washington, Richard Thomas, Philip Alexander, John Buchanan. At Court held for Stafford County, Virginia, 12th April 1737 Account admitted to record. (1610) 
Death

A Robert Bowling died 1730/31 in Stafford (present day King George) Counties, Virginia, per St. Paul's Parish Register. (46) Robert Bowling died 11 MAR 1730/31 in St. Paul's Parish, Stafford County, Virginia. (2111) Robert Bowlyne died 1729 Overwharton Parish, Stafford County, Virginia. (1308)
+++++++++++++++++++++++++

Robert Fh535 (6A) 240x
-----------------

Robert 1694-1746 (Rin=27335)/mc1716 Mary ----- (bc1695-d>1746)—His father was George #240 (Rin=62389)

a
Elizabeth b1718 or b>1730


a
Martha b1720 or b>1730


a
Named in Robert's 1746 Will in Fairfax County, VA. (listed as my “wife’s daughters”) Both
 under age 16. Robert's cousins Simon Boling (630d) and Robert Boling (630c) also mentioned.
 Those young boys might have lived with Robert as both the boy’s parents were dead.
Birth, Parents, Lineage

Robert Bowling was the son of George Bowling (Fh240). (7)(357) Robert was born about 1694 and died 1746. He married Mary ----- . (7) See Family Group for children. 

Movement

The estate of Simon Bowling (Fh630,007g,6M) was appraised by order of the Court dated March 10, 1735. Valued at L 16.11.2 by Edward Humston, Thomas Bunbury and William Bunbury. At Court held for Stafford County, Virginia on 13 April 1736 the inventory was admitted to record. On the same day, Robert Bowling, Administrator of Simon Bowling exhibited this account. Subtractions: Funeral charges for him (Simon) and his wife. Also nursing his child four months. Others mentioned in the statements were: Nicholas Dunn, Mr. Carter, Joseph King, Peter Lehue, William Bruton, Robert Massey, Joseph Bowling, Richard Foote, Scott, Jones Parker, Rachel Colclufe (could this be Colclough), Matthew Boulling, Henry Washington, Richard Thomas, Philip Alexander, John Buchanan. At Court held for Stafford County, Virginia, 12th April 1737 Account admitted to record. (1610)  

1741

Robert Boling was paid money from the estate of Robert Osborn,  1741, Fairfax County, Virginia. Some others also receiving money were: the estate of Capt. Augustine Washington, William Garrard, and Garrard Alexander. (1705) 

1744

Robert Boling took the estate inventory of Thomas Simmons 1744 in Fairfax County, Virginia.(466)  Robert (RB his mark) Boling, along with Townshend Dade and Edward Masterson took the estate inventory 1744 in Fairfax County, Virginia.(1705) 

1745

Robert Boling gave bond 1745 for the estate of Charles Neal. (466) Charles Neal, deceased, 16 July 1745 order, Fairfax County, Virginia, Robert Boling, (most likely Fh535,240d) administrator. (1970, page 67)     

Death

Robert Boling had a will dated 1746 in Fairfax County, Virginia. (35) Will Book A, Robert Boling had a will dated 31 March 1746, probated 17 Sept 1746. He was of Truro Parish, Fairfax County, Virginia. He named wife Mary, his cousins Simon Boling and Robert Boling, Elizabeth, a daughter of his wife, and Martin B. (?). Ex: his wife. The will was witnessed Townshend Dade, Joseph (his X) Boling (Fh450), and J. Wybird. (133) Robert Bowling had a will dated March 31, 1746 and proved September 17, 1746, Fairfax County, Virginia, naming his wife Mary, daughters Elizabeth and Martha and cousins Simon and Robert: names which reappear among the children of Gerard Bowling.  (357) Will Book A of Fairfax County, Virginia, page 185, has the March 31, 1746 will of Robert Boling of Truro Parish. He names his wife Mary Boling, Cousin Simon Boling, Cousin Robert Boling less than 21 years of age, daughters Elizabeth Boling and Martha Boling both less than 16 years of age. Witnesses were Townshend Dade, Joseph (his X) Boling (Fh450), and J. Wybird.  The will was proven September 17, 1746. Bondsmen were Mary (her X) Boling, John Evans, and William Davie. The inventory of the estate was signed by Townshend Dade, John Gladin, and John Strughon. (466) A Robert Boling died and left a widow Mary who married ------ Young. (1264) This is another extract of the will (will 1746, i.e. Robert Fh535,240d,6A) as also reported in Sources 35,133,357,466. It diffidently mentions that Elizabeth and Martha are the daughters of his wife. Thus this couple had no issue. Robert signed his will with a mark. Also witness Joseph Boling signed his name with a mark. One of the other witnesses, Townshend Dade, was close to the family even back in the St. Paul Parish days. (1970, Page 69)  

 John Withers (witness), George Harrison, Thomas Speake, Christopher Neale, Benjamin Sebastian. (1970) Take a look at my "BLUE" BOLLINGS” paper mailed to you on or about 12/4/01. Page four begins with a reference to Tylers Quarterly Magazine, Volume 1: "The same family group was represented in Virginia's Northern Neck by a William and a Robert Bolling (Bowling). This Robert Bolling (1672 (sic)-1746) listed in his will three (sic, two?) daughters and a (sic, two) cousin, Robert, further identified with the same family as Gerald Bolling (Bowling), whose Fairfax County will showed him to be a merchant and planter of considerable wealth." (339)


+++++++++++++++++++++++++

Robert Fh549 (6S) 913x
-----------------

Robert "Bobby" 1776-d>1850(Rin=28609)/m<1800 1/w ----- ------ --His father was William #913(Rin=45430)


Female b<1800


*
2/w m1828 Sarah "Sally" Clampitt/Clampet (1803->1850)

*
William 1830->1850 


*
Robert 1832->1850 


*
John 1834->1850 


*
Nancy 1835->1850 


*
Larkin 1838->1850 


*
James 1843->1850

*
In 1850 Census of Blount County, Tennessee per Source #225
Birth, Parents, Lineage

Robert Bolen was born 1776 in probably North Carolina, the son of William (Fh913) and believed to be brother of Larkin (Fh4612). (1553) This was recorded in the Randolph County, North Carolina, Genealogy Journal.  It shows there was a relationship between the Boling men. Capias (29 Oct. 1796) against Cornelius Lathem and John Graves, on oath of Benjamin Bolan (Fh125,6S) that they assaulted and beat him at the house of Gabriel Hardin 27 Aug 1796. Witnesses -- Robert Bolan (Fh549,913b,6S), Larkin Bolan (Fh4612,913c,6S), William Bolan (913a,6S), Tempy Hardin, Vachel Hancock. (1553) William Bolling (Fh913) had land grants #1562 and #1533, 1800, Randolph County, North Carolina, 83 acres described as both sides Little River Barnes Corner, Watery Branch crossing the river lines of Nathan Tucker, Richard ---? John Steed, his own line Rockey Creek. Chainers were Robert Boling and Joseph Hudson.  (942) On 1800 Randolph County, North Carolina census page 350 Robert Boling 00100 1010000 - He was 24 and recently married with first wife unknown. (1553) There are documents with Robert (Fh549), Larkin (Fh4612) and William together in Blount County, Tennessee in 1813. (1553) Robert (Fh549,913b,6S) married second Sally Clampitt 3/12/1828 at his age 52 and her age 25. (1553) Robert Boling (Fh549,913b,6S) is on the Randolph County, North Carolina 1800 census. (1553) Robert Boling was on the 1800 Census of Randolph County, North Carolina, page 350. (1303) They had children according to 1850 Blount County, Tennessee census until 1843 at his age 67. (1553)  Robert had recently married on 1800 Randolph census with one young daughter. (1553) I have never been able to find Robert's first marriage.  If, in fact, this is 1776 Robert of Randolph County, which it appears to be, there were at least 3 unknown boys and 3 unknown girls from that first marriage.  Robert's unknown children might be a link to some of you. And I know Robert was in Blount County, TN in 1830. (1553) On 1830 Blount County census is Robert Borland 10000001 00001 married 1828 with second wife Sarah Clampitt. (1553) On 1830 Blount County census living closely is Betsy Borland (believed to be mother of Larkin and Robert).  Betsy is age 70-80 head of household, so William (Fh913) has died. (1553) Robert Bolen was listed in the 1850 U.S. Census of Blount County, Tennessee, as age 74 (i.e. born 1776), along with Sarah 47, William 20, Robert 18, John 16, Nancy 15, Larkin 12 and James 7. (225) I can follow Robert because he is on 1850 Blount County, Tennessee, census at age 74 (with wife Sarah "Sally" (Clampitt) and a young family), living near sons of Robert's brother Larkin. (1553) In Blount County, Tennessee, there was a Polly Bolen who married 1828 William Fann.  In Robert Bolen house in 1850 is a William Fann, age 1, so Polly was probably a close relative. (1553) "Another incident in connection with the muster and election grounds and my childhood might be of interest.  On muster and election days the men would generally assemble in the morning and greet each other the greater part of the day.  There would be ginger cakes and cider for sale, and this served for the eating at noon.  "Bobby" and "Sally" Boling (Fh549,S,6) (Robert and his second wife Sarah Clampet) as they were familiarly called, made the best cakes and had the best cider on the grounds, and that was understood on all occasions.....he goes on to talk about the sober ones leaving along in the afternoon, leaving the boisterous and drinking folks on the grounds.  Out would come the fiddles, jugs and kegs of whiskey." (1553)(1616) 


1850 Census:

Name: Robt Bolen

Residence: Blount, Tennessee

Age: 74 years

Estimated birth year: 1776

Birth place: 

Gender: Male

Death month: 

Death date: 

Marital status: 

Collection: 1850 United States Census (2089)

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

Robert Fh550 (6T) 002x
-----------------

Robert Thomas 1782-1851 (Rin=29649) /m1812 Mary "Polly" Nelson 1788-1848 His father was James Fh002 (Rin=54471) He had brothers Daniel born 1784/6 and Henry b1784, perhaps Thomas b1790 (Fh733,6T), also Willoughby (Fh930,6T)--


*
Adaline 1813-d>1830


*
Perry Allen 1814-1879/m1838 Mary B. Harris (d1845)


*
Juliana 1816-d>1830


*
Selety 1818-1897/m1840 Daniel Hicks Maddox


*
William Gains 1820-1892/m1845 Nancy Gage (b1826)


*
Melinda 1822-1901/m1844 David S. Harris--no issue


*
Henry Nelson 1825-1898/m1845 Martha Ann or Caroline Byars/Byers (1824-1898)


*
John Carrol b1827/Permilia -----


*
Children per source #946

Birth, Parents, Lineage

Robert Bowlan was born 1782. (59) Robert Bowlan's father might have Archibald (830a) born 1756 in Halifax County, Virginia. (946)  Robert Bowlan had a brother Henry Bowlan born 1784 and Daniel Bowlan born 1786. (946) Robert Bowlan married Mary -----.  They had children: Adaline, Perry Allen, Juliana, Slaly (sic), William Gains, Melinda, Henry Nelson, John C. and Nancy Gage. (59) Nancy Gage was not a child but the wife of William Gains Bowlan. (946) Robert Bowlan was born 1782 in South Carolina. Robert Bowlan married 1812, Mary Nelson, daughter and only child of William "Will" and Caroline (Gains) Nelson of Abbieville, South Carolina.  William Nelson had brothers Henry Harvey Nelson and a Enoch Nelson. (946) 

There are two possible Roberts (Fh550 and Fh554) that could be in the 1820 Lincoln County, Tennessee. Both families are possible, as follows. 

Following information from 1820 Lincoln County, Tennessee census Robert Bowlen (Fh550,6T)
1
male 26-45 (b1775-1794) (Robert Bowlen,b1782)
1
female26-45 (b1775-1794) (wife)
1
female 10-16 (b1804-1810) (Adaline b1813?)
1
male 10-16 (b1804-1810) (UK, perhaps died young)
1
male under 10 (b1810-1820) (Perry Allen b1814)
1
female under 10 (b1810-1820) (Juliana b1816)
1
female under 10 (b1810-1820) (Selety b1818)

1
male under 10 (b1810-1820) (Williams Gains b1820) (1553) 

Following information from 1820 Lincoln County, Tennessee census Robert Bowlen (Fh554)
1
male 26-45 (b1775-1794) (Robert Bowlen,bc1787)
1
female26-45 (b1775-1794) (wife)
1
female 10-16 (b1804-1810) (Mary bc1806)
1
male 10-16 (b1804-1810) (Brantley b1807)
1
male under 10 (b1810-1820) (Elijah bc1810)
1
female under 10 (b1810-1820) (Nancy b1815)
1
female under 10 (b1810-1820) (Frances bc1820)

1
male under 10 (b1810-1820) (No fit) (1553) 

In that same 1820 Lincoln County, Tennessee Census there is Willoby Bowlen (Fh930) and John Bowlen. (1553) The Robert Bowlan and Wiley Bowling families are in the 1830 Census of Jefferson County, Alabama. (946)(1088)  This was not our Robert in the 1830 Census of Jefferson County, AL.  Our Robert was in the 1830 Census of St. Clair County, AL. (946) I've got a copy of Robert and Mary’s bible.  (946)  Robert Bowlan is in the 1850 Census of Marion County, Alabama, saying he was born in South Carolina.  Robert Bowlan and his wife are buried at the Zion Baptist Church Cemetery. (FAG =91480951)  (1088) I have Robert Bolin born Sept. 30, 1782; died July 8, 1851 buried Zion Baptist Missionary Church, Marion County, Alabama.  Buried with him is wife Mary & Henry whom I assume to be a son, plus his wife Martha. (1306) Robert Bowlan died 1851 at the home of his daughter's Seleta Maddox in Marion County, Alabama. (946)   

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

Robert Fh554 (6T) 429x
-----------------

Robert bc1787-d>1850 (Rin=51374)/mc1805 1/w ----- ----- (d<1840)—Perhaps father was John #429 (Rin=46141).



A Descendant Kit 58512 tested into DNA 6



A 12/12 match with Kit #3301, Kit #13529, Kit #10875, Kit #138006


ab
Mary "Polly" bc1806-d>1850/m1822 Andrew Suggs


ab
Brantley B. 1807-1883/m1830 1/w Emily McNutt, 2/w m1836 Mary Ann Caroline Aldridge


  b
Elijah C. bc1810-1856/mc1830 Jane Beachem
 


ab
Nancy A. 1815-dc1875/m1829 Sanford Pinkney Wesson


ab
Frances bc1820/24/25-d>1860/m1839 Joseph Bishop


ab
Robert "Rob" 1824-d>1880/m1846 Jane Clark


ab
William A. 1825-1897/m1849 Mary Elizabeth Rayner/Rainer—A Descendant Kit 58512 tested




into DNA 6



2/w m1840 Mrs. Frances (Leywood) Wren (bc1788->1850)


  b
Thomas b1842--In their household in 1850 Census. 


a
Children per Source #1296 (Kathy Johnston) 

b
Children per Source #1419 (Charles McDaniel) 

Events in Lawrence, AL
Birth, Parents, Lineage

Robert Bolen was born about 1787 in North Carolina or possibly Virginia. (1296) A Descendant Kit 58512 tested into DNA 6. Robert Bolen (Bowlen, Bolling) was born about 1787 North Carolina or Virginia. (1419)
Marriage and Children

Robert Bolen (Bowlen, Bolling) first wife name is unknown but I suspect surname Brantley for name of eldest son. (1419) A John Bowlen born about 1808 in South Carolina could have been related. (1296)

See the family group for possible children of Robert Bolen. (1296)
a.
Mary “Polly” was born about 1805 in Georgia. She married Andrew Suggs. She died after1850 in Mississippi. (1419)

b.
Brantley B. was born 1807 in South Carolina. He died 1883 in Pontotoc County, Mississippi. (1419) Brantley B. Bolen 
(554b) was born about 1806 in South Carolina. Brantley lived in Alabama and Mississippi. His male children: James Riley 
Bolen, Robert Jackson Bolen, Thomas Jefferson Bolen, Brantley Harris Bolen and Charles J. Bolen. (1296) Brantley Bolen 
was born 1815 in Bedford County, Tennessee. He married 1836 Mary Ann Aldridge in Lawrence County, Alabama. 
(http://www.linxure.net/~arledge/Jeanie/d38.htm) 

c.
Elijah C. was born about 1810 in Tennessee. He died 1856 in Pontotoc County, Mississippi. Elijah C. Bolen who married Jane 
Beachem was a son of Robert Bolen (Fh554) not a brother. (1419) Elijah C. Bolen was born about 1810 (554c) Male children 
of Elijah: Napoleon B. Bolen, b. about 1834, AL,  David Bolen, b. about 1844, MS, Thomas B. Bolen b. about 1852, MS. 
(1296)

d.
Nancy A. Bolen was born about 1815 in Tennseessee. Nancy A. Bolen married Sanford Wesson. Mary A. Bolen died about 
1875 in Union County, Mississippi. (1419)

e.
Robert was born 1824 in Lawrence County, Alabama. Robert died in Pontotoc County, Mississippi. (1419) Robert 
Bolen 
(554f) was born about 1824 in Alabama and lived in Mississippi. Children of Robert included John Thomas Bolen, born 1847 
in Mississippi. (1296)

f.
Frances was born about 1825 in Lawrence County, Alabama. Frances married Joseph Bishop. (1419)

g.
William A. was born 4 May 1825 in Lawrence County, Alabama. William A. died 9 Mar 1897 in  Pontotoc County, 
Mississippi. William A. married Mary Elizabeth Rainer. Beth Bolen can give you more details on him and his 
descendants.  I am descended from his brother Brantley, above. (1419) William A. Bolen (554g) born about 1825 in 
Alabama could have been related. (1296) He definitely was related. He was a son of Robert Fh554 and the ancestor 
of Bill 
Bolen kit #58512. (1419)

Robert Bowlen (Fh554) married a second time in 1840 to Frances Wren, Lawrence County, Alabama. Son Brantley Bowlen was bondsman. (1296) Anne Cochran of Huntsville, AL, in 1970s did a lot of straightening up & preserving of records in Lawrence Co AL.  She found several marriage bonds & licenses not previously recorded (and mostly in poor condition).  One was Robert Bowling (spelling?) (Fh554) married Francis Wren 10 Nov 1840.  Brantley Bowling (all sp) was bondsman.  My SPECULATION is that Robert's earlier wife/wives had died & Francis was a widow. (179) They had a son:

h.
Thomas Boulin (554h) was born about 1842 in Alabama. (1296) Thomas born about 1843, last record 1860 census 
Winston 
County, Alabama, age 17. Son Thomas was said to have been a Methodist minister. (1419) Thomas Bolen 
born about 1842 is 
definitely a son of Robert Bolen (Fh554). (1419) Obviously the census of 1850 showing Frances Wren Thomas’ mother as 
age 62 is incorrect.  Winston Co., AL census of 1860 shows her as head of family age 55 with son Thomas age 17. If she was 
55 in 1860 she would have been 35 in 1840.  I have letter dated 1949 from Ida Bolen (1865-1960) sister of son William A. 
son of Robert (Fh554) verifying this.  Family tradition says he was a Bishop in the Methodist Episical Church South but I 
think not.  My contacts with the church says no Bishop named Bolen of any spelling so maybe he was just a Methodist 
minister.  She was definite about Thomas being a son of Robert. (1419)
Movement

Births of 7 known children shows his migration: (1419) 


Mary “Polly” 

born about 1805, Georgia. (1419)


Brantley B. 

born 1807 South Carolina. (1419)


Elijah C. 


born about 1810 Tennessee. (1419)


Nancy A. 

born about 1815 Tennessee. (1419)


Robert 


born 1824 Lawrence County, Alabama. (1419)


Frances 


born about 1825 Lawrence County, Alabama. (1419)


William A. 

born 4 May 1825 Lawrence County, Alabama.(1419)
There are two possible Roberts (Fh550 and Fh554) that could be in the 1820 Lincoln County, Tennessee. Both families are possible, as follows. 

Following information from 1820 Lincoln County, Tennessee census Robert Bowlen (Fh550,6T)
1
male 26-45 (b1775-1794) (Robert Bowlen,b1782)
1
female26-45 (b1775-1794) (wife)
1
female 10-16 (b1804-1810) (Adaline b1813?)
1
male 10-16 (b1804-1810) (UK, perhaps died young)
1
male under 10 (b1810-1820) (Perry Allen b1814)
1
female under 10 (b1810-1820) (Juliana b1816)
1
female under 10 (b1810-1820) (Selety b1818)

1
male under 10 (b1810-1820) (Williams Gains b1820) (1553) 

Following information from 1820 Lincoln County, Tennessee census Robert Bowlen (Fh554)
1
male 26-45 (b1775-1794) (Robert Bowlen,bc1787)
1
female26-45 (b1775-1794) (wife)
1
female 10-16 (b1804-1810) (Mary bc1806)
1
male 10-16 (b1804-1810) (Brantley b1807)
1
male under 10 (b1810-1820) (Elijah bc1810)
1
female under 10 (b1810-1820) (Nancy b1815)
1
female under 10 (b1810-1820) (Frances bc1820)

1
male under 10 (b1810-1820) (No fit) (1553) 

In that same 1820 Lincoln County, Tennessee Census there is Willoby Bowlen (Fh930.6T) and John Bowlen. (1553)

Robert Bolen is listed in the 1840 Census without a wife but with 3 boys. He is listed in the US Census 1850, Lawrence County, Alabama, with a wife Francis age 62 (sic, see comments below) born Virginia. (1296) The 1850 Census has Robert Boulin age 63, born Virginia (maybe North Carolina) and wife Frances age 62, born Virginia. Also there is a Thomas age 8 born Alabama in the household. I always wondered if he was their son or grandson. Robert Bolen married Frances Wren in Lawrence County, Alabama 10 Nov 1840, probably as his second wife, so perhaps Thomas was their Son although Frances would have been pretty old to have a child in 1842. Frances being about 52 when they married so she may have been married before also. Anyway Brantley was the bondsman at their wedding so I assume Brantley was Robert's son by an earlier marriage. (179)  Whether the Thomas aged 8 in Robert's 1850 census is their child or possibly a grandchild of Robert, I have never found out. (179) My husband's Bolens of Itawamba, Lee and Pontotoc Counties in Mississippi. Some of the male descendants of the Robert Bolen (Fh554) who was b. about 1787 in NC or VA, lived in TN, d. in AL (1296):

There was a Bolen family living nearby in AL and MS who were not related according to family history so I don't want to get them mixed up with the above names. (1296)

Death

Robert Bolen (Bowlen, Bolling) died 1850-1860 in Alabama per census. (1419)
Source 1296, Kathy Johnston, 8 Deerhill Dr., Rolling Hills Estates, CA, 90274, 2011, KJohns7900@aol.com, Robert , 554f, 6, T, 
Husband descends from Robert 1824->1880 (554f 6T)

Hi Todd,

My husband, Matt Scheibe is the great-grandson of

Ollie Belle BOLEN

b. 15 Sep 1875 Pontotoc County, Mississippi, USA

who was the daughter of

John Thomas BOLEN

b. 1847 Itawamba, Mississippi, USA

who was the son of

Robert BOLEN (554f, 6T)

b. abt 1824 Alabama, USA

and

Jane CLARK

b. abt 1828 Mississippi, USA

Robert was the son of the 

Robert BOLEN, (Fh554,6T) b.1787, NC

I believe the Bolling Family Association found someone in our Mississippi group to test the Y-DNA but I don't know who the individual was.  I believe he represents Kit 58512 in Group 6 though. Brantley, who was son of the distant ancestor Robert was clearly in the same family group as ours.

Under this DNA Kit the most distant ancestor, Robert is reported to have been born in SC. However, in the 1850 Census, Robert BOLEN appears to report his birth in NC. Robert Bolen's 2nd wife, Frances WREN was probably the Frances LEYWOOD who married Howel Wren on May 23, 1821 in Lawrence County, AL. Robert married Frances 10 Nov 1840 in Lawrence, AL. They ended up in Winston County, AL and Robert was dead before the 1860 census.

Children of Robert BOLEN (b. 1787) were:


Brantley B. BOLEN (who m. 1st Emily McNUTT, then Mary Ann Caroline ALDRIDGE), 


Polly (Mary) BOLEN (who. m. Andrew SUGGS), 


Frances BOLEN (who m. Joseph BISHOP), 


Nancy BOLEN (who m. Sanford WESSON), Robert BOLEN (who m. Jane CLARK), 


William A. BOLEN (who m. Elzabeth RAYNOR) and 


Elijah C. BOLEN (who m. Jane BEACHAM).

My husband's Family Tree DNA Family Finder match is with a BOLEN descendant who claims to be related to those in DNA group 3 however, but her ancestors originated in Stafford County VA. They may be related through a different line altogether.

Regards,

Kathy


Hi Kathy (and I have copied Todd here also)

One of our group 6 members is Charles McDaniel, who tested (via another known cousin) to be descended from Robert Bolen Fh554, b 1787 NC, via Robert's son Brantley B Bolen b1807 SC..  This seems to be his family, as the notes I have in PAF under John Thomas Bolen includes his May 21, 2006 posting to the site.  I have a few other notes I found in various places.  I had nothing on Ollie Belle Bolen, however. 

Linda

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

Robert Fh556 (6N2) 770x

-----------------

Robert (Fh556, Rin=44281) bc1783, m1810 (Eleanor or Elizabeth Hardy),d1815—His father was William #770  


David Alexander b1811

William b182
Birth, Parents, Lineage

Robert (Fh556,6N2) (12)(613) Robert Bowland was a son of William and Elizabeth (McCormick) Bowland.  His parents were born in 1750 and 1757 respectively. He had brothers William, Hugh, Alexander (Fh023) and John Bowland. (12)

From Place Index

Fairfield,OH-created 1800 from Ross, Washington


6N2
William (Fh770, 397a, b1758 Rin=50363) r1794,t1806,d1812(LDS) (FAG=99999999)


6N2

Katty (770a) m1807 (John Harris)


6N2

Robert (Fh556,770c Rin=44281) m1810 (Eleanor or Elizabeth Hardy),d1815(FAG=99999999)


6N2

Hugh (Fh2535,770d) m1816 (Sarah Michel or Mickel)


6N2

Alexander (Fh023,770e) m1815 (Sameley Ratliff)


6N2


David (023e) m1836 (Margaret Houston)

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

Robert Fh557 (6A) 230x
-----------------

Robert 1775-1809 Rin=7814)/Mary "Polly" Smith b1778-d>1840--His father was Gerrard #230 (Rin=44917)

*
Samuel bc1799-d<1834—heirs were mother and sister. 


*
Nancy Ann 1801-1880/m1821 Thornton Hord (1799-1854)


*
Named in their father's 1809 will Mason County, Kentucty.



1840 Census of Mason County, Kentucky, Mrs. Mary Bowling is age 60-70, i.e. b1770-1780.

 
Mary Bollen  (widow of  Robert Fh557,6A) was in Mason County, Kentucky, in 1810 in household 296 with 11010-10011-00. (9)

Birth, Parents, Lineage

Robert Bolling was born about 1775, probably in Virginia. His father may have been Gerrard Bolling (Fh230). (704) Robert Bowling was the son of Gerard and Martha (Moxley) Bowling (Fh230). It appears that in 1800 Robert was the sole surviving son. (357) It is said by Virginia Historians that by the year 1800 the only son of Gerrard Bowling (Fh230,6A) still living was his son Robert Bowling (Fh557) and Robert had moved from Fairfax County, Virginia and went west, presumably to Kentucky. (7) Son Robert Bowling (Fh557) with surviving family later moved to the Bowling Preemption in Kentucky, where he reportedly received 1000 acres in Hardin County. Later 1200 acres in Mason County, Kentucky. (51)  Family tradition of Robert Bolling (Fh557) has his ancestor as George Bolling born and died Virginia, who married 1752 Patsy Anthratt. (704) Robert Bowling was named in a 1779 will of Gerrard Bowling in Fairfax County, Virginia. (30) Robert Bowling was named in a 1785 will of his brother Simon Bowling (230c) in Fairfax County, Virginia. Mentions land in Kentucky. (1792) Robert Bolling married Mary "Polly" Smith, she was born 1778. (704) Robert Bowling along with Polly Bowling and Ann Bowling were executors of the 1799 will of Samuel Smith in Fairfax County, Virginia. Samuel Smith names his wife Ann Smith and daughter Polly Bowling and other non family legatees. (133)  Robert Bowlin and Thomas Crawford (See Crafford, second wife of Robert’s grandfather Joseph Fh450) had a Kentucky land grant of 170 acres.  Land surveyed 23 November 1793.  Recorded on page 103, March 12, 1795. (1155)(1749) Robert Bowling after 1793 appears to be living at the point where Hardin, Meade, and Breckinridge counties, (Kentucky) meet. (7) There is a deed 12 March 1795 to Robert Bowlin of 170 acres in Breckinridge County, Kentucky, Deed Book A (1800-1803) page 103. (1348) Robert Bowlin purchased 170 acres.  Land surveyed 1793 and deed dated 1795, in Breckenridge County, Kentucky. (7) Robert Bowling bought 115 acres in 1805 on waters of Lee Creek in Mason County, Kentucky (Deed Book A-C, page 474).  (861)(1155)(1819) Robert Bowling bought 53 1/4 acres in 1809 on waters of Lee Creek in Mason County, Kentucky (Deed Book J, page 245). (1155)(1819) Robert Bolling died about 1809 in Mason County, Kentucky. (704)   Robert Bowlin had a will dated 6-17-1809 and proved 12-11-1809, Book C, page 76, in Mason County, Kentucky.  (670)(452)(1819) In it he named his wife Polly and minor children Samuel and Nancy. Also gives $400 worth of houses to Henson Price. Wife Polly is executor, witnesses: Miles W. Conway, Josiah Wright, John Brayfield, and George Swan. (452)(1819) Mary Bowling was made guardian of Samuel and Nancy Bowling, infant orphans of Robert Bowling, deceased, per Order Book E, Page 34, July court, 1811. (1155)(1819) Mary Bowling brought 106 acres of land on Lee Creek, in Mason County, Kentucky,  per Deed Book 29, Page 80, March 24, 1824. (1155)(1819)  

a.
Daughter Nancy. Possible daughter Nancy Bolling was born 1801 in Lexington or Alexandra, Virginia. She married 
1821, Thornton Hord, in Mason County, Kentucky. (704) Nancy Bowling married 8-6-1821 Thornton Hord in Mason 
County, Kentucky. Nancy Bowling was born 5-10-1801 in Alexandria, Virginia. (Reference: “Hord Family of Virginia” by 
Rev. A.H. Hord, page 102). (1819) 

b.
Son Samuel. Estate of Samuel Bowling, deceased. Thomas Y. Payne, administrator. Mason County, Kentucky, Order Book M, 
page 192. August 11, 1834. Mary Bowling (mother), widow, Thornton Hord and Nancy (sister) his wife, were the heirs. 
(1819)  

There was a Mary Bowlin residing 1810 in Mason County, Kentucky. That could be "Polly" widow of Robert Bowlin. (7) Francis T. Hord and Abner Hord, sell to Mary Bowling for $500, in trust for her daughter, Mary (sic) Hord, and the children of the said Nancy Hord, both those born and to be born. 100 acres, more or less. Deed Book 45, Page 175, August 31, 1837. (1819)  Mary Bowling’s estate is in Order Book Page 5, January court 1855, Mason County, Kentucky. Robert B. Hord and Jos. S. Whisner appointed administrators of  the estate of Mary Bowling, deceased. Nancy Hord signed as surety. Appraisers: William Mitchell, Alex. H. Wall, and Hugh McIlvain. (1155)(1819) 

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

Robert Fh558 (6K) 746j
-----------------

Robert bc1740-d1793 (Rin=52447)/m      Jane ----- (Jane remarried May 5, 1796 in Shelby County, Kentucky)  His father was William #746



Robert bc1760



John b1765-d1846/m1790 Mrs. Ann (Huston) Hoge Rin=56953—See Family #400


Alexander—named in uncle’s (Fh4655, 746i) 1824 will


Sarah



Agnes



Thomas

(also see 020a and Fh557 (230f,6A) and Fh559 (4655c,6K) for other later Roberts that might be mixed here) Robert Bowland was born about 1740. He had brothers Sims (Fh627), George (Fh237), William (Fh860,746j), Matthew (Fh4655), Alexander (Fh020) among others. His wife was Jean or Janet or Jane ----- His father was William #746. 
His children were:



Alexander

Matthew’s (Fh4655, 746i) 1824 will names his children and also names a brother Robert and Robert's son Alexander, Robert is probably Fh558, 746j. (But brother Robert probably died before 1796 when Roberet’s widow remarried, so won’t be alive in 1824 to be named in a will) 


Sarah



Agnes



Thomas



Robert bc1760



John bc1765—This was probably not Fh400 as he was son of John Fh399, Family String 6K.

(7) 
1781

Robert Boland was on the 1781 tax list with 1 horse with value of 6, "Single man", Cecil Township, Washington County, Pennsylvania. (273) Robert Boland, single, was on the 1781 tax list of Cecil Township, Washington County, Pennsylvania. Also in that township in 1781 was Sims Bowland and Mathew Bowland. (2151) 
1783

Robert Bowland/Bolling was listed as a "single freeman" on the 1783 tax list of Cecil Township, Washington County, Pennsylvania. Also on the tax list in the same township were Sims Bowland/Bolam (sic)(Fh627,746i), William Bowlin (Fh860,746j) (616) and Matthew Bowland (Fh4655). (648) 
1786

Robert Bowland was on the 1786 tax list, "Single Freeman", Cecil Township, Washington County, Pennsylvania. (1905)  

April 5, 1790 Bought 178 Acres Washington County, Pennsylvania

Sims Bowland to Robert Bowland. This indenture made fifth day of April, One thousand seven hundred and ninety between Sims Bowland of Chartier Township Washington County & Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, Yeoman & Ann his wife of the one part & Robert Bowland of the same place, Miller, of the other part. Now this indenture Witnesseth that the said Sims Bowling & Ann his Wife for & inconsideration of the sum of One hundred & sixty Pounds current Money of Pennsylvania to them in hand paid the receipt whereof is hereby acknowledged & themselves fully satisfied have granted bargained & sold alined & confirmed & by these presents do grant bargain & sell alien & confirm unto said Robt Bowland his heirs & assigns forever apart of the aforesaid described tract of land beginning at a post thence along Nathan Tanihill's land thence along Boyce XE "Boyce:John" 's land Jas Gault XE "Gault:James" , Peter Karns XE "Karn:Peter"  & Charles Campbells XE "Campbell:Charles"  to the place of begining, containing One hundred & seventyeight acres (178 acres) be the same more or less. sign'd seal'd & delivered in presences of us---- John Canon Thos D. Weaver----- Nathan Tanehill---- Recorded and compared with the Original the 13th  April 1798. (630) He is called “Miller” in both deeds. (7) Robert Bowland on April 5, 1790, bought 178 acres of land from Sims Bowland (Fh627,746i) according to Deed Book 1O, page 2 of Chartier Townsip, Washington County, Pennsylvania.  Witnesses were John Canon, Thomas D. Weaverxe "Weaver:Thomas D.", and Nathan Tanehillxe "Tanehill:Nathan".  (630) 

Tax Lists 1791-1794 Washington County, Pennsylvania

Robert Bowling, "single man" along with Matthew Bowling (Fh4655) and William Bowling (Fh860,746j), were on the 1791 tax list of Chartiers Township, Washington County, Pennsylvania. Robert Bowling was missing from the 1792 tax list but then re-appeared in 1793 and 1794, again with Matthew Bowling and William Bowling. (455)(648)(656) Robert Bowland and his wife Jean, Jane, or Janet Bowland on November 3, 1792 sold 142 acres of land to John McCallxe "McCall:John". The land was in Chartiers Township, Washington County, Pennsylvania bounded by land of James Allisonxe "Allison:James", James Morrisonxe "Morrison:James", James Campbellxe "Campbell:James" and Andrew Ritchiexe "Ritchie:Andrew". The land was originally patented March 26, 1788 to Isaac Weaverxe "Weaver:Isaac" Jr. and shown in patent book 14, page 43.  Robert and his wife signed their names. Witnesses were Craig Ritchiexe "Ritchie:Craig", James Kerrxe "Kerr:James" and William Johnstonxe "Johnston:William". (629)(640)(641) 

Jefferson County, Kentucky 1780’s

Robert Bowling, Henry Bowling (746d,Fh2499), Garrett Bowling (746c,Fh2299), Alexander Bowling (746a,Fh020) and William Bowling (746j,Fh860) were in Jefferson County, Kentucky, in the 1780s. (7) 
From Place Index

Kentucky, Virginia--from December 31, 1776 to November 1, 1780


6K
Alexander 
(Fh020,746d) l1780--later Jefferson


6K
Garrett,Gerrard      (Fh2299,746f) l1780--later Jefferson-present day Mason, KY


6K
Henry                    (Fh2499,746g) l1780,m1784,r1785--later Jefferson


6K
Robert                      (Fh558,746j) r1780s,r1791--later Jefferson



Walter (Fh7385) b1775--later Jefferson


6K
William                   (Fh860,746m) l1780--later Jefferson

Jefferson,KY-created 1780 from original Kentucky County, Virginia (early towns Louisville and Bardstown)


6K
Alexander                 (Fh020,746d) l1780-Could be in Hardin County today



Baldwin                      (UK,?746x) wp1792 (Source 473)


6K
George                     (Fh237,746e) r1787,t1789-Part that was Shelby Co. later


6K
Garrett,Gerrard        (Fh2299,746f)  l1780-Could be in Hardin Co. later-present day Mason, KY 


6K
Henry                      (Fh2499,746g) l1780,m1784 (Sarah Bonam),r1785,r1786-1790


6K
Robert              (Fh558,746j) r1780s,r1791 (in 1823/1824 heirs payed taxes on land on Cross Creek, Jefferson, Ky) 


6K
William                     (Fh860,746m) l1780-Part that was Shelby Co. later

Mercer County, Kentucky 1790

Robert Bowling (Fh558,746h and/or 020a who was killed by the Indians in 1792) and Sims Bowling (Fh627,746b) in a Mercer County, Kentucky, 1790 court action were to help make road repairs.  Others on the list were Samuel Taylorxe "Taylor:Samuel", Hugh McGaryxe "McGary:Hugh", John, Samuel, George and James McAfeexe "McAfee:John"

xe "McAfee:Samuel"

xe "McAfee:George"

xe "McAfee:James", Negro Georgexe "Negro:George", John Johnstonxe "Johnston:John", Henry Thompsonxe "Thompson:Henry" and many others. (449) Negro George belonged to Alexander Boling Fh020 in 1790. (7) One thing to note here is that Robert Bowling is on both the September and October 1790 list.  It was customary to work 30 days in a year. With each able bodied male in a county subject to call from a list kept by the court. So I question if there were two Robert Bowling there in 1790 i.e. Robert having worked the road in September should not have been required to work again in October. (7) 

Jefferson County, Kentucky 1791

Squire Boonexe "Boone:Squire" and his wife Jane of Jefferson County, Kentucky, deeded to Robert Bowlin of the same county, 50 pounds paid for 100 Acres of land on the waters of Brashers Creek XE "Creek:Brasher"  dated October 31, 1791, and recorded in Deed Book 2 of Jefferson County, Kentucky. (474) Robert Bowling paid 50 pounds for 100 acres of land on the water of Brashersxe "Brashers" Creek, Jefferson County, dated October 31, 1791. (449) Robert Bowling (020a) son of Alexander Bowling (Fh020) was killed by the Indians November 6, 1792. (573)(574) So this could be either Robert (020a) but probably Robert (Fh558) but who was the Robert back in Pennsylvania at this time? (7)

Brashers/Brashears Creek XE "Creek:Brasher"  is: 



Now (after 15 Jan 1824) starts near Taylorville, Spencer County, Kentucky, up to Shelby.



Before January 15, 1824 all in Shelby County, Kentucky, 



Before September 1, 1792 all in Jefferson County, Kentucky. (7) 

William Bowling (Fh880,020f) on August 22, 1811, in Livingston County, Kentucky, court records, was empowered by the other heirs to dispose of properties belonging to their late father, Alexander Bowling (Fh020), in Shelby, Henry and Mercer Counties, Kentucky. 


240 Acres in Mercer near the Salt River


100 Acres in Shelby near Clear Creek


300 Acres in Henry to Joseph DuPuty XE "DuPuty:Joseph" 
The Shelby County, Kentucky, property was 100 acres on the waters of Clear Creek XE "Creek:Clear" . The quit claim deed for $1 was to William Roberts XE "Roberts:William"  and was written 7 September 1811 in Shelby County. It was recorded and filed April 19, 1813. The property is described and ends with “include the boundaries specified in a deed from Squire Boone XE "Boone:Squire" , to Robert Bolling recorded in Jefferson Court” on waters of Brasher’s creek. (1155) Could this be Alexander’s son or brother “without issue”? A Robert dies 1793 in Mercer County, Kentucky, son died 1792. (7) Alexander Bowling died before 26 July 1791, possibly killed by Indians, on his homestead in Kentucky. (1224) 
A Jane Bowling married 5 May 1796 to William Lockhart XE "Lockhart:William"  in Shelby County, Kentucky. (note this could be widow of Robert Fh558,746h) (1211)(1395) There was a 5 May 1796 bond for the marriage of Jane Bowling to William Lockhart XE "Lockhart:William" , Shelby County, Kentucky. (1848)

Family Group Record
Husband's Name

William LOCKHART (AFN:1QW4-4L9) 

[image: image5.png]



Born: 
Abt 1772
[image: image6.png]



Place:
Of Shelby, Kentucky

[image: image7.png]



Married: 
5 May 1796
[image: image8.png]



Place:
Shelby, Kentucky

Wife's Name

Jane BOWLING (AFN:1QW4-4Q4) 

Born: 
Abt 1776
[image: image9.png]



Place:
Of Shelby, Kentucky

Married: 
5 May 1796
[image: image10.png]



Place:
Shelby, Kentucky

1795

Robert Bowland, “Miller”, was the grantee of a land deed for Lot 25 in "CannonsBurg", Chartiers Township, Washington County, Pennsylvania.  Grantor was John Canon, and his wife Jennet,xe "Canon:John" and the deed dated 22 April 1795 in Deed Book 1O, page 1 in Washington County, Pennsylvania. Land was near land of Matthew Ritchie, Craig Ritchie, Henry Dannell and un-named “others” (631)
Death

So it appears that Robert Bowling died after April 22, 1795, when he bought land, and before May 5, 1796, when his wife Jane re-married. (7) Robert Bolen’s heirs payed taxes on land of his in 1823 and 1824 on Cross Creek Township, Jefferson County, Kentucky. (LDS records)(TB—I believe this was Cross Creek Twp., Jefferson County, Ohio) 
+++++++++++++++++++++++++

Robert Fh559 (6K) 4655c
-----------------

Robert 1774-1857 (Rin=54015)/m<1801 1/w Martha Mercer (1779-1815)--His father was Matthew #4655


*a
Eliza 1801-1877/m1821 William Mercer 1797-c1877


*a
James "Mercer" 1804-1878/m1826 Sarah Rogers (1809-1850)

*a
Matilda 1806-1885/1/h James Ritchie, 2/h m1840 James Thompson


*a
George Washington 1808-1881/1/w Margaret D. ----- (d1855), 2/w m1861 Mrs. Mary Wolford


*a
Julia Ann/m1828 1/h Jesse H. Dungan, 2/h Joseph Cameron


*a
Maria 1813-1877/m1831 Dr. Alexander G. Sutherland 1801-1882


*
2/w m1815 Ann J. Mercer 1791/4-1858


*a
Robert Mercer/Julia Weidenbacher--murdered Frank Barker, his brother-in-law, later went West.


*a
William Boyd/m1852 Henrietta Glessner


*a
Margaretta Ann bc1825/1/h Franklin Barker, 2/h John H. Wigle


*a
Milton Jennings bc1827


*a
Calvin A. bc1830


*a
Harriet bc1837/m1856 R. C. Kimball

    
*
Named in Robert Bowland's will written October 18, 1853, probated December 17,1857,
 


Richland County, Ohio.


a
Children per Source #862
 

Birth, Parents, Lineage

Robert Bowland was born September 19, 1774 in Pennsylvania. (613)(584)  Robert Bowland was the son of Matthew Bowland (Fh4655). (613) Robert Bowland was listed in his father Matthew Bowland's September 15, 1824 will. He had brothers Alexander, Matthew and James (Fh291) and sisters Sarah Neil and Agnes McGill. (622) 
Marriages and Children

a.
Eliza 1801-1877/m1821 William Mercer 1797-c1877

b.
James "Mercer" 1804-1878/m1826 Sarah Rogers (1809-1850)

c.
Matilda 1806-1885/1/h James Ritchie, 2/h m1840 James Thompson

d.
George Washington 1808-1881/1/w Margaret D. ----- (d1855), 2/w m1861 Mrs. Mary Wolford

e.
Julia Ann/m1828 1/h Jesse H. Dungan, 2/h Joseph Cameron

f.
Maria 1813-1877/m1831 Dr. Alexander G. Sutherland 1801-1882


2/w m1815 Ann J. Mercer 1791/4-1858

g.
Robert Mercer/Julia Weidenbacher--murdered Frank Barker, his brother-in-law, later went West.

h.
William Boyd/m1852 Henrietta Glessner

i.
Margaretta Ann bc1825/1/h Franklin Barker, 2/h John H. Wigle

j.
Milton Jennings bc1827

k.
Calvin A. bc1830

l.
Harriet bc1837/m1856 R. C. Kimball

1798

Robert Bowland witnessed the 1798 will of James Gault in Chartiers Township, Washington County, Pennsylvania. (619) James Gault was a next neighbor to 292 acres owned at one time by Sims Bowling (Fh627,746i). (7)
1800

Robert Boland and Robert Boland Jr. are listed in the 1800 Census of Washington County, Pennsylvania  on page 19 with Mathew Boland (Fh4655 or 746g) and William Boland (perhaps Fh860). (547)

1808

Robert Bowland was the executor of the estate of Dr. Ebenezer Jennings in Washington County, Pennsylvania in 1808. (615)(589)(645)
1809

Robert Bowland, James Allison (husband of Ann 4655h) et al are "Directors of the Office of Discounts and Deposits at Washington County, Pennsylvania, July 31, 1809. (645)  Notice was in the newspaper January 2, 1809. (589) Notice given January 30, 1809, Burgettstown, Washington County, Pennsylvania. (645)
1810

These are the Heads of Household for the 
1810 Census Chartiers Twp., Washington County PA.

Bowland, Mathew (Fh4655)
Bowland, Robert (Fh559)

(http://www.rootsweb.ancestry.com/~pawashin/census/1810/chartiers-twp_alpha-names_corrected.html)

The newspaper on January 29, 1810, gives notice of the estate sale of Dr. E. Jennings with Robert Bowland as executor. (589) 
1812

Dr. Ebenezer Jennings had a daughter Maria who married Boyd J. Mercer brother of Mrs. Ann S. (Mercer) Bowland. (862) Robert Bowland and Matthew Bowland (Fh4655) both of Chartiers Township, Washington County, Pennsylvania, were executors in the 1812 estate of Joseph Holmes. (615)  
1813

Robert Bowland had a daughter Maria Bowland who was born August 6, 1813 in Franrfort Springs, Beaver County, Pennsylvania. She married November 17, 1831 in Pennsylvania, Alexander G.  Sutherland. (613)  ----- Bowland married Martha Mercer in Washington County, Pennsylvania. This from Washington County, Pennsylvania, Will Book #2 page 29. (1583) 
Robert Bowland married first Martha Mercer. (862)  Martha Bowland was the daughter of James Mercer and was named in James Mercer's 1801 will in Washington County, Pennsylvania. (615) Brother James Bowland (Fh291) died 1812 in Washington County, Pennsylvania. He was buried at the Cross Creek Presbyterian Church grave. Two other Bowland's are buried there: Martha Bowland died 1815, aged 36 and Milton Bowland died 1824 aged 2. (559) This Martha Bowland could be Robert Bowland's first wife. (7)  Robert Bowland married in 1815, to Ann J.  Mercer, who was born in February 1791. (584) Robert Bowland, Esq. (Fh559), of Burgettstown, Pennsylvania, in 1815 had a store. Robert Bowland had a "most trusted employe", William Mercer, who was born near Canonsburg, Pennylvania, in 1797. On March 28, 1821 William Mercer married Eliza Bowland, who was born September 27, 1801, in Canonsburg, the daughter of his employer. (403) Robert and Ann (Mercer) Bowland came to Ohio in 1826, located in Mansfield (Richland County, Ohio) and engaged in the dry goods business many years. (584) Robert Bowland helped organize a Congregational Church in 1833. (584) In the county history on page 366 a Robert Mercer Bowland killed his brother-in-law Frank Barker. (584) I believe that the killer Robert Bowland was probably the son of Robert and Ann (Mercer) Bowland. (7) Son Robert Mercer Bowland after going to jail went west but returned from the goldrush. I don't know where he died. (862)  Son James Mercer Bowland was born 1804 in Pennsylvania. He married Sarah Rogers the daughter of Rowland and Mary (Hartshorn) Rogers. James Mercer Bowland died August 13, 1878 in Knox County, Ohio. (614) Son Mercer Bowland married Sarah Rodgers. (1583) James Mercer Bowland was born 1804 and married 1826 Sarah Rogers 1808-<1902. (621) Son James M. Bowland in early 1800 married Sarah Rogers probably in Washington County, Pennsylvania. (1097) Son Mercer Bowland married Sarah Rogers in Washington County, Pennsylvania. This from the Examiner Record, Vol. 1, page 30 or 74. (1583)
Death

Robert Bowland (1793-1880) was buried in the Old Cadiz Cemetery, Harrison County, Ohio. FAG=86141553  (866)

Philip Bolen - Aug 6, 2010   Categories: Bolen in OH 

These are found at the LDS FS/FT site

Name: James Mercer Bowland (559b,6K)     Wasn't G6 string K in KY < 1800?-Most yes, but not all.

(FAG=79480975, Rin=44830)


Gender: Male                                             
Death Date: 13 Aug 1878                           
Death Place: Martinsburg, Knox, Ohio
Age: 74                                                     
Birth Date: 1804                                                   
Birthplace: Washington County, Pennsylvania         
Occupation: Sadler                                               
Race: White                                                         
Marital Status: Married

$24.80    Twelve months after date I promise to pay Robert Bowland and Matha Maholm (late Martha Bowland) executors of the Estate of James Bowland, deceased, on order Twenty-four dollars Eighty cents with interest being the dividend due the aforesaid executor from the Estate of Thomas Bowland, deceased, Witness my hand and seal this 25th day of Jan 1821.

 

Alex Bowland

 

Test

John Hunter    

Death

Robert Bowland died November 1857.  (584) Robert Bowland died November 19, 1857, in Mansfield, Richland County, Ohio. His will was dated October 18, 1853 and probated December 17, 1857. The will lists his second wife Ann Mercer. He had six children with his first wife and six children with second wife. (613) Robert Bowland died November 29, 1857. (862) Robert Bowland had a will October 1853 probated December 17, 1857. It named wife Ann and daughters Eliza Mercer, Matilda Thompson, Julia Ann, Maria Sutherland, Margaretta Ann Wigle, and Harriet; and sons James Mercer, George Washington, Robert Mercer, William Boyd, Milton Jennings and Calvin A. (699) Robert Bowland in his 1853 will gave his son James Mercer Bowland "an out lot containing seven acres adjacent to Burgettstown, Washington County, Pennsylvania". (699) Mrs. Bowland died in April, 1858. (584) Robert Bowland was aged 84 years when he died November 29, 1857, i.e.  born 1774. He along with wife Ann J. -----, are buried in Mansfield City Cemetery, Mansfield, Richland County, Ohio. (652)(2172)(now in FAG at 155923779 (him) and FAG  155923813 (her)) 

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

Robert Fh560 (6A) 620x
-----------------

Robert 1792-1845 (Rin=51482)/m1816 Jane Christy Neale (1796-1854)--His father was Samuel #620 (Rin=45506)

*
Samuel 1817-1892/m1852 Nancy Jane Martin/Brooks (1832-1930)


*
Robert b1819-died young


*
Robert Jr. 1820-1860/m1851 Nancy Jane Smith (1832-1913)


*
Elizabeth b1823/m1839 John Martin


*
Mariam 1825-1904/m1850 Hawkings D. Smith


*
Albert Richard 1827-1861/m1853 Ann Gabriella Worland


*
Sarah "Sallie" 1829-c1859/m1852 James Moreman Smith


*
Malvina 1832-1848


*
John b1837/m1860 Louisa E. Thompson


*
Jane Christy 1839-1886/m1858 Samuel William Bryan


*
Children per source #57

Birth, Parents, Lineage

Robert Bowling was born 1792 in Fairfax County, Virginia, the son of Samuel and Mariam (mc1785 Mariam Plummer) Bowling (Fh620). Robert Bowling had a sister Sarah who married Mr. Smith. (57)(58)(296) 

Lineage according to Source #363 (Frederick A. Virkus, Vol. 7 (1942) page 182):

William Bowling, Fh742, patented 1887 (sic probably 887) acres in Abingdon Parish, Gloucester 

Co. VA,1668, had son


George, Fh240, d 1736 of Prince William County, Virginia, had son


Joseph, Fh450, dc1753 of Fairfax County, Virginia who married Pellataire ------ had son


Gerrard, Fh230 (1730-1780) mc1752 Martha Moxley , had son


Samuel, Fh620 d1798 mc1785 Mariam Plummer or Mary Ann, had son


Robert, Fh560 (1792-1845) m1816 Jane Christie Neal, lived Monroe County, Mo. had son

Samuel 560a (1817-1892) m1852 Nancy Jane Brooks (1832-1930) farmer near Paris, Mo.(363) 

Lineage according to Source #57 (Informant Mrs. Bryan Griggs):


William, Fh742, A, (887 acres in Gloucester Co. VA, 1668), had son


George, Fh240, A, had son


Joseph, Fh450, A, had son


Gerard Fh230, A, had son


Samuel Fh620, A, had son


Robert, Fh560, A, had daughter



Sarah 560g, m James M. Smith (57) 

Lineage according to Source #363 (“First Families of America, The Compendium of American Genealogy” by Frederick A. Virkus, Vol. 7 (1942) page 182:


William Bowling, Fh742, patented 1887 (sic probably 887) acres in Abingdon Parish, Gloucester Co. VA,1668, had 

son


George, Fh240, d 1736 of Prince William County, Virginia, had son


Joseph, Fh450, dc1753 of Fairfax County, Virginia who married Pellataire ------ had son


Gerrard, Fh230 (1730-1780) mc1752 Martha Moxley , had son


Samuel, Fh620 d1798 mc1785 Mariam Plummer or Mary Ann, had son


Robert, Fh560 (1792-1845) m1816 Jane Christie Neal, lived Monroe County, Mo. had son



Samuel 560a (1817-1892) m1852 Nancy Jane Brooks (1832-1930) farmer near Paris, Mo.(363) 



Son Samuel Bowling is in the 1880 Census of Monroe, Missouri. 

Marriage and Children

Robert Bowling (1792-1845) married Jane Christy Neill (1796-1854)  1816 in Alexandria, Virginia. (979) Robert Bowling married Jane Christie Neille (sic) 1816 in Alexandria, Virginia. (1614) Robert Bowling (1792-1845) married 1816 Jane Christee Neale in Alexandria, Fairfax County, Virginia. (57)(2166) Jane Christee Neale was the daughter of James Neale and Rebecca Offutt. (57) Robert Bowling married 1816 in Alexandria, Fairfax County, Virginia to Jane Christy Neale. Jane Christy Neale was the daughter of James and Rebecca (Offutt) Neale.  
They had children: 

a.
Samuel born 1817. (57)(58)(296)

b.
Robert born 1819 in Clark County, Kentucky. (57)(58)(296) 

c.
Robert Jr. born 1820. (57)(58)(296) 

d.
Elizabeth born 1823. (57)(58)(296) 

e.
Mariam born 1825 in Bourbon County, Kentucky. (57)(58)(296) 

f.
Albert Richard born 1827. (57)(58)(296) 

g.
Sarah "Sallie" born 1829. (57)(58)(296) 

h.
Melvina born 1832. (57)(58)(296) 

i.
John born 1834/37. (57)(58)(296) Son John Bowling, born 1834, has a write-up on page 1154, "History of Monroe 

and Shelby County, Missouri", 1884. (58)(1350)(1351)

j.
Jane Christy born 1839 in Monroe County, Missouri. (57)(58)(296)

Movement

Robert Bowling (Fh560,6A) and his family lived for a time in the National Capital, but prior to 1819 they settled near Paris in Bourbon County, Kentucky. In 1837 with a family of eight young children, they again moved westward and settled on a farm near Paris, Monroe County, Missouri. (1414) About 1819 they went to Kentucky and in 1837 they went to Missouri. (979) Places of residence Virginia, Bourbon County, Kentucky, and Missouri. (57)

Death

Robert Bowling (Fh560,6A) died on August 6, 1845, and was buried on the home place on a farm near Paris, Monroe County, Missouri. His widow survived him several years and died on September 27, 1854. Their gravestones are still intact. (1414) Robert Bowling died 6 Aug 1845 in Monroe County, Missouri. Burial at family cemetery. In 1974 no trace left of graveyard. (57) In 1845 Robert Bowling died in Monroe County, Missouri. (57)(58)(296) Wife Jane died 27 Sep 1854 in Monroe County, Missouri, and was burial was at family cemetery on the Bowling farm in Monroe County, Missouri. (57)

Individual Record

	


Robert BOWLING (AFN: 1GL0-MJF) 
Sex: , M , Family 

	
	
	


Event(s)


Birth:  28 Mar 1792, Fairfax, Va,  


Death: 6 Aug 1845, Paris, Monroe, Mo,  

Parents


Father: , Samuel BOWLING (AFN: 1GL0-MG1) , Family 


Mother:  

Marriage(s)


Spouse: Jane Christy NEAL (AFN: 1GL0-M3Q) , Family 


Marriage: 28 Nov 1816, Fairfax, Va, 

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

Robert Fh561 (6M17) 286x
-----------------

Robert b1775-1795 (Rin=49084, KH9C-TBT)-d>1820/m1810 Sarah Oliver--His father was James #286


a
Harrison 1816-1877/m     Lucy Ann Proctor (1828-1906)


a
Delilah b1820/m       Thomas Jett (1812-1900)


a
Henry b1821/m       Mary F. Lavinia Cox Harris


a
George b1821/m       Mildred Ann Harris (1832-1893)


a
Sophia Ann b1830/m       Robert Sullivan (b1821)


a
Susan d1850/m       Thomas Jett (1812-1900)


a
Children per Source #969

Census:
1820 Spotsylvania County, Virginia


Page No: 66B, Dec 13, 1820
16. Lawrence Bolling   (Fh4614,286c,6M17) 

0 2 1 1 0 1 | 0 0 1 0 1
19. Sally Bolling (widow of Thomas Fh667,286a,6M17)  
0 1 0 1 0 0 | 1 2 0 1 1


Page No: 71A, Dec 13, 1820
12. George Bolling  (Fh238,286b,6M17)    

2 0 0 1 0 1 | 4 2 3 1 0 |
24. Robert Bowling  (Fh561,286d,6M17) 

0 0 0 0 1 0 | 2 0 0 1 0 | 0 |
+++++++++++++++++++++++++

Samuel Fh590 (6A) 450x
-----------------

Samuel b1712-d>1785 (Rin=44275)/m1731 Elizabeth Oxford--His father was Joseph #450 (Rin=53942)
--See Fh007 for possible siblings.

a  c 
Mary b1734


a
Helenor/Eleanor b1735


ab
Elizabeth b1737


a
Samuel b1739/40


a
William b1741


a
Margaret b1743


a
Benjamin b1744


a
Anne b1745/46


a
James b1747/48


a
Births in the register of St Pauls Parish per Sources #46 and #2111. 


b
I am a descendant of Elizabeth Bolling who married 1756 Robert Mays, Overwharton Parish, Stafford 



County, Virginia. Some have her as 90d, but no birth record. If she was born c1739/42 (?)then her mother 


could not be Mary Latham who died in 1735. She might be an Elizabeth found born to several families 



(590c or 760c) per St. Paul church records or the sister of Edward/Edmond (Fh183). (1734)(947)


c
Birth in the register of St Pauls Parish per Source #2111. The birth records show her mother as 




Mary... there is only one Samuel and he married in 1731 to Elizabeth Oxford. i.e. Fh590. (2111)

Samuel Bowling married Elizabeth Oxford, October 8, 1731, in St. Paul's Parish, Stafford County, Virginia. (46)(61)(1957) 
They had children:

a.
Mary born November 4, 1734. (2111) 

b.
Eleanor born 1735. (46)(492) Helenor born November 30, 1735. (2111) 

c.
Elizabeth born 1737. I am a descendant of Elizabeth Bolling who married 1756 Robert (?), Overwharton Parish, Stafford 
County, Virginia. Some have her as 90d, but no birth record. If she was born c1739/42 then her mother could not be Mary 
Latham who died in 1735. She might be an Elizabeth found born to several families (e.g. Fh590) per St. Paul church records 
or the sister of Edward/Edmond (Fh183). (1734)(947) Elizabeth was born October 28, 
1737. (2111)

d.
Samuel born 1739/40. (46)(492) Samuel born February 9, 1739/40 (old style). (2111) 

e.
William born 1741. (46)(492) William born April 20, 1741. (2111) William Bowling was born 1741 in Stafford County, 
Virginia, the son of Samuel and Elizabeth (Oxford) Bowling. (46)

f.
Margaret born 1743. (46)(492) Margaret born March 26, 1743. (2111) 

g.
Benjamin born 1744. (46)(492) Benjamin born August 15, 1744. (2111)

h.
Anne born 1745/46. (46)(492) Anne born February 11, 1744/45 (old style). (2111) 

i.
James born 1747/48. (46)(492) Male child born February 20, 1747/48 (old style). (2111) 

That Joseph Bowling (Fh450) is the father of Benjamin Bowling (Fh090) is an assumption, but an assumption that is based on a preponderance of the information. Benjamin Bowling of Stafford County, Virginia, in time and place is the only Benjamin who could have been the son of Joseph. When James O. Bowling, Box 252, Ash Grove, Missouri 65604, (Source #51, he died in 1993) asked his grandfather of the connection between Benjamin (Fh090), Joseph (Fh450) and George (Fh240), the grandfather said there was a Samuel (Fh590)  there too. In the St. Pauls's Parish of that period we find a Samuel who married Elizabeth Oxford (Fh590). (51) Samuel Bowling and Elizabeth Bowling are both in the 1740 Register of the St. Paul’s register. (2053)

Lineage according to Source #51:


William, Fh742, A, had son


George, Fh240, A, had son


Samuel, Fh590, had a son (He doesn’t fit here. He is son of Fh450 and brother of Fh090)

Joseph, Fh450, A, had son


Benjamin, Fh090, A, had son



Might be incorrect here


John, Fh432, A, had son


Joshua, had son--also had a older brother Edmond Fh185,6A


Benjamin, had a son


#51 grandfather


#51 father


James O. Bowling d1993, Source #51 (51)

23-MAY-1785

Know all men. I Samuel Bowling (could be 590c bc1740,Fh590 is Samuel Rin=44275) of County of Stafford in consideration of Simon Lyn of said County being my security for paying Samuel Smith the full sum of twelve pounds good and lawfull money of Virginia on 1st January next ensueing.have sold.. 1 black mare, 2 cows & calves and 2 heifers one bed and bedclothes..if Samuel Bowling truly pay..be fully reinstated in his right to all articles.23rd May 1785.
Presence: Reubin Burgess. Samuel (x) Bowling
Zachariah Thmpson
Stafford SCT June Court 1785. Mortgage ordered to be recorded.

(2174) SOURCE: Stafford County, Virginia, Deed and Will Abstracts, p. 264, 1780-1786 by Ruth and Sam Sparacio.

Samuel (Rin=44275)//m<1734 Mary ----- --See Fh007 for possible siblings. 

Could be the same as Fh590.


a
Mary b1734


a
Birth in the register of St Pauls Parish per Source #2111. The birth records show her mother as 



Mary... there is only one Samuel and he married in 1731 to Elizabeth Oxford. i.e. Fh590. (2111)

Samuel Bowling and wife Mary ----- (sic, Mary might be incorrect and Fh580 and Fh590 are the same person) had a daughter Mary born 1734 in Stafford County, Virginia. (46)(492) That Joseph Bowling (Fh450) is the father of Benjamin Bowling (Fh090) is an assumption, but an assumption that is based on a preponderance of the information. Benjamin Bowling of Stafford County, Virginia, in time and place is the only Benjamin who could have been the son of Joseph. When James O. Bowling, Box 252, Ash Grove, Missouri 65604, (Source #51, he died in 1993) asked his grandfather of the connection between Benjamin (Fh090), Joseph (Fh450) and George (Fh240), the grandfather said there was a Samuel (Fh590) there too. In the St Paul's Parish of that period we find a Samuel who married Elizabeth Oxford (Fh590). (51)

Lineage according to Source #51:


William, Fh742, A, had son (Yes)


George, Fh240, A, had son


Samuel Fh590), had a son (He doesn’t fit here. He is son of Fh450 and brother of Fh090)


Joseph, Fh450, A, had son (Yes)


Benjamin, Fh090, A, had son



It could be wrong here


John, Fh432, A, had son


Joshua, had son--also had a older brother Edmond Fh185,6A


Benjamin, had a son


#51 grandfather


#51 father


James O. Bowling d1993, Source #51 (51)

Thomas Bowlin (Fh680) along with Samuel Bowlin (Fh590) and many others are mentioned as buying stuff in the estate settlement of Thomas Hooper, 1731, Stafford County, Virginia. Page 13 of source and pages 41-43 of Stafford County, Virginia, Will Book M. (1610). Samuel Boling is listed in an estate settlement 1743 in Stafford County, Virginia. There were a lot of other names listed. (1610) 

1785 Virginia Heads of Families—Stafford County, Virginia
PG. #
NAME


WHITE
BLACK

108
Bolling, Samuel

5
0



108
Bolling, James
`
1
0



Samuel Bolling was listed as head of household (5 people) 1785 in Stafford County, Virginia. (43)

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

Samuel Fh620 (6K) 230x
-----------------

Samuel bc1765-1798 (Rin=45506)/mc1785 Mariam Plummer--His father was Gerrard  #230 (Rin=44917), Her (Mariam Plummer) mother was Martha (Bolling) Plummer


*
Nancy b<1789



Robert 1792-1845 (Rin=51482)/m1816 Jane Christy Neale (1796-1854)--See Family Group #560



Sarah b>1789<1798/----- Smith


*
Named in father's 1789 will, recorded 1800. Younger children would not have been born yet.

Birth, Parents, Lineage

Samuel Bowling was the son of Gerard Bowling (Fh230) of Fairfax County, Virginia. (57)  Samuel Bowling was the son of Gerard and Martha (Moxley) Bowling. (357) Samuel Bolling was the son of Gerrard and Martha Bolling. (1264) Samuel Bowling had a brother Robert Bowling (Fh557,230f). (133)

Lineage according to Source #363 (Frederick A. Virkus, Vol. 7 (1942) page 182):

William Bowling, Fh742, patented 1887 (sic probably 887) acres in Abingdon Parish, Gloucester 

Co. VA,1668, had son


George, Fh240, d 1736 of Prince William County, Virginia, had son


Joseph, Fh450, dc1753 of Fairfax County, Virginia who married Pellataire ------ had son


Gerrard, Fh230 (1730-1780) mc1752 Martha Moxley , had son


Samuel, Fh620 d1798 mc1785 Mariam Plummer or Mary Ann, had son


Robert, Fh560 (1792-1845) m1816 Jane Christie Neal, lived Monroe County, Mo. had son

Samuel 560a (1817-1892) m1852 Nancy Jane Brooks (1832-1930) farmer near Paris, Mo.(363) 

Lineage according to Source #57 (Informant Mrs. Bryan Griggs):


William, Fh742, A, (887 acres in Gloucester Co. VA, 1668), had son


George, Fh240, A, had son


Joseph, Fh450, A, had son


Gerard Fh230, A, had son


Samuel Fh620, A, had son


Robert, Fh560, A, had daughter



Sarah 560g, m James M. Smith (57) 

Marriage and children

Samuel Bowling married Mariam -----. (57)(58) Samuel Bolling married about 1785, Fairfax County, Virginia,  Miriam Plummer, daughter of Joseph and Marth (Bolling, sic TB should be Moxley) Plummer. (1264) 
They had children:

a
Nancy born before March 14, 1789. (133) 

b
Robert (Fh560) born 1792 in Fairfax County, Virginia. (57)(58)

c
Sarah who married Mr. Smith. (57)(58) Sarah born after March 14, 1789. (133)

Movement

Samuel Bowling was named in a 1779 will of Gerrard Bowling (Fh230) in Fairfax County, Virginia. (30)(133) Samuel Bowling was named in a 1785 will of his brother Simon Bowling (230c) in Fairfax County, Virginia. (1792)  Samuel Bowling was on the 1787 census of Fairfax County, Virginia, with 15 slaves, 11 horses, and 12 head of cattle. (551)

VIRGINIA 1787 – PROPERTY TAX ROLLS
Results read as follows:

Date – Persons – White males – W. males over 16 – Blacks above – Horses – 



         above 21 
      under 21                   16

Cattle – Carriages

Fairfax County
Bowling, Ann

0
1
1
4
9
Widow of John Fh433

Bowling, Jonathan

0
0
0
0
0
UK

Bowling, John (land only)
0
0
0
0
0
Fh433,or 746c

Bowling, Samuel

0
6
9
11
12
Fh620,230d

Bowling, William

0
1
3
5
4
Fh747,743b or UK

Bowling, William

0
3
2
12
6
Fh747,743b or UK

Frederick Henry, Manager for Will Bowling

1789 On the road from the Turnpike Gate at the intersection of the George Town Road to the White Oak at the Widow Tucker’s - the tithables which now are, &c. of Joseph Carroll, Joseph Gowing, Carlyle’s Farm, Ramsay’s Quarter, John Ellis, Robert Sanford, Fielden Isaac, Guy Evans, John Violett, Wm. Hy Terrett, Mrs. West, Daniel Mc.Alister, John Hawkins, Wm. Herbert’s Quarter, Thos. Daniel, Widow Tucker, James Webb, Dade’s old Quarter, Chas. Curtis’s place, Geo. Solomon, Samuel Bowling (Fh620,230d,6A), Wm. Bowling, Elisha Harden, Wm. Lyles, James Kenny, Patty Moxly, Fitzgerald’s Quarter, and all those living on the land formerly Townshend Dade’s and Charles Alexander’s, on the west of the west of the George Town Road, and also all those living on the Land of Thos. & John West, between the turn pike road and the road leading to Colchester, Joel Cooper, Robert Adam’s plantation. John Geesling, as last. (1832) Samuel Bowling (Fh620,230d) witnessed a August 20, 1790 and a December 1, 1790 deed in Fairfax county, Virginia that mentions  Peggy Bowling (widow of Simon 230c) of Fairfax County, Virginia. Joseph Birch was a second witness in both deeds. (1590) 18 July 1797, page 65, Ordered that Daniel McCarty, Edward Washington, William Deneale, Charles Little, Presley Gunnell, Nicholas Fitzhugh, Roger West, Samuel Boling (Fh620,230d,6A), George Minor & John Jackson or any six of them do allot the several hands to work upon the public roads in this County and recommend Overseers for the same. And ordered that they meet on the 4th day of August next at Colo. Wrens tavern and that they be at liberty to adjourn from day to day until the business be completed. And it is further ordered that the Sheriff of this County do attend the said Commissioners with the books of the Commissioners of the Revenue and it is further ordered that the hands belonging to the estate of George Mason & others of Masons Neck be taken from the ferry road and put to the Public road. (1832) 16 October 1797, page 113, From the Widow Tuckers to the Turnpike Alexandria we allot &c. William Boling, Samuel Boling (Fh620,230d,6A), Carlyle Whitings Quarter, Alexander’s, Conways, FitzGeralds and Adams Tenants Westward of the George Town Road, Wm. H Terrett and his Tenants, Ludwell Lee, Jesse Taylors Quarter, Thomas Glover, Wm. Agullenil near Ramsays old Field. (1832) 

Death

Virginia Newspaper Abstract (obit, TAA (?), December 20, 1798). “Capt. Samuel Bolling of Fairfax County, Virginia, died on Sunday night, December 16, 1798 in his 33rd year. (obit TAA 20 Dec 98)” (381) Samuel Bowling died in 1798. (57) Samuel Bowling had a will 14 March 1789, probated 21 July 1800 in Fairfax County, Virginia.  He named his wife Miram, daughter Nancy and brother Robert.  Witnesses were: Joseph Birch and James Lowe. (133)  Samuel Bowling had a will 1800, Fairfax County, Virginia. (357) 

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

Samuel Fh621 (6)
-----------------

Samuel d<1810 (Rin=         )—Fh621 could be Samuel Fh620. (No because Fh620 died in 1798)

Robert b>1789-alive in 1810

Elizabeth Maria b>1789-alive in 1813

Samuel Bowling was deceased by September 4, 1810 in Alexandria City and County, Virginia. He had two minor children namely Robert and Elizabeth Maria Bowling. Guardianship for Robert Bowling was granted September 4, 1810 to Joseph Dean, secondly to Benjamin Dean, Will Book C, page 470. Guardianship for Elizabeth Bowling was granted July 20, 1810 to Robert Moore and guardianship for Elizabeth Maria Bowling was granted October 12, 1813 to Ann M. Bowling with surety by Robert Bowling and Thomas Janney, Will Book 1, page 257. (678)

Alexandria-Independent city, Virginia



6
Samuel (Fh621) d<1810


6

Robert (621a, could be Fh560 (Rin=51482 ?) r1810(Guardianship)

6

Elizabeth Maria (621b) r1810(Guardianship), r1813(Guardianship)

6A
Robert (Fh560) m1816 (Jane Christie Neille)

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

Samuel Fh624 (6Z) 386x
-----------------

Samuel 1778-1863(Rin=48830)/m1807 Elizabeth Townsend 1783-d>1850-<1860—His father was John #386
A descendant kits 1882, 3018, kit 14345, kit 1590, kit 1591, kit 20750 and kit 35942, 38637 tested into DNA 6. Kit 35942 is a 37/37 match with Kit 4833(Z), Kit 16668(Z) and 25/25 match with Kit 46808(Y), and Kit 2388(M17). 


1 females b1800-1810 (1810 Census)



1 females b1800-1810 (1810 Census)


a
Dr. Jorden W. 1810-1873/m1830 Elizabeth Potter MacKey (1802-1881)
A descendant kit 35942 tested into DNA 6 Kit 35942 is a 25/25 match with Kit 4833(Z), Kit 46808(Y), Kit 16668(Z) and Kit 2388(M17).




Charlotte b1819/m        David P. Chambers


a
William E. b1819 GA-d>1880/m       Sarah ------


a
Nathaniel 1823-1884/mc1841/42 Hanna Missouri Barrett b1827---




A descendant kits 1882, 20750 and 309298 tested into DNA 6


a
David 1828-1883/m1853 Jackie Carolyn "Carrie" Pitts (1835-1910) --




A descendant kit 3018 tested into DNA 6


a
John


a
Sanford


a
Samuel


a
Amanda 1825-1907/m1839 John H. Ditmore 


a
Martin Costen/Colstan/Colston 1830-1903/m1856 Kezia Jane Bridges 1838-1916--




A descendants kit 14345, kit 1590, kit 1591, kit 38637 tested into DNA 6


a
Daniel b1832/mc1853 Nancy Johnson



Daughter dc1848/m     Francis Fulton--had daughter Mariah Fulton bc1836


a
Laura


a
Children per Source #1721 (Phillip Bowling, kit 14345)
Birth, Parents, Lineage

Samuel Bowling was born about 1778 in North Carolina. (sic)(1600) Samuel Bowling (Fh624) was born about 1778-9 in North Carolina. (1602) Descendant kits 3018 and 14345, 1882, 1590, 1591, 20750 and Kit 35942 tested into DNA 6. Kit 35942 is a 25/25 match with Kit 4833 and Kit 46808
Marriage and Children

Samuel Bowling's wife was Elizabeth -----. (1436)  Samuel Bowling's (Fh624) wife was Elizabeth born about 1783 in North Carolina. They had at least 10 children maybe more. (1602) 
Children of Samuel and Elizabeth:

a.
Charlotte b. c. 1819 TN  m. David Chambers. Husband David P. Chambers was born between 1807/1814 probably 
Spartanburg Co., SC. The Chambers family moved from Monroe Co. TN to Benton Co., AL in the early 1830's 
according to an article in the Heritage of Calhoun Co., AL book titled Chambers Family of Calhoun County. by Clark Sinclair, 
Houston, TX. (1602)

b.
Nathaniel born about1823 in Tennessee married about 1841-42 in Monroe County, Alabama, Hannah Missouri Barrett born 
about 1827, in South Carolina or Georgia or Florida (a different birth place in each Census). They lived in Carroll County, 
Georgia in 1850 and 1860 Census & were in Jefferson County, Alabama 1870 and in Talladega County, Alabama in 1880. 
(1602) One of Samuel and Elizabeth Bowling's (Fh624) many children was Nathaniel Bowling/Bolling born about 1823 in 
Tennessee. Son Nathaniel Bowling's wife was Hanna Missouri Barrett (?) born in 1837. Nathaniel and Hanna Missouri moved 
to Jefferson County, Alabama after 1860. (1436) We believe that Nathaniel, born 1823 in Georgia, had brother Emery 
Bowling. (1600) Nathaniel. (1721)

c.
Emery Bowling. We believe that Nathaniel, born 1823 in Georgia, had brother Emery Bowling.  (1600) That Emery 
was Emery Pierce b. 1854, a son of David (below). David also had a son John Samuel b. 1856. They were both born 
in GA. (1602)  
d.
David born 1828 in Tennessee married Jackie Carolyn Pitts born 1835 (1602) Son David Bowling (624h,6Z), age 22 (i.e. 
bc1828), is on the Benton County, Alabama, 1850 census, enumerated with a D. P. Chambers family. In fact, there is an 
article from the Benton/Calhoun Co, Alabama Heritage series in which Charlotte Bowling (624d,6Z) married David P. 
Chambers. I'll quote the paragraph: "David P. Chambers, married first Charlotte Bowling, born about 1819 Ga?  David 
Bowling (624h,6), 22, born Tennessee, teacher, was listed with the family (D.P Chambers) on 1850 census Benton County, 
Alabama and a John Bowling was executor to Samuel C. Chambers' will. Samuel Bowling (Fh624,6Z) is listed very near the 
Chambers family on the 1830 Monroe County, Tennessee Census" Don't know who the "John Bowling" is that is mentioned 
in the article which was submitted by Clark Sinclair, Houston, Texas. The David Bowling on the 1860 Census Carroll County 
Georgia, age 32, was probably one and the same. He was married by that time to Jacah "Jackie" Pitts. In the 1870 Census 
shows them in Cleburne County, Alabama, where David is age 41. (1600) Probable son David Bowling (624c) was born 
North Carolina or Tennessee. David Bowling died in Tallapoosa, Haralson County, Georgia. (1600) David. (1721) 1860 
Census records show that David Bowling was born in 1828, I have read numerous sources; including newspaper articles; 
about my great-grandfather David. (4X). David was a Probate Judge for Carroll County, Georgia. In the 1860 Census he is 
listed as Clerk/Court under profession. I know David Bowling's wife was named Jackie Carolyn Pitts and she was born in 
1835. I was curious as it says my for-sure grandfather David was born in Monroe, TN in 1828; so out of curiosity I looked in 
the 1830 U.S. Census and sure enough a Samuel Bolling (notice the difference in the spelling) did live in Monroe, TN 2 
years after David was supposedly born there. What I suspect is that he had a father named Samuel born in 1779 either in NC 
or in VA. What I do not know is if this is a different Bowling. It seems as though David did indeed live in Alabama in the 
1850 Census even though Samuel and Daniel lived in Carroll, GA. Also, later in life, David seems to have moved back to 
Alabama. David (624c) of Group 6Z was a Probate Judge as the 1860 Census lists him as Clerk/Court under profession and 
local newspaper articles around this time show him as a Judge. (2125) David 1828-1883/m1853 Jackie Carolyn "Carrie" Pitts 
(b1835/6). A descendant kit 3018 tested into DNA 6.

e.
Martin was born about 1830 in Tennessee. He married Kezia Jane Bridges bc 1828 or born about 1838 (1602) Martin 
Colston Bowling was born 1830 in McMinnville, now Warren County, Tennessee. He married September 
25, 1856 Ciziah 
Jane Bridges. He died 1903 in Fayette County, Alabama. (1721) 

f.
Daniel born about 1832 in Tennessee married Nancy Johnson born about 1833. We believe Daniel died in the Civil 
War. 
(1602) Daniel. (1721)

g.
Daughter who married a Foster. (1600) Samuel and Elizabeth Bowling had a daughter who married a Foster and many of the 
other children moved west through Alabama. (1436) I know a daughter of Samuel and Elizabeth married Francis Fulton and 
they had a daughter named Mariah Fulton. Francis Fulton's wife, ------ Bowling, died around 1848 and he married again. 
Their daughter Mariah Fulton (not Foster) was 14 in the household of Samuel (Fh624) and Elizabeth in the 1850 Carroll 
County, Georgia, census. A number of Bowling kin and friends went to Louisiana in the late 1850's or early 1860. (1602)

h.
Jordan. (1721) Dr. Jorden Williams Bowling, born in Tennessee or N. Carolina. He married in Indiana in 1834. In 1840 he 
moved to SW Missouri. During the Civil War, he received a contract with the State of Arkansas to be a Civil War doctor, 
along with his son Samuel. Both Jorden and son Samuel were doctors for the Confederacy. From the “Family Bible”, Jorden 
says he wasn’t sure if he was born in North Carolina or Georgia (no mention of Virginia or Tennessee). Jorden was active in 
the Masonry movement and the Shrine. (Harry Lyons, Kit 35942)

i.
John. (1721)

j.
Sanford. (1721)

k.
Samuel. (1721)

l.
Amanda. (1721)

m.
Laura. (1721)

n.
William E. (1721)   
Movement

Samuel Bowling and John Bowling first appear in the records of Spartanburg District, South Carolina  about 1809.  On 06 Jan 1809, Samuel Bowlin bought land from Alexander Roddy on both sides of Beaverdam Creek of South Pacolet River. This land was part of a grant to James Reavs (sic). Samuel also bought land on the north side of Grogan’s Road on the North Pacolet River from James Ridings. (1599) Book N, pg 101 - 102 Jan. 6, 1809 Alexander Roddy (Spartanburgh) to  Samuel Bolane (Spartanburgh); for $150 sold 237 ac on both sides Beaverdam Cr of S Pacolate R; grant Aug. 4, 1794 Gov. William Moultrie to James Reavs. Witness John Roddy, son of Thomas, and John Roddy. Wit. oath Feb. 2, 1811 John Roddy to Andw Furgason. Rec. Apr. 7, 1812. (1713) Samuel Bowling and John Bowling were enumerated near each other in the 1810 U.S. Census of Spartanburg District, South Carolina. (1599) 1810 Spartanburg District, South Carolina (ca 06 Aug 1810) Page 182 line 17:


Saml.  Boling
1 male 26-45 (1765-1784)




1 male 0-10 (1800-1810)




2 females 16-26 (1784-1794)




2 females 0-10 (1800-1810)

                         Neighbors: Grogan,  Roddy,  Bomar

Book N, pg 102 - 103 Nov. 22, 1811 James Ridings (Spartanburgh) to Samuel Bolane  (Spartanburgh); for $100 sold 177 ac on waters of N Pacolate R; border; on N side of Grogan's Road; part of grant to James Ridings. Witness Abram Brock and David Moore. Signed James Ridings' mark. Wit. oath Apr. 4, 1812 David Moore to Andw Furgason. Rec. Apr. 7, 1812. (1713) The last record of Samuel Bowling is his sale on 13 Sep 1817 to William Hannon on his land adjoining Grogan’s Road. (1599) Samuel Boling of Spartanburg County, South Carolina, sold in 1817, 177 acres on the waters of North Pacolett River in Spartanburg County, this found in Deed Book P, page 363-365. (838) Book P,  pg 363 - 365 Sept. 13, 1817  Samuel Boling (Spartanburgh) to William Hannon (Rutherford Co. NC); for $200 sold 177 ac on waters of N Pacolett R; border Grogin's Road, includes small part claimed by Robert Goodgion, and William Hannon looses that part if Robert Goodgion's claim holds up; part of grant to James Ridings who sold to  Samuel Boling.  Witness William Holcomb and Alfred Whitten.  Signed  Samuel Boling. Wit oath Oct. 2, 1817 William Holcomb to T (or J) Whitten. Rec. Nov. 20, 1817. (1713) Neither Samuel Bowling or John Bowling were located in the 1820 census of Spartanburg South Carolina. (1599) 

1820 Lauren Co., SC census lists:


Samuel Bowling age 26-44 (born 1776-1794) 


wf 26-44 (born 1776-1794) 


1 son 0-10 (born 1810-1820) 


1 son 0-10 (born 1810-1820) 


1 dau 0-10 (born 1810-1820)  


1 dau 0-10 (born 1810-1820)  


1 dau 0-10 (born 1810-1820)  

Don't know if this is my Samuel but ages seem to match. (1602)  


Monroe County, Tennessee 1830 census lists:


Samuel Bowling age 50-59 (born 1771-1780) 


wf. age 40-49 (born 1781-1790) 


1 son 15-19 (born 1811-1815) 


1 son 10-14 (born 1816-1820) 


1 son 5-9 (born 1821-1825) 


1 son 0-4 (born 1826-1830)  


1 son 0-4 (born 1826-1830) 


1 dau 10-14 (born 1816-1820) 


1 dau 5-9 (born 1821-1825) 


1 dau 0-4 (born 1826-1830) 


son Martin b1830 


son Daniel b1832 (1602)

1850 Carroll Co., GA Census lists in household of Samuel Bowling age 72, wife Elizabeth age 67, Daniel age 18 and Mariah Fulton age14. Mariah was a daughter of a Bowling daughter (deceased by 1850) and Francis Fulton.

1860 Census had Samuel age 80 living with son Daniel. Elizabeth having died between 1850 and 1860. 1862 Samuel was living with son David as all others had gone to war. Hope this helps. Information about David was from Larry Jordan Montgomery a descendant of David's son John Samuel. Also some letters written by Martin stating he and brother David and families were going to Lousiana in 1866 and a letter written by Francis Fulton to daughter Nancy who was in LA in 1862 stating that "your grandfather Bowling is living with David". These letters are in the possession of C. L. and Anita Kellum. C. L. is a descendent of Francis Fulton and 2nd wife. (1602)

Samuel and Elizabeth Bowling lived for a time in Tennessee, perhaps  Monroe County. The whole family was in Carroll County, Georgia, in 1850 and 1860. (1436) In the 1850 Census for Carroll County Georgia, there is a Samuel Bowling (Fh624), age 72 born in North Carolina with his wife Elizabeth also born in North Carolina who live with their son Daniel Bowling (b1832 in GA) and a Mariah Fulton (sic) (b1836 in GA). We believe that this Samuel is David and Nathaniel's father. They are located on the 1850 Census next to the Pitts family that shows my (Jackie) Caroline Pitts that David married and the Bentleys that intermarried with the Bowlings. (1600) In the 1850 Carroll County, Georgia Census, there is a Mariah Foster, age 14, born in Georgia, living with Samuel (Fh624,6)(b. 1778 in NC) and Elizabeth (b. NC) Bowling. This Samuel is the connection that I am trying to prove to my David (Fh624c), and we have long thought that this Mariah Foster was a granddaughter of Samuel's whose mother married a Foster. (1600)

Death

Samuel Bowling's wife Elizabeth died prior to 1860 and Samuel Bowling died after 1863. (1436)


+++++++++++++++++++++++++

Sims Fh627 (6K) 746b
-----------------

Sims b1740-<1748-d>1830 (Rin=39829)/ Ann ?Newton (d>1820-<1830)--His father was William #746


Turner b<1775



William D. bc1775-d>1828/1/w m1804 Elizabeth Warford, 2/m 1816 Mrs. Elizabeth (Reynolds)

 


Owen--See Family #781







John O. b>1775-wp1831/1/w mc1791 Catherine Daugherty,2/w m1818 Nancy Wyatt—See Family #441



Sims 1780-d>1828 Sims Boling Jr. was on the 1821, 1825 tax lists of Gallatin County, Kentucky. In other 



years there are Sims but without Sr. or Jr. (1800)


Thomas b1780-1790-d>1840/m1808 Rachel Carr (b1790-1800-d>1830)--See Family #673



Alexander 1786-dc1856/m        Elizabeth ----- 1796-d>1856—See Family #026




A Descendant’s kit 91987 tested in to DNA 6



Other children



1 daughter b1765-b1784



1 daughter b1785-b1794



1 daughter b1785-b1794

Sims Boling is on the 1810 Census of Shelby Co., Ky, with Males 01011, Females 00211

Simms Bolin is on the 1820 Census of Port Williams (now called Carrollton), Gallatin Co., Ky, 




with Males 000101, Females 00311. (HeritageQuest.com)
Simms Bolin is probably the male age 80-90 (i.e. b1740-1750) in the household of John O. 




Bowling (his son) on the 1830 Census of Gallatin Co., Ky. 

Birth, Parents, Lineage

Sim Bowling had brothers Alexander (Fh020) and John Bowling. Sim Bowling had a grandmother Racheal Colclough (wife of Benjamin Colclough) of Stafford County, Virginia. In Racheal Colclough's 1748 will she left a crop of tobacco to her daughter Rachael, Elias Bowling, and granddaughter Jane De Bolling, not of age. Also in the will was "to daughter Elizabeth Bowling (Fh746), a Negro, then to her son John Bowling, his brother Alexander Bowling and brother Sim Bowling". (352) Simeon Bowling was the son of ----- and Elizabeth (Colclough) Bowling. (1159) Simon Bowling was the son of William and Elizabeth (Colclough) Bowling. (http://wc.rootsweb.ancestry.com/cgi-bin/igm.cgi?op=GET&db=mrmarsha&id=I63009) I think that there were other brothers to my Sims Bowling (Fh627) than just Alexander (Fh020) and John.  William, George (746b), and Henry (746d) were in Washington County, Pennsylvania. (1443) Sims Bowling and William Bowling (Fh860,746j) signed an October 27, 1778, petition requesting that the state of Virginia make a division of Yohogania County, Virginia. (475) “Pontiac’s War, shortly after 1761, fueled the decision by the English Parliament to issue the Proclamation of 1763 restricting colonial expansion past the Appalachian Divide.” (1844) The Bowling boys paid no attention to this restriction. (7) Sims Bowland had 174 acres, 1 horse, 3 cattle, and 3 sheep, in Cecil Township, Washington County, Pennsylvania in 1781. (273) Sims Bowland was on the 1781 tax list of Cecil Township, Washington County, Pennsylvania. Also in that township in 1781 was Mathew Bowland and Robert Boland. (2151) Sims Bolam (sic) was on the 1783 tax list of Cecil Township, Washington, Pennsylvania, with 300 acres, 3 horses, 3 cows, 8 sheep with a value of  152. On the same tax list in the same township were William Bowlin (Fh860,746j) and Robert Bolling (746h) who was listed as a "single freeman". (616) 
 Revolutionary Military Service

1781-1783

Source 517 Washington PA Rangers 1778-1783

Washington County Frontier Rangers 1778-1783

(PA Archives, Third Series, Vol. XXIII, Pages 198-220)
George
Bowlen
6K   
Fh237,009b,746e  

Wm.
Bowlin
6K
Fh860,009j,746j

James
Bowling
6M1
Fh279,009e,278a

Simms
Howling (sic)
6K        
Fh627,         746x (517)

Henry Bowling (Fh2499,746x) along with Alexander (Fh020,746x), William (Fh860,746j), George (Fh237,746b), Simms (Fh627,746i), and James Bowlin (Fh279) were in Washington County, Pennsylvania, during the Revolution. Note that duty after November 1783 is not considered Revolutionary War service. (7) Henry Bolin, 1781-83, private Washington County Pennsylvania Militia, inactive duty, 4th Battalion, 8th Company, 4th class. (448) Henry Bolin of Washington County, Pennsylvania, served as Militia Private 8th Company, 4th Bn (1781-1783). (1550) 

See http://www.digitalarchives.state.pa.us/archive.asp?view=ArchiveItems&ArchiveID=13&FID=434278&LID=434377

Military

Simms Bowlin along with Alexander (Fh020), Henry (746d), George (746b), James (Fh279) and William (Fh860) Bowlin were in Washington County, Pennsylvania during the Revolution. (7) I have copies of William Bowling (746j,Fh860), Alexander Bowling (746a,Fh020), George Bowling (746b), James Bowling (746e), and Simms Bowling (746i,Fh627) Revolutionary cards from Pennsylvania and they were in Captain Andrew Swearingen's company Washington County, Pennsylvania, 3rd Battalion 4th Company Militia. They are like 4” x 6” cards in size. They are from Harrisburg, Pennsylvania, but on the Pennsylvania State Archives web page. Each card states "record proves active duty." (1518) Simms Bowling (also spelled Cims Bolen) of Washington County, Pennsylvania served with 5th Co., 4th Bn of Militia under command of Capt. Thomas Rankin (1781-1783). Certificate 1540 issued 9 Nov 1784. (1550) Cims (sic) Bolen was in the 4th Battalion, Capt. Thomas Rankinxe "Rankin:Capt. Thomas"'s Company, Washington County, Pennsylvania, 19 September 1781. (478) Sims Bowland was in the 4th Battalion, Thomas Renkin's Company, Washington County, Pennsylvania, Militia 14 May 1782. (494) Sims Bowling was in Capt. Thomas Rankin's Company 4 September 1782 in Washington County, Pennsylvania. (478) Simms Bowling, private, received depreciation pay of the Washington County, Pennsylvania, Militia. (140)(495)  

Marriage and Children

Sims Bowland was on the 1784 tax list of Cecil Township, Washington County, Pennsylvania. Sims was listed as being married. (648) Sims Bowling was on the 1786 tax list of Cecil Township, Washington County, Pennsylvania. Sims was listed as being married. (1905) Sims Bowland of Washington County, Pennsylvania and his wife Ann Bowland were grantors in two land deeds in 1790. See 1790 land sales below. (628)(630) I think that John O. Boling (Fh441) is one child of Sims Boling. I know that Alexander (Fh026) is, and I know that there is others but I haven't put them all together. (1443) I believe Ann's last name is Newton. I am sure of her birthdate but information on Ancestry lead me to this conclusion. I did not want to change this without you knowing. (12/10/2019 Cliff Rainwater, clifford5558@gmail.com) I searched my records for a Ann Newton and came up with this earlier marriage of an Anne Newton who married a Simon Bowling. I have lots of Newtons in Virginia but none in Pennsylvania/Kentucky. Here is the earlier marriage. (Fh630,516a) Simon Bowling was the son of Robert Bowling (Fh516). (2111) Simon Bowling married first Anne Newton, December 5, 1722, per the St. Paul’s register. (46)(61)(1957) Simon Bowline married 1722 Anne Newton in King George County (present day), Virginia. No children are in the church register. (1238) It is possible that Anne Newton had been married before. See next item. (7) Simon Bowling was an executor of a 1725 will, probated 1727 in Northumberland County, Virginia. Robert Willson's will named daughter Anne the wife of Simon Bowling. It appears from the wording of the will that Anne was still "without issue". (1664)   For now, I think I am going to leave the later Ann as birth surname unknown.
1786 Pennsylvania Land Patent

Sims Bowling is on the land patent maps of Chartiers Township, Washington County, Pennsylvania. The land certificate for the 292+ acres was issued to Samuel Loganxe "Logan:Samuel" and the property called "High Tower". The Warrant was dated February 22, 1786, the survey dated March 18, 1786 and the patent issued June 12, 1786 to Sims Bowling. Patent book 6, page 343. Henry Bowling (746d) and Alexander Bowling (Fh020) were also shown in the same county. (243)(640)(641) Sims Bowling had a Patent 12 June 1786, of 292+ acres called "High Tower" in Chartiers township, Washington County, Pennyslvania. (2152, page 68) The Commonwealth of Pennsylvania by Patent bearing date the twenthieth day of March [note: June written over March) Anno Domini One thousand seven hundred & eighty six (June 20, 1786) & inrolled in the Rolls office for Pennsylvania in Book No 6 page 343 did grant unto Sims Bowland two hundred & ninety two acres & a quarter (292 1/4 acres) ... in the place bounded by lands of John Boyce XE "Boyce:John" , thence by James Gaults XE "Gault:James"  land, thence by land of Peter Karn XE "Karn:Peter" , thence by land of Charles Campbell XE "Campbell:Charles" , thence by land of John Hays XE "Hay:John" , to the place of beginning as the said Patent & records recourse being thereunto had may more fully appears. For a full land description see source #630. (630) 

1790 Sale of Pennsylvania Patented Land

Sims Bowland of Washington County, Pennsylvania and his wife Ann Bowland were grantors in a March 13, 1790 deed for 292 acres, sold for 100 pounds. Grantee was Nathan Tannihillxe "Tannehill:Nathan". Witnesses were John Canonxe "Canon:John", Thomas D. Weaverxe "Weaver:Thomas D." and James McCallxe "McCall:James". Sims signed with an "X" but his wife Ann signed her signature. Apparently the land was patented June 12, 1786 and was in the City of Philadelphia Patent Book No. 6, page 343. The land was bound by John Hayxe "Hay:John"s line, Charles Campbellxe "Campbell:Charles" and John Boycexe "Boyce:John". This deed was recorded June 4, 1796 in Deed Book 1-M, page 196 of Washington County, Pennsylvania. (628) Sims Bowland and his wife Ann Bowland of Chartiers (Chartiers became a township in 1791 from Cecil Township), Washington County, Pennsylvania were grantors on a April 5, 1790 deed for 178 acres of land for 160 pounds. Grantee was Robert Bowland. Sims signed with an "X". Witnesses were John Canon, Thomas D. Weaver and Nathan Tanehill. Deed was recorded 1798 in Deed Book 1-O, page 2 of Washington County, Pennsylvania. (630) Their patent was for 292 ¼ acres so they keep some land. (7)

Mercer County, Kentucky 1790

Sims Bowling (Fh627,746b) and Robert Bowling (746h) in a Mercer County, Kentucky, 1790 court action were to help make road repairs. Others on the list were Samuel Taylorxe "Taylor:Samuel", Hugh McGaryxe "McGary:Hugh", John, Samuel, George and James McAfeexe "McAfee:John"

xe "McAfee:Samuel"

xe "McAfee:George"

xe "McAfee:James", Negro Georgexe "Negro:George", John Johnstonxe "Johnston:John", Henry Thompsonxe "Thompson:Henry" and many others. (449) Negro George belonged to Alexander Boling Fh020 in 1790. (7) Negro George was a slave valued at 70 pounds in the 1791 inventory of Alexander Bowling's (Fh020) estate. (521) Negro George came to Kentucky from Pennsylvania with Alexander Bowling. (524)(525) When Sims Bowling and George Bowling (746b) left Mercer County, Kentucky, they went to Shelby County, Kentucky and they are all on the 1800 tax list there. (7)

Shelby County, Kentucky 1794-1810

Sim Boling was one of the executors of a 1794 will of William Boling (Fh861, 6K relationship to Sims is UK) in Shelby County, Kentucky. (29) A William Bowling left a will dated 3 May 1794, recorded May, 1795, Shelby County, Kentucky, Will Book A, page 4. One of the executors was Sim Boling (Fh627,746i) along with Daniel Ketcham XE "Ketcham:Daniel" . Witnesses: William Morrow XE "Morris:William" , Alex’d Montgomery XE "Montgomery:Alexander" , and Moses Warford XE "Warford:M." . The will names his wife Margaret and son John. (1386)(1783) Sims Boling was on the 1794 and 1796 tax list of Shelby County, Kentucky. (837) Syms Bowling was on the 1795 tax list of Shelby County, Kentucky. (837)(1210) Syms (sic) Bowling, 1 horse, 20 cattle, and George Bowling, 2 horses, 4 cattle, were on the 1795 tax list of Shelby County, Kentucky. (1364) Simms Bolling was on the 1797 tax list of Shelby County, Kentucky. (837) Sims Bowling was on the 1799 tax list of Shelby County, Kentucky. (837)  Sims Bowling was on the 1800 tax list of Shelby County, Kentucky. (4) When Sims Bowling and George Bowling (746b) left Mercer County, Kentucky, they went to Shelby County, Kentucky and they are all on the 1800 tax list there. (7) Sims Bowling purchased 350 acres on Clear Creek, Shelby County, Kentucky, in 1800, from a W. Stafford XE "Stafford:W." . (1178) Sims Bowling purchased 350 acres on Guesses Creek XE "Creek:Guesses" , Shelby County, Kentucky, in 1800, from a Wm. Stafford. (1798) Syms Bowling’s 273 ½ acres was sold for nonpayment of taxes. Land was in the 9th or Jefferson  district of Shelby, Jefferson and that part of Bullit on the North of Salt River. Unredemed on 24 Januyary 1803. (Kentucky Gazette, February 12, 1805) Sims Boling is on the 1810 Census of Shelby County, Kentucky, with Males 01011, Females 00211. Male b1795-1800, male b1765-1784, male b<1765, 2 Females b1785-1794, female b1765-1784, female b<1765. (Ancestry.com)(HeritageQuest.com)
Gallatin County, Kentucky 1820-1826

Simms Bolin is on the 1820 Census of Port William (later called Carrollton) Gallatin County, Kentucky with males 000101 and females 00311. Others listed are William Bolin, John S. Bolen and John O. Bolin (Fh441). (1155)(HeritageQuest.com) Sims Bowling (Fh627,746i,K) had a son William Boling/Bowling (Fh781) born about 1775 maybe in Stafford County, Virginia. (1568) Sims Boling is on the 1818, 1819, 1820, 1823, 1824, 1825 and 1826 tax lists of Gallatin County, Kentucky. (1800) Simms Bowling (Fh627), 1824, Gallatin County, Kentucky, appoints son Alexander Bowling (Fh026) power of attorney to sell land in Washington County (probably Pennsylvania) on Thompson Creek XE "Creek:Thompson"  "accrued to me from Henry". (1224) I have the power-of-atty. right in front of me.  It does say:"...... I Sims Boling of the County of Gallatin and State of Ky.,........do constitute & appoint my son Alexander Boling my true and lawful attorney for me & in my name to make sale of or dispose of in any way he may think proper all these parcel or tract of land in Washington Co. PA. on the waters of Thompson’s Creek which was _____ ( I can't make out the word.) by Henry Bowling to execute a title bond or bonds from the conveyance of the same........." (1443) Not sure of Kentucky law but in Ohio assets with no issue go a third to wife, and two thirds to siblings. If Simms inherited land from Henry it was because Henry had no children. (7)
From the Place Index
Gallatin,KY-created 1799 from Franklin, Shelby


6K
Simms/Sims/Syms (Fh627,746x) t1818-t1819,t1820(Census),r1820,t1823,t1824,r1824,t1825,t1826


6K

Alexander (Fh026,627b) t1823,r1824


6K

Syms Jr, (627d) t1821,t1823,t1825,t1828


6K

Thomas (Fh673,627x) r1830(Census age 40-50),t1830,-See later Carroll County entry


6K

William (Fh781,627a) t1820,r1820(Census,Age 45+)


6K

John O. (Fh441,627c or 763a, 6K) r1816,t1819-t1821,r1820 (Census, age 26)-,t1829,wp1831


6K

Nancy (wife of John O. Fh441) nw1820,t1831,m1832 (William Price)


6K


Mariah (441a) m1822 (Davis Latty)


6K


Richard (441c) m1828 (Sarah Brown),t1829,r1830(Census age 30-40),t1831


6K


Turner (Fh7381,441d) m1821 (Ann Lingfelter),t1822-t1832,r1830(Census Age 30-40)-See later Carroll County 

6K


Elizabeth (UK,could be 441h) m1836 (David Jacobs)


6K


George W. (441b,b1804) m1832 (Catherine Minish),t1832--See Carroll County entry

Death

Simms Bolin died after 1830 because Simms Bolin is probably the male age 80-90 (i.e. b1740-1750) in the household of John O. Bowling (his son) on the 1830 Census of Gallatin County, Kentucky.

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

Simon Fh629 (6B)--Immigrant
-----------------

Simon c1626 Eng.-1694 (Rin=45539 LDQF-K4Z)/m<1650 1/w UK--Head of all DNA 6 Family Stings


John—b<1648 with his X witnessed a 1669 land sale in Northumberland, Virginia (likely Simon’s Fh629 




brother, not son)  


a
William 1650-<1703/m       Rachel Lewis (In 1689 inherited 3000 acres of land on the Potomac River)




--See Family Fh742 (Rin=65495)

a
Simon b<1654-1723/m        Sarah (In 1689 inherited 3000 acres of land on the Potomac River)




—See Family Fh633 (Rin=57107)
2/w Mary Kinge m<1667 (1641-1689) January 23, 1667 Sym Bowley sells 150 acres …”Mary, my now wife, shall then assigne her right of dower, etc”.


ab
Robert 1668-1730/m       Mary Farlon (In 1689 inherited 3000 acres of land on the Potomac River)




--See Family Fh516 (Rin=46246)

a
Alexander bc1673-d<1689


a
John bc1678-d>1703 (In 1689 inherited 3000 acres of land on the Potomac River) 30-JUNE-1703 Richard 



Ayliff caused JOHN BOWLEE to be arrested to answer him of a plea on the case to his damage 7000 



pounds of tobacco but for that hee failed to prosecute his suite, a nonsuit is granted.


SOURCE: Westmoreland County, Virginia, Order Book, Part 3, p. 198, 1701-1703 by John Dorman.



--See Family 629e (Rin=45479)

a
Sons per Source #7. #1748 Mentioned in the 1689 will of Robert Kinge, probably their grandfather.


b
Son per Source #2111.

2111.
Data on John Fh402 at (http://wc.rootsweb.ancestry.com/cgi-






bin/igm.cgi?op=GET&db=mrmarsha&id=I63034) Also data on all the Northern Neck Bowlings DNA 6ers.

Birth, Parents, Lineage

Simon Bowling was born before 1654 (sic, probably much earlier, see below). (2111) I believe that the Sims Bowlin with land 1673 in Stafford County, Virginia, is the grandfather of William Bowling (Fh746) and great-grandfather of my Alexander Bowling (Fh020). (7)(1224) 
Their children:
a.
William Fh742 (Rin=65495) 1650-<1703/m       Rachel Lewis 

b.
Simon Fh633 (Rin=57107) b<1654-1723/m        Sarah 


2/w Mary Kinge m<1667 (1641-1689) January 23, 1667 Sym Bowley sells 150 acres …”Mary, my now wife”

c.
Robert Fh516 (Rin=46246) 1668-1730/m       Mary Farlon 

d.
Alexander bc1673-d<1689. Alexander Boyninge's (sic) land along with William Bowlinge, John Bowlinge, Robert Bowlinge 
are mentioned in the 1689 will of Robert Kinge, recorded 1690 Stafford County, Virginia. "Fifthly I give to (faded, some 
think Simon), William Bowlinge, and John Bowlinge, and Robert Bowlinge a Tract of lande lyeinge att ye head of (faded) 
Creeke running with lande I bought of Thomas Revett and Edward Humston the said lande to be equally divided between ye 
before menconed Bowlinges and is three thousand acres belonginge to me and ye whole Tract of lande is Twelve thousand 
acres and it extendeth it selfe from ye Branch of Potomack Runne to ye branches of Ocquia Creeke, Henry Merest and 
Anthony Buckner have ye remiainge part of ye said Tract of Lande". "Eightly I give to my Loveinge Wife Mary Kinge a tract 
of land wch I bought of Alexander Boyninge it being Two hundred and forty acres lyeinge upon Hunting Creeke. (1678). 

e.
John 629e (Rin=45479) bc1678-d>1703  30-JUNE-1703 Richard Ayliff caused JOHN BOWLEE to be arrested to answer 
him of a plea on the case to his damage 7000 pounds of tobacco but for that hee failed to prosecute his suite, a nonsuit is 
granted. 
(SOURCE: Westmoreland County, Virginia, Order Book, Part 3, p. 198, 1701-1703 by John Dorman). John 
Bowlinge, William Bowlinge, Robert Bowlinge, and the land of Alexander Boyninge (sic) are mentioned in the 1689 will of 
Robert Kinge, recorded 1690 Stafford County, Virginia. "Fifthly I give to (faded) William Bowlinge, and John Bowlinge, and 
Robert Bowlinge a Tract of lande lyeinge att ye head of (faded) Creeke running with lande I bought of Thomas Revett and 
Edward Humston the said lande to be equally divided between ye before menconed Bowlinges and is three thousand acres 
belonginge to me and ye whole Tract of lande is Twelve thousand acres and it extendeth it selfe from ye Branch of Potomack 
Runne to ye branches of Ocquia Creeke, Henry Merest and Anthony Buckner have ye remiainge part of ye said Tract of 
Lande". "Eightly I give to my Loveinge Wife Mary Kinge a tract of land wch I bought of Alexander Boyninge it being Two 
hundred and forty acres lyeinge upon Hunting Creeke. (1678).

NOTE: The will of Robert King shows that three (sic, probably four, see next) Bowling men are his grandchildren. This is an abstract of the original document. The person trying to read the original couldn't read the name of the person listed before William, I suspect this missing person is Simon Bowling Jr. Robert Kings wife's name is Mary which is proven by another document. When you look at the girls names in the will, the one name that is missing is "Mary". Since Mary is deceased at the time of the will, grandfather Robert King is leaving her share to her four (sic) sons. Keep in mind that Robert King lived next door to Simon Bowling Sr. (2174)

Immigrant

RICHARD BUDD. 350 acres Northumberland County, 30 Jan. 1650, p. 279. Abutting W. upon land of Mr. George Hatcher, N.E. upon land of Mr. George Hatcher, N.E. upon Dinites Cr. Which divides this and a tract surveyed for Thomas Prickett, E. against the mouth of great Wickcocomico River & S.E. & S.W. upon aforesaid Davites Cr. Transportation of 7 persons: Richd Budd, Eliza. Wilson, _____ Budd his wife, Thomas Cleake, William Harpar, Henry Mayes, SYMON BOULE (Fh629). (2173)(2174)

NOTE: Simon was transported in 1650 and if we use an age of 21 years this would make his birth ca. 1629. Actually he was transported before 1650---1650 is when Richard Budd claims his land.

What do you have on a Symon Boule arrived in Northumberland who was sponsored by Richard Budd? (2174)

I do have a Simon (Fh630, 516a) named in a will in that county in 1727 but the immigrant Simon (Fh629) was dead before that date and in Stafford County, Virginia. The younger Simon would be (Fh630, 516a) There was an early John, in Northuimberland County, Virginia, in 1650 also unknown to me, but probably the brother of Simon Fh629.

 

October 22, 1659 will of Richard Budd giving Simon Bowley his freedom. (2174)
22-OCTOBER-1659

P. 31. In the name of God Amen. Whereas I Rich:Budd being weake and sick in bodye yet at present perfect sence and memory have made this my last will and Testament in manner and forme as followeth:

 ( ) in Law Elizabeth, I doe give &( ) Cowes with their increase for ever ( ) Flower and Young Cherry

( ) in the yeare  1661, I doe ( ) each of them one cow calfe ( ) MAZE, ANNE, GAMLING, ELLENR.

( ), ( ) Dennis; and to JOHN MULTON ( ) Sprunt

( ) my men vitz., JOHN & SIMON ( ) service being faithfully fulfill'd ( ) & bequeath one cow calfe;

Itm. To my loving Wife Eliz: I doe give and bequeath all and & every of the land goods chattels moveables & imoveables wch: shall belong or be found due or apperteyning to my Estate (my Debts & Legacies being paid) And doe constitute or ordaine her my Executrix. Desiring my good Friend, Mr. Lawr: Dameron, to see this my Will & Testament performed; This I doe acknowledge to be my Last Will and testamt. As Wittness my hand this 22th of October: Ano Dom: 1659

Signed & sealed in the presence of

THO: DENT, JOHAN MOUTON,RI: BUDD, ye seal

The marke of SIMON BOWLEY
21 November: 1659. This will was proved in Northumberland County Court to be the Last Will & Teatamt. Of RICHARD BUDD deced., by the Oaths of THO: DENT & JOHN MOUTON, And execucon thereof committed to ELIZABETH, ye Relict of sd. RICHARD BUDD, And the Will is recorded.

SOURCE: Northumberland County Deed and Will Abstracts, 1658-1662, Page 31 by Ruth and Sam Sparacio.

NOTE: Simon has just completed working off his transportation to Richard Budd for transporting him. This is proven when he says "service being faithfully fulfilled". Budd gives each man one cow and calf-these are referred to as "Freedom Dues." It was required once a man completed his service that he is provided something that will help him get started in life. It has been at least 9 years since Simon has been transported-I don't know if he has served all this time or how that was worked out. Note that Simon Bowley signs as one of the witness to the will as well as Johan Mouton who is another servant working off his transportation. (2174)

29-JANUARY-1662

Be it knowne unto all men by these presents that I RICHARD FEILDING of BRISTOLL, Mercht., doe for mee my heirses sell unto ALEXANDER SHERWOOD & SYMON BOWLEY their heires & assignes Two hundred acres of land, Pte: of the one thousand acres of land that I bought of PETER KNIGHT ( ) of GREAT WICOCOMOCO RIVER, bounded ( ) on ROBERT KING liveth on & ( ) GREAT SWAMPE Northerly upon ye ( ) Southerly into the woods, further I the sd RICHARD FEILDING, doe bind mee my heires to warrant the sd. Land unto the sd. ALEXANDER & SYMON their heires & assignes against all P:sons; Witness my hand & seale the 29th of January 1662.

Sealed and deliver in ye p:sents of

PETER KNIGHTRICHARD FEILDING ye seale

ANTHONY ALDERSON

11th Febr: 1662
This sale of Land was acknowledged in Court by Mr. Robert Jones. Attorney of the sd. Mr. FEILDING & is recorded.

Knowe all men by these pr;sents that I RICHARD FEILDING of BRISTOLL, Merchant, doth authorize my trusty & loving Friend, MR. ROBT. JONES of GREAT WICOCOMOCO to be my true & lawfull Attorney to acknowledge in court two hundred acres of land unto ALEXANDER SHERWOOD & SYMON BOWLEY their heires and assignees forever, being pte. of the Land I late purchased of MR. PETER KNIGHT of WICOCOMOCO AFORESD., AS BY A Bill of sale to them appears bearing date the 29th day of January 1662; and whatsoever my sd. Attorney shall lawfully doe concerning the aforesd. Two hundred acres of land I promise to establish and allowe as witness my hand and seale this 10th day of February 1662.

Witness hereunto: Richard ____span his marke Richard Feilding, ye seale Anthony Alderson.

11th Febr. 1662. This Lre. Of Attorney was recorded.

SOURCE: Northumberland County Deeds and Wills 1662-1666, Page 95 by Ruth and Sam Sparacio.

NOTE: Richard Feilding a Bristoll merchant sells 200 acres to Symon Bowley and Alexander Sherwood. This land was purchased by Feilding from Peter Knight. This land bounded Robert King land on the Great Swamp. This fact is important because it appears that Symon Bowley marries a daughter (Mary) of Robert King (a neighbor).

January 29, 1662
Symon Bowley, with Alexander Sherwood, buys 200 acres of land in Northumber County, Virginia, from Richard Feilding. Land bounded by land where Robert King lives and the Great Swampe, Northerly (probably the Great Wicocomoco River), Southerly into the woods. (TB This fact is important because it appears that Symon Bowley marred a daughter (Mary) of Robert King (a neighbor). (2174)

October 17, 1667
Richard Gibble sells 150 acres in Northumberland County, Virginia, to Sym: Bowley   

January 23, 1667
Sym Bowley of Northumber County, Virginia, sells 150 acres to Isaac Edwards, “which lately I bought of Richard Gibble”…”Mary, my now wife, shall then assigne her right of dower, etc”.

January 13, 1668 (recorded January 7, 1668)
Symon Bowley transfers some land to Arthur Livis and Tho:Treipe in Northumber County, Virginia.  

January 21, 1668 (recorded October 5, 1669)
Simon Bowley, along with wife Mary, sells land in Northumber County, Virginia, to John Hayney, his neighbor.
1673

Sims/Simon  Bowlin/Bowling had land 1673 in Stafford County, Virginia. (290)(1224) Virginia Northern Neck land grants 2-117: Thomas Bunburry of Stafford County, Virginia died seized of 250 acres Austin's run that he sold about 1673 to Robert Taylor, Sim's Bowlin, and others but died before he signed the deed. Taylor and others had sold land to Her's Gibson and George Hilton. Gibson and Hilton brought suit against William Banks, guardian to Thomas Bunburry, son of Bunburry and obtained decree that Thomas should give deed and confirm land to them when he comes of age. Before that time, Gibson died and Banks married Gibson's widow. Upon arrival of Thomas Bunburry at age Banks took deed of sale from Thomas to convey land to Augustine Kneaton who had purchased the whole from Hilton and Banks. Banks died before he had given conveyance to Kneaton without a will. Kneaton obtained grant 20 Jan. 1694/95. (911)(2111) From a Stafford record—property “being a parcel of land and about the year of our Lord 1673 the said Bunbury sold it to Robert Taylor, Simon Bowlin, along the ridge between Austin run and Rocky Run. (1931) 
1678

"27 Sep 1678 Mr Anthony Buckner 2,506 acres in Stafford county on Aquia River part of 15,750 acres taken in partnership with Buckner, Renett, Bowley, Colticoat and Morris \ Land of a valley near the ridge on the North Northwest side of the main run or Aquia - Tansport 50 persons. This places Bowley and Colclough ("Colticoat") together with Anthony Buckner who was mentioned in Robert King's will."  The only one there that early would be Simon/Sims (Fh629) l1673,r1694,dc1694 (Rin=45539)(2174)

Source: Jim Burgess website.
+++++++
Simon Bowling land mentioned in Stafford County, Virginia, November 20, 1678, patent Book No. 6, page 671. Patent to Robert Hall and Edward Thomason 104 acres, Stafford County, on the west side of Ocquia Creek; on the south side of Austin’s run. Beginning at the bridge going over to Austin’s Run to their own Landing; then to the line of Simon Bowling; &c. Transporting of 2 persons: Rowld Throckburge, Mary Smith. (40, page 194) In Grant Book 2, page 116, Syms Bowlin is mentioned for 104 acres in Stafford County, Virginia, on Oquia Creek, on Austin’s Run (small right-hand tributary to Potomac River, in Stafford County, Virginia), Dr. Robert Hall's landing on 30 January 1694/5. New grant to Kneaton, land of Sym's Bowlin, now Kneaton's (426) 

Death

Simon Bowling died after 1674 (sic, way after, see next). (2111) Simon Bowling deceased, Stafford County, Virginia, estate records 1694-1695 from old order book and indexes. Most records of Stafford County, Virginia are missing or destroyed. (7) Symon Bowling, dec’d 1694/5. (1958)
BOWLEY FAMILY DOCUMENTS



12-AUGUST-1689

This is very important
In the name of God amen. I Robert Kinge of Stafford County in Virginia being sick & weake of Body, but of perfect sounde sence & memory Blessed be God I doe make & appoint this my last will and testament revokeinge all former Wills and Testaments by me heretofore made.


Imprimis I bequeath my soul to almighty God who gave it hopeing that through ye merit of Jesus Christ to enjoy ye blessings prepared for all faithfull beleavers.


Secondly my body to ye earth from whence it came to be buried att ye discreation of my exors. Hereafter named in decent & Christian burial & for what earthly estate it hath pleased allmightl God to endow me withal I give as hereafter followeth.


Thirdly I give to my eldest son George & my next eldest sonne Robert Kinge all that tract of land knowne by ye name of ye Forrest Plantation it being equally divided between ye said George Kinge and Robert Kinge both in quantity and quality.


Fourth I give to my sonne Joseph Kinge & Benjamin Kinge all that tract of land that I now live on it being about Three hundred and seventy acres of land & the said land to be equally divided between ye said Joheph & Benjamin Kinge & Joseph to have that part known by the name of Kings ____ grounde and adjoyninge to Ambrose Farlow & Benjamin to have that part where I now live.


Fifthly I give (probably Simon Fh633 (B) here, 629a), William Bowlinge (Fh742 (A), 629a) & John Bowlinge (629d) & Robert Bowlinge (Fh516 (M1), 629c) a tract of land lyeing att ye head of ____ Creeke running with lande I brought of Thomas Revett & Edward Humston the said lande to be equally divided between ye before mentioned BOWLINGE & is three thousand acres belonging to me and ye whole tract of lande is twelve thousand acres & it extended it self from ye branch of Potomack Runne to ye branches of Ocquia Creeke, Henry Merest & Anthony Buckner have ye remaining part of ye said tract of lande.


Sixthly I give to my daughter Sarah Kinge & Hannah Kinge all that tract of land lyeing att a place knowne by ye name of Stone in Westmoreland County between my plantation called Kings Quarter and henry Berry upon Holes his road ye said lande to be equally divided between ye said Sarah Kinge and Hannah Kinge.


Seventhly I give to my daughter Ann Hole another tract of land adjoyninge to ye last tract of lande upon Holes his road it being the near most tract towards Rappahannock & the saide land to her said Ann Hole & after her decease to her daughter Hannah Hole & her heirs.


Eightly I give to my loving wife Mary Kinge a tract of land which I bought of Alexander Boyninge it being two hundred and forty acres lyeing upon Hunting Creeke.


Ninthly I give my loving friend John Brewton & Richard Ayliff both one tract of lande lyeing between Niapscoe & Merriumpsco Creeke that I formerly seated & adjoyninge upon ye lands of Martin Scarlett ye said land to be equally divided between ye said john Brewton & Richard Ayliff both in quantity and quality.


Tenthly and lastly I give unto my loving wife Mary Kinge all ye remaining parte of my estate both personal and real and I doe appoint ye said Mary Kinge my wife to be my whole and sole executrix of this my last will and testament to see ye same performed after all my just debts are paid. As witness my hande and seale this 12th day of August 1689.
In presence of William (W) Head Robert Kinge
John Brewton, William Smith
Elizabeth (E) Brewton, Jonah Denton
Richard (R) Ayliffe
This will was sufficiently proved in this court by ye oaths & testimonies of William Head, John Brewton, William Smith, Elizabeth Brewton & Richard Ayliff. Witnesses thereunto subscribed on the 7th day of Aprill 1690 and was then recorded.


SOURCE: Stafford County, Virginia, Deeds and Will Abstracts, p. 156-156a, 1689-1693 by Ruth and Sam Sparacio.
NOTE: This will of Robert King shows that three Bowling men are his grandchildren. This is an abstract of the original document. The person trying to read the original couldn’t read the name of the person listed before William. I suspect this missing person is Simon Bowling Jr. Robert Kings wife’s name is Mary which is proven by another document. When you look at the girls names in the will, the one name that is missing is “Mary”. Since Mary is deceased at the time of the will, grandfather Robert King is leaving her share to her four sons. Keep in mind that Robert King lived next door to Simon Bowling Sr.


30-JANUARY-1694/5

Thomas Bunburry of Stafford County died seized of 250 acres on Austins Run that he sold about 1673 to Robert Taylor, SIM'S BOWLIN , and others but died before he signed deed. Taylor and others had sold land to Her's (?) Gibson and George Hilton. Gibson and Hilton brought suit against William Banks, guardian to Thomas Bunburry, son of Bunburry and obtained decree that Thomas should give deed and confirm land to them when he comes to age. Before that time Gibson died and Banks married Gibson's widow. Upon arrival to Thomas Bunburry at age Bakns took deed of sale from Thomas to convey land to Augustine Kneaton who had purchased the whole from Hilton and Banks. Banks died before he had given conveyance to Kneaton without a will. Kneaton obtained Grant. 30 January 1694/5.

SOURCE: Northern Neck Grants Book 2, p. 117, 1694-1700, by Gray.

30-JANUARY-1694/5

Robert Hall and Edward Thompson 20 Nov. 1678 did patent 104 acres in Stafford County on Oquia Creek. Patent granted by Herbert Jeffery’s Esq. who had no power so to do. Augustine Kneaton legatee to Hall and Thompson desires his right to the land by their Wills to him and his wife. New grant to Kneaton. On Austins Run, Dr. Halls landing, land of Sym’s. Bowlin now Kneaton’s. 30 Jan. 1694/5.


SOURCE: Northern Neck Grants Book 2, P. 116, 1694-1700 by Gray.


NOTE: Sim's or Sym's are short for Simon. This land is in Stafford County.
(2174)

Perhaps you have investigated the "Stafford Co., VA" Bowlings?  

Two known and provable sets of Bowling's, perhaps of the same origin, were in Stafford County, VA, by 1689, one earlier.

Set one: a Simon Bowling of "Qcquia Creek" which fed the "Potamack" River. (Simon Fh629, Rin=45539, bc1629, spouse Mary Kinge, Kits 191160 M19))

Set two: A John Bowling bc 1678 (629c), Robert b 1685 (Fh516.629c) and his twin, William b 1685 (Fh742,629d). These 3 Bowlings 1689 inherited 3000 acres of land on the Potomac River, said "Potamack Runn" in 1689 from Robert King (Jr.) (Rin=58556) and his wife Mary Aylette. (1308)

Those in Stafford County, Virginia, before 1700 are listed below. 

Stafford, VA-created 1664 from Westmoreland

Simon (Fh629, (Rin=45539) l1673,r1694




Alexander (629a? or maybe a brother of Simon Fh629) Mentioned in 1689 will but not an heir, l<1689



Simon (Fh633,629c)—probably a son of Simons but not with mother Kinge 

a

William (Fh742,629b) nw1689
a

John (629c) nw1689
a

Robert (Fh516,629d) nw1689,r1701/02,r1722(age 50,i.e. b1672),d1730/31

a 

Sons per Source #7 & #1748 Mentioned in the 1689 will of Robert Kinge, probably their grandfather.

6A
Benjamin (Fh090,450x) b1696,m1725 (Mary Latham)--m @ St. Paul's,r1732-34,d1767

Will Abstracts of Stafford County, Virginia, 1689-1693, Deeds, Wills, Inventories etc. from 29 April 1689 - 8 February 1692/3, Deed Book D - Part II. This Book is not among the records in the Stafford County Court House. (1748, Informant Linda Berge)

From the 1689 Will of Robert Kinge:  



Alexander Boyninge's (sic) land along with William Bowlinge, John Bowlinge, Robert Bowlinge are mentioned in the 1689 will of Robert Kinge, recorded 1690 Stafford County, Virginia. 

"Fifthly I give to (faded) William Bowlinge, and John Bowlinge, and Robert Bowlinge a Tract of lande lyeinge att ye head of (faded) Creeke running with lande I bought of Thomas Revett and Edward Humston the said lande to be equally divided between ye before menconed Bowlinges and is three thousand acres belonginge to me and ye whole Tract of lande is Twelve thousand acres and it extendeth it selfe from ye Branch of Potomack Runne to ye branches of Ocquia Creeke, Henry Merest and Anthony Buckner have ye remiainge part of ye said Tract of Lande"... 

"Eightly I give to my Loveinge Wife Mary Kinge a tract of land wch I bought of Alexander Boyninge it being Two hundred and forty acres lyeinge upon Hunting Creeke. (1678)(1748).

Will by a Mr. Robert King, dated August 12th, 1690, leaving William Bowlinge & John Bowlinge & Robert Bowling a 12,000 acre tract of land. Thursday evening, I figured out roughly --the boundaries of the tract. If you have a good map of Virginia; Start at the Western boundary of Stafford County. About 1/4 mile east of it, is Tacketts Mill (I traced George Bowling to the roads there in a separate entry.) That is about the former Western Boundary. Then go north to  Rt. 610, which is the Southern Boundary of the Quantico Marine Base, the property boundaries were a little north of it, running along OCQUIA (today Aquia) Creek. The Southern boundary was Potomac Creek. I figure 12,000 acres to be about six square miles. I have no idea if my computations are correct. (1748, Informant Linda Berge)

Earlier there was an 1611 Will of Thomas Brian, Aylesbury, Bucks, England. Mentions "Brothers" Thomas Bowlinge and Henry Bowlinge. (2117) Thomas Brian’s will was dated Oct 10, 1611 and proved the following Nov. 5th by "Frances (nee Bowlinge) the relict and sole executrix" “Thomas Bowlinge and Henry Bowlinge my brothers (brother in laws) to be overseers” (https://www.geni.com/people/Thomas-Bryan/6000000003827189915)
2117.
The American Genealogist, "Pre-American Ancestries", page 89, issue unknown. The American Genealogist, vol. X, p. 90, the article on the Bryans of Aylesbury, England, by Howard j. Banker, Ph.D. The 1611 Will of Thomas Brian, Aylesbury, Bucks, England. Mentions "Brothers" Thomas Bowlinge and Henry Bowlinge.

I found this at the Library of Virginia. Taken from VIRGINIA COUNTY COURT RECORDS, DEED & WILL ABSTRACTS OF STAFFORD COUNTY, VIRGINIA, 1689-1693, Deeds, Wills, Inventories etc. from 29 April 1689 - 8 Februrary 1692/3, Deed Book D - Part II. This Book is not among the records in the Stafford County Court House. (1748, Informant Linda Berge)

From the 1689 Will of ROBERT KINGE  

"Fifthly I give to (faded) WILLIAM BOWLINGE & JOHN BOWLINGE & ROBERT BOWLINGE a Tract of lande lyein ge att ye head of (faded) Creeke running with lande I bought of THOMAS REVETT & EDWARD HUMSTON the said lande to be equally divided between ye before menconed BOWLINGEs & is Three thousand acres belonginge to me and ye whole Tract of lande is Twelve thousand acres & it extendeth it selfe from ye Branch of POTOMACK RUNNE to ye brances of OCQUIA CREEKE, HENRY MEREST & ANTHONY BUCKNER have ye remaininge prt of ye said Tract of lande."

"This will was sufficiently proved in this Court by ye oathes & Testimonies of WILLIAM HEAD, JOHN BREWTON, WILLIAM SMITH, ELIZABETH BREWTON & RICHARD AYLIFF Witnesses thereunto subscribed on the 7th day of April 1690 and was then recorded." (1748) 
NOTE: This will of Robert Kinge shows that three Bowling men are his grandchildren. This is an abstract of the original document. The person trying to read the original couldn't read the name of the person listed before William. I suspect this missing person is Simon Bowling Jr. Robert Kings wife's name is Mary which is proven by another document. When you look at the girls names in the will, the one name that is missing is "Mary". Since Mary is deceased at the time of the will, grandfather Robert King is leaving her share to her four sons. Keep in mind that Robert King lived next door to Simon Bowling Sr. (2174)

I found this at the Library of Virginia. Taken from VIRGINIA COUNTY COURT RECORDS, DEED & WILL ABSTRACTS OF STAFFORD COUNTY, VIRGINIA. Will Abstracts of Stafford County, Virginia, 1689-1693, Deeds, Wills, Inventories etc. from 29 April 1689 - 8 February 1692/3, Deed Book D - Part II. This Book is not among the records in the Stafford County Court House. (1748, Informant Linda Berge)

From the 1689 Will of Robert Kinge:  



Alexander Boyninge's (sic) land along with William Bowlinge, John Bowlinge, Robert Bowlinge are mentioned in the 1689 will of Robert Kinge, recorded 1690 Stafford County, Virginia. 

"Fifthly I give to (faded) William Bowlinge, and John Bowlinge, and Robert Bowlinge a Tract of lande lyeinge att ye head of (faded) Creeke running with lande I bought of Thomas Revett and Edward Humston the said lande to be equally divided between ye before menconed Bowlinges and is three thousand acres belonginge to me and ye whole Tract of lande is Twelve thousand acres and it extendeth it selfe from ye Branch of Potomack Runne to ye branches of Ocquia Creeke, Henry Merest and Anthony Buckner have ye remiainge part of ye said Tract of Lande"... 

"Eightly I give to my Loveinge Wife Mary Kinge a tract of land wch I bought of Alexander Boyninge it being Two hundred and forty acres lyeinge upon Hunting Creeke. (1678)(1748).

Will by a Mr. Robert Kinge, dated August 12th, 1690, leaving William Bowlinge & John Bowlinge & Robert Bowling a 12,000 acre tract of land. Thursday evening, I figured out roughly --the boundaries of the tract. If you have a good map of Virginia; Start at the Western boundary of Stafford County. About 1/4 mile east of it, is Tacketts Mill (I traced George Bowling to the roads there in a seperate entry.) That is about the former Western Boundary. Then go north to  Rt. 610, which is the Southern Boundary of the Quantico Marine Base, the property boundarys were a little north of it, running along OCQUIA (today Aquia) Creek.  The Southern boundary was Potomac Creek. I figure 12,000 acres to be about six square miles. I have no idea if my computations are correct. Mathamatics is not my strong point. (1748, Informant Linda Berge) 

Earlier there was an 1611 Will of Thomas Brian, Aylesbury, Bucks, England. Mentions "Brothers" Thomas Bowlinge and Henry Bowlinge. (2117)

Will Abstracts of Stafford County, Virginia, 1689-1693, Deeds, Wills, Inventories etc. from 29 April 1689 - 8 February 1692/3, Deed Book D - Part II. This Book is not among the records in the Stafford County Court House. (1748, Informant Linda Berge)

NOTE: This will of Robert Kinge shows that three Bowlinge men are his grandchildren. This is an abstract of the original document. The person trying to read the original couldn't read the name of the person listed before William. I suspect this missing person is Simon Bowling Jr. Robert Kings wife's name is Mary which is proven by another document. When you look at the girls names in the will, the one name that is missing is "Mary". Since Mary is deceased at the time of the will, grandfather Robert King is leaving her share to her four sons. Keep in mind that Robert Kinge lived next door to Simon Bowling Sr. (2174)

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

Simon Fh630 (6B) 516x
-----------------

Simon b<1702-d1735 (Rin=45835)/1/w m1722 Anne (Wilson) Newton—His father was Robert #516 (Rin=46246)


Sarah Ann 1726/m<1750 1/h Peter Cornwell (bc1738-dc1776) 2/h m<1776 Daniel 




Shumate 



2/w m1728 Elizabeth Newport



Nanne (F) b1728



Winefred (F) b1729



Simon Peter 1730-d>1767—may have been cousin of Robert Fh535.



Mary b1734



3/w Martha -----  d1735


a
Anne b1730/31


a
Sophia b1733


ab
Robert b1735, born after father died and mother died a few days later.—may have been

 


cousin of Robert Fh535.


a
Birth record in St. Paul’s church register and Source #2111.

b
Robert Fh535,240d as administator of Simon's estate entered his account in 1736 including 




nursing his child four months 

Birth, Parents, Lineage

Simon Bowling was the son of Robert Bowling (Fh516). (2111) 
Marriages

Simon Bowling married first Anne Newton, December 5, 1722, per the St. Paul’s register. (46)(61)(1957) Simon Bowline married 1722 Anne Newton in King George County (present day), Virginia. No children are in the church register. (1238) It is possible that Anne Newton had been married before. See next item. (7) Simon Bowling was an executor of a 1725 will, probated 1727 in Northumberland County, Virginia. Robert Willson's will named daughter Anne the wife of Simon Bowling. It appears from the wording of the will that Anne was still "without issue". (1664) Their daughter “Sara Ann Bowling married Peter Cornwell, before 8 October 1750; bride was a daughter of Simon & Ann Bowling and grand daughter of Robert Wilson (who died Northumberland County, Virginia 1727); groom was probably a son of Dennis Cornwell (died Prince William County, Virginia, about 1735); by October 1750, Peter & Sara Ann Cornwell were residence of Prince William County, Virginia; (Northumberland County, Virginia Record Book 1726-29:39; Record Book 1-132; Prince William County, Virginia Deed Book B:438)” (1913) LDS’s AF has Peter Cornwell born about 1738 and dying about June 2, 1776. (7) Sarah Ann (Bowling) Cornwell, widow of Peter Cornwell, later married Daniel Shumate. (      ) 

Second Marriage

Simon Bowling married second Elizabeth Newport June 5, 1728, per the St. Paul’s register. (46)(61)(1957)

Third Marriage and Children

Simon Bowling married third Martha ----- in Stafford County, Virginia. (46)(61)  
Simon and Martha Bowling had children:

a.
Anne born 1730/1. (46)(492) Anne Bowling was born February 20, 1730/31 (old style). (2111) 

b.
Sophia born 1733. (46)(492) Sophia Bowling was born October 8, 1733. (2111)   

c.
Robert born 1735 after the death of his father. (46)(492) Robert Bowling was born October 26, 1735. (2111) Robert Bowling 
was born 1735 the son of Simon Bowling, deceased, and Martha his wife who apparently died 3 days after Robert's birth. This 
recorded in St. Paul's Parish Register, Stafford or King George Counties, Virginia. (46) The estate of Simon Bowling (Fh630) 
was appraised by order of the Court dated March 10, 1735. Valued at L 16.11.2 by Edward Humston, Thomas Bunbury and 
William Bunbury. At Court held for Stafford County, Virginia on 13 April 1736 the inventory was admitted to record. On the 
same day, Robert Bowling (Fh535,6A), Administrator of Simon Bowling exhibited this account. Subtractions: Funeral 
charges for him (Simon) and his wife. Also nursing his child four months. Others mentioned in the statements were: 
Nicholas 
Dunn, Mr. Carter, Joseph King, Peter Lehue, William Bruton, Robert Massey, Joseph Bowling, Richard Foote, Scott, 
Jones Parker, Rachel Colclufe (could this be Colclough), Matthew Boulling, Henry Washington, Richard Thomas, Philip 
Alexander, John Buchanan. At Court held for Stafford County, Virginia, 12th April 1737 Account admitted to record. 
(1610)

d.
Simon. Simon Boley (630d, Rin=46474, b1730) r1756. 23-AUGUST-1756 Order that Simon Boley et al or any three of them 
being first sworne Inventory and appraisement of the estate of Williams Jones deced in current money and that the 
Administrator return the same to the court.


SOURCE: Prince William County, Virginia, Order Book Abstracts 1753-1757 by Ruth and Sam Sparacio.

Simon 630d probably died without issue. Simon Boling was named on a March 31, 1746, will of his cousin Robert Boling 
(Fh535,240d) of Truro Parish, Fairfax County, Virginia. (133)(357)(466)

Simon Bowling (630a) and Gerrard Bowling (Fh230,4501f) were witnesses to a sale of farm crops between Isaac Rose and 
John Alexander 1766 in Book G, pages 85-86, of Fairfax County, Virginia, deeds. (7)(1223) Simon Boling sells to Daniel 
Jinkins, one gray horse and five head of cattle. Bill of Sale dated 19 Jan 1767 and recorded 21 July, 1767, page 253, Fairfax 
County, Virginia, Abstracts of deeds. (7)(1223) Bowling, Simon -- 1767, SR 08780, p. 2. muster for March-April 1767 at 
Virginia, list of men who left or joined. (http://image.lva.virginia.gov/VTLS/CR/08780/0002.tiff )

Movement
Simon Bowling is mentioned in an 1733 estate settlement of Dr. Capt. Simon Pearsons. Stafford County, Virginia. Many other names are mentioned. (1610)  
15-NOVEMBER-1721

Know all men by these Presents that We Richard Cundiff and Simon Bowley (Fh630) of Northumberland County in Virginia do owe and Stand Justly Indebted unto the Justices of the Peace for this County in the Penal Sum of One hundred and fifty pounds Sterling tho which payment will and truly to be made unto the Justices as aforesaid on their ????ssors to the behalf of Isaac Pickerin Orphan of Wm Pickerin dec'd; we bind as our heirs Exec's and Adm's Jointly and Severally for the whole Firmly by these presents Sealed with our Seals dated this 15th Day November Anno 1721. The condition of this obligation is such that whereas on the say of Isaac Pickerin the aforesaid Rich'd Cundiff was Admitted Guardian to him the said Isaac now if the said Richard Shall carefully and honestly in all things relateing to practice and use of Guardians in such case behave himself towards his said Pupils and shall be accountable for what Estate shall appear to be due to him the said Pupil as far as is or Shall come to his hands or possession when thereto legally called and required then this obligation to be Void and of none Effect Else to remain in full force and Virtue.

Richard Cundiff Seale

Sig

Simon ~ Bowley Seale

Signed Sealed and delivered in the presences of the Justices;

Acknowledged in Northumberland

County Court by the Parties above said the day and year abovesaid and is admitted to record.

Test Rd. Lee Ct Ck

SOURCE: Northumberland County, Virginia Order Book 1718-1726, Page 228, 1721, 15 November Court; FHL Film 0032639

NOTE: This is a deed pertaining to Simon Bowlin--father of Saraann who married Peter Cornwell. This is in regard to the guardianship of Isaac Pickerin. Isaac later married Eleanor the sister of Ann Wilson (Simon Bowling's (Fh630) wife).

1-JANUARY-1724

In the Name of God Amen, I Richard Cundiff the First day of January in the year of our Lord 1724, being very well in health and memory thanks be to God for it, and calling to mind the mortality of my body and knowing that its appointed to all men once to die, do make and ordain this my last Will and Testament

That is to say principally and first of all, I give and recommend my Soul into the hands of God that gave it and my body I recommend it to the earth to be buried in a Christian like manner at the discretion of my executors.

Nothing doubting, but at the General Resurrection I shall receive the same again by the mighty power of God, and touching such worldly estate wherewith it hath pleased God to bless me with in this life, I give, devise and dispose of the same in the following manner and form.

Imprimis I give and begave to my dearly beloved wife all my household goods and stock to her whole disposal till she marries, and when she marries or dies, what she leaves to be equally divided amongst my six children; only Cathern Cundiff to have what her Mother thinks fit towards housekeeping besides her part and to live with her Mother and work with her or by herself upon her brother Isaac Cundiff's part of land and to have the use of the ground and the Tobacco House during her single life.

Imprimis I give and bequeath to my eldest son Isaac Cundiff that neck of land beginning at a persimmon tree standing between the Tobacco House and so to the head of the Long Branch, to the corner tree standing in Edmond Bayse's line and to the head of the Long Branch between Elizabeth Taylor's and so down, and up the Swamp by Dennis Conries to the Spring Branch and so up the Spring Branch to the persimmon tree where we first begun, and all the portenances there unto belonging to him and his heirs forever, lawfully begot of his one body and for want of heirs to fall to John Cundiff or his heirs.

Imprimis I likewise give and begave to my youngest son Jonathan Cundiff that part of land beginning at the Pitman's line at the head of a branch and down the branch to his Grandfather Cundiff's Spring and down the north side of the Swamp below Brown's Bridge to Colonel Ball's line, leaving the Swamp and running by the ditch called Browns is an old corner white oak, and from thence to a red oak standing in Thomas Pitman's line and then easterly to the place where he first begun, to him and his heirs forever lawfully begot of his own body, and for want of heirs to Richard Cundiff Junior or his forever.

Imprimis I give and bequeath to my eldest daughter, Valey Bowing and her husband John Bowing (629e), that point of land they now live upon beginning at a corner white oak of Edmond Baysies and running west along Thomas Pitman's line till he comes to the branch to Jonathan Cundiff's line and down this said branch to the point and up to the place where he first begun along the Swamp, during their two lives and after their decease to fall to John Cundiff or his heirs forever lawfully begot of his own body, and for want of heirs to fall to Richard Cundiff Junior or his heirs forever lawfully begot of his one body.

Imprimis I likewise give and bequeath to my son John Cundiff, all the remainder part of my lands, all the portenances there unto belonging to him and his heirs forever lawfully begot of his one body and for want of heirs to fall to Richard Cundiff Junior or his heirs forever lawfully begot of his one body.

Imprimis I likewise here appoint my four sons my sole Executors to see this my will fullfilled and to bear charges alike; Isaac Cundiff, Richard Cundiff, John Cundiff, Jonathan Cundiff, these are my sole Executors to see this my will fullfilled.

Imprimis I likewise will that my movable household goods, none of it to be appraised, but to share as equal as can be and take your lot and don't quarrel, but be fair and love one another and live in the fear of God.

Imprimis I likewise will that my sister Alce Conre enjoy, and her heirs, her part of land with peace quietness as witness my Hand and Seal the First day of January in the year of Our Lord Anno Dom. 1724.

Signed Sealed in the presence of Witnesses

Tho Pitman

Isaac Edwards, Richard Cundiff Senior Seal

Die July 20 1726

This will was proved in Northumberland County Court to be the Last Will and Testament of Richard Cundiff and by the oaths of Thomas Pitman and Isaac Edwards, Witnesses thereto and is admitted to Record.

Test Rd Lee C't Cur

SOURCE: Northumberland County, Virginia Record Book 1718-1726, Page 406 Will Written 1 Jan 1724 - Will Probated 20 Jul 1726; FHL Film 0032639

NOTE: This is the will of Richard Cundiff who took the guardianship of Isaac Pickerin in the previous document. This list John Bowling's wife as Valey nee Cundiff.


16-JUNE-1733

Dr. Capt SIMON PEARSONS estate to NATHAL. CHAPMAN.
Contra. To 1 drest skin for his son, paid RICHD, FLETCHER for goods, delivered JAMES WADE for his freedom dues, cash paid COLL. NICHS. SMITH, 7 gallons rum at the funeral, paid HAWLEYS and GODFREY for Levies for 1732, paid CAPT WASHINGTON AND Co. for Sundrys, paid JAMES CARTER for quit rents of 7246 acres of land 2/ sterling p hundred 25 p ct on do to make it currency, paid JAMES CARTER for an order from GEO. BUCHANAN on acct. CAPT ARBUTHNOTS ESTATE. To WILLIAM HALES acct, paid JOHN GRANT, paid MR. NELSON, for a hat band and gloves for THOMAS PEARSON, paid WILLIAM HERLE, paid RICH’D FLETCHER for galls rum and sugar for the reaping, paid THOMAS EVES for note, paid THOMAS EVES for making a mourning coat for THOS. PEARSON, paid JOHN SMITH, payd JAMES WAUGH for coac hire, PETER HEDGMAN for levies.
/Cr. 1733 June 16 Note reced of JAMES GOING of JOHN PAGE, cash reced THOS. PEARSON, NOTE OF EDWARD SNOXELL, DITTO GEORGE SYMSON, cash of DARBY BRYAN, JOHN MERCER, JOHN HERLE, Aug 10th by crop reced made at the home plantation on Potomack creek, By ditto made in Pr. William, Note reded of JAMES SUDDUTH, EDWARD WILLIAMS, THOS. SMITH, rappa. THOMAS FURR, JOHN PAGE, STEPHEN FULLER, EDWD, WILLIAMS, SIMON BOWLING, OF WM. NORTHCOAT, of LEWIS ELSY cash reced for the warehouse rent 1733 paid JOHN WITHERS HARPER for a debt, paid JOHN MERCER, WM DENT, MARY SHAVONS acct. shipped to JAMES BUCHANON, Shipped in BUCKERIDGE, paid CATESBY COCKS note, paid GRIGSBY’S judgemant, CAPT. SPOORE for inspection he paid, paid Marlbro Inspectors 4 crop hhds. Paid WM. BROOKSHIRE acct. 1734 Augt 10 CAPT HEDGEMAN acct and levies, paid WM. WALKER for a coffin, paid SARAH JEWARS acct. paid MR. SCOTT for the funeral sermon, paid MR CLAIBORNE for clks note, paid SAM’L TOMMONS, JOHN GRANTpaid the inspector of 7 hhds tobacco had out of hunting creek warehouse and shipt in board the Smith CAPT. BUCKRIDGE 3/. July 5 paid JAMES CARTER for quit rents 5636 acres land 1733 Sterling paid THOMAS HARRISON SENR for a Legacy left him, paid MOSELY BATTALEY for a fee agst. TRAMMEL paid EBENEZER MOSS his acct. Smiths work, 1734—paid Wm. Brookshire, PAID wm. Hale FOR Mary Straughans living at ye quarters, paid EDWARD EMMS for levies, paid GeoRGE TRAMELL, PAID james baxter, William herle, mr. cocke Clks note, 1735 To the hire of a boat to carry tobacco to the warehouse 2 days at 20 p day, payd MICHAEL REGAN EDWARD EMMS, ANN BALL, LEWIS ELSEY, EDWARD EMMS, JERE BRANAUGH, WILLIAM HERLE, MR. NATHL. CHAPMAN, 1734 reced of NICHOL. GRIMES, LEWIS ELSEY, WILLIAM BRUSTER, RICHD RAKSTRAW, THOMAS COATHER, MOSES GOIN, THOMAS WEST, DAVID THOMAS, JAMES HALLEY, JOHN BURK, by MICHAEL REGANS rent, by tobo reced HENRY WATSON..
THOMAS PEARSON
At court held for Stafford County June 12th 1739 Nathaniel Chapman and Thomas Pearson Exes of Simon Pearson deced presented account..admitted to record.


SOURCE: Stafford County Will Book M, Page 271-273, Will Abstract, 1729-1748 by Sparacio.


10-MARCH-1735

In obedience to an Order of Court dated March 10th 1735. We the Subscribers have appraised Estate of SIMON BOWLING deced as follows ..items listed and valued..Total L16.11.2
EDWARD HUMSTON
THOMAS BUNBURY
WILLIAM BUNBURY
At court held for Stafford County
13th April 1736 Inventory admitted to record. (2174)
6M
UK
Matthew Boulling (sic) is mentioned in the following. The estate of Simon Bowling (Fh630,6M) was appraised by order of the Court dated March 10, 1735. Valued at L 16.11.2 by Edward Humston, Thomas Bunbury and William Bunbury. At Court held for Stafford County, Virginia on 13 April 1736 the inventory was admitted to record. On the same day, Robert Bowling (Fh535,6A), Administrator of Simon Bowling exhibited this account. Subtractions: Funeral charges for him (Simon) and his wife. Also nursing his child four months. Others mentioned in the statements were: Nicholas Dunn, Mr. Carter, Joseph King, Peter Lehue, William Bruton, Robert Massey, Joseph Bowling, Richard Foote, Scott, Jones Parker, Rachel Colclufe (could this be Colclough), Matthew Boulling, Henry Washington, Richard Thomas, Philip Alexander, John Buchanan. At Court held for Stafford County, Virginia, 12th April 1737 Account admitted to record. (1610)
13-APRIL-1735


The estate of SIMON BOLING (Fh630) decd Dr. To the funeral charges for him and his wife. To nursing his child four months..ROBERT BOWLING . Administrator of SIMON BOWLING decd. Exhibited this account…admitted to record and the tobacco therein mentioned is value at 13 p. ct.
SOURCE: Stafford County Will Book M, Deed and Will Abstracts, p. 201, 1729-1748, by Ruth and Sam Sparacio.
NOTE: This Simon Boling deceased is probably the son of Robert Bowling. Internet information shows this Simon Boling as married 3 time: 1. Anne Newton 2. Elizabeth Newport 3. Martha (this may be incorrect since it came off the internet).



4-JUNE-1735

Will of James Henderson, dated 4 June 1735.
James Henserson in the County of Prince William being very sick and wesk in body.
I give my well beloved friend JEFFERY JOHNSON whom I likewise constitute and ordain my only and sole executor of this my last will and testament all and singular my moveables and lands by him freely to be possed and enjoyed.
Wit: JOHN RIGHT JAMES HENDERSON
THOS. JACKMAN
John Bowling
But after a second thought I considered that my well beloved friend John Bowlin having a great deal of trouble with me in my sickness and for buearing me my will is that he shall have my mare and colt and gun the 7th day of June 1735.
Wit: THOS. JACKMAN JAMES HENDERSON
JAS. (x) HANN
JOHN (x) WALKER
Source: Prince William County, Virginia, Will Book C, p. 31, 1734-1744, by John Dorman.


21-APRIL-1736

April 21st 1736 (C-78)
Know all Men by these Presents that we Samuel King & William Bolling are held and firmly bound unto
Denis McCarty gentleman the first Justice in the Commission of Peace for Prince William County for and in behalf and to the sole use and behoof of the Justices of the said County and their successors in the sum of fifty pounds to be paid to the said Denis McCarty his Executors Administrators and Assigns. To which payment well and truly to be made we bind ourselves and every of us our and every of our heirs, executors and administrators jointly and severally firmly by these presents. Sealed with our seals dated this 21st day of April 1736. The Condition of this Obligation is such that if the above bound Samuel King administrator of all the Goods, Chattels and Credits of William Addison deceased do make or cause to be made a true and perfect Inventory of all and singular the Goods, Chattels, and Credits of the said Deceased, which have, or shall come to the hands, possession, or knowledge of the said Samuel King or into the hands or possession of any other person or persons for him and the same so made, do exhibit into the County Court of Prince William at such time as he shall be thereunto required by the said Court; and the same Goods, Chattels and Credits, and all other the Goods, Chattels, and Credits of the said Deceased at the time of his death or which at any time shall come to the hands, possession of the said Samuel king or into the hands and possession of any other person or persons for him do well and truly administer according to Law and further do make a just and true account of his Actings and Doings therein when thereto required by the said Court and all the rest and residue of the goods Chattels and Credits which shall be found remaining upon the said administrators account, the 18 same being first examined and allowed by the Justices of the Court for the time being shall deliver and pay unto such person or persons respectively as the said Justices by their order or Judgment shall direct pursuant to the laws in that case made and provided and if it shall hereafter appear that any Last Will and Testament was made by the Deceased and the Executor or Executors therein named do Exhibit the same into Court making request to have it allowed and approved accordingly if the said Samuel King being thereunto required do render and deliver up his letter of administration approbation of such Testament being first had and maid in the Court. Then this Obligation to be void and of none effect or else to remain in full force and virtue. Sealed, and delivered, in presence of Thomas Robinson Samuel King SEAL
` William Bolling SEAL


SOURCE: Prince William County Will Book C, P. 78-80, 1734-1744 by John Dorman. 

12-APRIL-1737

1736. The Estate of SIMON BOLLING (Fh630,516a) –

To NICHOLAS DUNN, paid MR. SECRETARY CARTER, paid JOSEPH KING, cash, paid PETER LEHUE, paid WILLIAM BRUTON, ROBERT MASSEY, JOSEPH BOWLING (Fh4501), RICHARD FOOTE, DOCKR. SCOTT, JONES PARKER, RACHEL COLCLUFE (Colclough), paid MATTHEW BOULLING, HENRY WASHINGTON, paid funeral charges, RICHARD THOMAS, PHILIP ALEXANDER, JOHN BUCHANAN acct. finishing the crop, carrying it to the ware house, nursing a child 15 months.

Es Esptd pr me ROBERT BOWLING (Maybe Fh535,240x)

At Court held for Stafford County 12th April 1737 Account admitted to record and the Tobacco in the said account mentioned is valued at 14X.

6K
Simon (Fh630,516a) b<1702,m1722 (Anne Newton),m1728 (Elizabeth Newport),r1730-5,d1735,wi1736




Both  marriages @ St. Paul's (wife @ time of his death was Martha)

6K
Simon/Sims (Fh629) l1673,r1694,dc1694

6M
Simon (Fh631) b1770,t1787,r1795,r<1812

SOURCE: Will Abstract, Stafford County Will Book M, Page 60, 1729-1748 by Sparacio.

(2174)

12-APRIL-1737

1736. The Estate of Simon Bolling (Fh630,516a) –To NICHOLAS DUNN, paid MR. SECRETARY CARTER, paid JOSEPH KING, cash, paid PETER LEHUE, paid WILLIAM BRUTON, ROBERT MASSEY, Joseph Bowling (Fh4501,516x)  , RICHARD FOOTE, DOCKR. SCOTT, JONES PARKER, RACHEL COLCLUFE, paid Matthew Boulling,  HENRY WASHINGTON, paid funeral charges, RICHARD THOMAS, PHILIP ALEXANDER, JOHN BUCHANAN acct. finishing the crop, carrying it to the ware house, nursing a child 15 months.
Es Esptd pr me Robert Bowling
At Court held for Stafford County 12th April 1737 Account admitted to record and the Tobacco in the said account mentioned is valued at 14X.


SOURCE: Will Abstract, Stafford County Will Book M, Page 60, 1729-1748 by Sparacio.

RUTH RIDLEY VS. JOSEPH DAVIS in dower.
This day came the afore said JOSEPH by GEORGE JOHNSON his attorney and the said RUTH did not prosecute her bill aforesaid. Therefore it is considered that the said RUTH take nothing of her bill, and that the said JOSEPH go thereof without day and recover against the said RUTH two shillings and also his costs by him in this behalf expended and the said JOSEPH have thereof execution etc.
Absent THOMAS HARRISON Gent
JOSEPH SOWELL & SARAH HIS WIFE, JAMES BOLING AND MARY his wife and BEHATHALEM OVERALL an infant by WILLIAM WHITLEDGE her Guardian. In chancery against NATHANIEL OVERALL and JOHN DAGG.
The deft. On their motion have time til the next court to answer the bill of complaint.


SOURCE: Prince William County, Virginia, Order Book Abstract, p. 32, 1752-1753 by Ruth and Sam Sparacio.

on 13 April 1736 the inventory was admitted to record. On the same day, Robert Bowling (Perhaps Fh535), Administrator of Simon Bowling exhibited this account. Subtractions: Funeral charges for him (Simon) and his wife. Also nursing his child four months. Others mentioned in the statements were: Nicholas Dunn, Mr. Carter, Joseph King, Peter Lehue, William Bruton, Robert Massey, Joseph Bowling, Richard Foote, Scott, Jones Parker, Rachel Colclufe (could this be Colclough), Matthew Boulling, Henry Washington, Richard Thomas, Philip Alexander, John Buchanan. At Court held for Stafford County, Virginia, 12th April 1737 Account admitted to record. (1610)(2111)
+++++++++++++++++++++++++

Simon Fh631 (6M)
-----------------

Simon b<1766-dc1815 (Rin=54583)—Head of String 6M


Lewis 1795-1872(Rin=54582)/m1816 Margaret Heflin (1785-1866)—See Family Group #4623



1 Male-died of mumps in War of 1812



2 Male-died of mumps in War of 1812

Birth, Parents, Lineage

Simon Bowling was born about 1770 in perhaps Stafford County, Virginia. (1214) Simon Bolling is listed on the 1787 Personal Property Tax List of Stafford County, Virginia. He is a white male over 21, i.e. b<1766. (1586)

Marriage and Children

a.
Son Lewis Bowling. Simon Bowling had a son Lewis Bowling a native of Stafford County, Virginia. Lewis in turn had a son 
Lewis W. Bolen born 1832 in Harrison County, Ohio. (334)(335) Simon Bowling had a son Lewis Walker Bowling (Fh4623) 
born 1795 in Stafford County, Virginia. (1214) Simon Bowling had a son Lewis Bowling who was a soldier in the War of 
1812. (858)(859)

Movement

Simon Bolling was on the 1787 census of Stafford County, Virginia. (551) Simon Bolling is listed on the 1787 Personal Property Tax List of Stafford County, Virginia. He is a white male over 21, i.e. b<1766. A William Bolling Sr. (perhaps 183c) was taxed there the same day. (1586) 
1787 – Property Tax Rolls--Stafford County, Virginia
Bolling, Charles

0
0
0
1
0
(Fh1563,397e,6N2)

Bolling, James

2
0
0
2
6
(Fh279,278a,6M1)

Bolling, Mary

0
3
2
0
0

Bolling, Robert Estate
0
10
2
4
4
(maybe 630c,6M)

Bolling, Simon

0
0
0
0
0
(Fh631,6M)

Bolling, Thomas

1
0
0
1
2
(Fh667,286a,6M17)

Bolling, William, Sr.
0
0
0
1
2

Bolling, William

0
0
0
0
0
(183c,6M)

Death

Simon Bowling served in the U.S. Army prior to and during the War of 1812.  Simon Bowling died Sacketts Habor, probably about the time the war closed. Two of his brothers also participated in the conflict and died of mumps while in the service. (858)(859)  Simon Bowling died about 1815 in Sacketts Harbor, New York. He served during and prior to the War of 1812. (1214) 

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

Simon Fh632 (6A) 742x
-----------------

Simon bc1670-d1711(Rin=54190)/m1693 Jean Wade bc1670--His father was William #742 (Rin=65495)

*
Benjamin 1696-1735/m1725 Mary Lathram 1701-1735--See Family Group #90


*
Son per Source #1605 (TB—I believe Fh090 wasn’t Fh632’s son, probably Fh450’s) 
Simon Bowling married at some time before March 25, 1693, Jean Wade. Marriage proven by an Essex County, Virginia, record of that date. (7) Essex County was created 1692 from Old Rappahannock (7) Simon Bowling married Jean Wade. Both were born about 1680 (sic, probably earlier perhaps c1670). They had a son Benjamin Bowling born about 1704. (1605) William Journey of Essex County, Virginia, 1696. - Essex County, Virginia, witness & appraiser. Essex County, Virginia, Deed Book 9, page 10 - Feb 10, 1695 - bond: John Williams, Thomas Parker Sr, and Simon Bowlin enter into bond for security for the said John Williams as administrator of the estate of Thomas Marmaduke. Witnessed by George Parker and William Jurney. (1414) Simon Bowlin was a witness to a 1707 will in Essex County, Virginia. (606) 

Death

Simon Boulin had an estate July 13, 1711, in Essex County, Virginia. Inventory and property in the hands of William Thompson, Christopher Whittemore and John Johnson.  Presented by Robert Jones. (606) Simon Boulin, deceased, estate record, administrator bond dated November 10, 1711, in Essex County, Virginia. Henry Long Administrator, Bond signed by Henry Long, Richard Long and Henry Brice. Signatures on Bond are witnessed by James Alderson and Robert Jones. (7) Simon Boulin (will) Date 1711 Essex County, Virginia, Deed & Wills No. 14, 1711-1716 (Reel 6) P. 8 Adms Bond Recd 10 Nov. 1711. (1155)

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

Simon Fh633 (6B) 629b
-----------------

Simon/Sims b<1654-1723(Rin=57107,GMFS-4FN)/mc1691 Sarah King (1670-1738) --Father was Simon #629 (Rin=45539) 

  a
Lararus b1691-d<1723 (not in Dad’s will) Not mentioned anywhere else.
*ab
William 1694-d>1738
*  b
Mary d>1738/m<1723 William Thomas

*
Martha alive 1723,d1723-1737

*  b
Judith d>1738/m>1723 ------Read

*ab
Sarah b1710-d>1738/m>1723 -------Smith

 
*  b
Simon P. 1720-1790 (Rin=62018)/m<1746 Mary ----- —See Fmily #634 

* 
Mentioned in their father’s 1723 Will
a
Perhaps children born in Northumberland, Virginia. Children of “Simion” 
b
Mentioned in Mother’s 1838 Will 

Birth, Parents, Lineage

Simon Bolin son of Simon Bowley Sr.  (2174) 
Lines of Descent from: 


Simon Fh629 BOWLING-


45539 b.1620


Simon Fh633 BOLEY-


57107 b.1654



son


Simon Fh634 6B BOLEY-


62018 b.1720



grandson


Benjamin Elliot Fh2285 6X BOLING-

50943 b.1775

Thomas Bunburry of Stafford County, had 250 acres on Austin’s Run that he sold about 1673 to Robert Taylor, Sim’s Bowlin and others. Augustine Kneaton obtained this land in a Grant. 30 January 1694/5. (2174) 17-APRIL-1675. List of bills, judgements and executions left with Allexa. Doniphann. Simond Bolin PLUS many other names.

SOURCE: Westmoreland County, Virginia, Patents and Deeds, #4, 1707-1709 by John Dorman.

NOTE: Simond Bolin (probably son of Simon Bowley Sr.) is listed as owing money to the estate of Alexander Doniphann in Westmoreland County. Simon probably still lived in Northumberland County at this time but had borrowed money from Doniphann who lived in Westmoreland County. (2174)  Robert Hall and Edward Thompson 20 Nov. 1678 did patent 104 acres in Stafford County on Oquia Creek. Patent granted by Herbert Jeffery's Esq. who had no power so to do. Augustine Kneaton legatee to Hall and Thompson desires his right to the land by their Wills to him and his wife. New grant to Kneaton. On Austins Run, Dr. Halls landing, land of Sym's. Bowlin now Kneaton's. 30 Jan. 1694/5. (2174) This indenture made the 12th of April 1708 between WILLIAM ALLEN of Stafford County Cordwainer of the one part and THOMAS BYRAM of Wicomico Parish IN Northumberland County Planter. Witnesseth for due consideration of 26 pounds sterling and 8000 pounds of tobacco and caske to him paid or well and truly secured to be paid.hath sold all that messuage together with all that parcel of land now in renure of THOMAS HOPPER and JAMES HAGGARD it being part of a tract of 250 acres granted by patent to AUGISTINE KNEATON out of the proprietors office bearing date January 30th 1694/95 it being a parcel of land and about the year of our Lord 1673 the said Bunbury sold it to ROBERT TAYLOR, SIMON BOWLIN and others and gave bond for 7000 pounds to Tobo to make good of his said sale but died before he had signed any deed for the same and the said TAYLOR and others sold the land and assigned the bond to HENRY GIBSON and GEORGE HILSON after which the said GIBSON died and the said HILSON with the said GIBSONS SUCCESSOR sold it to AUGISTINE KNEATON but died suddenly he had conveyed it to KNEATON as will more fully appear by the patent wherefore KNEATON sued for a grant of the same by escheat and was granted the patent within mentioned and sold it to JOHN AND WILLIAM ALLEN the third day of December 1696 the which they divided between them by course of line trees along the ridge between AUSTINS RUN and ROCKY RUN to a small branch of ROCKY RUN so down the branch to the said run and over the run along a course of line trees up the main road and along the road to the line mentioned in patent W=17 N the other course of the patent for 100 acres of land being more or less in the bounds mentioned and the courses of the patent.

Presence:JAMES HAGGARD WILLIAM ALLEN

GEORGE CROSBE

JAMES HARVEY

Memorandum of Livery and Seisin

Know all men.I WILLIAM ALLEN of Stafford County Cordwainer am bound unto THOMAS BYRAM of Northumberland County Planter in penal sum of 132 pounds of lawful money of England..12th day April 1708. The condition..if WILLIAM ALLEN shall well and truly observe the covenants in one deed of indenture made between WILLIAM ALLEN and THOMAS BYRAM.THEN ABOVE OBLIGATION TO BE VOID.

Presence:JAMES HAGGARD WILLIAM ALLEN

GEORGE CROSBE

THOMAS HOOPER

JAMES HARVEY

Know by all men.I Margaret wife of WILLIAM ALLEN of County of Stafford have assigned my well beloved friend Capt EDWARD MOUNTJOY of county afsd to be my true and lawful attorney.

SOURCE: Stafford County, Virginia, Deeds and Wills, p. 400-402, by Ruth and Sam Sparacio. (2174)

Court 21 Sept 1709. Probate of the last will of ISAAC EDWARDS to ELIZA. EDWARDS, proven by SIMON BOWLEY and JOHN NELMS. Source: Northumberland County, Va, Orders, 1768-1713 Va Colonial Abstracts Series III, Vol I,

by Lindsay O. Duvall. (2174)

20-AUGUST-1712

The last will of Wm. Pickering decd presented by Wm Nelms & SIMON BOWLEY overseers, proved by John Aires & Henry Gaskins.

SOURCE: Virginia Colonial Abstracts, Series II, Vol. I, p. 790, 1678-1713 by Lindsay Duval.

NOTE: Simon Bowley and John Nelms are working as overseerers for William Pickering.

1714

The last will of Wm Pickering decd presented by Wm NELMS & Simon BOWLEY OVERSEERS, proved by John Aires & Henry Gaskins. SOURCE: Northumberland County Orders, Page 791, 1678-1713 (Va. Colonial Abstracts, Series III, Vol I, by Lindsay O. Duvall.) (2174)

21-SEPT-1709
Court 21 Sept 1709. Probate of the last will of ISAAC EDWARDS to ELIZA. EDWARDS, proven by SIMON BOWLEY and JOHN NELMS.


Source: Northumberland County, Va, Orders, 1768-1713 Va Colonial Abstracts Series III, Vol I, 
by Lindsay O. Duvall

20-AUGUST-1712
The last will of Wm. Pickering decd presented by Wm Nelms & SIMON BOWLEY overseers, proved by John Aires & Henry Gaskins.


SOURCE: Virginia Colonial Abstracts, Series II, Vol. I, p. 790, 1678-1713 by Lindsay Duval.
NOTE: Simon Bowley and John Nelms are working as overseerers for William Pickering.

 

1714

The last will of Wm Pickering decd presented by Wm NELMS & Simon BOWLEY 0VERSEERS, proved by John Aires & Henry Gaskins.


SOURCE: Northumberland County Orders, Page 791, 1678-1713 (Va. Colonial Abstracts, Series III, Vol I, by Lindsay O. Duvall.)

21-JUNE-1714
James White of Northumberland County set forth by deed from Richard Smith 2 March 1693 he has 200 acres of patent to Smith 16 September 1692 in said County. Survey by Mr. John Coppedge 2 June 1714 shows 188 acres surplus making 318 acres. Adj. William Picaring, Hulles Run or Creek, John Cottrell, David Spence, Allgoods line, Mathew Chittwood, John Nelms, Simon Bowley, Hugh Collings. 21 June 1714.
SOURCE: Northern Neck Grants Book 5, deed 10, 1713-1719.

1-NOVEMBER-1726
p. 9
Lazarus Bowley (633a) son to Simion (Fh633) was born December 29, 1691
William Bowley (633b) son to Dido was born June 28, 1694
Sarah Bowley (633e) daughter to Dido was born May 28, 1710 (1414)

Death

15-JANUARY-1723/24

WILL OF SIMON BOLEY (Fh633,629c)

Son William Boley - one feather bed and furniture that belongs to it that stands in the old Truckel bedstead, my long gun, and one old iron pot that has a hole in it.

Daughter Mary Thomas - one cow and yearling (the cow is called slutby), and one pewter dish.

Son Simon Boley - one feather bed and furniture and bedstead that stands up stair, by hort gun, my chet that stands in the chamber, one cow and calf, one broadax, one carpenter adze, and handsaw.

Daughter Martha Boley - one flock bed and furniture, one chest above stairs the largest that I there, one cow and calf, one pewter dish, one pewter bason, and three pewter plates.

Daughter Judith Boley - one pewter dish, one pewter bason, three plates, one iron pot, and one cow and calf.

Daughter Sarah Boley - one pewter dish, one pewter bason, three plates, two young heifers about two years onld, and one black mare called Crickett and her future increase except the two colts, the first to my daughter Martha Boley and the second to my daughter Judith Boley.

Rest of my estate be it little or much to my wife Sarah Boley, and she to be my executrix.

Witness: Jonathan Betts, Alexander Moorhead, and William Betts.

SOURCE: Will of Simon Boley, Northumberland Co, VA, Page 392 - Will Boley, Simon, Senr. W.W. 21 May 1723---W.P. 15 January 1723/4

NOTE: Here is an abstract of the will of Simon Boley. I'm thinking that the son, Simon, mentioned in the will is the father of Saraann Bolling Cornwell who married St. Peter. (2174)

10-JULY-1738

SARAH BOWLEY (Wife of Simon Fh633,629c) WILL, of St. Stephens Parish - W. W. 17 January 1737/8 --- W. P. 10 July 1738

To Daughter Judity Read - one feather bed and furniture and bedstead.

To Daughter Sarah Smith - one feather bed and furniture and high bedstead.

To Grandaughter Ann Bowley - one feather bed and furniture and one trundle bedstead, one two year old heifer, two dishes, five plates, one blowe tankard, one salt celler, one bason with brims, one gold ring, a pair of silver studes, one bed chest, one box iron and heaters, one pot and hooks, and ten yards of bumbaze.

To daughter Judith Read - my horse and saddle.

To daughter Sarah Smith - one great iron pot.

To all three of my daughters Mary, Judith, and Sarah - my wearing cloaths to be equally divided among them.

Rest of estate to divided by five children William Bowley, Simon Bowley, and my three daughters, to be equally divided between them.

Sons William and Simon Bowley, executors.
Witness: Alexander Moorehead and William Nelms


6B
Simon (Fh633,629c) r1691-1710


6B
Sarah (wife of Simon Fh633, 629c) d1738


6B

Lazarus (633a) b1691


6B

William (633b) b1694, nw1738 (mother’s) 


6B

Sarah (633x, m to Smith) b1710, nw1738 (mother’s)


6B

Judith (633x, m to Read) nw1738 (mother’s)


6B

Mary (633x) nw1738 (mother’s)


6B

Simon (Fh634, 633g) nw1738 (mother’s)

SOURCE: Will of Sarah Bowley, Northumberland Co, VA, p. 17.

(2174)

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

Simon Fh634 (6B) 633x
-----------------

Simon P. Boley (1720-1790)(Rin=62018, G9G8-BM9)/m       Mary— His Father was Simon #633 (Rin=57107)

Head of String B—



John b1746 (Rin=61391)/m      2/w Hannah Rust–See Family #418


Pressley 1748-d<1774 (Rin=58665)/m      1/w Hannah Rust—See Family #4670
Benjamin Elliott c1755-1844 (Rin=50943)/m1794 Nancy Emily Ayers (d1845)—See Family #2285 6X

Lines of Descent from: 


Simon Fh629 BOWLING-


45539 b.1620


Simon Fh633 BOLEY-


57107 b.1654


Simon Fh634 6B BOLEY-


62018 b.1720



son


Benjamin Elliot Fh2285 6X BOLING-

50943 b.1775

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

Smith Fh642 (6K) 433x
-----------------

William Smith 1781-1848 (Rin=48844, FAG=10592610, FS/FT LH63-LBQ)/m      Mary Clark (1789-1870)--His father was John Henry #433 

One source shows that a Smith Bowling (1781-1851 sic, d1848 FAG 10592610) had these as all brothers:


1  Martin b 1780. (b1780  Rin-48840, no apparent issue) 433a 6K  


2  William b. 1782;  (This I believe is William Smith 1781-1848, Rin=48844) Fh642

3  John 1782, (John Henry b1782 Rin-48841, wife Samantha but no apparent issue) 433c 6K 

4  Simon ?;  (b1783 Rin=48843) 433d


Lived in Fairfax Co., VA.  

This (William Fh642) Smith Bowling married Mary Clark  (she 1789-1850). This might be my ancestor! (1709)



A descendant kit 12051 tested into DNA 6



A descendant Kit 296494 tested into DNA 6


*a
Mariah b1807/mc1820 Gilbert S. Gay--removed to Georgia


  a
Dorathy 1809-1827


  a
Eliza b1811


*a
Rachel Harriett 1813-1835/m      Mr. Sowell and/or Columbus Head--moved to Georgia


*a
Ann 1815-1855/m     Giles Jinks--moved to Butts Co. Georgia


*a
Jarret 1818-1879/m1839 1/w Elizabeth A. Lawson c1820-c1852-Moved to Texas




2/w Ann Eliza Jones (1833-<1880)


*a
William Smith 1820-1898/m1843/7 Melvina Stodghill 1826-1865--moved to Texas


*a
Frederick Smith 1822-1864/m1845 Judith C. Clark-She remarried 1865 to John N. Phillips




A descendant Kit 296494 (Jerry A. Bowling, 25)tested into DNA 6


*a
Lucy Ann Clark 1824-<1890/m     Miller Wilfred Henry 1819-1860/70- Moved to Texas


*a
John 1826->1860/m1847 Milly Phillips


*a
Henry 1828 GA-1880/m1851 Samantha M. Turner




A descendant kit 12051 (Joseph Earl Bowling) tested into DNA 6


*a
Larkin Sanders 1830 GA-1891/m1857 Mary Jane Hoover 1832-1922 - Moved to Texas


a
Bowling Family Bible Record


*
Children per source #529



His name may have been William "Smith" per source #1038.

Birth, Parents, Lineage

Smith Bolling was born in Georgia. (1038) Family tradition has: we had a lot of Indian blood; that Bowling Green Kentucky was named after one of our ancestors; that we had an ancestor who was some kin to a president; that our ancestors came from Va, SC, GA and AL, TX and that they were large land owners and had many slaves. (1038)

Marriage and Children

Smith Bolling married Mary ----- who was probably born in South Carolina. (1038) Smith Bolling married Mary -----. (529) William Smith Bowling married Mary ----- in Virginia or Georgia. (1038) According to the 1860 Census Mary would have been born in 1790 in Virginia. (1038) They had a large family (See Family Group). (529) Smith Bolan was in the 1820 Census of Morgan County, Georgia. (1038) Smith Boling was in the 1830 Census of Butts County, Georgia, on Reel 8, page 159. Butts County was created in 1825. (1038) Smith Bowling had a will dated 11 Aug 1840 in Butts County, Georgia. It names wife Mary and references minor children. The will was later filed in Chambers County, Alabama, Will Book 2, page 159.  (1038) Smith Bolling was in Butts County, Georgia, in 1831.  (?) Smith died about 1851. (529)  Widow Mary Bowling, wife of Smith Bowling, was age 70 born South Carolina, in the 1860 Census of Chambers County, Alabama, living with her son Frederick S. Bowling. She is mentioned in Frederick S. Bowling's 1863 will as "my old mother". (1038) William Smith Bowling, (1785-1851). I have visited the cemetery in Chambers County, Alabama and photographed his tombstone. One source shows he was born in SC. William Smith Bowling lived for a time in Georgia, hence (John) Henry (above) could have been born there. Why was he first in Georgia, then Alabama, and why did he have the last name of Bowling. William Smith Bowling married Mary (Dudley? Hill?).  She owned over 300 acres of land in Alabama. This gives me one reason he was in that area. 
Children were:

a.
Mariah Bowling b. 1805; 

b.
Ann b. 1814, m. Giles Jinks, d. 1855 in Butts County, Georgia; 

c.
Jarrett married Eliz. Lawson, then Ann Eliz. Jones, buried in Henry Cemetery, Rusk, Texas. Jared Boling is in the 1870 
Census of Cherokee County, Texas, age 50, i.e. bc1820 in Georgia. The birthplaces of his sons suggests he was in Alabama in 
1844-1847 and Texas by 1856. 

d.
Son William, married 1847 to Malvina Stodgill. (  ) Son William Bowling born 1822 in Georgia, married Malvina 
Stodghill. 
(1038)


Household Record,  1880 United States Census 

 
William BOWLING
Self
W
Male
58 ,  
GA ,  Farmer ,  

VA ,  SC 

 
Lucy P. BOWLING
Dau
S
Female
33 ,  
AL ,  Keeping House ,  
GA ,  GA 

 
J. E. BOWLING

Son
S
Male
23 ,  
TX ,  Works On Farm ,  
GA ,  GA 

 
M. A. SEAGROVES
Dau
W
Female
21 ,  
TX ,  At Home ,  

GA ,  GA 

 
Lela C. SEAGROVESG
Dau
S
Female
1 ,  
TX ,  At Home ,  

AL ,  GA 


Source Information: Census Place, Precinct 1, Cherokee, Texas

e.
Frederick, b. 1822, buried in Alabama (FAG 10592609);

f.
Lucy Ann Clark Bowling married Wilfred Miller Henry, buried in Rusk, Texas,;


Household Record,  1880 United States Census 

 
Lucy A. C. HENRY
Self ,  
W
Female
56 ,  GA
Keeping House
VA ,  VA 

 
John F. HENRY

Son ,  
S
Male
25 ,  TX
Works On Farm
AL ,  GA 


Source Information: Precinct 1, Cherokee, Texas
g.
John b. 1826; Died 1882 (FAG 60070767)
h.
Henry born 1828, married Samantha Turner, Henry who married Samantha Turner is shown in 1870 Chambers County, 
Alabama, 028 Beat 3 census as Henry Bowling, 40 yrs. a miller, born in GA.  Samantha was 34. Henry Bowling was in the 
1850 Census of Cherokee County, Texas, age 21, i.e. bc1829 in Georgia. He died 1880 Chambers, Alabama. (FAG 
48488719)
i.
Larkin Sanders Bowling married Mary Jane Hoover, buried Rusk, Texas; He died 1891 Gallatin, Cherokee, Texas. 
(FAG 
61710122) 
j.
Rachel Harriet Bowling married Mr. Sowell. 

From there back it's a bit fuzzy. Another source shows that a Smith Bowling (1781-1851) had these brothers William born 1782; John born 1782, Simon ?; Martin born 1780. Lived in Fairfax County, Virginia. This Smith Bowling married Mary Clark  (1789-1850). This might be my ancestor! (1709)

Wife Mary Bowling FAG=60070767

Birth: , Sep. 30, 1789
South Carolina, USA

Death: , Jul. 1, 1870
Chambers County
Alabama, USA

[image: image11.png]



Bowling Family Bible Record:

Births:

Mary Bowling 

was born the 30th day of September 1789
Mariah Bowling 

was born Nov. the 3rd 1807
Dorathy Bowling 

was born August the 23rd 1809
Eliza Bowling 

was born December the 31st 1811
Rachel Harriett Bowling 
was born Feb. the 15th 1813
Ann Bowling 

was born Jan. the 16th 1815
Jarret Bowling 

was born May the 8th 1818
William Bowling 

was born Nov. the 2nd 1820
Fredrick S. Bowling 
was born July the 10th 1822
Lucy Bowling 

was born Jan. the 10th 1824
John Bowling 

was born Jan. the 30th 1826
Henry Bowling 

was born Nov. the 31st 1828 (sic., aren't 31 days in Nov.)
Larkin Bowling 

was born Sep. the 15th 1830

Deaths:

Eliza Bowling 

died July the 4th ___ (page torn and missing)
Dorathy Bowling 

died May the 25th 1827
Harriett Head 

died April 30th 1835
Smith Bowling 

died June the 29th 1848

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

Spencer Fh647 (6M18) 160x
-----------------

Spencer b1744-d>1810 Census (Rin=58594)/ ----- ----- His father could be David #160
*1 male over 45 (Spencer,b<1765,probably b1744 based on sons Benjamin and John ages nearby in Census) 

*2 males 16- 26, (b1784-1794)

*1 female over 45 (Spencer’s wife) and 

*1 female 26-45. Dau b1765-1784 (349)

*Spencer Bowling was listed in the 1810 Census of Falmouth, Stafford County, Virginia. 

Also nearby in that 1810 Census of Falmouth, Stafford County, Virginia were:

Benjamin Bowling (Fh135,6M18, b1766-1784)—Head of Family String M18

John (UK b1766-1784) 

Birth, Parents, Lineage

Spencer Bowlen was born 1744 to mother Mary Bowlin (Fh001) in Northumberland County, Virginia. Spencer Bowlen had a brother Jesse Bowlin born 1745 Northumberland County, Virginia. (7)(377)

Lines of Descent from 


Simon Fh629 BOWLING-

45539 b.1620


William Fh742 BOWLING-

65495 b.1652


George Fh240 BOWLING-

62389 b.1670


John Fh392 6M17 6S BOWLING-
51086 b.1700


David Fh160 6M18 BOWLING-
61269 b.1721


Spencer Fh647 6M18 BOWLING-
58594 b.1744



son

Benjamin Fh135 6M18 BOWLIN-
32824 b.1765

Northumberland,VA-created 1648 from Indian district Chickasoan


6C
Mary (wife of Fh001) r1744(birth of son),r1746(birth of son)


6C

Spencer (Fh647,001a) (Rin=58594) b1744 


6C

Jesse (Fh340,001b)(Rin=45488) b1746

1781
Those that Signed a 1781 petition to move the Stafford County, Virginia, courthouse.

Spencer Bowling 
(Fh647,160c,
6C) along with 

Garrard Boling 
(Fh320?

6C), 

Thomas 

(Fh667, 286x
6M17), 

Charles 

(Fh1563, 397b, 
6N2), 

William Bowling
(
397x
6N2)  


(1758) 

1810
Spencer Bowling was listed in the 1810 Census of Falmouth, Stafford County, Virginia.(HeritageQuest.com) 

Also nearby in that 1810 Census of Falmouth, Stafford County, Virginia were:

Benjamin Bowling (Fh135,6M18, b1766-1784)—Head of Family String M18

John (UK b1766-1784) 

Others in  Stafford County, Virginia, (Aquia) were:

William (Fh770,6N2)

Charles Bowling (Fh1563, 397b, 6N2). (7)  6N2 1563. Charles 1764-1849/m1791 Sarah McKenney (1774-1850)--His 

father was John #397--Some have his father as John Fh367, but that is not so. 

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

Stephen Fh648 (6M) UK
-----------------

Stephen bc1709/m<1739 Joanna -----



Hannah b1739

Stephen and Joanna (-----) Bowling had a daughter Hannah born 1739, Stafford County, Virginia. (1238) 


Stafford, VA-created 1664 from Westmoreland

6M
Stephen (Fh648) r1739 (birth of daughter Hannah)
6M
Hannah (648a) b1739

Rockbridge, VA-created 1778 from Augusta, Botetourt


Stephen (UK) r1820 (way too late) 

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

Thomas Fh665 (2I)    Not a DNA 6 Person
-----------------

Thomas 1579-1655 (Rin=44749)/mc1609/10 Mary Bowling (bc1590-d<1624)--He "of the Swan 1610"--His father was Thomas of Warwickshire, England. Her father was William #739


 
Thomas b1618 (Rin=45695)--See Family Group #666


a
William bc1620-1691/1703(Rin=13918)/Ann Jacobs--See Family Group #741





Or



William w1671,wp1672/m       Mary Thwaite (may not have been techniquely ma rried)—See Family Group #758 



(DNA 2, Family String I)

a
Elizabeth b1623/m      1/h Richard Powell (bc1625-1658)/m      2/h William Ellis d>1668

a
Richard dc1668 (Rin=44769)/m      Eliazabeth ------- —See Family Group #4693  



? Robert



? John


a
Children per Source #2037.

Birth, Parents, Lineage

Thomas Bouldin was born 1580 in Warwickshire, England. Thomas Bouldin's father was Thomas Boulding of Warwick County. Thomas Bouldin's grandfather was Thomas Bouldin who was born in 1523 and lived in Shelborne, England. (924) Thomas Bouldin arrived Virginia 1610 on the ship "Swann", age 40 (sic aged 40 in 1624/25 Census). (1922) Thomas Bouldin arrived Virginia 1610 on ship "Swann", age 40 (sic aged 40 in 1624/25 Census)-wife Mary -----. (1072) Thomas Boulden was born 1579 in England. (695) Thomas Boulding (Fh665) was born 13 Aug 1579 in Stratford-upon-Avon, Warwickshire, England, Christened 13 Aug 1579 Stratford-upon-Avon. (1460) Thomas Bouldin (Fh665) was born 13 Aug 1579, Warwickshire, England. (1460) Thomas Bowling was the son of Thomas Bowling of Warwick, England.  (358) Thomas Bouldin, the immigrant, was born 1580 in Warwickshire, England the son of Thomas Boulding born 1523 of Shelbourne, England. (1072) Thomas Bowldinge (Fh665) was born 26 Sep 1585 in Barford Warwickshire England. (1731) Thomas Boulden was the son of Thomas Boulden. (695) There is a chart of the early Bouldin Family in "The Carter Tree" published before 1911. (709)

Lineage according to Source #1928 (Frederick A. Virkus, Vol. 2, page 54):


Thomas, Fh665, (in the Swann, 1610), had son


William, Fh741, (c1620-1691) "of PA, m Ann -----, had son



(Not correct per Source #1919)


William, Fh742 (1650-1717) (887 acres in Gloucester Co. VA, 1668), has son



(Not correct per Source #1919)


John (c1680-1711) Fh356—Not DNA 6, m Mary


Thomas Fh678 2I Col. m1731 Nancy Clark


Major Wood Fh950 (1742-1800) m1772 Joanna Tyler


Hon. James Wood Fh272 1792-1854 m 3rd/w Almenia Read



Powhatan 272h 1830-1908

Lineage according to Source #171 (Frederick A. Virkus, Vol. 4 page 479):


Thomas, Fh665, (in the Swann, 1610), had son


William, Fh741, (c1620-1691) "of PA", had son



(Not correct per Source #1919)


William, Fh742, (887 acres in Gloucester Co. VA, 1668), had son



(Not correct per Source #1919)


John, Fh356—Not DNA 6, had son


Thomas, Fh678 2I, had son


Thomas, Fh679, had son


Green, Fh245, had son



Ephraim, 245j, had son

Lineage according to Source #171 (Frederick A. Virkus, Vol. 4, page 678):

  
Thomas, Fh665, (in the Swann, 1610), had son


William, Fh741, (c1620-1691) "of VA" & Kent Island MD, m Ann -----, had son



(Not correct per Source #1919)


William, Fh742 (1650-1717) m Elizabeth ------, (887 acres in Gloucester Co. VA, 1668), had son



(Not correct per Source #1919)


William Fh758 or Fh910 of Cecil, MD, m Thomason, had son


Richard Fh469 (1697-1740) m1716 Mary Hewes


Thomas Fh685



John 685a

 
Sarah m Joseph Ash (171)

Lineage according to Source #1732 (Frederick A. Virkus, Vol. 5, page 586):


Thomas, Fh665, (in the Swann, 1610), m Mary, had son


William, Fh741, (c1620-1691) "moved to MD, m Ann -----, had son



(Not correct per Source #1919)


William, Fh742 (1650-1717) m Elizabeth ------, (887 acres in Gloucester Co. VA, 1668), later to Cecil, MD, 



(Not correct per Source #1919)


John (c1680-1711) “of MD”, m Mary


William Fh910 (c1680-1711) of Cecil, MD, m Thomason Mary, had son


Thomas Fh678 2I Col. (1706-1783)


Richard Fh4692 m Elizabeth Moseley


John Fh409 d1850 of VA m Elizabeth Lampkin 



John 409b

Lineage according to Source #1732 (Frederick A. Virkus, Vol. 5 page 606):


Thomas, Fh665, (in the Swann, 1610) , m Mary, had son


William, Fh741, (c1619-1691) "of VA", m Ann -----, had son



(Not correct per Source #1919)


William, Fh742, (887 acres in Gloucester Co. VA, 1668), had son



(probably wrong here per Source #1919, she has Wm Fh910’s father as Wm Fh758)


William, Fh910, (c1680-1711) of Cecil, MD, m Thomason Mary, had son


Thomas, Fh678, had son


Richard, Fh4692, m Elizabeth Moseley, had son


John, Fh409, d1850 of VA m Elizabeth Lampkin, had son



John, 409b, had son

Lineage according to Source #1724 (Frederick A. Virkus, Vol. 6, page 127)


Thomas, Fh665, (in the Swan, 1610), had son



(Not correct per Source #1919)


William, Fh742, (887 acres in Gloucester Co. VA, 1668), had son


George, Fh240, had son


William, Fh743, had daughter



Penelope 743a

Lineage according to Source #363 (Frederick A. Virkus, Vol. 7, page 473 & 480):


Thomas, Fh665, 1580-1655 (in the Swann, 1610), settled in Gloucester VA, m Mary, had son


William, Fh741, (1620-1691) "of VA to PA, m Ann -----, had son



(Not correct per Source #1919)


William, Fh742 (1650-1717) (887 acres in Gloucester Co. VA, 1668), m Elizabeth ----- had son



(Not correct per Source #1919)


John (1680-1711) Fh356—Not DNA 6, to Cecil, MD m Mary, had son


Thomas Fh678 Col. 170601783 to Charlotte, VA

Lineage according to Source #1731 (Informant Chester Bowling):


Thomas, Fh665, had son


William, Fh741, had son



(Not correct per Source #1919)


William, Fh742, A, had son


George, Fh240, A, had son


Joseph, Fh450, A, had son


Benjamin, Fh090, A, had son


John, Fh432, A, had son


Joshua, Fh459, A, had son



Edmund, 459b, A (1731) 

Lineage according to Source #1732 (Informant Henry Rogge):


Thomas, Fh665, had son


William, Fh741, had son



(Not correct per Source #1919)


William, Fh742, A, had son


George, Fh240, A, had son


Joseph, Fh450, A, had son


Benjamin, Fh090, A, had son


Benjamin, Fh100, A, had son


Jarrett, Fh320, A, had son



Lindsay, 320j, A (1732) 

Marriage and Children

Thomas Bowling married in England Mary Bowling, daughter of William and Mary (-----) Bowling (Fh739). (695) Thomas Bouldin married before 1610, in England, Mary -----, (1460) Thomas Bowldinge (Fh665) married Mary -----. (1731) Thomas Boughling/Bouldin/Bowling (1580-1655) when about 30 years old married Mary Bouldin/Bowling the daughter of William Bouldin/Bowling (Fh739). (51)(957) Thomas Boulding (Fh665) married before 1610 in England to Mary Bowling was born about 1590 in England, she died after 1628 near Jamestown, Virginia. (1485) 
They had three children each with a different spelling of the last name (1485):

a.
ThomFas Boulden (Fh666). (695) Thomas Bouldin (Fh666) born 1618 in Virginia. (1485) Thomas Bouldin (Fh666) 
born 1618, in Virginia. (1460)

b.
William (1620-1691) (Fh741). This William married Anne ----- and moved to Pennsylvania. (51)(957) William Bowling 
(Fh741) was born in 1620 (1485)  Thomas Bowling, who came on the "Swan" in 1610 had a son William 
Bowling 
(6A,Fh742) who patented 887 acres in Abingon Parish, Gloucester County, Virginia 1658. (1724) Thomas and Mary 
Boulding named their son William. It could be this William Bowlin who settled in Gloucester County, Virginia, on 887 acres 
of land in 1668 no proof has been found since all records have been lost. (279) William Bouldin (Fh741) born 1620, in 
Virginia. (1460) Thomas Boulden had a son William Boulden (sic) 1650-1717 (Fh742) who married Elizabeth -----.  (sic) 
(695) 

Thomas Bouldin (Fh665) married Mary _____ before 12 January 1624,  and presumably by her, had one child:

c.
William Bouldin (Fh741 or Fh758), born c. 1624, Kecoughtan, Corporation of Elizabeth City, Virginia. It is hoped that more 
efforts will be made in the future regarding DNA testing to prove or disprove the connection between Thomas Bouldin 
(Fh665) of Kecoughtan/Elizabeth City County and William Bouldin  of Gloucester County, Virginia. Once a match can be 
found between a Bouldin family in England and our line, research should be focused on a Thomas Bouldin somewhere in that 
particular Bouldin family in England who, by tradition or documentation, was said to have left for Virginia. (1919)

Thomas born 1584/5 came to America in 1610. He had a son William. Younger children of Thomas were probably Richard (Fh4693) of Norfork County, Virginia, and Elizabeth wife of Richard Powell and later the wife of William Ellis. (2037, pages 8-10)  

Thomas Bowling who came on the "Swan" had a grandson William Bowling (Fh742) who patented land in 1668 in Gloucester County, Virginia.  (358)

Movement

The first settlers to Virginia in 1607 and built and called their settlement Jamestown.  By the spring of 1610 their number shrunk to 40 men.  No women at this time.  They were prepared to return to England when met by these second three shiploads and persuaded to turn back. (51)(957)

The Swan

Thomas Bouldin arrived Virginia 1610 on ship "Swann", age 40 (sic aged 40 in 1624/25 Census) -wife Mary -----. (1072) Thomas Bowling came on the "Swan". (358) Thomas Boulding, age 40 (sic aged 40 in 1624/25 Census) , arrived in the "Swan" 1610.  (706) You can find Thomas Boulding (Fh665) on the Ship's List here: http://english-america.com/spls/610va003.html#Swan  and later in 1624 among the living and the dead http://english-america.com/places/va625518.html (1414) 

The Swan 1610

http://englishamerica.home.att.net/spls/610va003.htm#Swan

Voyages are listed at ship name on Ship List

1610 The Swan, from London, arrived at Virginia

Ship and Passenger Information:

Passengers from the Port of London on the Swan to Virginia, 1610:

Biggs, Richard  . . . . . -- Age 41 in Virginia Muster, January 22, 1624/5

    Arrived in August, 1610.

    (His wife, Sarah, arrived on the Marygold in May, 1618)

Bouldinge, Thomas . . . . -- Age 40 in Virginia Muster, February 7, 1624/5

Fludd, John . . . . . . . -- See name in Virginia Muster, January 21, 1624/5

    (His wife, Margett, and her daughter, Frances Finch, arrived on 

     the Supply in 1620)

Garnett, Thomas . . . . . -- Age 40 in Virginia Muster, February 7, 1624/5

Jordan, Sisley  . . . . . -- Age 24 in Virginia Muster, January 21, 1624/5

                     Also listed in Virginia Muster, January 21, 1623/4

         Jordan (Bailey, Farrar) Descendent Contact: email Ruth Keys Clark
Lupo, Albiano (Lt.) . . . -- Age 40 in Virginia Muster, February 7, 1624/5

Stepney, Thomas . . . . . -- Age 35 in Virginia Muster, February 7, 1624/5

Taylor, John  . . . . . . -- Age 34 in Virginia Muster, February 7, 1624/5

Waine, Amyte  . . . . . . -- Age 30 in Virginia Muster, February 7, 1624/5

Source 1922  These six men are listed in source #1922 (Pages 245,250,253,255, 256) as being on the Musters of Inhabitants in Virginia 23 January 1624/25, Virginia City. They all came on the Swan in 1610. 

Besides Thomas Bouldinge he had the following four men in his muster that didn’t come on the Swan in 1610. 
They were: 
William Bouldinge born VA, 
William Coxe aged 26, 
Richard Edwards aged 23 and 
Niccolas Dade aged 20. (1922)

William Boulton (Boulding?), a “kinsman”, was named an executor of Raphe Yerdley’s will written 1587 and proved in 1588, Audeley, County Stafford, England. The testator states that his father was William Yerdeley and his brothers John and George Yerdley. Years earlier there was a will of a John Yerdeley of Audeley, County Stafford, England written 1558 and proved in 1559 that names “Ciclye my wife” and John (sic. perhaps Thomas, see below) Gernett my son-in-law. Years later a little girl “Sislye” sailed for Virginia in the Swan in 1610. Two of her fellow passengers on that boat were Thomas Garnett, a servant of the famous Indian fighter Captain William Powell and one Thomas Boulding (Bouldin), who was then twenty-six years old. Neither of them could have been Sislye’s father, but the name Thomas Garnett is strangely remininscent of Thomas (sic. perhaps John, see above) Gernett who more than fifty years before was the son-in-law of John Yerdley and his wife “Cicilye”, and there was a close resemblance between Thomas Boulding’s name and that of Raphe Yerdley’s “kinsman” William Boulton. Possibly William Bouldin (Boulding), yeoman, who, together with his wife Mary, also came to Virginia in 1610, whether in the Swan or on another ship was Sislye’s father, but we lose sight of this couple from the day they came ashore. Not so, however, with Thomas Boulding/Bouldin, Bolding, Bolden  (Fh665) “of Eliz. Cittie Co., Yeoman and Ancient Planter,” and Thomas Garnett, for both of them gradually acquired tracts of land in Virginia and were apparently living side by sise as late as 1635. (172) William Bouldin's (Fh739) wife's name was Mary. They had a daughter Mary who married Thomas Boulding (Fh665) in England. They might also have had a daughter Cicely. All came to Virginia in 1610 on the "Swan". (T.B. Thomas and Sicely were on the Swan, but William and Mary may have come on a different ship in 1610). Nothing is known of William and Mary Bouldin once they arrived in Virginia. (7) If they had male children they could be the ancestors of the Surry County, Virginia, Bouldings (Bowling). (7) Cicely (perhaps William's Fh739 daughter) was the widow of Samuel Jordan, died 1623, of "Jordan's Journey" Plantation who married William Farrar of City of Henricus at "Dutch Gap" Plantation. (927)  

Records show that Thomas was a seafaring man and made several trips to and from England. (51)(957)(1732) Thomas Bowling was a Lt. in the British Navy.  He made numerous sea voyages to and from England in the merchant trade. (695) Thomas Bouldin (Fh665) and his wife Mary were the first Bouldin to touch American soil. (924) Thomas and Mary Bowling arrived in Virginia aboard the "Swan" in 1610.  (695) Also aboard were Mary's parents, William and Mary Bowling (Fh739). (7) It is normal to think Thomas Bouldin (Fh665) was the son of William and Mary Bouldin (Fh739) who came in the "Swann" in 1610.  Thomas Boulding came over in 1610 and his wife Mary later, they were more evidently the son and daughter-in-law of William and Mary Boulding who came over in 1610 in the "Swan".  (279) Thomas Bouldin’s immigration date: 1610, near or in Jamestown Colony, Virginia.  Arrived in 1610  aboard the "Swann". (1460) Thomas Bouldin sailed for the new land on the sailing vessel "Swan" and arrived in Virginia in 1610.  He was 30 years of age.  He landed somewhere near, or in, the Jamestown Colony. The next we hear from him, he has obtained a land grant some miles down the James River, from Jamestown. It is worthy to note that the County between Jamestown and Elizabeth City, County, where he finally settle, was named Warwick as he was from Warwick England. Within ten years after his arrival, the coast of James River in this section was well occupied by farmers. Just fourteen years after he landed, he received a land grant from the Virginia Council. It was located one and one-half miles up the Southamption River, in Elizabeth City County, Virginia. The grant was registered January 20, 1624, in Patent Book No. 1, Part 1, page 43, in General Land Office in the Capitol, Richmond, Virginia. (924) Thomas Bowling, as a planter, owned vast tracts of land in Colonial Virginia. (7)  Mary Bouldin, wife of Thomas Bouldin, "for her personal dividend", a land patent, 100 acres about 1 1/2 miles from Southhamption River in Corporation of Elizabeth City, Virginia, granted January 12, 1624.  Thomas Bouldin of Elizabeth City, yoeman, "for his personal dividend" 200 acres adjoining the land of his wife Mary.  100 acres in his own right and 100 acres in the right of Richard Birchett, who sold his right by deed January 19, 1619, granted January 20, 1624. (726)(908) 
On January 20, 1624, when Thomas Boulding patented 200 acres of land in Elizabeth City (location 18 in source) he indicated that he had purchased half of it from Richard Birchett an “ancient planter”. “Ancient Planter: someone who came to Virginia prior to Sir Thomas Dale’s May 1616 departure and had lived in the coloney at least three years when applying for a patent. Ancient planters were eligible for 100 acres of land and had a few other privileges ” (2161)(2163) When Thomas Bouldin had 200 acres and Mary Bouldin had 100 acres in the Corporation of Elizabeth City in 1625. (922) Thomas Bouldin (Fh665) Virginia Land Office Patents & Grants ,20 Jan 1624, Elizabeth City Co. (1475) The muster of Elizabeth City 1624-25 includes Thomas Bolling, age 40 years, who came in the "Swan" in 1610 and William Bouldin born in Virginia. (726)(908) A muster taken January 20-February 7, 1624/5 lists Thomas Bouldinge aged 40 in the "Swan" 1610 and William Bouldinge borne in Virginia. (881) Thomas Bouldin got land grant Elizabeth City County, Virginia, 20 Jan 1624. (1072) Thomas Bouldin had 200 acres and Mary Bouldin had 100 acres, 1625, in Elizabeth City, Virginia. (922) 

THE CENSUS OF VIRGINIA IN 1624 (February could be 1624/1625)
                                                                                                        



Ship              Date         

Last Name
First Name
Age  Status       Head of Household       Location                    of Entry           Arrived      Census Date 

Dale
Noccolas

20  free man     Thomas Bouldinge        Elizabeth City              Jacob              1624         1624-02-07 

Edward's
Richard

23  free man     Thomas Bouldinge        Elizabeth City              Jacob              1624         1624-02-07 

Nicholas Dale came to Virginia on the Jacob in 1624. In early 1625 he was living in Elizabeth City (location 19 in source) in the household of Thomas, who owned neary the Old Poquoson. In 1625 Nicholas Dale was described as a 24-year-old servant. (2160)(2163)

Richard Edwars came to the colony in 1624 on the Jacob. In early 1825 Richard Edwards was living in Elizabeth City where he was a 23-year-old servant in Thomas Bouldings household on the west side of the Hampton River (location 18 in source). (2160)(2163)
In 1610 William Coxe, an “ancient planter” came to Virginia on the Godspeed and in early 1625 was living in Elizabeth City (location 18 in the source) in Thomas Boulding’s household. He was than 26 years old and a free man. (2163)  “Ancient Planter: someone who came to Virginia prior to Sir Thomas Dale’s May 1616 departure and had lived in the coloney at least three years when applying for a patent. Ancient planters were eligible for 100 acres of land and had a few other privileges ” (2161)(2163)         

Thomas Bouldin had land by the Pocoson River, near Benjamin Syms in 1635. (927) Capt. Adam Thorowgood was granted 200 acres, 21 March 1634, adj. to land on the east of Thomas Boulding, to the north John Robinson, to the south William Capps and to the west the Backe River. Thomas Bouldin had land on the little Poquosan River in 1635. (108) John Moore was granted 200 acres on the Little Poquosan Creek and Board Creek adjoining on the east land of Thomas Boulding July 3, 1635. On the west land of Thomas Garnett. (108)(726)(1315) Years later Thomas Boulding was still residing in Elizabeth City, Virginia, and was still aggressive regarding the ownership of land. Patent Book 1, Part 2, page 601 there is recorded a patent for 200 acres to Thomas Boulding due him for the transportation of 4 persons, viz: Robert Clement, Nicholas Dale, John Davis and Edward Dobson. On page 680, Patent Book 1, Part 2, there is recorded still another patent for 400 acres in Elizabeth City County for him dated October, 1639. Together Thomas and Mary Boulding owned 900 acres of land in Elizabeth City, Virginia, according to patents that were recorded. Today there are no records to tell what became of many hundreds of acres owned by them. (279)(1315) “Virginia Land Office (Patents & Grants) to Toby Smith, 650 acres in Warwick County, Virginia, called Humberstone/Hunrperstow, upon the head of Back River, called Smith’s Ford, adjacent westward Thomas Faulkner and Thomas Boulding. Granted to said Toby Smith, 14 Feb 1640”. (1189). At this point, it is wise to speak of one of Thomas Boulding's neighbors Thomas Thornbury. Land records show that the Boulding and Thornbury families lived in the same area of Elizabeth City County, Virginia. This information is included because at some time intermarriage occurred between the Bowling and Thornbury families. It is not known at this date how early the intermarriage occurred and the names of the individuals is not known. (279)  

Death

Thomas Boulden died 1655 in Elizabeth City, Virginia. (695) Thomas Boulding (Fh665) died 22 Sep 1655 near Jamestown (sic), Virginia. (1485) Thomas Bowldinge (Fh665) died 1665 in Elizabeth City County, Virginia. (1731) Thomas Bouldin died 1655. (1072) Thomas Bouldin died 22 Sep 1655. (1460) Thomas Bouldin (Fh665) died probably not long after 16 September 1644 (sic 1655?), presumably within the Corporation of Elizabeth City since his name was not mentioned in any subsequent record for this part of Virginia or in other counties.

LDS/FS-FT 8-4-2016 under brief history.
Thomas Bouldinge arrived in Elizabeth City, Virginia on the ship Swan in 1610. The colony of Jamestown was established in 1607 and became the first permanent English settlement in America. The winter of 1609-1610 in Jamestown is known as the “starving time.” Over half of Jamestown’s settlers died waiting for supplies; supply ships were delayed. The area occupied by the colony was mosquito-infested, and the brackish water of the James River was no good for drinking. Native Americans were rightfully inhospitable to the colonists, as well. Many historians believe Jamestown’s high mortality rate can partially be blamed on poor planning. The colonists expected to trade with the locals for their food between supply ships and threw most of their cultivating energies into growing tobacco. By 1611, most of the Jamestown settlers had died. The colony’s prospects for survival looked bleak until 1617, when the colony’s tobacco exports finally generated enough income to keep the colony going.

Very little is actually known about Thomas Bouldinge. He is accepted as one of the “Ancient Planters” of America. The Order of Descendants of Ancient Planters, much like the Mayflower Society, is a genealogy society whose members trace their lineage to early American settlers. In the case of the Ancient Planters, members must prove lineage from a settler who emigrated to America prior to 1616, paid their own passage, and survived the massacre of Jamestown in 1622 (i.e., lived at least three years after the attack). Thomas Bouldinge was 40 (sic) when he emigrated to America. He may have come to Virginia with a wave of immigrant farmers in order to cultivate the land for the purpose of growing food for the fledgling colony. He married a woman named Mary, whose name is often spelled “Bouldin.” Herein lies one of the major problems that descendants of this family have in tracing their lineage: the name has a multitude of spelling variations, and it would seem our ancestors themselves were not terribly picky about how they spelled it. Some variations on the spelling include Bouldin, Bolton, Bolding, Bolden, Bolling, Bowling, Bollin, Boulding, and Bouldinge.

Modified

29 July 2016 by rosemarysusanmichaelson1
Things that are wrong

The Muster entry makes Thomas Boulding born about 1570. (321) (No, he was aged 40, at the Muster February 7, 1624/5 not when the Swan arrived in 1610 (he would have been 26 in 1610))

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

Thomas Fh667 (6M17) 286x
-----------------

Thomas bc1755-1810 (Rin=68787)/m1793 Sarah "Sally" Ford (c1764->1860)--His father was James #286 


A Descendant kit 2388 (M17) and Kit 406401 (M17) tested into DNA 6.  
Kits 1569, 1288, 1918, 2013, 2388, and 3019 were 12/12

*
Female b1794


*
Female b1796


*a
Daniel James 1800-1879/m1825 Elizabeth Scott—See Family Group #1584




A Descendant kit 2388 and kit 406401 tested into DNA 6  
Kits 1569, 1288, 1918, 2013, 2388, and 3019 were 12/12

*
Lewis 1801-1855/70/m1822 Nancy Ann Stewart (1790-1855)


Sarah Ann Matilda 1804-1891/m1825 Thomas Bayne (1805-?) 
a 
Louisa 1804-1874/m1823 James Arthur Cunningham (1801-1882)—Descendent Sue 


Cunningham Acuff

*
Frances Louisa 1805-1874/m1828 Thomas Lavender (1808-1880)

*a
Thomas J. 1808-1875/9/m1834 1/w Elizabeth Evans,m1866 2/w Margaret Cooper


*a
Ruth b1810/m1831 Robert Ervin

Probably not so


*
Thorton A. b1802/m1828Elizabeth Lewis—See 4614d 


*
Children per source #969


a
Children per source #1152 plus "probably several more children"

Birth, Parents, Lineage

Thomas Bowling was born about 1750. (321) A descendant kit 2388 tested into DNA 6.
Movement
1781
Those that Signed a 1781 petition to move the Stafford County, Virginia, courthouse.

Spencer Bowling 
(Fh647,160c,
6C) along with 

Garrard Boling 
(Fh320?

6C), 

Thomas 

(Fh667, 286x
6M17), 

Charles 

(Fh1563, 397b, 
6N2), 

William Bowling
(
397x
6N2)  


(1758) 

James Bolling is on the 1781 Census of Stafford County, Virginia.

1781 Census—Stafford County, Virginia

Bolling, Thomas
(Fh667,6M17)

William Sr. 

William

(183c,6M) 

Thomas, 

James

(UK)

Charles

(Fh1563,397b,6N2)

1783-86—Stafford County, Virginia 
Bowling, Samuel – 5 in Household

Bowling, Thomas  4, 1, 1

(Fh667,6M17)

Bowling, James 10, 2

Bowlen, Benjamin 4, 1

(Fh100,090a,6A)

1785 Virginia Heads of Families—Stafford County, Virginia
PG. #
NAME


WHITE
BLACK

108
Bolling, Samuel

5
0



108
Bolling, James
`
1
0



James Bolling is listed as head of household (10 people) 1785 in Stafford County, Virginia. (43)  

1785 Stafford County, Virginia Tithables List of inhabitants and buildings--Thomas Bolling (Fh667,6M17), 4 persons. Also James Bolling (UK), Thomas Skinker. (969)(1603,page 191) 1785 Stafford County, Virginia Tithables Personal property tax list--Thomas Bolling (Fh667,6M17) 1 white male >21, 1 horse. James Bolling (UK),  William Bolling (UK). (969)(1603,page 246) James Bolling was on the 1787 census of Stafford County, Virginia with 2 males between 17 and 20, 2 horses and 6 head of cattle. (551) James Bolling is listed on the 1787 Personal Property Tax List of Stafford County, Virginia. He is a white male over 21 and there is two white male 16-21. He had two horses and six cows. Thomas Bolling (Fh667,6M17) and Charles Bolling (UK) were taxed there the same day. (1586) This could be Fh282. 

30-NOVEMBER-1785


Inventory of appraisal of personal estate of Joshua Brown decd. Taken this 30th day of November 1785. Chas. Bowling and Thos. Bowling were purchasers at the estate sale.
Place Index: Prince William, Virginia



Thomas (Fh667, 286a, Rin=49064) r1758-59, r1785 Same Document, r1793



Charles (UK) r1785 Same Document 

SOURCE: Prince William County, Virginia, Deed and Will Abstracts, p. 375-378a, 1780-1786 by Ruth and Sam Sparacio.

1786 Stafford County, Virginia Tithables Personal property tax list proprietors--separate entries: Sarah Ford (maybe later the wife of Thomas Fh667,6M17) (0 wm>21, 2 horses) John Ford (1 wm>21, 1 horse, 2 cattle) Byram Bolling, J. Bolling (1wm>21, 1wm>16, 2 h, 2 c). (969)(1603,page 266)

1787 Stafford County, Virginia Tithables Taxable property within the district of Wm. Alexander,
Commissioner in the County of Stafford--Mar. 17, William Bolling, Mar. 22, Thomas Bolling (Fh667,6M17), James Bolling, Charles Bolling Apr. 4 Simon Bolling, Sen. Wm. Bolling. (969)(1603,page 306) 

1787 Stafford County, Virginia Tithables Personal property tax list--same as above Thos. Bolling (Fh667,6M17) property has 1 male >21, 1 horse, 2 cows. (969)(1603,page 341) 

1787 – Property Tax Rolls--Stafford County, Virginia
Bolling, Charles

0
0
0
1
0
(Fh1563,397b,6N2)

Bolling, James

2
0
0
2
6


Bolling, Mary

0
3
2
0
0

Bolling, Robert Estate
0
10
2
4
4
(maybe 630c,6M)

Bolling, Simon

0
0
0
0
0
(Fh631,6M)

Bolling, Thomas

1
0
0
1
2
(Fh667,6M17)

Bolling, William, Sr.
0
0
0
1
2

Bolling, William

0
0
0
0
0
(183c,6M)

1788 Stafford County, Virginia Tithables Taxable property, district of W. Alexander Apr.5 Samuel Bolling, Thomas Bolling (Fh667,6M17), James Bolling Apr. 14 William Bolling. (969)(1603,page 372)

1788 Stafford County, Virginia Tithables Personal property tax list proprietors--same as above except for absence of William Bolling. Thos. Bolling (Fh667,6M17) has 1 white male >16, 1 horse  Also Christopher Musselman, Robt. Lavender, Joseph Lavender, Thomas Skinker. (969)(1603,page 405)

1789 Stafford County, Virginia Tithables Personal property tax list--Charles Bolling, James
Bolling, Thomas Bolling (Fh667,6M17) (2 wm >16, 1 horse), William Bolling.  Also Christian Musselman, Henry Musselman,  John Lavender Jr., Robt. Lavender, Jos. Lavender, Thomas Skinker. (969)(1603,pages 433 and 467)

1790 Stafford County, Virginia Tithables Personal property tax list--James Bolling, Charles Bolling, Thomas Bolling (Fh667,6M17) (2 wm>16, 7 horses), William Bolling. (969)(1603,pages 492-3)

Thomas Bowling  married 1793 in Stafford County, Virginia, Sarah Ford (1755-1860). (321) 
They had children Daniel James Bowling born 1799 who married Elizabeth Scott, 
Lauiad (Not sure of spelling) born 1803/4 and died 1874, 
Ruth born 1810 and 
Thomas J. Bowling born 1828(?) and died 1875. (321) 
12-MARCH-1793


March Court 1793. Jury in suit of John Newton vs. Thmas Bowling to wit: THOMAS PEYTON, WILLIAM EDWARDS, HENRY PEYTON, HENRY GARRARD, GEORGE BURROUGHS, LEVI ANTRUM, JOHN SUTOR.
SOURCE: Prince William County, Virginia, Deed and Will Abstracts, p. 399, 1780-1786 by Ruth and Sam Sparacio.

January 7, 1809, Deposition of Thomas Bowling (Fh667,6M17) and Lawrence Bowling (Fh4614,6M17).  Webb vs. Young, Fredericksburg Courthouse File #307, May 27, 1809. "Deposition taken at the Columbian Inn in the town of Fredericksburg on the 7th day of January 1809."  Another man deposed that day was John Mannin. Thos. Goodwin was the official. Also Virginia Historical Magazine volume 23.  According to Mildred Musselman, this suit was first instigated in 1801 and continued through 1820. July 5, 1820, Affidavit of Lawrence Bowling in the case of Webb vs. Young. "Lawrence Bowling ....(states) my father died 20 years ago ... that it will be twenty years the day before the ensuing Christmas eve."  File #307, Fredericksburg, Virginia Courthouse. Therefore Lawrence's father died on December 23, 1800 (1799?).  James Bowling (Lawrence's father?  Thomas' father or uncle?) was last on the tax rolls in 1798. (969)

Thomas Bowling died 1810 in Virginia. (321)  Thomas Bowling was in the Revolutionary War.  Thomas Bowling resided in Stafford or King George County, Virginia.  Thomas Bowling married Sarah ----- 1793 in Stafford County, Virginia.  They lived for a time in Spotsylvania County, Virginia.  Thomas Bowling died 1810 in Virginia.  His widow moved to Indiana in 1829 and filed for a pension R.1078 in 1849 at age 84 in Harrison County, Indiana. (91) Indenture March 3, 1801 between Thomas Bowlin and William Richards re land (50 acres) on the East side of Turkey Run in Spotsylvania County, Virginia. (969) "This indenture...between William Richards of Culpeper County, Virginia...and Thomas Bowlin of Spotsylvania County, Virginia....Richards hath granted the farms let unto...Thomas Bowlin...all that lott or parcels of land...bounded as follows...containing 50 acres with appurtenances ...from the 25th day of December for...Thomas Bowlin & Sarah his wife...the first payment thereof to commence on the 25th day of December 1803...." Teste: Robert S. Chewe. (969) The Spotsylvania County, Virginia General Index of Deeds, Release Deeds and Wills Etc. describes the property as: "60 mbTurkey Run adj Wm Smith--for lives said Thos (Fh667,6M17) & Sarah (wife)"  dated March 3 1801, filed September 6 1803. (969) Also on date March 3 1801 and filed the same date, George Bowlin (Fh238) acquired a piece of Richards property described as: "58 mb adj Wm Smith for life sd Wm (did they mean George?) & Fanny (wife)"--(Frances Lavender) (969) Thomas Bowling was in the 1810 Census of Spotsylvania County, Virginia. (349)  Thomas Bowling was in the 1810 Census of Spotsylvania, County, Virginia, with 10 white people and no slaves. (1152) Both Thomas Bowling (Fh667,6M17), my ancestor, and Lawrence Bowling  (Fh4614) witnessed the suit of John and Lucy Webb against Wm. Young in Fredericksburg City, Virginia, Court on June 6, 1794.  In the 1810 Spotsylvania County, Virginia, census, Lawrence Bowling (Fh4614) and George Bowling both lived near Thomas and Sarah Bowling (Fh667,6M17). (969) My father, George A. Bowling, saved a fragment of a letter (in my possession) received by his paternal aunt Beatrice Bowling, starting "Dear Cousin" and telling how things were in Fredericksburg, signed Mary Lou. Mildred Musselman (Source #680) traced this to a Mary Lou Bowling, descendant of Lawrence Bowling (Fh4614). My father told me when I was a child that his father's family was still in touch with relatives left back in Virginia. So the evidence is good, but not incontrovertible that Thomas Bowling (Fh667,6M17) and Lawrence Bowling (Fh4614) were related. (969) Thomas Bolling was on the 1787 census of Stafford County, Virginia, with 1 male between 17 and 20, 1 horse, and 26 head of cattle. (551) Thomas Bolling is listed on the 1787 Personal Property Tax List of Stafford County, Virginia. He is a white male over 21 and there is a white male 16-21. He had one horse and two cows. (1586) Thomas Bowling was born 1735 (?) in Spotsylvania, Virginia.  He married Sarah "Sally" Ford, 1793 in Stafford County, Virginia. Thomas Bowling died 1810 in Spotsylvania, Virginia.  Sarah "Sally" (Ford) Bowling was born about 1763 and died about 1859 in Elizabeth, Harrison County, Indiana. (969) Their daughter Louisa (1804-1874) married 1823 James Arthur Cunningham. (1152)  Sarah (Ford) Bowling gave a 1849 declaration stating she was age 84 and that her husband Thomas Bowling died of Consumption 7 Jan 1810. (1152)  Sarah (Ford) Bowling applied for a widow’s pension on 24 November 1856 (file R1078) stating that she was about 93 years old and that they were married in Stafford County, Virginia, about 63 years ago and that her maiden name was Sarah Ford. (1152) Thomas Bowling (Fh667,6M17) was born sometime between 1755/1760. (969) The father of my Thomas Bowling died Dec. 23 1799 (less likely 1780), presumably in Virginia, but I don't know his name or anything else about him. (969) Thomas Bowling married Sarah Ford (b.abt.1763) in Stafford County, Virginia according to a Revolutionary War Pension Application she filed many years later from Indiana. Thomas Bowling died in Spotsylvania County, Virginia, in 1810/1. Thomas Bowling's widow died in 1859 in Posey Township, southern Indiana, where she, several adult children and a Bowling-surname nephew moved in 1830. She never got the pension. A lot of Stafford County, Virginia, records were burned during the Civil War. In 1980, I got chatty with an elderly librarian in some small library near Fredericksburg, Virginia and it turned out he had two cardboard boxes full of Stafford records which he kept beneath a desk. I had 2 hours, so he let me look at them under eagle-eyed supervision. In my quick run through I found nothing on Bowlings. He intimated that other Stafford material was held in similar small, private ways. (969) A Henry N. Bowling was born 9 June 1816, emigrated to Posey Township, Harrison County, Indiana with Sarah Ford Bowling (wife of Thomas Fh667,6M17) and 4 of her kids around 1829. Henry N. Bowling died there March 16, 1892.   He was said to be a "cousin."  I've never had time to check him out. (969) On January 25, 1849, Sarah (Ford) Bowling, age 84, living in Harrison County, Indiana, applied for a Revolutionary War widows' pension, under the Act of July 7, 1838.

Census: 1820 Spotsylvania County, Virginia
Page No: 66B, Dec 13, 1820
16. Lawrence Bolling   (Fh4614,286c,6M17) 

0 2 1 1 0 1 | 0 0 1 0 1
19. Sally Bolling (widow of Thomas Fh667,286a,6M17)  
0 1 0 1 0 0 | 1 2 0 1 1


Page No: 71A, Dec 13, 1820
12. George Bolling  (Fh238,286b,6M17) 

2 0 0 1 0 1 | 4 2 3 1 0 |
24. Robert Bowling  (Fh561,286d,6M17)

0 0 0 0 1 0 | 2 0 0 1 0 | 0 |

"States she is the widow of Thomas Bowling, who was a private in the Virginia State troops.  She has heard him speak of being in the engagement at the Seige of York and helping guard the prisoners. Has heard him speak of Col. Skinker and Capt. William Bombray (Bunbury?). Where her husband resided when he entered service she cannot state. She is of the opinion that he resided either in Stafford County or King George County Virginia. She thinks he served one tour being drafted and one as a substitute"..."the record of her marriage ...is in Stafford County Virginia....she was married 22 November 1793 by license issued from Stafford County Va...She frequently heard her husband speak of his discharge being washed to pieces in his pocket previous to their marriage....Thomas Bowling died 7th January 1810." Fielding Cromwell assoc. judge HC

On the same date was the deposition of James Giles, taken at Sarah Bowling's residence before John Tabler, a Justice of the Peace of Harrison County. He said "that he is well acquainted with Thomas Bowling and Sarah Bowling his wife when they resided in the state of Virginia in Spotsylvania County. He has frequently heard Thomas Bowling and others speak of his being in the Revolutionary War, and he never heard it disputed....(he) has frequently been at their house when they resided in...Virginia....after the death of Thomas Bowling I was well acquainted with his widow Sarah Bowling...the widow...emigrated to Indiana in the year of 1829 and I have been well acquainted with her ever since."

Nov. 24 1856
Harrison County IN

"I, Sarah Bowling aged from my best information about 93 years ...was married to said Thomas Bowling in Stafford County Virginia about 63 years ago by one (illegible) McFarland, a Minister, and my name before said marriage was Sarah Ford....I make this declaration for the purpose of applying for and receiving the benefit of the Bounty Land Act of March 3, 1855."
Witnesses: Zachius B. Cooper N.P.
                Thomas J. Bowling  (son)

4/17/1858
Bounty Land claim #264.321

"Mrs. Sarah Bowling...the old lady is very anxious to know whether she will get anything or not as she is very old and needs all she can get...Please...inform me so that I will know what to do.
Zachius B. Cooper
Elizabeth (IN)

10/6/1859
Harrison County Indiana
"I, Sarah Bowling...widow of Thomas Bowling...who was engaged in military service of the United States in the War of the Revolution...My ...husband...died in Virginia in year 1811 and left me a widow.  I do not
know my age exactly...I am upwards of 90, perhaps some years over that...I could write my name in my younger days, but now on account of partial loss of eyesight and other infirmities of age I have to make my X.  I make this declaration for the purpose of...receiving the benefit of the Bounty Land Act of March 3 1855 and May 14 1856.  C.H. Barkley of Louisville Kentucky is hereby appointed my attorney in the behalf.

Witnesses: Daniel J. Bowling
                Thomas J. Bowling

Sarah never received anything, so far as I know. Her name does not appear in the 1860 Harrison County Census. My grandfather (her great-grandson was born 6 years later). (969) Sarah Bowling is age 80, born Virginia, in the 1850 Census of Harrison County, Indiana. She is in the household of James Evans. (1155) My Thomas Bowling (Fh667,6M17) married Sarah "Sally" Ford in Stafford County, Virginia in 1793, according to a deposition Sarah made many years later. There is also a Thomas on the Stafford County tax rolls in 1790, which I thought was my Thomas, but don't know for certain. (969) Your ancestor Lawrence (Fh4614,6M17) and mine Thomas (Fh667,6M17) (bc1755-1810) are clearly related somehow. Lawrence and Thomas signed a number of documents together in the late 1790s/early 1800s, and had descendants in the 1930s who addressed letters to each other (one in my possession) referring to each other as cousins. So my guess is that Thomas and Lawrence were either brothers or first cousins. According to property and census records, they lived fairly close to each other in Stafford County, Virginia. Thomas died about 1811 in VA. His wife Sarah and several adult children with their families emigrated to southern Indiana in the 1830s. Lawrence and his family stayed in Virginia.  He died between 1830-40 in Spotsylvania County, Virginia. Lawrence had a lot of descendants, some of whom changed the spelling to Bolling, many of whom still live in Virginia. I imagine there were a lot of Confederate vets in there, too. I know my family in Indiana were terribly worried about the cousins in Fredericksburg during the war. Southern Indiana folks in general were very South-oriented, ended up being Copperheads—lived in the North, sympathized with the South. (969) Some of the children of my Thomas (Fh667, 6M17) traveled to Indiana in the 1830s with their (probable cousin) Henry Bowling. (969)

1860 Census Posey Township, Elizabeth, Harrison County, IN 15 jun 1860 Pg 35

Living with her son and his family (Thomas J. Bowling 1808-1879).

Name Sarah Bowling 

Age 96 

Birth Year abt 1764 

Gender Female 

Birth Place Virginia 

Home in 1860 Posey, Harrison, Indiana 

Post Office Elizabeth 

Family Number 244 

Household Members Name Age 


Thomas J Bowling 52 


Elizabeth Bowling 43 


Daniel J Bowling 25 


Sarah A Bowling 21 


Mary E Bowling 17 


George T Bowling 14 


Louis C Bowling 11 


Louisa Bowling 5 


Martha J Bowling 2 


Sarah Bowling 96 

++++++++++

In a message dated 10/19/2016 6:54:18 P.M. Central Daylight Time, sueacuff@gmail.com writes:

"brother of Thomas Bowling--Benjamin Bolling 1754-1819 m Sarah Sally Hancock"

 

Sue Acuff:

 

I made the additions and changes. Thanks. 

 

The Benjamin who married Sarah Sally Hancock is Fh120 who I have in Family S. There are a lot of male descendants of his all DNA 6. 

 

With Thomas being his brother that ties Family String M17 DNA 6 and String S DNA 6.

6M17 Fh667,286x
 
Thomas Bolling is listed as head of household (4 people) 1785 in Stafford County, Virginia. (43)  

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

Thomas Fh669 (6M1) 516e
-----------------

Thomas bc1700-d>1769 (Rin=57934)/m     ----- -----Was Head of String 6M1—His father was Robert #516 (Rin=46246) Now Head of String 6M1

a
Elizabeth/m     John Jones (b)

a
James bc1730-d>1776 (b)(Rin=51344)/m     ----- ----- --See Family Group #268


a
Children per Source #824


(b)
In Rev. War so d>1776

Birth, Parents, Lineage

Thomas Bolling/Bowling/Bolen was born about 1700. He might have been the son of John (sic). (824) 
Lines of Descent from: 


Simon Fh629 BOWLING-

45539 b.1620     


Robert Fh516 6M19 BOWLING-
46246 b.1668


Thomas Fh669 6M1 BOWLING-
57934 b.1707

Children

See his family group for children. (824) 
a.
Daughter Elizabeth married John Jones who served in the American Revolutionary War with her brother James 
(Fh268,669x). (824) 
b.
James (Fh268.669x). (824) His son Thomas Bolin (Fh730, 268x, 6M1) born January 12, 1766 Orange County, North 
Carolina, mentions an uncle John Jones. (1155) Thomas Bolin (Fh730,1766-1851), North Carolina Line, Application 14 Nov 
1832 Perry County, Indiana, aged 66, lived in Wilkes County, North Carolina at enlistment, soldier was born Orange (now 
Caswell) County, North Carolina, on 12 Jan 1766, soldier mentioned an uncle John Jones. (1155) 
Since then I've found a few items that might be of interest: 

Nathaniel Jones Will - Westmoreland County, Virginia.

Item, I give and bequeath to my son John Jones that ... and parcel of land whereon he now lives and John Franklin formerly lived .....

In witness of all and every the above recited .. I have hereinto .. my hand and seal this 20th day of January 1753. 

His mark, Nathaniel Jones Signed Sealed and published in presence of Thomas Clifton, William Bonlinson (Bolling?) Sr., Benjamin Thomas, James Rowlin (Bowlin?), William B(?) his mark.

Westmoreland Sct: At a court held for the said county the 26th day of March 1754 This last will and testament of Nathl Jones died .. into Court by CALVERT JONES one of the Ecrs therein named who made oath of the sums and being duly proved by the Oath of William Bolling Sr. (UK), James Boling (probably Fh268) and William Bolling (UK) ... three of the witnesses thereto subscribed is admitted to record, and upon the .. of the said Exor and his performing what the law in such cases require certificate is granted him for obtaining a probate thereof in due form Test: George Lee, C. C. W.

Recorded the 20th day of April 1754 (1155)

Movement

Thomas Bolom was on the 1769 tax list of Granville County, North Carolina. (7)

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

Thomas Fh673 (6K) 627x
-----------------

Thomas b1780-1790-d>1840 (Rin=54060)/m1808 Rachel Carr (b1790-1800-d>1830)--His father Simms #627.

*
Male 1 b1815-1820 
(Could be Daniel bc1813)

*
Female 1 b1815-1820


*
Male 2 b1820-1825 
(Could be William S. b1821)


*
Female 2 b1820-1825


*a
Female 3 b1825-1830

  ab
Female 4 b1825-1830 
(Probably Patsey b1831 KY)


  ab
Male 3 b1830-1835 
(Probably James b1833 KY)

*
Thomas Bowlin is in the 1830 Census of Gallatin County, KY, Males 0 1 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 




and Females 1 1 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.


a
Thomas Bowling is in the 1840 Census of Carroll County, KY, Males 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0


and Females 0 0 2 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0.

b
1850 Census of Carroll County, Kentucky, family of Anny/Amy Bowling, age 58, born in 




Kentucky; Patsey age 19 born KY; and James age 17 born KY. (1155)  
Birth, Parents, Lineage

Thomas Bowlin was born 1780-1790 based on the 1830 Census. Thomas Bowling was born 1770-1780 based on the 1840 Census. (7) 
Thomas Bowlin is in the 1830 Census of Gallatin County, Kentucky, “lives above the Kentucky River”,  Males 0 1 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 and females 1 1 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0. therefore:

1 male 40-50 (b1780-1790)

1 male 10-15

1 male 5-10 

1 female 30- 40,  (b1790-1800)

1 female 10-15, 

1 female 5-10, and 

1 female under 5.  

5 Slaves. (1155)

Thomas Bowling is in the 1840 Census of Carroll County, KY, Males 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0

and Females 0 0 2 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0. The oldest male would be 60-under 70. (Anestry.com)

In that same 1850 Census of Carroll County, Kentucky as Turner Bowling (Fh7381) is the family of Anny/Amy Bowling, age 58, born in Kentucky; Patsey age 19 born KY; and James age 17 born KY. (Probably Fh673) (1155)  

Marriage and Children
Thomas Bowling married 1808 Rachel Carr, Shelby County, Kentucky. (1157) 

Children from above:
a.
Daniel bc1813, ,maybe had a sister Paulina, he r1880 (Census, wife Susan)
b.
Female 1 b1815-1820

c.
William S. b1821 Carroll, KY- m1849 (1/w Mary F. Irwin or Mary Emory d1851-2)--later Knox, MO. d1903 Missouri, 
d.
Female 2 b1820-1825

e.
Female 3 b1825-1830

f.
Female 4 b1825-1830 
(Probably Patsey b1831 KY)

g.
Male 3 b1830-1835 
(Probably James b1833 KY)

From Place Index:

Carroll,KY-created 1838 from Gallatin, Henry and Trimble


6K
Amy (maybe widow of Thomas Fh673 below) r1850(Census,age 58 KY)



6K
Ann (widow of Turner Fh7381) r1850(Census,age54)


6K
Barbara (Widow of George Fh237,009b) d>1838


6K
Catharine (bc1813, widow of George 441b) r1880 (Census, with son W.M. Bowling)


6K
Daniel (maybe 673a, bc1813,maybe a sister Paulina) r1880 (Census, wife Susan)


6K
George (Fh237,746b) r1805—part that was Gallatin prior



George W. (441b,b1804) r1840(Census 8 in household, 4 males, 4 females),d1857—part that was Gallatin prior



John (b1810-1820,could be 781e or 26e) r1840(Census age  20-30)


6K
Thomas (Fh673 son of Sims Fh627) r1840(Census,age 60-70)—part that was Gallatin prior


6K
Turner (Fh7381,441c) r1840(Census age 40-50) ,d<1850—part that was Gallatin prior


6K
William S. (maybe 673c,1821KY-1903MO) m1849 (1/w Mary F. Irwin or Mary Emory d1851-2)--later Knox, MO.

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

Thomas Fh680 (6A) 450x
-----------------

Thomas 1710-<1754 (Rin=44916)/m1729 Rachel Colclough d>1748—His father was Joseph #450 (Rin=53942) 

ab d
Priscilla b 7 Mar 1731/32/m1760 Thomas Phillips


  b d
Rachael b< 1734/m1750/1 Joseph Doody, probably Moody 


a   d
Stephen b 26 Jan 1738/39--probably died young. Not in grandmother's will Dec 19,1748.


   cd
William b 25 Nov 1754 (sic, seems too late)

a
Births in the register of St. Paul's Parish per Source #46


b
Marriage in the register of St. Paul's Parish per Source #46


c
Son per source #1518


d
Children per Source #2111

Birth, Parents, Lineage

Thomas Bowling was born before 1709 in St. Paul's Parish, Stafford County, Virginia. (2111) 

Marriage and Children

Thomas Bowling married Rachel Colclough 1729 in St. Paul's parish Stafford County, Virginia. Rachel Colclough was born before 1713 in St Paul's Parish, "Chotank" Stafford County, Virginia. (2111) ------ Bowline married 1729 Rachel Colelough in King George County (present day), Virginia. (814) Racheal Colclough was the daughter of Benjamin and Racheal Colclough of Stafford County, Virginia.  (352) Thomas Bowling married Rachel Colclough 1729 in St. Paul's parish Stafford County, Virginia. St. Paul's register. Marriage: Thomas Bowling and Rachel Colclough, Nov. 11, 1729 (Fh680). (46)(492)(1159)   
Thomas and Rachel (Colclough) Bowling had children: 

a.
Priscilla born 1731/32/. (46)(492) Daughter Priscilla Bowling was born March 7, 1731/32 (old style). (2111) Priscilla, 
daughter of Thomas and Rachel Bowling, born March 7, 1731/2. (46)(492)(1159) Priscilla Bolling (sic) had a King George 
County, Virginia, marriage record about 1760 and a record in Stafford County, Virginia, in the 
St. Paul’s Register. (2054) 
Priscilla Bolling married Thomas Phillips, Apr. 13, 1760 (680a) (46)(492)(1159)  

b.
Rachel Bowling was born before 1734. She married Joseph Doody. (2111) Rachel Bowling married Joseph Doody (Moody?), 
Feb. 13, 1750/1 (680b). (46)(492)(1159) 

c.
Stephen Bowling was born January 26, 1738/39 (old style). (2111) Stephen was born 1738/39. (46)(492) Stephen, son of 
Thomas and Rachel Bowling, was born Jan. 26, 1738/9. (46)(492)(1159) Stephen Bowling was born 1738/39 in Stafford 
(later King George County), Virginia, the son of Thomas and Rachel (Colclough) Bowling. (46)

d.
William Bowling was born November 25, 1754. (2111) William Bowling was born 1754 in St. Paul Parish, Stafford County, 
Virginia, the son of Rachel Bowling.  No father was listed as was done in most cases. (492)  William Bowling was born 1754 
in Stafford County, Virginia, the son of Rachel Bowling. (46)  William Bolling Sr. was on the 1787 census of Stafford 
County, Virginia, with  1 horse, and 6 head of cattle. (This could be William 680d) (551)

Thomas 1710-<1754 (Fh680, Rin=44916)/m1729 Rachel Colclough d>1748—His father was Joseph #450 (Rin=53942) 


ab d
Priscilla b 7 Mar 1731/32/m1760 Thomas Phillips


  b d
Rachael b< 1734/m1750/1 Joseph Doody, probably Moody 


a   d
Stephen b 26 Jan 1738/39--probably died young. Not in grandmother's will Dec 19,1748.


   cd
William b 25 Nov 1754 


a
Births in the register of St. Paul's Parish per Source #46


b
Marriage in the register of St. Paul's Parish per Source #46


c
Son per source #1518


d
Children per Source #2111

Thomas and Rachel (Colclough) Bowling may have had daughters Rachel and Priscella (or perhaps Rachel and Priscella were daughters of Elizabeth (Colclough) Bowling (Fh746)). (1159) William Bowling (Fh746) who married Elizabeth Colclough had a brother named Thomas Bowling (Fh680) who married Rachel Colclough. (you can find this listed on the Colclough Family information on the web) Two Bowling Brothers married Colclough sisters in Stafford County VA. Thomas and Rachel (Fh680) had a son whom they named William. (1518) Thomas Bowlin (Fh680) along with Samuel Bowlin (Fh590) and many others are mentioned as buying stuff in the estate settlement of Thomas Hooper, 1731, Stafford County, Virginia. Page 13 of source and pages 41-43 of Stafford County, Virginia, Will Book M. (1610). Rachel (Colclough) Bowling’s mother, Racheal Colclough, in her 1748 will, left a crop of tobacco to her daughter Rachael, Eliaz. Bowling, and granddaughter Jane De Bolling, not of age.  Also in the will was "to daughter Elizabeth Bowling, a Negro, then to her son John Bowling, his brother Alexander Bowling and brother Sim Bowling". (352) Stafford County, Virginia, wills, Liber O, 1748-1767: Rachael Colclough.  Will made 19 December 1748; recorded 14 Feb 1748/49;  my lands in Fairfax County, Virginia,  to be equally divided between my Sons Robert Colclough and William Colclough.  Daughter Elizabeth Bowling (wife of William Fh746), her Son John Bowling, Alex Bowling, Sim Bowling. Her Daughter Sarah Kidwell and her Son William Kidwell;  Daughter Rachael Thornbury, Children Rachael, Jane & Priscilla.  Daughter Jane Newton;  Daughter Margaret Durham; Grandson, Alexander Colclough, Son of Robert;  Granddaughter Jane de Bell; Sons Robert and William Colclough, and Samuel Thornbury Executors. (1414) Racheal Colclough, in her 1748 will, "Item I give unto my Daughter Rachael Bowling the feather bed & furniture that belongs to It whereon her Children lays on & Six head of Cattle & all my hogs & Six barrels of Indian Corn." (1594) Racheal Colclough, in her 1748 will, "Item I give unto my Daughter Mary Thornbury the remainder of my Cattle after Rachael Bowling Junr & Priscilla Bowling has a heiffer apiece. " (1594) Racheal Colclough, in her 1748 will, "Item My will & desire Is that five of the best of my pewter Dishes & one Dozen of Pewter plates be Equally divided between my Daughters Mary Thornbury, Rachael Bowling and Jane Newton." (1594) Racheal Colclough, in her 1748 will, "Item I give unto Rachael Bowling one bay horse called Spark." (1594) Racheal Colclough, in her 1748 will, "Item My will & desire Is that after my just debts are paid my Crop of Tobo be Equally divided between my Daughters Mary Thornbury, Rachael Bowling, Eliza Bowling, Jane Newton & Margret Durham. Item I give unto my Grand Daughter Jane DeBell one negro boy named Anthony To her & her heirs. Item my will & desire is that the said Negro boy be in the care of my Daughter Rachael Bowling while the said Jane DeBell come of Age or married & If she died without heir to return to William Colclough." (1594) Racheal Colclough, in her 1748 will, "Item I give unto Rachael Bowling all the rest of my Estate on the plantation." (1594) Thomas Bowling (maybe Fh680,450c,6A), of Pignutt, was a purchaser at the Dumfries Store, run by John Glassford and Company. The store was in Prince William County, Virginia, 1758-59. (1757)  The following doesn't appear right. Rachael Jane Colclough daughter of  Benjamin and Rachael Colclough was born 1720 in St. Paul's Parrish, Strafford County, Virginia. She married Thomas (De) Bowling, October 29, 1740.(1463)

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

Thomas Fh730 (6M1) 268x
-----------------

Thomas 1766-1851 (Rin=51271,LT3P-CWM)/mc1787 Nancy Anne White (1767-1852)—His father was James #268 (Rin=51344). 
Thomas had an uncle John Jones (see Elizabeth 669a).



Thomas is FAG=5093143




Descendant Kit 25816 tested into DNA 6




Descendant Kit 520118 tested into DNA 6


*ab
James b1788-1863(Rin=51267)/1/w m1814 Ester Voyles, 2/w m1820 Rebecca Kinder--See Family
Group #259


*ab
Christopher b1791-1876/m1819 Nancy Gibson



Jessee 1792-1873/m1819 Jemima Kennedy—See Family Group #347


*ab
William b1795 (Rin=51304)/m1818/19 Widow Charity (Kindler) Sandage/m1822 Elizabeth ------ 
-See Family Group
#924


*abd
Elliot b1799 (Rin=51303)/1/w m1820 Jenny Mercer,2/w m1836 Jane Leffler—See Family Group 




#2284—Kit 2800 tested into DNA Group 6

*ab
John Thomas b1803-1903/m1830 Mary “Polly” Elizabeth Manley


*abd
Alexander 1806-1895/m     Jane Leffler—Kit 25816 Tested into DNA Group 6


*a
Mahana b1808/m1827 David Reed, 2/h m1838 William Van Pelt


*a
Sarah "Sally" b1810 /m1827 Ephraim Reed


  a
Sebrem 1812-1901/m1849 Nancy Davidson Cavender



Peter Finney b.1816 IN/m        Elizabeth Persinger bc1823 VA—Kit 520118 Tested into DNA 6


Jane/m1825 Thomas Goldsmith

*
Children with “other children” per Source #1155 (Harley Tucker Bowling)

a
Children per Source #1741 (Elsie Bolin)

b
Thomas Bolin was in Elizabethtown, Hardin County, KY, in 1810, 22210,  21110. (1546)

c
Thomas Bolin was in the Perry County, Indiana, in 1820 males 110011, females 23001. 




(HeritageQuest.com)

d
Elsie has Alexander Bolin (730h) and Elliot Bolin (Fh 2284 730d) as sons of Thomas Fh730 I strongly believe that 


they are the same person either Elliot Alexander or Alexander Elliot. Sometimes he went by Elliot and sometimes he 


went by Alexander. (2175)

Birth, Parents, Lineage

Thomas Bolin was born 1766. (248) Thomas Bolin was born 12 January 1766, Orange County, North Carolina. (1741) I believe that Thomas Bolin born January 12, 1766 in Orange County, North Carolina, was the son of James Bowling, Fh268. (824) Thomas Bolin was born 1766 in Orange County, North Carolina. (7)(20)(1155) Thomas Bolin (Fh730, 268x, 6M1) was born January 12, 1766 Orange County, North Carolina, mentions an uncle John Jones. (1155) Thomas Bolin (Fh730,1766-1851), North Carolina Line, Application 14 Nov 1832 Perry County, Indiana, aged 66, lived in Wilkes County, North Carolina at enlistment, soldier was born Orange (now Caswell) County, North Carolina, on 12 Jan 1766, soldier mentioned an uncle John Jones. (1155) 

Marriage and Children

Thomas Bolin married 1786. (1741) Thomas Bolin married Nancy -----. (7)  
They had children: 

a.
James born 1788 in Kentucky Fh259; 

b.
Christopher. Christopher Bolin was the son of Thomas and Nancy (-----) Bolin.  He married 1819 Nancy Gilson in Perry 
County, Indiana.  (7)  Christopher Bolin married 1819 Nancy Gibson in Perry County, Indiana. (1212)

c.
Jessee Fh347

d.
William Fh924; 

e.
Ellitt Fh2284; 

f.
John Thomas;
g.
Alexander born about 1806 in Kentucky and other children. (7)(1155). 
h.
Mahana;

i.
Sarah "Sally"; 

j.
Sebern. Sebern Bolin, Thomas Bolins, is in this 1880 Perry County, Indiana Census record:


Household:
 
Sebern BOLIN
M
Male
63
IN 
Works On Farm 

 
M. Jane BOLIN
M
Female
43
NC
Keeping House 

 
William BOLIN
S
Male
14
IN   

 
Wyatt BOLIN
S
Male
12
IN   

 
Johathan BOLIN
S
Male
11
IN   

 
Leslie BOLIN
S
Male
3
IN   


Source Information: Troy, Perry, Indiana
Elsie Bolin (Source 1741) has Alexander Bolin (730h) and Elliot Bolin (Fh 2284 730d) as sons of Thomas Fh730 I strongly believe that they are the same person either Elliot Alexander or Alexander Elliot. Sometimes he went by Elliot and sometimes he went by Alexander. I can send you information as why I believe this if you want it. (2175)
A Jane Bolin, with a father Thomas, married October 27, 1825 Thomas Goldsmith, in Hardin County, Kentucky. (1680)(1864)(2009)
Military

Thomas Bolin was a private from North Carolina in the Revolutionary War. Thomas Bolin received a pension. Thomas Boling was in a North Carolina Regiment under Col. Thomas Clarke during the Revolutionary War. Thomas Boling was paid November 15, 1783, $76.60 under certificate #91275. (580) Certificate #91275, to Regiment under Col. Thomas Clarke, North Carolina, paid to November 15, 1783, Thomas Boling $76.60. (1996, Page 55) I have National Archives Records of Thomas Bolin (Fh730) enlisted in Wilkes County North Carolina, 1782. Marched to Charleston under Captain Lacotes and Major Franklin. There he joined Captain Lytle's Company, Colonel Lytle's North Carolina regiment. After the British left Charleston Thomas Bolin went to James Island in the Charleston Bay and was in camp there for more than a year. Thomas Bolin was taken sick and was sent home on furlough and he stated that he served nearly the whole time for which he enlisted. Thomas Bolin was allowed a pension 14 November 1832 in Perry County, Indiana. Thomas Bolin Certificate No. 22170 Issued 15 Oct.1833 rate 60 dollars Per Annum comments 04 March 1831. There was more than one Thomas Bolins in Hardin County, Kentucky at the same time. (1741)

Series: M805 Roll: 102 Image: 403 File: S32126
   
Bolin, Thomas NC
Application for pension filed in Perry County Indiana 14 Nov 1832, where he personally appeared before the court. He states he is a resident of Perry County and is aged 66, born 12th day of January, 1766 in Orange County, North Carolina, since called Caswell County. He said he saw this proof of his age once in the bible of John Jones' who was his uncle. (He gave no other relatives information.)
   
He entered the service of the United States sometime in the year 1781-82, where he resided in Wilks County North Carolina. There was a draught ordered in that section of the Country of one man from each Captain's Company and that he enlisted as a substitute for a term of 18 months and he marched from Wilks County under command of Captain Lacotes and Major Hill to about 10 miles from Charlestown in South Carolina to the encampment of General Nathaniel Green's Army and that he stayed until the British Army left Charleston...went to James Island in Charleston Bay and stayed more than a year and sometime in month of August year (left blank) was taken sick. Transported in a vessel called a Brig to Wilmington North Carolina. Stayed in Wilmington two or three weeks and continued sick. Took a furlough to return home to Wilks County. Got home last of September or first part of October. Never returned to service due to a Treaty of Peace. Served the whole time in Col. Lytle's Regiment.
Believes Col. Lytle belonged in Hillsborough North Carolina.
   
Witnesses: George Ewing and Samuel Frisbie. (1414)
Thomas Bolin served in the Wilkes County, North Carolina, militia in 1781. He drew his pension in Perry County, Indiana, in 1832. (824) Thomas Bolin (Fh730) born January 12, 1766 Orange County, North Carolina, mentions an uncle John Jones. (1155) Thomas Bolin (Fh730), 32126, North Carolina Line, Application 14 Nov 1832 Perry County, Indiana, aged 66, lived in Wilkes County, North Carolina at enlistment, soldier was born Orange (now Caswell) County, North Carolina, on 12 Jan 1766, soldier mentioned an uncle John Jones. (1155) Since then I've found a few items that might be of interest: 

Nathaniel Jones Will - Westmoreland County, Virginia.

 

Item, I give and bequeath to my son John Jones that ... and parcel of land whereon he now lives and John Franklin formerly lived .....

 

In witness of all and every the above recited .. I have hereinto .. my hand and seal this 20th day of January 1753. 

 

His mark, Nathaniel Jones Signed Sealed and published in presence of Thomas Clifton, William Bonlinson (Bolling?) Sr., Benjamin Thomas, James Rowlin (Bowlin?), William B(?) his mark.

 

Westmoreland Sct: At a court held for the said county the 26th day of March 1754 This last will and testament of Nathl Jones died .. into Court by Calvert Jones one of the Ecrs therein named who made oath of the sums and being duly proved by the Oath of William Bolling Sr. (UK), James Boling (UK) and William Bolling (UK) ... three of the witnesses thereto subscribed is admitted to record, and upon the .. of the said Exor and his performing what the law in such cases require certificate is granted him for obtaining a probate thereof in due form Test: George Lee, C. C. W.

Recorded the 20th day of April 1754 (1155)

Wilkes County, North Carolina. Court Records. 2 November 1788 Thomas Boling is on the jury to view brydle way. (2175) Wilkes County, North Carolina. Court Records. 3 May 1797 Ord. cert. issue to William Demoss bring up proceedings in suit Thomas Bowen vs Joshua Howard and notice issue Surry County to Pltf, appear next court (I don't know if this is Thomas Bolin (Fh730) or not but a Joshua Howard was on the jury to view brydle way with Thomas in 1788. (2175)

William Bowlin Sr. (his mark), William Bowlin Jr. (his mark) and James Bowlin were witnesses to the will of Nathaniel  Jones, dated January 20, 1753. The will was entered into the court in Westmoreland County, Virginia, November 26, 1754 and recorded April 20, 1754. (1630) William Bowling, his mark, along with Thomas Clark, Richard Vowles, Andrew Thompson, and William Hutcherson witnessed a deed 1755, between Job Popham and William Berryman, Westmoreland County, Virginia. (1630) William Bowling had an inventory dated 1762 in Westmoreland County, Virginia. (35) Mar 24, 1754 (Oath) Will of Nathaniel Jones, Westmoreland County, Virginia, the following names appeared: William Bowling, Sr., William Bowling, James Bowling. (1414) In the Name of God Amen I Nathaniel Jones of the County of Westmoreland Item I make ? appoint my beloved wife Sarah Howson Jones and my son Calvert John executors and executor of this my last will and testament. In witness of all and every the above recited ?? I have herinto ? my hand and seal this 20th day of January 1753. His Mark, Nathaniel N. Jones Signed Sealed and published in presence of Thomas Clifton, William Bonlinson (his mark), Benjamin Thomas, James Rowlin(?), William B(?) his mark. Westmoreland Sct: At a court held for the said county the 26th day of March 1754 This last will and testament of Nathl Jones died ?? into Court by Calvert Jones one of the Ecrs therein named who made oath of the sums and being duly proved by the Oath of William Bolling Sen, James Boling and William Bolling, Justice Three of the witnesses thereto subscribed is admitted to record, and upon the ? of the said Exor and his performing what the law in such cases require certificate is granted him for obtaining a probate thereof in due form. Test: George Lee, C.C.W. Recorded the 20th day of April 1754. (1414) Thomas Bolin (Fh730) born January 12, 1766 Orange County, North Carolina, mentions an uncle John Jones. (1155) Thomas Bolin, 32126, North Carolina Line, Application 14 Nov 1832 Perry County, Indiana, aged 66, lived in Wilkes County, North Carolina at enlistment, soldier was born Orange (now Caswell) County, North Carolina, on 12 Jan 1766, soldier mentioned an uncle John Jones. (1155) Since then I've found a few items that might be of interest: 

Nathaniel Jones Will - Westmoreland County, Virginia.

 

Item, I give and bequeath to my son John Jones that ... and parcel of land whereon he now lives and John Franklin formerly lived .....

 

In witness of all and every the above recited .. I have hereinto .. my hand and seal this 20th day of January 1753. 

 

His mark, Nathaniel Jones Signed Sealed and published in presence of Thomas Clifton, William Bonlinson (Bolling?) Sr., Benjamin Thomas, James Rowlin (Bowlin?), William B(?) his mark.

 

Westmoreland Sct: At a court held for the said county the 26th day of March 1754 This last will and testament of Nathl Jones died .. into Court by CALVERT JONES one of the Ecrs therein named who made oath of the sums and being duly proved by the Oath of William Bolling Sr. (UK), James Boling (UK) and William Bolling (UK) ... three of the witnesses thereto subscribed is admitted to record, and upon the .. of the said Exor and his performing what the law in such cases require certificate is granted him for obtaining a probate thereof in due form Test: George Lee, C. C. W.

Recorded the 20th day of April 1754 (1155)

Thomas Bolen was in Caswell County, North Carolina, in 1800 in household 718 with 00010-00000-03. (9) Caswell County, North Carolina - Marriages, Jesse Harper married 6-9-1813 Ann Cox. Bondsman: Robert Carter & Thomas Bouldin (Fh730). (1155)

Movement-Kentucky

Thomas Bolin was in Elizabethtown, Hardin County, Kentucky, in 1810 on page 285, line 25, with males 2-2-2-1-0, females 2-1-1-1-0. Samuel Wells was his next neighbor. (1546)(HeritageQuest.com) Thomas Bolin was in Hardin County, Kentucky, in 1810 on page 285 with 22210-21110-00. 

Males:

2
0-9
b>1800-<1810
(probably John Thomas b1803, Alexander b1806)

2
10-15
b>1794-<1800
(probably William b1795, Elliot b1799)

2
16-25
b>1785-<1794
(probably Christopher b1791, James b1788)

1
26-44
b>1765-<1784
(Head of Household Thomas b1766)

0
Over 45

Source 1504 Hardin County, Kentucky 1810 Census

http://ftp.rootsweb.com/pub/usgenweb/ky/hardin/census/1810/

Head of Household


Males
Males
Males
Males
Males

Page #
Line #
Last Name
First Name
0-9
10to15
16-25
26-44
45+ 

285
25
Bolin

Thos.

2
2
2
1
0

287
7
Bolin

Jona.

2
1
1
1
0

291
14
Bowling

Garrard

2
0
1
0
0

299
16
Bowling

Wm.

1
0
0
1
0

299
6
Lincoln

Thomas

1
0
0
1
0







1-This would be Abraham Lincoln

In that same census on page 287 was a Jonathan Bolin (Fh4475). (2)(9)(1504)  

Thomas Bowlin/Bolin was on the tax list of Hardin County, Kentucky, beginning in 1810 through 1812. (1863) 

Movement-Indiana

About 1815 Thomas Bolin along with Ellet Bolin and William Bolin moved from Kentucky to Perry County, Indiana. (7) 3-August-1818 Thomas Bolin (Fh730) and John Bolin (UK) voted in Tobin Twp, Perry County Indiana election. I'm not sure if this John is a son or maybe a brother I don't think it is a father of Thomas I didn't see a John on the Indiana 1820 census. (2175) Thomas Bolin was in the Perry County, Indiana, in 1820 males 110011, females 23001. (HeritageQuest.com) Thomas Bowlen was in the 1830 U.S. Census of Perry County, Indiana. (7)

Death

Thomas Bolin died 1851. (248)(198)(FAG=5093143) Thomas Bolin died after 1851 in Indiana. (20) Thomas died 1851 in Perry County, Indiana. (7) Thomas Bolin had a Revolutionary War pension S.32126 resident Perry County, Indiana, 1832. Thomas Bolin enlisted while a resident of Wilkes County, North Carolina, in 1781 or 1782. Thomas Bolin was born 1766 in Orange County, North Carolina, part that later became Caswell County, North Carolina. (179) Thomas Boling et al on list of men to view a bridle path from Thomas Robbins to foot mountain at the head of Elk Creek thence to Jesse Consules on New River dated Nov 1, 1788. (7) Thomas Bolin was an early settler of Perry County, Indiana. Thomas Bolin hailed from North Carolina. (976) Thomas Bolin according to pension file S32126, application 1832 Perry County, Indiana, age 66, born in Orange (now Caswell) County, North Carolina, 12 Jan 1766. Lived in Wilkes County, North Carolina, at enlistment. Soldier mentioned an uncle John Jones. (1073)(1155) Thomas Bolin is in the 1850 Census of Anderson Township, Perry County, Indiana, as age 88, born North Carolina and blind; wife Nancy age 83 born North Carolina. (1155) Thomas Bowlin was on an 1840 Census of Pensioners for Revolutionary Service, age 77, Perry County, Indiana. (8) Thomas Bolin's age was listed in family bible possessed by his uncle John Jones. (824) 

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

Thomas Fh733 (6T) 002x
-----------------

Thomas Colton 1793/98-1864 (Rin=46252, FAG=29259017)/Lydia "Liddie" Sheffield (1797-1879)--His father was James Fh002

A descendant kit 13529 tested into DNA 6


A 12/12 match with Kit #3301, Kit #58512, Kit #10875, Kit #138006


  b
Rhoda 1820-1864/m1837 Drury Humphries (1811-d>1880)

ab
Priscilla 1825-1899/m1847 Henry Washington


  b
Isham b1828-d<1864/m1849 Martha Jane Shebert



Joshua b1828



Logan b1828



Martha b1829


  b
John J. 1830-1893/Martha Jane Clement


ab
Robert A. 1833-18924/m1856 Charlotte Nickols


ab
William L. 1836-d1861/m1858 Sarah Ann Ross


ab
Lafayette 1836-1916/m1857 Emily Montgomery


Stephen b1838    


ab
Thomas Cotton Jr. 1841-1862/Sarah/Sara Treece 


ab
James K. Polk 1844-1863

a
Children per Source #610

 
b
Children per Sources #1357, #1480 and #2057.
Birth, Parents, Lineage

Thomas Bowlin was born in 1793 or 1798 in North Carolina. (610) A descendant kit 13529 tested into DNA 6. Thomas C. Bowlin was born in Moore County, North Carolina, near Montgomery and Mecklenburg, in 1793 (from IGI, parents unknown). (698)

Marriage and Children

Thomas Bowlin  married Lydia -----. (610) Thomas Colton Bowlin married Lydia Sheffield. (1357) Lydia Sheffield was born 1797 in Georgia. She was the daughter of Adam and Priscilla (Smith) Sheffield. Lydia died 1879 in Alabama. (IGI) Thomas Bowlin (Fh733) of North Carolina married Lydia Sheffied, born in  Franklin County, Georgia, 1800, her parents were Adam Sheffield and Priscilla......... Adam's parents were John Sheffield and Hannah Melton Sheffield who came from Pennsylvania. Knowing how these families often came together I looked for a Bowlin in Pennsylvania. I found a James Bowling (Fh279), who was a "Ranger" in 1781-82 in Washington County, Pennsylvania and later served in Capt. Cotton's Militia. This could explain my great-great-great grandfather's middle name of Cotton. Could it be that James named his son Thomas (after his father) and Cotton after his commander in the militia? However, I cannot explain how James Bowling would be in Southern Pines, North Carolina in 1790 when Thomas Cotton Bowlin was born. Thomas Cotton Bowlin in turn named one of his sons Layfayette and one James Polk Bowlin. If this James Bowling is correct were the other Bowlings listed as residents of Washington County, Pennsylvania during the Revolution his brothers? Their father was a Major Thomas Bowling of Virginia. (sic, not true) This could also explain Thomas Cotton Bowlin's first name. (1480) Note I have photo of the tombstone of T.C. Bolin which reads In Memory of T. C. Bolin 1790-1864. The birth year is different from the one in information copied. (1480)  
Thomas C. Bowlin had children, among others (698): 

a.
Isham. (698)  

b.
Priscilla who married 1847 Henry Washington. (610) Precilla. (698)   

c.
Robert. (610)(698)  

d.
William. (610)(698)  

e.
Lafayette. (610) 

f.
Thomas. (610) 

g.
James. (610)(698)   
Movement

Thomas Bowlin migrated to St. Clair County, Alabama. (610) Thomas C. Bowlin moved to St. Clair, Alabama by 1820 when their first child born there. (698) Thomas Bowlin was St. Clair County, Alabama, in both the 1850 and 1860 censuses. (610) Thomas Cotton Bowlin has good documentation in Alabama about everything but his birth parents. It is documented he married Lydia Sheffield (and the Sheffield family is well documented). According to family lore and to some documentation these Bowlins left NC to avail themselves of freed up Cherokee land in Alabama with perhaps a stopover in Georgia for the Georgia Gold Rush where he married Lydia. In Alabama his land records indicate his name is spelled Thomas C. Bolund; The "C" which so many think is for Cotton is listed as Colton. From his daughter Percilla's side I have a detailed accounting of the family to today on a disk and on paper of their family side. I need to add mine from the side of a son John J. Bowlin. I have a photo of the tombstone of Thomas Cotton (Colton) Bowlin which reads In Memory of T.C. Bolin--go figure! Also the military records of the units in which the Bowlins served in the War Between the States. There is also one family story concerning Lydia Sheffied Bowlin's motherly love and devotion at the time of the War. I hope someone else is at the conference with some Alabama Connections and can help enlighten me. I also have poor zerox copies of James Stanton Bowlin and his children as they appeared in a periodical. (1480) The first Bowling to come to St. Clair County (Alabama) was Thomas C. Bowlin. He was born in Southern Pines, North Carolina, in 1790. He married Lydia Sheffield. He was in the 1820 and 1850 Census of St. Clair County, Alabama. A Tokee Bowlin who married 1820 Bamisa Bimon, probably was a brother of Thomas C. Bowlin. (2057) 
Death

Thomas Bowlin died St. Clair County, Alabama in 1864 and was buried in the Ashville Cemetery, Ashville, St. Clair, Alabama. (FAG = 29259017)(610) 

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

Turner Fh7381 (6K) 441x
-----------------

Turner bc1792-d>1840<1850 (Rin=57879)/m1821 Ann Lingfelter bc1796-d>1850—His father was John #441


*
Margaret Susan b1824

*a
Edwin H. b1828 KY

*a
Sarah A. bc1831 KY

*a
Mary Elizabeth b1834 KY

*a
John Hiran b1838 KY


1830 Census of Gallatin County, Kentucky with males 1 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 and 




females 0 1 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0. (Ancestry.com) So husband & wife age 30-40.   



1840 Census of Carroll County, Kentucky with males 1 0 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 and 




females 1 1 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0. (Ancestry.com) So husband & wife age 40-50.   


*
Children per source #1155 from 1840 and 1850 Census of Carroll Co., KY


a
Children in their mother's 1850 Census of Carroll County, KY, page 157.

Birth, Parents, Lineage

Turner Boling, I believe, was the son of John O. Boling’s (Fh441,627c). (1155)

Marriage

Turner Bowling married 1821 Ann Lingfelter, daughter of Michael Lingfelter, by Rev. Henry Brenton in Gallatin County, Kentucky. (1155) 
Movement

Turner Boling was on the 1822, 1825, 1826, 1828, 1830 and 1832 tax lists of Gallatin County, Kentucky. (1800) (1443) 

Turner Bolin, with Richard Bolin, sold land December 1830 to Joseph Carrol of Jessamine County, Kentucky, with a deed conveying 300 acres of land in Jessamine County "on the waters of the Kentucky River and Marble Creek being the same patented to William Stafford assignee of Green Clay and by the said Safford (sic) conveyed to Richard Crump administrator of William Bowling deceased. in trust for the heirs of the said William Bowling deceased." Turner Bowling and Richard Bowling were of Gallatin County, Kentucky. This per Jessamine County, Kentucky, Deed Book I: p 407, Turner Bowling and Ann, his wife, and Richard Bowling and Sarah, his wife, to Joseph Carrol; FHL microfilm 76-57-27. (2169) 

Turner Bowling is in the 1830 Census of Port Williams, (later called Carrollton), Gallatin County, Kentucky with males 1 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 and females 0 1 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0. (Ancestry.com) So Turner & wife are age 30-40. One index shows him as Srner Bowling but the census itself shows Turner. (1155) 

Turner Bowling was in the 1840 Census of Carroll County, Kentucky. (1155)  1840 Census of Carroll County, Kentucky with males 1 0 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 and females 1 1 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0. (Ancestry.com) 

So husband & wife age 40-50. His widow Ann Bowling, age 54, born Maryland, is in the 1850 Census of Carroll, Kentucky, along with 4 children all born in Kentucky. Also in that same 1850 Census is the family of Anny/Amy Bowling, age 58, born in Kentucky; Patsey age 19 born KY; and James age 17 born KY. (Probably Fh673) (1155)  See his family record for children. (1155) 

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

Wesley Fh7385 (6K) 398a
-----------------

Wesley Bowling (Rin=20793) was the son of John Fh398 (Rin=54040)

Fh7385
Wesley Bowland married 11 Sep 1809, Madison County, Kentucky, Sally White. 
One known child (not named)

Wesley Bowling was in the 1810 Census of Madison Count, Kentucky, 
with a son under 10 years old, 
himselve under age 26 
and his wife under age 26. (See LDS/FT 97T3-T82)

6K
John (Fh398,860x,b1766-1784)(Rin=54040) r1810(Census age 26-44, near that of Wesley) 

6K

Wesley (Fh7385,398a) m1809 (Sally White) r1810 (Census age <26)

​
+++++++++++++++++++++++++

William Fh740 (6M1) 516x
-----------------

William 1700-1767 (Rin=45995)/m1726 Elizabeth Kidwell (b<1710-d<1733)--His father was Robert #516

a
Kidwell B. b1726/7


a
John Kidwell b1731(Rin=44674)—See Family Group #432
 
a
Births in the Register of St. Paul's Parish per Source #46. Also Source #2111



2/w Eleanor (See a different William Fh750 as a husband)


Elizabeth
     (See a different William Fh750 as a father)




Margaret      (See a different William Fh750 as a father)

Birth, Parents, Lineage

William Bowling was the son of Robert Bowling (Fh516). (2111)
Marriage(s)
William Bowling married Elizabeth ----- 1726 in St. Paul's parish Stafford County, Virginia. (?) 
William Bowlin married 1726 Elizabeth Kidwell in King George County, Virginia. (1238) This might be this William Bowlin (or Fh760)
They had children: 
a.
John born 1729. John Bowling was born 1729 and John Kidwell Bowling was born 1731 the sons of William and Elizabeth 
Bowling in Stafford County, Virginia. (46) John Bowling (probably 740c) estate was appraised by Alexander McInteer, 
Aaron Kendall, Joseph Browne and William Harding, 1753 in Stafford County, Virginia. (1978)

b.
John Kidwell born 1731. (46)(492) Son Kidwell Bowling was born March 9, 1726/27 (old style). (2111) Son John Kidwell 
Bowling was born September 13, 1731. (2111) 



William Bowlin  married 1726 Elizabeth Kidwell in King George County, Virginia. (1238) This might be the William Bowlin (or Fh760) who witnessed the recording of a deed of lease June 7, 1734, in King George County, Virginia. The land once was owned by William Lampton, deceased. The estate of William Lampton sued a John Bowling, 1723 in King George County, Virginia. The land was described as partly in King George County and partly in Stafford County. (1646) 
+++++++++++++

Stafford County, Virginia, wills, Liber O, 1748-1767: 
Colclough  Rachael.  Will made 19 Dec 1748; rec. 14 Feb 1748/49; 
my lands in Fairfax County, Virginia, to be equally divided between 
my sons Robert Colclough and William Colclough. 
Daughter Elizabeth Bowling (wife of William Fh746), her son John Bowling, Alex Bowling, Sim Bowling. her Daughter Sarah Kidwell and Son William Kidwell;  
Daughter Rachael Thornbury, Ch  Rachael, Jane & Priscilla.  
Dau.  Jane Newton;  
Dau. Margaret Durham; 
G-son, Alexander Colclough, Son of Robert;  
G-dau  Jane de Bell; 
Sons Robert and William Colclough, and Samuel Thornbury Executors. (1414) 
++++++++++++

William Bowling (perhaps Fh740,6M, Fh760, 6M, Fh750, 6M, 760b) “6 Oct 1762 Deed of Lease. Arthur Morson of Falmouth (Stafford County, Virginia) merchant for conditions herein named let unto James Drake of King George, planter a tenement and 200 acres track of land bounded by William Bowling, Ball’s line, Capt William Newton, David Hudson and Col. Charles Carter” Acknowledged 7 June 1764 (Deed Book No. 4, page 536)(1939, page 64) 



William Sr. (UK) t1787


6M
William (Fh760) m1726 (Sarah Kirk),r1729-42 -m @ St. Paul's


6M
William (Fh740) m1726 (Elizabeth Kidwell),r1726-31 -m @ St. Paul's


6M
William (Fh750) r1725-6


6M
William (760b) b1733


6A
William (590d) b1741

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

William Fh741 (2I) 665x   His Descendants are not DNA 6
-----------------

William 1620-c1691(Rin=13918)/m1649 Ann Jacobs (b1625)--His father was Thomas #665

Some have son



William 1650-1717/1/w Rachel Lewis  & 2/w Elizabeth ----- --See Family Group #742

Or



William w1671,wp1672/m       Mary Thwaite (may not have been technically married)—See Fh758 2I 



He is head of String I, Some have his father as Thomas #665
Birth, Parents, Lineage

William Bowling was born about 1620 in Virginia. His father was Thomas Bowling (Fh665) who came to Virginia in 1610 on the "Swan". (7) William Bouldin (Fh741) was born 1612. (1414) William Bouldin was born about 1620 in Virginia to Thomas Bouldin (Fh665). (1072) William Boulding (Fh741) was born between 1612 and 1620 in Elizabeth City County, Virginia, to Thomas Bowldinge (Fh665) and his wife Mary. (1731) In early 1625 William Boulding (Bouldin, Bouldinge), a Virginia-born child, was living in Elizabeth City, on the west side of the Hampton, River, in the household headed by his father, Thomas (Fh665), an “ancient planter”. His mother may have been “ancient planter” Mary Boulding, Thomas’ (Fh665) wife. (2163)(2160). (“Ancient Planter: someone who came to Virginia prior to Sir Thomas Dale’s May 1616 departure and had lived in the coloney at least three years when applying for a patent. Ancient planters were eligible for 100 acres of land and had a few other privileges.” (2161)(2163) There were three early William Bouldin. The first William Bouldin (Fh739) came over in 1610. The second William Bouldin (Fh741) was born in Virginia after 1610 but before 1624/5 to Thomas Bouldin (Fh665). The third William Bouldin (Fh742) on April 14, 1668, had a patent of 887 acres recorded in Gloucester County, Virginia. (279) A muster taken January 20-February 7, 1624/5 lists Thomas Bouldinge aged 40 in the "Swan" 1610 and William Bouldinge (Fh741) borne in Virginia. (881) William Bowling's father, Thomas Bowling (Fh665), had one of his finest plantations located in Gloucester County, Virginia. (7) William Bouldin (1620-1691) was the son of Thomas (Fh665). (51)(957) 

Marriage and Children

William Bouldin married Anne ----- and moved to Pennsylvania. (51)(957)  William Bouldin later moved to Pennsylvania. (1072) William Bouldin married Ann ----- . (1072) William Bouldin married Ann Jacobs. (1414) William Boulding (Fh741) married Ann Jacobs. (1731) William Bowling married Ann -----.  William Bowling lived at one time in Philadelphia, Pennsylvania. William and Ann Bowling are the ancestors of the Quaker Bowlings of Philadelphia. William and Ann Bowling probably had son William (Fh742). (7) William Bouldin had a son William Bouldin of Gloucester County, Virginia. (924) They had a son William Bouldin Jr. (Fh742). (1072) They had a son William (1650-1717) (Fh742). (51)(957)

Movement

William Bouldin moved to Pennsylvania. (924) In 1652 William Boulden had 174 acres in Gloucester County, Virginia, between Propotank Creek and Dragon Swamp. (1414) William Bowling went from Virginia to Kent Island in Maryland. William Bowling was living on Kent Island, Maryland by 1655 or earlier. (7) William Bolling was of Abingdon Parish, Gloucester County, Virginia. He was a latter descendant of Lt Thomas Bowling (Fh665) who came from England to Virginia in the year 1610. (7) Some of William Bowling’s family seem to have made their way into Maryland, as not a few Gloucester people did. Gloucester, Prince William and Fairfax Counties, Virginia, are opposite Charles and St. Mary’s in Maryland. (176) 

Death

William Bowling died 1690 as cited by one source. (7) William Bouldin died 1691. (1072)

Lineage according to Source #1733 (Frederick A. Virkus, Vol 5, 606):


Thomas, Fh665, had son


William, Fh741, had son



(Not correct per Source #1919)


William, Fh742, A, had son



Above Source 1732 extended here by Source 1733 (Henry Rogge)


George, Fh240, A, had son


Joseph, Fh450, A, had son


Benjamin, Fh090, A, had son


Benjamin, Fh100, A, had son


Jarrett, Fh320, A, had son



Lindsay, 320j, A (1733) 

Lineage according to Source #1724 (Frederick A. Virkus, Vol. 6, page 127)


Thomas, Fh665, (in the Swan, 1610), had son



(Not correct per Source #1919)


William, Fh742, (887 acres in Gloucester Co. VA, 1668), had son


George, Fh240—DNA 6, had son


William, Fh743—DNA 6, had daughter



Penelope 743a

Lineage according to Source #363 (Virkus, Vol 7, page 182):


William, Fh742, (887 acres in Gloucester Co. VA, 1668), had son


George, Fh240—DNA 6, had son


Joseph, Fh450—DNA 6, had son


Gerrard, Fh230—DNA 6, had son


Samuel, Fh620—DNA 6, had son


Robert, Fh560—DNA 6, had son



Samuel 560a (363) 

Lineage according to Source #1731 (Informant Chester Bowling, His kit 23143 tested into DNA 3. He knew he was not in this line):


Thomas, Fh665, had son


William, Fh741, had son



(Not correct per Source #1919)


William, Fh742, A, had son


George, Fh240, A, had son


Joseph, Fh450, A, had son


Benjamin, Fh090, A, had son


John, Fh432, A, had son


Joshua, Fh459, A, had son



Edmund, 459b, A (1731) 

Lineage according to Source #1732 (Informant Henry Rogge):


Thomas, Fh665, had son


William, Fh741, had son



(Not correct per Source #1919)


William, Fh742, A, had son


George, Fh240, A, had son


Joseph, Fh450, A, had son


Benjamin, Fh090, A, had son


Benjamin, Fh100, A, had son


Jarrett, Fh320, A, had son



Lindsay, 320j, A (1732) 

Lineage according to Source #1733 (Henry Rogge):


Thomas, Fh665, had son


William, Fh741, had son



(Not correct per Source #1919)


William, Fh742, A, had son



Above Source 1732 extended here by Source 1733 (Henry Rogge)

George, Fh240—DNA 6, A, had son


Joseph, Fh450—DNA 6, A, had son


Benjamin, Fh090—DNA 6, A, had son


Benjamin, Fh100—DNA 6, A, had son


Jarrett, Fh320—DNA 6, A, had son



Lindsay, 320j, A (1733) 

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

William Fh742 (6A) 629a
-----------------

William 1650-<1703(Rin=65495)(6M6N-X5F)/m1670 Rachel Lewis (bc1650->1680)—

His father was probably Simon #629; (others have his father as Thomas #665, (but more likely Thomas would 

have been William’s grandfather, but DNA doesn’t match Thomas in any case).


*
George 1670-1736(Rin=62389)/m1688 Jane ----- (bc1670)--See Family Group #240


*
James bc1673


*
Thomas bc1676



Simon bc1680-1711(Rin=54190)/m1693 Jean Wade bc1680--See Family Group #632



Ann



William of Fairfax County, Virginia

*
John bc1680-1711(Rin=27329)/m1705 Mary ------ b1685--See Family Group #356 (See below) 






Not correct-Most likely William Fh758



2/w mc1680 Elizabeth ----- (bc1655-1710) or Sarah Gold



William 1670-1741/m1687 Thomasin Mary Nash--See Family Group #910,2I. (695)(1072) —His 




father was William #758, the "immigrant" to Maryland.


*b
John bc1680-1711/Mary ----- b1685--See Family Group #356 (See above)


  b
Francis d>1711/----- ----- --See Family Group #2291


  b
Elenor d>1711


  b
Janie d>1711


*
At least 4 sons per source #51. Sons John, James, and Thomas took up lands in Cecil, Calvert and St. Mary's 


Counties, Maryland.  Son George died in Prince William County, Virginia.


b
John named some siblings in his 1711 will per Source #924.

Birth, Parents, Lineage

William Bowlin was born 1650. (695) There were three early William Bouldin. The first William Bouldin (Fh739) came over in 1610. The second William Bouldin (Fh741, DNA 2I) was born in Virginia after 1610 but before 1624/5 to Thomas Bouldin (Fh665,DNA 2I). The third William Bouldin (Fh742, DNA 6A) on April 14, 1668, had a patent of 887 acres recorded in Gloucester County, Virginia. The sons of this last William Bowlin are regarded to be the early Bowling men who settled in Northern Neck of Virginia and Maryland. (279)
William Bolin son of Simon Bowley.


4-OCTOBER-1685

I Chri: Butler of Occaquon in ye County of Stafford this fouth day of October in the first yeare of the Reigne of our Sovereigne Lord Kinge James ye second 1685 for summe of eight thousand pounds of tobacco & caske to me paid by Mr. David Darnell of ye county aforesaid doe by these pnts. Sell unto sd David Darnell his heires forever all that tract of land called by name of FREESTONE POINT & since by the name of ye Garrison Planton in county of Stafford on ye south side & next adjoining to Neabscoe Creeke between the said Neabscoe Creeke & the land of Nathan Barton deced which sd. Parcel of land was survey'd & laid out by two surveys by a jury for ye sd. Butler & being pt. of Five hundred acres of land his just quantity due to him out of the antient Pattent & upon the sd. Survey was computed & esteemed to be two hundred and sixty & seven acres according to ye Sevll. Courses in the sd. Survey. To have and !

to hold the said two hundred sixty & seven acres of land unto him the said David Darnell. In witness whereof I the said Chr. Butler have sett my hand & affixed my seale the day & yeare first mentioned in ye presence of:

THOMAS PEARSONChr. (C.B.) Butler

WM. BOWING

This sale of land was acknowledged in the County Court of Stafford by sd. Chr, Butler unto within named David Darnell this 12 day of October 1687 and was yn recorded.

SOURCE: Stafford County, Virginia, Deed and Will Abstracts, 1686-1689, by Ruth and Sam Sparacio.

NOTE: Wm. Bowing (son of Simon Bowling Sr.) is witness to land transaction on Neabscoe Creek. This land probably ended up being in Prince William County. (2174)

William Bowlinge, John Bowlinge, Robert Bowlinge, and the land of Alexander Boyninge (sic) are mentioned in the 1689 will of Robert Kinge, recorded 1690 Stafford County, Virginia. "Fifthly I give to (faded) William Bowlinge, and John Bowlinge, and Robert Bowlinge a Tract of lande lyeinge att ye head of (faded) Creeke running with lande I bought of Thomas Revett and Edward Humston the said lande to be equally divided between ye before menconed Bowlinges and is three thousand acres belonginge to me and ye whole Tract of lande is Twelve thousand acres and it extendeth it selfe from ye Branch of Potomack Runne to ye branches of Ocquia Creeke, Henry Merest and Anthony Buckner have ye remiainge part of ye said Tract of Lande". "Eightly I give to my Loveinge Wife Mary Kinge a tract of land wch I bought of Alexander Boyninge it being Two hundred and forty acres lyeinge upon Hunting Creeke. (1678). I found this at the Library of Virginia. Taken from VIRGINIA COUNTY COURT RECORDS, DEED & WILL ABSTRACTS OF STAFFORD COUNTY, VIRGINIA, 1689-1693, Deeds, Wills, Inventories etc. from 29 April 1689 - 8 Februrary 1692/3, Deed Book D - Part II. This Book is not among the records in the Stafford County Court House. (1748)

From the 1689 Will of ROBERT KINGE  

"Fifthly I give to (faded) WILLIAM BOWLINGE & JOHN BOWLINGE & ROBERT BOWLINGE a Tract of lande lyein ge att ye head of (faded) Creeke running with lande I bought of THOMAS REVETT & EDWARD HUMSTON the said lande to be equally divided between ye before menconed BOWLINGEs & is Three thousand acres belonginge to me and ye whole Tract of lande is Twelve thousand acres & it extendeth it selfe from ye Branch of POTOMACK RUNNE to ye brances of OCQUIA CREEKE, HENRY MEREST & ANTHONY BUCKNER have ye remaininge prt of ye said Tract of lande."

"This will was sufficiently proved in this Court by ye oathes & Testimonies of WILLIAM HEAD, JOHN BREWTON, WILLIAM SMITH, ELIZABETH BREWTON & RICHARD AYLIFF Witnesses thereunto subscribed on the 7th day of April 1690 and was then recorded." (1748)

NOTE: This will of Robert King shows that three Bowling men are his grandchildren. This is an abstract of the original document. The person trying to read the original couldn't read the name of the person listed before William. I suspect this missing person is Simon Bowling Jr. Robert Kings wife's name is Mary which is proven by another document. When you look at the girls names in the will, the one name that is missing is "Mary". Since Mary is deceased at the time of the will, grandfather Robert King is leaving her share to her four sons. Keep in mind that Robert King lived next door to Simon Bowling Sr. (2174)

Those in Stafford County, Virginia, before 1700 are listed below. 

Stafford, VA-created 1664 from Westmoreland

Simon (Fh629, (Rin=45539) l1673,r1694



Alexander (629a? or maybe a brother of Simon Fh629) Mentioned in 1689 will but not an heir, l<1689


Simon (Fh633,629c)—probably a son of Simons but not with mother Kinge 

a
William (Fh742,629b) nw1689
a
John (629c) nw1689
a
Robert (Fh516,629d) nw1689,r1701/02,r1722(age 50,i.e. b1672),d1730/31

a 
Sons per Source #7 & #1748 Mentioned in the 1689 will of Robert Kinge, probably their grandfather.

These probably have the wrong father (Descendants have different Y-DNA)
William Bowlin (Fh742,6A) was born about 1640 in Pennsylvania, the son of  William Boulding (Fh741,2I) and his wife Ann Jacobs. (1731) William Bouldin was born 1650 the son of William Bouldin (Fh741). (1072)  William Bowling (Fh742) was born 1650. William Bowling was the son of William Bouldin (Fh741). (1460)  William Bowlin was the son of William and Ann (-----) Bowling (Fh741) of Philadelphia, Pennsylvania. (7) William Bowlin was born the son of Thomas (sic) Bowlin (Fh666). (695) William (1650-1717) was the son of William and Anne Bouldin/Bowling (Fh741). (510)(957)

Line of Descent from: 


Simon 
Fh629 BOWLING-
45539 b. 1620


William 
Fh742 BOWLING-
65495 b.1652

Marriage and Children

In 1638 Thomas Bouldin (Fh665) of Elizabeth City County, Virginia, paid the transportation for Robert Clement to come to Virginia. Years later in 1683 in Gloucester County, Virginia, Benjamin Clement is grantor in a deed of 300 acres of land described as land conveyed by William Boulding to Rachel, his then wife, and to Morgan Lewis. Then Rachel made gift in 1680 to said Clements for life and then to Ann Clements his daughter. Could Rachel the wife of William Bowlin have been Rachel Clements?  (279) William Bowlin was married twice--to Rachel -----(probably Lewis) and Elizabeth -----. (7) William Bowling married Rachel Lewis. (1460) 
William Bowlin (Fh742,6A) married Elizabeth -----. (1731)  Tyler's Quarterly, Vol.  1, page 168 states the young men who secured land in the Northern Neck are regarded as the sons of William Bowling. The historian Fairfax Harrison has expressed the same opinion. Who and how many were his sons cannot be declared. One of those was said to be a Thomas Bowling but there is no positive proof. (279) 
The children of William were: 

a.
George (Fh240) of Prince George County, Virginia, (7) William Bowling and wife Rachel Lewis had a son George Bowling (Fh240) born about 1670. (1460) William Bowling had a son George Bowling who died 1736 in Prince William County, Virginia. (57) Son George died in Prince William County, Virginia in 1736. (510)(957) Son George Bowling (Fh240) died in Prince George County, Virginia in 1736. (1724)

b.
John. (510)(957)

c.
James. (510)(957)

d.
Thomas. (510)(957)

e.
William of Fairfax County, Virginia and possibly others. (7) William Bowling was the son of William Bowling of Glouchester County, Virginia. (7) William Bowling was the son of William Bowling. (695)






Not correct-Most likely William Fh758

Only Source #924 has these 4 children. They are probably from William Fh758—Not DNA 6. Also surname is Boulding suggesting Family String I, DNA 2.

a
John of Maryland. William Bouldin had a son John Bouldin who had a 1721 will giving money to his brother 
Francis and sisters Elenor and Janie. (924) 

b.
Francis. (Fh2291)(924)

c.
Elenor. (924)

d.
Janie. (924)

William (Fh742) married Elizabeth ----- and returned to Gloucester County, Virginia, in which county he took up 887 acres of land in Abingdon Parish. They seemed to have four sons: John, James, Thomas, and George (Fh240). Sons John, James, and Thomas took up lands in Cecil, Calvert and St. Mary's Counties, Maryland (sic). (510)(957) A William Bouldin married Sarah Gold. (1414)

Movement

April 14, 1668 patent 887 acres in Abingdon Parish, Gloucester County, Virginia
The first of the name Bowling in Virginia records is William Bowling (Fh742) who on April 14, 1668 patented 887 acres in Abingdon Parish, Gloucester County, Virginia, adjoining Col. Augustine Warner. (1193)(176) The first of the name Bowling on the Virginia records was William Bowling, who in 1668, patented 887 acres in Abingdon Parish, Gloucester, adjoining Col. Augustine Warner. (357) The William Bowling who patented 887 acres in Abingon Parish, Gloucester County, Virginia 1658(sic), was the son (sic, probably grandson) of Thomas Bowling, who came on the "Swan" in 1610. (1724) The William Bouldin (Fh758) was not the William “Bowlin” who received 887 acres in the same parish in Gloucester County according to a patent dated 14 April 1668, since that William Bowlin was deceased in Gloucester County by 24 April 1704. We do know from records in Maryland that William Bouldin (Fh758) did own other acreage in Gloucester County, but the size and location of this particular parcel in Gloucester County, Virginia, was not identified in various court papers. (1919) William Bowlin was granted land 1668 in Gloster (sic) County, Virginia. (40) William Bowling in 1668 patented 1,887 (sic, check, maybe 887) acres in Abingdon Parish, Gloucester County, Virginia. (57) William Bouldin and his wife Elizabeth purchased 887 acres of land in Gloucester County, Virginia, on the opposite side of York River and some 25 miles from his grandfather's place. This trend of the new settlers to follow the rivers and the Chesapeake Bay inland, was only natural. (924) William Bowling who patented land in 1668 in Gloucester County, Virginia, was a grandson of Thomas Bowling (Fh665) who came on the "Swan". (358) 
Death

William Bowlin (Fh742, DNA 6) died before Oct 1703 in Gloucester County, Virginia. William Bowlin was deceased in 1703 but still had land in his name in Gloucester County, Virginia. (41) William Bolling, deceased, was listed in a 1703 Gloucester  County, Virginia, deed, as 24 Apr 1703 - Gloucester Co., VA. John Stubbs, grantee. 50 acres adjin.g. to and lying betwixt the land of Col. Augustine Warner, dec'd, land of Mr. Wells and the lands of Mr. Wm. Bowlin, dec'd. [Source: VA Land Office Patents No. 9, 1697-1706 (v1 & 2, p 1-742), p. 535] I cross-reference this with the following (1414): 14 April 1668 - Gloucester County, Virginia. William Bowline 887 acres Abington Parish near Col. Augustine Warner's. Mr William Bowlin, 887 acs. Abington Parish, Gloster Co. 14 Apr 1668, p. 131 Beg at a small Cr. dividing this & land of Coll. Augustine Warner, to Edw. Wills (Sic. Wells?), to Kerbye's w.o. to swamp dividing this & land of Mr. Law, Smith, &c. 750 acs granted Mr. David Fox in 1648 & assigned to sd. Bowlin, & 137 acs for trans of 3 pers. Jno Cheney, Peter Hicks, Wm. Preston. [Source: Cavaliers and Pioneers Patent Book no. 6, pg 36, Vol. 2 1666-1695 and Virginia Land Office Patents No. 6, 1666-1679, (pt 1 & 3 p. 1-692), p. 131 (Reel 6)]  See John Stubbs, 24 Apr 1703. (1414) No will of William Bowlin of Gloucester County, Virginia, has been found to provide details of his family. (279)

Cavaliers & Pioneers, Patent Book No. 7, pg 263

THOMAS MORRELL 150 acs., Gloster Co., Abington Par., 16 Apr 1683, p. 289. Beg. on N. side of the maine run falling into the head of Seaverne river about, 18 p. above the Spring belonging to his Dwelling house along Maj. Lewis Burwell, neer the main Roade, parting this & land of Mr. Benjamin Clements; neere a Bridge over the Swamp to Maj. Lawrence Smith, &c. Part of 300 acs, conveyed by WILLIAM BOULDING to Rachell, his then wife, for life & to Morgan Lewis, his heirs, &c, for ever. 14 Mar 1670; sd. Lewis by will, dated 6 Jan. 1675, bequeated to sd. Rachell, for her to enjoy & dispose of as she should think fitt; by vvertue of which bequest sd. Rachell had a good estate in fee simple; by whom it was sold to sd. Morrell 11 May 1681. 

MR. BENJAMIN CLEMENTS, 150 ACS., Glocester Co., Abington Par. 16 Apr 1683, P. 290. On E. side of the Roade that goes under the hills in Maj. Burwell's (burrwell-Burrell) line, parting this & land of THOMAS MORRELL, &c. Part of 300 acs. conveyed by WILLIAM BOULDING to Rachell, his then wife, &c. (Note: As in abstract just preceding.) Conveyed by sd. Rachell, 22 Oct. 1680 * * * "Give to the said Benjamin Clements for his life & after his decease to Anne Clements, daughter of the said Benjamin and her heirs for ever. (Marginal note: Vide Postea). 

(Note: Page 291. Repetition of above record.

Things that probably are incorect

William and Elizabeth Bowlin (wouldn’t be Fh742 most likely William Fh758) had a son William (Fh910—not DNA 6) who married Thomasina Nash. (695) William Bouldin and wife Elizabeth -----  had son William Bouldin (Fh910) born about 1670. (1072) 

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

William Fh743 (6A) 240x
-----------------

William bc1692-d>1752-d<1754 (Rin=27334)/Penelope Ashley Cooper or perhaps Sarah Massie—

His father was George #240 (Rin=-62389)

a
William bc1745-w1794/Lydia ----- --See Family Group #747



Keziah bc1744-d>1785 Rin=55072



John (?)--d<1778--See John 746c


a
Robert Joseph d1753

Or an Older William


William 1652-dc1754/m1680 Penelope Ashley Cooper--Brother could be George #240



Penelope Massie b1692-1754/m1709 Christopher Clark (1680-1754)


a
Children per Sources #176 and #538

Birth, Parents, Lineage

William Bowling was the son of George Bowling (Fh240) of Prince William County, Virginia. (357) William Bolling was said to be the son of either Edward Bolling or Thomas Bolling of London. (941) 
Lineage according to Source #1724:


Thomas, Fh665, (in the Swan, 1610), had son



(Not correct per Source #1919)


William, Fh742, (887 acres in Gloucester Co. VA, 1668), had son


George, Fh240, had son


William, Fh743, had daughter


Penelope 743a

There is an earlier William b1652 who married Penelope Cooper. (7)

Individual Record , FamilySearch™ Pedigree Resource File

William Bolling     
Sex: M 

Birth: 1652, Fairfax, Virginia, USA (T.B. not a county then), 

Death: 1754, Fairfax, Virginia, USA, (T.B. seems really old)
Marriage(s)

Spouse: Penelope Ashley Cooper     Disc #145     Pin #4517108, 

Marriage: 1680 

Penelope Ashley Cooper     
Sex:  F 

Birth: 1647 

London, Middlesex, England 

Death:  23 Dec 1732 

St Peter's, New Kent, Virginia, USA 

Marriage(s)

Spouse:  Peter Massie     

Marriage:  1669, New Kent, Virginia, USA, 

Spouse:  William Bolling     

Marriage:  1680 

Marriage and Children

William Bowling (Fh743,6A) married Penelope Cooper. (7)(357) William Bolling married Penelope Ashley Cooper the daughter of Anthony Ashley Cooper, the 2nd Earl of Shaftsbury and his wife Dorothy Manners. (984) William and Penelope (Cooper) Bowling had no less than two children. (7) 

Their Children:

a.
Penelope Massie Bolling was born 1692 to William and Sarah (Massie) Bolling. (941) Penelope Massie Bolling was 
the 
daughter of William Bolling and granddaughter of Anthony Ashley Cooper (1621-1683) 1st Earl of Shaftesbury. Penelop 
Massie Bolling married about 1709 Christopher Clark (1681-1754). (1724) Penelope Bolling married Christopher Clark and 
they had seven children the first born in 1710. (664)  Penelope M. Bolling married Capt.Christopher Clark. (357) Capt. 
Christopher Clark, gent. (1690-1754) was born England. Christopher Clark came to America via Barbados, settled in Virginia. 
Christopher Clark married Penelope Bolling the granddaughter of the Earl of Shaftsburg (Shaftsbury, Shrewsbury). (388)  
Christopher Clark joined the Friends in 1743 and was an overseer of Sugarloaf Monthly Meeting (MM), in 1749. (984) 
Penelope Bolling married Christopher Clark (1680-1754) in 1709 and they had a child born 1717 in Louisa County, Virginia. 
(941) Penelope (Bolling) Clark had children born from 1710 to 1737 in Louisa County, Virginia. (984) Penelope Massie 
Bolling, died after 1754. (1724) Penelope Bolling Clark died after 1754. (941)     

b.  
William (Fh747) (7)(357)(176) William Bowling who was in the militia in 1758 and died in 1778. (176)(538)

c.  
Perhaps the John Bowling. (176)  Perhaps the John Bowling whose inventory was filed in 1778 in Fairfax County, 
Virginia, 
was another son of William and Penelope Bowling. (7)(357)

d.  
Robert Joseph who died 1753. (176)(538) 

Movement

William Bowling (Fh743) is mentioned in a 1722 deposition of Robert Bowling in Stafford County, Virginia. (176) William Bowling lived in Fairfax County, Virginia.  William Bowling was a Virginia Planter and a man of considerable wealth and influence in the Virginia Colony. William Bowling was an associate of Capt. Lawrence Washington and the aide to Capt. Washington in the political campaign that elected Capt. Washington to the Virginia House of Burgess. (7) 21 April 1736 - Bond of Samuel King (could be Rin=49934) land William Bolling unto Denis McCarty, Gent. Justice for 50 pounds. [Source: Prince William Co., VA Will Book "C" 1734-1744], Dorman pp 78-79] (1414)(602) William Bolling gave bond 1736 for the administration of the estate of George Bowling (his father Fh240). (357)(602) William Bolling was the administrator in the estate of George Bolling 1736 in Prince William County, Virginia. (602) 21 April 1736 - Samuel King is administrator of William Addison deceased signed Samuel King and William Bolling. Witnessed by William Baker. [Source: Prince William Co., VA Will Book "C" 1734-1744, Dorman, pp. 78-79. (1414)(602) 21 April 1736 - Bond of William Bolling and Samuel King unto Denis McCarty, Gent. Justice. For 50 pounds. William Bolling administrator of George Bolling deceased. Signed: William Bolling, Samuel King. Witnessed by Catesby Cocke. 21 April 1736. Ack. and Or. [Source: Prince William Co., VA Will Book "C" `1734-1744, Dorman, pp. 79-80]. (1414)(602)
Prince William County, Virginia Circuit Court Archives, Will Book C: pgs 79-80. page 79 "As a Court held for Prince William County the twenty first day of -- April 1736. Samuel King & William Bolling acknowledged this Bond to be their Act and Deeds and it was Ordered to be recorded.

                                                                    *ess

                                                                Catesby Cocke, ***

(In the margin it says: William Bolling et ** Bond & Adminion George Bollings Estate. (1414)

Ex: ---

KNOW ALL MEN by these Presents That We William Bolling and Samuel King, are held and firmly bound unto Denis --McCarty Gent, the first justus in the commiss**n of the Peace for Prince William County ffor and in behalf and to the sole use and behalf of the -- Justus of the said County and their successors in the sum of fifty pounds to be paid to the said Denis McCarty his Executors Administrators and assign to the  *** payment well and *** to be made We bind ourselves and every of as our and every of our *** Executors and Administrators -- jointly and severally firmly by these presents sealed with our seals ---dated this twenty first day of April 1736.

THE CONDITION of this Obligation is such that if the above bound William Bolling Admin** of all the goods chattels and credits of George Bolling Decesd to make or cause to be made a true and perfect

Inventory of all and singular the Goods Chattels and Credits of the said Deceased which have or shall come to the hands or posession of the said ---William Bolling or in the hands or possession of any other person or persons for him and the same is made or exhibited or caused to be exhibited **the County Court of Prince William at such time as he shall be there  to ***** by the said Court and the same Goods Chattels and Credits and all other  the Goods Chattles and Credits of the said Deceased at the time of his Death which at any time after shall come to the hands or posession of the said William Bolling or in so the hands or posession of any other person or persons for him to well and duly Administer according to Law and -- further to make a just and *** Account of his ***** and doings therein when those *** executed by the said Court and all the next and ***** of the said goods **** assets and credits which shall be found remaining upon the said Admi*** account the same being first examined and allowed by the Justices of the Court for the time being shall deliver and pay --- unto such person or persons respectively as the said Justices by their ---Order or judgement shall direct pursuant to the laws in that case made and provided and if it shall hereafter appear that any last Will and Testament was made by the said Deceased and the Executor or Executors therein named shall exhibit the same into the said Court making request to have it allowed and approved accordingly if the said William Bolling being the unto required do render and deliver up his debtors of Admin ---pg 80 Administration Approbation of such Testament being first had and made in the said Court Then this Obligation to be void and of non effect Other wise to remain in full force and Ve**ue.                                                    William (his X mark) Bolling

                                                     Samuel   King,   ---

Sealed and Delivered

in the presence of -----

  Catesby Cocke

As a Court held for Prince William county, the twenty first day of April 1736. William Bolling and Samuel King acknowledged this Bond to be their ** and Deed and it was thereupon admitted to Record.                                                                      **ess

Examd                                                            Catesby Cocke, ****

 (Note: The ---- (dashes) appeared on the document as fillers at the end of the line; I've made line breaks just as it appeared on the document. Asterisks are placed where I could not decipher the handwriting. I'm sure that I've made a few mistakes but hope that it conveys the general message of the document. (1414) “In July, 1744, the first election for burgess was held in Fairfax County. Among the freeholders of Fairfax who attended the pole for this election and supported their neighbor Capt. Washington, who was elected, was William Bowling. These were well-to-do slave holding ‘planters’ as they described themselves on formal occasions. During the peaceful 25 years when, as Campbell testifies, Virginia enjoyed a prosperity hitherto unknown, they had migrated up the Potomac valley from the older Northern Neck settlements and were now seated on new lands upon Fairfax County streams, Accotink, Sugarhead, Difficult Run, Goose Creek” (538)(176). William voted in the Fairfax County, Virginia election of 1744.(7)(357) William Bowling (Fh743,240c) is mentioned twice on page 106 of this article, i.e. the voters of Fairfax County, Virginia, Burgesses 1744. (1967) William Boling got clothes and a gun 1746 from the estate of Henry O'Kean of Truro Parish, Fairfax County, Virginia. William Boling gave bond in the estate of Henry O'Kean 1746 Fairfax County, Virginia. (466) William Bowling was a voter 13 June 1748 in Major Lawrence Washington's district of Fairfax County, Virginia. (7)(536) William Bowling witnessed two deeds between John Park and John Pagan, Fairfax Deed Book B, page 442, recorded March 21, 1748. Both deeds recorded the same date. (7)(1223) There was another William Bowling (Fh746) living in Fairfax County, Virginia who also voted in the election of 1748 (Col. Colvil's District). (7) William Bowling (his X) witnessed a 1748 deed in Fairfax County, Virginia. (604) Wm Bolen, along with Gerd Bolen (probably Fh230) and Jo (sic) Bolen (perhaps Fh450) had tithables 1749 in Fairfax County, Virginia. (1398) William Bolen (maybe Fh743) had 2 tithables and 1 Negro 1749 in Fairfax County, Virginia, along with Gerrard Bolen (probably Fh230) had one tithable, and John Bolen with 2 tithables (perhaps 743c). (1454) William Bolling did an inventory 1750/51 (old style/new style) of Jeremiah Presgrave, Fairfax County, Virginia. At the 1752 estate sale William B. bought some stuff.  (466) 

Death

William Bowling died Fairfax County, Virginia, before 1754, when his wife Penelope Bowling described herself as widow in a deed to her son William. (7)(357) William Bowling died before 1754. (538)(176) In 1754 (deed recorded April 18, 1754) Panalipy (sic) Bowling of Fairfax County, Virginia, Widow, "for natural love and affection which I have and do bear unto my loving son, William Bowling of same ...  have given one feather bed and furniture". Witnessed by Robert Mills, William Harden and Ann Mills. (604) William Bowling Sr. died in Fairfax County, Virginia. (7) William Bolling's estate had administratix Elizabeth Bolling 20 April 1756 in Fairfax County, Virginia. Sureties were Gerrard Bolling (Fh230) and Edmond Butlor. (542)

The 1785 Case was Charles Alexander, plaintiff  vs. Birch et al.

Depositions given in the case:

1.
Keziah Bolling bc1744-d>1785 Rin=55072, (743b) gave a deposition in 1785, Prince William County, Virginia, 
saying he 
was about forty-one years old (i.e. born about 1744). (1611) 

2.
William Bowling/Bolling (Fh902,392b or Fh747,743b Rin=44567) gave a deposition in 1785, Prince William County, 
Virginia, 
saying he was aged forty years or thereabouts (i.e. bc1745).(1611) 

3.
Michael Ashford in 1785, Prince William County, Virginia, gave deposition that he lived in the neighborhood of 
Great 
Hunting Creek about sixty years. Claimed that he heard others who had died included Gerrard Bolling (Fh230, 
or 
230a,6A).(1611) 

4.
Townshend Dade and others are mentioned. (1611) 

6A
743c (See also 746c below)
John Bolen had 2 tithables (perhaps 743c) 1749 in Fairfax County, Virginia, along with William Bolen (maybe Fh743) 2 tithables and 1 Negro and Gerrard Bolen (probably Fh230,450f) one tithable. (1454) 

Fairfax County, Virginia, Tithables, 1749

Bolen, John
2


(743c or 746c)

Bolen, Gerard
1


(Fh230,450f)

Bolen, William
2
1 (slave)

(Fh746,450h, 1717-1756)
Other surnames Alexander, Ball, Combs, Carter, Colclough (Robert), Fitzhugh, Fairfax, Garret, Grafford (Thomas), Grimes (Nic), Hatcher, King, Kidwell (Wm), Moxley, Mason, Newton, Nelson, Neal, Rust, Summers, Simms, West, Well, Washington among many others. (1944, Page 172)

Total whites 1,122.

Fairfax Tithables, 1749 (1974)

Bolen, Jo (1974)

Berryman
Colclough, Robert

Fitzhugh (many) 

Grimes (Robert & Edward)
King, Ja and Wm, 

Wm K__well (probably Kidwell) , 

Massey Cha, 

Massey, 

Mason, 

Moxley, Nelson Rdh Jos Rea Sr, 

Neal, 

Peyton, Val, 

Rust Ben Jr, 
West, 

Washington Tho and Law, 

Wells 


16 March 1757 - Elizabeth Bolling (UK). Administration by John Boling (743c or 746c)  $200 pounds.  Surety: Gerrard Boling (Fh230,450f), Fairfax County, Virginia. (1576)(1527) John Bolling 1760 in Fairfax County, Virginia, was an apprentice as a shoemaker. (389) John Bowling lived somewhere in the Fairfax County, Virginia, neighborhood, 1766, as his tract is named as boundary in other deeds of land in the vicinity of Bailey's Cross-Roads. (1267)

Fairfax County, Virginia, Poll Sheet 

Document: Col07d212 

Author: George Washington 

Date:
1765-07-16 


[16 July 1765] 


A Copy of the Poll taken at an Election of Burgesses for Fairfax County the 16th of July 1765—and Candidates Names. 

George Washington       John West      
John Posey 

John Bowling


John Bowling 

Gerrard Bowling

Gerrard Bowling  (Fh230,450f)

(1918)

A John Boling and Thomas Graffort were on a Legislative Petition of Fairfax County, Town of Alexandria, Virginia, 1777. (1710) There were apparently two John Bowlings in Fairfax County, Virginia. One died and had an inventory dated 1778, recorded 1779. The other was named in court records in 1781 and 1782. Both may have been sons of two William Bowlings; that is William and Penelope (Cooper) Bowling (Fh743) and William and Elizabeth (Colclough) Bowling (Fh746). (7) John Bolling's estate had administratix Ann Bolling 18 August 1778 in Fairfax County, Virginia. Sureties were William Carlin, and Oliver Price. (542) 18 Aug. 1778  - John Bolling (743c). Administration by Ann Bolling (UK) Surety: Oliver Price, Fairfax County, Virginia. (1576)(1527) John Bowling had an inventory dated 1779 in Fairfax County, Virginia. (35) John Bowling is listed as head of household (8 people) 1782 in Fairfax County, Virginia, (43)  

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

William Fh746 (6K) 450x

-----------------

William 1717-1756 (Rin=39828)/m<1746 Elizabeth Colclough 1723-d>1757—His father was Joseph Fh450 (Rin=53942) or maybe Sims Fh632 (Rin=54190) who had land in Stafford Co. Va. in 1694/5--See Fh007 for possible fathers. Probably had a brother James 1710-1780 Fh278 (Rin=54690, LDQF-RF4) 

Head of String K

*  c
Robert bc1740-d1793/ Jean or Janet or Jane ----- See Family Group #558


*  
James 1743-dc1790—See Family Group #279,  if  b1743 why not in 1748 Will? Answer:



He was the cousin of those below, being the son of James Fh278.

  a
Sarah 


*ac
Alexander 1746-1791,will 1791/m1770 Martha "Patsy" Williams--See Family Group #020




A decendant kit 134440 (Mark Boling, 37) tested into DNA 6


*ac
Sims b1740-<1748-d>1830/ Ann ----- --See Family Group #627




A descendant kit 91987 (John C. Bolen, 12) tested into DNA 6 

*ac
John Henry b<1748-d1785/6/m<1780 Mrs.Ann (Huston) Hoge (1763-1848) --See FamilyGroup #433



This could be Fh400 (the son of Robert #558)




A descendant kit 12051 (Joseph Earl Bowling) tested into DNA 6



A descendant Kit 296494 (Jery A. Bowling, 25) tested into DNA 6


*    d
Allen-probably dead by 1748--Allen never existed (1903) 


*  
George b1750-d<1816/m      Barbara Donaldson (b<1765-1824)--See Family Group #237


*  c
William b<1751-d>1789/m ------ ----- --See Family Group #860 (9KD7-238)

*  
Matthew Allen bc1753-1824 (Rin=53951)/Elizabeth ----- --See Family Group #4655


*  c
Henry bc1756-d1786/m1784 Mrs. Sarah (-----) Bonham—See Family Group #2499




A descendant kit 2282 (Todd Bolen, 37) tested into DNA 6

*  c
Gerrard b<1758-dc1803—See Family Group #2299 (9KD7-23Z)

*  
Priscilla--probably 680a


*  
Rachel--probably 680b

*
Children per Source #1463 (Leslie Anne Ferguson) & Source #1518 (Carol Bartlett)

a
Children named in their grandmothers Rachael Colclough's 1748 will. Source #1594.


Those born after 1748, of course, would not be mentioned.  


c
Possible children per Source #1224 (Patricia J. Benedict)

d
Allen never existed (1903)


Baldwin (UK,?746x K) wp1792 (Source 473)


The above could be brothers, first cousins, or not related at all.  However, they were generally in the same

generation and often in the same area (Frontier Virginia/S/W Pa. before the Revolution, many later Kentucky, see below) I think that the Alexander, Henry, William, George and Sims/Syms are brothers.  I found them years ago in Washington Co., PA. (1443)


Others in  

Early Jefferson County, Kentucky records.

Baldwin (UK, K) wp1792 (Source 473)


Early Mercer County, Kentucky records.

Birth, Parents, Lineage

William Bowling may have been the son of Simms who had land in Stafford County, Virginia in 1673. (1224) I've been working on the line of William Elias Bowling (Fh746) born 1717, supposedly Pennsylvania (sic), who died 1756 in Stafford County, Virginia (sic, William (Fh746) died 1756 in Fairfax, VA) and what his relationship was to the other Stafford County Bowling's, many of whom came to Kentucky before 1800. (1155) Elias Bowling (This could be William Elias Bowling, Fh746) is named in a 1748 will of Racheal Colclough in Stafford County, Virginia. Racheal Colclough's daughters were Elizabeth Bowling (wife of William Bowling, Fh746) and Rachael Bowling (wife of Thomas Bowling, Fh680). Elizabeth Bowling's sons were John, Alexander, and Sim Bowling. A granddaughter Jane De Bolling is also mentioned. (352) Elizabeth Colclough, daughter of Benjamin and Rachael Colclough was born 1723. She married William Elias (De) Bowling. (1463) I finally found the publication of the Colclough of Stafford and they are from "Virginis Historical Genealogies" by John Bennett Boddie, Gen. Pub. Co. 1965...pp87-88. On page 88, the will talks about.. to daughter Elizabeth Bowling a negro to her for life, then to her son John Bowling, his brother Alexander Bowling and brother Sim Bowling; ... The crop of tobacco to daughter Mary Thornbury, Rachael Bowling, Elias Bowling, Jane Newton and Margaret Durham. Granddaughter Jane De Bolling not of age, personally to be held for her. (Dec 9, 1748). (1414)(352)

Line of Descent from: 


Simon 
Fh629 BOWLING-
45539 b. 1620


William 
Fh742 BOWLING-
65495 b.1652


George 
Fh240 BOWLING-
62389 b.1670


Joseph 
Fh450 BOWLING-
53942 b.1688


William 
Fh746 6K BOWLING-
39828 b.1717

Marriage
I have information on William Elias (De) Bowling (Fh746) Stafford County, Virginia, 1750 married Elizabeth Colclough and had the following children: 
John, 
Allen (sic), 
Sims, 
Alexander, 
George, 
Gerrad, 
Henry, 
James, 
George, 
Matthew, Robert, 
Priscilla, 
Rachael and 
William II. 
Could Gerrard be a different spelling that evolved into Jarrett? (1496, Informant Ann Kirkman) William Bowling married Elizabeth Colclough of Stafford County, Virginia. (7) Elizabeth Colclough parent’s were Benjamin and Rachel Colclough. (7) ----- Bowling married Elizabeth Colclough, the daughter of Benjamin and Rachel Colclough. (1159) William Bowling married about 1748 Elizabeth Colcough. (432)  ----- Bolling married Elizabeth Colclough, the daughter of Benjamin and Racheal Colclough. (352) Elizabeth Colclough, daughter of Benjamin and Rachael Colclough was born 1723. She married William Elias (De) Bowling. See their family group for a list of children. (1463, Informant Leslie Anne Ferguson) Who did Elizabeth Colclough marry? Have you seen the name William Elias De Bowling or William Elias de Bolling? Where did they get that name? Well, I will tell you that it is in error on two counts. The name "Elias" is actually just the name "Elisabeth", in abbreviated form (viz., "Elisa"). The problem is that in John Bennett Boddie's "Virginia Historical Genealogies", a typographical error is made, and the name is rendered as "Elias" (instead of "Elisa"). So the name 'Elias' actually refers to the wife, not the husband. Okay, what about the "de" part? Well, that is a more complicated error. When Rachel Colclough (mother of Elizabeth) wrote her will, she included provisions for her granddaughter, Jane Debell. Unfortunately, this name, too, was confused by Boddie in Virginia Historical Genealogies. So the name Debell was confounded to read "Debowling". There is no such name, and that is why you will find no original records for De Bowling. The actual name is BOWLING and will be found as such. The other common rendering of the name is BOLLING. The name Bolling is fairly common in this region of Virginia at the time. The Bolling name will have connections with Pocahontas. William Bolling/Bowling married Elizabeth Colclough. The date of the marriage is not known but it Elizabeth (Colclough) Bowling was mentioned in her mother's will, written in 1748. Further, since Elizabeth already had at least one child, the marriage presumably must have taken place before 1745 or so. It is hard to know exactly how many children they had, but I just want to address a couple of common errors concerning their children. (1903, Informant Gregg Bonner) 

Allen Bowling: this person does not exist. When Rachel Colclough wrote her will, she made provisions for her grandson, Alexander Bowling. But the name "Alexander" was abbreviated as "Alexr". When people came along later to transcribe the will, they mistakenly transcribed "Alexr" as "Alen", which is why you will find many references to "Alen Bowling". Additionally, people not satisfied with a single error have decided that they would 'correct' the name "Alen" to the more common spelling of "Allen". So this is how we end up with the fictitious person, Allen Bowling. All references to Allen Bowling are actually references to the real person, Alexander Bowling. 

Sims Bowling: I believe this is another example of people "correcting" the record. The will of Rachel Colclough makes provisions for her grandson, "Sim. Bowling". The name 'Sim.' is an abbreviation, almost certainly for Simon. The St. Paul's Parish Register has several entries for "Simon Bowling", the person this "Sim. Bowling" is probably named. But upon transcription of the will, the dot after 'Sim' had become lost. This left us with Sim Bowling. Finally, those not satisfied with this error decided to further improve the name, for good measure. Evidently they have thought that "Sims" is a more likely name, since that name is a fairly common surname, and which could suggest some familial relationship. I believe all references to Sim Bowling and Sims Bowling are actually referring to Simon Bowling. (1903)

Children

1. William Elias (De)1 Bowling He married Elizabeth Colclough, daughter of Benjamin Colclough and Rachel Mnu. Elizabeth Colclough was born Abt. 1723, and died Unknown.

Children of William Bowling and Elizabeth Colclough are:

From the 1748 will of Rachael Colclough, to Daughter Elizabeth Bowling (wife of William Fh746), her son(s) 
John Bowling, Alex Bowling, Sim Bowling, her daughter Sarah Kidwell and Son William Kidwell;  

x
Sarah (perhaps nee Bowling) Kidwell who in 1748 already had a son William Kidwell.
a. 
John Bowling. 746c (See also 743c above) John Bowling was the son of ----- and Elizabeth (Colclough) Bowling 
(Fh746). (1159) A John Boling and Thomas Graffort were on a Legislative Petition of Fairfax County, Town of 
Alexandria, Virginia, 1777. (1710) There were apparently two John Bowlings in Fairfax County, Virginia. One died 
and had an inventory dated 1778, recorded 1779.  The other was named in court records in 1781 and 1782. Both 
may have been sons of two William Bowlings; that is William and Elizabeth (Colclough) Bowling (Fh746) 
and William and Penelope (Cooper) Bowling (Fh743). (7) John Bowling of Fairfax County, Virginia was the 
executor of his mother's (Elizabeth Colclough Bowling) estate. (7)  John Bowling had brothers Alexander Bowling 
and Sim Bowling in 1748.  John Bowling's mother was Elizabeth (Colclough) Bowling who was alive in 1748 
when she was named in her mother's Stafford County, Virginia will. (352)  John Bowling had a grandmother 
Racheal Colclough (wife of Benjamin Colclough) of Stafford County, Virginia.  In Racheal Colclough's 1748 will 
she left a crop of tobacco to her daughter Rachael, Elias Bowling, and granddaughter Jane De Bolling, not of age.  
Also in the will was "to daughter Elizabeth Bowling, a negro, then to her son John Bowling, his brother Alexander 
Bowling and brother Sim Bowling". (352) John Bowling (could be 746a) was born 1750-1760 based on the 1830 
Cesnsus below. (7) John Bowland and Robert Bowland (could be Fh558,746h) were in a Mercer County, Kentucky, 
1790 court action to do road repairs. (449) John Bowling, with that exact spelling, was not found in any 1800, 1810, 
or 1820 Census. John Bowling (could be 746a) was in the 1830 Census of Shaker, Mercer County, Kentucky, with 
males 0121100001000 and females 0111201000000. Thus oldest male was age 70-80 i.e. born 1750-1760 and 
oldest female 40-50. In that Census an even older Bowling male is age 90-100 i.e. born 1730-1740. Can't read first 
name. Could be GW and perhaps Sr after. No other surnames looked farmiliar. (Ancestry.com)

b. 
Allen Bowling. (sic, see above) Allen Bowling: this person does not exist. When Rachel Colclough wrote her will, 
she made provisions for her grandson, Alexander Bowling (Fh020). But the name "Alexander" was abbreviated as 
"Alexr". When people came along later to transcribe the will, they mistakenly transcribed "Alexr" as "Alen", which 
is why you will find many references to "Alen Bowling". Additionally, people not satisfied with a single error have 
decided that they would 'correct' the name "Alen" to the more common spelling of "Allen". So this is how we end up 
with the fictitious person, Allen Bowling. All references to Allen Bowling are actually references to the real person, 
Alexander Bowling (Fh020). (1903) 

c. 
Sims Bowling. (sic, see above)

d. 
Alexander Bowling.

e. 
George Bowling.

f. 
Gerrard Bowling.

g. 
Henry Bowling.

h. 
James Bowling.

i. 
Matthew Bowling.

j. 
Robert Bowling.

k. 
Priscilla Bowling.

l. 
Rachael Bowling.

m. 
William Bowling II.

(1518)

William and Elizabeth (Colcough) Bowling had children: John, Alexander and Sim. (432)  I believe that William and Elizabeth (Colclough) Bowling had a son Alexander Bowling (Fh020). (7) ----- and Elizabeth Bowling had a son John who had brothers Alexander and Sim Bowling.  (352) ----- Bowling and wife Elizabeth Colclough had children: John, Alexander, and Simeon. They perhaps had daughters Rachel and Priscella (See Thomas Fh680). (1159) Elizabeth Colclough was the daughter of Benjamin Colclough born prior to 1669 and died 1722 and Rachel ----- born about 1678 and died 25 September 1749, will dated 9 December 1748 and probated 1750. (1224)(1594)  In Rachael Colclough's 1748 (Elizabeth Bowling's mother) will she left a crop of tobacco to her daughter Rachael, Elias Bowling (sic, probably Eliza. See next entry), and granddaughter Jane De Bolling, not of age. Also in the will was "to daughter Elizabeth Bowling, a Negro, then to her son John Bowling, his brother Alexander Bowling and brother Sim Bowling". (352) Rachel Colclough's December 19, 1748 will "Item My will & desire Is that after my just debts are paid my Crop of Tobo be Equally divided between my Daughters Mary Thornbury, Rachael Bowling, Eliza Bowling, Jane Newton & Margret Durham. Item I give unto my Grand Daughter Jane DeBell one negro boy named Anthony To her & her heirs. Item my will & desire is that the said Negro boy be in the care of my Daughter Rachael Bowling while the said Jane DeBell come of Age or married & If she died without heir to return to William Colclough." Item I give unto my Daughter Eliza. Bowling the Use of one negro fellow named Will until the death of Eliza Bowling & after the Death. of Eliza Bowling I give the said Negro Will to her son John Bowling. Item I give unto Eliza Bowling the use of one negro wench named Sall for five years & If the said negro Should have any Children in that time to go to Alexr Bowling & his brother Sim Bowling. Item I give unto my Daughter Margt. Durham the Use of one negro boy named James five years & after the five Years the said boy to go to Elizabeth Bowling & The Said Ellz§ Bowling to have the use of the said Boy Five Year & then I give Him to Alexander Colclough, the son of Robert Colclough. Item I give unto my Daughter Margaret Durham the use of one negro named Sall. After five years which she Is to be with Elizi Bowling then to Margt Durham until her death and after the death of Margt Durham I give the said Negro wench Sall to her Children." (1594) Stafford County, Virginia, wills, Liber O, 1748-1767: Rachael Colclough. Will made 19 Dec 1748; rec. 14 Feb 1748/49; my lands in Fairfax County to be equally divided between my Sons Robert Colclough and William Colclough. Dau Elizabeth Bowling (wife of William Fh746), her Son John Bowling, Alex Bowling, Sim Bowling. her Dau Sarah Kidwell and Son William Kidwell;  Dau. Rachael Thornbury, Ch  Rachael, Jane & Priscilla.  Dau.  Jane Newton;  Dau. Margaret Durham; G-son, Alexander Colclough, Son of Robert;  G-dau  Jane de Bell; Sons Robert and William Colclough, and Samuel Thornbury Executors. (1414) I found the publication of the Colclough of Stafford and they are from "VA Historical Genealogies" by John Bennett Boddie, Gen. Pub. Co. 1965...pp87-88. On page 88, the will talks about .. to daughter Elizabeth Bowling a negro to her for life, then to her son John Bowling, his brother Alexander Bowling and brother Sim Bowling; ... The crop of tobacco to daughter Mary Thornbury, Rachael Bowling, Elias Bowling, Jane Newton and Margaret Durham. Granddaughter Jane De Bolling not of age, personally to be held for her. (Dec 9, 1748). (1414) 

Movement

Henry O’Kean will 2 June 1746, proved 15 July 1746, Fairfax County, Virginia, to:


Wife Jenny and after death to Sara Hurst, dau. of John Jr.


Richard O’Kean living in Lancaster Co., PA without nearer heirs come to this county


John Loe, orphan under my care, the land we live on


John Diskins son of Daniel


William Boling
(unclear, except for John Low, as to what each gets)


 Exrs. Wife Jenny and Capt. John Minor. Signed Henry O’Kean (his mark), Wit. David Thomas, Moses Ball, Charles Mason. (1970, Page 68) Possible Williams: 


6A
William (Fh743,240c) r1744,r1749,d1754--prior Prince William


6K
William (Fh746) r1748,nw1754,d1756,wp1756


6A
William (Fh747,743b) r1756,r1758,1779



William (UK) r1756,r1782,r1785,r1787,r1800


6K
William (Fh860,746j) r????

William Bowling (Fh746) was originally from Fairfax County, Virginia. There was a Nelson family that lived next to William Bowling in Fairfax County, Virginia. (7) William Bowling witnessed a deed 21 Mar 1748 in Fairfax County, Virginia. Other witnesses were John Westxe "West:John", Garrard Alexanderxe "Alexander:Garrard", John Minorxe "Minor:John" and James Hamiltonxe "Hamilton:James". (604) Will (sic) Boling was a voter 13 June 1748 in Col. Colvil's District of Fairfax County, Virginia. (536) There was another William Bowling living in Fairfax County, Virginia who also voted in the election of 1748 (Major Lawrence Washington's district). That William Bowling (Fh743) had a wife Penelope Cooper and he was a son of Joseph Bowling. (7) William Bowling witnessed two deeds between John Park and John Pagan, Fairfax Deed Book B, page 442, recorded March 21, 1748. Both deeds recorded the same date. (7)(1223) William Bowling (his X) witnessed a 1748 deed in Fairfax County, Virginia. (604)

Fairfax County, Virginia, Tithables, 1749

Bolen, John
2


(743c or 746c)

Bolen, Gerard
1


(Fh230,450f)

Bolen, William
2
1 (slave)

(Fh746,450h, 1717-1756)
Other surnames Alexander, Ball, Combs, Carter, Colclough (Robert), Fitzhugh, Fairfax, Garret, Grafford (Thomas), Grimes (Nic), Hatcher, King, Kidwell (Wm), Moxley, Mason, Newton, Nelson, Neal, Rust, Summers, Simms, West, Well, Washington among many others. (1944, Page 172)

Total whites 1,122.

Fairfax Tithables, 1749 (1974)

Bolen, Jo (1974)

Berryman
Colclough, Robert

Fitzhugh (many) 

Grimes (Robert & Edward)
King, Ja and Wm, 

Wm K__well (probably Kidwell) , 

Massey Cha, 

Massey, 

Mason, 

Moxley, Nelson Rdh Jos Rea Sr, 

Neal, 

Peyton, Val, 

Rust Ben Jr, 
West, 

Washington Tho and Law, 

Wells 


Death

William Bowling died about 1756 and his will was probated 26 April 1756. (1224)  William Bowling (Fh746) died about 1756 as his will was probated 26 April 1756, and his wife Elizabeth Colclough died about 1757, as her will was probated 16 March 1757 Fairfax County, Virginia, of Stafford County, Virginia. (1224) William and Elizabeth Bowling's son John Bowling of Fairfax County, Virginia, was the executor of his mother's estate. (7)

John Boling was the administrator of the estate of Elizabeth Boling 16 March 1757 in Fairfax County, Virginia. Surety was Gerrard Boling (Fh230). (542) 16 March 1757 - Elizabeth Bolling (UK). Administration by  John Boling (743c or 746c)  $200 pounds.  Surety: Gerrard Boling (Fh230,450f), Fairfax County, Virginia. (1576)(1527) John Bowling of Fairfax County, Virginia was the executor of his mother's (Elizabeth Colclough Bowling) estate. (7)  

Fairfax County, Virginia, Poll Sheet 

Document: Col07d212 

Author: George Washington 

Date:
1765-07-16 


[16 July 1765] 


A Copy of the Poll taken at an Election of Burgesses for Fairfax County the 16th of July 1765—and Candidates Names. 

George Washington       John West      
John Posey 

John Bowling


John Bowling 

Gerrard Bowling

Gerrard Bowling 

(1918)

John Bowling lived somewhere in the Fairfax County, Virginia, neighborhood, 1766, as his tract is named as boundary in other deeds of land in the vicinity of Bailey's Cross-Roads. (1267) John Bowling was on the 1787 census of Fairfax County, Virginia, with 1 head of cattle. (551) The Hursey family had gone to the county line between Hopewell Township, Licking County and Hopewell Township, Muskingum County, Ohio, from Fairfax County, Virginia by Dec 1808.  In Virginia the name was Hussey and Henry Hussey, father of the above William Hursey, had paid taxes for a John Bowling in 1788 in Fairfax County, Virginia.  At that time the Hussey family was living just south of Falls Church, Virginia.  Later a John Bowling was witness to a Hussey record and I THINK he is the John Bowling who died in or near Alexandria, Virginia in 1805.  A Hanson Thomas was co-admin. of Henry Hussey's estate in 1807 and he also was a witness to the Will of the John Bowling who died in 1805.  This same Hanson Thomas appeared in Hopewell Twp., Licking County, Ohio by 1816 when he married a second wife and they also lived near Gratiot.  I'm trying to learn if the Hussey/Hurseys were related in any way to the Bolen or Thomas families in that area. (1482)

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

William Fh747 (6A) 743x
-----------------

William bc1745-w1794(Rin=27338)/Lydia ----- His father was William #743(Rin=27334)

Source #802 has the following son but probably not correct since the DNA doesn’t match.



Charles d1822/m1798 Elizabeth Merryman--See Family Group #1561


His household had 9 whites in both the 1782 and 1785 tax list of Fairfax, Virginia. (2068)

Birth, Parents, Lineage

William Bowling of Fairfax County, Virginia, was the son of William and Penelope Bowling (Fh743). (802)(7)(357)(176) 

Marriage and Children

William Bowling of Fairfax County, Virginia, married Lydia -----. They had a son Charles Bowling (Fh1561). (802) Nothing. See “Things that are probably wrong” below.
Military

William Bowling was in the Fairfax County, Virginia Militia in the French-Indian War.  William Bowling of Fairfax County, Virginia, was paid by an Act of Assembly for the State of Virginia, 1756.  (7) William Bowling (Fh747,743b) and Robert Bowling (maybe 450g) were each paid, March 1756, 2 pounds, 12 shillings, in service to fight French and Indians, from Fairfax County, Virginia. Garrett Bolin received 5 shillings for a horse, same time, same county. (1224) William Bowling and Robert Bowling were both Sergeants, Sept 1758, Colonial Militia, Fairfax County, Virginia, (Ancestry.com) William Bowling was in the militia in 1758. (176)(538)(1667)  Hening’s Statutes Vol. 7 pages 217 and 218 shows that William and Robert Bowling of Fairfax County, Virginia, were in the militia of 1758. (176)(1667)(1839) During the French and Indian War, the House of Burgesses passed an act for the defense of the frontier on September 14, 1758. Soldiers mentioned in the schedule were attached to the act. William Bowling and Robert Bowling both of Fairfax County, Virginia, were paid 2.12.0 each. (544)  

Movement

The Vestry Book of the Christ Church, Fairfax County, Virginia, 1779, showed a payment to William Bowling for an apprentice fee. Also payments to a John Bowling (Fh433 or Fh434) for two coffins. John Bowling must have been a carpenter. (1612) William Bowling bought certain items in an estate sale of John West Jr., 1781 in Fairfax County, Virginia.  (604) William Bowling is listed as head of household (9 white people) 1782 and 1785 in Fairfax County, Virginia. (43)(2068) 
1782 Virginia Heads of Families—Fairfax County
PG. #
NAME




WHITE
BLACK


16
Bolling, William (Fh747,743b,6A)

9
6


Bolling, Martha (wife of Fh230,6A)

4
15


Bowling, John (Fh433 or Fh399,746c)
8
0 (43)(2068)  

William Bowling was on the 1787 census of Fairfax County, Virginia, with 5 slaves, 12 horses, and 6 head of cattle.  (551) 

VIRGINIA 1787 – PROPERTY TAX ROLLS
Results read as follows:

Date – Persons – White males – W. males over 16 – Blacks above – Horses – 



         above 21 
      under 21                   16

Cattle – Carriages

Fairfax County
Bowling, Ann

0
1
1
4
9
Wife of John Fh433

Bowling, Jonathan

0
0
0
0
0
UK

Bowling, John (land only)
0
0
0
0
0
Fh433,or 746c

Bowling, Samuel

0
6
9
11
12
Fh620,230d

Bowling, William

0
1
3
5
4
Fh747,743b,6A or UK

Bowling, William

0
3
2
12
6
Fh747,743b or UK


Frederick Henry, Manager for Will Bowling

There was a court case 1789 Charles Alexander and Robert Alexander against Verlida Dade, widow and relict of Baldwin Dade, Baldwin Dade, Buckner Stith, Lawrence Taliaferro, William Bowling, and Richard Ratcliffe. “The Court doth decree that the defendants immediately deliver such of the slaves as are in their possession to the plaintiffs, that is to say: Suck, in possession of William Bowling; etc.” (1822) 

Death

William Bowling had a will dated 1794. (802) William Bowling died in 1778 (sic). (176)(538) 

Things that are probably wrong.

William Bowling of Fairfax County, Virginia,  married Lydia -----.   They had a son Charles Bowling (Fh1561). (802) Descendants of Charles have DNA Group #3 while William's DNA was probably Group #6.

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

William Fh750 (6M1) 516x

-----------------

William 1700-1767 (Rin=45995)/m<1725 Eleanor ?Stafford?--See Fh007 for possible siblings. His father could be Robert #516

ab
Elizabeth 1725-d>1799/m1747 William Skidmore or m1749 John Thornberry (1730-1799)

a
Margaret b1726/7


a
Birth record in the St. Paul’s Church register


b
Elizabeth's Marriage John Thornbury 14 DEC 1749 in St. Paul's Parish, Stafford, Virginia. (2111)
Children with wife Eleanor

a.
Elizabeth Bowline was born 22 Apr 1725 St. Pauls Parish, Stafford, Virginia, the daughter of William. She married 
first William Skidmore 11 May 1747 St. Pauls Parish, Stafford, Virginia. She married second 14 Dec 1749 John 
Thornberry. She died after 1800. (7) Elizabeth M. Bolling married John Thornberry 1749 in Stafford County, 
Virginia. (31)(46) I found that his connection to the Bowlings is as follows: Elizabeth Bolling (UK) born about 1729 
of Stafford & Fauquier Virginia married John Thornberry, marriage 14 Dec 1749, St. Paul's Parish, Stafford 
County, Virginia. They had a son Samuel Thornberry born 13 Jan 1755, died bef 22 Mar 1828 
(lived in Virginia 
and Bullitt County, Kentucky); Samuel Thornberry married Mary Wigginton. (1414) William Bowline and his 
wife Eleanor ----- had daughter Elizabeth born 1725. The daughter Elizabeth married 1747 William Skidmore 
(alias Scudamore) at St. Paul's church Stafford County, Virginia. After 1777 the St.  Paul's area fell into King 
George County, Virginia. (267) Elizabeth Bolling (750a,6M) 1730 - 1799 born about 1730 in Stafford County, 
Virginia died after 1799 in Fauquier County, Virginia. She married John Thornbury, Thornberry 1730 - 1799 b: 
1730 in Stafford Co., Virginia d: 09/23/1799 in Fauquier Co., Virginia. (7)  Daughter Elizabeth Bowling was born 
April 28, 1725. (2111) William and Elinor Bowlinge/Bowline had daughter Eliza born 1725 in King George 
County, Virginia. (1238) Daughter Elizabeth Bowin married William Skidmore 1747 in Stafford or King 
George 
County, Virginia. (46)  Elizabeth Bowline was born 1725 the daughter of William and Eleanor (-----) Bowline. 
She married 1747 William Skidmore (Scudamore) at St. Paul's Church. Stafford County, Virginia was originally 
divided into two parishes. Overwharton Parish covered the northern half of the county.  Chotank Parish (later 
known as St. Paul's) covered the southern part of the county and fell in 1777 into King George County, Virginia. 
(267)
b.
Margaret. William and Eleanor (-----) Bowline had a daughter Margaret born 1727. (492) Daughter Margaret 
Bowling was born August 15, 1727. (2111)  William and Elinor Bowlinge/Bowline had daughter Margaret born 
1726 in King George County, Virginia. (1238)

“6 Oct 1762 Deed of Lease. Arthur Morson of Falmouth (Stafford County, Virginia) merchant for conditions herein named let unto James Drake of King George, planter a tenement and 200 acres track of land bounded by William Bowling, Ball’s line, Capt William Newton, David Hudson and Col. Charles Carter” Acknowledged 7 June 1764 (Deed Book No. 4, page 536)(1939, page 64) 
William Bowlings  (perhaps  Fh740, Fh760, Fh750, 760b)



William Sr. (UK) t1787



William (Fh760) m1726 (Sarah Kirk),r1729-42 -m @ St. Paul's



William (Fh740) m1726 (Elizabeth Kidwell),r1726-31 -m @ St. Paul's



William (Fh750) r1725-6, m<1725 (Eleanor ------) 


William (760b) b1733



William (590d) b1741

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

William Fh752 (6M30) 374x

-----------------

William 1796-1833 (Rin=55018)/m1820 Mildred Connally, LZ6R-F9P—Father was John #374

*
James b1820


*
Rebecca b1820/m       Henry McCall


*
David Russell b1822


*
George Anderson 1824-1901


*
Mentioned in father’s death papers per source #698

William Boland was in Lincoln County, Tennessee in a November 1811 court record recording a stock mark. This may be the William Bowlin who died in Lincoln County, Tennessee in 1833 leaving wife Mildred and children: David, George, Rebecca who married Henry McCall and James Bowlin. Samuel Webb was made guardian for James and David until they arrived at full age per court papers. (698) William Bowlin and wife Mildred Conley had 4 children: [1 & 2]  - boy & girl twins born 1820 - the boy being James Bowlin, [3] David Bowlin born 1822, [4] George Anderson Bowlin born1824 in Huntsville, Madison County, Alabama. George Anderson Bowlin who was born in Huntsville, Madison Co. Ala. is buried in Tupelo, Lee Co. Mississippi  in the Bowlin Family Cemetery. Born August 17th, 1824, died Nov. 26, 1901. (1527) I called up Rootsweb's World Connect Project and put in "Mildred Conley". Several came up including one with William Bowlin as spouse and one alone. They both had Mildred born between 1814-1831 in Georgia and William Bowlin born between 1773-1802 in North Carolina. One had children James Bowlin born between 1820-1834; a girl Bowlin born between 1820-1843; David Russell Bowlin born 18 Sept 1822 in North Carolina (one says Guilford Co NC) and George Anderson Bowlin born 7 Aug 1824 in Carroll County, North Carolina (I do not think there has ever been a Carroll Co NC, but may be wrong) I suspect that was Carroll County, Georgia not North Carolina. As with LDS stuff, the folks submit whatever and it must be checked as errors abound. (179)


+++++++++++++++++++++++++

William Fh753 (6T) 424x

-----------------

William  bc1770/1780-1844 (Rin=54565)/m      Elizabeth ----- --His father was John #424 (Rin=54573)  


a
Sally


ab
Benager or Benajah bc1801/5, NC-d>1844-d<1887

a
Noah


a
Olive


ab*
Charles bc1804/07-1882/m<1830 Martha J. "Patsy" Hall (1804-1862)


ab*
Harbard dc1843/m      Amy ------ 


ab
William bc1815-d>1844/m1839 Zilpha Randle


  b*
Shubal d>1845/m1832 Sally Cummings  


a
Children per Source #1471


b
Named in father’s 1844 will 


*
several children listed in father’s 1844 will per Source #955

Birth, Parents, Lineage

William Bolin was born about 1770 in North Carolina. William Bolin  married to Elizabeth ?. He died about 25 Sept. 1844 in Owen County, Indiana, where his will was found. I think William is one of three brothers found in Montgomery County, North Carolina and his father may have been John Boling (Fh424). (1471) William Boling was born between 1770 and 1780 in North Carolina. William Boling died in the early 1840s.  William Boling married Elizabeth -----  and moved from North Carolina, probably Montgomery or Randolph Counties, to Owen County, Indiana about 1830. These are some of the children listed in his will: Charles my gr.gr. grandfather, born about 1804 in North Carolina, who married  Martha J. (Patsy) Hall, born about 1796 in North Carolina, moved about 1835 to Owen, Indiana, then Clay County: Harbard: and Shubal, etc. (955) William Bolin Jr. was in Mecklenburg (sic) County, North Carolina, in 1800 in household 477 with 00100-20100-00. (9)  William Bolin would have been age 16 to 26 years of age or born 1774-1784. (1088) The above 1800 Census record was in Salisbury District, Montgomery County, North Carolina. (7)(1155) Montgomery County, North Carolina, Deeds, page 281 - 28 April 1803 - Benager Randle to William Bolin (UK if Sr., Fh753,6T, if Jr.) - 6 pds. - 30 acres - on both sides of Bumpasses's Fork of Little River - Being a tract of land granted to the said Benager Randle by patent dated ... Nov. (no year given). Witnesses: Jesse Bolin, Noah Randle. Signed: Benager X Randle (1155) William Bolling was on the 1810 census of Montgomery County, North Carolina. (942)  The “History of Owen County, Indiana”, states that William Bowlin Sr. and William Bowlin Jr. along with Benjamin Bowlin become residents of Morgan Township, Owen County, Indiana, as early as the year 1825.  All were from Montgomery County, North Carolina. (1155) William Boling was born about 1770/80, in North Carolina. William Boling lived Montgomery County, North Carolina. William Boling  married Elizabeth.-----. See their family group for children. William Boling moved to Indiana about 1830. Children were named in William's will, in 1844, after his death in Owen County, Indiana, about 1843. (1471) Perhaps a son William Bolin was born about 1815, in Montgomery County, North Carolina married 1839 in Owen County, Indiana, Zilpha Randle, born about 1813, also in Montgomery County, North Carolina. (1631) Son Benajah Bolin (753b,6T) in 1839 was in Owen County, Indiana, when his son Benjamin Bolin was born. (2102) 

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

William Fh759 (6S) 913x

-----------------

William b1765 NC-1827 (Rin=54228)/mc1797 Nancy Warrey Hutson Turner (bc1765 NC-d>1860)—His father was William #913

Descendant Kit #138006 and Kit #3301 tested in to DNA 6


A 12/12 match with Kit #58512, Kit #13529, Kit #10875


a
Celia b1798 NC/m1820 Henry Jones




a
Merrell McKinney b1800 in NC/m      Sarah ----- 


a
Stephen b1802 NC-d>1880/m       Margaret ----- (d>1880)

a
William bc1804 in NC-d>1880 GA/m1823 1/w Mary (Davidson?) Bowles (1808-1853), m1854
 



2/w Ann Anderson (b1832 GA)



Descendant Kit #138006 and Kit #3301, Kit 99999A tested in to DNA 6


a
Willaby 1807 in GA-d1886 GA (FAG=74359661)/m      Temperance “Tempie” Jordan (b1808 NC-d1883 


GA)



Descendant Charles Brent Boling tested into DNA 6 (35/37 with me TB)


a
Elizabeth b1809 GA/m      Reuben J. Jordan (d>1860)


a
Allen b1812/13 GA-d1863/m      Isabella Ledbetter

a
Rhoda b1814 GA/m1827 Martin Paxton


a
Nancy 1816 GA-d1903 GA/m1833 Robert Davidson (1809 NC-1900 GA)

a
Children per source #1923. A Nancy Boling born NC is found living in the household of Reuben Jordan 


in 1850 & 1860 Census. (Age 95)
Birth, Parents, Lineage

Marriage and Children

a. 
Sons Merrell and William are listed as being born in North Carolina on Census records. (1923)

b.
William (my gg grandfather, born1804), married first to Mary __.  They came to Cherokee County, Georgia after 
1830. His name was drawn to serve on the Superior Court of that county in 1836. After Mary's death in June 1853 
he married 21 Dec 1854 Ann Anderson of Lumpkin County, Georgia. She already had 2 children: William A 
Anderson and M.E. Anderson. I have a copy of a Guardian Bond where William is appointed guardian of these 
children. (1923) I found a document, at the LDS Library, of a sale of a deed of "dower of land on the Hudson River 
and negro man Charles" to son, William of Cherokee Co, for the support of his mother Nancy, for the duration of 
William's life. (1923) Descendant Kit #138006 tested in to DNA 6 and Kit #3301, Kit 99999A tested in to DNA 
6. William (bc1804 NC d> 1880 GA - he is listed in the 1880 Census) m Sep 1826 1 w Mary Bowles (b1808 d 
1853) in Hall Co, GA; m Dec 1854 2/w Ann Anderson (bc 1832 GA) in Lumpkin Co, GA. (1923)
c.
Willaby, born 1807, is listed in Census records as being born in Georgia. (1923) Willoughby (Willaby) (b 1807 GA 
d 1886 GA)(tombstone dates) m Temperance "Tempie" Jordan (b Jan 1808 NC d Feb 1883 GA) (tombstone dates). 
(1923) FAG=74359661
d.
Allen. I found a document, at the LDS Library, of a deed of gift from Nancy, William’s wife, to son Allen dated 
1836.

e.
Nancy (b 1816 GA d Mar 1903 GA) m Apr 1833   Robert Davidson (b 1809 NC d 1900 GA).   Info from James 
Jasper Davidson's (son) family Bible. (1923)

See the Family Group for a complete list of the children.  (1923)

Movement
William Bolling migrated to Habersham County, Georgia, after 1806. I say 1806 because one of the sons, Willaby, born 1807, is listed in Census records as being born in GA, whereas sons Merrell and William are listed as being born in NC on Census records. (1923) Descendant Kit #138006 tested in to DNA 6.  William Boling was the grantee on a September 16, 1818 deed, in Habersham County, Georgia (Deed Book A). 508 acres on the Hudson fork of Broad River. Grantor was Nathan Smith. (1461) 
William Boling was the grantee on a September 17, 1818 deed, in Habersham County, Georgia (Deed Book A). 100 acres on the Hudson River (sic). Grantor was Nathan Smith. (1461) 
William Boling was the grantee on a 1820 deed, in Habersham County, Georgia (Deed Book A). 174 acres on branch of Little Nails creek. Grantor was Joseph Dickerson. (1461) 
The 1820 Census of Habersham County, Georgia, has William Bolling, 121310-20010-1. (1461) 

1—male under 10

2—male 10 to under 16

1—male between 16 and 18

3—male 16 to under 26

1—male 26 to under 45

0—male 45 and up i.e. b<1775

2—female under 10

0—female 10 to under 16

0—female 16 to under 26

1—female 26 to under 45

0—female 45 and up i.e. b<1775

Death

Georgia Intestate Records: "Boling, William, deceased, Absolom Holcomb and William Boling, administrators January 5, 1828: apprs: James Allen, Hamilton Wynn, Joseph Holcomb, William B Wofford, Charles Baker, Habersham MIC." (1923) 
In 1829 in Habersham County, Georgia, William Bolling and Absolom Holcomb were the administrators on the estate of William Bolling, Deceased, whose home had been on the Hudson River in what is now Banks County, Georgia. (1461) William (my ggg grandfather, born abt 1772) & Nancy Bolling came to Habersham County, Georgia from North Carolina about 1815. (1923)

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

William Fh760 (6) UK

-----------------

William (Rin=54607) m1726 (Sarah Kirk)--m @ St. Paul's, r1729-42—His Father UK 

Anne b1731 Rin=54605


William b1733 Rin=54604


Elizabeth b1735 Rin=54603


Mary b1736 Rin=54601


Sarah b1742 Rin=54600

Other William Bowlings  (Fh740, Fh760, Fh750, 760b)


William Sr. (UK) t1787


William (Fh760) m1726 (Sarah Kirk),r1729-42 -m @ St. Paul's



William (760b) b1733


William (Fh740) m1726 (Elizabeth Kidwell),r1726-31 -m @ St. Paul's


William (Fh750) r1725-6, m<1725 (Eleanor ------) 


William (590d) b1741

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

William Fh763 (6K) UK
-----------------

William <1768-dc1800 (Rin=57227) m Lucy Crump (b1770 VA)—She married 2rd Robert Walker

John O. b1791-1794-wp1831/m1818 Nancy Wyatt—See Fh441 (In 1822 in Gallatin County, KY)  

Nancy 1792/m<1822 William Heath (In 1822  in Jessamine County, KY)


Turner b1794-1800-d<1850/m1821 Ann Fingfelter (bc1796->1850)--See Fh7381 (In 1822 in Jessamine 


County, KY)

Mariah/m1822 Davis Latty. (2169) (In 1822 in Gallatin County, KY)  

Richard b1801-d>1880/m1828 Sarah Brown bc1806-d>1880--See Fh4689 (In 1822 in Gallatin 




County, KY)

Source 2169 (James Gill)
Carroll,KY-created 1838 from Gallatin, Henry and Trimble


6K
Amy (maybe widow of Thomas Fh673 below) r1850(Census,age 58 KY)



6K
Ann (widow of Turner Fh7381) r1850(Census,age54)


6K
Barbara (Widow of George Fh237,009b) d>1838


6K
Catharine (bc1813, widow of George 441b) r1880 (Census, with son W.M. Bowling)


6K
Daniel (maybe 673a, bc1813,maybe a sister Paulina) r1880 (Census, wife Susan)


6K
George (Fh237,746b) r1805—part that was Gallatin prior


6K
George W. (441b,b1804) r1840(Census 8 in household, 4 males, 4 females),d1857—part that was 



Gallatin prior



John (b1810-1820,could be 781e or 026e) r1840(Census age  20-30)


6K
Thomas (Fh673 son of Sims Fh627) r1840(Census,age 60-70)—part that was Gallatin prior


6K
Turner (Fh7381,441c) r1840(Census age 40-50) ,d<1850—part that was Gallatin prior


6K
William S. (maybe 673c,1821KY-1903MO) m1849 (1/w Mary F. Irwin or Mary Emory d1851-2)-



-later Knox, MO.

Birth, Parents, Lineage

William Bolin (Rin=57227) was born before 1778 (sic, probably a lot earlier, see why next) in Maryland (maybe on the western Frontier). William Bolen was born before 1768 to be a tax payer in 1789, see later.

While I can't connect this William (Fh763) to his parents, I believe he is part of DNA Group 6, Family String K, based on Kentucky places and the fact that his wife, Lucy Crump's parents, were from Fairfax County, Virginia, the place where my Bolens (10 boys) came from. (Todd Bolen)

Marriage and Children

I found that Lucy Crump's father was Turner Crump--so naming a son Turner perhaps follows. I also see that Lucy’s father and mother married in Fairfax County, Virginia. That's where my Bolen ancestors were from. We are Family String K, DNA Group 6. (Todd Bolen) 

Turner Crump was hired by George Washington to be overseer of his negroes to build the barns and out buildings at Mt. Vernon. 

I believe William and Lucy (Crump) Bolin had children. There are some clues in the estate papers (in 1803). The administrators paid for three pair of shoes for the children. Also they bought a hat and breeches for John. If there were children, then Lucy and the children would inherit; not Lucy 1/3 and 2/3 to William's brothers and sisters. (2169) If there were (living) children, then Lucy and the children would inherit, not William's brothers and sisters." (2169)
Jefferson County, Kentucky

Fayette County, Kentucky

William Bowlen paid taxes in Fayette County, Kentucky, 5 August 1789. (9)(18)(842) William Bolling was on the 1792 and 1793 tax list of Fayette County, Kentucky. (837) William Bolin was on the 1794 and 1795 tax list of Fayette County, Kentucky. (837)(1210) William Bolin was on the 1795 tax list of Fayette County, Kentucky. (1364) William Bowlin in 1795 found a horse near the mouth of Tates Creek, Fayette County, Kentucky. (560) William Bowling (Fh763) was no doubt related to Joel Bowlin (Fh353) who had a mill near the mouth of Tates Creek. (7) William Bowlin was on the 1797 tax list of Fayette County, Kentucky. (837) William Boling was a witness 1798 Fayette County, Kentucky. (1881) William Bolin witnessed a deed on 13 Aug 1798 in Fayette County. (2169)
Fayette,KY-created 1780 from original Kentucky County, Virginia (early towns Lexington, Leestown and Greenville)


William (Fh763,UK, spouse Lucy Crump—James Gill relative) t1789,t1792(it was then Virginia)



-t1795,t1797,r1798—part that was Jessamine in 1799


G. (UK) r1788-89(it was then Virginia)


Henry (UK) r1791-1792(Signed a petition)(it was then Virginia(My 6K Fh2499 d1786, so not him)


Robert Foster (UK) l1786,r1788(it was then Virginia)—Part that was Woodford Co, KY later

Jessamine County, Kentucky

(Jessamine-created 1799 from Fayette)

(So William probably didn’t move only the county name changed)
Jessamine.KY-created 1799 from Fayette


6K
William (Fh763,UKx, wife Lucy below) t1799,r1799,l1799,d1800—part that was Fayette before

6K
Lucy (nee Crump, widow of William Fh763 above) t1800,m1821 (Robert Walker), sold l1822





(with Husband Robert Walker)


6K

John O. (Fh441,763a) sold l1822 (with wife Nancy, nee Wyatt)


6K

Richard (Fh4689,763b) sold l1822 (no wife), sold l1830 (with wife Sarah)





Or in Rush, IN, if same which father?


6K

Turner (Fh7381,763c) t1819,sold l1822 (with wife Ann),t1824,sold l1830 (with wife Ann) 


6K

Nancy (763d) (Rin=57516) sold l1822 (with husband William Heath)  


6K

Mariah (763e, husband Davis Latty) sold l822 (no husband) 




6K
Richard (Fh4689,441c) r1832,r1880 (Census, wife Sarah bc1806),d1885

William Bowlin operated a boatyard, stone warehouse, and landing about half way between present-day Camp Daniel Boone and Lock 9 (on the Kentucky River) in the late 1700’s. This boatyard served some of the extensive Kentucky flat-boat needs after the Mississippi River was opened to Kentucky goods in 1787 by James Wilkinson. (1904) On June 22, 1799 William Bowling bought 83 acres on Marble Creek from Martin Stafford, in Jessamine County, Kentucky. (1881) William Bowling was on the 1799 tax list of Jessamine County, Kentucky. (Jessamine-created 1799 from Fayette) (837)  William Bolin purchased land 22 Jun 1799 in Jessamine County. William Bolin is on the 1799 Jessamine tax list. (2169) 

Military

William Bowling was a Captain, 9th Regiment, Corn Stalk Militia of Kentucky, Jessamine County, Kentucky, 1799. (1155)(1760) William Bowling, Capt., 9th Reg. Jessamine County, Kentucky Jul 29, 1799, Cornstalk Militia, Kentucky 1792-1811 (1468) 

Death

William Bowling, deceased, has an estate 1802, administered by Richard and Holley Crump. This per the Kentucky Gazette, Lexington, Fayette County, Kentucky. (7) William Bowlin died in about 1802 and the operation of his boatyard, etc. was then taken over by William Stafford. (1904)(2169)

William Stafford must have owned a lot of land in several counties and/or was a friend or family of the Bolens. (2169) Sims Bowling (Fh627) purchased 350 acres on Clear Creek, Shelby County, Kentucky, in 1800, from a W. Stafford. (1178) Sims Bowling purchased 350 acres on Guesses Creek, Shelby County, Kentucky, in 1800, from a Wm. Stafford. (1798)
There was a deed in which Richard Crump of Montgomery County, Kentucky, bought land from William Stafford on 26 Mar 1804 "in trust for the heirs of said William Boling deceased." There should have been a guardian appointed. (2169)

Then in two deeds executed on 20 July 1822:

Bk G p. 262

John O. Boling (Fh441,763a) & Nancy his wife

Richard Boling (Fh4689,763b)
Mariah Boling (763e)
all identified as heirs of William Boling Fh763
sell to Dudley Baker 79 acres on Marble Creek

acknowledged to the clerk in Gallatin County

Bk G p. 404

William Heath and Nancy (763d) his wife

Turner Bowling (Fh7381,763c) and Ann his wife

Robert Walker and Lucy (William Fh763’s widowed wife) his (Robert Walker’s) wife all identified as being of Kentucky

sell to Dudley Baker 79 acres on Marble Creek

acknowledged to the clerk in Jessamine County

Now, apparently, when William Bowling died, Richard Crump, one of the administrators of the estate, purchased 300 acres of land on the waters of the Kentucky River and Marble Creek and put it in trust for "the heirs of William Bowling." I need to look for that purchase in the Jessamine deeds. It might solve a lot of problems. (Jim Gill)

Anyway, on 3 Dec 1830

Book I, page 407

Turner Bowling (Fh7381,763c) and wife Ann

Richard Bowling (Fh4689,763b) and wife Sarah

all of Gallatin County 
sell 300 acres to Joseph Carroll

My notes indicate that John O. died in 1830 in Carroll County, Kentucky. I don't know about Nancy (Bowling) Heath (763d) or Mariah (Bowling) Latty or Lucy (Crump, Bowling) Walker. (2169) 

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

William Fh766 (6M) 183c


 -----------------

William 1752-1787 (Rin=61664)/mc1763 Elizabeth Randle (b1747)—His father was Edmund #183

Birth, Parents, Lineage

William Bolling (Rin=61664) was born 1752, Overwharton Parish, Stafford County, Virginia. William Bolling was the son of Edmund and Mary (Sudduth) Bolling (Fh183). (7)  

Notes for Mary Ann Sudduth Bolling (wife of Edmund Fh183 and mother of William 183c), Stafford County, Virginia, Will Book, page 329: This day came Mary Bolling and Jane Thompson and made oath before me on the holy Evangelists of Almighty God that in the 12th day of this instant they heard Thomas Smith as he lay sick on his bed express these words. That his desire was the Mary Bolling should have the bed and bed cloaths that she lay on and a sow and piggs and that the rest of his estate after paying his debts he give to William Bolling (183c) son of Mary Bolling and that Lawrence Sudduth should take care of his estate till the said child came of age. Certified under my hand this 22nd of June 1757. Signed John Peyton. At a court held for Stafford County, Virginia 12 July 1757 this nuncupative will of Thomas Smith was presented admitted to record and the said Mary Bolling in open court relinquished the legacies left to her by the said will. Administration is granted Lawrence Suddath having entered into bond with John Bell and William Mills his securities. page 330: In obedience order worshipfull court Stafford County, Virginia, dated 12 July 1757 appointing us the subscribers to value the estate of Mr. Thomas Smith dec'd. being first sworn have valued .. items listed and valued.. total L31:1:10. James Doneal, Thomas Hay, James Doneal Jr. At a court held for Stafford County, Virginia, 9 Aug 1757 inventory admitted to record. (911) William Bolland of Stafford or Fauquier County, Virginia, was engaged in the Battle of Point Pleasant in 1774.  (1018) William Bolland of Stafford or Fauquier County, Virginia, was engaged in the Battle of Point Pleasant in 1774. After the engagement visited Kentucky. Being afraid to return to Virginia by land, passed down the rivers to New Orleans. Then to Pensacola, Charleston, South Carolina then returned to Virginia. (1291) Oct 1774 after the battle of Point Pleasant, Oct 10, 1774, three of the soldiers John Whittaker Willis, John Ashby and Wm Bolland of Stafford and Fauquier Counties, Virginia visited Kentucky in a perioque, and pass down the Ohio and Mississippi to New Orleans, thence via Pensacola and Charleston to Virginia. (1510)(1521) Page 7, Spanish Passport in the Mississippi Valley; "John Whitaker Willis, John Ashby, and William Bolland, of Stafford and Faquier counties, in Virginia, were engaged in the battle of Point Pleasant in 1774. After the engagement [they] visited Kentucky.....Being afraid to return to Virginia by land, along the usual route, they hollowed out a pirogue from the body of a large tree and passed down the rivers in it to New Orleans. From this point the party made its way to Pensacola, then in possession of the British. Here they were assisted by the Governor, and conveyed to Charleston, in South Carolina, whence their return to Virginia was easy." (1599) 

1781 CENSUS—Stafford County, Virginia

Bolling, Thomas, (Fh667,6M17)

William Sr., 

William, (Fh766,183c,6M) 

Thomas, 

James,  (Fh279,278a)

Charles, (Fh1563,397b,6N2) 

1785 Stafford County, Virginia Tithables List of inhabitants and buildings--Thomas Bolling (Fh667,6M17), 4 persons. Also James Bolling (UK), Thomas Skinker. (969)(1603,page 191) 1785 Stafford County, Virginia Tithables Personal property tax list--Thomas Bolling (Fh667,6M17) 1 white male >21, 1 horse. James Bolling (UK),  William Bolling (UK, maybe 183c). (969)(1603,page 246) 

William Bolling was on the 1787 census of Stafford County, Virginia. (551) William Bolling Sr. is listed on the 1787 Personal Property Tax List of Stafford County, Virginia. He is a white male over 21, with one horse and 2 cows. A Simon Bolling (Fh631) was taxed there the same day. (1586) 

1787 – Property Tax Rolls--Stafford County, Virginia
Bolling, Charles

0
0
0
1
0
(Fh1563,397b,6N2)

Bolling, James

2
0
0
2
6


Bolling, Mary

0
3
2
0
0

Bolling, Robert Estate
0
10
2
4
4
(maybe 630c,6M)

Bolling, Simon

0
0
0
0
0
(Fh631,6M)

Bolling, Thomas

1
0
0
1
2
(Fh667,6M17)

Bolling, William, Sr.  
0
0
0
1
2

Bolling, William

0
0
0
0
 0
(Fh766,183c,6M)

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

William Fh770 (6N2) 397a
-----------------
William 1758-d>1833 (Rin=50363) m<1779 Elizabeth Wiggins McCormick--His father was John #397
r1779-1793(Birth of Many Children_--part that is Milford Twp., Juniata, PA today--Later to Fairfield, OH 


a
Catharine (Katty)(770a) bc1779, m1807 (John Harris)

a
William (770b) bc1783--part that is Milford Twp., Juniata, PA today


a
Robert (Fh556,770c, Rin=44281) bc1783, m1810 (Eleanor or Elizabeth Hardy),d1815  

a
Alexander (Fh023,770d) bc1785, m1815 (Sameley Ratliff) 2/w m      Susan Tamsy 1810-1855

a
John bc1789 PA 

a
Sarah (770e) bc1791--part that is Milford Twp., Juniata, PA today


a
Mary (770f) bc1793--part that is Milford Twp., Juniata, PA today

    a
Hugh (Fh2535,770d) m1816 (Sarah Michel or Mickel)

a
Children per sources #12 and #613

Birth, Parents, Lineage

William 1758-d>1833 (Rin=50363) was born 1758 in Westmoreland County, Virginia. (91)(658)(912) William Bowling’s Pension #S16040, in 1833 was a resident of Fairfield County, Ohio, aged 74. Born 13 July 1758 in Westmoreland County, Virginia. (1414) Events of William and his brother in Stafford County, Virginia follows: 
From the Place Index

Stafford, Virginia


6N2
Charles (Fh1563,397c) r1781*,t1787,r1801,r1802,r1810(Census),r1818,r1820(Census)




* signed a 1781 petition to move the Stafford County, Virginia, courthouse (Rin=50310)


6N2

James (Fh282,1563a) b1792, r1814,r1820(Census)--removed to Fairfield Co. Ohio (Rin=26814)


6N2


Franklin (282a) b1814--removed to Fairfield Co. Ohio


6N2

Alexander W. (1563d) b1802—Kit 35587 into DNA Group 6



6N2
William (Fh770,397a) r1781*, r1810(Census),r1820(Census)

 


*signed a 1781 petition to move the Stafford County, Virginia, courthouse (Rin=50363)
Lines of Descent from 


Simon Fh629 BOWLING-


45539 b.1620 


William Fh742 BOWLING-


65495 b.1652       


George Fh240 Kit 84056 BOWLING-

62389 b.1670  


Joseph Fh450 Kit 84056 BOWLING-

53942 b.1688  


Benjamin Fh090 BOWLING-

18570 b.1704  


John Fh397 6N2 BOWLING-

18572 b.1734  


William Fh770 6N2 BOWLING-

50363 b.1758 
It remains to be seen who Charles 1763-1849 (Fh1563, 397b) and his brother William (1758-??) (Fh770?) are the sons of. They say in their pension applications that they were born in Westmoreland County, Virginia, then moved to Stafford County, Virginia. Both lived with their father [in Stafford Co.] during the Revolution. Charles (Fh1563, 397b, 6N2), was in Orange County, Virginia, for about 3 years around 1791 when he (Charles) married Sarah McKenney there, but they moved back to Stafford County. William stayed in Stafford County. Both were in Stafford County when they moved to Fairfield County, Ohio sometime before 1833. Perhaps a study of the records we have of Stafford County will answer the question of their lineage. It may involve the Thornberrys, since one of them served in the Revolution as a substitute for Samuel Thornberry. (1442) William Bowling Revolutionary Pension #S16040. (2088)
A William Bowling was in the 1810 Census of Stafford County, Virginia with:

1 male over 45, 
i.e. b<1765—William Fh770,397a Rin=50363 was born 1758.

3 males 16-26, 
i.e. b1784-1794—William b1791 Rin=68808 and John b1794 Rin=68811 

2 males 10-16, 
i.e. b1794-1800—Thomas b1800 Rin=68813

1 female over 45, 
i.e. b<1765 Susanna Rawood Rin=55022

1 female 10-16, 
i.e. b1784-1800. Mary b1792 or Susanna b1797 

A Charles Boulling (Fh1563, 397d, 6N2), was on the same page of that Census. Several pages away were Spencer (Fh647,001a), Benjamin (UK, maybe Fh135, 6M18) and John Bowling (UK, maybe Fh3971, 397b). (7)  

William Bowling (and a second William Bowling) was in the 1820 Census of Stafford County, Virginia. (348) 

A William Bowling was on the 1820 Census of Stafford County, Virginia, with males 121001 and females 21101. (Ancestry.com) 
Marriage and Children

William Bowland was born circa 1750. (11) William Bowland married Elizabeth McCormick. She was born in 1757 in eastern Pennsylvania, possibly near Harrisburg, Pennsylvania. (11) William Bolland married Elizabeth McCormick. (621)(11) William Bowland married Elizabeth McCormick. She was born 1757 the daughter of William and Mary (Wiggins) McCormick. (613) William Bowland married Elizabeth McCormick who was born in 1757 in Juniata County, Pennsylvania. Her father was John McCormick. William and Elizabeth Bowland children were:

a.
William. (12)(613) William Bowland Jr. was a son of William and Elizabeth (McCormick) Bowland (Fh770). His parents were born in 1750 and 1757 respectively. William Bowland Jr. had brothers Hugh (Fh2535), Robert (Fh556), Alexander (Fh023) and John Bowland and sisters Catherine, Sarah and Mary. (12) 

b.
Robert (Fh556,6N2) (12)(613) Robert Bowland was a son of William and Elizabeth (McCormick) Bowland.  His parents were born in 1750 and 1757 respectively. He had brothers William, Hugh, Alexander (Fh023) and John Bowland. (12)

c.
Alexander (Fh023). (12)(613) A son Alexander Bowland (Fh023). (11) They probably had a son Alexander Bowland (Fh023) who was born 1788. (621)(11) Their son Alexander Bowland (Fh023,770d) was born 1788 in Pennsylvania. (33) Their son Alexander Bowland, was a native of Kentucky (sic), of Irish origin, who married Susan Tamsy. (1222) Alexander Bowland was born about 1788 the son of William and Elizabeth (McCormick) Bowland. He married Tamzy -----, perhaps Radcliff. Alexander Bowland died about 1855. (11)

d.
Hugh (Fh2535). (12)(613) Son Hugh Bowland was born (1794) in a log cabin about a mile from the town of Reading (now New Reading, Reading Twp., Perry County, Ohio) on land bought by his father, Robert (sic) Bowland, from the United States government. (1381)

e.
John Bowland. (12)(613) John Bowland was a son of William and Elizabeth (McCormick) Bowland.  His parents were born in 1750 and 1757 respectively. He had brothers William, Robert, Alexander (Fh023), and Hugh Bowland. (12)

f.
Catherine. (12) Catharine. (613)

g.
Sarah. (12)(613) 

h.
Mary. (12)(613)

A William Bolen was on the tax list 1806 (sic) in Fairfield County, Ohio (Probably Perry County now). (7)(298) 

Military

William Bowling was drafted into the Revolutionary War from Westmoreland County, Virginia. William Bowling had a brother Charles (Fh1563,397b, 6N2). William Bowling and brother Charles Bowling lived with their father during the War. They moved to Stafford County, Virginia. William Bowling was discharged in Stafford County, Virginia. Sometime later they moved to Amanda Township, Fairfield County, Ohio. William Bowling applied for a pension #S16040, 1833 in Fairfield County, Ohio. (91)(658) A William Bowling was a Revolutionary War soldier from Virginia. William Bowling received a bounty land Warrant. (569) William Bowling along with his brother Charles Bowling and their families moved to Fairfield County, Ohio in the 1830's (sic, probably earlier). They were Revolutionary War Veterans and both drew pensions in Ohio for service in Virginia. (912) A William Bolen was on the tax list 1806 in Fairfield County, Ohio. (7)(298) William Bowling, Pension #S16040, in 1833 a resident of Fairfield County, Ohio, aged 74. Born 13 July 1758 in Westmoreland County, Virginia. Drafted into militia in Westmoreland County, Virginia, 1775 - served then & again drafted 1776, served, discharged, drafted again, served & discharged. Moved to Stafford County, Virginia, and was drafted again about 1779 (drafted, volunteered several more times) & back to Stafford County where he lived until 5 or 6 years ago when he moved to Fairfield County, Ohio. Charles (Fh1563,397b), a brother, stated they lived with their father during the Rev War. (1414) 

1781

Those that Signed a 1781 petition to move the Stafford County, Virginia, courthouse.

Spencer Bowling 
(Fh647,160c,
6C) along with 

Garrard Boling 
(Fh320?

6C), 

Thomas 

(Fh667, 286x
6M17), 

Charles 

(Fh1563, 397b, 
6N2), 

William Bowling
(Fh770, 397x
6N2)  

(1758) 
From Place Index

Fairfield,OH-created 1800 from Ross, Washington


6N2
William (Fh770, 397a, b1758 Rin=50363) r1794,t1806,d1812(LDS) (FAG=99999999)


6N2

Katty (770a) m1807 (John Harris)


6N2

Robert (Fh556,770c Rin=44281) m1810 (Eleanor or Elizabeth Hardy),d1815(FAG=99999999)


6N2

Hugh (Fh2535,770d) m1816 (Sarah Michel or Mickel)


6N2

Alexander (Fh023,770e) m1815 (Sameley Ratliff)


6N2


David (023e) m1836 (Margaret Houston)

Perry,OH-created 1818 from Washington, Fairfield, Muskingum


6N2
William (Fh770) r1794 (Fairfield, OH then)(birth of son Hugh)




William (UK) r????--could be 770b


6N2

Alexander (Fh023,770d) r1819,r1830-removed to Seneca c1830


6N2

Hugh (Fh2535,770e) b1794 (Fairfield OH then)-removed to Sandusky County, Ohio in 1835


6N2


Lewis (2535c) b1830-removed to Sandusky County, Ohio in 1835


6N2
William (556a, he the son of Robert Fh556,770x) d1888 (FAG=29991553)

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

William Fh781 (6K) 627b

-----------------

William b>1775<1784-1828 (Rin=53968)/1/w m1804 Elizabeth Warford b>1775<1784-d<1816--His father was Simms #627


a
Minerva b1805-b1816/m     John Pebworth

a
William Jr. b1805-b1810-d>1820

a
Hulda 1810-1847 (AFN: 161N-4T5)
/m1842 Allen Campbell (1807-1884)


Ann b1805-b1816--may have died young before 1820 Census.


a
Male 1 b1810-1820


2/w m1816 Mrs. Elizabeth (Reynolds) Owen

a
Male 2 b1810-1820

a
Male 3 b1810-1820


a
William Bolen is on the 1820 Census of Gallatin County, Kentucky, with males 310001 and females 


11010. (1155)(HeritageQuest.com) (Could be Fh781,627x,6K)


3—male under 10



1—male 10 to under 16 (b1804-1810, probably William Jr.)



1—male 45 and up (b<1775, William)



1—female under 10



1—female 10 to under 16



1—female 26 to under 45 (probably wife Eliabeth)
OR
1820 Census of Shelby County, Kentucky. (Ancestry.com)--A Joseph Warford on same page.

William Bowlen,    males 160010 females 32010. (Could be Fh781,627x,6k) 


1—male under 10


6—male 10 to under 16 (b1804-1810)(The 6 may have been a 0)


1—male 26 to under 45 (b1775-1794) 


3—female under 10


2—female 10 to under 16


1—female 26 to under 45 (b1775-1794)

Birth, Parents, Lineage

William Boling/Bowling (Fh781) was born about 1775 maybe in Stafford County, Virginia, the son of Sims Bowling (Fh627,746i,6K). They came to Shelby County, Kentucky by 1804. (1155)(1179)
Marriage and Children

William Boling/Bowling married Elizabeth Warford XE "Warford:Elizabeth"  in 1804. (1568) William D. Boling married 1804 Elizabeth Warford in Shelby County, Kentucky. (1155)(1179) Elizabeth Warford was born about 1780 in Linclon County, Kentucky the daughter of John and Mary (Cox) Warford. (7)(IGI) William Boling and first wife Elizabeth Warford, had:

a.
Minerva Boling b1805-b1816 married John Pebworth. XE "Pebworth:John" 
b.
William Boling, Jr. b1805-b1816.

c.
Hulda Bolen (AFN: 161N-4T5). 
Birth: 19 Mar 1810, Spouse:  Allen CAMPBELL (AFN: 161N-4SX) Marriage: 12 

Jun 1842, Warren, In, Death: 23 Jun 1847, Warren, In, Burial: Pine Village Cem, Warren, In. 

d.
Ann Boling b1805-b1816.

Elizabeth Warford Boling/Bowling died. William Boling/Bowling married 2nd. Mrs. Elizabeth (Reynolds XE "Reynolds:Elizabeth" ) Owen 1816 Shelby County, Kentucky. (1568) William Bowling married 2 June 1816 Widow Elizabeth Owen XE "Owen:Elizabeth"  in Shelby County, Kentucky. (1157)(1367)(1395)(1848) William Bowling married June 1 1816 Elizabeth Owen XE "Owen:Elizabeth"  in Shelby County, Kentucky. (2014) 
There were four Shelby County, Kentucky Marriage Bonds for William Bowlings. Could be the same William or different Williams. (1559)

Name: William Bowling (Fh782, Fh810 or 860b,K) 

Spouse: Elizabeth Way. XE "Way:Elizabeth"  Source #1848 has Elizabeth May XE "May:Elizabeth"  

Marriage Date: 05 Jan 1804, Shelby County, Kentucky 

June 1, 1805

Name: William D. Boling (Fh781,627b,6K)
Spouse: Elizabeth Warford

Marriage Date: 1804, Shelby County, Kentucky
Name: William Bowling (Fh781,627b,6K) 

Spouse: Mrs. Elizabeth (Reynolds) Owen XE "Owen:Elizabeth"  

Marriage Date: 27 Jun 1816, Shelby County, Kentucky

Name: William D. Bowling (860b or Fh781,627b,K)

Spouse: Harriet Perkins XE "Perkine:Harriet"  

Marriage Date: 11 May 1820, Shelby County, Kentucky

Movement

William D. Bolling was listed as a brick maker in 1800 in Shelby County, Kentucky. (1179) William D. Boling married 1804 Elizabeth Warford in Shelby County, Kentucky. (1155)(1179) In 1813 John Bowling (Fh398,860c,6K) appoints William Boling, both of Shelby County, Kentucky, "in suit where I am plaintiff and Richard Merriweather and Samuel Bryant are defendants", 29 June 1813. (1394) William D. Bowland married Harriet Perkins, 1820, in Shelby County, Kentucky. (1157)(1395) William D. Bowling was a cabinet maker 1820 in Shelby County, Kentucky. (1211) William Bolen is in the 1820 Census of Gallatin County, Kentucky. (Ancestry.com) William Bolen is on the 1820 Census of Gallatin County, Kentucky, with males 311101 and females 11010. (7)

3—male under 10

1—male 10 to under 16

1—male between 16 and 18

1—male 16 to under 26

0—male 26 to under 45

1—male 45 and up i.e. b<1775

1—female under 10

1—female 10 to under 16

0—female 16 to under 26

1—female 26 to under 45

0—female 45 and up i.e. b<1775

Others listed there in 1820 are Simms Bolin (Fh627,6K), John S. Bolen and John O. Bolin (Fh441,627c,6K). (1155) William Boling paid taxes 1820 in Gallatin County, Kentucky. Not there before or after. (1800) William Bowling (Fh781,627a) and his wife Elizabeth, late Elizabeth Owen wife of Jesse Owen XE "Owen:Jesse" , deceased, are mentioned in Shelby County, Kentucky, Deed Book U, page 465-466, 2 Feb 1826, recorded 17 March 1826. See this source for image. (1791)

http://familytreemaker.genealogy.com/users/w/a/r/Willard-A-Warford/index.html
Death
William Boling/Bowling died after 1828 possibly in Shelby County, Kentucky. (1568)
+++++++++++++++++++++++++
  William Fh782 See William Fh810 (6K) 860x

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

William Fh788 (6C) 340b

-----------------

William T. 1772-1849(Rin=46489)/m1794 Sarah "Sally" Spillman (1779-1835)--His father was Jesse #340 (Rin=45488)

*a
Dr. James Butler 1795-1878(Rin=46491)/m1819 Sophronia McLean Ewing--See Family Group
 #285


*a
John S. 1798-dc1853 (Rin=46495)/m1820 Jane Hughes (d<1850)--See Family Group #384

*a
Elizabeth Kendall "Betsy" 1800-<1834/m1816 Gabriel Long


*a
Dr. Samuel S. 1803-1829/m1828 Jane Pamela Townsend

*a
Philicia or Felecia L. b1806/m1831 James S. Brown


*a
Dr. William Kendall 1808-1885/m     Melissa Saunders


*a
Malinda 1810-1890/m1827 Walter Brown


*
Robert S. 1813-1855/m     Mary Jane Baird (1827-1895)


*
Edward S. 1815-1839


*
DeWitt A. 1819-1843

*
A history on their family was written by their son William K. Bowling in 1883 and he lists these 



10 children. (Sources #1286 and #1981) Also children per Source #1155.

a
Children named in grandmother’s April 2, 1811 will, probated Feb 1812. Those born after 1811 not mentioned. See Source #1333. Franklin, Charles M., "Fayette County, Kentucky, Wills and Estates, Books A-E, 1788-1822”. One source has grandchild as "Jane B." but probably "James B."
 
b
1830 Census of Owen County, Kentucky with males 0210010100000 and females 0000100010000. Thus 


the oldest male was age 50-60 and the oldest female 60-70. (Ancestry.com)
Gallatin,KY-created 1799 from Franklin, Shelby


6C
John S. (Fh384,788b,b1798)(Rin=46495) t1820,r1820(Census),w1853(?, perhaps Mason Co.)—


6C
Felicia               (788e b1806) r>1831


6C
Malinda            (788g b1810) r>1831

Birth, Parents, Lineage

William Bowling (Rin=46489) was born 1771 in Virginia. (1155)(1981) William Bowling was born 1771-1772 in Virginia. (152) William B.  Bowling was born 1772, St. Pauls Parish records, Stafford County, Virginia the son of Jesse and Sarah (-----) Bowling (Fh340). (227) William Bowlin was named in a 1793 will of Jesse Bowlin in Spotsylvania, Berkeley County, Virginia. (30) William Bolling was born 1772 the son of Jesse and Sarah Bolling recorded on St.  Paul's Parish Register, Stafford County, Virginia. (46) There are many discrepancies between the St.  Paul's register entries and other records owing to carelessness on the part of the ministers. One example is the birth of William Bowling, son of Jesse and Sarah Bowling/Bolling, given in the Register as 17 June 1772 and in family records as 8 June 1773. (598) 
 From the Place Index

King George,VA-created 1720-21 from Richmond, Westmoreland

In 1777 the revision of the county lines threw St. Paul’s Parish into King George Parish where it has remained since that date.


6C
John (Fh402, had wife Judith at death) r1722,r1723,r1725,d1730,wi1731


6C

David (Fh160,402a) m1741 (Jane Pilsher)--m @ St. Paul's,r1742(Rin=61269)


6C

Jesse (Fh340,160a) b1742 or bc1745-50,r1772,r1782,t1782,r1784,r1787 (Rin=45488)


6C

William (Fh788,340x) b1772,m1794 (Sarah Spillman) (Rin=46489)—to KY shortly afterward


6C




James Butler b1795 FAG=78731543


6C



Jesse (Fh351,340x) b1784


6C

Original (402b) m1752 (Margaret French)

Marriage and Children

William Bowling married 1794 in King George County, Virginia, Sarah "Sally" Spillman, daughter of Thomas and Elizabeth Spillman. Her father Thomas Spillman received a large land grant in Kentucky for his revolutionary war service. Sally received a large inheritance when her father died. (1155) William Bowlin (Fh788,6C) marriage bond 9 Sept 1794 and married 11 Sept 1794 Sally Spilman. (1937)

William Bowlin married Sally Spilman, September 9, 1794, King George County, Virginia. (1645) William Bowling married 1794 in King George County, Virginia, Sarah "Sally" Spillman, daughter of Thomas and Elizabeth Spillman.  
William and Sally Bowling had children:

a.
James Butler Bowling (Fh285) born 1795 in Westmoreland County, Virginia. (7) William B.  Bowling married ----- 
-----.  They had a son James Butler born 1795 Westmoreland County, Virginia who married Sophronia M. Ewing. 
(227)

b.
John S. born 1798. (Fh384) (152) John S. Bowlin witnessed the 1816 marriage in Fayette County, Kentucky, of 
Elizabeth Bowlen to Gabriel Long. (1881) John S. died about 1853. See his write-up. (1819) J.S. Bowlin was 
witness on page 102, Fayette County, Kentucky. (1881) He is in the 1850 Census of Mason County, Kentucky. (7)

c.
Elizabeth K.  "Betsy" born 1800. (152) Elizabeth Kendall Bowling married Gabriel Long. (1704)  Jane A. Long and 
Uriah Tarvin, married 14 Aug. 1834, bond & consent by Jane's grandfather William Bowling (Fh788), who "stated 
that her mother is dead and that her father has left this country and is now at Orleans....", Campbell County, 
Kentucky. (1372) Elizabeth Bowlen married 1816 in Fayette County, Kentucky to Gabriel Long. (1881)  

d.
Samuel S. born 1803. (152) 

e.
Philicia L. born 1806. (152) William Bowling had a daughter Phelica L. that married 1831, Owen County, 
Kentucky, James S. Brown. (7) Felicia had no children. (1704) Two daughters of William Bowling lived at Warsaw, 
Gallatin County, Kentucky. Their names were Malinda and Felicia. Both married brothers named Brown. (1704)   

f.
William K. 1808-d>1883. (152) 

g.
Malinda born 1810. (152) William Bowling had a daughter Malinda that married 1827, Owen County, Kentucky, 
Walter Brown.  Bondsman was Samuel Bowling. (7) Two daughters of William Bowling lived at Warsaw, Gallatin 
County, Kentucky. Their names were Malinda and Felicia. Both married brothers named Brown. (1704)

h.
Robert S. born 1813. (152) 

i.
Edward 1815-1839. (152)(1981) 

j.
DeWitt A. 1819-1843. (152)(1981)

See family group for children. (1333 and 1981)

Son f. above, William K. Bowling in 1883 wrote a history on the family and he lists these 10 children. (1286)

Movement in Virginia

March 4, 1794. Thomas Ball of Spots. Co. to George Ball of same co. In trust 300 a. of land in Spots. Co. purchased of Edwd. Brasfield, etc., to be sold by the sd. Geo. Ball for the payment of certain debts due by sd.Thos. Ball, etc., etc. If any surplus is left after the payment of the sd.debts, then the same to be held in trust for the benefit of Mildred, the wife of sd. Thomas Ball, and Ann, Edward Portues, Mildred Down-man, Mary Taylor, Thomas and Martha Taylor Ball, children of the afsd. Thomas Ball, etc., etc. Witnesses, Anthony Arnold, Wm. BOWLIN (Fh788,340b,6C), Alexander x Moore. Septr. 2, 1794. (491)
March 4, 1794. Thomas Ball and Mildred, his wife, of Spots. Co. to George Ball of same co. £120 curr. 133 a. purchased of Jno. Edwards, etc., as by deed dated Septr. 30, 1787; also 65 a., part of a tract purchased of Edward Brasfield, etc., as by deed dated Oct. 2, 1787, in Spots. Co., etc., etc. Wm. BOWLIN (Fh788,340b,6C), Anthony Arnold, Alexander x Moore. September 2, 1794. (491)


Movement-Kentucky

William T. Bowling came west from Virginia. He first settled in South Covington, Kentucky, opposite to Cincinnati, Ohio. His place there was called "Locust Grove". He afterwards moved to a farm near Lexington, Fayette County, Kentucky, adjoining the farm of Richard Johnson, Vice President during General Jackson's administration. Whence he moved to Dover, Mason County, Kentucky, where he died. His wife was always spoke of as "Aunt Sallie". (1704)  William Bolin was on the 1796 tax list of Mason County, Kentucky. (837)  William Bowland was Constable of Mason County, Kentucky, July 1797. Order Book C, page 70. (1155)(1819) Mrs. Sally (Spillman) Bowling, wife of William Bowling, was an heir in Franklin County, Kentucky about 1800. (29, Vol. 1, page 30) William Bowling was a farmer and moved to Lexington, Fayette County, Kentucky, in 1805.  William Bowling was a lineal descendant of Pocahontas. (sic, no)(116) William and Sally (Spillman) Bowling came to Kentucky around 1810 and Sally’s mother Elizabeth came with them.  Sally’s mother died in Fayette County, Kentucky, and named her grandchildren in her will. (1155) William and Sally Bowlin resided in Fayette County, Kentucky in 1811. Sally (was the daughter of Elizabeth Atwood. They had children: Jane B., John G.  Elizabeth K., Samuel S., Felicia, William and Malinda.  (29, Vol. 1, page 30) Wife Sally had a mother Elizabeth Atwood who had a will in Fayette County, Kentucky, Will Book B, page 349 naming her daughter and grandchildren. I cannot explain Sally’s mother Elizabeth Spillman’s name as “Atwood” on her 1811 will.  She might have had another marriage but she is definitely Sally Spillman’s mother. (1155)(1333) Elizabeth Atwood had a 1811 will and it names daughter Sally and grandchildren James B., John G., Elizabeth K, Samuel G., Philicia, William and Millinda. William Bowling is executor (probably son-in-law Fh788). (1881) William Bowling was on a jury 1811 in Fayette County, Kentucky. (1881) William Bowling was a commissioner 1814, 1816, 1817, and 1818, in Fayette County, Kentucky. (1881) William Bowlin was surety in the 1816 marriage in Fayette County, Kentucky, of Elizabeth Bowlen to Gabriel Long. (1881) William Bowlin 1816 was made the guardian of Gabriel Long, orphan of James Long, Fayette County, Kentucky court. (1881) William Bowlin witnessed a 1817 will in Fayette County, Kentucky. (   ) William Bowling was the administrator of an estate 1818 in Fayette County, Kentucky. (1881) William Bowling was on the 1830 Census of Owen County, Kentucky with males 0210010100000 and females 0000100010000. Thus the oldest male was age 50-60 and the oldest female 60-70. (Ancestry.com) William Bowling gave a bond 1834, Fayette County, Kentucky, as follows: Jane A. Long (daughter of Elizabeth Kendall Bowling and Gabriel Long) and Uriah Tarvin, married 14 Aug. 1834, bond & consent by Jane's grandfather William Bowling (Fh788), who "stated that her mother is dead and that her father has left this country and is now at Orleans....", Campbell County, Kentucky. (1372) William T. Bowling (Fh788,6C) lived on a farm near Lexington, Fayette County, Kentucky, adjoining the farm of Richard Johnson, Vice President during General Jackson's administration. Whence he moved to Dover, Mason County, Kentucky, where he died. (1704) William Bowling was born 1771 and died March 27, 1849, age 78. He married Sarah Spilman 1794 in King Geroge County, Virginia. Wife Sarah was born 1779 in King George County, Virginia. She died 1835, age 56, Mason County, Kentucky. Both Sarah and William are buried at Dover, Kentucky. They moved from Virginia to Kentucky in 1811 with Sarah’s widowed mother Elizabeth. Sarah’s mother Elizabeth married a second husband 1788 John Atwood in King George County, Virginia. John Atwood only lived one year. William and Sarah Bowling had ten children. See Family Group. (This source should be read as it may be the earliest on this family group.) (1981, page 45) Franklin County, Kentucky, depostitions, Box 411. Spillman, Heirs—William Bowling and wife Sally (formerly Sally Spillman), James, Thomas, Samuel, Spillman, devisees and sons of Thomas Spillman, deceased. (29, Vol.2, page 141)
Death

William died 1849 in Maysville, Mason County, Kentucky.  He was buried at Dover, Mason County, Kentucky. (152) Estate of William Bowling, deceased. Thaddeous C. Campbell, admr. William F. Thomas, surety, Order Book O, Page 436, July court, 1850, Mason County, Kentucky. (1155)(1819)
Mason,KY-created 1789 from Bourbon


6C
William (Fh788,340b Rin=46489) t1796,r1797,d1849

6C
Sarah (nee Spillman, wife of William, Fh788) d1835


6C

John S. (Fh384,788b)(Rin=46495) r1850(Census),w1853


6C


Gabriel (384a) r1850 (Census--age 29)


6C


Sarah (384b) r1850 (Census--age 20)


6C


Philicia (384c) r1850 (Census--age 1)


6C

Edward (788i) d1839

This may be someone else

a.
William and Mary Bowling had a daughter Manervy who married 1830 John Pebworth or Rebworth in Franklin County, Kentucky. They may have also had sons Andrew and Granville. (7) 

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

William Fh810 (6K) 860a

-----------------

William 1777-1854 (Rin=54038, FAG 71098721,G4V8-G6N)/m1804 Elizabeth "Betsy" May or Way (?)--His father was William Fh860 

abc
Hannah 1805KY-1880/m1832 Joseph Tucker Russell


ab
Rebecca b1807 KY-d>1854/m<1854 Adam Hopelink


abc
Mary 1808KY-1844KY/m1828 John W. Hubbs


abc
Mariah b1810TN/m1831 Robert Oliver


abc
"Betsey" Elizabeth b1815KY-d1870/m<1854 Reno/Rene Mumer/Meunier

abc
Martha Jane 1816KY-d<1854/mc1835 Thomas Wigginton


abc
Phebe bc1817KY-d<1854/mc1838 Patrick O'Briant


abc
William bc1818 KY-d1897/m1837 Mary ----- 


ab
Charlotte bc1820KY-d>1854/m>1854 ----- Long


ab
Matilda b1821KY-1854KY/m<1854 David O'Brien


a
Per source #888, William Bolin’s will in Hardin County, Kentucky (Will Book E, page 272-274).


Will  dated 4 May 1854 and file 15 March 1855 list his children and grandchildren but no wife listed.


b
Abstract of above will by Source #1683


c
1820 Census of Shelby County, Kentucky. (Ancestry.com)

There were three William Bolins in Hardin County, Kentucky, each with a wife Elizabeth.


1. Fh880,020f,6K (LBCH-WFQ) William Bolin, son of Alexander, married Elizabeth Rust, later moving to Ralls County, 
Missouri.


2. Fh820,M16 Rev. William Luther Bolin (L6H8-29Z), son of John Bolin and Naomi Ray, married Elizabeth Alphin, later 
moving to Illinois. L6H8-29Z UK DNA but not DNA 6 apparently


3. Fh810 William Bolin (G4V8-G6N) with wife Elizabeth "Betsy" Way settled in Hardin County, Kentucky in 1816 and lived 
in the vicinity until William died in 1854. (7)

Do not combine them.

William Bowlen, males 160010 females 32010. (looks like Fh810,860a,6K) 


1—male under 10 (William bc1818 KY)


6—male 10 to under 16 (b1804-1810)(The 6 may have been a 0)


0—male between 16 and 18


0—male 16 to under 26 (b1794-1804)


1—male 26 to under 45 (b1775-1794) 


0—male 45 and up 


3—female under 10


2—female 10 to under 16


0—female 16 to under 26


1—female 26 to under 45 (b1775-1794)


0—female 45 and up



Source #1027 has many of these children as children of William, Fh880,020f
Birth, Parents, Lineage

William Bolling was born 1777 in Virginia. (31)(60) William Bolin was born 1777 in Virginia. (7)  William Bowling was born 1777 in Fairfax County, Virginia. (Ancestry.com file) His father was William (Fh860,746j). (7) William Bowling was born 1775-1794 based on the 1830 Census below. (7) William D. Bolling listed as a brick maker in 1800. (1179) In 1813 John Bowling (Fh398,860c,6K) appoints William Boling, both of Shelby County, Kentucky, "in suit where I am plaintiff and Richard Merriweather and Samuel Bryant are defendants", 29 June 1813. (1394) William D. Bowland married Harriet Perkins, 1820, in Shelby County, Kentucky. (1157)(1395) William D. Bowling was a cabinet maker 1820 in Shelby County, Kentucky. (1211) William  Bowland was in the 1820 Census of Shelby County, Kentucky. Also listed were a William Bowlen and a William Bowlin. (1155)

1820 Census of Shelby County, Kentucky. (Ancestry.com)

William  Bowland, males 000010 females 00100. (Looks like newly married, i.e. 860b.)

William Bowlen,    males 160010 females 32010. 


1—male under 10


6—male 10 to under 16 (b1804-1810)(The 6 may have been a 0)


0—male between 16 and 18


0—male 16 to under 26 (b1794-1804)


1—male 26 to under 45 (b1775-1794) 


0—male 45 and up 


3—female under 10


2—female 10 to under 16


0—female 16 to under 26


1—female 26 to under 45 (b1775-1794)


0—female 45 and up
William Bowlen,    males 110011 females 00101.


1—male under 10


1—male 10 to under 16 (b1804-1810)


0—male between 16 and 18


0—male 16 to under 26 (b1794-1804)


1—male 26 to under 45 


1—male 45 and up (b<1775)


0—female under 10


0—female 10 to under 16


1—female 16 to under 26 (b1794-1804)


0—female 26 to under 45 


1—female 45 and up (b<1775)


Marriage and Children

There were three Shelby County, Kentucky Marriage Bonds for William Bowling. Could be the same William or different Williams. (1559)

Name: William Bowling (Fh782, Fh810) 

Spouse: Elizabeth Way 

Marriage Date: 05 Jan 1804 

June 1, 1805

Name: William Bowling (Fh781,son of Sims Fh627,K) 

Spouse: Elizabeth Owen 

Marriage Date: 27 Jun 1816

Name: William D. Bowling (860b,K)

Spouse: Harriet Perkins 

Marriage Date: 11 May 1820

A William Bolin married Elizabeth May/Way in Shelby County, Kentucky in 1804.  (This could be William Bolin Fh782 or Fh810). (7) William Bowling married Elizabeth Way either 5 Jan 1804 or 1 June 1805 in Shelby County, Kentucky. (1395) Elizabeth "Betsy" Way married ----- Bolin. She was born about 1781 of Shelby County, Kentucky. She died before 1840 in Bullitt County, Kentucky. (Ancesrty.com)

William Bolin married Elizabeth “Betsy” Way-----.  They had children:

a.
Hannah 1805-1880/m1832 Joseph Tucker Russell. (888)(1683)(7) A Hannah Bolin, with a father William, married 
1832 Joseph Russell, in Hardin County, Kentucky. (1680)

b.
Mary 1808-1844/m1828 John W. Hubbs. (888)(1683)(7)  Mary Bolin married 1828 Hardin County, Kentucky, 
John W. Hubbs by oath of Garrett Bolin (860b). (7) A Mary Bolin, with a father William, married 22 May 1828 
John W. Hubbs, in Hardin County, Kentucky. Garrett was witness. (1680)(1864)

c.
Mariah b1810/m1831 Robert Oliver. (888)(1683)(7)  Mariah Bolin married 1831 Hardin County, Kentucky, Robert 
Oliver by certificate of Garrett Bolin (860b). (7) A Mariah Bolin, with a father William, married 1831 Robert Oliver, 
in Hardin County, Kentucky. (1680)

d.
"Betsey" Elizabeth b1815-d>1854/m<1854 Reno/Rene Mumer. (888)(1683)(7) In St. Patrick's Cemetery #18 (Ft. 
Knox, Hardin, Kentucky) there is a Elizabeth Meunier (April 23, 1815 - Dec. 31, ?? broken stone).  Her maiden 
name was Bolin. (FAG = 50744564) (7)

e.
Martha Jane 1816-d<1854/Thomas Wigginton. (888)(1683)(7)

f.
Phebe bc1817-d<1854/m<1854 Patrick O'Briant. (888)(1683)(7) Phebe Bolin born 1817 in Hardin County, 
Kentucky (Ancestry.com)

g.
Rebecca d>1854/m<1854 Adam Hopelink. (888)(1683)(7)

h.
William bc1818-d>1854/Mary ----- . (888)(1683)(7)

i.
Charlotte bc1820-d>1854/m>1854 ----- Long. (888)(1683)(7)

j.
Matilda bc1822-1855/m<1854 David O'Brien. (888)(1683)(7)

There is a possibility that William may be of the Shelby County Kentucky Bowlings and he may be the William Bolin (Fh810,860a) who married Elizabeth Way in Shelby County in 1804, but at this time that is speculative only. (7)  William Bolin bought land on which he settled in Hardin County, Kentucky in 1816. A Garrett Bolin (860b) gave consent to one of the daughters of William Bolin (Fh810,860a) i.e. Mary who married 1828 John W. Hubbs and was a witness to the marriage of another i.e. Mariah married 1831 Robert Oliver, both in Hardin County, Kentucky. (7) William Bolin got a Kentucky land grant of 50 acres, Book L-2, Page 185, date surveyed 1 April 1836, Hardin County, Kentucky, Abrams branch (watercourse). (17)  

I could not find him in the 1820, 1830 or 1840 Census. (Ancestry.com) 

This is probably him: 1850 Census, Larue Co, KY—Hamiltons Bolin, Wm, age 73, white, male, farmer, $8000, b.VA
living in household of R. P. Briscoe, 52, physician and wife, M.A. Briscoe age 48, both b. KY. Larue County was created 1843 from Hardin County. (7) 

Death

William Sr. died 1854 in Hardin County, Kentucky. (7)(540)  William Bolin died July 4, 1854 aged 77 years and is buried in the Davis Cemetery, Fort Knox, Hardin County, Kentucky. (FAG = 71098721) (7) William Bolin, born ??/??/1818c (c=circa, approximate date based on age in census records or other documents.) Died 07/04/1854.  Davis Cemetery (Fort Knox), Cemetery #4 (Fort Knox), Hardin County, Kentucky. Only other person seen on the list for this cemetery was Mary L. Kelley, born 11/19/1846, died 04/11/1873. (1505) William Bowling died 1854 in Hardin County, Kentucky. (Ancestry.com file) 
+++++++++++++++++++++++++

William Fh844 (6A) 100f

-----------------

William b>1760-<1770-1838 (Rin=46073)/m1805 (sic) Sarah “Sally” Fugate bc1760-1770-d>1838—His father was Benjamin #100 (Rin=18518)

abc
Soloman R. b>1790-<1800-1844--Male b1820-1825 in 1830 Census


  bc
Nancy 1796-d>1860/m<1828 John Baker (1781-d>1860)


  bc
Mary Ann 1799-1846/mc1821 Daniel Prawfer/Proffer (1801-1855)


  bc
Samuel bc1800-d<1844/m     Elizabeth -----,—Had minor children when he died


abc
John 1805-d>1838<1866/m     Nancy ------ --?Male b1815-1820 in 1830 Census


abc
Sarah 1806-1853/mc1822 Samuel Welch--?Female b1810-1815 in 1830 Census


  bc
Lydia 1808-d>1838/m1828 Alfred Crump


abc
Celia d>1838/m1834 Thomas Stroder--Female b1800-1810 in 1830 Census





  bc
Priscilla 1815-d>1870/mc1833 Henry Penturf


  bc
Jesse C. b>1815-<1825-d>1838/m      Mary E. ------
 
a
In 1830 Census of Cape Girardeur, Missouri

b
Mentioned in the 8 January 1833 Will of their father William, Cape Girardeur, Missouri



See Source #1842


c
Children and some information per Source #1803 (Diane Jones)

Birth, Parents, Lineage

William Bolling was born 1761. (1804) William Boling is in the 1830 census of Cape Girardeau County, Missouri, age 60-70, so was born 1760-1770. (1155)
Marriage and Children

William Bolling married Sarah Fugate/Fugit, daughter of John Fugate/Fugit (of Castle Woods). "This John Fugate/Fugit was born ca 1735 according to a militia muster list in Frederick County, Virginia and he had been drafted from King George County, Virginia." (1804) William Bolin (AFN 1DD9-SHK) married 24 September 1805 Sarah Fugate in Tazewell County, Virginia, according to the LDS AF. (1414) William Bowling married Sarah "Sally" Fugate, the daughter of "Castlewood" John Fugate. (7) William Bolling married Sarah "Sally" Fugate. (700) William Boling, in his 8 January 1838 will, mentions his wife Sarah and the names of six daughters and four sons. See below and Family Head section. (1842)  

1783

William Bowling/Bolin/Bolling (Fh844) was mentioned as being a settler in Castle's Woods neighborhood of Russell County, Virginia in the 1770's per Summers "History of Southwest Virginia 1746-1786, Washington County 1777." Mr. Summers also states: "Early in the year 1783, about 12 years after the first settlement at Castle's Woods, a party of northward Indians invaded the settlement and attacked the fort at Hamblin's Mill. This fort was erected by Henry Hamblin, one of the first settlers in that section, in the year 1776, with the assistance of Henry Dickinson, Charles Bickley, William Robertson, William Russell, Patrick Porter, Henry Neece, William Wharton, Humphrey Dickinson, Frederick Fryley, James bush, Archelas Dickinson, Samuel Ritchie, Jerry Harrold, Richard and William Long and William Bowlin, the first settlers in that section." (1155)(1466) William Bowlin was one of the earliest settlers of the New River Valley of Virginia.  One of the men in the hunting party that came to Castle Woods with William Bolling was known to have been William Robertson of the Pocahontas Line and Richard Randolph also bought land on the New River.  William Bolling settled deep inside a dense forest of great virgin timber to be known as "Castle Woods".  News of the hunting and fishing territory began an migration of William Bowling's kinfolk’s and their allied families.  It has been said that William Bowling raised a sizable family in "Castle Woods".  William Bowling appears to have left Mortgomery County, Virginia in the early 1790s. (7) 

1785

William Bowland and Jared Bowland (100a,Fh320,A) signed a petition 1785 to form Russell County from Washington County, Virginia. (1275) Washington County, Virginia, Legislative Petitions 1777-1786, petition of December 8, 1785 for the division of Washington County. William Bowland was a signer of this petition. Russell County was formed from Washington County in 1785. (1155)

1787

William Bolin was on the 1787 census of Russell County, Virginia, with 6 horses, and 6 head of cattle. (551) William Bolen was on the 1787 tax census of Russell County, Virginia, with 6 horses, and 6 head of cattle. (54)

1790

William Bolin paid taxes 1790 in the Lower district of Russell County, Virginia. (1276)

1791

William Bolin on March 18, 1791, 56 acres - part of Treasury Warrant 10922 dated February 12, 1782 - on both sides of Castles Run - corner Robert McCoy. (1556) William Bolin had land records 1791 in Russell County, Virginia. (1802)
1792

Page 31 (Russell County, Virginia document) tells that Richard Long (brother of William) is granted administration of the estate of William Long, and his securities were Charles Bickley and James Osborne. Page 49, dated 28 November, 1792, is that William Robinson, Samuel Porter, (of Castlewood) William Bolin and John Smith, appraise the estate of William Long, deceased. Then Russell County Order Book 2, page 20, dated 24 July, 1792, "ordered that a summons be issued to Ann Long, widow of William Long, to appear at October Court to see the legality of a noncupative will made by William Long, deceased. Sworn statements of Henry Dickenson, Draper MSS 8 DD 70 and 3 DD 208. (1553)

1793

William Bowlin paid taxes on 300 acres 1793 in Russell County, Virginia. A Jacob Castle was also listed. (1801)
1794

In the 1794 Russell County tax list lower district - Patrick Porter, Commissioner, states that William Bolin had 300 acres. (1155)

1795

William Bolin had land records 1795 in Russell County, Virginia. (1802)

1797

William Bolin is executor of will of John English in Russell County Virginia on August 1797. (1155)(1468)

1798

William Bolin had land records 1798 in Russell County, Virginia. (1802) William owned land next to John, the son of Castlewood John, in 1798 in Russell Co., VA.  [name spelled Bolin and Bolen in Russell Co. records]  Map of William Bolin's land shown on page 73 of Fugate Family Newsletter (v.3, no. 1); it was on the eastern corner of the confluence of Castles Run and the Clinch River and adjoined land owned by John Fugit and Benjamin Fugit. (1468) William Bolin (Fh844) owned land next to John Fugate the son of Castlewood John Fugate in 1798 in Russell County, Virginia. This land was located on the eastern corner of the confluence of Castle's Run and the Clinch River and adjoined land owned by John Fugit and Benjamin Fugit. (1155) Page 261 - February 7, 1798 - John Fugate, Jr. - 34 ac - part 2 Treasury Warrants: 14 ac by 10922 dated February 12, 1782 & 20 ac by 14585 dated September 1, 1782 - crossing a survey of William Bowling & James McKinney - on the south side of Lick Branch  (1556) Page 290 - William Bolin - August 9, 1798, assignee of William Trimble - 343 ac - Commissioners Certificate - on some sinking waters on the south side of Clinch River - on a road side. (1556) Page 293 - John Fugate, Sr., assignee of Henry Hamblin - August 22, 1798 - 100 ac by part Treasury Warrant 10872 dated February 6, 1782 - on Castle Run, branch of Clinch River, on the north side of the river - near McCoys northwest corner of his old survey formerly Henry Hamlins - corner to Frederick Frileys land - corner Frileys 260 ac survey - corner William Bolin. (1556)
1799

1799 Russell County, Virginia, Tax Lists (7):

6A,100a,Fh320
Bolling Jarrett

1


2

6A,100b

Bolling Enoch

1


1

6A,100e

Bolling Joseph

1


2

6A,100f,Fh844
Bolling Wm

1


2

6A,100g

Bolling David

1


0

1800

They are not in Russell County in 1800 as Tazewell County was formed then. (382) Tazewell County, Virginia, was created 1799 from Russell County. (7)

1804

William Bolin (AFN 1DD9-SHK) married 24 September 1805 Sarah Fugate in Tazewell County, Virginia, according to the LDS AF. (1414)

1810---Tazewell

William Bolen was on the 1810 tax list of Tazewell County, Virginia. (380)  William Boland was in the Tazewell County, Virginia Militia along with Enoch (100b) and Jarrett (100a,Fh320) Boland. (7) 

1811

William and Sarah Bolin sold their land in 1811. Benjamin Fugit signed as a witness. (1803)

Mid 1820s

During the mid 1820's William Bolin and family, with members of the Fugate family moved to Cape Girardeau County, Missouri. Cape Girardeau is located in the central portion of Missouri that adjoins Kentucky. 

1830

The 1830 census of Cape Girardeau County, Missouri shows: William Boling age 60-70, 1 male age 5-10, 1 male age 10-15, 1 female age 15-20, 1 female age 20-30, and wife age 60-70. Information taken from marriage bonds and other data shows William and Sarah Fugate Bolin probably had children that are not known. (1155) 

William Bolin was listed in the Cape Girardeau County, Missouri 1830 census [in Fugate Family Newsletter, v. 3, n. 1. p. 74] with the following:

one male 5-10 years [1820-1825], 

one male 10-15 years [1815-1820], 

one male 60-70 years [1760-1770][William], 

one female 15-20 years [1810-1815], 

one female 20-30 years [1800-1810], 

one female 60-70 years [1760-1770][Sarah]. (1468)

Perhaps a daughter Elizabeth Bowling married 1827 John Baker in Cape Girardeau County, Missouri. (1414) 

1833

In 1833 William Bowling and wife were in Cape Girard County, Missouri. (320) Russell Co. VA Deed Book 10, p. 52: 21 Nov 1833. John Fugit of Decatur Co. IN, Jonathan Fugit of Perry Co. KY, Jesse Fugit of Jefferson Co. IN, Benjamin Fugit and Lydia Fugit of Lawrence Co. KY, Moses Fugit of Bedford Co. TN, William Bolin, intermarried with Sarah Fugit of Cape Girard [Girardeau] Co. MO, Benjamin George, intermarried with Martha Fugit of Franklin Co., IN, WILLIAM HOLBROOK, intermarried with DELILAH FUGIT, heir of HANNAH FUGIT of Lawrence Co. KY..... being heirs of John Fugit of Russell Co. VA deceased, (sell) to Henry Fraley, 100 ac. at the mouth of Castle Run, granted to John Fugit by patent bearing the date 22 Aug 1798. We know quite a bit about John Fugate, but not who his parents were. He was b. ca1735, lived in King George Co. VA until the mid-1750's when he appears in Frederick & Shenandoah Cos. In 1772 he sold his land and moved to southwest VA, settling first in Washington Co. near present Saltville, and then in the mid-1790's moving up to Castlewood in Russell Co. He died in 1824, before the sale of his estate on 16 August 1824. (1414)– Bolin, William (of Cape Girardeau Co., MO); 21 Nov. 1833; Sarah, heir and legatee of John Fugit. (R:DB10:52) (1804)(1803) The following settlement of John Fugate's estate shows: This indenture made this 21 day of November in the year of our Lord 1833 between John Fugit of Decatur County State of Indiana, Jonathan Fugit, Jesse Fugit, Benjamin Fugit, Lydia Fugit, Moses Fugit, William Bolin intermarried with Sarah Fugit, Benjamin George intermarried with Martha Fugit and William Holbrook intermarried Delilah Fuate heirs of Hannah Fugit, being heirs of John Fugit of Russell Deceased of the one part and Henry Fraley of Russell County and the State of Virginia the other part witnesseth that the said John Fugit of Decatur County Indiana State, Jonathan Fugit of Perry County State of Kentucky, Jesse Fugit of Jefferson County State of Indiana, Benjamin Fugit and Lydia Fugit of Lawrence County State of Kentucky, Mose Fugit of Bedford County State of Tennessee, William Bolin of Cape Girardeau County State of Missouri, Benjamin George of Franklin County State of Indiana, William Holbrook and Delilah Holbrook of Lawrence County State of Kentucky for in consideration of sum of two hundred and ten dollars to them in hand paid by the said Henry Fraley the receipt whereof is hereby acknowledged have granted bargain and sold and by these presents do grant bargain and sell unto the said Henry Fraley his heirs and assigns a certain tract or parcel of land containing one hundred acres of land lying and being in the county of Russell at the mouth of Castle run on both sides of the run and was granted to the aforesaid John Fugit by patent bearing date the twenty second day of August one thousand seven hundred and ninety eight and bounded as follows etc. (1803)(1804) 

That tells me that Sarah Bolin of Cape Girardeau, Missouri, is the daughter of John Fugate of Russell County, Virginia. I am convinced that the William Bolin in Russell County, Virginia and Cape Girardeau, Missouri is Sarah Fugate's husband, and I don't think they were ever in Clay County, KY nor have any connection to our Bolins there. The evidence is clear that William of Russell County, Virginia married Fugate & from all the evidence I presented in my Word file, they never left Russell County, Virginia until 1811. I still must look at Cape Girardeau records before 1830 to see exactly when they arrived there, but they most definitely could have arrived there before Missouri statehood in 1821 (there may be an 1820 territorial census for Missouri- but I have not found it online). (1803) My GUESS is that the William Bowling [Cape Girardeau MO] belongs to your DNA Group 6. This William Bowling has long been confused with William Bolling (Fh744), brother to James bca 1756. I think Diane Jones (Source #1803) proved that it is the Cape Girardeau William that married a Fugate. (1414)

Death
The 8 January 1838 will of William Bolin (Fh844). "In the name of the most high God Amen. I, William Bolin a citizen of the County of Cape Girardeau in the State of Missouri do make ordain publish and declare This to be my last will and testament hereby revoking and canceling all previous will made by me.

In the first place I surrender my sole unto God; who gave it to my happiness for a glorious and happy resurrection from the Grave. 
In the Second place it is my wish to be burried in a decent and Christian like manner at the place I have heretofar selected on my farm.

3rd To my beloved wife Sarah Bolin I give and bequeath the use profit and benfit of all my property and estate of every kind and description what ever both real personal and _____ during her natural life or widohood.
After the death or marriage of my wife I make the following disposition of my property that is to say.
I give and bequeath to my son Jesse C. Bolin and the heirs of his body all my right title ____ and interest to a tract of land lying and being on both sides of crook Creek in the said County of Cape Girardeau known as the head right of Reason Bai--- suppose to contain two hundred and forty acres more or less. Also our female slave named Matilda about ten years old one Bay mare and her colt, one sorrel mare four years old, two yoke of oxen, and their equipment two cows and calves, to be selected by him from my stock, one half of my hogs which may be on hand at my decease, our bed and furniture, and bed stead to be given to him by his mother.
2 Loan to my daughter Nancy Baker during her natural life, a negro girl slave by the name of Mary; and after her death it is my will and desire that the said girl Mary and her increase may go equally to all the children of my said daughter Nancy.
I give and bequeath to my son Samuel Bolin one male slave name George eighteen years of age.

4th I loan to my Daughter Priscilla Penturf during her natural life, one negro girl slave named Milley eight years old; and after her death it is my will and desire that the said girl Milley and her increase may go equally to all the children of my said daughter Priscilla.

5th I loan to my Daughter Mary Ann Prawfer during her natural life one negro girl named Nancy about five years old; and after her death it is my Will and desire that the said girl Nancy and her increase may to equally to all the children of my said daughter Mary Ann

6 I loan to my Daughter Celia Stroder during her natural life one negro girl named Caroline about two years old, and after her death it is my Will and desire that the said girl and her increase may go equally to all the children of my said daughter Celia.

7th I loan to my Daugnter Lydia Crump during her natural life one negro boy slave named Aaron about seventeen years old, and at her death to go equally to all her children.

8 I give and bequeath to my Son John Bolin one negro Boy named Andrew about fourteen years of age.

9 I loan to my Daughter Sarah Welch during her natural life a negro Boy named John about seven _____ (Months?) old, and at her death to go equally to all her children.

10th I give and bequeath to my Son Soloman R. Bolin one Sorrel mare two years old _____ caluce Hellin barr, and her increase

11 In the event of my negro woman Phillis hereafter having any children, it is my will and desire that the first child she may have should go to my son Solomon R. Bolin her second child she may have to be loaned to my Daughter Sarah Welch during her life and at her death to go equally to all the children of my said daughter Sarah. If the said negro Phillis should have any more children, they are to be divided and go equally to all my other children.

12 It is my will and desire that my said negro girl Phillis be emancipate and get free on the first day of January eighteen hundred and forty eight, if my wife Sarah should be dead at that time. If my wife should live until eighteen hundred and forty eight, the said negro Phillis is not to be freed until the death of my said wife.
It is my will and desire that my said negro Phillis be permited to live in and occupy the house and field she now lives in during her natural life. This I request of my Son Jesse.

13 It is my will and desire that my Executors hereinafter named, do after the death of my wife sell all the ballance of my land and personal property not here in before disposed of, to the highest bider, on a credit of twelve monthly and the proceeds threof to be equally divided amongst my four children that is to say Solomon R. Bolin Sarah Welch Mary Ann Prawfer and Celia Stroder after their giving to my daughter Priscilla Painturf twenty five dollars.

14 I appoint and constitute my sons Solomon R. Bolin, Samuel Bolin, and Jesse C. Bolin the Executors of this my last Will and testament. In testimony where of I have herein to set my hand seal this 8th day of January 1838

William Bolin

Signed Sealed and publish as the last will and testament of Wm Bolin in the presence of us

N. W. Wathins
John W. Dunn

State of Missouri 
County of Cape Girardeau

We, Nathaniel W. Watkins and John W. Dunn, do solemuly swear that William Bowlin now deceased did on the 8th day of January 1838 publish the forgoing as his last will and testament, that he was then of sound and disposing mind and memory, that he subscribed the same in our preserve, and that we signed our names as witnesses to the same at the request

Recorded Book B, page 284-5-6"

[handwritten at bottom: "need page 287 - when probated??"] (1842)

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

William Fh844 (6A), 100g
-----------------

William Bowling (Rin=46073) had a sister Mary Bowling (100h 6A) who was born 1773 in Tennessee (sic). She married William George II and they had a son born 1801.  The George family was from Culpeper County, Virginia. They were descendants of Pocahontas. (sic. 297)

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

William Fh851 (6N2) UK
-----------------

William bc1760-w1805 (Alexandria, VA)(Rin=55065)—His father is Unknown



George bc1780-d1815/m1801 1/w Sarah Staples,m1805 2/w Elizabeth Veitch




Mary/m<1805 Joseph Birch 


*
Garret-minor in 1808


*
Simon-minor in 1805


*
Named in the 1805 will of their father in Alexandria, VA. Guardianship was granted to Joseph 



Birch for minors. (678)

William Bowling had a will proved February 9, 1805, Alexandria City & County, Virginia, with administration going to James Anderson.  It appears he had two minor sons because guardianship for Garret and Simon Bowling was granted March 16, 1805 to Joseph Birch, secondly to Thomas Darne. (678) 

William probably had: 

a. 
an older son George, who had a 1801 and 1805 marriage in Alexandria, Virginia. George Bowling was born in 
Fairfax County, Virginia. (588) George Bowling married 1801 Sarah Staples in Alexandria, Virginia. (1614) 
Three persons named Staples tested in to DNA 6. George Bowling married 1805 Elizabeth Veitch in 
Alexandria, Virginia. (7) George Bowling enlisted in the U.S. Army Dragonns at Alexandria, Virginia, 1813.  
He died while on a furlough in 1815.  He listed his occupation as farmer. (588)  George Bowling was a private 
in Burd's light dragoons in the War of 1812. George Bowling was deceased by May 26, 1818, when his sister,
 
Mary Birch, and other heirs got bounty lands in Illinois. (745) George Bowling's will was administrated 9 May 
1818, by Caleb Birch, Will Book 2, Alexandria, Virginia. 
(678)(2124)

George Bowling 
(851a,6)


Abijah Bowling 
(Fh008,1563a,6N2)-- His father was Charles #1563 (Rin=50310)


James Bowling 
(Fh282,1563b,6N2)-- His father was Charles #1563 (Rin=50310)


are mentioned as being in the War of 1812, Stafford County, Virginia, Muster Roll of Capt. John C. 


Edrington. (1943) 

b.
an older daughter Mary who married before 1805 Joseph Birch. (7) 

c.
Garret-minor in 1808

d.
Simon-minor in 1805

Names
Patentee:, Mary Birch
Warrantee:, George Bowling
 [image: image12.png]





Survey
[image: image13.png]





State:, ILLINOIS

Acres:, 160

Metes/Bounds:, No

[image: image14.png]





Title Transfer
[image: image15.png]





Issue Date:, 5/26/1818

Land Office:, Illinois

Cancelled:, No

U.S. Reservations:, No

Mineral Reservations:, No

Authority:, May 6, 1812: ScripWarrant Act of 1812 (2 Stat. 728)
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Document Numbers
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Document Nr.:, 17239

Accession/Serial Nr.:, IL5170__.398

BLM Serial Nr.:, IL NO S/N

 [image: image18.png]





NE , 19/ , 8-N , 5-W , No , 4th PM - 1815 Illinois, IL, Henderson. (1911)

Henderson,IL-created 1841 from Warren

6

George D. (851a) l1818 (Military Tract Warrant)

6

Mary (Birch, sister of George) l1818

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

William Fh860 (6K) 746j

-----------------

William 1751-1794 (Rin=53935 9KD7-238)/m<1770 Margaret ----- -- His father was William  #746

a
William 1777-1854 will 1854 Hardin, KY (FAG 71098721)/m1804 Elizabeth "Betsy" May or Way—

See Family #810 

a
Garrett 860b d1832, Hardin, KY) (LD74-5QD)

a
John b1770-1780-w1844wp1845/m       -------- ---------, 1840 Census Hardin, KY)—See Family #398

a
Eliza Ann/m1818 Belford D. Smith-marriage in Shelby, KY 

a
In 1790 Census Chartiers Township, Washington County, Pennsylvania,


with 1 males over 16, 3 males under 16 and 2 females.

a
1 son b>1774-d>1790 (probably William Fh810, will 1854 Hardin, KY or William Fh782)


a
2 son b>1774-d>1790 (probably Garrett 860b d1832, Hardin, KY) (LD74-5QD)


a
3 son b>1774-d>1790 (probably John Fh398, 1840 Census Hardin, KY)


a
1 dau. b>1774--Eliza Ann/m1818 Belford D. Smith-marriage in Shelby, KY 

Birth, Parents, Lineage

Lines of Descent from 

            William Fh746 6K Kit 296494 Kit 2282 12051 BOWLING-39828

                                       &

                           Elizabeth COLCLOUGH-58143

-----------------------------  /  ------------  \  ---------------------------------------

 George Fh237 6K BOWLING-53949 b.1750    William Fh860 6K BOWLING-53935 b.1751
 William Fh861 6K BOWLING-55053 b.1774 
From Place Index

Kentucky, Virginia--from December 31, 1776 to November 1, 1780


6K
Alexander 
(Fh020,746d) l1780--later Jefferson


6K
Garrett,Gerrard      (Fh2299,746f) l1780--later Jefferson-present day Mason, KY


6K
Henry                    (Fh2499,746g) l1780,m1784,r1785--later Jefferson


6K
Robert                      (Fh558,746j) r1780s,r1791--later Jefferson



Walter (Fh7385) b1775--later Jefferson


6K
William                   (Fh860,746m) l1780--later Jefferson

Jefferson,KY-created 1780 from original Kentucky County, Virginia (early towns Louisville and Bardstown)


6K
Alexander                 (Fh020,746d) l1780-Could be in Hardin County today



Baldwin                      (UK,?746x) wp1792 (Source 473)


6K
George                     (Fh237,746e) r1787,t1789-Part that was Shelby Co. later


6K
Garrett,Gerrard        (Fh2299,746f)  l1780-Could be in Hardin Co. later-present day Mason, KY 


6K
Henry                      (Fh2499,746g) l1780,m1784 (Sarah Bonam),r1785,r1786-1790


6K
Robert              (Fh558,746j) r1780s,r1791 (in 1823/1824 heirs payed taxes on land on Cross Creek, Jefferson, Ky) 


6K
William                     (Fh860,746m) l1780-Part that was Shelby Co. later

William Bollan (6K Fh860,746j), September 12, 1772, land mentioned lying near John Struthers XE "Struthers:John"  on waters of Ohio on Shirtee river XE "Creek:Shirtee" 

 XE "River:Ohio"  by Patterson's Run XE "Run:Patterson's" , bought from James Patterson XE "Patterson:James" . (1224) In the year 1772 John Struthers came to this county (Chartiers Twp) , and on the 22d day of September of that year (1772) he purchased six hundred acres of land of James Patterson, "situate on the waters of the Ohio, on a river called Shirtee, and joining the lands of William Bollan on the east, upon the run known by the name of Patterson's Run. (2180) "William Bollan was an "early landowner" of Washington County, Pennsylvania. Also mentioned on that page was Matthew Bowland. Also in a footnote on that page it mentions "land situated on the waters of the Ohio, on a river called Shirtee, and joining the lands of William Bollan on the east". (2152, page 70) “Many of the uneducated settlers in this area, unable to handle French pronunciation of Chartier’s, spoke or wrote the word in ill-conceived phonetics as Shirtee. The name of Chartier’s Creek often appears this way in the early documents” (2084, footnote 146, page 659) “Pontiac’s War, shortly after 1761, fueled the decision by the English Parliament to issue the Proclamation of 1763 restricting colonial expansion past the Appalachian Divide.” (1844) The Bowling boys paid no attention to this restriction. (7) William Boling was a single freeman 1772, Rostraver Township, Bedford County, Pennsylvania (Westmoreland County in 1773). (646)(1014) In 1772, and until Westmoreland County was established in 1773, Bedford County encompassed all of southwestern Pennsylvania. All of present Fayette County -- east of a straight line from the mouth of Redstone to the mouth of Jacob's Creek -- consisted of two townships, Springhill and Tyrone. Here, the division line was Redstone Creek, from its mouth to where it was crossed by Burd's Road, and from Burd's Road to Gist's, then Braddock's Road to the Great Crossing. That part of Fayette County, northwest of Redstone to the mouth of Jacob's Creek, was a part of Rostraver Township. The counties of Greene and Washington, west of Fayette, were evidently included in Springhill. (1014) William Bolling was an "inmate" taxed 15.0 in 1773 in Rosstraver Township, Bedford County, Pennsylvania. (273) Alexander Bowling and William Bolling were taxed 1773, Rosstraver Township, Bedford County, Pennsylvania. Alexander taxed .6 and William 15.0. (273) William Bowling and Alexander Bowling (Fh020) lived in Rosstraven Township, Bedford County, Pennsylvania. (7) William and Alexander Bowling were on the inhabitants’ 1773 list of Westmoreland County, Pennsylvania. (421) William Bowling vs. Robert Rutherford XE "Rutherford:Robert" , Proceedings: Capias Case; also Jacob Shilling XE "Shilling:Jacob"  vs. William Bowling Proceedings: Capias Case, Civil Court Docket, Westmoreland Co., Pennsylvania, 1773. (1675) Jacob Shilling, assee vic, vs. William Boling and Alexander Boling Proceedings: Summons Debt L40, Civil Court Docket, Westmoreland Co., Pennsylvania, Jan 1774. (1676)----- Bowlin signed an agreement to encourage the destruction of wolves in 1777 in Somerset County, (Bedford County at the time) Pennsylvania. (781) (This could be William Fh860,746j). William Bowling and Sims Bowling (Fh627, 746i, 6K) signed a October 27, 1778 petition of the Virginia House of Delegates requesting the Division of Yohogania County, Virginia. (475) William Bowling and Alexander Bowling (probably Fh020) signed a "call" for Rev. Joseph Smithxe "Smith:Rev. Joseph", 21 June 1779, to be pastor of the Cross Creek and Upper Buffalo Presbyterian Church, Washington County, Pennsylvania. About 50 other surnames living in Hopewell Township signed the document. (992) About 1780 William Boling and Alexander Moling (sic, probably Boling Fh020, 746a), along with many other familiar names, sign a petition for a new state to be called Westsylvania. (1172) 
6K
860b
Garrett Bolin gave consent to one of the daughters of William Bolin (Fh810) i.e. Mary (810c) who married 1828 John W. Hubbs and was a witness to the marriage of another i.e. Mariah (810d) married 1831 Robert Oliver, both in Hardin County, Kentucky. (7) A Garrard Bowling died 1832 in Hardin County, Kentucky. (Ancestry.com)

Revolutionary Military Service

1781-1783

Source 517 Washington PA Rangers 1778-1783

Washington County Frontier Rangers 1778-1783

(PA Archives, Third Series, Vol. XXIII, Pages 198-220)
George
Bowlen
 
6K   
Fh237,009b,746e  

Wm.
Bowlin
 
6K
Fh860,009j,746j

James
Bowling
 
6M1
Fh279,009e,278a

Simms
Howling (sic)
6K           Fh627,         746x (517)

Henry Bowling (Fh2499,746x) along with Alexander (Fh020,746x), William (Fh860,746j), George (Fh237,746b), Simms (Fh627,746i), and James Bowlin (Fh279,?746e) were in Washington County, Pennsylvania, during the Revolution. Note that duty after November 1783 is not considered Revolutionary War service. (7) Henry Bolin, 1781-83, private Washington County Pennsylvania Militia, inactive duty, 4th Battalion, 8th Company, 4th class. (448) Henry Bolin of Washington County, Pennsylvania, served as Militia Private 8th Company, 4th Bn (1781-1783). (1550) 

See http://www.digitalarchives.state.pa.us/archive.asp?view=ArchiveItems&ArchiveID=13&FID=434278&LID=434377

All Pennsylvania counties which bordered Indian country maintained companies of Rangers whose sole employment was in the defense of frontier settlements. William Bowlin was a Ranger 1781-1782 in Washington County, Pennsylvania. (516)(517) William Bowling along with Alexander (746a, Fh020), Henry (746d), George (746b), Simms (Fh627,746i), and James Bowling (746e, Fh279) were in Washington County, Pennsylvania, during the Revolution. (7) William Bowling was a private in the Revolutionary War from Washington County, Pennsylvania. William Bowling received depreciated pay of the Washington County Militia. (140)(495) William Bolan (Bowlin) was in the 3rd Battalion, Capt. Andrew Swearingenxe "Swearingan:Capt. Andrew"'s Company, Washington County, Pennsylvania, 15 April 1782. Alexander Bolin (Bowlin) (Fh020) was in the same Company on 12 April 1782. George Bowling (746b) was in Capt. Andrew Swearingen's Company from 10 March 1781 to 5 November 1781 and George Boling was in the same Captain Andrew Swearingen's Company in 1785. (477) I have copies of William Bowling (746j,Fh860), Alexander Bowling (746a,Fh020), George Bowling (746b), James Bowling (746e), and Simms Bowling (746i,Fh627) Revolutionary cards from Pennsylvania and they were in Captain Andrew Swearingen's company Washington County, Pennsylvania, 3rd Battalion 4th Company Militia. They are like 4” x 6” cards in size. They are from Harrisburg, Pennsylvania, but on the Pennsylvania State Archives web page. Each card states "record proves active duty." (1518) William Bowlin, no date listed, was issued a certificate of public debt, Number 635, in the amount of L 5.8.6 for a tour of active duty in the Washington County Militia, which he performed as a member of Captain Andrew Swearingen's Company at an unspecified time during the Revolutionary War. (448) 
1783

William Bolen on March 3, 1783, of Washington County, Pennsylvania, sold John Dunnenxe "Dunnen:John" "127 Acres" in Washington County, Pennsylvania for 129 pounds. The land was between land of William Bolen and John Allisonxe "Allison:John". Signed William Bolin and witnesses John Weilsonxe "Weilson:John" and George McCullaghxe "McCullagh:George". This was recorded in Deed Book A, page 311 of Washington County, Pennsylvania. (637)(2036, page 35) William Bowlin was on the 1783 tax list of Cecil Township, Washington County, Pennsylvania, with 130 acres but no horses, cows, sheep, or slaves with a total value of 50. Also on the same tax list in the same township was Sims Bolam (sic)(Fh627, 746i) and Robert Bolling (746h) who was listed as a "single freeman". (616) William Bowling vs. John Riddlexe "Riddle:John", Jan 1787, Case #31, Washington County, Pennsylvania. The prior was found in the "Adsectum" but the case could not be found in the Appearance Docket. (643) William Bowland was on page 254 in the 1790 Census of Chartiers Township, Washington County, Pennsylvania with 1 white male over 16, 3 males under 16 and 2 females. The next entry had the family of Matthew Bowland (Fh4655) with 2 white males over 16, 4 males under 16 and 3 females. Other near neighbors were Charles Campbell XE "Campbell:Charles" , James Gault XE "Gault:James" , John Hays XE "Hays:John" , John Cannon XE "Cannon:John" , and Thomas Weaver XE "Weaver:Thomas"  all listed as being neighbor of Sims Bowland’s land in 1786 and in 1790 sold to Robert Bowland. (64)(578)(1431) William  Bowling (So this William isn’t Fh861 who died in KY in 1794), along with Matthew (Fh4655) and Robert Bowling (746h) were on the 1791,1792,1793 & 1794 tax lists of Chartiers Township, Washington County, Pennsylvania. (So this Robert was probably not doing road duty 1790 in Mercer County, Kentucky) (455)(648)(656) 

Marriage and Children

Eliza. Ann Bowling (860d), who’s father was William Bowling, married 12 February 1818, Belford D. Smith XE "Smith:Belford D." , in Shelby County, Kentucky. (1157)(1395)(1848)

Movement in Kentucky

Early Kentucky Land

	
	
	Date
	Vo  l. #
	Acres
	Warrant
	Zone
	Assignee
	Watercourse

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	


Bolin
Garet
1780.05.29
57
1000
PW
7

Licking

Boling
Garrett
1780.06.24
45
1200
T
8

Yellow Cr. 

Bolling
Garrett
1780.06.24
48
1000
T
10??

Yellow Cr. & Sinking Fk.

Bolling
Henry
1780.06.24
46
1000
T
8

Yellow Cr. Of Green River

Bolling
William
1780.07.06
13
400
T
8

Yellow Cr. Of Green River

Bowling
Alexander
1780.06.26
36
400
T
8
Edward Dulin
Nolin

Bowling
Alexander
1780.06.26
37
200
T
8

Nolin

PW
Preemption Warrant







T
Treasury Warrant, selling for 1 pound, 12 shillings



	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Zones
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	7
	Area drained by the Licking River
	
	
	
	

	8
	Area north of the Green River and south of the Salt and Ohio Rivers includes the Beech and Rolling forks of the Salt River

	10
	Wilderness Road area, e.g. drained by the lower Kentucky River and branches of the Cumberland

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Source 1198
	
	
	
	
	
	
	


See full land records. 

Yellow Creek 
Bolling, Henry
6/24/1780
1000
Page A147

Yellow Creek
Bolling, Garrett
6/24/1780
1200
Page A147

Yellow Creek
Bolling, William
7/6/1780

400
Page A160

While all three had warrants on Yellow Creek only Garrard went on to a survey and finally a patent/grant. (7)

This source is listed by Watercourse. Thus you know others there. For Yellow Creek:


Charles Dabney XE "Dabney:Charles" 

Page A147


John Dulin XE "Dulin:John" 

Robert Goode XE "Goode:Robert" 

John Thornton XE "Thornton:John" 

Page A147


George Watkins XE "Watkins:George" 
George Williams XE "Williams:George" 
Isaac Winston XE "Winston:Isaac" 
Peter Wise XE "Wise:Peter"  (See 230g,6A)

 (1866)
 

July 6, 1780 Kentucky Land

William Bowling came to Jefferson County, Kentucky in the 1780s. William Bowling came with Alexander (746a,Fh020), Garrett (746c,Fh2299), Robert (746h) and Henry Bowling (746d,Fh2499). (7)  William Bowling made a land entries in Jefferson County (sic, see next), on Yellow Creek XE "Creek:Yellow"  1780.  Jefferson County, Kentucky was created 1780 from the original Kentucky County, Virginia. (7) "Most of the Kentucky County entries were published by Willard Rouse Jillson in "Kentucky Land Entries", 1925, (Source #13 or #17) where they are incorrectly listed as Jefferson County entries. These Kentucky County entries can be distinguished from Jefferson county entries only by the dates." Kentucky, Virginia--from December 31, 1776 to November 1, 1780, Jefferson-created 1780 from original Kentucky County, Virginia (early towns Louisville and Beardstown) (1198, page 106) William Bolling made a land entry of 400 acres July 6, 1780 on Yellow Creek XE "Creek:Yellow" , Jefferson County, Kentucky Book A page 160. Henry Bolling (746d) and Garret Bolling (746c) made entries on Yellow Creek XE "Creek:Yellow"  at the same time. (Yellow Creek by 1798 was called Rough Creek) (13) William Bolling had a Kentucky County, Virginia (Kentucky now) land entry 6 July 1780 for 400 acres on the Yellow Creek XE "Creek:Yellow"  of the Green River XE "River:Green" . This could be in McLean County, Kentucky, today. (1198) Will Bolling and A. Boling (Probably Alexander Fh020) were on the list of "Insolvents for the years 1787 and 1789, Mercer County, Kentucky". (1365) I am stuck on William Bolin, (Fh860) my GGGGGrandfather. The only information I have on him is that he was born in Pennsylvania, had two brothers, Alexander (746a,Fh020) born 1746 who married Martha Patsy Williams and George (746b,Fh237), no information. Both of these brothers were in the Revolutionary War, Alex was a private. (1496)(1509)

Things that are probably wrong

They all moved to Kentucky where William was killed by the Indians in Kentucky -- I am not sure of the place because the old family history (by Mountford Oliver "Ollie" Griffith, Source #1509) gives conflicting information - in one area it says date and place unknown and another gives the Bowling Green area. It also says that William was killed and then says that his family was killed. (1496)(1509) Some have Jarrett born 1778 Virginia who married  Mary/Polly Rust January 18, 1806 as a son of Alexander (Fh020) but I think this Jarrett was the son of my William (Fh860,746j). My reason for feeling sure this Jarrett is the same as William's son is because the birth year is the same and my Jarrett did marry Mary/Polly Rust - the date is the same. (1496)

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

William Fh861 (6K) 237a

-----------------

William w1794,wp1795 (Rin=55053)/m      Margaret Daniel (She remarried 1795 Elias Neal)—His father was George #237,746e (Rin=53949)
Lines of Descent from 

            William Fh746 6K Kit 296494 Kit 2282 12051 BOWLING-39828

                                       &

                           Elizabeth COLCLOUGH-58143

-----------------------------  /  ------------  \  ---------------------------------------

 George Fh237 6K BOWLING-53949 b.1750    William Fh860 6K BOWLING-53935 b.1751
 William Fh861 6K BOWLING-55053 b.1774                     
William had a relative Sims #627 (his uncle), who was executor of his will. Sims #627 had a brother William Fh860,746j, but not this William Fh861. (Fh860 and Fh861 were not the same person as Fh861 was much younger)

*
John--a minor in 1794-d>1813--This might be John Fh398, in 1840 Census of Hardin, KY.

*
named in father's 3 May 1794 will, probated Mar 1795 in Shelby County, Kentucky. Also wife Margaret. 

Marriage and Children

William Boling married Margaret Daniel XE "Daniel:Margaret" , the daughter of Samuel Coleman Daniel XE "Daniel:Samuel Coleman" . (2110) William Boling (Bowling) left a will dated 30 May 1794, Recorded May, 1795, Shelby County, Kentucky. The will names William's wife Margaret and son John Boling. (29, Vol. 1, page 90)(1155)(1783) William Bowling left a will dated 3 May 1794, probated March, 1795, Shelby County, Kentucky, Will Book A. The will names William's wife Margaret and son John Boling. Exeutor was Sim Bowling (Fh627). Sims (Fh627,746c) (1386)

Death

William Boling (Bowling) left a will dated 30 May 1794, Recorded May, 1795, Shelby County, Kentucky. Executors were Sim Boling (746i,Fh627) and Daniel Ketcham. Witnesses William Morrow, Alexander Montgomery, Moses Warford. The will names William's wife Margaret and son John Boling. (29, Vol. 1, page 90)(1155)(1783) William Bowling left a will dated 3 May 1794, recorded May, 1795, Shelby County, Kentucky, Will Book A, page 4. One of the executors was Sim Boling (Fh627,746i) along with Daniel Ketcham XE "Ketcham:Daniel" . Witnesses: William Morrow XE "Morris:William" , Alex’d Montgomery XE "Montgomery:Alexander" , and Moses Warford XE "Warford:Moses" . The will names his wife Margaret and son John. (1386)(1783) I transcribed the 1794 will of William Boling. Click on source #1790. (1443)(1790) William Bowling is in the first Will Book of Shelby County, Kentucky. (1211)(1332) William Boling had a will probated 1795, Book 1, page 4, Shelby County, Kentucky. Mentions son John, “when he comes of age” and wife Margaret. Will states that fifty acres of land lying adjoining David Ketchams XE "Ketchams:David"  and Alexander Vernon/Aemon XE "Vernon:Alexander"  and Alexander Montgomery should be sold. One executor was Sim Boling. (670)(1155)(1782) 

Widow Margaret Boling

Margaret Boling was on the 1794 tax list of Shelby County, Kentucky. (837) Mrs. Margaret Bowling (AFN:1PPC-SVN), widow of William Bowling, married Elias Neal (AFN:1PPC-STG) xe "Neal:Elias"1795 in Shelby County, Kentucky. (1155)(1211) Mrs. Margaret Bowling, widow of William Bowling, married Elias Neelxe "Neal:Elias" 1795 in Shelby County, Kentucky. (1395) Mrs. Margaret Bowling married Elias Neelsxe "Neels:Elias" in 28 Aug 1795 in Shelby County, Kentucky. Coleman Daniel—Att. J. Craig. (29, Vol 1, page 137) Mrs. Margaret Bowling married Elias Nealxe "Neels:Elias" in 1795 in Shelby County, Kentucky. (1179)(1367)(1848) Mrs. Margaret Bowling married Elias Nealxe "Neels:Elias" in 1795 in Shelby County, Kentucky, and apparently returned to Stafford County, Virginia (sic). (1155) There is a marriage bond of Daniel Coleman XE "Coleman:Daniel" , 28 August 1795, Shelby County, Kentucky, for the marriage of Elias Neal XE "Neal:Elias"  to Mrs. Margaret Bowling. (1395) Elias Neale was on the 1789 tax list of Jefferson County, Kentucky. (842) A Margaret Bowling purchased (sic) 50 acres on Clear Creek XE "Creek:Clear" , Shelby County, Kentucky, in 1798, from a Mr. Montgomery XE "Montgomery:Mr." . (1178) Margaret Bowling, administrator of the estate of William Bowling, dec’d, sold on 20 August 1799, 50 acres beginning at Daniel Ketcham’s South corner, etc. to Alexander and Mary Montgomery. This per Shelby County, Kentucky, Book D, page 106. (1443)(1789) I do not think that the William Bowling’s 1794 will, recorded 1795, with wife Margaret who later married Elias Neal is our Jarrett Bowling's (860a) father William Fh860,746j. I believe that this William is probably a son of Sims Bowling (Fh627). Sims was quite a bit older than our William (Fh860,746j) who was the youngest child of William Elias Bowling and Elizabeth Colclough (Fh746). In reading other wills of the time span to include the one in 1794 never have I seen just one child mentioned, particularly if they were Son's. They would have received a cow or wagon or horse or something. (1518)

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

William Fh880 (6K) 020f

-----------------

William 1782-d>1850(Rin=53946, LBCH-WFQ)/m1804 Elizabeth Rust 1790-1876--His father was Alexander #020


  *b d
Daniel b1804-1810-1847/m1828 Sarah Sinclair (1804-d>1850)--See Daniel Fh1596

       d
Hannah b1806/m1822 Joseph T. Russell


  *b d
Nancy b1810-<1845/m1829 Christopher B. Sinclair


  *b
John 1820-1842/m1841 Mary B. Helms (bc1822-d>1850)—He is FAG 199709455

  *
James 1821-1890/m<1860 Callie ------ (1823-1901)(He FAG=146048045) 


  *b  e
Alexander 1822 KY-1883/m1854 Adeline G (He FAG=167112090)

  *  c```
Thomas bc1824/6 KY-d>1880/m<1863 Delia ----- d>1880


William bc1830-d>1880



*
Children per Source #1155


b
Children per Source #7 for sure, “plus other children”.


c
In the 1880 Census of Ralls County, Missouri. Perhaps Wm Fh880,020f’s grandchildren


d
In the 1810 Census of Hardin County, Kentucky 1 male 0-9 and two females 




0-9—9 houses from Thomas Lincoln father of Abraham Lincoln who was male 0-9.


e
In the 1850 Census of Ralls County, Missouri.
These two probably belong to John Fh393 (TB—Yes) 

    a
Elizabeth "Bettsy"/m1835 Abraham Martin Riley--See 393c


    a
Jane/m1836 Isaac Shelby Riley--See 393d 


a
Children per Source #1598 (Harriet Lee)
There were three William Bolins in Hardin County, Kentucky, each with a wife Elizabeth.


1. Fh880,020f,6K (LBCH-WFQ) William Bolin, son of Alexander, married Elizabeth Rust, later moving to Ralls County, 
Missouri.


2. Fh820,M16 Rev. William Luther Bolin (L6H8-29Z), son of John Bolin and Naomi Ray, married Elizabeth Alphin, later 
moving to Illinois. L6H8-29Z UK DNA but not DNA 6 apparently


3. Fh810 William Bolin (G4V8-G6N) with wife Elizabeth "Betsy" Way settled in Hardin County, Kentucky in 1816 and lived 
in the vicinity until William died in 1854. (7)

Do not combine them.

Source #1027 has more children but they seem to be children of William (Fh810) as follows:


a*
Hannah 1805-1880/m1832 Joseph Tucker Russell--See 810a

a
Mary bc1805-1844/m1828 John W. Hubbs--See 810b

a
Rebecca b1811-1848/m1828 William Conour--See 820c


a
Mariah 1810-1870/Robert Oliver--See 810c

a
Elizabeth "Betsey" 1815-1870/Rene' Mumer--See 810d

a
Martha Jane b1816/Thomas Wiggington--See 810e

a
Phebe bc1817-1882/Patrick O'Briant--See 810f

a*
William  bc1818/Mary --- --See 810g

a
Charlotte bc1820/----- Long--See 810i

a
Children per Source #1027. (LDS Ancestry File entry of Stevan V. Moon)
Birth, Parents, Lineage

Fom his father’s write up. Cut duplicates
William Bowling, third son, (See Fh880, Rin=53946, LBCH-WFQ) was born December 15, 1782, in Pennsylvania. (448) Alexander Bowling (Bolin) had a son William Bowling (020f, Fh880) who was listed on page 299 of the 1810 Hardin County, Kentucky Census. (7) William Bolin (Fh880,020f) was born 1782 and married 1804 Elizabeth Rust XE "Rust:Elizabeth" . Eight identified children. (1155) William Bowlin had a marriage license issued June 18, 1804, to marry Elizabeth Rust, daughter of George Rust, in Hardin County, Kentucky. There was no return. Marriage Book A, page 18. (1681) William Bolin married Elizabeth Rust, June 18, 1804, in Hardin County, Kentucky. (1684) William Boling  (Fh880,020f) was born 15 Dec 1782. William Boling married 18 Jun 1804 Elizabeth Rust. He was of Hardin County, Kentucky, in 1809 and 1810 census. They to Livingston, Kentucky by 1811. (1442) Mercer County, Kentucky Circuit Court Records Box B-22 Bill filed March 1807  Bolin Heirs (Alexander’s) vs. McFathridge. Henry Ewing & Rachel, his wife, late Rachel Bolin. Gerrard, William, Jane Bolin (Kids state that they are the legal heirs of Alexander Bowlin. (1496)  (Jarrett?) (1496)

William Bolin was born 1782 in Washington County, Pennsylvania the son of Alexander and Martha "Patsy" (Williams) Bowling (Fh020). (7) William Boling (Fh880,020f) was born 15 Dec 1782. (1442) William Bowling, the third son of the Alexander family (Fh020) was born December 15, 1782, in Pennsylvania. His age was given in an apprenticeship document, dated 3 December 1800 in Hardin County, Kentucky. (448)(692) William Bolin or Bowling is listed in a 1791 will of Alexander Bolin or Bowling (This would be his father, Fh020), in Mercer County, Kentucky. Other males listed in the Will were John (Fh393,020c) and Garrard or Jarrett Bolin or Bowling (Fh323). (10) Bill (William) Bowling in 1791 (about age 9) was in school, "This school stood on the point of the ride on the west side of the River (Salt) about two hundred yards from my fathers (father of writer of account, Robert B. McAfee XE "McAfee:Robert B." , born 1784, about age 7) saw mill." (This would be near McAfee, Kentucky about 4 miles northwest of Harrodsburg, Mercer County, Kentucky. This account of the boys in school should be read by any descendant of William Bowling). (1376) "Jarrett (probably Fh323,020e) had a brother, Bill (probably Fh880,020f), who lived nearby ... alone. His log cabin stood in the middle of a patch of growing corn which was a good protection for him against the Indians who were on watch to shoot him. They knew he had it in for them after his father's murder." (1700)
Hardin County, Kentucky, Court, November 26, 1800 William Boling, infant orphan of Alexander Boling to Jacob Bruner. There was a release some time later in the court records. (1862) William Bowling was the son of Patsy Bowling and his father was deceased. An indenture Hardin County, Kentucky, December 23, 1800 to Jacob Bruner XE "Bruner:Jacob"  until age 21 on December 15, 1803.  Apprentice in tanning and currying business. (692) Hardin County, Kentucky, Will Book A page 98. This Indenture made this twenty third day of December in the year of our Lord one thousand eight hundred (1800) between William Bowling of the County of Hardin and Commonwealth of Kentucky of the one part and Jacob Bruner of the said County and Commonwealth of the other part. Witnesseth that the said  William Bowling voluntarily and with the approbation of Patsy Bowling his mother, hath placed and bound himself and by these presents doth put place and bind himself to be an apprentice with him the said Jacob Bruner and as apprentice with him the said Jacob Bruner to dwell till the said William Bowling shall attain the age of twenty one years which will be on the 15 December in the year Eighteen hundred & three (1803) during all which time the said William Bowling doth covenant and agree to and with the said Jacob Bruner that he will well and faithfully serve in all such lawful business as the said William Bowling shall be put unto by his said Master according to the test of his power with and ability of him the said William Bowling and honestly and obediently shall be have himself towards the said Jacob Bruner and honestly and orderly towards the family of the said Jacob Bruner. And the said Jacob Bruner on his part doth covenant and agree to and with the said William Bowling that he the said Jacob Bruner will well and truly instruct the said William Bowling in the art and mistery of Taning and Currying business which the said Jacob Bruner now followeth, and will use all due diligence to make the said William Bowling as perfect in the said art or mistery of Taning and Currying as possible. And the said Jacob Bruner will allow to the said William Bowling good and sufficient meat and apparel washing lodging and all other things suitable for an apprentice during the said Term. Also to learn him reading writing and common arithmetick including the rule of three and pay him the said William Bowling three pounds ten shillings and a Decent new suit of cloths at the expiration of this Term of Service.  In witness whereof the parties to these presents have hereunto set their hands and affixed their seals the day and year firs within written. (signed) William (X) Bowling and Jacob Bruner Recorded 23 Dec 1800 Hardin Co. KY Court. (1414)(692) 

Marriage

William Boling married 18 Jun 1804 Elizabeth Rust XE "Rust:Elizabeth" .(1442) William Bolin married Elizabeth Rust 1804 in Hardin County, Kentucky. (16)(28)(7) William Bolin married Elizabeth Rust on June 18, 1804 in Hardin County, Kentucky. (2009)  Elizabeth Rust was the daughter of George and Hannah (Larue) XE "Larue:Hannah"  Rust XE "Rust:George"  and the sister of Mary Rust XE "Rust:Mary"  who married Jarrett Gerrard Bowling. (7) Mary J. Rust who married Jarrett "Gerrard" Bowling/Bolin (Fh323,K) was a sister to Elizabeth Rust who married William Bowling/Bolin (Fh880,020f,6K); both are daughters of George Rust (George3, Samuel2, William1) and Hannah LaRue. One of these Rusts married an Eskridge XE "Eskridge" , who was made guardian of Mary Ball XE "Ball:Mary"  who was George Washington's XE "Washington:George"  mother. This is Westmoreland County, Virginia. (1414). William Bolin married Elizabeth Rust, daughter of George Rust. (60) William Bowlin had a marriage license issued June 18, 1804, to marry Elizabeth Rust, daughter of George Rust, in Hardin County, Kentucky. There was no return. Marriage Book A, page 18. (1681)(1864)   

Children

a.
Daniel (7) Daniel Bolin (Fh1596, 6K) married 1st Margaret Rivers XE "Rivers:Margaret" , 2nd Sarah St. Clair XE "St. Clair:Sarah" . (1155) Daniel Bowling was 
the son of William and Elizabeth (Rust) Bowling (Fh880,020f). Daniel Bowlin married first Oct 30, 1825 Margaret 
Rivers and married October 30, 1828 Sarah St. Clair. (7) Daniel was probably the male 0-9 in the 1810 Census. 
William Bowling (Fh880,020f) was on the 1810 Census of Hardin County, Kentucky, Page 299, line 16 with 1 male 
0-9, 1 male 26-44, 2 females 0-9 and 1 female 16-25. Abraham Lincoln’s father Thomas Lincoln is on page 299, 
line 6, with Lincoln being the male 0-9. (1504) 


A Daniel Bolen bought 80 acres 4/1/1839 in Monroe County, MO, as below.


N½NE 
22/ 
54-N 
12-W 
No 
5th PM 
MO 
Monroe 

b.
Nancy. (7) Nancy Bolin married Christopher St. Clair XE "St. Clair:Christopher" . (1155) 

c.
Alexander born 1823-24 (7) Alexander Bolin born about 1823. (1155)  Alexander Bowling, age 26, is in the 1850 
Census of Ralls County, Missouri, listed in the household of William Bowling, farmer, age 69 born Pennsylvania 
and Elizabeth age 69. (919)

d.
John (7)(1155)

e.
William Bowling living in Ralls County, Missouri in 1850 in the right age bracket to be a son of William and 
Elizabeth Rust Bowling. (7) William Bolin. (1155) In the 1880 Census of Ralls County, Missouri, there is a 
William, 
age 50, i.e. born about 1830 in Missouri. (7)  
f.
James Bowling living in Ralls County, Missouri in 1850 in the right age bracket to be a son of William and 
Elizabeth Bowling. (7) James Bolin. (1155) There is a BLM land purchase 8/30/1838 of 40 acres in Ralls County, 
Missouri, which might be him although very young for a land purchase. (7) The James (880g, FAG=146048045) 
that is married to Caroline “Callie” FAG=146048070—I believe (Yes) he is brother to Thomas, Alexander, and John 
(880d FAG=199709455) married to Mary Helms. Their parents are William (Fh880) and Elizabeth Bowling. I 
found the most lovely contract between them recently, regarding the care of aging parents. I’ll try to find it again and 
send it to you. In any event this particular family is all over in the deed books between Marion, Ralls, and Monroe 
counties. 
(2188) 

g.
Thomas Bowling living in Ralls County, Missouri in 1850 in the right age bracket to be a son of William and 
Elizabeth Bowling. (7) Thomas Bolin. (1155) In the 1880 Census of Ralls County, Missouri, there is a Thomas, age 
56, i.e. born about 1824 in Kentucky. (7)  

I believe that he had three or four daughters. (7) 

h.
Hannah Bolin married Joseph Tucker Russell XE "Russell:Joseph Tucker" . (1155) William and Elizabeth (Rust) Bolin had a daughter Hannah 
Bolling who married Joseph Tucker Russell. (60)

These are not their daughters


The parents of my Elizabeth Bowling (393d) were William Bowling and Elizabeth Rust (Fh880,020f,6K) (TB—No). Abraham Martin Riley XE "Riley:Abraham Martin"  (my great great grandfather married Elizabeth Bowling November 2. 1835.  He also had a brother who married Jane Boling May 15, 1836. I have a record of Isaac Riley XE "Riley:Isaac"  who married Jane Boling in Schuyler County, Illinois. My great grandfathers death notice it said his mother was Eliz Bolden. (1598) 

As heirs of Alexander Bowling (Fh020)

William Bolin, Jarrel Bowling, Elizabeth Boling, Mary Boling and Rachel Ewing, being heirs of Alexander Bowling (Fh020) sell their 4 parts of 7 parts of land (136 1/2 acres of 240 acres) near Salt River (it describes the land in full but generally adjoins the lands of Robert McAfee XE "McAfee:Robert" , deceased, on the west) in Mercer County, Kentucky, 1808. They sell to Andrew McFatridge XE "McFatridge:Andrew" . (1407) William Bowling was not on the tax records of Hardin County until 1804. Then he appears then and almost every year through 1824. His last name is spelled different ways also: Balling (1), Bolin (6), Boling (1), Bowling (2), Bowlin (5). It years 1804 thru 1822 his probably brother Garret (Fh323) was also on the tax list. (1863) William Boling was of Hardin County, Kentucky, in 1809 and 1810 census. (1442) William Bolin was in the 1810 U.S. Census of Hardin County, Kentucky (Larue County today). William Bowling on page 299 of the 1810 U.S. Census of Hardin County, Kentucky, was the son of Alexander Bowling (Bolin). (7)
Source 1504 Hardin County, Kentucky 1810 Census

http://ftp.rootsweb.com/pub/usgenweb/ky/hardin/census/1810/

Head of Household

Males
Males
Males
Males
Males

Page #
Line #
Last Name
First Name
0-9
10to15
16-25
26-44
45+ 

285
25
Bolin

Thos.

2
2
2
1
0

287
7
Bolin

Jona.

2
1
1
1
0

291
14
Bowling

Garrard

2
0
1
0
0

299
16
Bowling

Wm.

1
0
0
1
0

299
6
Lincoln

Thomas

1
0
0
1
0







1-This would be Abraham Lincoln

William Bowling was on the 1810 Census of Hardin County, Kentucky, Page 299, line 16. (1546)  William Bowling was on the 1810 Census of Elizabethtown, Hardin County, Kentucky, Page 299, line 16 with 1 male 0-9, 1 male 26-44, 2 females 0-9 and 1 female 16-25. Abraham Lincoln XE "Lincoln:Abraham" ’s father Thomas Lincoln XE "Lincoln:Thomas"  is on page 299, line 6, with Lincoln being the male 0-9. (1504)(ancestry.com) Garrard Bowling (Fh323) is on page 291, line 14 of the same 1810 Census. (1504) There is a list of 89 people who where on the 1810 Tax list of Hardin County, Kentucky, in which Thomas Lincoln is listed. “These are considered Lincoln’s neighbors”. William Bowland is listed as a white male over 21 years old with one horse. For Thomas Lincoln it lists 200 acres, on Mill Creek, Hardin County, Kentucky, the land was entered, surveyed, and patented by D. Slater. Thomas Lincoln was white over 21 years old with two horses. The author further states “It will be observed that Thomas Lincoln did not list the Sinking Spring land for taxation for the year 1810, though he purchased it in 1808. In fact, it never was listed by him. He continued to list only the 200 acres on Mill Creek until the year 1814, when it was sold. For the year 1815 he listed 30 acres on Knob Creek. In 1816 he listed no land, but did list four horses”. (1886) John Bowling (Fh393,020c), along with his sisters, Elizabeth McNew XE "McNew:Elizabeth" , Polly Ritchey XE "Ritchey:Polly"  and Rachel Ewing XE "Ewing:Rachel" , heirs of Alexander Bowling (Fh020), deceased, appoint their brother William Bowling (Fh880,020f) of Hardin County, Kentucky, their attorney, to convey 300 acres in Shelby or Henry County, Kentucky to Joseph DuPuty XE "DuPuty:Joseph"  and 100 acres in Shelby County, Kentucky to William Roberts XE "Roberts:William" , Livingston County, Kentucky, Deed Book B, page 337, dated 27 July 1811 and recorded the same day. (1353) William Bolling and others deed to William Roberts, 100 acres on Clear Creek XE "Creek:Clear" , Shelby County, Kentucky, April 19, 1813. (1393)(1394) John Bowling (Fh393,020c) grants power of attorney to William Bowling, 12 June 1813 in Shelby County, Kentucky. (1394) William Bowlin was on the 1820 Census of Hardin County, Kentucky, page 18. Jarred Bowlin (Fh323,020e) was on page 28 and a John Bowlin on page 72 of the same census. A Joseph Bowling was on page 92. (1340) Son Thomas was born about 1824 in Kentucky and son William was born about 1830 in Missouri, 1880 Census records of Ralls County, Missouri. (7) William Bowling was in Hardin County, Kentucky, until about 1824 then moved to Ralls County, Missouri. (7)  William Bowling, farmer, is in the 1850 Census of Ralls County, Missouri, listed as age 69 born Pennsylvania.  Also in the household is Elizabeth age 69 and Alexander age 26. (919) 
+++++++++++++++++++++++++

William Fh890 (6A) 320x

-----------------

William 1789-1879 (Rin=19434)/m1807 1/w Lavina Asbury (1784-d<1850)--His father was Jarrett #320


  bc
Jarrett Wesley 1808-1879/ m1829 Nancy Taylor Vinsant/Vansant  (1814-1884)




Descendant Kit 84056 tested into DNA 6


  b
Female b1810-1820


  b
Female b1810-1820


  bc
Jordan Efferson 1818-1863/m1837 Margaret “Peggy” Higgenbotham


a
John James c1819-1902/3/m1845 Lucy Jane Mitchell b1828


    c
David B. bc1821-d<1891/m1843 Louisa Jane Anderson

a
Egbert Thacker 1821-1895/m1850 Nancy Jane Jones b1834


  b
Louisa bc1828/m1848 James Marshall



2/w m1858 Elizabeth Rich


  b
Susan b1859


a
Sons per source #1026 (LDS Ancestry File)

b
Children per source #911 (Informant Elke Hall)

c
Children per GEDCOM sent in by Kit 95951 DNA 6

Birth, Parents, Lineage

Merge: KHT2-P91, Rin=19434

William Bowling was born 1789 in Russell County, Virginia, the son of Jarret and Eleanor (Garrison) Bowling (Fh320). (30) William Bowling was born 1789 in Tazewell County, Virginia, (Tazewell was created 1799 from Russell) the son of Jarrett Bowling and Elearnor "Ellen" Garrison. (7) William Bowling was the son of Jarret and Winifred (Garrison) Bowling. (223) William Bowling was born 1785-9 in Southwest Virginia, the son of Jarrett and Elearnor (Garrison) Bowling. (196) William Bowling was born about 1789. (911)

Marriage and Children

William married 1st Lavina Asbury in 1806 and 2nd Elizabeth Rich in 1858. Both marriages were in Tazewell County, Virginia. (7) William Bowling married Lavinnia Asbury between 1805 and 1807. (223) William Boling married 1805-1807 Levina Asberry, in Tazewell County, Virginia. (2004, page 56)(2033, page 51) William Bowling married first 1805-7 Tazewell County, Virginia, Levina Asberry. (196) 
William Bowling  married 1806 Lavina Asbury. (911) They had children: 

a.
Jordan E. (196) Jordon Efferson Bowling died in June 1863 during service in the Civil War and is buried at the 
Hollywood Cemetery in Richmond, Virginia. (FAG = 92830689) (911) 

b.
Jarret Wesley Bowling (1808-1879) (196) Jarrett Boling is in the 1870 Census of Elliott County, Kentucky. (1155) 
Jarrett Wesley Bowling (890b), born 1808, son of William Bowling and Lavina Asbury, married Nancy Taylor 
Vansant on 1 Dec. 1829 in Tazewell. They moved to Morgan County, Kentucky. They were in the 1850 and 1860 
census there. They are in the 1870 Census of Elliott County, Kentucky.  Jarrett Wesley Bowling died in 1879 in 
Elliott County, Kentucky. (There was another Jared Wesley Bowling (320f) who married  Frances Young on 23 
Aug. 1832 in Tazewell County, Virginia, They remained in Tazewell, Frances died after 1880.) (911) 

c.
two females (196) and 

d.
one male born 1810-20. (196)

Movement

William Bowlen was on the 1815 tax list of Tazewell County, VA with 1 male over 16, 3 horses, 7 cattle.  Jarred Bowlen and Benjamin Bowlin were also on that tax list. (1123) William Bolan was in the 1820 Census, page 242a, of Tazewell County, Virginia. Also in that Census were Garret (Fh320) and Bailey (Fh80) Bolan both on page 242a and Benjamin Bowlan (Fh145) on page 241a. (348)
+++++++++++++++++++++++++

William Fh893 (6M) 434g
-----------------

William 1781-d>1850 (Rin=23213)/m1806 Nephana Hodges (b1785)—His father was John #434, who d1834 leaving a will in Pittsylvanis, VA.



Aaron b1817/m        Henrietta --------- 

Marriage
William Bowling married Nephana Hodges, 1806 in Pittsylvania County, Virginia. (1414) Her father Jesse Hodges, had a will 20 Jan 1816 and proved 19 Feb 1816, names, among others, daughter Nephanah Bowling. Appointed wife and son James Hodges and William Bowling, who married my daughter Nephanah as executors. (Will is supposed to be filed in Amelia County, Virginia, per Diane103@aol.com, researcher) (1414) William Boling, son of John, was in the 1810 Census of Pittsylvania County, Virginia. (7) Two William Bollings were on the 1810 tax list of Pittsylvania County, Virginia. One was listed as the son of John. (380) A William Boling was on the 1820 Census of Pittsylvania County, Virginia. (348) William born 1781 in England (I doubt William was born in England; the 1850 census says he was born in Virginia, (1414))  married 1806 Nephanah Hodges, she was born Pittsylvania County, Virginia. They had a son Aaron born 1817 in Grundy County, Tennessee. Aaron Bowling had a spouse Henrietta ------. (The BFA Database, source unknown) William Bolling, s/o John Bolling, and brother to John and Smith Bolling, married Nephany Hodges, d/o Jesse Hodges & Nancy Unknown. (1414) William Bolling, s/o John Bolling d1834 leaving a will in Pittsylvania. We don't have any DNA from this group yet; however, we do know that William Bolling lived not far from Bearskin/Barskin Creek in Pittsylvania as did the Hodges.  As of now we do not know who the father of this John Bolling is. (1414) Another source shows that a Smith Bowling (1781-1851) had these brothers William born 1782; John born 1782, Simon ?; Martin born 1780. Lived in Fairfax County, Virginia. This Smith Bowling married Mary Clark  (1789-1850). This might be my ancestor! (1709)

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

William Fh895 (6M19) 514a

-----------------

William bc1768-c1856 (Rin=50590)/m<1801 Cordenia ----- --His father was Robert #514 (Rin=50591)


A descendant kit 2319 tested into DNA 6—

kits 1569, 1288, 1918, 2013, 2388, and 3019 were 12/12

a
Robert J. 1801-1883 FAG=29711757/m       ----- ------ (d<1880)

a
William Fletcher 1802-1875 FAG=17021652 /mc1842 Asenath "Ceny" Vanzant (1817-1888) FAG= 



17021620 A descendant kit 2319 tested into DNA 6. 
kits 1569, 1288, 1918, 2013, 2388, and 3019 were 12/12

a
Cordenia 1803-1879/m1823 John Boykin


a
Eli Young 1806-1878 FAG=29711706 /m    Nancy Wilson d1860, m1860 Melisa Ann Dearman


a
Asenath/Arcena 1808-1889 FAG=29711783—Single in the 1880 Census

a
Eleanor 1811-1871 FAG=29711724

a
Lorenzo  b1815

a
Children per Source #1233 and #2154
Birth, Parents, Lineage

William Bowling was born about 1768 in Georgia probably the son of Robert Bowling (Fh514). 
Marriage and Children

William Bowling married Cordenia ------ probably in Burke County, Georgia. See Family Group for their children. (1233) William Bowling (Fh895,6M19) married a woman by the name of Cordenia and they settled in Washington County, Alabama. 
I believe William & Cordenia Bowling had 4 sons & 3 daughters:

a. 
Robert J. Bowling (2154) 
b. 
William Fletcher Bowling(2154) William Fletcher Bowling born 1801 in Burke County, Georgia, is oldest son of 
William and Cordenia. William Fletcher Bowling died Oct 2, 1875 in Shongelo, Smith County, Mississippi. (7) 
William Bowling died after 1850 in Washington County, Alabama. (1233) William Fletcher Bowling's (895b) 
father's name was William Bowling (Fh895). (1601)
c. 
Eli Y. Bowling (2154) 
d. 
Lorenzo Bowling (2154) 
e. 
Cordenia Bowling (2154) 
f. 
Asenath Bowling (2154)

g. 
Eleanor Bowling (2154)  
There is a family bible record listing the birth dates of their children. (900) Most of these children and their spouses are buried in Pine Grove Methodist Church Cemetery in the Leroy/Carson area of Washington County, Alabama. (2154) William Bowling was on a list of officers commissioned 1790 in Burke County, Georgia. (7) William Bowling was a Lt. in 1794 in Burke County, Georgia. He was also listed as "Receiver of taxes" in 1804-6. (274) William Bowling, J.P. signed a petition on 20 January 1803, at Waynesborough, Burke County, Georgia. (1018) Page183, Georgia Passport; Waynesborough 20th January 1803, "We whose Names are hereunto subscribed (being Inhabitants of the County of Burke in the State of Georgia), Do hereby certify that the bearer Mr. Solomon Boykin has resided in this County for the principal part of his life. Wm. Bowling, J.P. (Fh895) and many others. On page 204 a Wm. Bowling, J.P.  signs another recommendation for a passport for Mr. William Alexander on the 6th of Sep. 1804 in Burke County, Georgia. (1599)(1018) Old William had a brother named Robert Bowling (Fh515) but here is where we lose the trail. Old William died about 1856. I wonder if this could be the William Bolling, born 1774, possibly a brother to Larkin (Fh4612). We thought that Old William came thru Georgia. (1601) 
Son Robert J. Bowling and daughter Arcena Bowling are on the 1880 Census of Washington County, Alabama:

Household Record,  1880 United States Census 

 Robert J. BOWLING

Self
S  Male

75 ,  GA ,  Farmer ,  
GA ,  GA 

 Arcena BOWLING

Sister
S  Female
73 ,  GA ,  Keeping House   
GA ,  GA 

 Mary BOYKIN


Niece
S  Female
40 ,  AL ,  At Home ,  
GA ,  GA 

 William E. BOWLING

Son
S  Male

10 ,  AL ,  Works On Farm
AL ,  AL 

Source Information: Census Place, Beat 2, Washington, Alabama

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

William Fh900 (6C)--Same as William #788.

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

William Fh902 (6S) 392d

-----------------

William bc1730-d<1784 (Rin=44567)—His father was John Fh392 6A (Rin=27332).

He probably had a brother John Fh424 6T


Head of String S—


*
John (heir of William Sr.)  b<1755-d>1800 (Rin=46449)--See Family Group #388 

*
Benjamin 1754->1820(Rin=44516)/m17275 Sarah T. "Sally" or "Tabitha" Hancock (1759-1806)-



-See Family Group #120
 A descendant kit 22608 tested into DNA 6 (String S)


*
William bc1755-d>1800 (Rin=45430)/m        Elizabeth "Betsy"---See Family Group #913
A descendant kit 1569 tested into DNA 6 (String S)

Mitchell b<1758

Below Probably not right--Below belongs to James Fh286 or John 1741-1800


*
Thomas bc1755-1810/m1793 Sarah "Sally" Ford (1755-1860)--See Family Group #667
A Descendant kit 2388 tested into DNA 6 (String M17), kits 1569, 1288, 1918, 2013, 2388, and 3019 were 12/12

*
Possible sons per Source #1553

Birth, Parents, Lineage

Lines of Descent from: 


Simon Fh629 BOWLING-


45539 b.1620


William Fh742 BOWLING-


65495 b.1652


George Fh240 BOWLING-


62389 b.1670


John Fh392 6A 6M17 6S BOWLING-
51086 b.1700


William Fh902 6S BOWLING-

44567 b.1730

Children

Apparent children:
a.
John (heir of William Sr.)  b<1755-d>1800 (Rin=46449)--See Family Group #388 
b.
Benjamin 1754->1820(Rin=44516)/m17275 Sarah T. "Sally" or "Tabitha" Hancock (1759-1806)-


-See Family Group #120

c.
William bc1755-d>1800 (Rin=45430)/m        Elizabeth "Betsy"---See Family Group #913

d.
Mitchell born 1758. Mitchell Bollin (902d) along with William (Fh913,902c) and John Bolling (Bolin) 
(Fh388,902a) were on a 1779 tax list of Randolph County, North Carolina. (693)  Mitchell Boling along with 
William and John Boling were on a 1779 tax list (list of Jacob Shepard) of Randolph County, North Carolina. All 
three would have to be 21 years old or older so all born by 1758 and therefore he could not be the son of Benjamin 
Bolling born 1754 (Fh120). (942)

Probably not  (Wrong Age)

John Bolen      b1721 (Fh424, 392x, T,      Rin=54573),     (may be John Fh392 b1700, Rin=51086)

David Bolen    b1730 (Fh160, 392x, M18, Rin=61269),  

William Bolen b1730 (Fh902, 392x, S,      Rin=44567) 

were in the Spotsylvania County, Virginia, Court Order Book 1722-1724, page 13, County Reel #26 of the Virginia State Library. (2052) Those called to do road work had to be at least 18 years old, so the following would have been born before 1704. (7) John Bolen, David Bolen, and William Bolen in 1722, in Spotsylvania County, Virginia, were to do road work on the road from Germana along the ridge to the mountain Run so a Cross the said run between Coll: Caterss and Mr Skreens Quarter, Jacob Wall, Overseer. Several persons, including the three above, did not appear and help him as overseer, appointed by the Court, to clear the said road. The Court after examining the said persons, ordered that each be fined for absenting themselves. William Bolen for three days, John Bolen for five days, and David Bolen for five days. They to pay for each days absence and contempt as the Law directs with Coats as the Law directs. (1641) A Patriack Bolding was a tithable, with 10 others, "on the South Side of the River", 1728, Spotsylvania County, Virginia, to help Daniel Brown, overseer, clear the road from "Wallers bridge to Mattapany church". (1641)(1636)

(This is Fh902, 392c)
23-JUNE-1752  Ordered that the church wardens of Hamilton Parish do bind William Boling apprentice to Simon Miller according to law is to learn him the trade of a Cordwainer and to read and write.

William (Fh902,392b, Rin=44567) r1754 (son Benjamin born),r1756,r1760,r1761,r1763, r1785 

SOURCE: Prince William County, Virginia, Order Book Abstract, p. 15, 1752-1753, by Ruth and Sam Sparacio.

28-JULY-1752
 

William Bolling was in the Prince William County, Virginia Militia in the French-Indian War.  He was paid by an Act of Assembly for the State of Virginia, 1756. (7)  
William Bolling and John Bolling were each paid, March 1756, 1395 pounds of tobacco, in service to fight French and Indians, from Prince William County, Virginia. (1224) William Bolling and John Bolling are listed as foot soldiers, 93 days of service, Prince William County, Virginia, March, 1756. (1432)(544) 
Prince William County, Virginia, Circuit Court Archives, Order Book: 1759-61, page 143. At a Court continued and held for Prince William County the 19th of July 1760 [margin notation]. "Allan Macrae gent acknowledged a lease for lives to William Boulding, and the said William acknowledged the same as farr as concerned him and it was thereupon admitted to record." The margin opposite this transaction is noted to be "Macrae ** to Boulding". (1414)
11-MAY-1761


The election of Burgesses the 11th of May 1761. William Boulding voted for Colo. Henry Lee, and Colo. Henry Peyton.

Place Index:

William (Fh902,392b, Rin=44567) r1754 (son Benjamin born),r1756,r1760,r1761,r1763, r1785


SOURCE: Prince William County, Virginia, Deed Abstracts, p. 68-73, 1761-1764 by Ruth and Sam Sparacio.
 
William Bowling received money from Dettingen Parish 1763 in Prince William County, Virginia. (601)

Something wrong
1753

William Bolling was on the 1753 tax list of Anson County, North Carolina. (7)
1761

The election of Burgesses the 11th of may 1761. William Boulding (Fh902, 392b 6A Rin=44567) voted for Col. Henry Lee, and Col. Henry Peyton. SOURCE: Prince William County, Virginia, Deed Abstracts, p. 68-73, 1761-1764 by Ruth and Sam Sparacio. (2174)

1763
William Bolling was on the 1763 tax list of Anson County, North Carolina. (693)  Also on the 1763 tax list of Anson County were John Bolling and Isaac Bolling. (942)

1780
William Bowling was issued a land warrant, 1780, in Randolph County, North Carolina, i.e. Richard Been 200 ac; Randolph County, North Carolina land warrant 3214 (sic warrant #215, not 3214) issued Jun 10, 1780 by William Cole to William Bowling Sr for 200 ac on a branch of Little R called Horsepen Creek, begins on S side of the creek, & includes Richard Been's improvement where he lives; (on back of warrant) warrant sold Oct. 1, 1784 by John Bolling, heir of William Bolling deceased, to Richard "Bean" (signed) John Bolling (no witness) 200 ac surveyed Oct 1, 1785 (Quaker style date) by Saml Millikan; Peter King (could be Rin=49898) & Wm Reader, chain carriers; grant #416 issued Aug. 18, 1787. (1414)(1607) 
1784

There are land records of sale in Randolph County, North Carolina to Richard Bean from John Bolling, heir to deceased William in 1784. (1553) I believe William Bolling, who owned above property and was deceased by 1784, so perhaps born in 1730's, was father of John, who sold this property to Richard Bean. Richard Bean lived between Benjamin and William on 1790 census. Can anyone near Asheboro check to see if this is the same property that John sold Richard Bean in above transaction? If it is, it would suggest that elder William lived between William and Benjamin and was probably their father. (1553)
The 1785 Case was Charles Alexander, plaintiff  vs. Birch et al.

Depositions given in the case:

1.
Keziah Bolling bc1744-d>1785 Rin=55072, (743b) gave a deposition in 1785, Prince William County, Virginia, 
saying he was about forty-one years old (i.e. born about 1744). (1611) 

2.
William Bowling/Bolling (Fh902,392b, maybe Fh747. Rin=44567) gave a deposition in 1785, Prince William 
County, Virginia, saying he was aged forty years or thereabouts (i.e. bc1745).(1611) 

3.
Michael Ashford in 1785, Prince William County, Virginia, gave deposition that he lived in the neighborhood of 
Great Hunting Creek about sixty years. Claimed that he heard others who had died included Gerrard Bolling (Fh230, 
or 230a,6A).(1611) 

4.
Townshend Dade and others are mentioned. (1611) 

1800 Census

John (Fh388, 902a, Rin=46449), William (902c,Fh913,6S), Benjamin (Fh120,902b,6S) and maybe Thomas (Fh667,286a, 6M17), were all born before 1755 as they were 45+ on 1800 census. (1553)

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

William Fh913 (6S) 902x

-----------------

William bc1755-d>1800 (Rin=45430)/m<1774 Elizabeth "Betsy" ----- --His father was William Sr. #902 (Rin=44567) 


A descendant kit 1569 tested into DNA 6--12/12 with kits 1288, 1918, 2013, 2319, 2388, and 3019. 

 A descendant Kit 96819 tested into DNA 6  


*a
William b<1774-d>1796 (Rin=54228)—See Family #759  


*a
Robert 1776-d>1850(Rin=28609)/1/w m<1800 ----- ------ 2/w m1828 Sally Clampet—See
 Family #549


*a
Larkin bc1785-1845(Rin=46550)/m<1806 Suzannah Garner--See Family #4612



A descendant Kit 96819 tested into DNA 6  


  a
1 Female b<1790


  a
2 Female b<1790


  a
3 Female b<1790


  a
4 Female b<1790


*
Children per Source #1553


a
In 1790 Census, William had 2 males in his household 16 and over, 2 less than 16 and he had 5 



females of any age
Birth, Parents, Lineage

William could be the son of William Bolling Sr. (Fh902) of Montgomery County, North Carolina. (942) A descendant kit 1569 tested into DNA 6. A descendant kit 96819 tested into DNA 6.

Marriage and Children

William married Betsy -----. (1553) 
They had children:

a.
William Jr. (1553)  

b.
Robert born 1776 (Fh549,S) (1553)  


c.
Larkin (Fh4612,S) born about 1785. (1553) 

This was recorded in the Randolph County, North Carolina, Genealogy Journal.  It shows there was a relationship between the Boling men. Capias (29 Oct. 1796) against Cornelius Lathem and John Graves, on oath of Benjamin Bolan (Fh125,6S) that they assaulted and beat him at the house of Gabriel Hardin 27 Aug 1796. 

Witnesses – 


Robert Bolan 
(Fh549,913b,6S), 


Larkin Bolan 
(Fh4612,913c,6S), 


William Bolan 
(913a,6S), 


Tempy Hardin, 


Vachel Hancock. (1553)

Movement

William Bolin along with Mitchell Bolin (120h,S) and John Bolin were on a 1779 tax list of Randolph County, North Carolina. (693)  William Boling along with Mitchell Boling (120h,S) and John Boling were on a 1779 tax list (list of Jacob Shepard) of Randolph County, North Carolina.  All three would have to be 21 years old or older so all born by 1758. (942) State Grant, July 24, 1786,  to John Latham 200 acres on Little River adjacent William Bolling (Fh913,S) and crossing Ready Creek, Randolph County, North Carolina, Deed Abstracts Books 1-5. (249)(1569) William Bolling Jr.  had land grants #406 and #366, 1787, Randolph County, North Carolina, 150 acres described as Rockey Crick, Fork of Little River, Patterson's waters line of Joseph Wade.  Chainers were Alex Patterson and Sam Graves. (942) A Sam Graves married Talithe Bolling (120i). (7) William Bowling was on page 99 of the 1790 U.S.  Census of Randolph County, Hillsborough District, North Carolina with 2-2-5-0-0.  (688) From the Historical Register of Virginians in the Revolutionary War. Richard Bean, Infantry, of Amherst County, Virginia. Richard Bean lived in the house between William Bowling (Fh913,6S) and Benjamin Bowling (Fh120,6S) on the 1790 Randolph County, North Carolina census and there are land records of sale in Randolph County to Richard Bean from John Bolling, heir to deceased William in 1784. (1553)  John Latherm, July 19, 1790, to Christian Luther for 125 pds. 150 acres on Little River adjacent John Steed, William Bolling (Fh913,S) and David Bolling (Fh1625,T).  Randolph County, North Carolina, Deed Abstracts Books 1-5. Signed John Lathram; Witness: William Crawford, J. Harper. (249)(1569) 19 July 1790 John Latham to Christian Luther for 125 pds. 150 a. on Little River, adj John Steed, William Bolling (Fh913,902b, 6S)  and David Bolling (Fh1625, 6T). Signed John Lathram Wit. William Crawford, J Harper. (2175) Deed of Trust Christian Luther to William Cox, both of Randolph Co. for 45 pds. 150 a. on Little River of Pee Dee adj. John Steed, William Boling (Fh913,902b, 6S)  and David Bolings (Fh1625, 6T) claim. Signed Christian Luther. (2175) On the Randolph County, North Carolina, 1790 Federal Census, I have the following Bowlings; you can see by the line numbers those folks who were probably neighbors, depending on the route the census taker took of course.

Legend: 
# free white males, 16 and upwards
# free white males, less than 16
# free white females (including head of households)
# of all other free persons, except Indians

584 
Bowling Benjamin (Fh120,6S)
1    3   5    -
586 
Bowling William 
(Fh913,6S)
2    2   5    -

So we can see that as of 1790,  William had 2 males in his household 16 and over, 2 less than 16 and he had 5 females of any age. Benjamin had 3 males less than 16 and 5 females of any age. To me this looks more like younger relatives of Jesse than his father because of the ages of the children, unless there is a young mother involved. (1414) 1790 Randolph County, North Carolina:  William Bowling 22500, and Benjamin 13500. 1# = head of household, 2# = free white males 16 and above, 3# =free white males <16, 4# =free white females, includes head of households, 5# =all other free white persons except Indians, 6# = slaves. (1553) William Bolling had land grants #1181 and #1187, 1799, Randolph County, North Carolina, 17 1/2 acres described as North side Little River, his own former survey, Steed's line, Luther (?) line, Steed's corner, his own line.  (942)  William Bolling had land grants #1562 and #1533, 1800, Randolph County, North Carolina, 83 acres described as both sides Little River Barnes Corner, Watery Branch crossing the river lines of Nathan Tucker, Richard ---? John Steed, his own line Rockey Creek.  Chainers were Robert Boling and Joseph Hudson.  (942) William Bolan was in Randolph County, North Carolina, in 1800 in household 303.  (9)  Bill Bolin is on the 1815 tax list of Randolph County, North Carolina. (942)  William Boling was on Capt.  King's district 1820 tax list of Randolph County, North Carolina as zero white poll, 300 acres on Little River.  (942) On 1830 Blount County census living closely is Betsy Borland (believed to be mother of Larkin and Robert).  Betsy is age 70-80 head of household, so William has died. (1553) On the 1840 Blount County, Tennessee census there is: Larken Bolen 00001001 0001001, and Shadrick Bolen, Larkin's son,  01000010 12001000001. The 80-90 yr old female would appear to be Larken's mother i.e. Betsy. (1553) In the Fall of 2001, Y-chromosome DNA testing was done on several male Bowling descendants of William Boling (Fh913,S) and Benjamin Bolin (Fh125,S).  They matched exactly using the 12 loci test (586659544577) done by Family Tree DNA of Houston, Texas. This proves that these men shared a common Bowling ancestor. (1553)

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

William Fh916 (6T) 429x

-----------------

William bc1801-d>1860 (Rin=54276)/Nancy Pressley (1808-1880)--might have had brothers Cley and Noah--all in the 1830 Census of Clay County, Indiana, ages 20-30, i.e. b1800-1810.—His father might have been John Fh429 (1450) 

       d
Thenie bc1827 TN-d>1880—daughter in 1880 Census as single 


*abc
Celia bc1828/9 TN

*abcd 
Decatur bc1830 IN-d>1880

*ab 
Elijah 1834 IN-1902/m1853 Sarah Bowling (1837-1907) Dau. of Charles 6T 753e


*ab
John bc1835 IN/m        Almira Bolin--Sister of Sarah above and Dau. of Charles 6T 753e


*abc 
Malinda bc1840 IN

      cd
Isabell bc1856 IN-d>1880—female in 1880 Census as single 


*
Children per source #955 (Informant Jane A. Bolin)


1830 Census of Clay, IN, has 1 male 20-30, 1 female under 5 and 1 female 20-30


a
1840 Census of Clay, IN, per #1785 


b
1850 Census of Clay, IN, per #1785 


c
1860 Census of Clay, IN, per #1785 


d
1880 Census of Clay, IN, per #1785 

Birth, Parents, Lineage

William Bowlin (Bolin, Bolling) was born about 1799 in North Carolina. (955) William Bowlin (Bolin, Bolling) father might have been John Fh429 (1450) William Bowlin (Bolin, Bolling) married Nancy Pressley who was born about 1808. They move to Clay County, Indiana, with other Bolins. They had a son Elijah (1834-1902) who married Sarah Bowling. (955) William Bolin was in the 1830, 1840, 1850, 1860 Census of Clay County, Indiana. His wife Nancy Pressley Bolin died 1880 in Clay County, Indiana. (955)

A different William--See Fh924

The 1850 Census of Clay County, Indiana, has William Boland, age 51, born in North Carolina. It has a wife Eliazabeth age 49.  See family group for children listed in census. (1155)

Apparently not Fh916 but is a new Fh924:

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

William Fh924 (6M1) 730a

-----------------

William 1799NC-d>1850 (Rin=51304)/m1818/19 Widow Charity (Kindler) Sandage/m1822 NC Elizabeth ------ (bc1801-d>1850)--His father was Thomas Fh730 (Rin=51271)


Robert b1823 NC,d1860 Clay, Indiana 


  e
Mary bc1825 Clay, Indiana


  e
John bc1828 Clay, Indiana



  e
Dicy Ann bc1831 Clay, Indiana


  e
Ely bc1833 Clay, Indiana


  e
William b1836 Clay, Indiana


  e
Susan bc1837 Clay, Indiana



  e
George bc1839 Clay, Indiana


  e
Mahala bc1841 Clay, Indiana

                 e
Malinda bc1843 Clay, Indiana

e
1850 Census of Clay County, Indina per Source #1155

William Bolin about 1815 with Thomas (730e) and Ellet Bolin (730d) and Ignatius Thompson left Kentucky for Perry County, Indiana. (7) William Bolin was in the Perry County, Indiana, in 1820 males 300100, females 01010. (HeritageQuest.com) William Bowlen was in the 1830 U.S. Census of Perry County, Indiana. (7) William Boland is in the 1850 Census of Clay County, Indiana, age 51, born in North Carolina. It has a wife Eliazabeth age 49.  See family group for children listed in census. (1155)

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

Wiloughby Fh930 (6T) 002x

-----------------

Wiloughby/Willaba/Willaby 1775-1849 (Rin=54280)/m<1800  ?Elizabeth Foster (?) d1846 His father was James #002. May have had brothers Daniel (Fh1595) born 1784/6 and Henry b1784, and Robert (Fh550)—.

*a
William Allen 1799-1848/mc1820 Elizabeth Medlin (f Rin=54280)



A Descendant’s Kit B216325 (Michael Bowlin) tested in to DNA 6 


*
Samuel bc1800-d>1840


*
1 female b1804-1810


*
John b1805-d>1850 born TN/m     Nancy -----


*
2 female b1804-1810


*
3 female b1804-1810


*a
Wilaby bc1818-d>1840/m      ?Jane -----


*
4 female 1810-1820


*a
Elizabeth 1816-d<1850/m      John Bolin Hill


*a
Ada bc1824 in TN,d>1850/m      Benjamin Clark


*
7 female b1820-1825

Sons of William Allen above


*
Wilson b1824-d1895 born AL—son of William Allen above


*
Berry  b1825-d1903 born AL—son of William Allen above


*
Children per Source #1088 from Census data. There was an Ada Bowlin, age 26, born in Tennessee (i.e. 


born about 1824) in the 1850 Census of Moniteau County, Missouri. She could be an unmarried daughter 


or a widow of one of the sons.   


a
Children per Source #1306.


Birth, Parents, Lineage

Willaba Bolin, from Census data, was probably born about 1774. (1088) I don't even have a good date for Willoughby’s birth. The 1850 Mortality Schedule for Moniteau County, Missouri, says he was 65 years old when he died. This would mean he was born around 1785. However, the census records are pretty consistent in showing him to be born somewhere between 1770-1780. It also states he was born in South Carolina. (1306) I believe Robert (Fh550,6T) and Willoughby Bolin were brothers. I have nothing to base it on except they were together, and there seems to be a lack of information on both of them. (1306)

Marriage and Children

It would seem likely that Willaby Bolin might have married a Foster since they lived next to each other in three different states. (1088) See family group for children based on Census data. (1088) 
The only children belonging to Willoughby that I'm certain of are:

a.
Elizabeth, who married John Hill and whose children were born in Marion County, Alabama. (1306)

b.
Ada who Willoughby deeded land to in Moniteau County, Missouri, Aug. 1849 before Willoughby’s death. (1306)

c.
Willoughby who is residing in Moniteau County, Missouri, 1850. (1306) Willoughby also had a son Willoughby 
living in Stoddard County, Missouri, on the 1840 census and who came to Moniteau County, Missouri. 

d.
Allen Bowlin of Moniteau County, Missouri. (1306) Nothing factual, but he had a son named Milledge as did 
Willoughby Bolen, Jr., son of Willoughby. I figure with such an unusual name, there had to be a relationship. 
(1306)

Movement

Willaby Bolin was a “Chainer” with William Bolin in 1797 in Montgomery/Mecklenburg County, North Carolina. (1088) Williba Bolin was in Mecklenburg (sic) County, North Carolina, in 1800, in page 477 with 20100-00100-00. (9)(1088) The above 1800 Census was in Salisbury District, Montgomery County, North Carolina.  (7)(1155) Williba Bolin and Suble Bolin were on the 1800 Census of Montgomery County, North Carolina, all on page 475. On page 468 was a William J. Bolin. (1303) Willoughby Bolen/Bolin is found in Lincoln County, Tennessee on the l820 Census. Listed below Willaby Bolin is Ambrose Foster, then Joel Foster and next is Robert Bowlen (Fh550) Several pages later in the same census is John Bowlen. Willaby (Fh930), Robert (Fh550) and John are all 26 to 45 years of age in the 1820 Census. (1306)(1088) 
1820 Lincoln County, Tennessee census
Willoby Bowlen
1    m under 10 (b>1810)
1    m 10-16  (b1804-1810)   
2    m 18-26
1    m 26-45
2    f under 10
2    f 10-16
1    f 16-26
1    f 26-45
(1553) 
Robert (Fh550,T) and a John are on that same a 1820 Lincoln County, Tennessee census. (1553) 

In the 1820 Lincoln County, Tennessee, Census John Bowlen appears along with Willoby Bolen (Fh930,6T), Robert Bolen (Fh550,6T). Is it possible that John moved away from his brother Samuel (Fh624,6) and South Carolina to Tennessee to be with his other brothers? (1600) John Bowling and Samuel Bowling (Fh624,6)(b1778, NC) may be the Brother of Willoughby (Fh930,T)(1775-1849), Daniel (b1784/6), Henry (b1784) and Robert (Fh550,T).  Their Father may have been Archibald (830a). (1600) Willoughby Bolen/Bolin is in Marion County, Alabama on the l830 census. Next to him is Ambrose and Joel J. Foster.(1306)(1088) 

1830 Marion County, Alabama:
Willaby Bowland (Fh930,6T)
 
1     m under 5

   
1     m 5-10

1     m 10-15

1     m 20-30

1     m 50-60

1     f 5-10

1     f 15-20

1     f 50-60 (1553)

Wilaby Bolin was in the 1840 Census of Stoddard County, Missouri. Next to him is Joel Foster.(1088)

Death

At some point Willoughby Bolen/Bolin  migrated to Moniteau County, Missouri and died there in l849. (1306) Willaby Bolin died in 1850 in Moniteau County, Missouri, per the mortality list. (1088) I couldn't find Willoughby Bolin in the 1810 Census so thought he went to Georgia. For one thing, a William Bolin in Moniteau County, Missouri, was born around 1808 in Georgia. I have a tendency to believe all the Bolins in Moniteau County, Missouri, on the 1850 census were children or grandchildren of Willoughby. I noticed the Willoughby Bolin on the later census in Georgia and have wondered if he was a grandson. There's a Willoughby Bolin in Itawamba County, Mississippi, 1850 census too who I believe is probably a grandson.  That's right across the state line from Marion County, Alabama, where Willoughby lived. (1306) I noticed the Foster line right off since Joel Foster was a witness to my John Hill's will in Stoddard County, Missouri.  John Hill married Willoughby's daughter. The Foster family followed them all the way to Moniteau County, Missouri, but I think some went back to Ala. or Miss. during the Civil War. Another family that was brought to my attention was the Suggs family. A Suggs researcher got in touch with me. There was Aquilla Suggs on the same page with the Bolins in Montgomery County, North Carolina. Then there's Aquilla Suggs a couple of houses (farms?) up from Willoby & Henry Suggs about 4 houses down from James Alexander & Robert Bowlen. Henry Suggs moved to Lawrence County, Alabama where there were a lot of Bolings living that may be related to ours. Harbert Suggs had land in Marion County, Alabama. I think the Suggs eventually ended up in Shannon County, Missouri. I had thought there must be something there to connect these families to cause them to stay together over a 50 year time span. Usually marriage does that.  The Suggs family researcher states that Willoughby Suggs was also in Alabama for a while & he was surprised I had a Willoughby Bolen as he was looking at my Willoughby Hill in Moniteau County, Missouri. He descends from a James Charles Suggs who lived in Franklin County, Alabama the county north of Marion. James Charles Suggs was also in Moniteau County, Missouri, 1850 & 1860 with my Bolins & Hills. There was also a Mary Bolling (554a) in Lawrence County, Alabama (the county with lots of Bolings) who married a Suggs. A number of those Lawrence County, Alabama Bolings moved into Itawamba County, Mississippi. (across the state line from Marion County, Alabama) (1306) There was a Samuel Bolin who died in Stoddard County, Missouri, by July 1847 and I wonder if this was the son of Willoughby. I do know Willoughby had a daughter named Ada since he deeded land over to her in Moniteau County, Missouri, before his death. She had three (3) Bolin children living with her in 1850 Moniteau County, Missouri. - Russel, Eli, & John and I have no idea where they came from. She is too young to be their Mother. She also had the children of Willoughby's daughter, Elizabeth, living with her.  Elizabeth Bolin married John Hill probably in Marion County., Alabama. All the children were born there.  John Hill died in Stoddard County, Missouri, and Elizabeth must have died before 1850 as the children are living with Ada at that time. (1306) I too have wondered about the Foster connection. Joel Foster was a witness to my John Hill's (husband of Elizabeth Bolin) will in Stoddard County, Missouri. There are other families identified that traveled with this particular Bolin family from North Carolina, to Lincoln County, Tennessee, to Marion County, Alabama, to Moniteau County, Missouri. The Suggs, Medlins (though they were in Bedford County, Tennessee, but right next to Lincoln County), Gibsons.  These families eventually took off for Tarrant County, Texas, but my Willoughby Hill stayed in Missouri. (1306)
+++++++++++++++++++++++++
William UK (6C or 6T) UK

---------------
UK 6C or 6T 
William Bowlin was in Rockingham County, Virginia, in 1810 in household 137 with 20001-01010-00. (9)(349)

Rockingham,VA-created 1778 from Augusta


6C
Jesse (Fh340,160a) r1776--Augusta then (Rin=45488)


6C

Jesse (340a) r1810,d<1811


6C

Jesse Butler (Fh351,340c) t1805-1824,r1820--later to Greenbrier Co. VA & by 1840 Cincinnati,






Hamilton, OH (Rin=45579)


6C


James (351a) rc1810


6C

Joel (Fh3535,340d) b1776--Augusta then


6C

Margaret "Peggy" (widow of Joel Fh3535,340a) m1811 (Peter Irick)



Ann (158a) m1804 (Samuel Hite)



Elizabeth (UK) m1809 (Alger)



Eliza Ann (UK) m1830 (Walker)


6T
James (Fh002,424l, 6T) b1773 (Rin=54471)—to Rush, IN 




Descendant kits 13529 and B216325



Mary (UK) m1795 (Michall)



William (UK) r1810(Census)
+++++++++++++++++++++++++

William UK (6) 680d
---------------
 

William Bowling was born 1754 in St. Paul Parish, Stafford County, Virginia, the son of Rachel Bowling.  No father was listed as was done in most cases. (492)  William Bowling was born 1754 in Stafford County, Virginia, the son of Rachel Bowling. (46)  William Bolling Sr. was on the 1787 census of Stafford County, Virginia, with  1 horse, and 6 head of cattle. (This could be William 680d) (551)

Thomas 1710-<1754 (Fh680, Rin=44916)/m1729 Rachel Colclough d>1748—His father was Joseph #450 (Rin=53942) 


ab d
Priscilla b 7 Mar 1731/32/m1760 Thomas Phillips


  b d
Rachael b< 1734/m1750/1 Joseph Doody, probably Moody 


a   d
Stephen b 26 Jan 1738/39--probably died young. Not in grandmother's will Dec 19,1748.


   cd
William b 25 Nov 1754 (sic, seems too late)


a
Births in the register of St. Paul's Parish per Source #46


b
Marriage in the register of St. Paul's Parish per Source #46


c
Son per source #1518


d
Children per Source #2111

+++++++++++++++++++++++++

6C UK

William Bolen, John Bolen, and David Bolen (not Fh160) in 1722, in Spotsylvania County, Virginia, were to do road work on the road from Germana along the ridge to the mountain Run so a Cross the said run between Coll: Caterss and Mr Skreens Quarter, Jacob Wall, Overseer. Several persons, including the three above, did not appear and help him as overseer, appointed by the Court, to clear the said road. The Court after examining the said persons, ordered that each be fined for absenting themselves. William Bolen for three days, John Bolen for five days, and David Bolen for five days. They to pay for each days absence and contempt as the Law directs with Coats as the Law directs. (1641) William Bolen, David Bolen, and John Bolen were in the Spotsylvania County, Virginia, Court Order Book 1722-1724, page 13, County Reel #26 of the Virginia State Library. (2052) Six years later Patriack Bolding was a tithable, with 10 others, "on the South Side of the River", 1728, Spotsylvania County, Virginia, to help Daniel Brown, overseer, clear the road from "Wallers bridge to Mattapany church". (1641)(1636)

DNA Group 6 Family Strings 

String    # of Kits
Fhxxx


***********

Father was Simon #629 (1626-1694) (Rin=45539 (LDQF-K4Z)




He was born in England and was probably our immigrant

A
13
6A 742
Rin=65495 (GM6N-X5F) William (bc1650-<1703)—Head of String A 




**********

Grandfather was Simon #629 (1626-1694) (Rin=45539 (LDQF-K4Z)


He was born in England and was probably our immigrant

Father was Simon #633 (<1654-1723) Rin=57107 (GMFS-4FN)

B
4
6B 634.
Rin=62018 (G9G8-BM9) Simon P. Boley (1720-1790)/m    Mary-Head of String B
**********

Great Grandfather was Simon #629 (1626-1694) (Rin=45539 (LDQF-K4Z)


He was born in England and was probably our immigrant

Grandfather was William #742 (bc1650-<1703) Rin=65495 (GM6N-X5F)

Father was George #240 1670-1736 Rin=62389 (LYLV-91N) 

C
0
6C 392.  Rin=51086 (LDQ3-WCC) John <1700-1730/m<1721 Mary Browne b>1675-<1695-d<1730.--



Head of String C 

***********




Great Great Grandfather was Simon #629 (1626-1694) (Rin=45539 (LDQF-K4Z)


 


He was born in England and was probably our immigrant




Great Grandfather was William #742 (bc1650-<1703) Rin=65495 (GM6N-X5F)
Grandfather was George #240 1670-1736 Rin=62389 (LYLV-91N) 

Father was Joseph #450 1688-1753 Rin=53942 (KH6N-6C5)  

K
5
6K 746.
Rin=39828 (2X9Y-5MJ) William 1717-1756/m<1748 Elizabeth Colclough 1723-d>1757-Head K
************

Grandfather was Simon #629 (1626-1694) (Rin=45539 (LDQF-K4Z)


He was born in England and was probably our immigrant

Father was Robert #516 1672-1730 (Rin=46246) LDQ6-Q8Z/ wife Mary Farlon  

M1
6
6M1 669. Rin=57934 (LY87-KC7) Thomas bc1700-d>1769/m     ----- -----Head of String M1



***********

Great Great Grandfather was Simon #629 (1626-1694) (Rin=45539 (LDQF-K4Z)


He was born in England and was probably our immigrant




Great Grandfather was William #742 (bc1650-<1703) Rin=65495 (GM6N-X5F)
Grandfather was George #240 1670-1736 Rin=62389 (LYLV-91N) 

Father was John #392 1700-1757 Rin=51086 (LDQ3-WCC)
M17
3
6M17 286. Rin=49063 (LDQ7-MZC) James 1735-1799/mc1755 Sarah ------ (bc1739-1790)—HOS M17 




Lawrence #4614 1770-1839/mc1792 P. ------





Descendant Kit 102427 tested into DNA Group 6




************




Great Great Great Great Grandfather was Simon #629 (1626-1694) (Rin=45539 (LDQF-K4Z)





He was born in England and was probably our immigrant




Great Great Great Grandfather was William #742 (bc1650-<1703) Rin=65495 (GM6N-X5F)




Grest Great Gandfather was George #240 1670-1736 Rin=62389 (LYLV-91N) 




Great Grandfather John #392 Rin=51086 (LDQ3-WCC) <1700-1730/m<1721 Mary Browne 



Grandfather was David #160 (1721-        ) Rin=61269 (KHQL-95Y)



Father was Spencer #647 (1744->1810) Rin=58594 (LBSN-GH3)
M18 
1
6M18 135.  Rin=32824 (9M8K-CRQ) Benjamin 1765-1838/m<1789 Elizabeth Lester--Head of String M18


A descendant kit 1286 tested into DNA 6.

***************
Great Grandfather was Simon #629 (1626-1694) Rin=45539 (LDQF-K4Z)


He was born in England and was probably our immigrant

Grandfather was Robert #516 Rin=46246 (LDQ6-Q8Z)
Father was Joseph #4501 (1717-1753) Rin=44604 (LDQ6-7QY)
M19
3
6M19 514. Rin=50591 (LDQS-K8R) Robert 1738-d<1807/m     Mary Burton (a widow in 1807) Head of 



String M19



************

Great Great Great Grandfather was Simon #629 (1626-1694) (Rin=45539 (LDQF-K4Z)


He was born in England and was probably our immigrant




Great Great Great Grandfather was William #742 (bc1650-<1703)  Rin=65495 (GM6N-X5F)
Great Great Grandfather was George #240 (1670-1736) Rin=62389 (LYLV-91N) 

Great Grandfather was Joseph #450 1688-1753 Rin=53942 (KH6N-6C5)
Grandfather was Benjamin #090 1704-1767 Rin=18570 (L69N-WBQ)
Father was John #397 (1734-1810) Rin=18572 (LYYQ-YFR)—See String N2 below 

M21
1
6M21 235. Rin=50768 (L663-9DB) George 1763-1839/m       ------  ------  Head of String M21



*************




Great Great Great Grandfather was Simon #629 (1626-1694) (Rin=45539 (LDQF-K4Z)


 


He was born in England and was probably our immigrant




Great Great Grandfather was William #742 (bc1650-<1703) Rin=65495 (GM6N-X5F)

Great Grandfather was George #240 (1670-1736) Rin=62389 (LYLV-91N) 

Grandfather was John #392 (1700-1757) Rin=51086 (LDQ3-WCC)
Father was John #424 (bc1730-d<1810) (Rin=54573) (LD33-XMD)  

M30
4
6M30 374. Rin=61167 (LBM3-5RR) John b1758/m<1781 Catherine Blackwell—Head of  String M30



Fh288,374a  JamesT. Kits 30936 & 38773 (Rin=41284, LT4D-KKZ) 




Fh390,374b  John 1794-1877 (Rin=60912) LWF6-ZM3




George Thomas 390b Kit 886538 6 M30 (Rin=60913, 2H23-2VT)

*************

Great Great Great Grandfather was Simon #629 (1626-1694) (Rin=45539 (LDQF-K4Z)


He was born in England and was probably our immigrant




Great Great Grandfather was William #742 (bc1650-<1703) Rin=65495 (GM6N-X5F)
Great Grandfather was George #240(1670-1736) Rin=62389 (LYLV-91N) 

Grandfather was Joseph #450 1688-1753 Rin=53942 (KH6N-6C5) 

Father was Benjamin #090 1704-1767 Rin=18570 (L69N-WBQ)
N2
5
6N2 397. Rin=18572 (LYYQ-YFR) John Fh397 (1734-1810)--Head of String N2



***************

Great Great Grandfather was Simon #629 (1626-1694) (Rin=45539 (LDQF-K4Z) 


He was born in England and was probably our immigrant




Great Grandfather was William #742 (bc1650-<1703)  Rin=65495 (GM6N-X5F)
Grandfather was George #240 (1670-1736) Rin=62389 (LYLV-91N) 

Father was John #392 (1700-1757)  Rin=51086 (LDQ3-WCC) 

S
27
6S 902.  Rin=44567 (LTQQ-PJ3) William bc1730-d<1784--Head of String S



**************

Great Great Grandfather was Simon #629 (1626-1694) (Rin=45539 (LDQF-K4Z)


He was born in England and was probably our immigrant




Great Grandfather was William #742 (bc1650-<1703) Rin=65495 (GM6N-X5F)
Grandfather was George #240 (1670-1736) Rin=62389 (LYLV-91N) 

Father was John #392 (1700-1757) Rin=51086 (LDQ3-WCC)
T
6
6T 424.
Rin=54573 LD33-XMD John bc1730-d<1810/mc1750 Mary Kenson (?) Head of String T



*****************

Great Grandfather was Simon #629 (1626-1694) (Rin=45539 (LDQF-K4Z)


He was born in England and was probably our immigrant

Grandfather was Simon #633 (<1654-1723) Rin=57107 (GMFS-4FN) / wife Sarah



Father was Simon #634 1720-1790 Rin=62018 (GMFS-76L)/ wife Mary 
X
4
6X 2285. Rin=50943 (LKV2-514) Benjamin Elliott c1755-1844/m1794 Nancy E.Ayers HOS String X



****************

Great Great Great Grandfather was Simon #629 (1626-1694) (Rin=45539 (LDQF-K4Z)


He was born in England and was probably our immigrant

Great Great Father was Robert #516 1668-1730 (Rin=46246) (LDQ6-Q8Z)/ wife Mary Farlon  




Great Grandfather was James #278 1710-dc1780 (Rin=54690) (LDQF-RF4)



Grandfather was James Thomas #279 1730-dc1790 Rin=22331 (MQ8B-MSG)




Father was Joseph John #386 b1756VA-1817 Rin=65497 (L84V-7PG) Nancy C. Spencer
Y
2
6Y 303.
Rin=50274 (LD38-LHQ) James b<1775-d>1820/m        ----------- ---------Head of String Y 

(spelled Boleyn)

Son Eli Fh225 (Ancestor of the two testees) Rin=50659 K4G4-5VK

******************

Great Great Grandfather was Simon #629 (1626-1694) (Rin=45539 (LDQF-K4Z)


He was born in England and was probably our immigrant

Great Father was Robert #516 1668-1730 (Rin=46246) (LDQ6-Q8Z)/ wife Mary Farlon  




Grandfather was James #278 1710-dc1780 (Rin=54690) (LDQF-RF4)



Father was James #279 1730-dc1790 Rin=22331 (MQ8B-MSG)

Z 
18
6Z 386.  Rin=65497 (L84V-7PG) Joseph John b1756VA-1817(m       Nancy Caroline Spencer-

Head of String Z
# of Family Strings   16

Kits above
102

UK

 19

Total kits    
121
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Todd Bolen




5950 Pelican Bay Blvd. #133



Naples, FL 34108



ToddBolen@AOL.Com     
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